
Board Agenda, November 16, 2023 1 

   

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
MEETING AND WORKSHOP  

 
Board of Education Members    
Chinua Rhodes, President (Trustee Area 5) 
Lavinia Grace Phillips, Vice President (Trustee Area 7) 
Jasjit Singh, Second Vice President (Trustee Area 2) 
Tara Jeane (Trustee Area 1) 
Christina Pritchett (Trustee Area 3) 
Jamee Villa (Trustee Area 4) 
Taylor Kayatta (Trustee Area 6) 
Liliana Miller Segura, Student Member 
 

Thursday, November 16, 2023 
5:00 p.m. Closed Session  

6:30 p.m. Open Session 
 

Serna Center 
Community Conference Rooms 

5735 47th Avenue 
Sacramento, CA  95824 

 

AGENDA 
 

2023/24-15 
 

       Allotted Time 
5:00 p.m. 1.0       OPEN SESSION / CALL TO ORDER / ROLL CALL 

 
 

 2.0      ANNOUNCEMENT AND PUBLIC COMMENT REGARDING ITEMS TO BE  
           DISCUSSED IN CLOSED SESSION 

 
 

 3.0  CLOSED SESSION 
 
 While the Brown Act creates broad public access rights to the meetings of the Board of Education, it also  

recognizes the legitimate need to conduct some of its meetings outside of the public eye.  Closed session 
meetings are specifically defined and limited in scope.  They primarily involve personnel issues, pending 
litigation, labor negotiations, and real property matters.  

 
 3.1 Government Code 54956.9 - Conference with Legal Counsel: 

a) Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to subdivision (d)(2) of Government 
Code section 54956.9 (One Potential Case) 

 
3.2 Government Code 54957.6 (a) and (b) Negotiations/Collective Bargaining SCTA 

SEIU, TCS, Teamsters, UPE, Non-Represented/Confidential Management  
(Cancy McArn) 

 
3.3 Government Code 54957 – Public Employee 

Discipline/Dismissal/Release/Complaint 
 
            3.4      Government Code 54957- Public Employee Appointment 
                        a) Approve – Chief Legal Counsel 
                        b) Approve – Chief Information Officer 
  

 



Board Agenda, November 16, 2023 2 

6:30 p.m. 4.0 CALL BACK TO ORDER/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
4.1 The Pledge of Allegiance 

 
4.2       Broadcast Statement 
 
4.3       Stellar Student introduced by Board Member Jamee Villa 

 
6:35 p.m. 5.0 ANNOUNCEMENT OF ACTION TAKEN IN CLOSED SESSION 

 
6:40 p.m. 
 

6.0 AGENDA ADOPTION 
 

6:45 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

7.0 PUBLIC COMMENT                                                                                               15 minutes 
Members of the public may address the Board on non-agenda items that are within the subject matter 
jurisdiction of the Board.  Public comment may be (1) emailed to publiccomment@scusd.edu; (2) 
submitted in writing through the district’s website at https://www.scusd.edu/submit-public-comment; or 
(3) provided in-person at the meeting.  The submission deadline for written public comments shall be no 
later than noon on the day of the meeting.  If you intend to address the Board in-person, please fill out a 
yellow card available at the entrance.  Speakers may be called in the order that requests are received, or 
grouped by subject area.  We ask that comments are limited to two (2) minutes with no more than 15 
minutes per single topic so that as many people as possible may be heard.  By law, the Board is allowed 
to take action only on items on the agenda.  The Board may, at its discretion, refer a matter to district 
staff or calendar the issue for future discussion.    

 
7:00 p.m. 8.0 COMMUNICATIONS 

 
 

 8.1 Employee Organization Reports:   

 SCTA  
 SEIU 
 TCS 
 Teamsters  
 UPE 

 

Information 
SCTA – 15 minutes  

SEIU – 3 minutes 
TCS – 3 minutes 

Teamsters – 3 minutes 
UPE – 3 minutes  

 

7:27 p.m.   8.2  District Advisory Committees: 

 Student Advisory Council 

 Community Advisory Committee  

 District English Learner Advisory Committee 

 Local Control Accountability Plan/Parent Advisory Committee 

 Black/African American Advisory Board 

 

Information 
3 minutes each 

 
 

9.0 SPECIAL PRESENTATION 
 

7:42 p.m.               9.1     Approve Resolution No. 3367: Sikh Awareness Month  
                       (Board Member Jasjit Singh) 

                             Action 
5 minute presentation 

               5 minute discussion 
 



Board Agenda, November 16, 2023 3 

 10.0 PUBLIC HEARING 
 

7:52 p.m.             10.1  Public Hearing: AB 1200 Public Disclosure and Approval  
                         of MOU between SCUSD and the Service Employees  
                         International Union (Cancy McArn & Dan Schallock) 

  Public Hearing/Action 
5 minute presentation 

5 minute discussion 
 

 11.0 BOARD WORKSHOP/STRATEGIC INITIATIVE 
 

8:02 p.m.             11.1  Facilities Master Plan Implementation and Construction  
                         Update (Chris Ralston) 

                   Information 
10 minute presentation 

10 minute discussion 
 

 
 12.0 COMMUNICATIONS 

 
 

8:22 p.m. 12.1  President’s Report (Chinua Rhodes) Information 
5 minutes 

 
8:27 p.m.            12.2 Student Member Report (Liliana Miller Segura) Information 

5 minutes 
 

8:32 p.m.            12.3  Information Sharing by Board Members Information 
10 minutes 

 
 

8:42 p.m. 13.0 CONSENT AGENDA                                                                                                         Action 
                                                                                                                                                               2 minutes 

Generally routine items are approved by one motion without discussion.  The Superintendent or a Board 
member may request an item be pulled from the consent agenda and voted upon separately. 

 
13.1  Items Subject or Not Subject to Closed Session: 
 

13.1a Approve Grants, Entitlements and Other Income Agreements, Ratification of Other 
Agreements, Approval of Bid Awards, Approval of Declared Surplus Materials 
and Equipment, Change Notices and Notices of Completion  

  (Janea Marking) 
 

                                   13.1b Approve Personnel Transactions (Cancy McArn) 
 

13.1c Approve Business and Financial Report: PO Report September 14 through 
October 15, 2023 (Janea Marking) 

 
13.1d Approve Minutes of the September 21, 2023, Board of Education Meeting  
           (Lisa Allen) 
  
13.1e Approve Annual Developer Fees Report for Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2023 

(Janea Marking) 
 
13.1f Approve Resolution No. 3368: Naming District Representatives for School 

Facilities Program and Division of State Architect (Nathaniel Browning) 
 
13.1g Approve the Annual Organization Meeting Date of December 14, 2023 (Lisa Allen) 
 
 



Board Agenda, November 16, 2023 4 

13.1h Approve SETA Head Start Budget Carryover from Program 2022-2023 to 
            2023-2024 (Yvonne Wright & E’leva Hughes Gibson) 
 
13.1i Approve SETA Head Start Budget Modification for 2022-2023 (Yvonne Wright & 

E’leva Hughes Gibson) 
 

8:44 p.m. 14.0 FUTURE BOARD MEETING DATES / LOCATIONS 
 

 December 14, 2023, 5:00 p.m. Closed Session, 6:30 p.m. Open Session, Serna Center,  
5735 47th Avenue, Community Room, Regular Workshop Meeting 

 
 January 18, 2024, 5:00 p.m. Closed Session, 6:30 p.m. Open Session, Serna Center,  

5735 47th Avenue, Community Room, Regular Workshop Meeting 
 

8:46 p.m. 15.0 ADJOURNMENT  
 
NOTE:  The Sacramento City Unified School District encourages those with disabilities to participate fully in the 
public meeting process.  If you need a disability-related modification or accommodation, including auxiliary aids or 
services, to participate in the public meeting, please contact the Board of Education Office at (916) 643-9314 at least 
48 hours before the scheduled Board of Education meeting so that we may make every reasonable effort to 
accommodate you.  [Government Code § 54953.2; Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, § 202 (42 U.S.C. §12132)]   
Any public records distributed to the Board of Education less than 72 hours in advance of the meeting and relating to 
an open session item will be available on the district’s website at www.scusd.edu 

  

http://www.scusd.edu/


1 of 1 

 
 

 
 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
                  BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 

 
Agenda Item 9.1 

 
 
Meeting Date:  November 16, 2023 
 
 
Subject:  Approve Resolution No. 3367:  Recognition of November 2023 as 

California Sikh American Awareness and Appreciation Month 
 

 Information Item Only 
 Approval on Consent Agenda 
 Conference (for discussion only) 
 Conference/First Reading (Action Anticipated: ______________)  
 Conference/Action 
 Action 
 Public Hearing 

 
 

Division:  Superintendent’s Office 
 
 
Recommendation:  Approve Resolution No. 3367:  Recognition of November 2023 as 
California Sikh American Awareness and Appreciation Month. 
 
 
Background/Rationale:  November 2023 has been designated as California Sikh 
American Awareness and Appreciation Month.  The Resolution recognizes the 
significant contributions that Californians of Sikh heritage have made to the state and 
seeks to afford all Californians the opportunity to understand, recognize, and appreciate 
the rich history and shared principles of Sikh Americans. 
 
 
Financial Considerations:  N/A 
 
 
LCAP Goal(s):  Family and Community Engagement. 
 
 
Documents Attached: 
1. Resolution No. 3367  
 
 
Estimated Time of Presentation:  5 minutes 
Submitted by:  Board Member Jasjit Singh 
Approved by:   Lisa Allen, Interim Superintendent 



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD OF EDUCATION 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 3367  

 
A RESOLUTION TO PROCLAIM NOVEMBER AS SIKH AWARENESS AND APPRECIATION 

MONTH BY SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 

WHEREAS, November marks the birth of the founder of the Sikh faith, Guru Nanak Dev Ji and 
Sikhs around the world commemorate November by initiating Nagar Kirtans, holding Akhand 
Paths (a non-stop reading of Guru Granth Sahib Ji), and continue the tradition started by Guru 
Nanak Dev Ji of Langar; and,  
 
WHEREAS, Langar is the foundational Sikh revolutionary space and where Sikhs come together 
to discuss the revolutionary ideas of the house of Nanak; it’s a safe space for all the oppressed 
people of the world, to share a meal with the Khalsa and learn about our revolutionary struggle 
so that they too can take part; and,  
 
WHEREAS, Sikhs have been living in the United States for more than 120 years; and, 
 
WHEREAS, during the early 20th century, thousands of Sikh Americans worked on farms, in 
lumber mills, on the railroads, and in mines throughout California and the continental US; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the Sikh faith is the fifth largest religion in the world, and today, there are more 
than 30 million Sikhs worldwide, and an estimated 750,000 Sikh Americans, with nearly 500,000 
living in California, and a majority of whom call the Valley home; and,  
 
WHEREAS, Sikh Americans pursue diverse professions and make rich contributions to the political, 
social, cultural, and economic vibrancy of the United States, including significant contributions to 
agriculture, information technology, small businesses, the hotel industry, trucking, health, technology; 
and,  
 
WHEREAS, Sikh Americans distinguished themselves by fostering respect among all people 
through faith and service, as well as a commitment to truth and justice; and,  
 
WHEREAS, on October 14, 1912, the first Sikh Gurdwara in the United States, Gurdwara Sahib 
Sikh Temple, was founded by Professor Teja Singh of the Pacific Coast Khalsa Diwan Society, in 
Stockton, CA; and,  
 
WHEREAS, Sikh Gurdwaras have been a beacon for the local community through their fostering 
of selfless service and community building; and,  
 
WHEREAS, there are parks named in honor of the Sikh Community in California such as 
Jaswant Singh Khalra Park in Fresno, Singh and Kaur Park in Elk Grove, and Singh Park in 
Livingston; and,  
 



WHEREAS, the largest Nagar Kirtan in the United States takes place in November of ever year, 
in Yuba City, CA; and,  
 
WHEREAS, the Sikh genocide began on November 1, 1984, systemic and orchestrated 
genocidal violence was perpetrated against Sikhs by the government of India in November 1984 
in the capital territory of Delhi, the states of Jharkhand, Madhya Pradesh, Haryana, Uttarakhand, 
Bihar, Uttar Pradesh, West Bengal, Himachal Pradesh, Rajasthan, Odisha, Chhattisgarh, Tripura, 
Tamil Nadu, Gujarat, Andhra Pradesh, Kerala, and Maharashtra, and the union territory of Jammu 
and Kashmir; and,  
 
WHEREAS, the Sikh genocide lasted three days, and over 30,000 Sikhs were brutally 
murdered, or died in their homes; and,  
 
WHEREAS, in June 2023, the California Legislature, unanimously passed Resolution Bill AJR2 
condemning the November 1984 anti-Sikh violence in India as genocide; and,  
 
WHEREAS, many Sikhs made the United States their home after escaping persecution and after  
facing a genocide in 1984, and Sikhs continue to build new roots; and,  
 
WHEREAS, innocent Sikhs in India and around the world, such as Jagtar Singh Johal, are 
unlawfully abducted, faced with unlawful detention, tortured, and have their human rights 
trampled upon under draconian and fascist laws in India; and,  
 
WHEREAS, Sikhs around the world will continue to stand up for justice and raise issues such as 
#SikhGenocide1984, #FreeJaggiNow; and,  
 
WHEREAS, the Sacramento City Unified School District is amongst the most diverse districts in 
California and the United States, is committed to educating our communities about the world’s 
religions, the value of diversity, acceptance, and a culture of mutual understanding; and,  
 
WHEREAS, today the Sacramento City Unified School District seeks to further the diversity of 
its community and afford all residents the opportunity to better understand, recognize, and 
appreciate the rich history and shared experiences of Sikh Americans; and,  
 
WHEREAS, recognizing the state-sponsored violence that targeted Sikhs across India in 1984 is 
an important and historic step towards justice, accountability, and reconciliation, which should 
be an example to other governments; and,  
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Sacramento City Unified School District condemns the 
November 1984 anti-Sikh violence in India as genocide; and, 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Sacramento City Unified School District is encouraged 
to acknowledge November as Sikh Awareness and Appreciation Month and support ethnic studies that 
recognizes the Sikh community and its history; and, 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Sacramento City Unified School District is committed 
to protecting the rights of Sikh students and Sikh employees to practice their faith with their articles of 
faith (Kes, Kara, Kanga, Kirpan, and Kachera) intact; and, 



 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Sacramento City Unified School District recognizes 
November as “Sikh Awareness and Appreciation Month”. 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Sacramento City Unified School District Board of Education on 
this 16th day of November, 2023, by the following vote: 

 
AYES:  ____ 
NOES:  ____ 
ABSTAIN: ____ 
ABSENT: ____ 
 
 
 
____________________________                                                   _____________________________ 
Lisa Allen                                                                                           Chinua Rhodes 
Secretary of the Board of Education                                                  President of the Board of Education 
 



Page 1 of 3 
 

 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 

Agenda Item#__10.1__  
 

 
Meeting Date:  November 16, 2023 
 
Subject:  Public Hearing: AB 1200 Public Disclosure and Approval of MOU 

between SCUSD and the Service Employees International Union  
 

 Information Item Only 
 Approval on Consent Agenda 
 Conference (for discussion only) 
 Conference/First Reading (Action Anticipated: ______________)  
 Conference/Action 
 Action 
 Public Hearing 

 
Division:  Labor Relations; Business Services 
 
Recommendation:  Approve agreement between SCUSD and SEIU for the contract 
term of July 1, 2023 through June 30, 2025. 
 
Background/Rationale:  The parties’ agreement includes the following compensation 
items: 
 

• A 10% salary schedule increase for all SEIU employees retroactive to July 1, 
2022 

• An additional 6% salary schedule increase retroactive to July 1, 2022 for specific 
job classifications outlined within the MOU 

• Through the implementation of the above two salary adjustments, the parties will 
have established a minimum hourly rate of eighteen ($18) for SEIU members 

• Effective July 1, 2024, an increase of the minimum wage to twenty ($20) per hour 
 
The agreement closes all negotiations for the period from July 1, 2022 to June 30, 2023. 
Additionally, the agreement closes negotiations for the period of July 1, 2023 through 
June 30, 2025 except for reopeners on the following items: 
 

a. Article 6: Compensation 
b. Article 16: Safety 
c. Article 3: Union Rights  
d. Article 8: Hours 



Page 2 of 3 
 

e. Article 13: Transfers/ Promotions 
f. Article 14: Performance Evaluations 
g. Article 17: Professional Growth Program 
h. Article 18: Grievance Procedure 
i. Article 19: Disciplinary Process 
j. Article 20: Layoff 
k. Article 24: Contracting Out 

 
Financial Considerations:  Retroactive costs for all funds of approximately $10.6M, 
ongoing costs for all funds of $12.6M in 2023-24, $13.6M in 2024-25 and $13.6M in 
2025-26. 
 
LCAP Goals:  College, Career and Life Ready Graduates; Safe, Emotionally Healthy 
and Engaged Students; Family and Community Empowerment; Operational Excellence. 
 
Documents Attached:   

• AB 1200 Disclosure 
• MOU between SCUSD and SEIU  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 3 of 3 
 

 
 
 
 

 
Estimated Time of Presentation:  5 Minutes 
Submitted by:  Janea Marking, Chief Business and Operation 

Officer  
Approved by:   Lisa Allen, Interim Superintendent 

 



Certificated, Classified, Other:

July 1, 2023 and ending: June 30, 2025
(date) (date)

November 16, 2023
(date)

Annual Cost Prior to 
Proposed Settlement

Year 1            
Increase/(Decrease)

Year 2            
Increase/(Decrease)

Year 3            
Increase/(Decrease)

2023-24 2024-25 2025-26

Salary Schedule 
Including Step and Column

24.70% 10.65% 9.62%
Other Compensation 
Stipends, Bonuses, Longevity, Overtime, 
Differential, Callback or Standby Pay, etc.

   
Description of Other Compensation    

3. Statutory Benefits - STRS, PERS, 
FICA, WC, UI, Medicare, etc.

 $                6,006,119  $                3,330,527  $                3,330,527 

14.99% 7.23% 6.74%
4. Health/Welfare Plans  $                            -    $                            -    $                            -   

0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
5. Total Bargaining Unit Compensation    

Add Items 1 through 4 to equal 5
 $              23,275,528  $              12,612,931  $              12,612,931 

16.11% 7.52% 6.99%
6. Total Number of Bargaining Unit 

Employees (Use FTEs if appropriate)

7. Total Compensation Average Cost per 
Bargaining Unit Employee 

 $                     14,109  $                       7,646  $                       7,646 

16.11% 7.52% 6.99%

Fiscal Impact of Proposed Agreement                        
(Complete Years 2 and 3 multiyear and overlapping agreements and Step & Column 

increases)
Bargaining Unit Compensation

A.  Proposed Change in Compensation

Note:  This form, along with a copy of the proposed agreement, must be submitted to the County Office at least 
ten (10) working days prior to the date the Governing Board will take action.

Classified

The proposed agreement covers the period beginning:

The Governing Board will act upon this agreement on:

in accordance with AB 1200 (Chapter 1213/Statutes 1991), AB 2756 (Chapter 52/Statutes 2004), GC 3547.5
PUBLIC DISCLOSURE OF PROPOSED COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT

Sacramento City Unified School District
Name of Bargaining Unit:
Name of School District:

Service Employees International Union

 $        144,452,486 

 $          34,476,567 

 $                 87,564 

1,649.67 

 $                9,282,404 

 $          40,055,675 

 $                         -    $                              -  $                            -   

All Funds - Combined

 $                            -   2.

1.  $          69,920,244  $              17,269,409  $                9,282,404 



A.

Yes No x

B.

C.

       additional sheet.)

       If yes, please describe the cap amount.

10.  Please include comments and explanations as necessary.  (If more room is necessary, please attach an

No

9.  Were any additional steps, columns, or ranges added to the salary schedules?  (If yes, please explain.)

NA

11.  Does this bargaining unit have a negotiated cap for Health and Welfare 

Sacramento City Unified School District

 8.  What was the negotiated percentage change?  For example, if the change in "Year 1" was for less than a full 

10% ongoing for all SEIU unit members retroactive to July 1, 2022. An additional 6% salary increase applied
after the 10% for job classes on Salary Schedule C ranges 29-41, Flat Rate C salary schedule, and Instructional
Aid, Health Aide, and Teacher Assistant job classifications, all retroactive to July 1, 2022. Additionally, the
agreement includes an increase to the minimum wage to $20 effective 7/1/2024. 

       year, what is the annualized percentage of that change for "Year 1"?

Proposed Change in Compensation (Continued)

Public Disclosure of Proposed Collective Bargaining Agreement

Page 2

Impact of changes include reductions in categorical program books, supplies and operating expenses to offset the
increased cost of salaries and benefits. Additional reductions are to be identified in future financial reports.

       benefits?

Agreement includes revisions and additions to Article 9 and Article 16 of the SEIU Contract. 

What are the specific impacts (positive or negative) on instructional and support programs to
accommodate the settlement? Include the impact of changes such as staff reductions or increases, program
reductions or increases, elimination or expansion of other services or programs (i.e., counselors, librarians,
custodial staff, etc.)

Proposed negotiated changes in noncompensation items (i.e., class size adjustments, staff development days,
teacher prep time, classified staffing ratios, etc.)



D.

E.

F.

Sacramento City Unified School District

NA

NA

     subsequent years?

Source of Funding for Proposed Agreement:

2.  If this is a single year agreement, how will the ongoing cost of the proposed agreement be funded in 

1.  Current Year

The ongoing cost is to be funded with unrestricted and restricted general funds in the current year and subsequent
years. 

Identify other major provisions that do not directly affect the district's costs, such as binding arbitrations,
grievance procedures, etc.

Page 3

What contingency language is included in the proposed agreement (e.g., reopeners, etc.)?

Public Disclosure of Proposed Collective Bargaining Agreement

The ongoing cost is to be funded with unrestricted and restricted general funds in the current year and subsequent
years. 

3.  If this is a multiyear agreement, what is the source of funding, including assumptions used, to fund these
     obligations in subsequent years?  (Remember to include compounding effects in meeting obligations.)

Contingency language includes reopeners on compensation and additional articles for the 23-24 and 24-25 years. 



Public Disclosure of Proposed Collective Bargaining Agreement

Column 1 Column 2 Column 3 Column 4

Object Code

Latest Board-
Approved Budget 
Before Settlement  

(8/13/22)

Adjustments as a 
Result of Settlement 

(compensation)

Other Revisions 
(agreement support 

and/or other unit 
agreement)       

Explain on Page 4i

Total Revised   
Budget          

(Columns 1+2+3) 

     LCFF Revenue 8010-8099  $       500,346,764  $                        -    $       500,346,764 

     Federal Revenue 8100-8299  $                        -    $                        -    $                        -   

     Other State Revenue 8300-8599  $         12,144,270  $                        -    $         12,144,270 

     Other Local Revenue 8600-8799  $           4,151,175  $                        -    $           4,151,175 

 $       516,642,209  $                        -    $       516,642,209 

     Certificated Salaries 1000-1999  $       178,470,006  $                        -    $         40,084,215  $       218,554,221 

     Classified Salaries 2000-2999  $         42,958,364  $           7,332,950  $                        -    $         50,291,314 

     Employee Benefits 3000-3999  $       131,105,927  $           2,503,870  $           8,932,501  $       142,542,298 

     Books and Supplies 4000-4999  $         13,462,782  $         (5,000,000)  $           8,462,782 

     Services and Other Operating Expenditures 5000-5999  $         27,570,886  $                        -    $         27,570,886 

     Capital Outlay 6000-6999  $                49,259  $                        -    $                49,259 

     Other Outgo (excluding Indirect Costs) 7100-7299  
7400-7499

 $           1,510,300  $                        -    $           1,510,300 

     Transfers of Indirect Costs 7300-7399  $         (7,894,319)  $                        -    $         (7,894,319)

 $       387,233,206  $           9,836,820  $         44,016,716  $       441,086,742 

     Transfers In and Other Sources 8900-8979  $           1,339,247  $                        -    $                        -    $           1,339,247 

     Transfers Out and Other Uses 7600-7699  $                        -    $                        -    $                        -    $                        -   

     Contributions 8980-8999  $     (104,925,543)  $         (3,853,314)  $       (15,659,827)  $     (124,438,684)

 $         25,822,707  $       (13,690,134)  $       (59,676,543)  $       (47,543,970)

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 9791  $       135,640,173  $       135,640,173 

    Audit Adjustments/Other Restatements 9793/9795  $                        -   

 $       161,462,881  $       (13,690,134)  $       (59,676,543)  $         88,096,204 

     Nonspendable 9711-9719  $              325,000  $                        -    $                        -    $              325,000 

     Restricted 9740

     Committed 9750-9760  $         85,832,540  $       (85,832,540)  $                        -    $                        -   

     Assigned 9780  $           2,260,058  $         (2,260,058)  $                        -    $                        -   

     Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789  $         13,952,230  $           1,590,057  $                        -    $         15,542,287 

     Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 9790  $         59,093,053  $         72,812,407  $       (59,676,543)  $         72,228,917 

*Net Increase (Decrease) in Fund Balance

REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES

NOTE:  9790 amounts in Columns 1 and 4 must be positive

ENDING FUND BALANCE 

COMPONENTS OF ENDING FUND BALANCE:

TOTAL REVENUES

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

OPERATING SURPLUS (DEFICIT)*

Page 4a

Sacramento City Unified School District

G.  IMPACT OF PROPOSED AGREEMENT ON CURRENT YEAR OPERATING BUDGET

Service Employees International Union
Unrestricted General Fund

Bargaining Unit:



Column 1 Column 2 Column 3 Column 4

Object Code

Latest Board-
Approved Budget 
Before Settlement  

(8/13/22)

Adjustments as a 
Result of Settlement 

(compensation)

Other Revisions 
(agreement support 

and/or other unit 
agreement)       

Explain on Page 4i

Total Revised   
Budget          

(Columns 1+2+3) 

     LCFF Revenue 8010-8099  $           2,478,216  $                        -    $           2,478,216 

     Federal Revenue 8100-8299  $         99,571,861  $                        -    $         99,571,861 

     Other State Revenue 8300-8599  $       100,096,650  $                        -    $       100,096,650 

     Other Local Revenue 8600-8799  $           2,032,950  $                        -    $           2,032,950 

 $       204,179,676  $                        -    $       204,179,676 

EXPENDITURES

     Certificated Salaries 1000-1999  $         70,896,488  $                        -    $         18,212,583  $         89,109,071 

     Classified Salaries 2000-2999  $         34,523,944  $           6,199,262  $                        -    $         40,723,206 

     Employee Benefits 3000-3999  $         89,940,805  $           2,161,344  $           4,254,391  $         96,356,540 

     Books and Supplies 4000-4999  $         25,690,583  $         (2,910,868)  $         22,779,715 

     Services and Other Operating Expenditures 5000-5999  $         84,288,412  $         (3,403,574)  $         80,884,838 

     Capital Outlay 6000-6999  $              896,918  $                        -    $              896,918 

     Other Outgo (excluding Indirect Costs) 7100-7299  
7400 7499

 $                        -    $                        -    $                        -   

    Transfers of Indirect Costs 7300-7399  $           6,616,549  $                        -    $           6,616,549 

 $       312,853,698  $           8,360,606  $         16,152,533  $       337,366,837 

 $                        -   

     Transfers In and Other Sources 8900-8979  $                        -    $                        -    $                        -    $                        -   

     Transfers Out and Other Uses 7600-7699  $                        -    $                        -    $                        -    $                        -   

     Contributions 8980-8999  $       104,925,543  $           3,853,314  $         15,659,827  $       124,438,684 

 $         (3,748,479)  $         (4,507,292)  $            (492,706)  $         (8,748,477)

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 9791  $       122,292,561  $       122,292,561 

    Audit Adjustments/Other Restatements 9793/9795  $                        -    $                        -   

 $       118,544,082  $         (4,507,292)  $            (492,706)  $       113,544,084 

     Nonspendable 9711-9719  $                        -    $                        -    $                        -    $                        -   

     Restricted 9740  $       118,544,082  $                        -    $         (4,999,998)  $       113,544,084 

     Committed 9750-9760

     Assigned Amounts 9780

     Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789  $                        -    $                        -    $                        -   

     Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 9790  $                        -    $         (4,507,292)  $           4,507,292  $                        -   
*Net Increase (Decrease) in Fund Balance

Sacramento City Unified School District

Page 4b

G.  IMPACT OF PROPOSED AGREEMENT ON CURRENT YEAR OPERATING BUDGET

Service Employees International Union
Restricted General Fund

Bargaining Unit:

Public Disclosure of Proposed Collective Bargaining Agreement

REVENUES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES

NOTE:  9790 amounts in Columns 1 and 4 must be positive

ENDING FUND BALANCE 

COMPONENTS OF ENDING FUND BALANCE:

TOTAL REVENUES

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

OPERATING SURPLUS (DEFICIT)*



Column 1 Column 2 Column 3 Column 4

Object Code

Latest Board-
Approved Budget 
Before Settlement  

(8/13/22)

Adjustments as a 
Result of Settlement 

(compensation)

Other Revisions 
(agreement support 

and/or other unit 
agreement)       

Explain on Page 4i

Total Revised   
Budget          

(Columns 1+2+3) 

     LCFF Revenue 8010-8099  $       502,824,980  $                        -    $       502,824,980 

     Federal Revenue 8100-8299  $         99,571,861  $                        -    $         99,571,861 

     Other State Revenue 8300-8599  $       112,240,920  $                        -    $       112,240,920 

     Other Local Revenue 8600-8799  $           6,184,125  $                        -    $           6,184,125 

 $       720,821,885  $                        -    $       720,821,885 

     Certificated Salaries 1000-1999  $       249,366,493  $                        -    $         58,296,798  $       307,663,291 

     Classified Salaries 2000-2999  $         77,482,308  $         13,532,212  $                        -    $         91,014,520 

     Employee Benefits 3000-3999  $       221,046,732  $           4,665,214  $         13,186,892  $       238,898,838 

     Books and Supplies 4000-4999  $         39,153,365  $         (7,910,868)  $         31,242,497 

     Services and Other Operating Expenditures 5000-5999  $       111,859,298  $         (3,403,574)  $       108,455,725 

     Capital Outlay 6000-6999  $              946,177  $                        -    $              946,177 

     Other Outgo (excluding Indirect Costs) 7100-7299  
7400-7499

 $           1,510,300  $                        -    $           1,510,300 

    Transfers of Indirect Costs 7300-7399  $         (1,277,770)  $                        -    $         (1,277,770)

 $       700,086,904  $         18,197,426  $         60,169,249  $       778,453,579 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES

     Transfer In and Other Sources 8900-8979  $           1,339,247  $                        -    $                        -    $           1,339,247 

     Transfers Out and Other Uses 7600-7699  $                        -    $                        -    $                        -    $                        -   

     Contributions 8980-8999  $                        -    $                        -    $                        -    $                        -   

 $         22,074,229  $       (18,197,426)  $       (60,169,249)  $       (56,292,446)

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 9791  $       257,932,735  $       257,932,735 

    Audit Adjustments/Other Restatements 9793/9795  $                        -    $                        -   

 $       280,006,963  $       (18,197,426)  $       (60,169,249)  $       201,640,288 

COMPONENTS OF ENDING FUND BALANCE:

     Nonspendable 9711-9719  $              325,000  $                        -    $                        -    $              325,000 

     Restricted 9740  $       118,544,082  $                        -    $         (4,999,998)  $       113,544,084 

     Committed 9750-9760  $         85,832,540  $       (85,832,540)  $                        -    $                        -   

     Assigned 9780  $           2,260,058  $         (2,260,058)  $                        -    $                        -   

     Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789  $         13,952,230  $           1,590,057  $                        -    $         15,542,287 

     Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 9790  $         59,093,053  $         68,305,115  $       (55,169,251)  $         72,228,917 

*Net Increase (Decrease) in Fund Balance

Sacramento City Unified School District

G.  IMPACT OF PROPOSED AGREEMENT ON CURRENT YEAR OPERATING BUDGET

Service Employees International Union
Combined General Fund

Bargaining Unit:

REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

Public Disclosure of Proposed Collective Bargaining Agreement

NOTE: 9790 amounts in Columns 1 and 4 must be positive

Page 4c

TOTAL REVENUES

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

ENDING FUND BALANCE 

OPERATING SURPLUS (DEFICIT)*

Printed 11/9/2023 at 3:08 PM



Column 1 Column 2 Column 3 Column 4

Object Code

Latest Board-
Approved Budget 
Before Settlement 

(As of 7/1/23)

Adjustments as a 
Result of Settlement 

(compensation)

Other Revisions 
(agreement support 

and/or other unit 
agreement)       

Explain on Page 4i

Total Revised   
Budget          

(Columns 1+2+3) 

     Federal Revenue 8100-8299  $              708,560  $                       -    $              708,560 

     Other State Revenue 8300-8599  $           1,962,393  $                       -    $           1,962,393 

     Other Local Revenue 8600-8799  $           2,992,564  $                       -    $           2,992,564 

 $           5,663,517  $                       -    $           5,663,517 

     Certificated Salaries 1000-1999  $           1,620,273  $                       -    $              268,040  $           1,888,313 

     Classified Salaries 2000-2999  $           1,284,225  $              253,018  $                       -    $           1,537,243 

     Employee Benefits 3000-3999  $           2,175,373  $                90,783  $                62,170  $           2,328,326 

     Books and Supplies 4000-4999  $                42,000  $                       -    $                42,000 

     Services and Other Operating Expenditures 5000-5999  $              484,801  $                       -    $              484,801 

     Capital Outlay 6000-6999  $                       -    $                       -    $                       -   

     Other Outgo (excluding Indirect Costs) 7100-7299  
7400-7499

 $                       -    $                       -    $                       -   

     Transfers of Indirect Costs 7300-7399  $                56,844  $                       -    $                56,844 

 $           5,663,517  $              343,801  $              330,210  $           6,337,528 

     Transfers In and Other Sources 8900-8979  $                       -    $                       -    $                       -    $                       -   

     Transfers Out and Other Uses 7600-7699  $                       -    $                       -    $                       -    $                       -   

 $                       (0)  $            (343,801)  $            (330,210)  $            (674,011)

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 9791  $           1,061,008  $           1,061,008 

    Audit Adjustments/Other Restatements 9793/9795  $                       -    $                       -   

ENDING FUND BALANCE  $           1,061,008  $            (343,801)  $            (330,210)  $              386,997 

     Nonspendable 9711-9719  $                       -    $                       -    $                       -    $                       -   

     Restricted 9740  $                       -    $                       -    $                       -    $                       -   

     Committed 9750-9760  $                       -    $                       -    $                       -    $                       -   

     Assigned 9780  $                       -    $                       -    $                       -    $                       -   

     Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789  $                       -    $                       -    $                       -    $                       -   

     Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 9790  $           1,061,008  $            (343,801)  $            (330,210)  $              386,997 

*Net Increase (Decrease) in Fund Balance

REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES

NOTE: 9790 amounts in Columns 1 and 4 must be positive

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

OPERATING SURPLUS (DEFICIT)*

TOTAL REVENUES

COMPONENTS OF ENDING FUND BALANCE:

Sacramento City Unified School District

Page 4d

G.  IMPACT OF PROPOSED AGREEMENT ON CURRENT YEAR OPERATING BUDGET

Service Employees International Union
Fund 11 - Adult Education Fund

Bargaining Unit:

Public Disclosure of Proposed Collective Bargaining Agreement

Printed 11/9/2023 at 3:08 PM



Column 1 Column 2 Column 3 Column 4

Object Code

Latest Board-
Approved Budget 
Before Settlement  

(8/13/22)

Adjustments as a 
Result of Settlement 

(compensation)

Other Revisions 
(agreement support 

and/or other unit 
agreement)       

Explain on Page 4i

Total Revised   
Budget          

(Columns 1+2+3) 

     Federal Revenue 8100-8299  $           6,461,521  $                       -    $           6,461,521 

     Other State Revenue 8300-8599  $           8,273,810  $                       -    $           8,273,810 

     Other Local Revenue 8600-8799  $              526,850  $                       -    $              526,850 

 $         15,262,182  $                       -    $         15,262,182 

     Certificated Salaries 1000-1999  $           5,025,313  $                       -    $              908,368  $           5,933,681 

     Classified Salaries 2000-2999  $           2,820,853  $              786,238  $                       -    $           3,607,091 

     Employee Benefits 3000-3999  $           6,468,274  $              282,102  $              227,784  $           6,978,160 

     Books and Supplies 4000-4999  $              329,288  $                       -    $              329,288 

     Services and Other Operating Expenditures 5000-5999  $              137,527  $                       -    $              137,527 

     Capital Outlay 6000-6999  $                       -    $                       -    $                       -   

     Other Outgo (excluding Indirect Costs) 7100-7299  
7400-7499

 $                       -    $                       -    $                       -   

     Transfers of Indirect Costs 7300-7399  $              480,926  $                       -    $              480,926 

 $         15,262,182  $           1,068,340  $           1,136,152  $         17,466,674 

     Transfers In and Other Sources 8900-8979  $                       -    $                       -    $           1,136,152  $           1,136,152 

     Transfers Out and Other Uses 7600-7699  $                       -    $                       -    $                       -    $                       -   

 $                         0  $         (1,068,340)  $                       -    $         (1,068,340)

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 9791  $           1,239,859  $           1,239,859 

    Audit Adjustments/Other Restatements 9793/9795  $                       -    $                       -   

 $           1,239,859  $         (1,068,340)  $                       -    $              171,519 

     Nonspendable 9711-9719  $                       -    $                       -    $                       -    $                       -   

     Restricted 9740  $              125,045  $                       -    $                       -    $              125,045 

     Committed 9750-9760  $                       -    $                       -    $                       -    $                       -   

     Assigned 9780  $              190,651  $            (190,651)  $                       -    $                         0 

     Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789  $                       -    $                       -    $                       -    $                       -   

     Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 9790  $              924,162  $            (877,689)  $                       -    $                46,473 

*Net Increase (Decrease) in Fund Balance

OPERATING SURPLUS (DEFICIT)*

ENDING FUND BALANCE 

Bargaining Unit:

REVENUES

Sacramento City Unified School District

Page 4e

G.  IMPACT OF PROPOSED AGREEMENT ON CURRENT YEAR OPERATING BUDGET

Service Employees International Union
Fund 12 - Child Development Fund

Public Disclosure of Proposed Collective Bargaining Agreement

TOTAL REVENUES

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES

NOTE: 9790 amounts in Columns 1 and 4 must be positive

EXPENDITURES

COMPONENTS OF ENDING FUND BALANCE:

Printed 11/9/2023 at 3:08 PM



Column 1 Column 2 Column 3 Column 4

Object Code

Latest Board-
Approved Budget 
Before Settlement  

(8/13/22)

Adjustments as a 
Result of Settlement 

(compensation)

Other Revisions 
(agreement support 

and/or other unit 
agreement)       

Explain on Page 4i

Total Revised   
Budget          

(Columns 1+2+3) 

     LCFF Revenue 8010-8099  $                       -    $                       -    $                       -   

     Federal Revenue 8100-8299  $         30,958,922  $                       -    $         30,958,922 

     Other State Revenue 8300-8599  $           3,000,000  $                       -    $           3,000,000 

     Other Local Revenue 8600-8799  $              380,000  $                       -    $              380,000 

 $         34,338,922  $                       -    $         34,338,922 

     Certificated Salaries 1000-1999  $                       -    $                       -    $                       -    $                       -   

     Classified Salaries 2000-2999  $           9,886,745  $           2,312,378  $                       -    $         12,199,123 

     Employee Benefits 3000-3999  $           7,936,699  $              829,681  $                       -    $           8,766,380 

     Books and Supplies 4000-4999  $         14,620,000  $                       -    $         14,620,000 

     Services and Other Operating Expenditures 5000-5999  $           1,017,051  $                       -    $           1,017,051 

     Capital Outlay 6000-6999  $              250,000  $                       -    $              250,000 

     Other Outgo (excluding Indirect Costs) 7100-7299  
7400 7499

 $                       -    $                       -    $                       -   

    Transfers of Indirect Costs 7300-7399  $              740,000  $                       -    $              740,000 

 $         34,450,495  $           3,142,059  $                       -    $         37,592,554 

     Transfers In and Other Sources 8900-8979  $                       -    $                       -    $                       -    $                       -   

     Transfers Out and Other Uses 7600-7699  $                       -    $                       -    $                       -    $                       -   

 $            (111,573)  $         (3,142,059)  $                       -    $         (3,253,632)

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 9791  $         18,388,342  $         18,388,342 

    Audit Adjustments/Other Restatements 9793/9795  $                       -    $                       -   

 $         18,276,769  $         (3,142,059)  $                       -    $         15,134,710 

     Nonspendable 9711-9719  $                       -    $                       -    $                       -    $                       -   

     Restricted 9740  $                       -    $                       -    $                       -   

     Committed 9750-9760  $                       -    $                       -    $                       -    $                       -   

     Assigned 9780  $              226,450  $                       -    $                       -    $              226,450 

     Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789  $                       -    $                       -    $                       -    $                       -   

     Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 9790  $         18,050,320  $         (3,142,059)  $                       -    $         14,908,261 
*Net Increase (Decrease) in Fund Balance

Sacramento City Unified School District

G.  IMPACT OF PROPOSED AGREEMENT ON CURRENT YEAR OPERATING BUDGET

Service Employees International Union
Fund 13/61 - Cafeteria Fund

Bargaining Unit:

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES

OPERATING SURPLUS (DEFICIT)*

Public Disclosure of Proposed Collective Bargaining Agreement

NOTE: 9790 amounts in Columns 1 and 4 must be positive

Page 4f

ENDING FUND BALANCE 

COMPONENTS OF ENDING FUND BALANCE:

REVENUES

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

Printed 11/9/2023 at 3:08 PM



Column 1 Column 2 Column 3 Column 4

Object Code

Latest Board-
Approved Budget 
Before Settlement  

(8/13/22)

Adjustments as a 
Result of Settlement 

(compensation)

Other Revisions 
(agreement support 

and/or other unit 
agreement)       

Explain on Page 4i

Total Revised   
Budget          

(Columns 1+2+3) 

     Federal Revenue 8100-8299  $              406,837  $                        -    $              406,837 

     Other State Revenue 8300-8599  $         20,287,184  $                        -    $         20,287,184 

     Other Local Revenue 8600-8799  $                        -    $                        -    $                        -   

 $         20,694,021  $                        -    $         20,694,021 

EXPENDITURES

     Certificated Salaries 1000-1999  $           8,216,210  $                        -    $           1,490,190  $           9,706,400 

     Classified Salaries 2000-2999  $           1,190,875  $              271,851  $                        -    $           1,462,726 

     Employee Benefits 3000-3999  $           5,788,535  $                96,210  $              333,334  $           6,218,079 

     Books and Supplies 4000-4999  $           1,228,739  $                        -    $           1,228,739 

     Services and Other Operating Expenditures 5000-5999  $           1,848,232  $                        -    $           1,848,232 

     Capital Outlay 6000-6999  $              169,979  $                        -    $              169,979 

     Other Outgo (excluding Indirect Costs) 7100-7299  
7400-7499

 $                        -    $                        -    $                        -   

    Transfers of Indirect Costs 7300-7399  $                        -    $                        -    $                        -   

 $         18,442,570  $              368,061  $           1,823,524  $         20,634,155 

     Transfers In and Other Sources 8900-8979  $                        -    $                        -    $                        -    $                        -   

     Transfers Out and Other Uses 7600-7699  $           2,475,399  $                        -    $                        -    $           2,475,399 

 $            (223,948)  $            (368,061)  $         (1,823,524)  $         (2,415,533)

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 9791  $         15,520,269  $         15,520,269 

    Audit Adjustments/Other Restatements 9793/9795  $                        -    $                        -   

 $         15,296,321  $            (368,061)  $         (1,823,524)  $         13,104,736 

     Nonspendable 9711-9719  $                        -    $                        -    $                        -    $                        -   

     Restricted 9740  $           7,094,272  $                        -    $                        -    $           7,094,272 

     Committed 9750-9760  $                        -    $                        -    $                        -    $                        -   

     Assigned 9780  $           8,202,049  $            (368,061)  $         (1,823,524)  $           6,010,464 

     Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789  $                        -    $                        -    $                        -    $                        -   

     Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 9790  $                        -    $                        -    $                        -    $                        -   

*Net Increase (Decrease) in Fund Balance

Sacramento City Unified School District

Page 4h

G.  IMPACT OF PROPOSED AGREEMENT ON CURRENT YEAR OPERATING BUDGET

Service Employees International Union
Charter Fund 09

Bargaining Unit:

Enter Fund:

Public Disclosure of Proposed Collective Bargaining Agreement

NOTE: 9790 amounts in Columns 1 and 4 must be positive

OPERATING SURPLUS (DEFICIT)*

ENDING FUND BALANCE 

COMPONENTS OF ENDING FUND BALANCE:

REVENUES

TOTAL REVENUES

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES



Column 1 Column 2 Column 3 Column 4

Object Code

Latest Board-
Approved Budget 
Before Settlement  

(8/13/22)

Adjustments as a 
Result of Settlement 

(compensation)

Other Revisions 
(agreement support 

and/or other unit 
agreement)       

Explain on Page 4i

Total Revised   
Budget          

(Columns 1+2+3) 

     Federal Revenue 8100-8299  $                        -    $                        -    $                        -   

     Other State Revenue 8300-8599  $                        -    $                        -    $                        -   

     Other Local Revenues 8600-8799  $                        -    $                        -    $                        -   

 $                        -    $                        -    $                        -   

EXPENDITURES

     Certificated Salaries 1000-1999  $                        -    $                        -    $                        -    $                        -   

     Classified Salaries 2000-2999  $           2,087,465  $              114,690  $                        -    $           2,202,155 

     Employee Benefits 3000-3999  $              581,260  $                41,151  $                        -    $              622,411 

     Books and Supplies 4000-4999  $                        -    $                        -    $                        -   

     Services and Other Operating Expenditures 5000-5999  $           1,400,000  $                        -    $           1,400,000 

     Capital Outlay 6000-6999  $       171,600,000  $                        -    $       171,600,000 

     Other Outgo (excluding Indirect Costs) 7100-7299  
7400-7499

 $                        -    $                        -    $                        -   

     Transfers of Indirect Costs 7300-7399  $                        -    $                        -    $                        -   

 $       175,668,725  $              155,841  $                        -    $       175,824,566 

     Transfers In and Other Sources 8900-8979  $                        -    $                        -    $                        -    $                        -   

     Transfers Out and Other Uses 7600-7699  $                        -    $                        -    $                        -    $                        -   

 $     (175,668,725)  $            (155,841)  $                        -    $     (175,824,566)

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 9791  $       277,090,337  $       277,090,337 

    Audit Adjustments/Other Restatements 9793/9795  $                        -    $                        -   

 $       101,421,613  $            (155,841)  $                        -    $       101,265,772 

     Nonspendable 9711-9719  $                        -    $                        -    $                        -    $                        -   

     Restricted 9740  $       101,421,613  $            (155,841)  $                        -    $       101,265,772 

     Committed 9750-9760  $                        -    $                        -    $                        -    $                        -   

     Assigned 9780  $                        -    $                        -    $                        -    $                        -   

     Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789  $                        -    $                        -    $                        -    $                        -   

     Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 9790  $                        -    $                        -    $                        -    $                        -   

*Net Increase (Decrease) in Fund Balance

Sacramento City Unified School District

Page 4g

G.  IMPACT OF PROPOSED AGREEMENT ON CURRENT YEAR OPERATING BUDGET

Service Employees International Union
Building Fund Fund 21

Bargaining Unit:

Enter Fund:

Public Disclosure of Proposed Collective Bargaining Agreement

REVENUES

TOTAL REVENUES

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

NOTE: 9790 amounts in Columns 1 and 4 must be positive

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES

OPERATING SURPLUS (DEFICIT)*

COMPONENTS OF ENDING FUND BALANCE:

ENDING FUND BALANCE 



Amount
Revenues -$                   
Expenditures 44,016,716$       
Other Financing Sources/Uses (15,659,827)$     

Amount
Revenues -$                   
Expenditures 16,152,533$       
Other Financing Sources/Uses 15,659,827$       

Amount
Revenues -$                   
Expenditures 330,210$            
Other Financing Sources/Uses -$                   

Amount
Revenues -$                   
Expenditures 1,136,152$         
Other Financing Sources/Uses 1,136,152$         

Amount
Revenues -$                   
Expenditures -$                   
Other Financing Sources/Uses -$                   

Amount
Revenues -$                   
Expenditures -$                   
Other Financing Sources/Uses -$                   

Amount
Revenues -$                   
Expenditures 1,823,524$         
Other Financing Sources/Uses -$                   

Explanation

Page 4d: Fund 11 - Adult Education Fund

Page 4f: Fund 13/61 - Cafeteria Fund Explanation

Page 4g:  Other Explanation

SCTA AB1200 -Estimated contribution from general fund

Additional adjustments in column reflect changes to special education contribution as well as offset to materials/operating costs as a result of
the estimated SEIU settlement costs. The AB1200 also incorporates the previous estimates from the SCTA AB1200 board approved on
9/7/23. All beginning fund balances have been udpated to reflect the 2022-23 Unaudited Actuals Ending balances.

Additional Comments:

Page 4b: Restricted General Fund

Page 4h:  Other

Salary/Benefit Increases per SCTA AB1200

Sacramento City Unified School District

Salary/Benefit Increases per SCTA AB1200

Salary/Benefit Increases per SCTA AB1200
Adj to SPED contribution per SCTA AB1200

Page 4i

Page 4a: Unrestricted General Fund

Salary/benefit increases per SCTA Ab1200

Explanation

Public Disclosure of Proposed Collective Bargaining Agreement

Explanations for Column 3 "Other Revisions" entered on Pages 4a through 4h:

Explanation

Page 4e: Fund 12 - Child Development Fund Explanation

Adj to SPED Contribution per SCTA AB1200
Salary/Benefit Increases per SCTA AB1200

Explanation



2023-24 2024-25 2025-26

Object Code

Total Revised Budget After 
Settlement 

First Subsequent Year After 
Settlement

Second Subsequent Year 
After Settlement

     LCFF Revenue 8010-8099  $                500,346,764  $                501,052,464  $                504,787,435 

     Federal Revenue 8100-8299  $                                -    $                                -    $                                -   

     Other State Revenue 8300-8599  $                  12,144,270  $                  12,144,270  $                  12,144,270 

     Other Local Revenue 8600-8799  $                    4,151,175  $                    4,151,175  $                    4,151,175 

 $                516,642,209  $                517,347,909  $                521,082,880 

     Certificated Salaries 1000-1999  $                218,554,221  $                199,873,046  $                201,876,191 

     Classified Salaries 2000-2999  $                  50,291,314  $                  48,347,726  $                  48,657,570 

     Employee Benefits 3000-3999  $                142,542,298  $                143,656,608  $                150,115,514 

     Books and Supplies 4000-4999  $                    8,462,782  $                    9,204,594  $                    9,365,541 

     Services and Other Operating Expenditures 5000-5999  $                  27,570,886  $                  26,936,886  $                  27,097,833 

     Capital Outlay 6000-6999  $                         49,259  $                         49,259  $                         49,259 

     Other Outgo (excluding Indirect Costs) 7100-7299  
7400-7499

 $                    1,510,300  $                    1,510,300  $                    1,510,300 

    Transfers of Indirect Costs 7300-7399  $                  (7,894,319)  $                  (7,701,158)  $                  (7,623,461)

     Other Adjustments

 $                441,086,742  $                421,877,262  $                431,048,748 

     Transfers In and Other Sources 8900-8979  $                    1,339,247  $                    2,475,399  $                    2,475,399 

     Transfers Out and Other Uses 7600-7699  $                                -   

     Contributions 8980-8999  $              (124,438,684)  $              (124,621,584)  $              (133,047,135)

 $                (47,543,970)  $                (26,675,538)  $                (40,537,604)

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 9791  $                135,640,173  $                  88,096,204  $                  61,420,666 

    Audit Adjustments/Other Restatements 9793/9795  $                                -   

 $                  88,096,204  $                  61,420,666  $                  20,883,063 

     Nonspendable 9711-9719  $                       325,000  $                       325,000  $                       325,000 

     Restricted 9740

     Committed 9750-9760  $                                -    $                                -    $                                -   

     Assigned 9780  $                                -    $                                -    $                                -   

     Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789  $                  15,542,287  $                  14,458,873  $                  14,585,082 

     Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 9790  $                  72,228,917  $                  46,636,793  $                    5,972,981 

*Net Increase (Decrease) in Fund Balance

REVENUES

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

Sacramento City Unified School District

Page 5a

H.  IMPACT OF PROPOSED AGREEMENT ON SUBSEQUENT YEARS

Service Employees International Union
Unrestricted General Fund MYP

Bargaining Unit:

Public Disclosure of Proposed Collective Bargaining Agreement

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES

OPERATING SURPLUS (DEFICIT)*

NOTE: 9790 amounts must be positive 

ENDING FUND BALANCE 

COMPONENTS OF ENDING FUND BALANCE:



2023-24 2024-25 2025-26

Object Code

Total Revised Budget After 
Settlement 

First Subsequent Year After 
Settlement

Second Subsequent Year 
After Settlement

     LCFF Revenue 8010-8099  $                    2,478,216  $                    2,478,216  $                    2,478,216 

     Federal Revenue 8100-8299  $                  99,571,861  $                  39,089,508  $                  39,089,508 

     Other State Revenue 8300-8599  $                100,096,650  $                  99,371,792  $                  99,371,792 

     Other Local Revenue 8600-8799  $                    2,032,950  $                    2,032,950  $                    2,032,950 

 $                204,179,676  $                142,972,466  $                142,972,466 

EXPENDITURES

     Certificated Salaries 1000-1999  $                  89,109,071  $                  88,546,814  $                  82,718,128 

     Classified Salaries 2000-2999  $                  40,723,206  $                  35,534,710  $                  36,473,686 

     Employee Benefits 3000-3999  $                  96,356,540  $                  87,029,589  $                  88,569,033 

     Books and Supplies 4000-4999  $                  22,779,715  $                  11,325,595  $                  11,451,927 

     Services and Other Operating Expenditures 5000-5999  $                  80,884,838  $                  75,726,302  $                  78,124,583 

     Capital Outlay 6000-6999  $                       896,918  $                       896,918  $                       896,918 

     Other Outgo (excluding Indirect Costs) 7100-7299  
7400-7499

 $                                -    $                                -    $                                -   

    Transfers of Indirect Costs 7300-7399  $                    6,616,549  $                    6,423,388  $                    6,345,691 

     Other Adjustments  $                  (1,941,527)  $                  (3,899,225)

 $                337,366,837  $                303,541,788  $                300,680,741 

     Transfers In and Other Sources 8900-8979  $                                -    $                                -    $                                -   

     Transfers Out and Other Uses 7600-7699  $                                -    $                                -    $                                -   

     Contributions 8980-8999  $                124,438,684  $                124,621,584  $                133,047,135 

 $                  (8,748,477)  $                (35,947,738)  $                (24,661,139)

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 9791  $                122,292,561  $                113,544,084  $                  77,596,347 

    Audit Adjustments/Other Restatements 9793/9795  $                                -   

 $                113,544,084  $                  77,596,347  $                  52,935,207 

     Nonspendable 9711-9719  $                                -    $                                -    $                                -   

     Restricted 9740  $                113,544,084  $                  77,596,347  $                  52,935,207 

     Committed 9750-9760

     Assigned 9780

     Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789  $                                -    $                                -    $                                -   

     Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 9790  $                                -    $                                -    $                                -   

*Net Increase (Decrease) in Fund Balance

Sacramento City Unified School District

Page 5b

H.  IMPACT OF PROPOSED AGREEMENT ON SUBSEQUENT YEARS

Service Employees International Union
Restricted General Fund MYP

Bargaining Unit:

Public Disclosure of Proposed Collective Bargaining Agreement

REVENUES

TOTAL REVENUES

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES

NOTE: 9790 amounts must be positive 

OPERATING SURPLUS (DEFICIT)*

ENDING FUND BALANCE 

COMPONENTS OF ENDING FUND BALANCE:



2023-24 2024-25 2025-26

Object Code

Total Revised Budget After 
Settlement 

First Subsequent Year 
After Settlement

Second Subsequent Year 
After Settlement

     LCFF Revenue 8010-8099  $               502,824,980  $               503,530,680  $                507,265,651 

     Federal Revenue 8100-8299  $                 99,571,861  $                 39,089,508  $                  39,089,508 

     Other State Revenue 8300-8599  $               112,240,920  $               111,516,062  $                111,516,062 

     Other Local Revenue 8600-8799  $                    6,184,125  $                    6,184,125  $                    6,184,125 

 $               720,821,885  $               660,320,376  $                664,055,347 

     Certificated Salaries 1000-1999  $               307,663,291  $               288,419,860  $                284,594,319 

     Classified Salaries 2000-2999  $                 91,014,520  $                 83,882,436  $                  85,131,256 

     Employee Benefits 3000-3999  $               238,898,838  $               230,686,197  $                238,684,547 

     Books and Supplies 4000-4999  $                 31,242,497  $                 20,530,190  $                  20,817,468 

     Services and Other Operating Expenditures 5000-5999  $               108,455,725  $               102,663,188  $                105,222,416 

     Capital Outlay 6000-6999  $                       946,177  $                       946,177  $                       946,177 

     Other Outgo (excuding Indirect Costs) 7100-7299  
7400-7499

 $                    1,510,300  $                    1,510,300  $                    1,510,300 

     Transfers of Indirect Costs 7300-7399  $                  (1,277,770)  $                  (1,277,770)  $                  (1,277,770)

     Other Adjustments  $                  (1,941,527)  $                  (3,899,225)

 $               778,453,579  $               725,419,050  $                731,729,488 

     Transfers In and Other Sources 8900-8979  $                    1,339,247  $                    2,475,399  $                    2,475,399 

     Transfers Out and Other Uses 7600-7699  $                                 -    $                                 -    $                                 -   

     Contributions 8980-8999  $                                 -    $                                 -    $                                 -   

 $                (56,292,446)  $                (62,623,276)  $                (65,198,743)

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 9791  $               257,932,735  $               201,640,288  $                139,017,013 

    Audit Adjustments/Other Restatements 9793/9795  $                                 -   

 $               201,640,288  $               139,017,013  $                  73,818,270 

     Nonspendable 9711-9719  $                       325,000  $                       325,000  $                       325,000 

     Restricted 9740  $               113,544,084  $                 77,596,347  $                  52,935,207 

     Committed 9750-9760  $                                 -    $                                 -    $                                 -   

     Assigned 9780  $                                 -    $                                 -    $                                 -   

     Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789  $                 15,542,287  $                 14,458,873  $                  14,585,082 

     Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 9790  $                 72,228,917  $                 46,636,793  $                    5,972,981 

*Net Increase (Decrease) in Fund Balance

Sacramento City Unified School District

Page 5c

H.  IMPACT OF PROPOSED AGREEMENT ON SUBSEQUENT YEARS

Service Employees International Union
Combined General Fund MYP

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

ENDING FUND BALANCE 

Bargaining Unit:

Public Disclosure of Proposed Collective Bargaining Agreement

NOTE: 9790 amounts must be positive 

COMPONENTS OF ENDING FUND BALANCE:

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES

OPERATING SURPLUS (DEFICIT)*

REVENUES

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

Printed 11/9/2023 at 3:08 PM



1.

2023-24

a.
Total Expenditures, Transfers Out, and Uses 
(Including Cost of Proposed Agreement) 778,453,579$           

b. Less:  Special Education Pass-Through Funds
c. Net Expenditures, Transfers Out, and Uses 778,453,579$           

d.
State Standard Minimum Reserve Percentage for 
this District                      Enter percentage 2.00%

e.

State Standard Minimum Reserve Amount for this 
District (For districts with less than 1,001 ADA, 
this is the greater of Line a, times Line b, or 
$50,000) 15,569,072$             

2.

a.
General Fund Budgeted Unrestricted       
Designated for Economic Uncertainties (9789) 15,542,287$             

b.
General Fund Budgeted Unrestricted 
Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount (9790) 72,228,917$             

c.
Special Reserve Fund (Fund 17) Budgeted 
Designated for Economic Uncertainties (9789) -$                         

d.
Special Reserve Fund (Fund 17) Budgeted 
Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount (9790) -$                         

e. Total Available Reserves 87,771,204$             
f. Reserve for Economic Uncertainties Percentage 11.28%

3. Do unrestricted reserves meet the state minimum reserve amount?
2023-24 Yes   X No    
2024-25 Yes   X No    
2025-26 Yes   X No    

4.

725,419,050$             

-$                           

14,585,082$              

14,634,590$              

2.00%

14,508,381$               

14,458,873$               

State Reserve Standard

2.81%

Budgeted Unrestricted Reserve (After Impact of Proposed Agreement)

2024-25

61,095,666$               20,558,063$              
8.42%

-$                           

2025-26

731,729,488$            

2.00%

731,729,488$            

Public Disclosure of Proposed Collective Bargaining Agreement

Sacramento City Unified School District

If no, how do you plan to restore your reserves?

-$                           

725,419,050$             

I.  IMPACT OF PROPOSED AGREEMENT ON UNRESTRICTED RESERVES

46,636,793$               5,972,981$                

-$                           

Page 6

-$                           -$                           

Printed 11/9/2023 at 3:08 PM



Public Disclosure of Proposed Collective Bargaining Agreement
Page 7

5.

23,275,528$          

(18,197,426)$        

(343,801)$             

(1,068,340)$          

(3,142,059)$          

(155,841)$             

(368,061)$             

(23,275,528)$        

-$                      

6.

Surplus/ 
(Deficit) (Deficit) %

22,074,229$  3.2%

(56,292,446)$ (7.2%)

(62,623,276)$ (8.6%)

(65,198,743)$ (8.9%)

7. Were "Other Adjustments" amount(s) entered in the multiyear projections (pages 5a and 5b) for 1st and 2nd 
Subsequent FY? 

Will this agreement create or increase deficit financing in the current or subsequent years?
"Deficit Financing" is defined to exist when a fund's expenditures and other financing uses exceed its revenues
and other financing sources in a given year. If a deficit is shown below, provide an explanation and any deficit
reduction plan, as necessary.

General Fund Combined

Current FY Surplus/(Deficit) before settlement(s)?

Current FY Surplus/(Deficit) after settlement(s)? Settlement Agreements and spend down of 

Deficit primarily due to:

"Other Adjustments" could indicate that a budget reduction plan was/is being developed to address deficit
spending, and to rebuild reserves. Any amount shown below must have an explanation. If additional space is
needed, attach a separate sheet, or use page 8a.  

Settlement agreements

Deficit Reduction Plan (as necessary):
2nd Subsequent FY Surplus/(Deficit) after settlement(s)? Settlement agreements

1st Subsequent FY Surplus/(Deficit) after settlement(s)?

Sacramento City Unified School District

Variance Explanation:

Does the Total Compensation Increase/(Decrease) on Page 1, Section A, #5 agree with the Total
Increase/(Decrease) for all funds as a result of the settlement(s)?  Please explain any variance. 

General Fund balance Increase/(Decrease), Page 4c, Column 2

Adult Education Fund balance Increase/(Decrease), Page 4d, Column 2

Cafeteria Fund balance Increase/(Decrease), Page 4f, Column 2

Total all fund balances Increase/(Decrease) as a result of the settlement(s)

I. IMPACT OF PROPOSED AGREEMENT ON UNRESTRICTED RESERVES (CONTINUED)

Child Development Fund balance Increase/(Decrease), Page 4e, Column 2

Total Compensation Increase/(Decrease) on Page 1, Section A, #5

Other Fund balance Increase/(Decrease), Page 4g, Column 2

Other Fund balance Increase/(Decrease), Page 4h, Column 2

Variance

2nd Subsequent FY Restricted, Page 5b (3,899,225)$      part of adopted budget

"Other Adjustments" Explanation

-$                 

1st Subsequent FY Restricted, Page 5b (1,941,527)$      part of adopted budget

2nd Subsequent FY Unrestricted, Page 5a -$                 

1st Subsequent FY Unrestricted, Page 5a

AmountMYP

Printed 11/9/2023 at 3:08 PM



Page 8
J.

Current Year

Budget Adjustment Categories:
  Budget Adjustment  
Increase/(Decrease)

Revenues/Transfers In and Other Sources/Contributions 1,136,152$                              
Expenditures/Transfers Out and Other Uses 86,734,663$                            
Ending Balance(s) Increase/(Decrease) (85,598,511)$                           

Subsequent Years

Budget Adjustment Categories:
  Budget Adjustment  
Increase/(Decrease)

Revenues/Transfers In and Other Sources/Contributions -$                                         
Expenditures/Transfers Out and Other Uses -$                                         
Ending Balance(s) Increase/(Decrease) -$                                         

____ I hereby certify               ____ I am unable to certify

District Superintendent Date
(Signature)

____ I hereby certify               ____ I am unable to certify

Chief Business Official Date
(Signature)

Sacramento City Unified School District
Public Disclosure of Proposed Collective Bargaining Agreement

CERTIFICATION NO. 1: CERTIFICATION OF THE DISTRICT'S ABILITY TO MEET THE COSTS
OF THE COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT

This certification page must be signed by the district's Superintendent and Chief Business Official at the time of public
disclosure and is intended to assist the district's Governing Board in determining whether the district can meet the costs
incurred under the tentative Collective Bargaining Agreement in the current and subsequent years. The absence of a
certification signature or if "I am unable to certify" is checked should serve as a "red flag" to the district's Governing Board.

Certifications

See attached page for a list of the assumptions upon which this certification is based.

If the district does not adopt and submit within 45 days all of the revisions to its budget needed in the current year to
meet the costs of the agreement at the time of the approval of the proposed collective bargaining agreement, the county
superintendent of schools is required to issue a qualified or negative certification for the district on its next interim report.

Assumptions

Budget Revisions

Special Note: The Sacramento County Office of Education may request additional information, as necessary, to review
the district's compliance with requirements.

The board actions necessary to meet the cost of the agreement in each year of its term are as follows:

In accordance with the requirements of Government Code Sections 3540.2 and 3547.5, the Superintendent and Chief
Business Official of the Sacramento City Unified School District, hereby certify that the District can meet the costs
incurred under this Collective Bargaining Agreement during the term of the agreement from July 1, 2023 to _June 30,
2025.

Board Actions

Printed 11/9/2023 at 3:08 PM



Concerns regarding affordability of agreement in subsequent years (if any):

Sacramento City Unified School District

Page 8a
Assumptions and Explanations (enter or attach documentation)

The assumptions upon which this certification is made are as follows:
Please see attached documents. 

Public Disclosure of Proposed Collective Bargaining Agreement

Printed 11/9/2023 at 3:08 PM



Sacramento City Unified School District
District Name

District Superintendent Date
(Signature)

Contact Person Phone

President (or Clerk), Governing Board Date
(Signature)

Special Note: The Sacramento County Office of Education may request additional information, as necessary, to
review the district's compliance with requirements.

After public disclosure of the major provisions contained in this summary, the Governing Board at its meeting on
_November 16th, 2023, took action to approve the proposed agreement with the Service Employees International
Union.

The disclosure document must be signed by the district Superintendent at the time of public disclosure and by the
President or Clerk of the Governing Board at the time of formal board action on the proposed agreement.

The information provided in this document summarizes the financial implications of the proposed agreement and
is submitted to the Governing Board for public disclosure of the major provisions of the agreement (as provided in
the "Public Disclosure of Proposed Collective Bargaining Agreement") in accordance with the requirements of
AB 1200 and Government Code Sections 3540.2(a) and 3547.5.

Page 9

K.  CERTIFICATION NO. 2

Public Disclosure of Proposed Collective Bargaining Agreement

Printed 11/9/2023 at 3:08 PM









Mobile User
11-9-23

Mobile User
11-9-23



 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
Agenda Item# _11.1_ 

 
 
Meeting Date:  November 16, 2023 
 
Subject:  Facilities Master Plan Implementation and Construction Update 
 

 Information Item Only 
 Approval on Consent Agenda 
 Conference (for discussion only) 
 Conference/First Reading (Action Anticipated: ______________)  
 Conference/Action 
 Action 
 Public Hearing 

 
Division:  Facilities Support Services 
 
 
Recommendation:  Board to receive a Facilities Master Plan Implementation and 
Construction Update 
 
 
Background/Rationale:   
SCUSD is currently implementing two Construction Bond Measures, Measures Q and 
H.   
 
Measure Q, was approved by voters in 2012 for $346 million. The last debt issuance 
was in 2021 and the projects identified are in the final stages of work.  With the 
completion of major pool maintenance work at Johnson, Kennedy, and McClatchy high 
schools, and the Albert Einstein Middle School Core project during the next 14 months, 
Measure Q funds will likely be exhausted and no additional projects are planned. 
 
Measure H was approved by voters in 2020 for $750 million. The first debt issuance 
was in 2022 for $225 million. Projects under Measure H are just beginning to break 
ground and were prioritized based on the approved SCUSD Facilities Master Plan. 
 
The Facilities department will share progress on planning and construction activities as 
it relates to using bond ballot language and the Facilities Master Plan to implement a 
construction program for the district. 
 
 



Financial Considerations:  Measure Q was voter approved in 2012 for $346 million 
and Measure H was voter approved in March 2020 for $750 million. 
 
 
LCAP Goal(s):  Safe, Emotionally Healthy, Engaged Students; Family and Community 
Empowerment; Operational Excellence 
 
 
Documents Attached:   
N/A 
 
 
 
Estimated Time of Presentation: 10 minutes 
Submitted by:  Chris Ralston, Director III, Facilities Management 
Approved by:   Janea Marking, Chief Business and Operations Officer 
   Lisa Allen, Interim Superintendent 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 



 Page 1 of 1  

SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD OF EDUCATION 

 
Agenda Item# 13.1a 

 
Meeting Date:  November 16, 2023 
 
 
Subject: Approval/Ratification of Grants, Entitlements, and Other Income Agreements 

Approval/Ratification of Other Agreements 
Approval of Bid Awards 
Approval of Declared Surplus Materials and Equipment 
Change Notices 
Notices of Completion 

 
 Information Item Only 
 Approval on Consent Agenda 
 Conference (for discussion only) 
 Conference/First Reading (Action Anticipated: ______________)  
 Conference/Action 
 Action 
 Public Hearing 

 
Division:  Business Services 
 
Recommendation:  Recommend approval of items submitted. 
 
Background/Rationale:   
 
Financial Considerations:  See attached. 
 
LCAP Goal(s): College, Career and Life Ready Graduates; Safe, Emotionally Healthy, 
Engaged Students; Family and Community Empowerment; Operational Excellence    
 
Documents Attached:  
1. Grants, Entitlements, and Other Income Agreements 
2. Expenditure and Other Agreements 
3. Approval of Declared Surplus Materials and Equipment 
4. Recommended Bid Awards – Purchasing 
5. Change Notices – Facilities Projects 
 

Estimated Time of Presentation:  N/A 

Submitted by:  Janea Marking, Chief Business Officer 

  Tina Alvarez Bevens, Contract Analyst 

Approved by:   Lisa Allen, Interim Superintendent



 Page 1 of 8  

GRANTS, ENTITLEMENTS AND OTHER INCOME AGREEMENTS – REVENUE 

Contractor New Grant   Amount 

CHARLES A. JONES SKILLS DEPARTMENT 

SETA 
A24-00050 

☒  Yes 
☐  No 

$109,875 
No Match 

Period: 8/3/23 – 9/30/24   Description: Refugee Support Services Grant of the Refugee Resettlement 
Program.    In November 2022, the California Department of Social Services, Refugee Programs Bureau 
(RPB) received over $25,000,000 in RSS grant funding from ORR under the Additional Ukraine 
Supplemental Appropriations Act (AUSAA) to allocate to California counties based on high numbers of 
Ukrainian and other non-Ukrainian Humanitarian Parolees (UHPs/NUHPs) displaced from Ukraine, and 
the numbers of approved sponsorship applications under the Department of Homeland Security’s Uniting 
for Ukraine (U4U) program. On July 10, 2023, RPB allocated the funds to eligible counties for housing 
and utility supports under RPB’s new Housing Assistance for Ukrainians (HAU) program. 
 
HEALTH SERVICES DEPARTMENT 

CA State University Sacramento 
SA24-00161 

☒  Yes 
☐  No 

$100,000 1st year 
estimate 

No Match 
Period: 7/1/23 – 6/30/26  Description:  The Sacramento County School Nurse Residency & Pathway 
Program provides an educational pipeline for those interested in pursuing a School Nurse Credential 
through grant funding, educational partnership, and mentorship. SCUSD is the fiscal agent. This is a 
three (3) year grant, with funding of $579,400 allotted for up to fifty (50) school nurse credential 
candidates. Currently there is 9 nurses and the next cohort has 27 applicants. This requisition, SA24-
00161, is to cover the current participants tuition, however, the amount is subject to change as 
participation increases.   

 

EXPENDITURE AND OTHER AGREEMENTS 

Restricted Funds 

Contractor Description Amount 

FACILITIES DEPARTMENT 
 
Premier Management 
Group 
SA24-00480 
 
New Contract: 
☒  Yes 
☐  No 

11/16/23 – 10/1/24: Project and construction management 
services for the Luther Burbank HS New Softball/Baseball 
Field Improvements project.  Project will include new 
varsity softball and baseball fields including new batting 
cages; demolition of existing tennis courts and construction 
of new tennis court; new scoreboards; new ADA path of 
travel; electrical upgrade and lighting; and to see if 
renovation of existing JV fields and replacement of 
remaining irrigation and sod can be acquired. 
 
Premier Management Group was selected for this project 
from the District’s pool of construction managers qualified 
through an RFQ process in December 2021. 
 

$247,000 
Measure H 

Funds 

   



 Page 2 of 8  

Lennox Industries, Inc. 
R24-02136 
 
New Contract: 
☒  Yes 
☐  No 

Equipment only. Two (2) each custom multi-zone rooftop 
HVAC units necessary for the planned replacement at C.K. 
McClatchy High School.  
 
The District’s formal solicitation, Bid 0510-433 HVAC 
Chillers for C.K. McClatchy High School, published July 7, 
2023, received no bidders for this equipment. Pursuant to 
California Public Code, Section 22038 (C) If no bids are 
received through the formal or informal procedure, the 
project may be performed by the employees of the public 
agency by force account, or negotiated contract without 
further complying with this article.   

$228,902.67 
Measure Q 

Funds 

   
California Design 
West Architects 
SA24-00484 
 
New Contract: 
☒  Yes 
☐  No 
 
 
 

10/27/23 – 10/31/24: Architectural and engineering 
services for the Alice Birney Elementary School Campus 
Renewal project. Project consists of site wide flooring 
replacement; site wide exterior painting; new roofing; hard 
court repair; new playground structure, possible additive 
alternate for kitchen electrification; necessary ADA 
upgrades as required. 
 
California Design West Architects was selected for this 
project from the District’s pool of architects qualified 
through a Request for Qualification process on February 
20, 2020. 

$405,000 
Measure H 

Funds 
 

   
HMC Architects 
SA24-00492 
 
New Contract: 
☒  Yes 
☐  No 
 

11/1/23 – 10/31/24: Architectural and engineering services 
for the Matsuyama Elementary School Campus Renewal 
project. Project consists of site wide flooring replacement; 
site wide interior and exterior painting; door threshold 
upgrades; HVAC replacement: installation of new units and 
associated electrical and roofing patch work; ADA 
upgrades as required; complete hardcourt resurfacing; 
replacement of playground structure for TK-K and higher 
grade playgrounds. 
 
HMC Architects was selected for this project from the 
District’s pool of architects qualified through a Request for 
Qualification process on February 20, 2020. 

$545,000 
Measure H 

Funds 

   
YOUTH DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 
 
Expanded Learning 
Supplemental 
Providers; School 
Year 2023 - 24 
 
 
 
 

08/31/23 – 6/13/24: Supplemental providers are 
community partners that follow a competitive Request for 
Proposal (RFQ) process to provide culturally relevant 
enrichment opportunities (music, arts, dance, leadership, 
sports) during the Expanded Learning program hours. All 
supplemental providers work under the direction of the 
program manager at the site. 

 

NorCal School of Arts 
SA24-00395 
 
New Contract: 
☒  Yes 
☐  No 

8/31/23 – 6/13/24: Ratification is requested for NorCal 
School of Arts: 
 

• To provide comprehensive theatre arts training 
• To enable students to engage in the creative 

process and cultivate communication, 
collaboration, creativity skills as well as identify 
development. 

 

$477,620 
Expanded 

Learning 
Opportunities 

Program (ELOP) 
Funds 



 Page 3 of 8  

To prepare students to assert their voices. 
   
Kodely LLC 
SA24-00420 
 
New Contract: 
☒  Yes 
☐  No 

8/31/23 – 6/14/24:  Sites: Abraham Lincoln, Elder Creek, 
James Marshall, Leonardo da Vinci, Leataata Floyd, Mark 
Twain, Will C Wood, O.W. Erlewine, Woodbine 
 
Kodely’s goal is to bridge the gap between tech literacy, 
design thinking and real-world skills through the power of 
play and curiosity for the next generation of learners! 
Their programs emphasize group collaboration and 
collective action -Promotes systematic social change. 
UTK/K Prototyping in Play  
 
Gr 1-2 Coding with Empathy  
 
Gr 3-5 Behind the Scenes of Game Design  
 
Gr 6-8 From Idea to Mobile App 
 

$115,776 
Expanded 

Learning 
Opportunity 

Program (ELOP) 
Funds 

St. Hope Public 
Schools 
SA24-00459 
 
New Contract: 
☒  Yes 
☐  No 
 

Sacramento City Unified School District is the fiscal agent 
for Sac High’s 21st Century After School Safety and 
Enrichment for Teens (ASSETs) Grant. The intent of the 
ASSETs program is to provide high school students 
opportunities to expand learning, promote academic 
achievement and provide constructive alternatives in the 
hours after the instructional day. The three required 
elements are (1) academic assistance (2) enrichment and 
(3) family engagement/literacy activities. The academic 
and enrichment elements must provide additional support 
for pupils and be in alignment, but not a repeat of, the 
regular day academic program. The family 
engagement/literacy activities are for the adult family 
members of the pupils participating in the ASSETs 
program. 

$216,325 
21st Century 
Community 

Learning Center 
Funds 

 

   
 
Unrestricted Funds 

Contractor Description Amount 

TECHNOLOGY SERVICES 
 
Softchoice 
Corporation 
R24-02440 
 
New Contract: 
☐  Yes 
☒  No 

Ratify annual renewal, year three (3) of the District’s 
Microsoft 365 license. 
 
11/1/23 – 10/31/24: District-wide licensing renewal for 
Microsoft products including Office, O365, MS SQL and 
Windows. 
 

$294,296.45 
General Fund 

   
   

 
  



 Page 4 of 8  

APPROVAL OF DECLARED SURPLUS MATERIALS AND EQUIPMENT 

SITE/DEPT ITEM 
Nutrition Services  
Sam Brannan MS 

C.A.J. Skills Center 
John F. Kennedy HS 

Facilities Maintenance 
 
 

BACKGROUND: The governing board of any school district may sell for 
cash any personal property belonging to the District if the property is 
unsatisfactory or not suitable for school use as required under 
Education Code §17545(a)(b), §17546(a)(b)   

 
RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the Board of Education 
approve the auction of the listed items per Education Code section 17546 
 
The money received from the sale shall be placed to the credit of the 
fund from which the original expenditure for the purchase of the property 
was made or in the general or reserve fund of the District as required 
under Education Code §17547 
 

ITEMS 
 

Itemized list below 
 
 

TOTAL VALUE 
$37,000 

DISPOSAL METHOD 
Auction 

ITEM SITE/DEPARTMENT TOTAL VALUE DISPOSAL METHOD 
    
Three (3) each 2005-
06 Ford Aerostar Van 
 

Nutrition Services $500 / each 
Minimum Value 

Auction 

One (1) each 
Hamilton Piano 

Sam Brannan Middle School $7500 / each 
Minimum Value 

Auction 

One (1) each Yale 
Forklift 

Charles A. Jones Skills Center $1,500 / each 
Minimum Value 

Auction 
 

One (1) each Toyota 
Forklift 

Charles A. Jones Skills Center $1,500 / each 
Minimum Value 

Auction 
 

One (1) each 2021 
Spray Enclosure 

John F. Kennedy High School $10,000 / each 
Minimum Value 

Auction 

One (1) each 1999 
Trane 100 Ton Chiller 

Facilities Maintenance  $15,000 / each 
Minimum Value 

Auction 

 
 
 
RECOMMENDED BID AWARDS – PURCHASING 

Bid No:    Request for Proposal (RFP) 24-1005-1  
                                          Nutrition Services, Grocery Items-Direct  
  
Bids Received: 11:00 am, September 7, 2023 
 
Recommendation: Award to: See Award Schedule Below 
 
Amount/Funding: See Award Schedule Below / Cafeteria Fund 
 
This RFP was lawfully advertised on August 10th and August 17th, 2023. This is a one year (1) award with  
the option of two (2), one-year (1) extensions. This is a line item bid. Items awarded are in line with California 
Government Code and Child Nutrition Reauthorization Act.  
                               
 
BIDDER BIDDER 

LOCATION 
     AWARDED LINE ITEMS AMOUNT 

Elysium Food 
Group 

Chino, CA. 1,2,3 $124,659 



 Page 5 of 8  

JSB Industries  Chelsea, MA 4 $431,550 

Cherry Central  Detroit, MI 6 $202,289 

Del Monte Foods Walnut Creek, CA 7,8,9,10 $264,438 

LA Foods Agoura Hills, CA 11 $6,100 

Don Lee Farms Lodi, CA 12,13,14 $79,495 

Red Gold  Elwood, IN 21,22,23,24 $134,009 

General Mills Dallas, TX 35,36,37,38,39,40,41,42,43 $264,128 

Gilman Cheese Gilman, WI 45 $31,030 

Kellogg Battle Creek, MI 46,47,48,49,50,51 $192,895 

Bake Crafters McDonald, TN 52,96,97,98 $108,695 

True Natural Foods Visalia, CA 53,54,55 $120,434 

Foster Farms Livingston, CA 55(a),56,57 $165,515 

Tony Roberts Co. Fullerton, CA 58,59,60 $93,585 

Brookwood Farms Silver City, NC 61,62 $23,362 

Yangs 5th Taste El Monte, CA 63,64 $296,904 

Tyson Foods Springdale, AR 66,68,69,70,71,72,73,74,75,76 $1,093,348 

Pilgrim’s Pride Dallas, TX 77,78,79 $212,117 

Hormel Foods Austin, MN 81,82,83 $129,129 

S.A. Piazza Clackamas, OR 84,85,86,87 $403,108 

Schwans Food Minneapolis, MN 88,89 $118,426 

Con Agra Foods Los Angeles, CA 99,100 $161,813 

Arlington Valley Cleveland, OH 101 $87,360 

Fat Cat Bakery Sacramento, CA 102,103,104 $114,638 

Upstate Niagara Buffalo, NY 106,107 $148,176 

McCain Foods 
Oakbrook Terrace, 
IL 109,110 

$215,598 

Nardone Brothers 
Hanover Township, 
PA 112 

$11,724 

J.R. Simplot Los Angeles, CA 113,114,115,116,117,118 $128,957 

RL Schreiber Philadelphia, PA 119,120 $382,700 

Land O’ Lakes Dallas, TX 123,124,125,126,127,129 $185,200 

Post Holdings St. Louis, MO 143,144 $15,200 

Nippon 
West Sacramento, 
CA 130 

$46,494 

Blount Fine Foods Fall River, MA 131 $107,910 

Del Real LLC Mira Loma, CA 132,133 $214,286 

Tasty Brands Syosset, NY 134 $35,789 

Rebellyous Foods Seattle, WA 135,136,137 $140,270 

Hidden Villa Ranch Fullerton, CA 139 $78,480 

Bar Fresh Los Angeles, CA 141 $63,840 

Peterson Farms Shelby, MI 142 $47,000 

 
 



 Page 6 of 8  

 
 
Bid No:    Request for Proposal (RFP) 24-1005-2  
                                          Nutrition Services, Cafeteria Food Distribution  
  
Bids Received: 11:00 am, September 7, 2023 
 
Recommendation: Award to: See Award Schedule Below 
 
Amount/Funding: See Award Schedule Below / Cafeteria Fund 
 
This RFP was lawfully advertised on August 10th and August 17th, 2023. This is a one year (1) award with  
the option of two (2), one-year (1) extensions. This is a line item bid. Items awarded are in line with California 
Government Code and Child Nutrition Reauthorization Act.  
 
BIDDER BIDDER 

LOCATION 
     AWARDED LINE ITEMS AMOUNT 

Goldstar Foods Ontario, CA 5,6,7,9,10,11,12,14,17,18,21,23,26,27,28,32,34 $536,039 
Sysco  Pleasant Grove, CA 1,2,3,4,13,15,16,19,20,24,25,29,30,31,33,35 $282,469 

 
 
Bid No:    24-0822, Network Video Recorder Rack Servers 
  
Bids received: 2:00 pm, October 26, 2023 

Recommendation: Award to Precision Communications 

Funding Source:  Routine Restricted Maintenance 

 
BIDDER BIDDER LOCATION AMOUNT 
   
Precision Communications West Sacramento, CA $260,369 
Perlmutter San Diego, CA $261,400 
Consumer Research Bureau Inc. Buena Park, CA $266,723 
HCI Systems Sacramento, CA $292,254 
Hypertec USA Inc. Tempe, AZ $292,834 
Staples Framingham, MA $298,726 
Siemens Rancho Cordova, CA $310,000 
3D Technology Services Rancho Cordova, CA $319,094 
Smart IT Pros Inc. Rockwall, TX $329,970 
Mr Security Camera, Inc. Sacramento, CA $362,472 

 

 
CHANGE NOTICES – FACILITIES PROJECTS 
The following change notice is submitted for approval. 

Project: C.K. McClatchy Baseball/Softball Field Improvements 
 
Recommendation: Lionakis Architects was awarded architectural services at the May 18, 2023 

Board of Education Meeting for the New Baseball/Softball Field Improvement 
project at C.K. McClatchy High School campus.  This project consisted of 
complete replacement of the varsity baseball/softball fields.  

 
Original Architectural Services Amount: $399,000; Measure H Funds 
 
Approve Change Order No. 1 $22,020 for additional services 
requested by SCUSD related to expanding the baseball/softball fields 
to include new irrigation; regrade and new turf for the balance of the 



 Page 7 of 8  

turf field; new DSA PC shade structure over baseball batting cage; 
new tennis hitting wall; security cameras and fire alarm to modular 
restroom buildings; Measure H Funds. 
 
New Total Contract Amount: $421,020; Measure H Funds 

 
Project: Luther Burbank Baseball/Softball Field Improvements 
 
Recommendation: Lionakis Architects was awarded architectural services at the May 18, 2023 

Board of Education Meeting for the New Baseball/Softball Field Improvement 
project at Luther Burbank High School campus.  This project consisted of 
complete replacement of the varsity baseball/softball fields; evaluate six (6) 
tennis courts to either repair or replace in kind.  

 
Original Architectural Services Amount: $409,000; Measure H Funds 
 
Approve Change Order No. 1 $23,440 for additional services 
requested by SCUSD related to expanding the baseball/softball fields 
to include new irrigation; regrade and new turf for the balance of the 
turf field; new DSA PC shade structure over baseball batting cage; 
new tennis hitting wall; security cameras and fire alarm to modular 
restroom buildings; Measure H Funds. 
 
New Total Contract Amount: $432,940; Measure H Funds 

 

Project: C.B. Wire Technology 
 
Recommendation: C.H. Reynolds was awarded construction services at the January 19, 2023 

Board of Education Meeting for the Technology project at C.B. Wire School 
campus.  This project consisted of Site wide upgrade of voice, data, clock and 
intercom IP infrastructure, including installation of some owner furnished voice 
and data equipment. Rework existing MDF and establish new IDFs, including 
new electrical outlets as well as some other minor electrical rework. Replace or 
install new damaged / missing fire alarm and intrusion alarm devices, including 
programming of control panels.  

 
Original Architectural Services Amount: $784,686; Measure H Funds 
 
Approve Change Order No. 1 $0 for additional contract days for 
completion of work due to shipping delays of IP Modules for the TSU 
speakers; Measure H Funds. 
 
New Total Contract Amount: $784,686; Measure H Funds 

 

Project: C.B. Wire Hazmat Remediation 
 
Recommendation: JM Environmental was awarded construction services at the January 19, 2023 

Board of Education Meeting for the Hazmat Remediation project at C.B. Wire 
School campus.  This project consisted of Hazmat remediation and soft 
demolition.  

 
Original Architectural Services Amount: $299,000; Measure H Funds 
 
Approve Change Order No. 1 $<5,722.93> for balance of unused 
Owner and Unforeseen Conditions Allowances the completion of this 
project; Measure H Funds. 
 
New Total Contract Amount: $293,277.07; Measure H Funds 



 Page 8 of 8  

Project: Isador Cohen ES / Rosemont HS Security Improvements, Group 1 
 
Recommendation: Joe’s Landscaping and Concrete was awarded construction services at the 

September 7, 2023 Board of Education Meeting for the Security Improvements, 
Group 1 project at Isador Cohen Elementary School and Rosemont High 
School.  This project consisted of Removal and replacement of existing fences 
and gates with new ornamental iron and/or chain link fence / gates; ADA 
upgrades; landscaping.  

 
Original Construction Services Amount: $1,082,680; Measure H 
Funds 
 
Approve Change Order No. 1 $0 for additional 14 contract days 
(November 27, 2023 completion date) to complete scope of work due 
to delays of mobilization; Measure H Funds. 
 
New Total Contract Amount: $1,082,680; Measure H Funds 

 
Project: CK McClatchy HS / Fern Bacon MS / Matsuyama ES / Parkway ES / Rosa 

Parks K-8 / Sutterville ES Security Improvements, Group 2 
 
Recommendation: Joe’s Landscaping and Concrete was awarded construction services at the 

September 7, 2023 Board of Education Meeting for the Security Improvements, 
Group 2 project at C.K. McClatchy High School, Fern Bacon Middle School, 
Matsuyama Elementary School, Parkway Elementary School, Rosa Parks K-8, 
Sutterville Elementary School.  This project consisted of Removal and 
replacement of existing fences and gates with new ornamental iron and/or 
chain link fence / gates; minor landscaping, minor concrete flatwork, low 
voltage security.  

 
Original Construction Services Amount: $2,800,574; Measure H 
Funds 
 
Approve Change Order No. 1 $0 for additional 14 contract days 
(November 27, 2023 completion date) to complete scope of work due 
to delays of mobilization; Measure H Funds. 
 
New Total Contract Amount: $2,800,574; Measure H Funds 

 

Project: C.K. McClatchy HVAC Chillers 
 
Recommendation: Trane US Inc. was awarded services at the September 7, 2023 Board of 

Education Meeting for the HVAC Chillers project at C.K. McClatchy High 
School campus.  This project consisted of supplying HVAC chillers and unit 
ventilators.  

 
Original Services Amount: $766,279; Measure Q Funds   
 
Approve Change Order No. 1 $<66,926> for removing pump package 
from two (2) ACSA160 air cooled chillers and add architectural 
louvers, powered convenience outlets and under/over voltage 
protection for the ACSA160 air cooled chillers; Measure H Funds. 
 
New Total Contract Amount: $699,353; Measure H Funds 

 



K:\CONTRACT\MASTERS\RSS\SIGPAGE.DOC 
9/18/23 

AGREEMENT for Delegation of Activities under the Refugee 
Support Services (RSS) Grant of the Refugee 
Resettlement Program 

AGREEMENT NUMBER 

074430RS-HAU 
1. DELEGATE INFORMATION: 2. ACTIVITY/TARGET GROUP:

Name:  Sacramento City Unified School District ELL Workforce Navigator 
3. AGREEMENT TERM:

8/3/2023 through 9/30/2024 
4. CAT. NO./CFDA:

93.566 
5. AWARD AMOUNT: $109,875.00 6. DUNS#: 060697109 

7. MAXIMUM ANNUAL EXTENSIONS:  Two (2) 

8. TERMS & CONDITIONS:

The parties agree to comply with all terms and conditions of the Agreement which consists of this signature page 
and the following Exhibits, each of which is attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference and made a part 
hereof.  Exhibits 1 through 4 contain Delegate-specific terms and conditions that apply only to Delegate’s
performance of this Agreement; Exhibits 5 through 12 contain general SETA terms, conditions and requirements 
that apply to any Delegate’s performance of an agreement, including this Delegate Agreement.  

a. Exhibit 1 -    Resolution Authorizing Execution of Delegate Agency Agreement with the Sacramento Employment
    and Training Agency    

b. Exhibit 2 -    Program Planning Summary
c. Exhibit 3 -    Program Budget and Cost Allocation Plan
d. Exhibit 4 -    Special Conditions
e. Exhibit 5 -    Fixed Assets, Information Technology and Low-Value Inventory Policies and Procedures
f. Exhibit 6 -    Policy on Advances
g. Exhibit 7 -    Insurance Requirements
h. Exhibit 8 -    Nondiscrimination Addendum
i. Exhibit 9 -    Policy on Confidentiality of Participant Records
j. Exhibit 10 -  Mandatory Work Registration and Sanctioning System
k. Exhibit 11 -  General Assistance Employment & Training Requirements for Employable/Limited Employable

 Refugees 
l. Exhibit 12 -  Standard Conditions to Delegate Agency Agreement Under the Refugee Support Services Grant

DELEGATE shall thoroughly examine the Exhibits listed above and attached hereto.  The failure of DELEGATE to 
examine the above-listed Exhibits, or the terms, conditions and requirements set forth therein, shall in no way relieve 
DELEGATE of its obligations with respect to this Agreement including compliance with the terms, conditions and 
requirements set forth in the above-listed Exhibits.  By executing this Agreement DELEGATE specifically agrees to 
abide by all of the terms, conditions and requirements set forth in the above-listed Exhibits. 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Subgrant has been dated and executed by the parties hereto. 

DELEGATE 
Name: Sacramento City Unified School District 

By: Date Signed: 
Printed Name/Title of Authorized Signer: 

Address: 5735 47th Avenue, Sacramento, CA 95824 E-Mail Address:
SACRAMENTO EMPLOYMENT AND TRAINING AGENCY 

By: Date Signed: 
Printed Name/Title of Authorized Signer: Ms. D’et Saurbourne, Interim Executive Director 
Address: 925 Del Paso Blvd., Suite 100, Sacramento, CA 95815 Email address: D’et.Saurbourne@seta.net 

Jesse Castillo, Asst Superintendent of Business Services

jesse-m-castillo@scusd.edu

DocuSign Envelope ID: 1DF4EEB0-6A74-4B5D-91E5-EB295A6E705A

11/01/2023

mailto:Jennifer.Hernandez@seta.net


EXHIBIT 1 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF REFUGEE 
SUPPORT SERVICES SUBGRANT AGREEMENT

DocuSign Envelope ID: 1DF4EEB0-6A74-4B5D-91E5-EB295A6E705A



DocuSign Envelope ID: 1DF4EEB0-6A74-4B5D-91E5-EB295A6E705A



DocuSign Envelope ID: 1DF4EEB0-6A74-4B5D-91E5-EB295A6E705A



EXHIBIT 2 

PROGRAM PLANNING SUMMARY 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 1DF4EEB0-6A74-4B5D-91E5-EB295A6E705A



 
EXHIBIT 2 

 

 

K:\CONTRACT\MASTERS\RSS\HAU\PPS23.DOC 
8/3/23 

 

PROGRAM PLANNING SUMMARY 
 

I. Project Description /Overview 
 

In November 2022, the California Department of Social Services, Refugee Programs Bureau 
(RPB) received over $25,000,000 in RSS grant funding from ORR under the Additional 
Ukraine Supplemental Appropriations Act (AUSAA) to allocate to California counties based 
on high numbers of Ukrainian and other non-Ukrainian Humanitarian Parolees 
(UHPs/NUHPs) displaced from Ukraine, and the numbers of approved sponsorship 
applications under the Department of Homeland Security’s Uniting for Ukraine (U4U) 
program.  On July 10, 2023, RPB allocated the funds to eligible counties for housing and 
utility supports under RPB’s new Housing Assistance for Ukrainians (HAU) program. Based 
on RPB’s formula for allocation, SETA received the maximum award of $5,000,000.  After 
setting aside funds for administrative support, $4,251,430 was awarded to RSS employment 
program providers to provide housing and utility assistance to eligible Ukrainian and non-
Ukrainian UHPs/NUHPs through the program term of September 30, 2024. 

 
On June 28, 2023, RPB issued Refugee County Letter (RCL) No. 23-03, Guidance for the 
Housing Assistance for Ukrainians (HAU) Program, which states that housing and utility 
assistance under the program must be provided as a support service in conjunction with case 
management under the RSS employment program.  Accordingly, housing assistance funding 
can only be provided to eligible individuals who are receiving case management services 
from RSS program providers.    
 
DELEGATE has been funded under the HAU grant to provide direct relief to eligible 
UHPs/NUHPs in the form of payments for housing and utility expenses needed for 
participation in RSS-funded employment programs.  

 
II. HAU Service Requirements  

 
DELEGATE will apply the following when providing HAU support services: 
 
Client Eligibility - 

 

Eligibility for HAU support services is limited to UHPs/NUHPs displaced from Ukraine who 
reside in Sacramento County and are enrolled in a Refugee Support Services (RSS) funded 
employment program. Eligible populations include those who came to the United States 
independently, as well as those processed under the United for Ukraine (U4U) program. 
Categories of eligible Ukrainian populations and other non-Ukrainian individuals displaced 
from the Ukraine include:  
 

a) Citizens or nationals of Ukraine who the Department of Homeland Security (DHA) has 
paroled into the United States between February 24, 2022 and September 30, 2023 
due to urgent and humanitarian reasons or for significant public benefit, known as 
Ukrainian Humanitarian Parolees (UHPs).  
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 1DF4EEB0-6A74-4B5D-91E5-EB295A6E705A



 
EXHIBIT 2 

 

 

K:\CONTRACT\MASTERS\RSS\HAU\PPS23.DOC 
8/3/23 

b) Non-Ukrainian individuals who last habitually resided in the Ukraine, who DHS has 
paroled into the United States between February 24, 2022 and September 30, 2023 
due to urgent humanitarian reasons or for significant public benefit, known as Non-
Ukrainian Humanitarian Parolees (NUHPs).  
 

c) A spouse or child of an individual described in section a) or b) who is paroled into the 
United States after September 30, 2023.  

 
d) A parent, legal guardian, or primary caregiver of an unaccompanied refugee minor or 

an unaccompanied child described in section a) or b) who is paroled into the United 
States after September 30, 2023. 

 
Service Provisions/Limitations -  

 
Support services provided under the HAU grant:  
 
• Cannot be provided to individuals not enrolled in one of SETA’s RSS-funded employment 

programs (some exceptions may apply—contact SETA per individual case)  
• Must not affect a client’s eligibility to qualify for any public assistance that provides crucial 

employability and support services  
• Must be limited to housing and utility supports  
• Cannot be provided until it has been determined that the client has exhausted all other 

means of housing assistance  
• Must be provided to only one adult per household  
• Must be provided for current needs and cannot be provided to pre-pay future housing 

and/or utility expenses  
• Must be based on Sacramento County’s fair market value  
• Must not exceed six (6) months of support per household  
• May be reimbursed up to fifty percent (50%) of the monthly rental cost  
• Assistance may not exceed $10,000 per household, lifetime  
• Cannot be provided to clients that have terminated from the RSS program, including those 

that have met/reached 90-day job retention.  
 
Client Financial Needs Assessment and Justification for Support -  

 
Determination of Financial Need 
 

        All clients must be assessed for financial need prior to the provision of HAU support services. 
If financial needs assessments have been completed within the last 90 days from support 
inquiry/interest, they can be used to substantiate need. Financial needs assessments older than 
90 days from the date of support inquiry/interest will require reassessment. If household 
expenses exceed household income, staff may automatically consider providing support. If it is 
determined that household income exceeds household expenses, depending on the amount, 
support can still be provided by the application of one or more of the client “Attributes” listed 
below. The documentation of financial need and the justification for HAU support services must 
be maintained in the client record. 

 
 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 1DF4EEB0-6A74-4B5D-91E5-EB295A6E705A



 
EXHIBIT 2 

 

 

K:\CONTRACT\MASTERS\RSS\HAU\PPS23.DOC 
8/3/23 

Use of “Attributes” in Establishing Justification for Level and Duration of Support   
 
In addition to financial need, providers must determine the level of client/household instability, 
and estimated duration of housing and utility supports utilizing the RSS Client/Household 
Attributes Form. The following is a list of the client/household “Attributes” that can be applied 
and their guiding questions:  
 
1) The immigration status of other adults in the household does not allow access to public 
benefits and employment opportunities.  
- What is the current immigration status of the client and other adults in the household?  
- Does the current immigration status allow for access to needed public benefits and 
employment opportunities?  

 
2) Client or other adults in the household have not obtained Employment Authorization 
Document or Social Security Card for reasons beyond their control.  
- Has the client or other adults in the household obtained the documentation needed to secure 
employment or other public benefits?  
- Have there been delays in receipt of employment authorization, or other documentation, for 
reasons outside of the client’s or other adult household members’ (e.g., U.S. Citizenship and 
Immigration Services) control?  
- What are the reasons for the delay in receipt of documents?  

 
3) One or more of the adults follow cultural or religious norms that have an impact on their 
ability to work.  
- Are one or more of the adults in the household unable to work due to cultural or religious 
norms?  
 
4) Large family with many minor children.  
- Are one or more of the adults in the household unable to work due to lack of childcare for all 
of the minor children in the household?  
 
5) One or more adults in the household has a disability that permanently impacts one or more 
life functions.  
- Do any of the adult household members, including the client, have a disability that prevents 
them from gaining employment or extends the time it will take them to secure employment?  
- Do any of the minor children have a disability that impacts the ability of adults in the 
household to obtain employment or extends the time it will take for them to secure 
employment?  
 
6) One or more adults in the household have a medical condition that requires medical 
intervention to prevent further loss of function, or death.  
- Do any of the adult household members have a medical condition that will prevent them from 
gaining employment, or extends the time it will take to secure employment?  
- Do any of the minor children have a medical condition that will impact the ability of adults in 
the household to obtain employment, or extends the time it will take to secure employment?  
 
7) Client or other adults in the household have limited English Literacy Proficiency, or are pre-
literate in their first/native language.  

DocuSign Envelope ID: 1DF4EEB0-6A74-4B5D-91E5-EB295A6E705A



 
EXHIBIT 2 

 

 

K:\CONTRACT\MASTERS\RSS\HAU\PPS23.DOC 
8/3/23 

- Does the client or other adults in the household have limited English proficiency that affects 
the time it will take to obtain employment?  
- Is the client or other adults in the household pre-literate in their first/native language to the 
extent that it will affect the time it will take to obtain employment?  

 
8) Client/household does not have a U.S. tie/anchor (financial supporter)  
- Does the client/household have a U.S. tie/anchor (financial supporter) to support their 
integration?  
- Do any of the household members attend/participate in local religious/faith-based group 
activities?  
- Has the client/household received any ongoing, in-kind supports for housing, transportation, 
or food access/security needs?  
 
9) Client/household is not receiving any ongoing, in-kind supports for housing, transportation, 
or food needs  
- Does client/household receive any housing, transportation, or food support from faith-based 
organizations, or others?  
 
Once the RSS Client/Household Attributes Form has been completed, a copy of the form 
must be maintained in the client’s records. 

 
Allowable HAU Support Services - 
 
Rental Assistance   
 
Once financial need has been determined, and the client/household attributes applied 
providing the justification for support, providers must confirm that all other means of housing 
resources and supports have been exhausted prior to the issuance of rental assistance under 
the HAU program. Once confirmed and documented through a case note in the client’s file, the 
assistance can be provided. Rental assistance eligibility begins no earlier than August 3, 2023, 
and can only be provided during the period of time a client is enrolled in a RSS employment 
program, including through 90-day retention of employment. Also, the funding cannot be used 
to pay late fees, fines, deposits, or prior balances.  
 
To receive rental assistance, clients must also provide a completed Rental Verification Form. 
The form must be signed by the property owner/manager, or their representative(s), certifying 
the amount of rent paid by the client, and the date the payment was made. The form must also 
be signed by the client certifying that the information in the form is true and correct. Finally, the 
service provider must contact the rental agent or property owner to verify the information on 
the Rental Verification form. Once verified, the service provider must sign the form. In 
instances where rent and utilities are combined, if possible, the breakdown should be reflected 
on the form. Please note that rental assistance is only provided as a “reimbursement” after rent 
has been paid to the rental agency, or property owner.  
 
In addition to the Rental Verification Form, providers must collect a copy of the Rental/Lease 
Agreement. If a client’s name is not reflected in a rental or lease agreement, rental 
assistance cannot be provided.  
 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 1DF4EEB0-6A74-4B5D-91E5-EB295A6E705A



 
EXHIBIT 2 

 

 

K:\CONTRACT\MASTERS\RSS\HAU\PPS23.DOC 
8/3/23 

All completed and signed Rental Verification forms, and copies of rental/lease agreements must 
be maintained in client records. 
 
Utility Assistance   
 
Once financial need and justification for support has been determined, providers must confirm 
that all other means of utility assistance has been exhausted prior to the issuance of HAU 
support. Once confirmed and documented in a client record case note, the assistance can be 
provided. Utility assistance eligibility begins no earlier than August 3, 2023, and can only be 
provided during the period of time a client is enrolled in a RSS employment program, including 
through 90-day retention in employment. This funding cannot be used to pay interest, late 
fees, penalties, reconnection fees, or products.  
 
To access utility assistance, clients must provide an original utility bill in their name, or their 
spouse's name. Providers must review and verify that the utility bill statement belongs to the 
client prior to issuing support.  
 
All utility assistance documentation, including billing statements, must be maintained in the 
client’s records. 
 

III. Evaluation 
 

SETA will review DELEGATE’S detailed HAU report for accuracy and completeness on a 
monthly basis. Individual client files must contain required documentation of the HAU services 
provided, and available for review by SETA during fiscal and program monitoring.   

 
IV. Reporting 

 
Monthly Reports: The HAU report must be completed and submitted to SETA no later than 
seven (7) days after the end of each month through the term of this agreement. 

 
Fiscal Reports/Timing of Payment: SETA shall make payments upon receipt of a Monthly 
Fiscal Report. The report is due to SETA no later than (10) days after the end of each month 
during the term of this agreement. All Monthly Fiscal Reports are subject to review and 
approval by SETA prior to payment being issued. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 1DF4EEB0-6A74-4B5D-91E5-EB295A6E705A



EXHIBIT 3 

 BUDGET AND COST ALLOCATION PLAN 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 1DF4EEB0-6A74-4B5D-91E5-EB295A6E705A



EXHIBIT 3

K:\CONTRACT\MASTERS\RSS\EX-3.DOC
8/3/23

RSS HOUSING ASSISTANCE for UKRAINIANS (HAU)
BUDGET AND COST ALLOCATION PLAN

Agreement #: 074430RS-HAU

Original
Activity:
RSS Employment Programs
(HAU Supportive Services)

Delegate Name: Sacramento City Unified School District

Street Address: 5451 Lemon Hill Avenue City:  Sacramento, CA Zip: 95824

Program Contact: Susan L. Gilmore Phone: 916-395-5788

Fiscal Contact Person: Jesse Castillo Phone: 916-643-9045

E-Mail Address: jesse-castillo@scusd.net

BUDGET PERIOD: 8/3/2023 through 9/30/2024

BUDGET SUMMARY - COST REIMBURSEMENT

TYPE OF COST
SETA SHARE

TOTAL

A. Personnel $16,000

B1.  Fixed Asset Purchases

B2.  Other Equipment Costs

C. Other Costs $3,581

D1.  Other Participant Cost

D2.  Support Services $90,294

Total Cost: $109,875

DocuSign Envelope ID: 1DF4EEB0-6A74-4B5D-91E5-EB295A6E705A

mailto:jesse-castillo@scusd.net


EXHIBIT 3 

K:\CONTRACT\MASTERS\RSS\EX-3.DOC 
8/3/23 

COST ALLOCATION PLAN 
 
ACTUAL METHODS (Do not give dollar amounts), which will be used to charge/allocate a FAIR SHARE 
of ACTUAL costs to this budget ("Budget" column) and to cost categories (administration and program) 
within the budget ("Cost Category"). 
 

Cost Item 
Use abbreviation at bottom of page 

Budget Cost Category 

A.   Personnel Costs ST/DC ST/DC 

             

B.   Equipment Costs N/A N/A 

             

C.   Other Costs DC DC 

             

             

D.  Direct Participant Costs DC DC 

             

             
 
ABBREVIATIONS: (Some commonly used methods.  If a method you use is not listed, add it to the list) 
 
DC Direct Charge:  Not a share cost.  ACTUAL costs charged to a budget or cost category will be  

directly identified with the budget or cost category. 
 

SF Square Footage:  Shared Cost. ACTUAL costs will be allocated to a budget of cost category 
based upon the % of ACTUAL space used for the budget or cost category. 
 

ST Staff Time:  Shared Cost.  ACTUAL costs will be allocated to a budget or cost category based 
upon the % of total ACTUAL staff time spent on the budget or cost category. 

 
SF/ST Square Footage Combined with Time of Staff Using Space:  Shared cost.  ACTUAL costs will 

be allocated to a budget or cost category based upon the % of total ACTUAL space and the % of 
total ACTUAL staff time within the space used for the budget or cost category. 

 
#S Number Served:  Shared cost.  ACTUAL costs will be allocated to a budget based upon the % of 

total ACTUAL participants served by the budget. 
 
U Usage:  Shared cost.  ACTUAL costs will be allocated to a budget or cost category based upon 

the % of total ACTUAL usage for the budget or cost category.  The backup documentation for 
ACTUAL usage will be: 

       
       
      

DocuSign Envelope ID: 1DF4EEB0-6A74-4B5D-91E5-EB295A6E705A



EXHIBIT 3 

K:\CONTRACT\MASTERS\RSS\EX-3.DOC 
8/3/23 

A. Personnel Costs 

Job Title 
Dates 

From – To 
(mm/dd/yy – mm/dd/yy) 

Full 
Salary 

Per 
Month 

Number 
of 

Months 
 % SETA 

(ex: .25 = 25%) 

Costs For This Program 

Total 

Customer Relations Clerk 10/01/23 - 09/30/24 $1,477 8 100% $11,816 

             -                          

             -                          

             -                          

             -                          

             -                          

             -                          

             -                          

             -                          

             -                          

             -                          

             -                          

             -                          

             -                          

             -                          

Total Salaries   $11,816 
Total Fringe Benefits (Employer's Contribution Only)         (% of 

Salaries)   $4,184 

  Total Personnel Costs (Salaries + Fringe Benefits)  Total Costs $16,000 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 1DF4EEB0-6A74-4B5D-91E5-EB295A6E705A



EXHIBIT 3 

K:\CONTRACT\MASTERS\RSS\EX-3.DOC 
8/3/23 

      
  B.  Equipment Costs   

  Costs For This Program 

         1.  Purchases of Fixed Assets*  Full Purchase 
Price 

 % SETA 
(ex: .25 = 25%) Total 

                      

                           

                      

                      

                      

  Total Purchases of Fixed Assets   0 

         2.  Other Equipment Costs Full Purchase Price X # of items X  
% SETA 

(Ex. 1,000 x 1 x .25) 
Or 

Full Cost/Month X # of Months X  
% SETA 

(Ex. 1,000 x 12 x .25) 
Total 

Select One   
 P = Purchase 
 L = Lease 
 R = Rent 
 D = 
Depreciation  
  

Equipment Description 
 

                              

                              

                              

                              

                              

                              

Total Other Equipment Costs 0 
* Fixed Assets:  Equipment (non-expendable personal property) with an acquisition cost of $5,000 or more per unit and a useful life of more than 
one year. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 1DF4EEB0-6A74-4B5D-91E5-EB295A6E705A



EXHIBIT 3 

K:\CONTRACT\MASTERS\RSS\EX-3.DOC 
8/3/23 

  C.  Other Costs Full Cost Information  Costs For This Program 
  Direct Cost 
   
  Facility: SCUSD  
  Address: 5451 Lemon Hill Ave., Sacramento, CA 95824  
  Non-Owned:    Rent                  Lease 
  
  Owned:            Depreciation     

Monthly 
Cost 

# of 
Months 

% SETA 
(ex: .25 = 25%) Total 

  
                    

                    

  Utilities                     
  Telephone                     
  Office Supplies                     
  Duplication/Printing                     
  Other:                           
  Insurance:          Fidelity/Depositors' Forgery                     
                             Property                     
                             General Liability                     
                             Vehicle Liability                     
                             Other:                            
  Travel:                Local Mileage                     
                             Other:                            
                             Other:                            
  Subcontracts:    Contractual                     
                             Other:                            

  Total Direct Costs       
Indirect Costs - Approved Rate:   
         X  Costs: 3.26%                   $3,581 

Total Costs $3,581 
  *Attach copy of approval letter from cognizant agency 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 1DF4EEB0-6A74-4B5D-91E5-EB295A6E705A



EXHIBIT 3 

K:\CONTRACT\MASTERS\RSS\EX-3.DOC 
8/3/23 

D. DIRECT PARTICIPANT COSTS 
COSTS FOR THIS 

PROGRAM 

Type/Cost Information   

  1.   Other Participant Costs        

        Training Materials        

        Total Other Participant Costs        

  2.   Support Services   

        Transportation:        

        Other: Housing and Utility Assistance  $90,294 

        Total Support Services  $90,294 

  Total Direct Participant Costs (1+2)  $90,294 

    
 
 
 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 1DF4EEB0-6A74-4B5D-91E5-EB295A6E705A



EXHIBIT 4 

SPECIAL CONDITIONS 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 1DF4EEB0-6A74-4B5D-91E5-EB295A6E705A



EXHIBIT 4 

 
 K:\CONTRACT\MASTERS\RSS\SC.DOC 

8/3/23 

 
SPECIAL CONDITIONS 

The AGREEMENT for Delegation of Activities under the Refugee Support Services Grant of the 

Refugee Resettlement Program between the Sacramento Employment and Training Agency and 

Sacramento City Unified School District is subject to the special condition(s) and timeframe(s) 

outlined below: 

 

Condition(s) 
 

Timeframe(s) 

1.  DELEGATE shall maintain all insurance coverage and is 
expressly required by this Exhibit to immediately notify SETA if it 
receives a communication from its insurance carrier(s) or agent 
that any required insurance is to be cancelled, non-renewed, 
reduced in scope or limits or otherwise materially changed.  
DELEGATE shall provide thirty (30) days written notice to SETA 
prior to such change. Ten (10) days prior written notice shall be 
provided to SETA in the event of cancellation due to non-payment 
of premium. Failure to maintain required insurance shall be 
considered a material breach of the AGREEMENT. 

 

Entire Term 
of AGREEMENT. 
 

  
  

 
  

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 1DF4EEB0-6A74-4B5D-91E5-EB295A6E705A



EXHIBIT 5 

FIXED ASSETS, INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY AND 
LOW-VALUE INVENTORY POLICIES AND PROCEDURES

DocuSign Envelope ID: 1DF4EEB0-6A74-4B5D-91E5-EB295A6E705A



EXHIBIT 5 

1 
K:\CONTRACT\MASTERS\RSS\EX-5.DOC 

8/1/17 

SACRAMENTO EMPLOYMENT & TRAINING AGENCY

FIXED ASSETS, INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY AND LOW-VALUE INVENTORY 

POLICIES AND PROCEDURES

BACKGROUND 

The following Agency Fixed Assets and Low-value Inventory Policy was 
approved by the Sacramento Employment & Training Agency (“SETA”) Governing
Board on August 6, 2015 and supersedes the Fixed Assets Policy previously adopted 
on April 6, 2000.  This policy applies to all programs funded by SETA. 

DEFINITIONS 

General Fixed Assets: All equipment (non-expendable personal property) with an 
acquisition cost of $5,000.00 or more per unit and a useful life of more than one year 
that is purchased with funds distributed by SETA. 

Information Technology (purchase with WIOA funds): The purchase, rent, 
licensing, maintenance fee, or subscription of information-technology 
applications/software/services with a per-unit single or cumulative cost totaling $5,000 
or more within a twelve-month period with WIOA funds. 

Low-value Inventory:  All computer hardware and expendable property of a 
sensitive nature (subject to loss or theft due to its size) such as photocopiers, printers, 
and video cameras costing in excess of $3,000.00, but less than $5,000.00.  All Low-
value Inventory shall be considered to have a useful life of five years for purposes of 
this policy.  

Covered Equipment: Any and all General Fixed Assets, Information Technology 
and/or Low-value Inventory. The cost of Covered Equipment includes: the purchase 
price less discounts plus freight charges; sales, use and transportation taxes; and 
installation charges. 

PRIOR APPROVAL OF FIXED ASSETS AND INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY 

Expenditures for fixed assets and information technology (WIOA funds) shall be 
approved by SETA and/or grantor prior to the purchase of such fixed assets by 
subrecipient/delegate agency.  Subrecipient/delegate agency shall obtain written 
approval of SETA and/or grantor prior to purchasing the fixed assets and information 
technology.  For fixed assets purchase using Head Start funds, if fixed assets are 
approved in the annual budget, no further approvals are required. 

INVENTORY OF FIXED ASSETS AND LOW-VALUE INVENTORY 

All Covered Equipment will be inventoried and monitored by SETA.  A physical 
property inventory must be taken and reconciled with the property records at least once 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 1DF4EEB0-6A74-4B5D-91E5-EB295A6E705A



EXHIBIT 5 

2 
K:\CONTRACT\MASTERS\RSS\EX-5.DOC 

8/1/17 

every two years. Replacement, transfer, tagging and disposal of any Covered 
Equipment shall be consistent with the following procedures. 

REPLACEMENT OF COVERED EQUIPMENT 

When the status of Covered Equipment is reported after the annual physical 
inventory, the subrecipient/delegate agency that cannot locate items of Covered 
Equipment assigned to it shall provide to SETA (from non-SETA sources) funds equal 
to the replacement value of the Covered Equipment not located. 

TRANSFER OF COVERED EQUIPMENT 

The subrecipient/delegate agency that receives Covered Equipment from SETA 
will be solely responsible for the pickup and return of such equipment to SETA.  In 
addition, all Covered Equipment must be returned when the program operator is no 
longer funded by SETA. 

TAGGING OF COVERED EQUIPMENT 

Every purchase made with SETA funds will be processed through SETA's Fiscal 
Division.  Each program operator must be aware that in some instances prior federal 
and/or state approval is necessary.  The monthly fiscal claim should be accompanied 
by an itemized listing of Covered Equipment purchases with a copy of the invoice for 
each item.  The listing should provide the date of acquisition, cost, serial number, and 
location of the Covered Equipment.  SETA Fiscal will then arrange for tagging the 
Covered Equipment. 

DISPOSITION OF COVERED EQUIPMENT 

Disposition of Covered Equipment will be made in accordance with OMB Uniform 
Guidance (2 CFR Part 200) and applicable implementing regulations by federal funding 
source.  Subrecipient/delegate agency shall also take reasonable measures to 
safeguard protected personally identifiable information from the Covered Equipment in 
accordance to OMB Uniform Guidance (2 CFR Part 200.82 and 200.203(e)). Covered 
Equipment determined to be non-usable by SETA may be sent to the County General 
Services for disposition.  Proceeds received from disposition will be retained by SETA 
for future program services, as applicable to each funding source. 

If it is determined that the cost of moving the non-usable Covered Equipment will 
exceed the potential sale proceeds from disposition, SETA may perform disposition 
procedure on site.  In addition, any Low-value Inventory that has exceeded its useful life 
may be disposed of on site.  If any Covered Equipment is disposed of on site, the 
Program Operator shall continue to use such equipment in its SETA-funded program 
or, if such equipment is disposed of for value, the proceeds shall be considered to be 
Program Income and shall be accounted for as provided in the subgrant or delegate 
agreement. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 1DF4EEB0-6A74-4B5D-91E5-EB295A6E705A



EXHIBIT 6 

POLICY ON ADVANCES 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 1DF4EEB0-6A74-4B5D-91E5-EB295A6E705A



EXHIBIT 6 

K:\CONTRACT\MASTERS\RSS\EX-6.DOC 
10/1/14 

POLICY ON ADVANCES 

When contracting with organizations that demonstrate the willingness and ability to limit 
advanced funds to the actual immediate disbursement needs in carrying out delegate’s 
RSS-funded program, SETA will, based on the financial need of the organization: 

Advance up to 1/8 or 12.5% of the total agreement amount, 

subject to the following conditions: 

(A) The request for advance, addressed to the SETA Fiscal 
Department Chief, must be in writing explaining the 
subgrantee's/delegate's financial need; 

(B) Subgrantee/delegate must have established an acceptable 
accounting system;  

(C) Subgrantee/delegate must provide SETA with an annual audit, 
unless waived, in writing, by SETA’s Fiscal Department Chief; 

(D) Subgrantee/delegate must provide required monthly fiscal reports 
and required programmatic reports in a timely manner; 

(E) Advances will be reduced to zero during the last three months of 
the subgrant/agreement term. 

Advances will not be provided to governmental entities (includes school districts). 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 1DF4EEB0-6A74-4B5D-91E5-EB295A6E705A



EXHIBIT 7 

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 1DF4EEB0-6A74-4B5D-91E5-EB295A6E705A



EXHIBIT 7 

1 
K:\CONTRACT\MASTERS\RSS\EX-7.DOC  

7/6/17 

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 

SACRAMENTO EMPLOYMENT AND TRAINING AGENCY 

The following insurance requirements shall be applicable to all subgrantees, 

contractors and delegate agencies doing business with the Sacramento 

Employment and Training Agency (“SETA”) to the extent that such requirements 

appear in, or are incorporated into, the subgrant, contract or delegate agreement.  

For purposes of these insurance requirements, the term “DELEGATE” shall include 

any subgrantee, contractor or delegate agency of SETA, and the term 

“AGREEMENT” shall include any subgrant, contract or delegate agreement to 

which these insurance requirements are attached. 

1. Fidelity and Depositors’ Forgery Insurance

DELEGATE shall maintain, for the term of the AGREEMENT, an insurance plan for

fidelity and depositors' forgery coverages, with a carrier satisfactory to SETA,

against loss due to any personnel of DELEGATE handling funds or fiscally

significant documents received from or submitted to SETA under the AGREEMENT.

Said insurance coverages shall be in an amount not less than (a) the amount of the

AGREEMENT if less than Twenty-Five Thousand Dollars ($25,000); or, (b) Twenty-

Five Thousand Dollars ($25,000) or twenty percent (20%) of the total amount of the

AGREEMENT, whichever is greater.  Said insurance shall contain provisions which

(a) guarantee that coverage shall not be canceled, limited, or non-renewed until

after fifteen (15) days advance written notice has been given to SETA, except in the

event of non-payment of premium when a ten (10) day advance written notice shall

apply; and, (b) name SETA as a loss payee as its interest may appear.

2. Property Insurance

If, under the terms of the AGREEMENT, DELEGATE shall purchase, rent, lease, be

loaned, or have legal possession of and be legally liable for any federal, state, or

SETA-owned real or personal property, DELEGATE shall insure such property, with

a carrier satisfactory to SETA, with a policy or policies of property insurance which

is at least as broad as the current ISO Special Form Causes of Loss (CP 1030)

policy, formerly known as “all risks”, as well as insurance covering boiler and

machinery and compliance with ordinances or laws, if appropriate, for the full One

Hundred Percent (100%) insurable replacement cost of the property.  Said

DocuSign Envelope ID: 1DF4EEB0-6A74-4B5D-91E5-EB295A6E705A



EXHIBIT 7 

2 
K:\CONTRACT\MASTERS\RSS\EX-7.DOC  

7/6/17 

insurance shall contain provisions which guarantee that coverage shall not be 

canceled, limited, or non-renewed until after thirty (30) days advance written notice 

has been given to SETA, except in the event of non-payment of premium when a 

ten (10) day advance written notice shall apply.   

3. Commercial General Liability/Incidental Medical Malpractice/Vehicle Liability

Insurance

DELEGATE shall maintain, for the term of the AGREEMENT, an insurance plan for

commercial general liability, incidental medical malpractice and commercial vehicle

liability coverage which shall include owned, hired, and non-owned vehicles, with a

carrier satisfactory to SETA.  Said policy must be written on an occurrence-type

policy form which is at least as broad as the most current ISO Commercial General

Liability (CG 0001) policy, insuring liability arising from premises; operations;

independent contractors; incidental medical malpractice and garage keepers liability

as appropriate given the nature of DELEGATE’s business; personal injury and

advertising injury; products-completed operations; and, liability assumed under an

insured contract.  Claims-made policies are not acceptable.  Said insurance shall

contain provisions which (a) guarantee that coverage shall not be canceled, limited,

or non-renewed until after thirty (30) days advance written notice has been given to

SETA, except in the event of non-payment of premium when a ten (10) day

advance written notice shall apply; (b) name SETA and its officers, directors,

employees and volunteers as an additional insured party under the policy; (c) state

that any insurance and/or self-insurance maintained by SETA shall apply in excess

of and not contribute with insurance provided by this policy; and, (d) provide a limit

for such coverage of not less than One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per occurrence

and Two Million Dollars  ($2,000,000) general aggregate for bodily injury and

property damage.  If DELEGATE transports children in any manner in its SETA-

funded program, DELEGATE shall maintain, or require its transportation contractor

to maintain, liability insurance in a form and amount satisfactory to SETA.  Prior to

transporting any children, DELEGATE shall provide written notice to SETA that it

intends to transport children and shall obtain the insurance coverage and required

documentation as determined by SETA.

DocuSign Envelope ID: 1DF4EEB0-6A74-4B5D-91E5-EB295A6E705A



EXHIBIT 7 

3 
K:\CONTRACT\MASTERS\RSS\EX-7.DOC  

7/6/17 

4. Sexual Abuse Liability Insurance

If applicable, DELEGATE shall maintain Sexual Abuse liability coverage at limits no

less than One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per occurrence.  Such coverage may be

written on a stand alone basis or made part of the DELEGATE’s Commercial

Liability Insurance.  Said insurance shall contain provisions which (a) guarantee that

coverage shall not be canceled, limited, or non-renewed until after thirty (30) days

advance written notice has been given to SETA, except in the event of non-payment

of premium when a ten (10) day advance written notice shall apply; (b) name SETA

and its officers, employees and volunteers as an additional insured party under the

policy; (c) state that any insurance and/or self-insurance maintained by SETA shall

apply in excess of and not contribute with insurance provided by this policy; and, (d)

provide a limit for such coverage of not less than One Million Dollars ($1,000,000)

per occurrence.

5. Workers Compensation

DELEGATE shall maintain, for the term of the AGREEMENT, an insurance plan for

workers compensation, issued by an insurance carrier licensed to underwrite

workers compensation insurance in the State of California, in an amount and sum to

meet all requirements of applicable Labor Codes of the State of California, which

provides coverage for all employees employed pursuant to the AGREEMENT who

are currently eligible for coverage under existing workers compensation laws and

regulations.  Where participants are not covered under a state’s workers’

compensation law, they shall be provided with adequate accident medical insurance

for work-related activities.  Said insurance shall contain a provision which

guarantees that coverage shall not be canceled, limited, or non-renewed until after

thirty (30) days advance written notice has been given to SETA, except in the

eventof non-payment of premium when a ten (10) day advance written notice shall

apply.

6. Employment Practices Liability

DELEGATE shall maintain, for the term of the AGREEMENT, an insurance plan for

employment practices liability which shall include third-party employment practices

liability coverage.  Said insurance coverages must be written on a claims-made

type policy form for not less than One Million Dollars ($1,000,000,000) per claim.

DocuSign Envelope ID: 1DF4EEB0-6A74-4B5D-91E5-EB295A6E705A



EXHIBIT 7 

4 
K:\CONTRACT\MASTERS\RSS\EX-7.DOC  

7/6/17 

Said insurance shall contain a provision which guarantees that coverage shall not 

be canceled, limited, or non-renewed until after thirty (30) days advance written 

notice has been given to SETA, except in the event of non-payment of premium 

when a ten (10) day advance written notice shall apply. 

7. Accident Medical Insurance

Children and volunteers shall be provided with adequate accident medical

insurance.  Said insurance shall cover medical costs and health benefits for

accidents (a) occurring on-site during the time they are required to be therein and

thereon by reason of attendance at the Head Start site on any regular program day;

(b) while attending or participating in a regularly scheduled program activity

approved and supervised by proper authority of the program; and, (c) while traveling

directly to and from such regularly scheduled and approved program activity with

children enrolled in the program as a group, provided such group is at the time

under the supervision of proper authority of the program.  Said insurance shall

contain a provision which guarantees that coverage shall not be canceled, limited,

or non-renewed until after thirty (30) days advance written notice has been given to

SETA, except in the event of non-payment of premium when a ten (10) day

advance written notice shall apply.

8. Professional Liability Insurance

If, under the terms of the AGREEMENT, DELEGATE employs or retains

professional staff (including, but not limited to, nurses, psychologists, health care

professionals, accountants or attorneys), DELEGATE shall maintain, for the term of

the AGREEMENT, professional liability insurance covering such professionals with

a limit not less than One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per occurrence.  Said

insurance shall contain provisions which guarantee that coverage shall not be

canceled, limited, or non-renewed until after thirty (30) days advance written notice

has been given to SETA, except in the event of non-payment of premium when a

ten (10) day advance written notice shall apply;

9 Provision of Insurance Documents 

Prior to execution, commencement of performance and/or disbursement of any 

funds, DELEGATE’s insurer(s) shall provide to SETA, policy declarations page for 

all required insurance coverages, and certificates of insurance and applicable 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 1DF4EEB0-6A74-4B5D-91E5-EB295A6E705A



EXHIBIT 7 

5 
K:\CONTRACT\MASTERS\RSS\EX-7.DOC  

7/6/17 

endorsements issued by DELEGATE’s insurance carrier(s), for all required 

insurance coverage in amounts not less than those specified in the required 

coverages provided herein or otherwise required by SETA.  In addition, prior to 

DELEGATE’s purchase, possession, rental, leasing, loan, or legal possession of 

any federal, state, or SETA-owned property, DELEGATE’s insurer(s) shall provide 

to SETA certificate(s) of insurance, and applicable endorsements issued by 

DELEGATE’s insurance carrier(s), for property coverages.  In the event said 

insurance coverages expire at any time or times during the term of the 

AGREEMENT, DELEGATE agrees to provide, at least thirty (30) calendar days 

prior to said expiration date, a new certificate(s) of insurance evidencing insurance 

coverage(s) as provided for herein for not less than the remainder of the term of the 

AGREEMENT.  New certificates of insurance are subject to review for content and 

form by SETA. 

10. Deductibles or Self-Insured Retentions

Any deductibles or self-insured retentions shall be declared to and approved by

SETA.  In the sole discretion of SETA, SETA may require DELEGATE to reduce or

eliminate such deductibles or self-insured retentions as respects SETA, its officers,

directors, employees and volunteers.  DELEGATE acknowledges that no SETA

funds may be used to fund or otherwise pay for any deductibles, self-insured

retentions and/or self-insurance.

11. Additional Coverage

SETA reserves the right to require DELEGATE to obtain additional insurance

coverage should SETA determine, in its sole discretion, that the program activities

require additional coverage.

12. Changes in Coverage

If any coverage is canceled, revoked, reduced, or in any manner questioned or

compromised, DELEGATE shall immediately notify SETA.  In that event, SETA

shall not make any further disbursements to DELEGATE and may require the return

of any cash advance made to DELEGATE until SETA is satisfied that the coverage

initially approved by SETA has been reinstated.  In addition, SETA may suspend

performance of DELEGATE’s program and/or may suspend or disallow payment to

DELEGATE or may terminate the AGREEMENT.

DocuSign Envelope ID: 1DF4EEB0-6A74-4B5D-91E5-EB295A6E705A



EXHIBIT 7 

6 
K:\CONTRACT\MASTERS\RSS\EX-7.DOC  

7/6/17 

13. Deviations from Requirements

Any deviations from these requirements may be approved in advance by the

Executive Director, or designee, provided that one or more of the following findings

is made and documented in the contract file to which the deviation pertains:

(1) The scope of work does not raise any risk that will be 

provided in certain coverages; or 

(2) The coverage or endorsement is not readily available in the 

marketplace.  

DocuSign Envelope ID: 1DF4EEB0-6A74-4B5D-91E5-EB295A6E705A



EXHIBIT 8 

NONDISCRIMINATION ADDENDUM 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 1DF4EEB0-6A74-4B5D-91E5-EB295A6E705A



EXHIBIT 8 

1 
K:\CONTRACT\MASTERS\RSS\EX-8.DOC 

11/20/17

NONDISCRIMINATION ADDENDUM 

1. During the performance of the AGREEMENT, DELEGATE and its subcontractors shall not
unlawfully discriminate, harass or allow harassment, against any employee or applicant for
employment on the basis of race, color, religion, sex (including pregnancy, childbirth, and
related medical conditions, sex stereotyping, transgender status, and gender identity),
national origin (including limited English proficiency), age, disability, or political affiliation or
belief, medical condition, marital status, and denial of family care leave.  DELEGATE and
its subcontractors shall ensure that the evaluation and treatment of their employees and
applicants for employment are free from such discrimination and harassment.

2. DELEGATE and its subcontractors shall comply with the provisions of the Fair
Employment and Housing Act (Government Code, Section 12900 et seq.) and the
applicable regulations promulgated thereunder (California Code of Regulations, Title 2,
Section 7285.0 et seq.).  The applicable regulations of the Fair Employment and Housing
Commission implementing Government Code, Section 12990 (a-f), set forth in Chapter 5,
Division 4 of Title 2 of the California Code of Regulations are incorporated into the
AGREEMENT by reference and made a part thereof as if set forth in full.

3. DELEGATE and its subcontractors shall give written notice of their obligations under this
clause to labor organizations with which they have a collective bargaining or other
agreement.

4. DELEGATE shall include the nondiscrimination and compliance provisions of this clause in
all subcontracts to perform work under the AGREEMENT.

DocuSign Envelope ID: 1DF4EEB0-6A74-4B5D-91E5-EB295A6E705A



EXHIBIT 9 

CONFIDENTIALITY POLICY 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 1DF4EEB0-6A74-4B5D-91E5-EB295A6E705A



EXHIBIT 9 

1 
K:\CONTRACT\MASTERS\RSS\EX-9.DOC 

10/1/14 

POLICY ON CONFIDENTIALITY OF PARTICIPANT RECORDS 

SACRAMENTO EMPLOYMENT & TRAINING AGENCY 

It is the policy of SETA to ensure confidentiality of all participant records and to assure 
compliance with the Information Practices Act of 1977 and the Federal Privacy Act of 1974, as 
amended.  In order to implement this Policy, this statement outlines the standards which must 
be followed by all SETA employees, as well as all staff and Board Members of all SETA-
funded programs. 

Participant records, for purposes of this Policy, are defined to be those records 
concerning individual participants that SETA or the Program Operator is required to prepare, 
maintain, or submit pursuant to governmental regulations and, where applicable, a Program 
Operator Agreement with SETA, and the information contained therein. 

Program Operator, for purposes of this Policy, is defined to include all agencies 
operating programs who are recipients of SETA funding, whether as a subgrantee, contractor, 
delegate agency or other recipient. 

OWNERSHIP 

All participant records are the property of SETA and shall revert to SETA at the 
termination of a Program Operator’s funding.  Program Operators are only the custodians of 
participant records and shall ensure the confidentiality of the records in their possession on 
behalf of SETA.  Retention of all records, including participant records, is controlled by various 
federal and state laws and regulations, as well as SETA policies, subcontracts and subgrants.  
Nothing herein shall be interpreted as requiring retention of participant records by SETA or a 
Program Operator beyond the time period specified in any controlling statute, regulation, 
subcontract or subgrant. 

ACCESS 

I. Those persons that may have possession of participant records include only: 

a. Specific program staff designated by the Program Operator; and

b. Those persons designated by SETA.

II. The only persons who may review the participant records, in addition to those
specified in I, are SETA-authorized public and/or private auditors. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 1DF4EEB0-6A74-4B5D-91E5-EB295A6E705A



EXHIBIT 9 

2 
K:\CONTRACT\MASTERS\RSS\EX-9.DOC 

10/1/14 

III. Access by any persons to participant records shall be in a manner consistent
with governmental regulations and, where applicable, the terms of the Program Operator 
Agreement between SETA and the Program Operator.  If Program Operator is an educational 
agency or institution, access to a participant’s personally identifiable information from the 
student’s education records may only be permitted if the student has signed a written consent 
authorizing release of the education records to the recipient. 

IV. Unless otherwise specifically provided for in this policy, or mandated by state or
federal law or administrative regulations, no other person, group, agency or institution shall 
have access to participant records. 

DISSEMINATION OF INFORMATION 

Neither SETA employees nor any Program Operator shall disseminate any information 
derived from participant records, without prior written approval from SETA, except in the 
following instances: 

a. Delivery of records to SETA pursuant to the terms of the Program Operator
Agreement or to comply with the rules, regulations, and conditions established by the federal 
or state government and/or the SETA Governing Board; 

b. Delivery to an entity specifically designated in a release of information form
signed by the subject participant authorizing such dissemination.  In cases where the subject 
participant is a minor (i.e. Head Start enrollees) the release of information form must be signed 
by the minor’s parent or guardian; or 

c. Upon request of authorized SETA auditors and staff.

PARTICIPANT ACCESS TO HIS/HER OWN RECORDS 

I. All participants shall have an absolute right, which may not be abridged in any 
manner whatsoever, to review and obtain copies of his/her own records. 

II. The participant may request to review his/her records at any reasonable time,
during normal working hours and that request shall be granted without exception.  If the 
participant wishes a copy of his/her records, a copy of such records shall be provided within 
five (5) working days after the request, upon payment of an optional fee not to exceed twenty-
five cents (25¢) per page. 

III. For any records in the possession of SETA, a participant must communicate in
writing, his/her request to review his/her records.  Such a request shall be granted within five 
(5) working days at a reasonable time during working hours.  If a participant wishes a copy of 
his/her records, such request shall be communicated in writing and such request shall be 
granted within five (5) working days at a cost not to exceed twenty-five cents (25¢) per page. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 1DF4EEB0-6A74-4B5D-91E5-EB295A6E705A



EXHIBIT 9 

3 
K:\CONTRACT\MASTERS\RSS\EX-9.DOC 

10/1/14 

IV. If a participant believes there is an error in his/her records, such participant shall
be allowed to indicate the error and to request, in writing, a change in the record, and any such 
request shall be inserted into the records maintained by both the Program Operator and SETA, 
and the change made if the records are inaccurate. 

REQUEST FOR RECORDS UNDER THE PUBLIC RECORDS ACT AND/OR 
THE FEDERAL FREEDOM OF INFORMATION ACT 

Generally, information regarding personnel data on program participants is confidential 
and cannot be released by either SETA staff or a Program Operator. 

With respect to participant information concerning participants who are TANF recipients 
(which would include all CalWORKs recipients, all Refugee Targeted Assistance participants 
and certain welfare referral participants of other SETA programs), all participant information is 
absolutely confidential and cannot be disclosed to any individual pursuant to Welfare and 
Institutions Code Section 10850. 

Both the Public Records Act and the Freedom of Information Act preclude disclosure of 
personnel information and similar information unless the need for the information clearly 
outweighs the individual’s right to privacy.  In such situations, a determination must be made 
on a case-by-case basis whether the disclosure of the information would constitute an 
unwarranted invasion of personal privacy.  Thus, a blanket decision to never release any 
participant records, in order to protect all of the participants’ privacy, would be erroneous.  
Also, generally speaking, it is probably appropriate, upon request, to disclose the name, 
position and salary of a participant, unless the participant is a welfare recipient, as noted 
above.  Although, as further noted above, each case should be reviewed on a case-by-case 
basis to weigh the relative interests involved, it is generally suggested that before any 
information other than the name, position and salary of a participant is released, that an 
attempt should be made to obtain the permission of the participant for the release of the 
information.  Protection of the participant’s right to privacy is significantly important enough to 
consider the participant’s right to confidentiality in the information prior to disclosing it to third 
parties. 

Because a decision not to release information requested pursuant to the Freedom of 
Information and Public Records Acts can be challenged in court, it is appropriate to obtain 
legal advice with respect to a request for any information in which the participant has a right to 
privacy.  Thus, SETA staff should bring to the attention of the Executive Director any requests 
for such information and Program Operators are encouraged to seek independent legal advice 
before responding to such requests. 

SUBPOENA OF RECORDS 

When any SETA employee or any Program Operator is served with a Subpoena 
requesting information regarding a participant, the following procedures should be followed:  

DocuSign Envelope ID: 1DF4EEB0-6A74-4B5D-91E5-EB295A6E705A



EXHIBIT 9 

4 
K:\CONTRACT\MASTERS\RSS\EX-9.DOC 

10/1/14 

1. Forward immediate written notice (see attachment) to the participant or
the participant’s attorney of record stating that a Subpoena has been served and will be 
complied with within the appropriate time, unless a Court Order is served upon the agency 
prior to that date, ordering the agency not to release the information.  All SETA employees and 
all Program Operators shall also notify the SETA Executive Director immediately after 
receiving a Subpoena. 

2. If no Court Order is served within the period set forth, the Subpoena
should be complied with by either forwarding the records requested or, if necessary, making a 
personal appearance pursuant to the Subpoena in order to provide the records. 

3. If at any time a SETA employee or a Program Operator has concerns
regarding a Subpoena or if the Subpoena has not provided adequate time for notification of the 
participant, the SETA Executive Director should be contacted prior to any action being taken. 

4. Any Program Operator or individual served with a Subpoena is entitled to
compensation for the costs of providing these records.  Payment may be requested in advance 
for release of records or a statement may be forwarded with the records.  A fee should be set 
in accordance with fees charged any individual requesting documents or records. 

5. Each Program Operator should designate one or more individuals as
“Custodian of the Records” to be responsible for compliance with Subpoena requests.  If a 
Subpoena is personally served upon the Custodian of Records, this Custodian should be 
instructed to immediately request witness fees from the process server.  All funds received 
become the property of the Program Operator served. 

DOCUMENTATION FOR REQUEST OF INFORMATION 

All SETA Department Chiefs and all Program Operators should maintain a current file 
on all requests for information regarding program participants.  Each request should be 
documented. 

1. Documentation should include what information was requested, by whom,
for what reason and what information was provided. 

2. Documentation should also be made for information that was denied.

IT IS THE RESPONSIBILITY OF ALL SETA EMPLOYEES AND 
ALL PROGRAM OPERATORS TO ASSURE THAT THIS POLICY 
IS FOLLOWED.  ANY DEVIATION IS GROUNDS FOR 
DISCIPLINARY ACTION AGAINST AN EMPLOYEE AND 
TERMINATION OF ANY APPLICABLE PROGRAM OPERATOR 
AGREEMENT. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 1DF4EEB0-6A74-4B5D-91E5-EB295A6E705A



DATE:  

TO: (Participant or Participant’s Attorney) 

Dear : 

Please be advised that on        (date)      , the  (name of SETA-funded program) 

was served with a Subpoena from 

(party serving the Subpoena) 

in the matter of 

  (case name)     requesting that the following records of     (name of participant) 

be produced: 

(Here recite language from Subpoena identifying records sought) 

This letter serves to notify you that unless the undersigned is served with a Court Order 
quashing the Subpoena or otherwise prohibiting production of the above documents, all 
materials will be forwarded pursuant to the Subpoena on    (date) . 

Very truly yours, 

Custodian of the Records for 
(Name of SETA-funded Agency) 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 1DF4EEB0-6A74-4B5D-91E5-EB295A6E705A



EXHIBIT 10 

MANDATORY WORK REGISTRATION AND 
SANCTIONING SYSTEM POLICY 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 1DF4EEB0-6A74-4B5D-91E5-EB295A6E705A



EXHIBIT 10 

1 
K:\CONTRACT\MASTERS\RSS\EX-10.DOC 

4/3/19 

MANDATORY WORK REGISTRATION AND SANCTIONING SYSTEM 

REFUGEE CASH ASSISTANCE (“RCA”) 

The Refugee Assistance Amendments of 1982 delineate eligibility requirements for RCA.  As a 
condition of receiving RCA, all mandatory refugees must: 

• Register with and participate in RSS-funded or RPB-approved employment or
language training; and,

• Accept any appropriate offer of employment.

Failure or refusal to accept an appropriate job offer or to participate in an available and 
appropriate services program will result in the refugee being reported to the County 
Department of Human Assistance (the “DHA”) for a cause determination.  If “good cause” is 
not found, the DHA will develop a written conciliation plan which specifies the actions the 
recipient must take to demonstrate cooperation with registration, employment and 
employment-directed education/training requirements.  Clients reported for 
noncompliance/nonparticipation retain their mandatory status throughout the conciliation, 
hearing and appeals processes and must continue to cooperate and participate.   

Failure to successfully complete the conciliation process will result in the termination of the 
refugee’s grant for three (3) payment months for the first occurrence and six (6) payment 
months for subsequent occurrences.  During the sanction period (removal from cash 
assistance) these clients remain eligible for services, but as voluntary participants not subject 
to the referral and sanctioning process. 

RCA REGISTRATION AND SANCTIONING REQUIREMENTS AND PROCESS 

1. County Department of Human Assistance (DHA) Responsibilities

• Accepts applications for cash assistance.

• Determines eligibility for RCA/GA cash assistance.

• Determines if a refugee is exempt or nonexempt from mandatory work registration and
training requirements.

• Explains program, client’s rights and responsibilities, and the referral and sanctioning
process.

• Verifies refugee and cash assistance status.

• Provides notification regarding the outcome of the fair hearing.

• Refers nonexempt refugees for participation in RSS-funded services.

DocuSign Envelope ID: 1DF4EEB0-6A74-4B5D-91E5-EB295A6E705A



EXHIBIT 10 

2 
K:\CONTRACT\MASTERS\RSS\EX-10.DOC 

4/3/19 

• Determines good cause for nonparticipation/noncooperation or job refusal.

• Develops a written conciliation plan specifying the actions the recipient must take to
demonstrate cooperation with registration, employment and employment-directed
education/training requirements.

• Sanctions (denies or discontinues assistance) the refugee who, except for good
cause, fails to register and/or participate in training or refuses an appropriate job offer.

• Provides notification regarding case status changes (e.g., RCA to TANF) and changes
to address, telephone number, etc.

• Provides notification regarding the client’s conciliation plan via the RS-3A.

2. RCA Services System Responsibilities

• Verification/documentation of refugee and cash assistance status.

• Determination of eligibility for RSS-funded services (including supportive services).

• County-standardized assessment of the refugee client’s employment, training, English
language and supportive services needs.

• In compliance with 45 CFR § 400.79 of the federal Refugee Regulations, Development
of an Employability Plan, which identifies the services needed to remove barriers that
restrict the refugee client’s ability to become self-sufficient through ongoing
unsubsidized employment.  The Employability Plan must be designed to lead a
refugee who is not exempt under 45 CFR § 400.76 to the earliest possible
employment and must not be structured in such a way to discourage or delay
employment or job-seeking.  It must also contain a definite employment goal,
attainable in the shortest time period consistent with the employability of the refugee in
relation to job openings in the region.  At a minimum, the plan shall include the
following:

a) a goal to be attained upon completion of the employment-related and English
language training services; 

b) a description of the employment/training and support services needed, with
specified objectives and estimated timeframes, for the completion of each 
service activity; and, 

c) a description of the participant’s rights, duties, and responsibilities, including the
consequences of refusing to participate in employment-related and/or 
English language training services. 

• A system tracking and reporting the client’s progress (including non-
participation/cooperation) in services and employment to the DHA.

DocuSign Envelope ID: 1DF4EEB0-6A74-4B5D-91E5-EB295A6E705A



EXHIBIT 10 

3 
K:\CONTRACT\MASTERS\RSS\EX-10.DOC 

4/3/19 

• Verifies that client meets the provider’s qualifications.

• Enrolls client in services.

• Refers client back to the referring agency if referral is inappropriate.

• Explains participation and mandatory work registration requirements in a language the
client understands and documents that such explanation occurred.

• Reports mandatory client’s non-participation/cooperation and forwards all pertinent
documentation to the DHA.

• Notifies DHA of client’s job placement and any changes in employment status.

• Tracks job retention for ninety (90) days.

DocuSign Envelope ID: 1DF4EEB0-6A74-4B5D-91E5-EB295A6E705A



EXHIBIT 11 

GENERAL ASSISTANCE EMPLOYMENT AND TRAINING 
REQUIREMENTS 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 1DF4EEB0-6A74-4B5D-91E5-EB295A6E705A



EXHIBIT 11

1
K:\CONTRACT\MASTERS\RSS\EX-11.DOC

10/1/14

GENERAL ASSISTANCE EMPLOYMENT AND TRAINING REQUIREMENTS
FOR EMPLOYABLE/LIMITED EMPLOYABLE REFUGEES

I. GENERAL:

Any employable/limited employable applicant/recipient who is a refugee shall be required
to participate in the Sacramento Employment and Training Agency (“SETA”) Refugee
Program to fulfill the General Assistance Employment and Training (“E&T”) requirement.

A. The SETA Refugee Program provides:

1. Vocational English-as-a-Second Language (VESL) - basic knowledge of the
English language which is necessary to obtain an entry level job.

2. Employment Services (ES) - pre-employment skills training and direct employment
assistance.

3. On-the-Job Training (OJT) - paid training in productive work which provides
knowledge and skills essential to the full and adequate performance of a particular
job.

4. English Language Learner (ELL) Workforce Navigator – enhanced
coordination/integration with the WIOA Title I, SWAJCCs, Adult Education and
Block Grant (AEBG) and WIOA Title II programs, and other workforce development
programs and services

B. Currently, these employment/training programs are being provided by various
refugee service agencies in the community.  The SETA coordinates the service
providers and provides a referral liaison to designate which service provider will
handle the applicant/recipient employment and training services.

II. PURPOSE:

This procedure provides staff with instructions on how to implement the General
Assistance E&T requirements for refugees.

III. GENERAL ASSISTANCE STAFF RESPONSIBILITIES:

A. Referral

1. Telephone the SETA referral liaison at 263-5400 to obtain a referral for the
applicant/recipient to a service provider.

2. If a referral slot is not available, chronologically enter in the case file “No Referral
Available for SETA Refugee Program” (See IV. C below).

3. If referral is available, explain to the recipient the requirement to cooperate with the

DocuSign Envelope ID: 1DF4EEB0-6A74-4B5D-91E5-EB295A6E705A



EXHIBIT 11 

2 
K:\CONTRACT\MASTERS\RSS\EX-11.DOC 

10/1/14 
 

SETA Refugee Program and advise him/her of the consequences for failing to 
meet these requirements. 

 
4. Complete a RS3, Employment - Training Referral/Notification Form.  Give the 

original RS3 and the first two copies to the recipient and retain the third copy 
(goldenrod) in the case file. 

 
5. Instruct the recipient to take the RS3 and report to the service provider on the 

scheduled date and time. 
 

B. Non-Compliance 
 

Failure to report to the service provider, cumulative absences of ten percent (10%) or 
more of the total scheduled class/time/employment activity, refusal of an offer of 
employment, or quitting a job constitute “non-compliance.”  The service provider will 
notify the eligibility worker (hereinafter referred to as “EW”) of the failure to cooperate 
via the RS3A, Client Tracking Form. 

 
1. Upon receipt of the RS3A, the EW will determine if the client has cooperated with 

the requirements.  If not, the EW will impose a sanction for failure to cooperate 
with employment training. 

 
2. To determine good cause for failure to cooperate with the SETA Refugee Program 

upon the recipient’s request, the EW will refer to GAP 700-030A. 
 

3. The EW will complete the RS18, Refugee Services - Information Transmittal when 
a sanction is imposed and/or good cause is granted.  The EW will send the original 
to the service provider and keep the yellow copy in case file. 

 
4. If the recipient requests reactivation of benefits after a sanction and the recipient is 

deemed appropriate for the SETA Refugee Program, the following will apply: 
 

a. The EW will follow the steps in III.A above to refer the recipient to the SETA 
Refugee Program. 

 
b. The EW will advise the recipient that aid will not be reactivated until verification 

is received from the service provider that the appointment with the service 
provider was kept. 

 
C. Interagency Communication - Changes/Discontinuance 

 
1. The service provider will notify the EW via the RS3A within seven (7) days of the 

following changes: 
 

a. Recipient reports an illness lasting one week or more, even when the illness 
has been verified by a doctor. 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 1DF4EEB0-6A74-4B5D-91E5-EB295A6E705A



EXHIBIT 11 

3 
K:\CONTRACT\MASTERS\RSS\EX-11.DOC 

10/1/14 
 

b. Recipient is entered into On-the-Job Training (OJT). 
 

c. Recipient accepts employment. 
 

d. Any other change relevant to the recipient’s cooperative participation in the 
SETA Refugee Program. 

 
2. Upon receipt of the RS3A, the EW shall take the actions outlined below: 

 
a. Illness 

 
(1) Determine if the recipient is still employable/limited employable. 

 
(2) If not, require the recipient to obtain a SC 165. 

 
(3) Notify the service provider of client’s status via the RS18 by completing 

Section I, Client Status Changes. 
 

b. Client is participating in OJT, has obtained employment, or change of 
employment. 

 
(1) Take appropriate action to reduce/discontinue GA. 

 
(2) Send an RS18 to the service provider indicating the recipient is no longer a 

mandatory referral and is exempt because the case was discontinued due 
to OJT/employment. 

 
3. The EW will notify service provider via RS18 - anytime for the following: 

 
a. The GA case is discontinued 

 
b. The GA case is sanctioned. 

 
c. The GA recipient has changes to his/her personal data (i.e., address change). 

 
4. Complete Section II of placement form - Grant Reduction Verification and return it 

to SETA within five (5) days of receipt. 
 
IV. REFERRAL LIAISON RESPONSIBILITIES: 
 

A. Coordinates the availability of open slots for applicant/recipients and maintains a 
daily control of current open slots. 

 
B. Selects an appropriate service provider based upon the applicant/recipient's zip code 

and advises the EW of the service provider. 
 
 C. When a slot is not available: 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 1DF4EEB0-6A74-4B5D-91E5-EB295A6E705A



EXHIBIT 11 

4 
K:\CONTRACT\MASTERS\RSS\EX-11.DOC 

10/1/14 
 

 
1. Places the client on a waiting list. 

 
2. Notifies the client directly with an RS3 when a slot becomes available. 

 
3. Sends the goldenrod copy of RS3 to the EW. 

 
D. Tracks referrals by maintaining a list of telephone contacts from EWs. 

 
E. Provides case-carrying EW codes to service providers. 

 
 V. SERVICE PROVIDER’S RESPONSIBILITIES: 
 

A. Notifies the referral liaison when slots become available. 
 

B. Receive referrals (RS3) from GA recipients. 
 

C. Prior to the client’s enrollment, explains work registration and complaint/grievance 
procedures to the client in a language the client understands. 

 
D. Assesses, pre-tests, certifies and enrolls the client in the service program. 

 
E. Notifies the case-carrying EW of the client enrollment via a copy of the RS3A within 

seven (7) days of the client's enrollment date. 
 

F. Notifies the case-carrying EW of job placement, training completion, and/or any 
changes in employment within seven (7) days of the date of action via the RS3A. 

 
G. Reports the recipient’s non-participation/non-cooperation to the case-carrying EW 

within seven (7) days of non-participation/non-cooperation via the RS3A with all 
pertinent information/documents attached. 
  

DocuSign Envelope ID: 1DF4EEB0-6A74-4B5D-91E5-EB295A6E705A



EXHIBIT 12 

STANDARD CONDITIONS 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 1DF4EEB0-6A74-4B5D-91E5-EB295A6E705A



STANDARD CONDITIONS 
TO 

AGREEMENT FOR DELEGATION OF ACTIVITIES 
UNDER THE 

REFUGEE SUPPORT SERVICES 
OF THE 

REFUGEE RESETTLEMENT PROGRAM 

EXHIBIT 12 

1. Purpose of Standard Conditions
The Sacramento Employment and Training Agency (hereinafter “SETA”) has been

authorized to administer Refugee Support Services (hereinafter “RSS”) funds, formerly

Refugee Social Services by the DSS pursuant to the Refugee Act of 1980 (Public Law

96-212 [8 U.S.C. 1522]), as amended, the Refugee Assistance Amendments of 1982

(Public Law 97-363) and the Refugee Assistance Extension Act of 1986 (Public Law

99-605), a federal grant to the State of California, and Social Services Terms and

Conditions, and is charged with the basic statutory and regulatory responsibilities of a

program administrator of Refugee Support Services funds. The DELEGATE is a

Delegate of SETA under the Immigration and Nationality Act (the “INA”), as amended by

the Refugee Act of 1980 and the Refugee Assistance Amendments of 1982 (Public Law

97-363) and the Refugee Assistance Extension Act of 1986 (Public Law 99-605), and

pursuant to the above-referenced Rule and desires to operate activities under said Acts,

Rule and grant strictly in accordance with said Acts, Rule and grant, and all applicable

federal, state and local laws and administrative regulations, applicable policies of SETA,

and these STANDARD CONDITIONS TO AGREEMENT FOR DELEGATION OF

ACTIVITIES UNDER THE REFUGEE SUPPORT SERVICES GRANT OF THE

REFUGEE RESETTLEMENT PROGRAM (hereinafter the “STANDARD CONDITIONS”).

These STANDARD CONDITIONS set forth the terms and conditions applicable to, and

are incorporated by reference and made a part of, an “Agreement for Delegation of

Activities under the Refugee Support Services Grants of the Refugee Resettlement

Program” (hereinafter the “DELEGATE AGREEMENT”) between SETA and DELEGATE.

1 
K:\CONTRACT\MASTERS\RSS\EX-12.DOC 

8/1/22 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 1DF4EEB0-6A74-4B5D-91E5-EB295A6E705A



EXHIBIT 12 

2 
K:\CONTRACT\MASTERS\RSS\EX-12.DOC 

8/1/22 
 

 

 

 
 
DELEGATE shall provide the services and activities in accordance with the Response to 

Request for Proposals prepared by DELEGATE and separately submitted to SETA and 

hereby incorporated by reference into the DELEGATE AGREEMENT, as well as with 

the: Resolution Authorizing Execution of Delegate Agency Agreement with the 

Sacramento Employment and Training Agency attached to the DELEGATE 

AGREEMENT as Exhibit 1 and incorporated therein by reference; the Program Planning 

Summary attached to the DELEGATE AGREEMENT as Exhibit 2 and incorporated by 

reference therein; the Program Budget and Cost Allocation Plan attached to the 

DELEGATE AGREEMENT as Exhibit 3 and incorporated by reference therein; the 

Special Conditions attached to the DELEGATE AGREEMENT as Exhibit 4 and 

incorporated by reference therein; the Fixed Assets, Information Technology and Low- 

Value Inventory Policies and Procedures attached to the DELEGATE AGREEMENT as 

Exhibit 5 and incorporated by reference therein; the Policy on Advances attached to the 

DELEGATE AGREEMENT as Exhibit 6 and incorporated by reference therein; the 

Insurance Requirements attached to the DELEGATE AGREEMENT as Exhibit 7 and 

incorporated by reference therein; the Nondiscrimination Addendum attached to the 

DELEGATE AGREEMENT as Exhibit 8 and incorporated by reference therein; the 

Policy on Confidentiality of Participant Records attached to the DELEGATE 

AGREEMENT as Exhibit 9 and incorporated by reference therein; the Mandatory Work 

Registration and Sanctioning System attached to the DELEGATE AGREEMENT as 

Exhibit 10 and incorporated by reference therein; the General Assistance Employment 

& Training Requirements for Employable/Limited Employable Refugees attached to the 

DELEGATE AGREEMENT as Exhibit 11 and incorporated by reference therein; the 

Standard Conditions to Agreement for Delegation of Activities Under the Refugee 

Support Services Grants of the Refugee Resettlement Program attached to the 

DELEGATE AGREEMENT as Exhibit 12 and incorporated by reference therein; the 

Refugee Coordinator Letter 96-26 dated October 8, 1996 (the “RCL 96-26”) and the 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 1DF4EEB0-6A74-4B5D-91E5-EB295A6E705A



EXHIBIT 12 

3 
K:\CONTRACT\MASTERS\RSS\EX-12.DOC 

8/1/22 
 

 

 

 
 

Refugee Coordinator Letter 96-26 dated October 8, 1996 (the “RCL 96-26”) and the 

Refugee Coordinator Letter 98-26 dated September 22, 1998 (the “RCL 98-26”) 

furnished to DELEGATE and incorporated herein by reference; and all applicable federal, 

state and local laws, administrative regulations, policies and procedures, and applicable 

SETA policies and procedures. 

 

2. Evidence of Nonprofit Status 

If DELEGATE is not a public agency as defined by applicable law, DELEGATE shall 

submit proof of continuing nonprofit status to SETA. Evidence of nonprofit status, in 

accordance with SETA’s prequalification requirements, shall be on file with SETA prior 

to execution of the DELEGATE AGREEMENT. This evidence must include proof that 

the nonprofit corporation is run by a local board of directors. As used herein, “local 

board of directors” means that a majority of the members of the board of directors must 

reside in Sacramento County. 

3. Term 

The term of the DELEGATE AGREEMENT shall be as set forth on the front page of the 

DELEGATE AGREEMENT. DELEGATE AGREEMENT funds shall not, without 

advance written approval by SETA, be obligated before the beginning of the term or 

after the ending of the term. 

4. Extension of Term 

SETA may, at any time prior to termination of the DELEGATE AGREEMENT, in its sole 

discretion, extend the term of the DELEGATE AGREEMENT for additional one (1) year 

periods, up to a total of two (2) additional years, consistent with funding limitations, on 

the same terms and conditions, except that the amount of funding may be less than or 

greater than the amount identified in the Grant. Should the amount of funding be 

different, then the program and budget modifications shall be made in proportion to the 

change. In addition, SETA may, in its sole discretion, provide for a unilateral 

modification which may provide for changes in DELEGATE’s performance in order to 

comply with applicable federal, state and/or SETA regulations, directives and policies. 

5. Payment/Reporting/Fiscal Management 
SETA shall reimburse DELEGATE for allowable and authorized costs incurred in the 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 1DF4EEB0-6A74-4B5D-91E5-EB295A6E705A



EXHIBIT 12 

4 
K:\CONTRACT\MASTERS\RSS\EX-12.DOC 

8/1/22 
 

 

 

 
 
performance of the DELEGATE AGREEMENT in accordance with the following: 

(a) Total Reimbursement 

Total reimbursement under the DELEGATE AGREEMENT shall not exceed the 

Award Amount set forth on the front page of the DELEGATE AGREEMENT. 

(b) Reports 

Reimbursement of costs incurred in the performance of the DELEGATE 

AGREEMENT shall be based on the timely filing of required reports by 

DELEGATE. DELEGATE shall be responsible for filing monthly reports with 

SETA no later than ten (10) calendar days after the end of each month during the 

term of the DELEGATE AGREEMENT. SETA may require DELEGATE to submit 

other and additional reports or may require DELEGATE to submit reports on a 

more frequent basis. These reports shall be submitted on forms provided by 

SETA or in the form required by SETA, and shall contain all data and information 

deemed necessary by SETA including, but not limited to, information or data 

concerning both quality and quantity of program performance setting forth the 

extent to which the program performance goals and standards have been met. 

Continued or repeated failure to submit timely and/or complete reports may result 

in termination of the DELEGATE AGREEMENT. 

(c) Final Report 

All obligations incurred in the performance of the DELEGATE AGREEMENT 

must be reported to SETA within thirty (30) calendar days following the 

termination of the DELEGATE AGREEMENT to be binding upon SETA for 

reimbursement. Failure to timely report such obligations or debts shall be the 

liability solely of DELEGATE. 

(d) Authorized, Reimbursable, and Allowable Costs 

Authorized, reimbursable, and allowable costs shall be determined by SETA in 

accordance with the Program Budget and Cost Allocation Plan attached to the 

DELEGATE AGREEMENT as Exhibit 3 and incorporated therein by reference. 

Supplies, materials, equipment or services purchased with DELEGATE 

AGREEMENT funds shall be used solely for the purposes allowed under the 

DELEGATE AGREEMENT.  In order to be eligible for reimbursement under the 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 1DF4EEB0-6A74-4B5D-91E5-EB295A6E705A



EXHIBIT 12 

5 
K:\CONTRACT\MASTERS\RSS\EX-12.DOC 

8/1/22 
 

 

 

 
 

DELEGATE AGREEMENT, performance and all expenditures must be consistent 

with said Program Budget and Cost Allocation Plan, the DELEGATE 

AGREEMENT and all applicable laws and regulations, including SETA policies 

and procedures. Expenditures of DELEGATE must be commensurate with the 

service provided and shall not exceed allowable budget amounts without a 

formally-approved budget modification. SETA reserves the right, in its sole 

discretion, to adjust DELEGATE’s claims if such claims are not commensurate 

with the services rendered. If DELEGATE’s claims exceed the level of cost per 

client served, they may be subject to a reduction. DELEGATE shall not use 

funding provided pursuant to the DELEGATE AGREEMENT to offset funding 

otherwise available from the State of California or SETA in DELEGATE’s 

operations of Refugee Resettlement social service programs, nor shall such 

funds be used to duplicate facilities or services available in Sacramento County 

(with or without reimbursement) from federal, state or local sources without the 

express written approval of SETA. 

(e) Procurement 

DELEGATE, in its procurement activities under the DELEGATE AGREEMENT, 

shall comply with DSS procurement regulations (Manual of Policies and 

Procedures (“MPP”) Chapters 23-600 through 23-650), federal procurement 

regulations of the Department of Health and Human Services (HHS) contained in 

45 CFR Part 75.327 through 75.335, State of California Targeted Assistance 

Guidelines, California Welfare and Institutions Code Section 13277(b), as well 

as other applicable federal, DSS and SETA guidelines, procedures and policies. 

By signing the DELEGATE AGREEMENT, DELEGATE agrees to assume all 

responsibility for such procurement activities and agrees to indemnify and hold 

SETA harmless from any audit exceptions relative to a violation by DELEGATE 

of any procurement requirement. 

(1) Contracts for Professional Services - Pursuant to the provisions of the 

“Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles and Audit 

Requirements for HHS Awards (HHS Super Circular – 45 CFR Part 75), 

costs of professional services rendered by members of a particular 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 1DF4EEB0-6A74-4B5D-91E5-EB295A6E705A



EXHIBIT 12 

6 
K:\CONTRACT\MASTERS\RSS\EX-12.DOC 

8/1/22 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(f) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(g) 

 
profession or persons who possess a special skill, who are not employees 

of DELEGATE and who perform services on an intermittent or occasional 

basis, are allowable when reasonable in relation to the services rendered. 

(2) Fixed Assets - Expenditures for fixed assets shall be approved by SETA 

prior to the purchase of such fixed assets by DELEGATE. If fixed assets 

are approved in the annual budget, no further approvals are required. If 

fixed assets are not included in the approved annual budget, DELEGATE 

shall obtain written approval of SETA prior to purchasing the fixed assets. 

If fixed assets are to be used for more than the Targeted Assistance 

program, the cost shall be allocated accordingly. For the purpose of the 

DELEGATE AGREEMENT, fixed assets shall be defined in accordance 

with SETA's Fixed Assets, Information Technology and Low-Value 

Inventory Policies and Procedures, attached as Exhibit 5 to the DELEGATE 

AGREEMENT and incorporated therein by reference. 

Separate Accounting/Advances 

DELEGATE shall keep separate accountings for all Refugee Employment 

Support Services funds provided under the DELEGATE AGREEMENT, and such 

funds shall not be commingled nor shall any part of any funds advanced be 

commingled with other funds of  DELEGATE. Advance payments shall be made 

in accordance with SETA’s Policy on Advances attached to the DELEGATE 

AGREEMENT as Exhibit 6 and incorporated therein by reference. All Refugee 

Employment Social Services funds must be deposited in a bank account at a 

financial institution insured by the FDIC and any balance exceeding the FDIC 

coverage must be collaterally secured.  SETA shall have a lien upon all funds in 

said account which shall be paramount to all other liens, including, but not limited 

to, liens of other governmental agencies or by the direction of a trustee in 

bankruptcy. 

Minority Businesses 

DELEGATE acknowledges that consistent with the national and state goal of 

expanding the opportunities for minority business enterprises, DELEGATE and 

its subcontractors are encouraged to use minority-owned banks (banks which are 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 1DF4EEB0-6A74-4B5D-91E5-EB295A6E705A



EXHIBIT 12 

7 
K:\CONTRACT\MASTERS\RSS\EX-12.DOC 

8/1/22 
 

 

 

 
 

owned at least fifty percent (50%) by minority group members). A list of minority- 

owned banks can be obtained from the Minority Business Development Agency, 

Department of Commerce, Washington, D.C. 20230. 

(h) Claim Funds 

Approved claims shall be paid only from funds granted to SETA by the DSS 

pursuant to Refugee Coordinator Letter 98-26, and DELEGATE, by signing the 

DELEGATE AGREEMENT, waives any claim it may have against any other 

funds of SETA. The DELEGATE AGREEMENT is valid and enforceable only if 

sufficient funds are made available to SETA by the DSS for the purpose of 

conducting the program identified in the DELEGATE AGREEMENT. Any 

expenditures or obligations by DELEGATE made prior to the commencement 

date of the term of SETA’s Sacramento County Refugee Services Plan with the 

DSS will not be accepted by SETA for reimbursement and SETA shall have no 

obligation to DELEGATE regarding these claims or any costs or debts incurred 

by DELEGATE prior to such commencement date. 

(i) Close-Out 

DELEGATE agrees to cooperate fully with SETA to ensure that the program 

authorized in the DELEGATE AGREEMENT is “closed-out” within thirty (30) 

calendar days of the termination of the DELEGATE AGREEMENT. Full 

cooperation shall require DELEGATE to complete and to furnish to SETA a 

number of documents which SETA shall specify. All unexpended funds shall 

revert to SETA. 

(j) Travel and Per Diem Costs 

DELEGATE shall not be reimbursed for any travel or per diem costs at rates that 

exceed those paid to SETA employees or to non-represented State of California 

employees (see Title 2 California Code of Regulations Section 599.619), 

whichever is lower. Out-of-state travel expenses are not reimbursable without 

prior authorization. Prior written authorization may be obtained by entering 

estimated out-of-state travel in the Program Budget and Cost Allocation Plan. 

Out-of-state travel expenses which are not specifically approved are not 

allowable. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 1DF4EEB0-6A74-4B5D-91E5-EB295A6E705A



EXHIBIT 12 

8 
K:\CONTRACT\MASTERS\RSS\EX-12.DOC 

8/1/22 
 

 

 

 
 
6. Accounting, Records, Reports, Audit, Inspection 

(a) Establishment and Maintenance of Records 

(1) All records maintained by DELEGATE shall meet the HHS requirements 

contained in the HHS Super Circular (45 CFR Part 75). 

(2) DELEGATE shall establish such fiscal controls, recordkeeping and 

accounting procedures as required by state and federal regulations and as 

may be deemed necessary by SETA to ensure the proper disbursal of, 

and accounting for, funds paid to DELEGATE pursuant to the DELEGATE 

AGREEMENT. DELEGATE shall be subject to the cost standards 

contained in the HHS Super Circular (45 CFR Part 75). 

DELEGATE shall maintain an adequate system of accounting in 

accordance with all applicable regulations and in accordance with 

generally accepted principles and procedures of the accounting profession 

so that a clear audit trail can be established which proves that the 

expenditure of funds under the DELEGATE AGREEMENT is in 

accordance with the terms of the DELEGATE AGREEMENT, applicable 

federal and state regulations and circulars, and SETA policies and 

procedures. If DELEGATE is a public body, funds shall be distributed 

through the chief fiscal officer who shall be familiar with the applicable 

regulations. 

(3) DELEGATE agrees to maintain a financial management system that 

provides for the following: 

(i) Accurate, current and complete disclosure of the financial status of 

the DELEGATE AGREEMENT; 

(ii) Records that identify adequately the source and application of funds 

for state and federally-supported activities. These records shall 

contain information pertaining to state and federally-funded 

awards, authorizations, obligations, unobligated balances, assets, 

liabilities, income and expenditures; 

(iii) Effective control over and accountability for all funds, property and 

other assets; 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 1DF4EEB0-6A74-4B5D-91E5-EB295A6E705A



EXHIBIT 12 

9 
K:\CONTRACT\MASTERS\RSS\EX-12.DOC 

8/1/22 
 

 

 

 
 

(iv) Procedures prohibiting volunteers from handling funds or fiscally 

significant documents received from or submitted to SETA; 

(v) A comparison of actual expenditures with budgeted amounts and 

the relationship of specific performance and costs incurred; 

(vi) Procedures for determining reasonableness, allowability and 

allocability of costs; 

(vii) Accounting records that are supported by source documentation; 

and, 

(viii) A systematic method to assure timely and appropriate resolution of 

audit findings and recommendations. 

(4) SETA reserves the right to review services, service levels and billing 

procedures as these impact charges against the DELEGATE 

AGREEMENT. 

(5) Upon request from SETA, DELEGATE shall submit a certificate prepared 

by an independent accountant stating that DELEGATE’s accounting 

system and internal controls are adequate to record and safeguard the 

assets entrusted to DELEGATE. 

(b) Income Generation 

DELEGATE shall timely report to SETA the source and amount of any income 

generated as a result of services, activities and/or disposition of  equipment funded 

under the DELEGATE AGREEMENT (e.g., proceeds from the sale of 

handcrafts) and shall abide by SETA directives regarding the use of such income. 

DELEGATE shall not expend DELEGATE AGREEMENT-related income unless 

or until authorized, in writing, by SETA. 

(c) Additional Funding 

DELEGATE shall notify SETA, in writing, within ten (10) calendar days of receipt 

of any additional funding that materially affects the cost and/or quality of the 

program. Upon receipt of such written notification, SETA, in its sole discretion, 

may reduce payment to DELEGATE upon redetermination of the appropriateness 

of the reimbursement of costs under the DELEGATE AGREEMENT. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 1DF4EEB0-6A74-4B5D-91E5-EB295A6E705A



EXHIBIT 12 

10 
K:\CONTRACT\MASTERS\RSS\EX-12.DOC 

8/1/22 
 

 

 

 
 
(d) Reports 

DELEGATE shall maintain such program and fiscal records and shall make such 

program and fiscal reports as may be required by SETA. DELEGATE shall 

comply with procedures established by SETA regarding timely completion and 

submission of required reports. 

(e) Preparation of Records and Examination of Records and Facilities 

DELEGATE shall prepare and maintain records required by SETA which relate to 

its performance under the DELEGATE AGREEMENT, specifically including, but 

not limited to, records pertaining to program activities, service delivery and fiscal 

and administrative controls. At any reasonable time or during normal business 

hours, SETA, representatives of HHS, the Office of Inspector General (the “OIG”), 

the State of California (including the Bureau of State Audits, the State 

Controller’s Office and the DSS), or their duly authorized representatives shall 

have the right of access to any books, documents, papers, computer records, or 

other records of DELEGATE and all subcontractors that are pertinent to the 

DELEGATE AGREEMENT, in order to conduct audits and examinations, and to 

make excerpts, transcripts, and photocopies of such documents on or off the 

premises of DELEGATE. This right also includes timely and reasonable access 

to DELEGATE and all subcontractor personnel for the purpose of interview and 

discussion related to such documents. This right of access shall continue as 

long as the records are retained but, in no event, be less than the required 

retention period set forth below. SETA shall have the further right to observe, 

monitor, evaluate and examine DELEGATE’s program operation and its offices 

and facilities utilized in the performance of the DELEGATE AGREEMENT. 

(f) Client Files 

DELEGATE and all subcontractors shall maintain individual client case files and 

make these files available to and open for inspection by appropriate SETA, DSS 

and DHHS representatives. 

(g) Preservation of Records 

DELEGATE shall preserve and make available all of its records related to the 

DELEGATE AGREEMENT and any extension or renewal thereof, including, but 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 1DF4EEB0-6A74-4B5D-91E5-EB295A6E705A



EXHIBIT 12 

11 
K:\CONTRACT\MASTERS\RSS\EX-12.DOC 

8/1/22 
 

 

 

 
 

not limited to, all financial, statistical, property and participant records and 

supporting documentation until the expiration of such period of time as required 

by applicable law or notification from SETA, but in no event less than the expiration 

of three (3) years from the later of: 

(1) The date of final payment to DELEGATE under the DELEGATE 

AGREEMENT and any extension or renewal thereof and all other pending 

matters are closed; 

(2) The end of the fiscal year during which the DELEGATE AGREEMENT or 

any extension or renewal thereof is terminated; or, 

(3) The completion and finalization of all pending federal, state and SETA 

audits for the fiscal year during which the DELEGATE AGREEMENT is 

terminated. 

If, at the end of three (3) years, there is ongoing litigation, or any claim, or an 

audit has not been resolved, DELEGATE shall retain the records until final 

resolution. If the DELEGATE AGREEMENT is terminated or if DELEGATE is not 

refunded in subsequent years, this record retention requirement remains 

applicable. At SETA’s sole option, some or all of the records may be ordered 

transferred to SETA. To the extent that such records are transferred to SETA, 

this retention requirement is not applicable to DELEGATE. All records pertaining 

to the DELEGATE AGREEMENT shall be maintained at all times within the State 

of California. In the event the records pertaining to  the  DELEGATE AGREEMENT 

are maintained outside Sacramento County, California, DELEGATE shall, at its 

sole cost, make said records available at SETA’s principal place of business 

within five (5) working days after receipt of written notice from SETA. 

(h) Documentation of Costs 

All costs shall be supported by properly propagated and executed payrolls, time 

records, invoices, contracts, vouchers or other official documentation evidencing 

in proper detail the nature and propriety of the charge. All checks, payroll and 

accounting documents, pertaining in whole or in part to the DELEGATE 

AGREEMENT, shall be clearly identified and readily accessible. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 1DF4EEB0-6A74-4B5D-91E5-EB295A6E705A



EXHIBIT 12 

12 
K:\CONTRACT\MASTERS\RSS\EX-12.DOC 

8/1/22 
 

 

 

 
 
(i) Support of Salaries and Wages 

Charges to the program for salaries and wages of DELEGATE’s employees shall 

be based upon documented payrolls approved by a responsible official of 

DELEGATE. The distribution of salaries and wages must be supported by 

personnel activity reports as specified herein. Reports reflecting the distribution 

of activity of each employee must be maintained for all staff members, 

professional and nonprofessional, whose compensation is charged, in whole or in 

part, directly to the DELEGATE AGREEMENT. Reports maintained by 

DELEGATE to satisfy these requirements shall meet the following standards: 

(1) The reports shall reflect an after-the-fact determination of the actual activity 

of each employee. Budget estimates do not qualify as support for charges 

to the program. 

(2) Each report shall account for the total activity for which employees are 

compensated and which is required in fulfillment of their obligations to 

DELEGATE. 

(3) The reports shall be signed by the individual employee and the 

responsible supervisor having first-hand knowledge of the activities 

performed by the employee, and state that the distribution of activity 

represents a reasonable portrayal of the actual work performed by the 

employee during the periods covered by the reports. 

 

(4) The reports shall be prepared at least monthly and shall coincide with the 

appropriate reporting period. 

(5) Charges for the salaries and wages of nonprofessional employees, in 

addition to the supporting documentation described above, shall also be 

supported by records indicating the total number of hours worked each 

day, maintained in accordance with Department of Labor regulations 

implementing the Fair Labor Standards Act. For the purpose of the 

DELEGATE AGREEMENT, the term “nonprofessional” employee shall 

have the same meaning as “nonexempt” employee under the Fair Labor 

Standards Act. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 1DF4EEB0-6A74-4B5D-91E5-EB295A6E705A



EXHIBIT 12 

13 
K:\CONTRACT\MASTERS\RSS\EX-12.DOC 

8/1/22 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
(j) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(k) 

 
(6) Salaries and wages shall be paid in accordance with the Program Budget 

and Cost Allocation Plan which is attached to the DELEGATE 

AGREEMENT as Exhibit 3 and incorporated therein by reference. 

Disallowed Costs 

DELEGATE will be liable for and will repay to SETA any amounts expended 

under the DELEGATE AGREEMENT found not to be in accordance with the 

statutes, rules and regulations applicable to Refugee Support Services, and 

the provisions of the DELEGATE AGREEMENT including, but not limited to, 

disallowed costs. Such repayment will be from funds (non-federal),  other 

than  Refugee Support Services funds received pursuant to the DELEGATE 

AGREEMENT. 

Audit and Monitoring 

DELEGATE shall comply with the audit requirements of the HHS Super 

Circular (45 CFR Part 75).  DELEGATE is responsible for procurement of an 

annual audit of funds provided by SETA under the DELEGATE AGREEMENT 

as specified in the Super Circular.  All agreements entered into by DELEGATE 

with audit firms for purposes of conducting independent audits under 

the DELEGATE AGREEMENT shall contain a clause permitting SETA, the 

federal government and the State of California, or their designees, access to 

the working papers of said audit firm(s).  The cost of the final audit may be 

paid from a portion of the funds provided by the DELEGATE AGREEMENT if 

such payment is authorized by  the  Super  Circular. Said  audit  shall  be 

conducted  in  accordance  with generally accepted accounting principles, 

generally accepted auditing standards and  SETA  requirements. Audited 

financial  statements  shall  be  prepared  in accordance with generally 

accepted accounting principles promulgated by the American Institute of 

Certified Public Accountants (AICPA); those audit standards set forth in the 

publication, Government Auditing Standards, July 2007 Revision, issued by the 

Comptroller General of the United States as they apply to financial and 

compliance audits; and any other applicable state and federal guidelines.  In 

addition, the audit shall break out and report contracts by both contract and grant 

year,  rather  than  just  by  contract,  in  the  Schedule  of  Federal  Financial 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 1DF4EEB0-6A74-4B5D-91E5-EB295A6E705A



EXHIBIT 12 

14 
K:\CONTRACT\MASTERS\RSS\EX-12.DOC 

8/1/22 
 

 

 

 
 

Assistance. The report shall show receipt and expenditure of the funds provided 

under the DELEGATE AGREEMENT. DELEGATE shall provide SETA one (1) 

copy of the audit report no later than ninety (90) calendar days after the end of 

DELEGATE’s fiscal year.  Said report shall be sent to: 

Fiscal Department Chief 

Sacramento Employment and Training Agency 

925 Del Paso Blvd. 

Sacramento, CA 95815 

Additionally, the DHHS, the Office of Inspector General, the Comptroller General 

of the United States, the State of California (including the Bureau of State Audits, 

the State Controller's Office and the DSS) and SETA, or their individual 

designees, shall have the right to monitor and audit DELEGATE and all 

subcontractors providing services under the DELEGATE AGREEMENT through 

on-site inspections and audits and other applicable means the state, the bureau, 

the federal government or SETA determine necessary. Said designee may be 

an independent auditor. Such monitoring and audits shall be conducted at the 

discretion of any one of the above-identified entities according to all applicable 

laws and regulations. DELEGATE agrees to accept responsibility for receiving, 

replying to and/or complying with any audit exceptions by appropriate state and 

federal audit agencies directly related to provisions of the DELEGATE 

AGREEMENT. DELEGATE shall be liable to SETA for the full amount of SETA’s 

liability to the State of California or federal government resulting from any audit 

exceptions relating to DELEGATE’s performance under the DELEGATE 

AGREEMENT. 

7. Deobligation of Funds 

Should DELEGATE fail to timely meet the performance standards as set forth in the 

DELEGATE AGREEMENT (specifically including the Response to the Request for 

Proposals and the Program Planning Summary incorporated) for the operation of the 

program identified in the DELEGATE AGREEMENT, SETA may, at any time and in its 

sole discretion, deobligate or otherwise reduce or withdraw funds allocated to 

DELEGATE pursuant to the DELEGATE AGREEMENT or, in SETA’s sole discretion, 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 1DF4EEB0-6A74-4B5D-91E5-EB295A6E705A



EXHIBIT 12 

15 
K:\CONTRACT\MASTERS\RSS\EX-12.DOC 

8/1/22 
 

 

 

 
 

terminate the DELEGATE AGREEMENT. Should the federal or state government 

reduce funding to SETA, SETA may, notwithstanding any other provision of the 

DELEGATE AGREEMENT, at any time and in its sole discretion, deobligate or 

otherwise reduce or withdraw funds allocated to DELEGATE pursuant to the 

DELEGATE AGREEMENT or, in SETA’s sole discretion, terminate the DELEGATE 

AGREEMENT. In the event of deobligation, SETA may unilaterally amend the 

DELEGATE AGREEMENT identifying the deobligation. SETA shall have no liability to 

DELEGATE based upon said deobligation or termination, specifically including, but not 

limited to, any liability for DELEGATE’s consequential damages. 

8. Suspension or Disallowance of Payments/Suspension of Performance 

SETA may at any time elect, in its sole discretion and without any liability to 

DELEGATE, including, but not limited to, liability for consequential damages, and 

notwithstanding any other provision of the DELEGATE AGREEMENT, to suspend or 

disallow payment to DELEGATE in whole or in part under the DELEGATE AGREEMENT, 

and/or to suspend performance under the DELEGATE AGREEMENT, in the event of any 

of the following occurrences: 

(a) If DELEGATE shall have made any misrepresentation of any nature with respect 

to any information or data furnished to SETA in connection with the DELEGATE 

AGREEMENT; 

(b) If DELEGATE submits to SETA any reports which are incorrect or incomplete in 

any material respect and/or which are not submitted according to deadlines; 

(c) If DELEGATE incurs unreasonable administrative costs in the conduct of its 

activities and program; 

(d) If DELEGATE maintains a pattern of discrimination; 

(e) If DELEGATE is in default of any of the provisions of the DELEGATE 

AGREEMENT or violates any of the covenants, assurances, stipulations or 

conditions of the DELEGATE AGREEMENT; 

(f) If DELEGATE shall fail, for any reason, to fulfill in a timely, proper, and 

reasonable manner its obligations under the DELEGATE AGREEMENT; 

(g) If DELEGATE dissolves, becomes insolvent, has an assignment for the benefit of 

creditors, commences a bankruptcy or insolvency proceeding, or has a receiver 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 1DF4EEB0-6A74-4B5D-91E5-EB295A6E705A



EXHIBIT 12 

16 
K:\CONTRACT\MASTERS\RSS\EX-12.DOC 

8/1/22 
 

 

 

 
 

appointed for its property; 

(h) If the DSS reduces funding to SETA below the amount in existence at the time 

the parties entered into the DELEGATE AGREEMENT; 

(i) If DELEGATE utilizes funds provided under the DELEGATE AGREEMENT 

ineffectively or improperly; 

(j) If DELEGATE fails to comply with applicable federal, state and local laws, 

administrative regulations, executive orders or SETA policies and procedures; 

(k) If the DSS suspends its obligations between the DSS and SETA (should this 

occur and SETA is unable to give DELEGATE five (5) calendar days’ notice, 

SETA shall provide DELEGATE reasonable notice under the prevailing 

circumstances); or 

(l) If DELEGATE is unable or unwilling to comply with any additional conditions as 

may be lawfully applied by the federal or state government or SETA. 

Any obligations incurred by DELEGATE during the suspension period will not be allowed 

unless expressly authorized by SETA in the written notice of suspension or in a specific 

written authorization document. 

9. Termination of DELEGATE AGREEMENT 

(a) For Cause 

SETA may terminate the DELEGATE AGREEMENT in the following instances by 

giving written notice to DELEGATE at least five (5) calendar days prior to the 

effective termination date stated in the notice: 

(1) If DELEGATE shall have made any misrepresentation of any nature with 

respect to any information or data furnished to SETA in connection with 

the DELEGATE AGREEMENT; 

(2) If DELEGATE submits to SETA any reports which are incorrect or 

incomplete in any material respect and/or which are not submitted 

according to deadlines; 

(3) If DELEGATE incurs unreasonable administrative costs in the conduct of 

its activities and program; 

(4) If DELEGATE maintains a pattern of discrimination; 

(5) If DELEGATE is in default of any of the provisions of the DELEGATE 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 1DF4EEB0-6A74-4B5D-91E5-EB295A6E705A



EXHIBIT 12 

17 
K:\CONTRACT\MASTERS\RSS\EX-12.DOC 

8/1/22 
 

 

 

 
 

AGREEMENT or violates any of the covenants, assurances, stipulations, 

or conditions of the DELEGATE AGREEMENT; 

(6) If DELEGATE shall fail, for any reason, to fulfill in a timely, proper, and 

reasonable manner its obligations under the DELEGATE AGREEMENT; 

(7) If DELEGATE dissolves, becomes insolvent, has an assignment for the 

benefit of creditors, commences a bankruptcy or insolvency proceeding, or 

has a receiver appointed for its property; 

(8) If the DSS reduces funding to SETA below the amount in existence at the 

time the parties entered into the DELEGATE AGREEMENT; 

(9) If DELEGATE utilizes funds provided under the DELEGATE AGREEMENT 

ineffectively or improperly; 

(10) If DELEGATE fails to comply with applicable federal, state and local laws, 

administrative regulations, executive orders or SETA policies and 

procedures; 

(11) If the federal or state government suspends or terminates funding to SETA 

under the Refugee Support Services Grant (should this occur and SETA is 

unable  to  give  DELEGATE  five  (5)  calendar  days’  notice,  SETA  shall 

provide DELEGATE reasonable notice under the prevailing 

circumstances); 

(12) If DELEGATE, consistent with Section 106(g) of the Trafficking Victims 

Protection Act of  2000, as amended (22 U.S.C. § 7104), engages in 

severe forms of trafficking in persons or has procured a commercial sex 

act during the period of time that the DELEGATE AGREEMENT is in 

effect, or uses forced labor in the performance of the DELEGATE 

AGREEMENT; or, 

(13) If DELEGATE is unable or unwilling to comply with any additional 

conditions as may be lawfully applied by the federal or state government 

or SETA. 

(b) For Convenience 

SETA may terminate the DELEGATE AGREEMENT for convenience at any time 

by giving written notice to DELEGATE of such termination and specifying the 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 1DF4EEB0-6A74-4B5D-91E5-EB295A6E705A



EXHIBIT 12 

18 
K:\CONTRACT\MASTERS\RSS\EX-12.DOC 

8/1/22 
 

 

 

 
 

effective date thereof, at least fifteen (15) calendar days before the effective date 

of such termination. 

(c) Payment Upon Termination 

If the DELEGATE AGREEMENT is terminated by SETA, as provided in this 

Paragraph 9, DELEGATE, as its sole remedy, shall be paid for costs actually 

incurred to the date of termination, less the amount of any advance payment 

previously made and not accounted for. Upon termination of the DELEGATE 

AGREEMENT, DELEGATE shall not incur any obligations after the effective date 

of such termination, unless expressly authorized by SETA, in writing, in the 

notice of termination. SETA shall not be liable for any claims of DELEGATE for 

consequential damages. In the event of termination, all property and finished or 

unfinished documents, data, studies and reports purchased or prepared by 

DELEGATE under the DELEGATE AGREEMENT shall, at the option of SETA, 

become the property of SETA or be otherwise disposed of as directed by SETA. 

Notwithstanding the above, DELEGATE shall not be released of liability by SETA 

for damages sustained by SETA by virtue of any breach of the DELEGATE 

AGREEMENT by DELEGATE, including SETA liability for funds wrongfully or 

misspent by DELEGATE, disallowed costs, or audit exceptions under the 

DELEGATE AGREEMENT, and SETA may withhold any payment or 

reimbursement to DELEGATE for purposes of setoff until such time as the exact 

amount of damages due SETA from DELEGATE is agreed upon or otherwise 

determined. Neither this paragraph, nor any other provision of the DELEGATE 

AGREEMENT, shall release DELEGATE from its liability to SETA for wrongfully 

or misspent funds or disallowed costs should the amount of those wrongfully or 

misspent funds or disallowed costs exceed the amount of any payment or 

reimbursement due DELEGATE. 

10. Procedures for Corrective Action 

(a) Whenever SETA has reasonable cause to believe that DELEGATE has failed to 

comply with any provision of the DELEGATE AGREEMENT, SETA policies or 

procedures, and/or applicable federal, state and local laws, executive orders or 

administrative regulations, SETA may, in lieu of immediately giving notice of 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 1DF4EEB0-6A74-4B5D-91E5-EB295A6E705A



EXHIBIT 12 

K:\CONTRACT\MASTERS\RSS\EX-12.DOC 
8/1/22 

 

 

 
 

termination of the DELEGATE AGREEMENT pursuant to the provisions of 

Paragraph 9, order corrective action and disallow, suspend or delay any and all 

payments under the DELEGATE AGREEMENT, and/or suspend performance 

under the DELEGATE AGREEMENT, until such failure is rectified. 

(b) If corrective action is ordered, SETA shall give DELEGATE reasonable written 

notice (generally no more than thirty (30) calendar days) setting forth the nature 

of DELEGATE’s noncompliance and identifying a procedure whereby 

DELEGATE and its officers or responsible representative may have an 

opportunity to meet with SETA for the purpose of considering the nature of 

corrective action. 

(c) An order for corrective action shall be in writing and shall set forth specific 

directions for corrective action, including a detailed timetable for implementing 

such directions and for reporting to SETA as to the implementation process. 

(d) SETA may suspend or disallow payments to DELEGATE and/or suspend 

performance in accordance with Paragraph 9 above during said period of 

corrective action. 

(e) If DELEGATE shall fail to implement an order for corrective action, or if it shall fail 

to do so within the timetable set for implementation, SETA shall recommend to 

SETA’s Governing Board that the DELEGATE AGREEMENT be terminated in 

accordance with the provisions of Paragraph 9 above. 

(f) Notwithstanding the provisions of this Paragraph 10, SETA shall immediately 

suspend the payment of funds to DELEGATE when SETA has reasonable cause 

to believe that DELEGATE has misspent or claimed funds fraudulently and shall 

cause to be served upon DELEGATE notice of termination pursuant to 

Paragraph 9 above. 

11. Property 

(a) Any equipment, materials, supplies or property of any kind acquired by 

DELEGATE pursuant to the DELEGATE AGREEMENT shall be subject to all 

rules, procedures and restrictions as set forth in all applicable federal, state and 

local laws and administrative regulations, including SETA policies and 

procedures, and any other applicable procedures or regulations that may be 
 
 

19 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 1DF4EEB0-6A74-4B5D-91E5-EB295A6E705A



EXHIBIT 12 

K:\CONTRACT\MASTERS\RSS\EX-12.DOC 
8/1/22 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(b) 

 
established by the federal government, the State of California and/or SETA. Said 

property shall be used solely for purposes of fulfilling DELEGATE’s obligations 

under the DELEGATE AGREEMENT unless otherwise approved in writing 

by SETA. If personal property is used for the Targeted Assistance program, 

the Refugee Support Services program and any other programs, the cost 

shall be allocated pro rata among the programs utilizing such property. All 

property purchased in whole or in part with funds provided pursuant to the 

DELEGATE AGREEMENT  must  be  purchased  in  accordance  with  the 

provisions  of  the DELEGATE AGREEMENT, including the Program Budget 

and Cost Allocation Plan, attached thereto as Exhibit 3 and incorporated 

therein by reference.  Title to all such equipment, materials, supplies or property 

of any kind and all finished or  unfinished  documents,  data,  records,  studies 

and  reports  purchased  or prepared with funds provided under the 

DELEGATE AGREEMENT shall vest in SETA and shall, at SETA’s request 

and discretion, be returned to SETA upon termination  of  the  DELEGATE 

AGREEMENT. At  the  time  of  purchase  of equipment  under  the  terms 

hereto,  DELEGATE  shall  submit  a  list  of  such equipment in accordance with 

instructions from SETA. 

Prior authorization in writing by SETA is required before DELEGATE shall be 

reimbursed for any purchase order or subcontract exceeding One Thousand 

Dollars ($1,000) for any articles, supplies, equipment or services or for any fee, 

or other payment, for consultation of One Hundred Fifty Dollars ($150) or more 

per day. DELEGATE must provide in its request for authorization all particulars 

necessary for evaluation of the necessity or desirability of incurring such cost, 

and as to the reasonableness of the price or cost. For purchase of any item 

exceeding such minimum dollar amount, three (3) competitive quotations 

must be submitted with the request, or the absence of bidding must be 

adequately justified.  DELEGATE must include in a written agreement with the 

vendor, or the subcontractor, the following clause:  “(Name of Vendor or 

Subcontractor) agrees to maintain and preserve, until three (3) years after 

termination of (Delegate’s Name)’s  agreement  with  the  Sacramento 

Employment  and  Training  Agency (SETA), and to permit SETA and/or the 

State of California or any of the2ir0 duly 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 1DF4EEB0-6A74-4B5D-91E5-EB295A6E705A



EXHIBIT 12 

21 
K:\CONTRACT\MASTERS\RSS\EX-12.DOC 

8/1/22 
 

 

 

 
 

authorized representatives to have access to and the right to examine and audit 

any pertinent books, documents, papers and records of (Name of Vendor or 

Subcontractor) related to this (purchase order) or (subcontract).” The terms 

“purchase order” and “subcontract,” as used in this paragraph only, exclude: (a) 

purchase orders not exceeding One Thousand Dollars ($1,000); and (b) 

subcontracts or purchase orders for public utility services at rates established for 

uniform applicability to the general public. 

(c) Title to intangible personal property produced or acquired pursuant to the 

DELEGATE AGREEMENT, including patents and copyrights, shall vest and be 

held in accordance with applicable federal, state and local laws and administrative 

regulations, including SETA policies and procedures. DELEGATE shall 

immediately report to SETA any discovery or invention which arises or is 

developed in the performance of or under the DELEGATE AGREEMENT. 

(d) DELEGATE shall exercise due care in the use, maintenance, protection and 

preservation of SETA-owned property in DELEGATE’s possession or any other 

property purchased by DELEGATE with funds provided under the DELEGATE 

AGREEMENT. Such care shall include insurance coverage against loss or 

damage to such property. 

(e) Funds provided under the DELEGATE AGREEMENT shall not be used to 

purchase real property, and any acquisition (either by purchase or rental) of 

personal property the value of which is more than Five Hundred Dollars ($500) 

per unit and which has a useful life of more than two (2) years shall have the 

prior written approval of SETA. 

(f) Except as otherwise provided in the DELEGATE AGREEMENT or directed in 

writing by SETA, DELEGATE shall not affix any restrictive markings upon any 

property, and if such markings are affixed, SETA shall have the right at any time 

to modify, remove, obliterate or ignore such markings. 

12. License for Use 

SETA, the federal government and the State of California shall have a royalty-free, 

nonexclusive and irrevocable license to publish, translate or use, now or hereafter, all 

material subject to copyright developed under the DELEGATE AGREEMENT including 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 1DF4EEB0-6A74-4B5D-91E5-EB295A6E705A



EXHIBIT 12 

22 
K:\CONTRACT\MASTERS\RSS\EX-12.DOC 

8/1/22 
 

 

 

 
 

those covered by copyright. SETA reserves the right to use and reproduce all reports 

and data produced and delivered pursuant to the DELEGATE AGREEMENT and 

reserves the right to authorize others to use and reproduce such materials. Any other 

provision of the DELEGATE AGREEMENT notwithstanding, DELEGATE shall grant to 

SETA, the federal government and the State of California a royalty-free, nonexclusive 

and irrevocable license throughout the world, for government purposes, to publish, 

translate, reproduce, deliver, perform, dispose of, and to authorize others to do so, all 

data now or hereafter covered by copyright; provided that, with respect to data not 

originated in the performance of the DELEGATE AGREEMENT, such license shall be 

only to the extent that DELEGATE has the right to grant such license without becoming 

liable to pay compensation to others because of such grant. DELEGATE shall exert all 

reasonable effort to advise SETA, at the time of delivery of data furnished under the 

DELEGATE AGREEMENT, of all invasions of the right to privacy contained therein and 

of all portions of such data copied from work not composed or produced in the 

performance of the DELEGATE AGREEMENT and not licensed under this paragraph. 

DELEGATE shall not affix any restrictive markings upon any data, and if such markings 

are affixed, SETA shall have the right at any time to modify, remove, obliterate, or 

ignore such markings. DELEGATE shall report to SETA, promptly and in written detail, 

each notice of claim of copyright infringement received by DELEGATE with respect to 

all data delivered under the DELEGATE AGREEMENT. 

13. Right to Reuse 

If, under the provisions of the DELEGATE AGREEMENT, DELEGATE develops any 

systems analysis products, models, electronic data processing systems, software and 

related services, DELEGATE agrees that the methods, materials, logic and systems 

developed pursuant to the DELEGATE AGREEMENT shall be the property of SETA, 

and may be used as SETA sees fit, including the right to reuse and publish the same 

without limitation. 

14. Insurance 

During the term of the DELEGATE AGREEMENT, DELEGATE shall maintain insurance 

coverages in conformance with the provisions of Exhibit 7, attached to the DELEGATE 

AGREEMENT and incorporated therein by reference. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 1DF4EEB0-6A74-4B5D-91E5-EB295A6E705A



EXHIBIT 12 

23 
K:\CONTRACT\MASTERS\RSS\EX-12.DOC 

8/1/22 
 

 

 

 
 
15. Facilities 

DELEGATE agrees to operate the program(s) funded by the DELEGATE AGREEMENT 

in facilities that meet federal, state, and local safety and health laws and regulations 

including, but not limited to, federal and state occupational safety and health laws and 

regulations and the California Safe Drinking Water and Toxic Enforcement Act of 1986, 

and to maintain said facilities in accordance with these laws and regulations. 

16. Personnel 
(a) By signing the DELEGATE AGREEMENT, DELEGATE represents that it has or 

will secure at its own expense all personnel required to perform its obligations 

under the DELEGATE AGREEMENT. Such personnel shall not be employees of 

or have any contractual relationship with SETA, and DELEGATE shall hold SETA 

harmless from any and all claims against SETA based upon the contention that 

an employer-employee relationship exists by reason of the DELEGATE 

AGREEMENT. 

(b) All of the obligations and/or services to be performed by DELEGATE shall be 

performed by DELEGATE or by employees of DELEGATE under DELEGATE’s 

supervision, and all personnel engaged in the work shall be fully qualified and 

shall be authorized under applicable law to perform such services and/or 

activities. 

(c) By signing the DELEGATE AGREEMENT, DELEGATE agrees that in the 

performance of its obligations under the DELEGATE AGREEMENT no person 

having an interest that would conflict, or whose performance would conflict, with 

the effective and efficient performance of DELEGATE’s obligations, as 

determined by SETA, shall be employed, engaged or retained. 

(d) In the event that the DSS or SETA, in their sole discretion, either singularly or 

jointly, at any time during the term of the DELEGATE AGREEMENT, desires the 

removal of any person or persons assigned by DELEGATE to perform services 

pursuant to the DELEGATE AGREEMENT, DELEGATE shall remove any such 

person immediately upon receiving notice from the DSS or SETA. 

(e) DELEGATE shall not substitute for personnel set forth in the Response to the 

Request   for   Proposals   incorporated   by   reference   into   the   DELEGATE 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 1DF4EEB0-6A74-4B5D-91E5-EB295A6E705A



EXHIBIT 12 

24 
K:\CONTRACT\MASTERS\RSS\EX-12.DOC 

8/1/22 
 

 

 

 
 

AGREEMENT without the prior written consent of SETA. 

(f) DELEGATE agrees to give priority consideration in filling vacancies in positions 

funded by the DELEGATE AGREEMENT to qualified recipients of aid under 

Chapter 2 (commencing with Section 11200) of the California Welfare and 

Institutions Code in accordance with Article 3.9 (commencing with Section 11349) 

of the Welfare and Institutions Code, as required by Public Contract Code Section 

10353. 

17. Debarment, Suspension, Termination and/or Revocation 

(a) By signing the DELEGATE AGREEMENT, DELEGATE certifies to the best of its 

knowledge that neither it nor any of its principals to be used in the performance 

of the DELEGATE AGREEMENT: 

(1) Is presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared 

ineligible or voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any federal 

department or agency; 

(2) Has within a three (3) year period preceding the DELEGATE 

AGREEMENT been convicted of or had a civil judgment rendered against 

them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection with 

obtaining, attempting to obtain or performing a public (federal, state or 

local) transaction or contract under a public transaction; violation of federal 

or state antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, 

bribery, falsification or destruction of records, making false statements, or 

receiving stolen property; 

(3) Is presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a 

governmental entity (federal, state or local) with commission of any of the 

offenses enumerated in subparagraph (2) above; and, 

(4) Has within a three (3) year period preceding the DELEGATE 

AGREEMENT had one or more public (federal, state or local) transactions 

terminated for cause or default. 

(b) If unable to certify to the best of its knowledge the statements set forth above, 

DELEGATE and/or any of its principals shall attach to the DELEGATE 

AGREEMENT an account of the circumstances and any explanations therefor. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 1DF4EEB0-6A74-4B5D-91E5-EB295A6E705A



EXHIBIT 12 

25 
K:\CONTRACT\MASTERS\RSS\EX-12.DOC 

8/1/22 
 

 

 

 
 

(c) DELEGATE shall request this certification from any subcontractors that perform 

services under the DELEGATE AGREEMENT. 

18. Pro-Children Act of 1994 

DELEGATE shall comply with Public Law 103-227, Part C - Environmental Tobacco 

Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994 and DELEGATE shall not permit 

smoking in any portion of any indoor facility owned, leased or contracted by DELEGATE 

and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education or library 

services to children under the age of eighteen (18), if the services are funded pursuant 

to the DELEGATE AGREEMENT. 

19. Prior Findings 

DELEGATE, by signing the DELEGATE AGREEMENT, certifies under penalty of 

perjury, that it has not failed to satisfy any major condition in a current or previous 

contract or grant with the federal government, the State of California or SETA and has 

not failed to satisfy conditions relating to the resolution of a final finding and 

determination, including repayment of debts. 

20. National Labor Relations Board Certification 

DELEGATE, by signing the DELEGATE AGREEMENT, certifies under penalty of perjury 

that no more than one final unappealable finding of contempt of court, by a federal 

court, has been issued against DELEGATE within the immediately preceding two-year 

period because of DELEGATE’s failure to comply with an order of a federal court 

which orders DELEGATE to comply with an order of the National Labor Relations Board. 

21. Wages 

DELEGATE shall comply with applicable regulations and standards of the federal and 

state governments and SETA policies and determinations in establishing wages and 

prices. If the DELEGATE AGREEMENT is in excess of Two Thousand Five Hundred 

Dollars ($2,500) and provides for the employment of refugees as mechanics or laborers, 

DELEGATE agrees to comply with Sections 103 and 107 of the Contract Work Hours 

and Safety Standards Act (40 U.S.C. §§327-333), as supplemented by 29 CFR, Part 5. 

This requires that DELEGATE shall compute wages on the basis of a standard work 

day of eight (8) hours and a standard workweek of forty (40) hours.  Work in excess of 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 1DF4EEB0-6A74-4B5D-91E5-EB295A6E705A



EXHIBIT 12 

26 
K:\CONTRACT\MASTERS\RSS\EX-12.DOC 

8/1/22 
 

 

 

 
 

the standard shall be compensated at a rate of not less than 1.5 times the basic rate of 

pay for all hours worked in excess of eight (8) hours in any calendar day or forty (40) 

hours in the workweek. 

22. Nepotism 

No member of the immediate family of any officer, director, executive or employee of 

DELEGATE, SETA or the DSS shall receive favorable treatment for enrollment in 

services provided by, or employment with, DELEGATE. In addition, neither DELEGATE 

nor any of DELEGATE’s contractors shall hire, or cause or allow to be hired, a person 

into an administrative capacity, staff position or on-the-job training position funded under 

the DELEGATE AGREEMENT, if a member of that person's immediate family is 

employed in an administrative capacity for SETA, DELEGATE or any employment 

contractor of DELEGATE. However, where an applicable federal, state or local statute 

regarding nepotism exists which is more restrictive than this provision, DELEGATE and 

DELEGATE’s contractors shall follow the federal, state or local statute in lieu of this 

provision. 

(a) The term “member of the immediate family” includes: wife, husband, son, 

daughter, mother, father, brother, brother-in-law, sister, sister-in-law, son-in-law, 

daughter-in-law, father-in-law, mother-in-law, grandfather, grandmother, aunt, 

uncle, niece, nephew, step-parent and step-child. 

(b) The term “administrative capacity” refers to positions involving overall 

administrative responsibility for a program, including members of SETA’s 

Governing Board and any of its affiliated Boards or Councils and members of the 

governing body or board of directors of DELEGATE, or where that individual 

would be the supervisor of an individual paid with funds provided under the 

DELEGATE AGREEMENT or performing duties under the DELEGATE 

AGREEMENT. 

(c) The term “staff position” refers to all staff positions providing services under the 

DELEGATE AGREEMENT, such as instructors, counselors, and other staff 

involved in administrative, training or service activities. 

23. Conflict of Interest 
(a) Neither an officer, director, executive or employee of DELEGATE, nor an elected 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 1DF4EEB0-6A74-4B5D-91E5-EB295A6E705A



EXHIBIT 12 

27 
K:\CONTRACT\MASTERS\RSS\EX-12.DOC 

8/1/22 
 

 

 

 
 

official in the area or a member of a Private Industry Council shall solicit or 

accept money or any other consideration from a third person for the performance 

of an act reimbursed in whole or in part by SETA or DELEGATE. 

(b) DELEGATE shall avoid organizational conflict of interest, and its officers, 

directors, executives and employees shall avoid financial and personal conflict of 

interest, potential for conflict of interest and appearance of conflict of interest in 

the performance of the DELEGATE AGREEMENT, in awarding financial 

assistance and in the conduct of procurement activities involving DELEGATE 

AGREEMENT funds. 

(c) DELEGATE shall establish safeguards to prohibit employees or officers from 

using their positions for a purpose which could result in private gain, or gives the 

appearance of being motivated for private gain for themselves or others, 

particularly those with whom they have family, business or other ties. 

(d) DELEGATE shall abide by all applicable federal and state laws and regulations 

and SETA policies regarding conflict of interest. 

24. Employment of Former State Employees 

DELEGATE shall ensure that any of its employees who were formerly employed by the 

State of California in a position that could have enabled such individuals to impact policy 

regarding or implementation of programs covered by the DELEGATE AGREEMENT will 

not be assigned to any part or phase of the activities conducted pursuant to the 

DELEGATE AGREEMENT for a period of not less than two (2) years following the 

termination of such employment. 

25. Nondiscrimination/Equal Opportunity 

In addition to the Nondiscrimination Addendum attached to the DELEGATE 

AGREEMENT as Exhibit 8 and incorporated therein by reference, the DELEGATE 

AGREEMENT and any subcontract thereunder is subject to: (a) the President’s 

Executive Order 11246 entitled “Equal Employment Opportunity,” and any subsequent 

amendments thereto specifically including (a) the President’s Executive Order 11375 

and supplemented in 41 CFR, Part 60, as amended; (b) the Americans with Disabilities 

Act of 1990 (Public Law 101-336), and any subsequent amendments thereto; (c) Title VI 

(as implemented by 45 CFR Parts 80 and 81) and Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 1DF4EEB0-6A74-4B5D-91E5-EB295A6E705A



EXHIBIT 12 

28 
K:\CONTRACT\MASTERS\RSS\EX-12.DOC 

8/1/22 
 

 

 

 
 

1964, and any subsequent amendments thereto; (d) Revised Order #4 of the Federal 

Register; (e) the California Fair Employment and Housing Act, and any subsequent 

amendments thereto; (f) the DSS Manual of Policies and Procedures, Division 21, and 

Welfare and Institutions Code, Section 10000; and (g) SETA policies. By signing the 

DELEGATE AGREEMENT, DELEGATE agrees that any service, financial aid program 

or other benefit to be provided by DELEGATE under the DELEGATE AGREEMENT or 

any activity supported by the DELEGATE AGREEMENT shall be furnished to 

authorized refugees without discrimination on the basis of race, color, religion, sex 

(including pregnancy, childbirth, and related medical conditions, sex stereotyping, 

transgender status, and gender identity), national origin (including limited English 

proficiency), age, disability, or political affiliation or belief, or heritage. DELEGATE shall 

not deny any individual an opportunity to participate in, or enjoy the services or benefits 

of, the DELEGATE AGREEMENT on the basis of race, color, religion, sex (including 

pregnancy, childbirth, and related medical conditions, sex stereotyping, transgender 

status, and gender identity), national origin (including limited English proficiency), age, 

disability, or political affiliation or belief, or heritage. DELEGATE shall further take 

affirmative action to ensure that applicants are employed, and that employees are 

treated during employment, without regard to their race, color, religion, sex (including 

pregnancy, childbirth, and related medical conditions, sex stereotyping, transgender 

status, and gender identity), national origin (including limited English proficiency), age, 

disability, or political affiliation or belief, or heritage. DELEGATE shall also state in all 

solicitations or advertisements for employment placed by or on behalf of DELEGATE, 

that all qualified applicants shall receive consideration for employment without regard to 

race, color, religion, sex (including pregnancy, childbirth, and related medical conditions, 

sex stereotyping, transgender status, and gender identity), national origin (including 

limited English proficiency), age, disability, or political affiliation or belief, or heritage. 

DELEGATE shall recognize the right of SETA, the United States Government and/or the 

State of California to seek judicial enforcement of the foregoing covenants against 

discrimination. 

26. Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act 
DELEGATE shall abide by the provisions of Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 1DF4EEB0-6A74-4B5D-91E5-EB295A6E705A



EXHIBIT 12 

29 
K:\CONTRACT\MASTERS\RSS\EX-12.DOC 

8/1/22 
 

 

 

 
 

1973, as amended, which provides that no otherwise-qualified individual with a disability 

shall, by reason of his or her disability, be excluded from participation in, be denied the 

benefit of, or be subjected to discrimination under any program or activity receiving 

federal financial assistance. 

27. Refugee Act and Regulations 

DELEGATE shall conform to the Refugee Act of 1980 (PL 96-212), the Refugee 

Assistance Amendments of 1982 (Public Law 97-363) and the Refugee Assistance 

Extension Act of 1986 (Public Law 99-605), to the extent relevant and made applicable 

by law and/or policy guidance, to federal guidelines and regulations found in, but not 

limited to: 

(a) 45 CFR Part 16, “Procedures of the Department Grant Appeals Board.” 

(b) 45 CFR Part 30, “Claims Collection.” 

(c) 45 CFR Part 75, “Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles and 

Audit Requirements for HHS Awards (HHS Super Circular).” 

(d) 45 CFR Part 77, “Remedial Actions Applicable to Letter of Credit Administration.” 

(e) 45 CFR Part 80, “Nondiscrimination Under Programs Receiving Federal 

Assistance through the Department of Health and Human Services Effectuation 

of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964.” 

(f) 45 CFR Part 81, “Practice and Procedures for Hearings under Part 80 of this 

Title.” 

(g) 45 CFR Part 82, “Governmentwide Requirements for Drug-Free Workplace.” 

(h) 45 CFR Part 84, “Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Handicap in Programs or 

Activities Receiving Federal Financial Assistance.” 

(i) 45 CFR Part 86, “Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Sex in Educational Programs 

or Activities Receiving Federal Financial Assistance from HHS.” 

(j) 45 CFR Part 91, “Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Age in Programs or Activities 

Receiving Federal Financial Assistance from HHS.” 

(k) 45 CFR Part 87, “Equal Treatment for Faith-Based Organizations.” 

(l) 45 CFR Part 93, “New Restrictions on Lobbying.” 

(m) 45 CFR Part 95, “General Administration - Grant Programs (Public Assistance, 

Medical Assistance, and State Children’s Health Insurance Programs).” 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 1DF4EEB0-6A74-4B5D-91E5-EB295A6E705A



EXHIBIT 12 

30 
K:\CONTRACT\MASTERS\RSS\EX-12.DOC 

8/1/22 
 

 

 

 
 

(n) 45 CFR Part 400, “Refugee Resettlement Program.” 

(o) Section 106(g) of  the Trafficking Victims Protection Act of 2000 (TVPA), as 

amended (22 U.S.C. 7104). 

28. State Statutory Requirements 

DELEGATE shall comply with the provisions of Sections 13275-13283 of the California 

Welfare and Institutions Code. 

29. Grievances 

DELEGATE shall provide a system through which recipients of service shall have the 

opportunity to express and have considered their views, grievances, and complaints 

regarding the delivery of services. This system shall be in accordance with the grievance 

requirements issued by SETA and shall include notification to the recipients of their 

right to a state hearing. 

30. Coordination of Programs and Activities 

DELEGATE shall, to the maximum extent feasible, coordinate all programs and 

activities supported under the DELEGATE AGREEMENT with other programs under the 

Refugee Resettlement social service programs, and other employment and training 

programs at the state and local level. 

31. Confidentiality 

(a) DELEGATE shall comply and require its employees and subcontractors to 

comply with the provisions of Section 10850 of the Welfare and Institutions Code 

and Division 19 of the DSS Manual of Policies and Procedures, to assure that: 

(1) All applications and records concerning an individual made or kept by 

DELEGATE in connection with the administration of any provision of the 

Welfare and Institutions Code relating to any form of public social services 

for which grants-in-aid are received by California from the federal 

government shall be confidential and shall not be open to examination for 

any purpose not directly connected with the administration of such public 

social services. 

(2) No person will publish or disclose, or use or permit, or cause to be 

published, disclosed or used, any confidential information pertaining to an 

application or recipient.  DELEGATE agrees to inform all of its employees, 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 1DF4EEB0-6A74-4B5D-91E5-EB295A6E705A



EXHIBIT 12 

31 
K:\CONTRACT\MASTERS\RSS\EX-12.DOC 

8/1/22 
 

 

 

 
 

agents, subcontractors and partners of the above provision and that any 

person knowingly and intentionally violating the provisions of said state 

law is guilty of a misdemeanor. 

(b) DELEGATE shall comply with SETA’s Policy on Confidentiality of Participant 

Records attached to the DELEGATE AGREEMENT as Exhibit 9 and incorporated 

therein by reference. 

32. Refugee  Cash  Assistance/Entrant  Cash  Assistance,  General  Assistance  and 
Temporary Assistance to Needy Families 

DELEGATE shall comply with the referral and sanction requirements/procedures for 

Refugee Cash Assistance/Entrant Cash Assistance (RCA/ECA), General Assistance 

(GA) and Temporary Assistance to Needy Families (TANF) recipients as specified in the 

DSS Manual of Policies and Procedures Divisions 69 and 40, respectively; Exhibits 10 

and 11 attached to the DELEGATE AGREEMENT and incorporated therein by 

reference; and applicable state guidelines for Targeted Assistance and/or Refugee 

Support Services. 

33. Unauthorized Financial Benefit 
Neither DELEGATE, nor its officers, agents or employees shall submit or receive 

payment pursuant to any invoices, bills, statements or reports for payment or for 

reimbursement for costs from SETA under the DELEGATE AGREEMENT if any officer, 

agent or employee of DELEGATE will derive any financial benefit other than as 

specifically permitted in the DELEGATE AGREEMENT. 

34. Contingent Fee 

DELEGATE shall warrant that no person, selling agency or other organization has been 

employed or retained to solicit or secure the DELEGATE AGREEMENT upon an 

agreement or understanding for commission, percentage, brokerage or contingency fee. 

For breach or violation of this covenant, SETA shall have the right to terminate the 

DELEGATE AGREEMENT and/or, at its sole discretion, to deduct from the DELEGATE’s 

payment or reimbursement, or otherwise recover, the full amount of such commission, 

percentage, brokerage or contingency fee. 

35. Kickbacks 

No officer, agent or employee of DELEGATE shall solicit or accept any favor or any 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 1DF4EEB0-6A74-4B5D-91E5-EB295A6E705A



EXHIBIT 12 

32 
K:\CONTRACT\MASTERS\RSS\EX-12.DOC 

8/1/22 
 

 

 

 
 

financial interest from any supplier or potential supplier of goods or services under the 

DELEGATE AGREEMENT including any extension thereof. 

36. Fraud and Program Abuse 

DELEGATE shall establish and implement appropriate internal program management 

procedures to prevent fraud, abuse and criminal activity.  DELEGATE shall notify SETA 

within twenty-four (24) hours of any suspected or proven fraud, abuse or criminal acts 

involving Refugee Support Services funds. 

 

37. Political Activity/Lobbying 

DELEGATE shall comply with all applicable federal and state laws and administrative 

regulations, as well as SETA policies, regarding political activity and lobbying. In this 

regard, no funds provided under the DELEGATE AGREEMENT shall be used for 

publicity, lobbying or the solicitation of funds for any political activity or to further the 

election or defeat of any candidate for office or on behalf of or in opposition to proposed 

or pending federal, state or local legislation or administrative action. DELEGATE shall 

comply with the requirements of Section 319 of the Fiscal Year 1990 Appropriations Act 

(31 U.S.C. 1352), as amended, and corresponding HHS regulations codified at 45 CFR 

Part 93, which prohibit the expenditure of funds provided under a federal contract, grant, 

loan or cooperative agreement for the purpose of influencing or attempting to influence 

an officer or employee of any federal agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or 

employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with the 

awarding, extension, continuation, renewal, amendment or modification of any such 

contract, grant, loan or cooperative agreement. DELEGATE shall annually execute and 

provide to SETA a Certification Regarding Lobbying and, if necessary, a Disclosure of 

Lobbying Activities on the forms provided by SETA. 

38. Sectarian Activities 

DELEGATE, by signing the DELEGATE AGREEMENT, assures and certifies that: 

(a) DELEGATE will use all funds under the DELEGATE AGREEMENT consistent 

with the Establishment Clause and the Free Exercise Clause of the First 

Amendment to the United States Constitution. DELEGATE shall not expend any 

program  funds  for  inherently  religious  activities,  such  as  worship,  religious 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 1DF4EEB0-6A74-4B5D-91E5-EB295A6E705A



EXHIBIT 12 

33 
K:\CONTRACT\MASTERS\RSS\EX-12.DOC 

8/1/22 
 

 

 

 
 

instruction or proselytization. If DELEGATE conducts such activities, it must offer 

them separately, in time or location, from the programs or services  directly funded 

under the DELEGATE AGREEMENT, and participation must be voluntary for 

program beneficiaries. 

(b) DELEGATE shall retain its independence from Federal, State and local 

governments and may continue to carry out its mission, including the definition, 

practice and expression of its religious beliefs, provided that it does not expend 

any direct funding under the DELEGATE AGREEMENT to support any inherently 

religious activities, such as worship, religious instruction or proselytization. 

Among other things, DELEGATE may use space in its facilities to provide services 

funded under the DELEGATE AGREEMENT without removing religious art, icons, 

scriptures or other symbols. In addition, DELEGATE retains the authority over 

its internal governance and it may retain religious terms in its organization’s 

name, select its board members on a religious basis, and include religious 

references in its organization’s mission statements and other governing 

documents. 

(c) In providing services or benefits under the DELEGATE AGREEMENT, 

DELEGATE shall not discriminate against a program beneficiary or prospective 

program beneficiary on the basis of religion or a religious belief. 

39. Delegation/Subcontract/Assignment/Security for Loan 

(a) No performance of any of DELEGATE’s obligations under the DELEGATE 

AGREEMENT may be transferred by subcontract, assignment, delegation or 

novation without the prior express written consent of SETA. Any attempt by 

DELEGATE to assign, delegate or subcontract any performance of its obligations 

hereunder without the prior express written consent of SETA shall be null and 

void and shall constitute a breach of the DELEGATE AGREEMENT. Whenever 

DELEGATE is authorized to subcontract, delegate or assign, it shall include all 

the terms of the DELEGATE AGREEMENT in each subcontract, delegation, 

assignment or novation. Any subcontractor, delegate or assignee shall  be subject 

to all applicable provisions of the DELEGATE AGREEMENT, and all applicable 

federal, state and local laws and regulations.   DELEGATE shall be 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 1DF4EEB0-6A74-4B5D-91E5-EB295A6E705A



EXHIBIT 12 

34 
K:\CONTRACT\MASTERS\RSS\EX-12.DOC 

8/1/22 
 

 

 

 
 

fully responsible to SETA for the performance of any subcontractor, delegate or 

assignee and shall hold SETA harmless against any liability incurred by the 

subcontractor, delegate or assignee. 

(b) Without the prior express written consent of SETA, the DELEGATE 

AGREEMENT may not be used as security for a loan and is not assignable by 

DELEGATE either in whole or in part for such purposes. 

40. Independent Status 

The DELEGATE AGREEMENT is by and between two independent parties and is not 

intended to and shall not be construed to create the relationship of agent, servant, 

employee, partnership or joint venture, and DELEGATE agrees to defend, indemnify 

and hold SETA harmless from any such claim. 

41. Indemnification 

(a) The following provision applies only if DELEGATE is a governmental entity: 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 895.4 of the California Government Code, 

each party agrees to indemnify and hold the other party harmless from all liability 

for  damage  to  persons  or  property,  arising  out  of  or  resulting  from  acts  or 

omissions of the indemnifying party. 

(b) The following provision applies only if DELEGATE is a non-governmental entity: 

DELEGATE shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless SETA and its officers, 

agents, employees and volunteers, from and against any suits, actions, claims, 

causes of action, cost demands, judgments, damages, costs and expenses of 

whatever nature, including court costs and reasonable attorney’s fees, arising out 

of or resulting from DELEGATE’s performance  under the DELEGATE 

AGREEMENT, including DELEGATE’s failure to comply with or carry out any of 

the  provisions  of  the  DELEGATE  AGREEMENT  and  acts  of  negligence  or 

omission of  DELEGATE, or anyone employed directly, indirectly or by 

independent contract by DELEGATE, including volunteers and program 

participants,  regardless  of  whether  caused  in  part  by  a  party  indemnified 

hereunder. 

42. Delegate Agency Status 

DELEGATE shall comply with all federal, state and SETA requirements for delegate 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 1DF4EEB0-6A74-4B5D-91E5-EB295A6E705A



EXHIBIT 12 

35 
K:\CONTRACT\MASTERS\RSS\EX-12.DOC 

8/1/22 
 

 

 

 
 

agency status under applicable federal, state and local laws and administrative 

regulations. 

43. Laws 

DELEGATE shall comply with all applicable laws, ordinances, codes, administrative 

regulations, guidelines and policies of the United States, the State of California and 

local governments, specifically including, but not limited to, SETA policies and 

procedures. If any such laws, ordinances, codes, administrative regulations, guidelines 

or policies are amended or revised, DELEGATE shall comply with such amendments, 

revisions or modifications or shall notify SETA within thirty (30) calendar days after 

promulgation of the amendments, revisions or modifications that it cannot so conform so 

that SETA may take appropriate action, including termination of the DELEGATE 

AGREEMENT. 

44. Clean Air and Clean Water 
If the DELEGATE AGREEMENT is in excess of One Hundred Thousand Dollars 

($100,000), DELEGATE agrees to comply with all applicable standards, orders or 

requirements issued under Section 306 of the Clean Air Act (42 U.S. Code 1857(h)), 

Section 508 of the Clean Water Act (33 U.S. Code 1368), Executive Order 11738, and 

United States Environmental Protection Agency (the “EPA”) regulations (40 CFR, Part 

15). Under those laws and regulations, the DELEGATE shall ensure that: 

(a) No facility to be utilized in the performance of the proposed grant has been listed 

on the EPA List of Violating Facilities; 

(b) DELEGATE shall notify SETA, prior to award, of the receipt of any communication 

from the Director, Office of Federal Activities, EPA, indicating that a facility to be 

utilized for the grant is under consideration to be listed on the EPA List of Violating 

Facilities; 

(c) DELEGATE shall notify SETA and the EPA about any known violation of the 

above laws and regulations; and, 

(d) DELEGATE shall include substantially this assurance, including this fourth part, 

in every nonexempt subgrant, contract or subcontract. 

45. Energy Conservation 

DELEGATE shall comply with the mandatory standards and policies relating to energy 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 1DF4EEB0-6A74-4B5D-91E5-EB295A6E705A



EXHIBIT 12 

36 
K:\CONTRACT\MASTERS\RSS\EX-12.DOC 

8/1/22 
 

 

 

 
 

efficiency in the state Energy Conservation Plan (Title 24, California Code of 

Regulations), as required by the U. S. Energy Policy and Conservation Act (P.L. 94- 

163). 

46. Press Releases and Communications 

DELEGATE shall not communicate with the press, television, radio or any other form of 

media regarding its duties or performance under the DELEGATE AGREEMENT without 

the prior express written consent of SETA. Unless otherwise directed by SETA, in all 

communications, DELEGATE shall make specific reference to SETA as the funding 

agency. 

47. Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986 

By signing the DELEGATE AGREEMENT, DELEGATE agrees and assures that it shall 

be in compliance with the Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986, specifically 

including, but not by way of limitation, the antidiscrimination provisions of Section 102, 

as well as requirements disqualifying certain legalized aliens from receiving benefits 

under the DELEGATE AGREEMENT for five (5) years from the date they were granted 

temporary resident status, even if they have been provided status according to Section 

245A (amnesty or legalization) and Section 210A (replenishment workers) of the 

Immigration and Nationality Act, as amended. 

48. Drug-Free Workplace Certification 

By signing the DELEGATE AGREEMENT, DELEGATE certifies under penalty of perjury 

under the laws of the State of California that DELEGATE will comply with the 

requirements of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1990 (Government Code Section 8350 

et seq., 29 CFR Part 29) and with 45 CFR 82 - “Governmentwide Requirements for a 

Drug-Free Workplace,” and will provide a drug-free workplace by taking the following 

actions: 

(a) Publish a statement notifying employees that unlawful manufacture, distribution, 

dispensation, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited and 

specifying actions to be taken against employees for violations, as required by 

Government Code Section 8350(a). 

(b) Establishing a Drug-Free Awareness Program as required by Government Code 

Section 8355(b) to inform employees about all of the following: 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 1DF4EEB0-6A74-4B5D-91E5-EB295A6E705A



EXHIBIT 12 

37 
K:\CONTRACT\MASTERS\RSS\EX-12.DOC 

8/1/22 
 

 

 

 
 

(1) the dangers of drug abuse in the workplace; 

(2) DELEGATE’s Policy on maintaining a drug-free workplace; 

(3) any available counseling, rehabilitation and employee assistance program; 

and, 

(4) penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations. 

(c) Provide, as required by Government Code Section 8355(c), that every employee 

who performs services funded under the DELEGATE AGREEMENT: 

(1) will receive a copy of DELEGATE’s drug-free policy statement; and, 

(2) will agree to abide by the terms of DELEGATE’s statement as a condition 

of employment under the DELEGATE AGREEMENT. 

49. Successors 

At the sole discretion of any successor-in-interest of SETA, the DELEGATE 

AGREEMENT shall bind and inure to that successor-in-interest of SETA, in the same 

manner as if such party had been expressly named herein. The DELEGATE 

AGREEMENT shall only bind and inure to a successor-in-interest of DELEGATE upon 

SETA’s prior express written consent. 

50. Entire Agreement/Modifications 

The DELEGATE AGREEMENT constitutes the entire agreement between the parties 

thereto for the program conducted pursuant to the DELEGATE AGREEMENT and no 

oral understanding not incorporated therein shall be binding on any of the parties 

thereto. Except as otherwise provided in the DELEGATE AGREEMENT, the 

DELEGATE AGREEMENT may be modified, altered, or revised only on the written 

consent of both parties thereto. However, any other provision of the DELEGATE 

AGREEMENT notwithstanding, the DELEGATE AGREEMENT is subject to any 

additional restrictions, limitations, policies or conditions enacted by the federal or state 

government, any applicable local government or SETA, or any law or regulation enacted 

by the federal or state government or any applicable local government which may affect 

the provisions, terms or funding of the DELEGATE AGREEMENT and SETA may 

unilaterally amend the DELEGATE AGREEMENT in this regard. 

51. Severability of Provisions 

If any provision of the DELEGATE AGREEMENT is held invalid, the remainder of the 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 1DF4EEB0-6A74-4B5D-91E5-EB295A6E705A



39 
K:\CONTRACT\MASTERS\RSS\EX-12.DOC 

8/1/22 

 

 

 
 

DELEGATE AGREEMENT shall not be affected thereby, if such remainder would then 

continue to conform to terms and requirements of applicable law. 

52. Titles 

The titles to the paragraphs of these STANDARD CONDITIONS are solely for the 

convenience of the parties and are not an aid in the interpretation of these STANDARD 

CONDITIONS. 

53. Waiver 
The waiver by SETA of any default, breach or condition precedent under the 

DELEGATE AGREEMENT shall not be construed as a waiver on the part of SETA of 

any other default, breach or condition precedent, or any other right thereunder. 

54. Limitation of Actions 

In the event either the federal or state government disallows any costs incurred by 

DELEGATE in the performance of the DELEGATE AGREEMENT, SETA may bring an 

action against DELEGATE for the recovery of such disallowed costs at any time within 

five (5) years following final resolution of the audit wherein such costs were disallowed. 

Such disallowed costs shall be deemed to constitute a continuing breach of contract 

until such final resolution and each day thereof shall give rise to a cause of action. 

55. California Law 

Except where controlled by federal statutes or administrative regulations, the DELEGATE 

AGREEMENT shall be governed according to the laws of the State of California and 

SETA policies and procedures. 

56. Notices 

All notices to be given to either of the parties under the DELEGATE AGREEMENT shall 

be addressed to the applicable party at the address set forth below the signature of each 

party to the DELEGATE AGREEMENT and given:  1) via electronic email (provided that 

the sender possesses written confirmation of valid delivery); 2) by deposit in the United 

States mail, first-class postage prepaid; 3) by personal service; or 4) by deposit with an 

overnight delivery service (provided that the sending party receives a confirmation of 

actual delivery from the delivery service). Notices given by United States mail shall be 

deemed served three (3) days after deposit in the United States mail or when received, 

whichever is sooner. Service in any other manner shall be deemed served on the date of 

delivery.  

DocuSign Envelope ID: 1DF4EEB0-6A74-4B5D-91E5-EB295A6E705A



40 
K:\CONTRACT\MASTERS\RSS\EX-12.DOC 

8/1/22 

 

 

EXHIBIT 12 

57. Enforceable Agreement 

The DELEGATE AGREEMENT shall become a valid enforceable agreement only after 

it is signed by authorized agents of the parties. 
 

58. Time of the Essence 

Time is of the essence in the performance of the DELEGATE AGREEMENT. 

59. Statutes, Regulations, Policies and Procedures 
DELEGATE shall provide the services under the DELEGATE AGREEMENT strictly in 

accordance with: 

(a) Section 412(c) of the Immigration and Nationality Act (“INA”), as amended by the 

Refugee Act of 1980 (Public Law 96-212 [8 U.S.C. 1522]), the Refugee 

Assistance Amendments of 1982 (Public Law 97-363) and the Refugee 

Assistance Extension Act of 1986 (Public Law 99-605) and the regulations 

promulgated thereunder, and any amendments thereto or new legislation, 

regulations, policies and/or procedures which may replace them; and 

(b) All applicable federal, State and local laws and administrative regulations and 

applicable State and SETA policies and procedures. 

60. Counterpart, Facsimile and Electronic Signatures 

The DELEGATE AGREEMENT may be signed in counterparts, such that signatures 

appear on separate signature pages. A copy or original of the DELEGATE 

AGREEMENT with all signatures and Exhibits appended together shall be deemed a 

fully executed DELEGATE AGREEMENT. Faxed signatures or signatures provided in 

electronic, portable document format (pdf) are binding and may be treated as original 

signatures for all purposes. All executed counterparts together shall constitute one and 

the same document, and any signature pages, including facsimile or electronic copies 

thereof, may be assembled to form a single original document. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 1DF4EEB0-6A74-4B5D-91E5-EB295A6E705A



 

THIS AGREEMENT, made and entered into by and between the Trustees of the California State University, 
which is the State of California acting in a higher education capacity, through its duly appointed and acting officer 
on behalf of California State University, Sacramento hereinafter called the University or Sacramento State, and 
Sacramento City Unified School District, hereinafter called SCUSD. Sacramento State and SCUSD are 
collectively referred to as the Parties. 

WITNESSETH:   That Sacramento State, through its School of Nursing and College of Continuing 
Education Departments, for and in consideration of the covenants, conditions, agreements and stipulations of 
this agreement does hereby agree to be the educational provider for the Sacramento County School Nurse 
Residency & Pathway Program and offer its Registered Nurse to Bachelor of Science in Nursing (RN to 
BSN), Associate Degree to Bachelor of Science in Nursing (ADN to BSN), and School Nurse Credential 
(SNC) Programs as education pathways for eligible Sacramento County School Nurse Residency & Pathway 
Program applicants employed by SCUSD, as outlined in the attached Exhibit A. Scope of Work. 

The term of service shall commence upon the date of final execution and continue through June 30, 2026, 
with the option to renew for three (3) additional one (1) year terms upon mutual written agreement by both 
Parties. 
SCUSD shall cover program costs for each qualified School Nurse Residency participant and agrees to 
compensate Sacramento State on behalf of each School Nurse Residency participant.  

No consideration has been or shall be paid directly or indirectly to any officer or employee of the University 
as wages, compensation, or gifts in exchange for acting as officer, agent, employee, subcontractor or as 
consultant in connection with this Agreement. 
The following documents are hereby incorporated and made part of this agreement: 

Exhibit A:  Scope of Work, consisting of four (4) pages; 
Exhibit B:  General Provisions, consisting of three (3) pages; 
Exhibit C:  School Nurse Residency Participant Agreement, consisting of six (6) pages; 

Any provisions or attachments not specifically referenced herein shall be excluded from this agreement. 
University shall have no liability except as specifically set forth in this Agreement. 
Questions or information concerning this agreement should be addressed to Kathleen Paclibar, Contract 
Specialist II via email at k.paclibar@csus.edu. 

Nothing herein contained shall preclude advance payment pursuant to Article 1, Chapter 3, Part 1, Division 
3, Title 2 of the Government Code. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement has been executed by the Parties hereto, upon the date last written below. 

California State University, Sacramento Sacramento City Unified School District 

 BY (AUTHORIZED SIGNATURE): DATE BY (AUTHORIZED SIGNATURE): DATE 

PRINTED NAME  AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING 
Kathleen Paclibar, Contract Specialist II 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING 

DEPARTMENT 
Procurement and Contract Services 

DEPARTMENT: 

ADDRESS: 
6000 J Street, MS 6008, Sacramento, CA 95819 

ADDRESS: 

AGREEMENT NUMBER 
MY220785 

AGREEMENT 

09/07/2023
Digitally signed by Kathleen 
Paclibar 
Date: 2023.09.07 15:51:03 -07'00'

Jesse Castillo, Assistant Superintendent

Business Services

5735 47th Avenue, Sacramento CA  95824

DocuSign Envelope ID: FF38FE32-2FB5-412A-80ED-35067589C63A

10/23/2023



California State University, Sacramento 
Agreement# MY220785 

Page 2 of 14 

Exhibit A 
Scope of Work 

I. Purpose and Background Information

The Sacramento County School Nurse Residency & Pathway Program provides an educational 
pipeline for those interested in pursuing a School Nurse Credential through grant funding, 
educational partnership, and mentorship. The project has been granted funding through the High 
Road Training Partnerships initiative (https://cwdb.ca.gov/initiatives/high-road-training-
partnerships/). Grant funding is available for nursing students employed in participating school 
districts within Sacramento County. The grant is administered through Sacramento City Unified 
School District (SCUSD). Sacramento State operates fully accredited RN to BSN, ADN to BSN, and 
School Nurse Credential (SNC) programs. Sacramento County School Nurse Residency & Pathway 
Program applicants are employed by participating districts during their residency period, and shall 
have continued employment following residency if they are successfully credentialed. The 
Program will help to alleviate the financial burden, allowing nurses with disadvantaged 
backgrounds with the opportunity to move into professional roles within the nursing field. The 
program is overseen by a Committee of community partners, including: representatives from the 
participating local education agencies (LEAS), Office of Education, SCUSD, Sacramento State School 
of Nursing, California Department of Industrial Relations, Labor Partner, and Teachers for Healthy 
Kids, hereinafter collectively referred to as “Committee”. 

II. General Description of Services

The Committee will hold quarterly meetings mirroring the requirements of apprenticeship 
programs, and will convene on an as needed basis to address concerns. The Committee addresses 
issues, makes sure students get needed support and lessens existing tensions between 
labor/management. Sacramento State will be the educational provider for the program. 
Educational pathways in the program supported by Sacramento State will include the Registered 
Nurse to Bachelor of Nursing Degree (RN to BSN), Associate Degree in Nursing to Bachelor of 
Nursing Degree (ADN to BSN), and School Nurse Credential (SNC) programs. Participants in the 
program will have their Sacramento State School Nurse Credential program and ADN/BSN or RN-
BSN program (if applicable) course fees paid for by the grant. Applicants are employed by the 
district during their residency period and have continued employment following residency if they 
are successfully credentialed. 

III. Amount and Payment Details

This is a three (3) year grant, with funding allotted for up to fifty (50) school nurse credential 
candidates. SCUSD will be invoiced by Sacramento State each term for each student with a letter 
of financial intent submitted for the SNC proram. Terms covered are spring, summer, and fall. Both 
Parties acknowledge that grants covering tuition are reportable to the IRS for all students. 

A. Course Fees as of 2022-2023 (All fees are estimates and subject to change upon University
approval):

DocuSign Envelope ID: FF38FE32-2FB5-412A-80ED-35067589C63A



California State University, Sacramento 
Agreement# MY220785 

Page 3 of 14 

 
Spring   
Application fee ($50) 
NURS 213C ($1,980) 
NURS 214 ($1,485) 
Total: $3,515  

Summer  
NURS 213D ($1,980) 
NURS 215 ($1,485) 
Total: $3,465 
 

Fall 
NURS 232A ($1,485) 
NURS 216 ($495) 
NURS 293D ($1,980) 
Total: $3,960

 

B. Projected costs per year included in the grant for tuition payments are as follows: 

 # of projected students Projected tuition 

Year 1 14 school nurse in credential program 
14 ADN to BSN students (or RN to BSN) 

$347,900 

Year 2 18 school nurses in credential program 
(ADN to BSN student tuition already allocated y1) 

$195,300 
  

Year 3 18 school nurses in credential program 
(ADN to BSN student tuition already allocated y1) 

$65,100 

Total   Total = $579, 400 

 
*Although ADN to BSN tuition has been allotted to year 1, these funds will be available for 
qualifying nurses starting the program ADN to BSN/RN to BSN program in subsequent years who 
plan to enroll in the School Nurse Credential Program.   
 

C. Tuition and fees for the School Nurse Credential Program as of the current 2022-2023 
academic year are $495 per unit x 22 units = $10,890 plus a $50 department application 
fee. 
 

D. Tuition for the ADN to BSN program varies, based on several courses that are not required 
for all students.  For those requiring the full 33 unit course of study, current 2022-2023 
cost is $425 per unit x 33 units = $14,025 plus a $50 application fee. 
 

E. Tuition for the RN to BSN program varies, based on several courses that are not required 
for all students, whether the student enrolls full or part-time, and whether the student 
already possesses a bachelor’s degree in another field.  For those pursuing the full 33-unit 
course of study, current estimates, based on 2023-2024 tuition are:   
 

1. Full-time:  $3801 (undergraduate) x 2 = $7602 
2. Part-time:  $3801 per semester (undergraduate) x 3 = $11,403 
3. 2nd bachelors (27 units) $4518 per semester x 2 semesters = $9036 
4. Tuition and fees may be subject to change in future semesters. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: FF38FE32-2FB5-412A-80ED-35067589C63A



California State University, Sacramento 
Agreement# MY220785 

Page 4 of 14 

IV. Responsibilities of Parties 
 

A. SCUSD Responsibilities 
1. Coordinate the disbursement of tuition payments to be issued by the grant to 

Sacramento State for students enrolled in the program. 
2. Coordinate disbursement of other funds to students and preceptors, as 

outlined in the grant (i.e. stipends for student supplies, NCLEX cost, preceptor 
stipends). 

3. Appoint a program coordinator to manage operation of the program and lead 
and coordinate the program Committee. 

4. Coordinate with participating LEAs to provide communication on Residency 
Program requirements for participating students, preceptors, and 
supervisors.  

5. Maintain list of eligible participants in the School Nurse Residency program, 
as reported by participating LEAs. 

6. Manage all Residency Program-related paperwork, including School Nurse 
Residency Participant Agreements, employee agreements, and Committee 
meeting minutes. 

7. Submit one signed letter of financial intent to pay for each School Nurse 
Residency participant. 
 

B. Sacramento State Responsibilities 
1. Advise School Nurse Residents on academic course of study and educational 

program requirements. 
2. Verify eligibility and completion of prerequisite requirements for potential 

School Nurse Residency Particpants. The University will make all final 
determinations regarding eligibility and admission of students to the 
respective programs identified in this Agreement. 

3. Provide School Nurse Residency Program Coordinator with a list of eligible 
School Nurse Residency participants enrolled in SNC program at the start of 
each term. 

4. Notify School Nurse Residency Program Coordinator of changes in enrollment 
for any School Nurse Residency participants. 

5. Provide progress reviews, including current course grades, as requested by 
the School Nurse Residency Committee (at least once per semester). 

6. Notify School Nurse Residency Coordinator of any course failure or failure to 
meet academic standards and/or code of conduct. 

7. Award academic credit for completed coursework. 
8. Advise School Nurse Residents of process for obtaining their clear School 

Nurse credential upon completion of the program.  

DocuSign Envelope ID: FF38FE32-2FB5-412A-80ED-35067589C63A



California State University, Sacramento 
Agreement# MY220785 

Page 5 of 14 

9. Sacramento State will submit an invoice to SCUSD each term for each 
student’s course fees. 
 

C. School Nurse Resident/Student Responsibilities 
1. Complete application for admission to ADN/RN-BSN or SNC Program and 

submit all required documents, as outlined in program application 
instructions, according to University deadlines.  In order to qualify for the 
School Nurse Resident program, participant must be a currently practicing 
School Nurse  employed within a participating school district and enrolled in 
the Sacramento State School Nurse Credential Program through the High 
Road Training Partnerships (HRTP) grant.   

2. Complete all paperwork as required by University and School Nurse 
Residency Program. 

3. Enroll in required educational courses (as outlined in the SNC program 
curriculum, designed to meet requirements from the California Commission 
on Teacher Credentialing for the School Nurse Services Credential) prior to 
the start of each term. 

4. Adhere to program requirements outlined in School Nurse Residency 
Participant Agreement. 

5. Adhere to University policies and procedures. 
6. Attend all required classes and satisfactorily complete all program 

coursework.  
7. Upon completion of the program, submit all required documentation to 

obtain cleared credential. 
V. Program Contacts 

SCUSD  Sacramento State 
Jacqueline Garner  Kirsten Munk, DNP, RN, PHN, NCSN 
Executive Director, Student Support and 
Health Services 

 Assistant Professor, School of Nursing 
 

jacqueline-garner@scusd.edu  kirsten.munk@csus.edu 
 
 
 
  

DocuSign Envelope ID: FF38FE32-2FB5-412A-80ED-35067589C63A



California State University, Sacramento 
Agreement# MY220785 

Page 6 of 14 

Exhibit “B” 
General Provisions 

 
1. GOVERNING LAW 
 
This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with and governed by the laws of the State of California. 
  
2.  ENDORSEMENT 
 
Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be construed as conferring on any Party hereto, any right to use 
the other Party’s name, trademark, or logo as an endorsement of service or to advertise, promote or 
otherwise market any product or service without the prior written consent of the other Party. Furthermore 
nothing in this Agreement shall be construed as endorsement of any commercial product or service by the 
University its officers or employees. 
 
3. NON-DISCRIMINATION POLICY 
 
During the performance of this Contract, neither Party shall not unlawfully discriminate, harass or allow 
harassment, against any employee or applicant for employment because of sex, sexual orientation, race, 
color, ancestry, religious creed, national origin, disability (including HIV and AIDS), medical condition, 
age, marital status, and denial of family care leave. Both Parties shall insure that the evaluation and 
treatment of their employees and applicants for employment are free from such discrimination and 
harassment.  
 
4.   INDEMNIFICATION 
 
SCUSD  shall defend, indemnify, and hold Sacramento State its officers, employees, and agents harmless 
from and against any and all liability, loss, expense (including reasonable attorneys’ fees), or claims for 
injury or damages arising out of the performance of this Agreement but only in proportion to and to the 
extent such liability, loss, expense, attorneys’ fees, or claims for injury or damages are caused by or result 
from the negligent or intentional acts or omissions of SCUSD, its officers, employees or agents. 
 
5. DEPOSIT OF REVENUES IN APPROPRIATE UNIVERSITY ACCOUNTS 
 
All monies received by the University, its divisions, departments, and centers as a result of the execution of 
this agreement shall be deposited in an appropriate University account.  
 
6.  INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 
 
It is understood and agreed that both parties are self-insured public agencies of the State of California. 
The University maintains self-insurance programs to fund its General Liability, Professional Liability, 
Motor Vehicle Liability and Worker’s Compensation.  
 
7. ASSUMPTION OF RISK / ADDITIONAL EXPENDITURES 
 
Any entity which is a Party to this agreement with the University, shall assume the risk of personal injury 
and property damage attributable to the willful acts, omissions or negligence of that entity, its officers, 
employees and agents. In the event that the entity is required to obtain any permit, license or authorization as 
a prerequisite to performing its obligations under this agreement, those costs shall be borne by the entity 
required to obtain the permit, license or authorization. 
      
 
       

DocuSign Envelope ID: FF38FE32-2FB5-412A-80ED-35067589C63A



California State University, Sacramento 
Agreement# MY220785 

Page 7 of 14 

8.  AMENDMENTS 
  
This Agreement may be amended at any time by mutual agreement of the Parties without additional 
consideration, provided that before any amendment shall take effect, it shall be reduced to writing and 
signed by both Parties.   
 
9. CANCELLATION  
 
Either Party may terminate for convenience this Agreement by giving the other Party at least thirty (30) 
days' written notice before the effective date of termination. Termination of this Agreement shall not affect 
the rights and obligations of the Parties, which shall have accrued prior to termination.   
 
10. FORCE MAJEURE  
 
No fault, delay or failure to perform on the part of the internal or external entity that is party to this 
Agreement shall be considered a default, delay or failure to perform is otherwise chargeable, if such a 
default, delay or failure to perform is due to causes beyond either Party's reasonable control.   
 
11.  ASSIGNMENTS 
 
Neither Party shall voluntarily or by operation of law, assign or otherwise transfer this Agreement without 
the other Party’s prior written consent.  Any purported assignment in violation of this paragraph shall be 
void. 
 
12.  COUNTERPARTS 
 
This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, 
but all such counterparts together shall constitute one and the same instrument. 
 
13. SEVERABILITY  
 
In the event that any provision of this agreement shall be held invalid by a court or administrative law judge, 
such holding shall not invalidate or render unenforceable any other provisions thereof. However, should 
such a breach go to the whole contract, then the entire contract is deemed unenforceable.  
 
14.  CAPTIONS 
 
Captions and headings in this Agreement are solely for the convenience of the Parties, are not a part of this 
Agreement and shall not be used to interpret or determine the validity of this Agreement or any of its 
provisions 
 
15. USE OF UNIVERSITY FACILITIES 
 
Use of University facilities is authorized only as outlined in Exhibit “A” Scope of Work of this agreement.   
 
16. INDEPENDENT STATUS 
 
It is understood and agreed that the Parties to this Agreement are independent contractors and that no 
relationship of employer-employee exists between the Parties hereto.  
 
 
 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: FF38FE32-2FB5-412A-80ED-35067589C63A



California State University, Sacramento 
Agreement# MY220785 

Page 8 of 14 

17. USE OF LOGO OR MARKS 
 
Neither Party to this agreement shall use or permit to be used the name, symbols, service marks, trademarks, 
and/or logos of the other Party without prior written consent.  
 
18. EXAMINATION AND AUDIT 
 
For agreements in excess of $10,000, SCUSD shall be subject to the examination and audit by: 

(a) the Office of the University Auditor, and  
(b) the California State Auditor, for a period of three (3) years after final payment under the Contract. The 

examination and audit shall be confined to those matters connected with the performance of the 
contract, including, but not limited to, the costs of administering the Contract. Note: Authority Cited: 
Government Code Section 8546.7; Education Code Section 89045 (c&d), respectively.  

 
19.  COMPLIANCE WITH NLRB ORDERS 
 
SCUSD declares under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that no more than one 
final, unappeasable finding of contempt of court by a federal court has been issued against Contractor within 
the immediately preceding two-year period because of Contractor's failure to comply with an order of a 
federal court to comply with an order of the National Labor Relations Board. Note: Cite Authority: PCC 
10296 

 
20. DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE CERTIFICATION   
 
Both Parties certify that they shall comply with the requirements of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1990 
and shall provide a drug-free workplace.  
 
 21. EXPATRIATE CORPORATIONS 

 
SCUSD declares and certifies that it is not an expatriate corporation, and is not precluded from contracting 
with the University by The California Taxpayer and Shareholder Protection Act of 2003, Public Contract 
Code Section 10286, et seq.  
 
22. NOTICES 
 
Notices required under this Agreement shall be sent to the Parties at the addresses set forth below: 
 
Sacramento City Unified School District  California State University, Sacramento 
5735 47th Avenue  6000 J Street, MS 6008 
Sacramento, CA 95824  Sacramento, CA 95819 
Attn: Coordinator 
Health Services 

 Attn: Contract Specialist 
Procurement and Contract Services 

Jacqueline-garner@scusd.edu  k.paclibar@csus.edu  
 
23. ENTIRE AGREEMENT 
 
This Agreement sets forth the entire agreement between the Parties and fully supersedes any and all prior 
agreements or understandings, written or oral, between the Parties pertaining to the subject matter hereof. 
  

DocuSign Envelope ID: FF38FE32-2FB5-412A-80ED-35067589C63A



California State University, Sacramento 
Agreement# MY220785 

Page 9 of 14 

Exhibit C 
School Nurse Residency Participant Agreement 

 
School Nurse Resident Name:   

 
 
 
 

School Nurse Residency 

Rules and Regulations 
 
 
Article I: GENERAL 
 

1. Definitions 
a. School Nurse Resident is defined as a currently practicing School Nurse employed within 

a school district and participating in the CSUS School Nurse Credential Program through 
the HRTP grant. 

 
b. The School Nurse Residency Committee is composed of representatives from the partners 

who oversee the program, provide guidance and ensure that the conditions of the grant 
are met. 

 
c. The Nurse Preceptor is a credentialed school nurse who meets the requirements for the 

clinical practicum as defined by the education partner and is employed by a partner 
district. 

 
d. An Educational Partner is the university or college program that is providing the Education 

Program, including a degree and/or credential program. 
 

e. The Grant Coordinator is a representative of the grantee district coordinating the 
maintenance and distribution of grant documents and processing grant payments. 

 
2. All School Nurse Residents shall conform to these rules and regulations outlined below during 

their school nurse residency. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: FF38FE32-2FB5-412A-80ED-35067589C63A



California State University, Sacramento 
Agreement# MY220785 

 

3. All School Nurse Residents must follow all applicable laws, policies, procedures and/or practices 
of their employer. These may include, but are not limited to, fingerprinting, mandated reporting 
responsibilities, professional behavior, conduct and attire and grooming, etc. 

 
4. School Nurse Residents requested to appear before the committee shall appear as requested. 

 
5. All School Nurse Residents must adhere to the term of the School Nurse Residency Program, 

which is approximately one year in length and supplemented by the required instruction for the 
school nurse credential. 

 
6. It is the sole responsibility of each School Nurse Resident to maintain a current address, email 

address, and telephone number with the assigned Educational Partner and the School Nurse 
Residency Program. 

 
7. All individuals entering the School Nurse Residency program shall complete an orientation, during 

which these rules and regulations, apprenticeship program standards, and other applicable 
guidelines will be reviewed. In addition, the School Nurse Resident will read and sign all State and 
Federal documents required to enter the program. 

 
8. Each School Nurse Resident shall meet the work schedule requirements of their employer. 

 
9. Each School Nurse Resident shall develop and practice safe working habits and work in such a 

manner as to assure his/her personal safety and that of fellow workers. 
 

10. Each School Nurse Resident shall work for the employer for the duration of the School Nurse 
Residency unless the Resident is reassigned to another employer or the agreement is terminated 
by the employer or the School Nurse Residency Program. 

 
11. Each School Nurse Resident shall satisfactorily perform all work and learning assignments and 

shall comply with the rules, regulations and decisions of the employer and School Nurse Residency 
Program. 

 
12. School Nurse Residents must complete the application to the School Nurse Credential Program 

and provide all required documentation according to university deadlines. Upon admission to the 
School Nurse Credential Program. School Nurse Residents shall coordinate with the Education 
Program to determine which courses will be taken each semester. It is the sole responsibility of 
the School Nurse Resident to register for the mutually agreed upon courses and report any 
conflicts or questions to the Grant Coordinator immediately. 

 
13. All School Nurse Residents must adhere to the University Academic Honesty Policy and Honor 

Code. 
 

14. School Nurse Residents must notify their immediate supervisor and the School Nurse Residency 
Program coordinator of the need to take leave from the program. If leave is granted by the 
Education Program and the Program Committee, the School Nurse Resident may reapply/re-
enter in the following program term. 

 
15. All School Nurse Residents will conduct themselves in an appropriate manner at all times. A School 

Nurse Resident that is detrimental to the school residency or the educational program will be 
cited to appear before the School Nurse Residency Program Committee at the next 

DocuSign Envelope ID: FF38FE32-2FB5-412A-80ED-35067589C63A



California State University, Sacramento 
Agreement# MY220785 

 

scheduled meeting for disciplinary action and/or removal from the program. All School Nurse Residents will 
also conduct themselves according to the employer’s code of conduct, policies, and internal rules and 
regulations relating to disciplinary action in conjunction with School Nurse Residency Program rules and 
regulations. 

 
16. School Nurse Residents will advance in the program by demonstrating proficiency in the learning 

competencies for their program. The School Nurse Resident shall have satisfactorily completed 
the School Nurse Credential Program to qualify for advancement according to the bargaining 
agreement salary schedule. 

 
17. The Education Program may grant the School Nurse Resident credit for previous coursework. The 

credit will be based on the Education Program policies. 
 
Article II: PROGRAM PARTICIPATION 
 

1. Tuition and fees shall be paid by the School Nurse Residency program to the education provider. 
 

2. The Nurse Residency agreement may be canceled at the request of the School Nurse Resident, or 
may be suspended or canceled by the employer, following the employer's disciplinary and 
evaluation procedures, for reasonable cause after documented due notice to the School Nurse 
Resident and a reasonable opportunity for corrective action. 

 

3. If the School Nurse Resident returns/is readmitted to the Education Program, they will be 
responsible for the tuition and fees previously paid on their behalf. 

 
4. If the School Nurse Resident is not readmitted to the program they will be responsible for 

reimbursing the tuition/fees paid by the program on their behalf. 
 

Article III: EDUCATIONAL REQUIREMENTS 
 

1. Academic Performance 
a. The School Nurse Residency Committee is authorized to review the progress of each 

School Nurse Resident at any point during the program to determine whether they are 
making satisfactory progress and is entitled to remain within the program. 

b. School Nurse Residents must meet the attendance, academic probation policy, code of 
conduct, and rules and regulations requirements of the assigned Educational Partner. 

c. School Nurse Residents who receive a failing grade must appear before the School Nurse 
Residency Committee. A failed course may be repeated, as determined by academic 
policy. 

d. School Nurse Residents will be responsible for tuition and course fees for any courses 
repeated due to course failure. 

e. A School Nurse Resident who receives two failing grades within the term of the 
apprenticeship program may be terminated from the apprenticeship. 

 
2. Attendance 

a. School Nurse Residents must register for and attend all courses designated in the 
progression for the educational program. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: FF38FE32-2FB5-412A-80ED-35067589C63A



California State University, Sacramento 
Agreement# MY220785 

 

b. School Nurse Residents shall attend all classes including; but not limited to synchronous 
online classes,, face-to-face classes, class projects, etc. as required by the instructor and 
university policies, according to the course syllabus. 

c. School Nurse Residents shall register for and attend class as soon as possible after being 
admitted to the program. 

 
3. Class Materials/Supplies 

a. Each School Nurse Resident who is required to purchase TOOLS, TEXTBOOKS, 
WORKBOOKS, MATERIALS (pen, pencil, notebook, backpack, etc.), or other items as 
required by the instructor after registering for the course is eligible to receive a $500 
stipend. If enrolled in the ABC program an additional $250 is added for the NCLEX exam. 

 
4. Progress Reviews from the Education Program faculty. 

a. School Nurse Residents will be evaluated by the educational program faculty according to 
demonstration of specified course objectives. Progress reviews will be requested by the 
School Nurse Residency Committee at least once per semester. 

 
Article IV: EVALUATIONS 
 

1. Supervisor Evaluations 
a. Each School Nurse Resident shall follow the evaluation and wage schedule according to 

the policies of their district of employment. 
b. The workplace performance will be evaluated every six months, or more frequently, 

according to the policies of their district of employment. 
 

2. Progress Reviews from Assigned Mentor/Preceptor 
a. Nurse Preceptors will mentor the School Nurse Resident and evaluate them according to 

the requirements of the program. 
 
Article V: ADVANCEMENT 
 

1. Nurse Residents are eligible for advancement to a clear credential and ongoing employment as a 
school nurse upon satisfactory completion of the Education Program and according to the 
provisions of their district policies and collective bargaining agreements 

 

2. The following are required for an School Nurse Resident to be considered for advancement: 
a. Satisfactory Preceptor evaluation with recommendation for advancement. 
b. Satisfactory attendance report from school site performance 
c. Passing grade in all required courses. 
d. Satisfactorily passing probation according to their district policies, employment contract 

and collective bargaining agreement. 
 

3. Failure to meet any of the above requirements will be justification to deny advancement. 
 
 

Article VI: PROGRAM COMPLETION 

DocuSign Envelope ID: FF38FE32-2FB5-412A-80ED-35067589C63A



California State University, Sacramento 
Agreement# MY220785 

 

1. Each School Nurse Resident must comply with the standards, guidelines, responsibilities, rules 
and regulations and successfully complete the curriculum as defined by the assigned college. 
Upon completion of the program, the School Nurse Resident must submit all required forms and 
documentation according to instructions provided by the Education Agency for review and 
processing of their cleared credential through the CTC. 

 
2. School Nurse Residents understand that the program expects a minimum of a two year 

employment commitment with the same employer after successful completion of the School 
Nurse Residency Program in return for being a recipient of this training program. For participants 
with programs requiring more than one year for certification, the committee may develop 
additional years of employment by mutual consent. 

 

Article VII: DISCIPLINARY ACTION 
 

1. School Nurse Residents will be subject to disciplinary action in the following situations: 
a. Involvement in any inappropriate behavior (as defined by Instructor or Preceptor) during 

educational instruction. 
b. Any violation of School Nurse Residency program policies or procedures. 
c. Any violation of the employer’s policies or procedures. 
d. Any violation of the assigned Educational Partner’s policies or procedures. 
e. Failure to register for classes at the assigned Educational Partner as required by School 

Nurse Residency committee 
f. Failure to appear before the School Nurse Residency committee if requested. 
g. Unsatisfactory Attendance during required classes 
h. Unsatisfactory Instructor’s Report. 
i. Unsatisfactory Preceptors Report. 

 
2. Disciplinary actions that shall be taken include, but are not limited to the following: 

a. Written Warning. 
b. 1 on 1 consultation 
c. Cancellation of School Nurse Resident’s agreement. 

 
3. Procedure for disciplinary action 

a. Written warning 
b. 1 on 1 consultation with the School Nurse Residency committee 
c. The School Nurse Resident appears before the School Nurse Residency committee for 

consultation and “show cause” determination. 
d. If the School Nurse Resident fails to “show cause” as to why the Nurse Residency 

agreement should not be canceled, a Notice of Cancellation with Right to Appeal will be 
sent. 

e. If the School Nurse Resident fails to appeal the cancellation notice within thirty (30) days, 
no further consideration will be given. If a Nurse resident appeals and the School Nurse 
Residency committee finds no grounds for reinstatement, the School Nurse Resident may 
then appeal the cancellation to the Committee as outlined in Section 201 of the California 
Administrative Code. 

f. A Nurse Resident may file a request for appeal as outlined in the attached complaint procedure 

DocuSign Envelope ID: FF38FE32-2FB5-412A-80ED-35067589C63A



California State University, Sacramento 
Agreement# MY220785 

 

regarding any determination by the School Nurse Residency committee in writing, within thirty 
(30) days of receipt of Notice of Cancellation with Right to Appeal. 

 

Article IX: MISCELLANEOUS 
 

1. Any Nurse Resident may request to appear before the School Nurse Residency committee at any 
scheduled meeting. Should the School Nurse Resident have an immediate need or concern, the School 
Nurse Resident is encouraged to request that the School Nurse Residency committee schedule a 
meeting. This may be done by contacting either a committee member or the Grant Coordinator. 

 
2. Upon Satisfactory completion of the program and endorsement by School Nurse Residency Committee 

the School Nurse Resident will receive a “Certificate of Completion of School Nurse Residency” from 
the State of California, Department of Industrial Relations, Division of Apprenticeship Standards. 

 
3. It is the sole responsibility of the School Nurse Resident to notify the Education Program Faculty, the 

Grant Coordinator and their district supervisor in advance (when possible) of a medical condition 
and/or disability that prevents them from working and/or attending class. This is for verification of the 
excused time. This information will remain confidential. 

 
 

THESE RULES AND REGULATIONS IN NO WAY STATE OR IMPLY THAT THESE ARE THE ONLY STANDARDS THAT 
APPLY TO THE SCHOOL NURSE RESIDENCY PROGRAM. A SCHOOL NURSE RESIDENT WILL BE EXPECTED TO 
ABIDE BY OTHER RULES AND REGULATIONS; INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO STATE AND FEDERAL 
STANDARDS. 

 
I HAVE READ AND UNDERSTAND THE FOREGOING RULES AND REGULATIONS. I FURTHER AGREE TO ABIDE BY 
THESE RULES AND REGULATIONS THROUGHOUT THE DURATION OF MY SCHOOL NURSE RESIDENT TERM. 

 
 
 
 

 
School Nurse Resident Signature Date 

 
 
 
 
 

School District Supervisor Signature Date 
 
 
 
 

 
Grant Coordinator Signature Date 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: FF38FE32-2FB5-412A-80ED-35067589C63A



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agreement for Construction Management Services 

between 

Sacramento City Unified School District 

and 

Premier Management Group, Inc. 

 
 

Luther Burbank High School 
New Softball and Baseball Field Improvements  

 
 

Dated: November 16, 2023



 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
 
ARTICLE 1. Definitions ............................................................................................................................................................ 1 

ARTICLE 2. Term ....................................................................................................................................................................... 3 

ARTICLE 3. Scope, Responsibilities and Services of CM ........................................................................................... 3 

ARTICLE 4. CM Staff ................................................................................................................................................................ 5 

ARTICLE 5. Schedule of Work .............................................................................................................................................. 5 

ARTICLE 6. Construction Cost Budget ............................................................................................................................. 6 

ARTICLE 7. Fee and Method of Payment for Basic Services .................................................................................... 7 

ARTICLE 8. Payment for Extra Services ............................................................................................................................ 7 

ARTICLE 9. Ownership of Data ............................................................................................................................................ 8 

ARTICLE 10. Termination of Contract ................................................................................................................................. 8 

ARTICLE 11. Indemnity .......................................................................................................................................................... 10 

ARTICLE 12. Conduct on Project Site and Fingerprinting ....................................................................................... 10 

ARTICLE 13. Responsibilities of the District .................................................................................................................. 11 

ARTICLE 14. Liability of District .......................................................................................................................................... 11 

ARTICLE 15. Insurance ........................................................................................................................................................... 12 

ARTICLE 16. Nondiscrimination ......................................................................................................................................... 15 

ARTICLE 17. Covenant Against Contingent Fees ........................................................................................................ 16 

ARTICLE 18. Entire Agreement/Modification ............................................................................................................... 16 

ARTICLE 19. Non-Assignment of Agreement ............................................................................................................... 16 

ARTICLE 20. Law, Venue ........................................................................................................................................................ 16 

ARTICLE 21. Alternative Dispute Resolution ................................................................................................................. 16 

ARTICLE 22. Tolling of Claims ............................................................................................................................................. 17 

ARTICLE 23. Severability ....................................................................................................................................................... 17 



 

ARTICLE 24. Employment Status ....................................................................................................................................... 17 

ARTICLE 25. Warranty of CM .............................................................................................................................................. 18 

ARTICLE 26. Cost Disclosure - Documents and Written Reports ......................................................................... 19 

ARTICLE 27. Communications / Notice ........................................................................................................................... 19 

ARTICLE 28. RESERVED .......................................................................................................................................................... 19 

ARTICLE 29. District’s Right to Audit ............................................................................................................................... 19 

ARTICLE 30. Other Provisions ............................................................................................................................................. 20 

ARTICLE 31. Exhibits. .............................................................................................................................................................. 21 

 

EXHIBITS “A” – “E” 



 

Agreement for Construction Management Services Page 1 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3772577v1 

AGREEMENT FOR CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT SERVICES 
 

This Agreement for Construction Management Services (“Agreement”) is made as of November 16, 
2023, between the Sacramento City Unified School District, a California public school district (“District”), and 
Premier Management Group, Inc. (“CM”) (both collectively “Parties”), for the following project (“Project”):  

The construction administration of the Luther Burbank New Baseball/Softball Field 
Improvements Project.  

See Exhibit “A” for detailed Project scope. 

The Project may include multiple components. Any one of the components or combination thereof 
may be changed, including terminated, as indicated herein, without changing in any way the remaining 
component(s) or this Agreement. The provisions of this Agreement shall apply to each component without 
regard to the status of the remaining component(s). CM shall invoice for each component separately and 
District shall compensate CM for each component separately on a proportionate basis based on the level 
and scope of work completed for each component. 

For and in consideration of the mutual covenants herein contained, the Parties hereto agree as 
follows: 

ARTICLE 1. Definitions 

1.1 In addition to the definitions above, the following definitions for words or 
phrases shall apply when used in this Agreement, including all Exhibits: 

1.1.1 Agreement: The Agreement consists exclusively of this document 
and all identified exhibits attached and incorporated by reference. 

1.1.2 Architect: The architect(s) that the District designates as being the 
architect(s) for all or a portion of the Project, including all 
consultants to the Architect(s). 

1.1.3 As-Built Drawings (“As-Builts”): Any document prepared and 
submitted by District Contractor that details on a Conforming Set, 
the actual construction performed during the Project, including 
changes necessitated by Construction Change Documents and 
change orders, and detailed by the District’s construction 
Contractor on a Conforming Set.  

1.1.4 Board: The District’s Governing Board. 

1.1.5 Conforming Set: The plans, drawings, and specifications at the 
end of the Bidding Phase that incorporate all addenda, if any, 
issued during the Bidding Phase.  

1.1.6 Construction Budget: The total amount indicated by the District 
for the Project plus all other costs, including design, construction, 
administration, financing, and all other costs. 



 

Agreement for Construction Management Services Page 2 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3772577v1 

1.1.7 Construction Change Documents (“CCD”): The documentation 
of changes to the DSA-approved construction documents. 

1.1.8 Construction Cost Budget: The total cost to District of all 
elements of a Project designed or specified by the Architect, as 
adjusted during and at the end of the design phase in accordance 
with this Agreement and the Agreement for Architectural Services. 
The Construction Cost Budget does not include the compensation 
of the Project Design Team, the Program Manager, the CM and 
any subconsultants, the cost of the land, rights-of-way, or 
financing which are the responsibility of the District. 

1.1.9 Construction Manager: The entity listed in the first paragraph of 
this Agreement.   

1.1.10 Consultant(s): Any and all consultant(s), sub-consultant(s), 
subcontractor(s), or agent(s) to the CM. 

1.1.11 Contractor: One or more licensed and registered contractors 
under contract with the District for construction of all or a portion 
of the Project. 

1.1.12 Design Team: The Architect(s) that the District designates as 
being the architect(s) for all or a portion of the Project, including 
all consultants to the Architect(s), plus all engineer(s) or other 
designer(s), who have a responsibility to the District to design all 
or a portion of the Project either directly or as a subconsultant or 
subcontractor. The term Design Team includes the Design 
Professional in General Responsible Charge on this Project. 

1.1.13 DIR: California Department of Industrial Relations. 

1.1.14 District: The Sacramento City Unified School District. 

1.1.15 District’s Representative: The individual identified herein that is 
authorized to act on the District’s behalf with respect to the 
Project. The initial District’s Representative shall be Chris Ralston, 
Director III of Facilities. District may change the District’s 
Representative by notice as set forth herein. 

1.1.16 DSA: Division of the State Architect in the California Department 
of General Services. 

1.1.17 Extra Services: District-authorized Services outside of the scope 
in Exhibit “A” or District-authorized reimbursables not included 
in CM’s fee. 

1.1.18 Fee: The CM’s Fee is defined in Article 7 and payable as set forth 
in Exhibit “D.”  



 

Agreement for Construction Management Services Page 3 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3772577v1 

1.1.19 Program Manager: Any program manager hired to perform 
program management services for the District, including all 
Consultant(s) to the Program Manager.  

1.1.20 Project Inspector, Inspector of Record, IOR: The agent of the 
DSA at the project site whose primary responsibility will be to 
insure that the project is constructed in compliance with current 
codes; DSA-approved plans and specifications relating to fire life 
safety, structure, and accessibility; and quality controls required of 
a public works facility. The IOR will report to both the DSA and the 
Architect. 

1.1.21 Record Drawings: A final set of drawings prepared by the 
Architect incorporating all changes from all As-Builts, sketches, 
details, and clarifications. 

1.1.22 Service(s): All labor, materials, supervision, services, tasks, and 
work that the CM is required to perform and that are required by, 
or reasonably inferred from, the Agreement, and that are 
necessary for the design and completion of the Project.  

ARTICLE 2. Term 

2.1 Term: This Agreement shall become effective upon final execution, and except 
as otherwise provided herein, will continue in effect until October 1, 2024. 

ARTICLE 3. Scope, Responsibilities and Services of CM 

3.1 Scope: CM shall provide the Services described herein and under Exhibit “A” 
for the Project.  

3.2 Standard of Care: CM, its officers, agents, employees, subcontractors, 
Consultants and any persons or entities for whom CM is responsible, shall 
provide all Services pursuant to this Agreement in accordance with the 
requirements of this Agreement and in a manner consistent with the standard 
of care under California law applicable to those who specialize in providing the 
same services for projects of the type, scope, and complexity of the Project. 
The District’s review, approval of, or payment for any of the Services required 
under this Agreement shall not be construed as assent that CM has complied, 
nor in any way relieve the CM of compliance, with (i) the applicable standard 
of care, or (ii) applicable statutes, regulations, rules, guidelines and 
requirements. 

3.3 Coordination: In the performance of CM’s services under this Agreement, CM 
agrees that it will maintain coordination with District-designated 
representatives as may be requested and desirable. This shall include, without 
limitation, coordination with all members of the District’s Design Team, the 
Project Inspector, and the Program Manager.  



 

Agreement for Construction Management Services Page 4 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3772577v1 

3.4 Other Consultants: If the CM employs sub-consultant(s), the CM shall ensure 
that its contract(s) with its sub-consultant(s) include language incorporating 
the terms of this Agreement. 

3.5 CM’s as District Representative: CM will act as the District’s agent to render 
the Services and furnish the work as described in Exhibit “A,” commencing 
with the receipt of a written Notice to Proceed signed by the District 
Representative. CM’s services will be completed in accordance with the 
schedule attached as Exhibit “C.” During the Project’s Construction Phase, the 
District may require that the Contractors submit all notices and communication 
relating to the Project directly to the CM. 

3.6 Review of General Obligation Bond Program Report and District’s 
Facilities Master Plan: CM will review the District’s Facilities Master Plan for 
the District and other written materials the District makes available by the 
District to CM to understand fully the nature, extent and intent of the Facilities 
Plan and the Project. 

3.7 Review of Measure H: CM will review Measure H and other written materials 
made available by the District to CM that relate to Measure H to fully 
understand the extent of funding available to implement the District’s Master 
Facilities Plan for the District, the anticipated schedule for issuance of Bonds 
under Measure H relative to the anticipated design, bidding and construction 
of projects.  

3.8 Expansion of Work based on Additional Funds: Should the Board decide to 
expand the scope of the Project and/or supplement the Construction Budget 
based upon availability of additional funds, Construction Manager agrees to 
perform the additional scope of work under the fee and cost terms of this 
Agreement. 

3.9 Conflicts of Interest Prohibited:   

3.9.1 CM understands that District officials and employees are 
prohibited from involvement in decisions in which they may have 
a financial interest pursuant to Government Code sections 1090 
and 87100 et seq., and certifies that it does not know of any facts 
indicating that any District official or employee has an ownership 
or other financial interest, direct or indirect, in this Agreement.  
Further, CM hereby certifies that no current District official or 
employee of the District, and no one who has been a District 
official or employee of the District within the past two years has 
participated in bidding, selling or promoting this Agreement.  CM 
understands that in addition to the remedies available at law, that 
any failure to provide an accurate certification or any violation of 
this provision shall make the Agreement voidable by District.  

3.9.2 CM shall not be permitted to submit proposals or otherwise seek 
contracts for the following services to be procured by the District 
in connection with any project covered by this Agreement: Design 



 

Agreement for Construction Management Services Page 5 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3772577v1 

Professional, IORs or Test/Inspection. If CM identifies potential 
Design Professionals, Project Inspectors or Test/Inspection 
services in connection with a project, CM shall affirmatively and 
unequivocally represent and warrant to the District that neither 
CM nor any person who holds equity interest in CM’s organization 
is a former or current holder of any equity interest in the firm 
identified or has any financial interest in the firm identified. District 
reserves the sole discretion to waive this subsection’s 
requirements on a case-by-case basis. 

ARTICLE 4. CM Staff 

4.1 The District selected CM to perform the Services because of the CM’s skills and 
expertise of key personnel.  

4.2 CM agrees that the following key personnel in CM’s firm shall be associated 
with the Project and perform the Services in the following capacities: 

Project Director during construction:  Wayne Sjolund  

Project Manager:     Ryan Perry-Smith  

Construction Manager:    TBD 

Project Engineer     TBD 

4.3 CM shall not change any of the key personnel listed above without the 
District’s prior written approval, unless said personnel cease to be employed 
by CM. Regardless of the reason for the change in key personnel, District shall 
be allowed to interview and retains the right to approve replacement 
personnel.  

4.4 If any designated lead or key person fails to perform to the satisfaction of the 
District, then upon the District’s written notice, the CM will have seven (7) 
calendar days to remove that person from the Project and shall provide a 
replacement person acceptable to the District.  

4.4.1 All lead or key personnel for any Consultant must also be 
designated by the Consultant and are subject to all conditions 
stated in this Agreement. 

4.5 CM represents that the Construction Manager has no existing interest and will 
not acquire any interest, direct or indirect, that could conflict in any manner or 
degree with the performance of Services required under this Agreement. CM 
agrees further that no person having any such interest shall be employed by 
CM. 

ARTICLE 5. Schedule of Work 

CM shall commence work under this Agreement upon receipt of a Notice to Proceed 
and shall prosecute the work diligently as described in Exhibit “A” so as to proceed 



 

Agreement for Construction Management Services Page 6 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3772577v1 

with and complete the Services in compliance with the schedule attached as Exhibit 
“C.” Time is of the essence and failure of CM to perform work on time as specified in 
this Agreement is a material breach of this Agreement.  

ARTICLE 6. Construction Cost Budget 

6.1 CM shall have responsibility, along with the Architect, to develop, review, and 
reconcile the Construction Cost Budget per Project with the Architect and the 
District throughout the design process and construction.  

6.2 The Construction Cost Budget shall be the total cost to District of all Project 
elements the Design Team designs or specifies.  

6.3 CM shall work cooperatively with the Project Design Team throughout the 
Project, including but not limited to, the Schematic Design Phase, Design 
Development Phase, and Construction Documents Phase, as described in 
Exhibit “A,” so that the Project’s construction cost as designed by the Project 
Design Team will not exceed the Construction Cost Budget, as may be adjusted 
subsequently with the District’s written approval. CM shall notify the District if 
it believes the Project’s construction cost of the work by the Project Design 
Team will exceed the Construction Cost Budget, and/or if it believes the 
construction cost as designed will exceed the Construction Cost Budget. CM, 
however, shall not perform or be responsible for any design or architectural 
services.  

6.4 Evaluations of the District’s Construction Budget, and CM’s preliminary and 
detailed cost estimates, represent the CM’s best judgment as a professional 
familiar with the construction industry. 

6.5 If the Bidding Phase has not commenced within ninety (90) days after DSA 
approval of the plans and specifications, the Construction Cost Budget may be 
adjusted at District’s request to reflect changes in the general level of prices in 
the construction industry between the date of submission of the Construction 
Documents to the District and the date on which proposals are sought. 

6.6 The District may, in its sole discretion, do one, or a combination, of the 
following if any of the events in Article 6.7 occur: 

6.6.1 Give CM written approval of an agreed adjustment to the 
Construction Cost Budget. 

6.6.2 Authorize CM to re-negotiate and/or re-bid the Project, when 
appropriate, within three (3) months’ time of receipt of bids, at no 
additional cost to the District (exclusive of District and other 
agencies’ review time). 

6.6.3 Terminate this Agreement if the Project is abandoned by the 
District without further obligation by either party. 

6.6.4 Within three (3) months of receipt of bids, instruct Design Team 
to revise the drawings and specifications (in scope and quality as 



 

Agreement for Construction Management Services Page 7 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3772577v1 

approved by the District) to bring the Project within the 
Construction Cost Budget for re-bidding. CM will perform cost 
estimation, value engineering, constructability reviews, and/or 
bidding support at no additional cost to the District.  

6.7 If any of the following events occur, the District may exercise any one, or any 
combination, of the actions set forth in Article 6.6 above: 

6.7.1 The lowest responsive base bid received is five percent (5%) or 
more in excess of the Construction Cost Budget or  

6.7.2 The combined total of base bid and all additive alternates equal 
or exceed ten percent (10%) of the Construction Cost Budget; or  

6.7.3 The Construction Cost Budget increases in phases subsequent to 
the Schematic Design Phase due to reasonably foreseeable 
changes in the condition of the construction market in the 
Sacramento Area, in so far as these have not been caused by Acts 
of God, earthquakes, strikes, war, or energy shortages due to 
uncontrollable events in the world economy. 

ARTICLE 7. Fee and Method of Payment for Basic Services 

District shall pay CM an amount not to exceed Two Hundred Forty-Seven 
Thousand Dollars ($247,000) for all services contracted for under this 
Agreement and based on the Fee Schedule set forth in Exhibit “D.”    

7.1 District shall pay CM the Fee pursuant to the provisions herein and the method 
of payment set forth in Exhibit “D.” 

7.2 CM shall bill its work under this Agreement on a percent of completion basis 
in accordance with Exhibit “D.”  

7.3 No increase in fee will be due from change orders generated during the 
construction period to the extent caused by CM’s error(s) or omission(s). 

7.4 The CM’s fee set forth in this Agreement shall be full compensation for all of 
CM’s Services incurred in the performance hereof as indicated in Exhibit “D,” 
including, without limitation, all costs for personnel, travel within two hundred 
(200) miles of the Project location, offices, per diem expenses, printing, 
providing or shipping of deliverables in the quantities set forth in Exhibit “A.”  

ARTICLE 8. Payment for Extra Services 

8.1 Any charges for Extra Services shall be paid by the District as described in 
Exhibit “B” at the rates set forth in Exhibit “D” only upon certification of the 
District’s prior written authorization of the claimed Extra Services and the Extra 
Services have been satisfactorily completed.  

8.2 CM shall submit to District a written proposal describing the proposed scope 
of services and listing the personnel, labor duration, rates, and cost. CM shall 



 

Agreement for Construction Management Services Page 8 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3772577v1 

proceed with Extra Services only upon receiving the District’s prior written 
authorization. CM will not be entitled to any compensation for Extra Services 
performed prior to receiving District’s written authorization. 

8.3 If CM performs any Extra Services without the District’s authorized 
representative’s prior written authorization, the District will not be obligated 
to pay for such Extra Services. The foregoing provision notwithstanding, CM 
will be paid by the District as described in Exhibit “B” for Extra Services the 
District’s authorized representative verbally requests, provided CM confirms 
such request in writing pursuant to the notice requirements of this Agreement, 
and proceeds with such Extra Services not earlier than two (2) business days 
after the District receives CM’s written confirmation of the request. 

ARTICLE 9. Ownership of Data 

9.1 All of CM’s work product prepared or generated in connection with this 
Agreement is the District’s property.  

9.2 Upon the District’s request, the CM shall make available to the District all work 
product completed or in progress at the time of such a request. 

9.3 After Project completion or, if the District exercises the right to terminate this 
Agreement pursuant to the Agreement terms, CM shall assemble and deliver 
to District within five (5) calendar days of the District’s written request, all of 
CM’s work product of the generated, prepared, reviewed or compiled in 
connection with this Agreement and the Services and authorized Extra Services 
hereunder. This includes, without limitation, all CM generated documents, 
copies of all documents CM exchanged with or copied to or from all other 
Project participants, and all closeout documents. CM shall be index and 
organize appropriately said Project records for easy use by District personnel.  

9.4 All Project records are District property, whether or not those records are in 
the CM’s possession. District retains all rights to all copyrights, designs, and 
other intellectual property embodied in the plans, record drawings, 
specifications, estimates, and other documents that CM or its Consultants 
prepare or cause to be prepared pursuant to this Agreement. Notwithstanding 
the preceding sentence, CM and its Consultants shall be entitled to reuse work 
product generated under this Agreement. 

ARTICLE 10. Termination of Contract  

10.1 District’s Request for Assurances: If District at any time reasonably believes CM 
is or may be in default under this Agreement, District may in its sole discretion 
notify CM of this fact and request written assurances from CM of performance 
of Services and a written plan from CM to remedy any potential default under 
the terms this Agreement that the District may advise CM of in writing. CM 
shall, within ten (10) calendar days of District’s request, deliver a written cure 
plan that meets the District’s requirements in its request for assurances. CM’s 
failure to provide such written assurances of performance and the required 



 

Agreement for Construction Management Services Page 9 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3772577v1 

written plan, within ten (10) calendar days of request, will constitute a material 
breach of this Agreement sufficient to justify termination for cause. 

10.2 District’s Termination of CM for Cause: If CM fails to perform CM’s duties to 
the District’s satisfaction, or if CM fails to fulfill in a timely and professional 
manner CM’s material obligations under this Agreement, or if CM violates any 
of the material terms or provisions of this Agreement, the District shall have 
the right to terminate this Agreement effective immediately upon the District 
giving CM written notice thereof. In the event of a termination pursuant to this 
subdivision, CM may invoice District for all work performed until the notice of 
termination, but District shall have the right to withhold payment and deduct 
any amounts equal to the District’s costs because of CM’s actions, errors, or 
omissions.  

10.3 District’s Termination of CM for Convenience: District shall have the right in its 
sole discretion to terminate this Agreement for its own convenience. In the 
event of a termination for convenience, CM may invoice District and District 
shall pay all undisputed invoice(s) for work performed until the notice of 
termination. This shall be the only amount(s) potentially owing to CM if there 
is a termination for convenience. 

10.4 CM’s Termination of Agreement for Cause: CM has the right to terminate this 
Agreement if the District does not fulfill its material obligations under this 
Agreement and fails to cure such material default within sixty (60) days of receipt 
of written notice of said defaults, or if the default cannot be cured within sixty 
(60) days, commence to cure such default, diligently pursue such cure, and 
complete the cure within a reasonable time following written notice and demand 
from CM. Such termination shall be effective after receipt of written notice from 
CM to the District. 

10.5 Effect on Pre-Termination Services: Except as indicated in this Article, 
termination shall have no effect upon any of the rights and obligations of the 
Parties arising out of any transaction occurring prior to the effective date of 
such termination. 

10.6 Ceasing Services upon Termination: If, at any time in the progress of 
performing Services under this Agreement, the District determines that CM’s 
Services should be terminated, the CM, upon the District’s written notice of 
such termination, shall immediately cease providing Services, except to 
transfer files as directed by the District. The District shall pay CM only the fee 
associated with the Services provided and approved by District since the last 
paid invoice and up to the notice of termination. 

10.7 Project Suspension: If the Project is suspended by the District for more than 
one hundred and eighty (180) consecutive days, the CM shall be compensated 
for services performed prior to notice of such suspension. When the Project is 
resumed, the schedule shall be adjusted and the CM’s compensation shall be 
equitably adjusted to provide for expenses incurred in the resumption of the 
CM’s Services. CM shall make every effort to maintain the same Project 
personnel after suspension. 



 

Agreement for Construction Management Services Page 10 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3772577v1 

ARTICLE 11. Indemnity  

11.1 To the furthest extent permitted by California law, CM shall indemnify and hold 
free and harmless the District, its Governing Board, agents, representatives, 
officers, consultants, employees, trustees, and volunteers (“the Indemnified 
Parties”) from any and all claims, demands, causes of action, costs, expenses, 
liability, loss, damage or injury of any kind, in law or equity (“Claim”) that arise 
out of, pertain to, or relate to the negligence, recklessness, or willful 
misconduct of the CM, its officers, employees, subcontractors, consultants, or 
agents, including without limitation, the payment of all consequential 
damages.  CM shall also, to the furthest extent permitted by California law, 
defend the Indemnified Parties at CM’s own expense, including attorneys’ fees 
and costs, from any and all Claim(s) and allegations relating thereto with 
counsel approved by District where such approval is not to be unreasonably 
withheld.  

11.2 CM shall pay and satisfy any judgment, award, or decree that may be rendered 
against the Indemnified Parties in any Claim. CM’s obligation pursuant to 
Article 11.1 includes reimbursing the District for the cost of any settlement paid 
by the Indemnified Parties and for any and all fees and costs, including but not 
limited to, legal fees and costs, expert witness fees, and consultant fees, 
incurred by the Indemnified Parties in the defense of any Claim(s), or to enforce 
the indemnity herein. CM’s obligation to indemnify shall not be restricted to 
insurance proceeds.  

11.3 District may withhold from amounts owing to CM any and all costs that arise 
out of, pertain to, or relate to the negligence, recklessness, or willful 
misconduct of the CM.  

ARTICLE 12. Conduct on Project Site and Fingerprinting 

12.1 Unacceptable and/or loud language will not be tolerated. “Cat calls” or other 
derogatory language toward students or public will not be allowed. 

12.2 Drugs, alcohol, and smoking on District property are strictly prohibited. No 
drugs, alcohol and/or smoking are allowed at any time in any building and/or 
grounds on District’s property. No students, staff, visitors or contractors are to 
use drugs on District’s property.  

12.3 Pursuant to Education Code section 45125.2, the District has determined on 
the basis of the scope of Services in this Agreement that CM and its 
subcontractors and employees will have only limited contact with pupils. CM 
will promptly notify the District in writing of any facts or circumstances which 
might reasonably lead the District to determine that contact will be more than 
limited.  Should there be more than limited contact, CM shall comply with the 
provisions of Education Code section 45125.1 regarding the submission of 
employee fingerprints to the California Department of Justice and the 
completion of criminal background investigations of its employees. CM shall 
not permit any employee to have any contact with District pupils until such 
time as the CM has verified in writing to the governing board of the District 



 

Agreement for Construction Management Services Page 11 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3772577v1 

that the employee has not been convicted of a felony, as defined in Education 
Code section 45122.1. CM’s responsibility shall extend to all employees, 
agents, and employees or agents of its Consultants regardless of whether 
those individuals are paid or unpaid, concurrently employed by the District, or 
acting as CM’s independent contractors. CM shall provide to District 
verification of compliance with this section by submitting an executed Criminal 
Background Investigation Certification (Exhibit “E”). 

12.4 For all workers on District property, CM shall comply with all applicable federal, 
state and local laws regarding COVID-19, including but not limited to the 
CDPH’s State Public Health Officer Orders. 

ARTICLE 13. Responsibilities of the District 

13.1 The District shall examine the documents submitted by the CM and shall 
render decisions so as to avoid unreasonable delay in the process of the CM’s 
Services.  

13.2 The District shall provide to the CM as complete information as is available to 
District regarding the District’s Project requirements.  

13.3 The District shall retain design professional(s) whose services, duties and 
responsibilities will be described in written agreement(s) between the District and 
design professional(s). 

13.4 Unless the contract documents require that Contractor provide any of the 
following, the District shall, in a timely manner, and with CM’s assistance, secure, 
submit and pay for necessary approvals, easements, assessments, permits and 
charges required for the construction, use, or occupancy of permanent structures 
or for permanent changes in existing facilities, subject to CM’s and/or the Design 
Team’s duties to recommend or provide same.  

13.5 The District, its representatives, and consultants shall communicate with the 
Contractor either directly or through the CM. 

13.6 The District shall designate an officer, employee and/or other authorized 
representatives to act on the District’s behalf with respect to the Project. The 
District’s Project representative shall be available during working hours and as 
often as may be required to render decisions and to furnish information in a 
timely manner. 

ARTICLE 14. Liability of District 

14.1 Other than as provided in this Agreement, District’s obligations under this 
Agreement shall be limited to the payment of the compensation as provided 
in this Agreement. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, in 
no event shall District be liable, regardless of whether any claim is based on 
contract or tort, for any special, consequential, indirect or incidental damages, 
including but not limited to, lost profits or revenue, arising out of or in 



 

Agreement for Construction Management Services Page 12 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3772577v1 

connection with this Agreement for the services performed in connection with 
this Agreement.   

14.2 CM shall pay to District any and all costs incurred by District, or for which 
District may become liable, to the extent caused by negligent delays, acts, or 
omissions of CM in its performance of its Services.  

14.3 District shall not be responsible for any damage to persons or property as a 
result of the use, misuse or failure of any equipment used by CM, or by its 
employees, even though such equipment be furnished or loaned to CM by 
District.  

14.4 CM hereby waives any and all claim(s) for recovery from the District under this 
Agreement, which loss or damage is covered by valid and collectible insurance 
policies. CM agrees to have its required insurance policies endorsed to prevent 
the invalidation of insurance coverages by reason of this waiver. This waiver 
shall extend to claims paid, or expenses incurred, by CM’s insurance company 
on the District’s behalf. 

ARTICLE 15. Insurance  

15.1 CM shall procure, prior to commencement of Services, and will maintain for 
the duration of the Agreement insurance against claims for injuries to persons 
or damages to property which may arise from or in connection with the 
performance of the work hereunder by the CM, their agents, representatives, 
employees and sub-consultant(s). CM’s liabilities, including but not limited to, 
CM’s indemnity or defense obligations under this Agreement, shall not be 
deemed limited in any way to the insurance coverage required herein. 
Maintenance of specified insurance coverage is a material element of this 
Agreement and CM’s failure to maintain or renew coverage or to provide 
evidence of renewal during the term of this Agreement, as required or when 
requested, may be treated by the District, subject to its sole discretion, as a 
material breach of contract. 

15.2 Minimum Scope and Limits of Insurance: Coverage shall be at least as broad 
as the following scopes and limits: 

15.2.1 Commercial General Liability. Two million dollars ($2,000,000) 
per occurrence for bodily injury, personal injury, property damage, 
death, advertising injury, and medical payments arising from the 
performance of any portion of the Services. If Commercial General 
Liability or other form with a general aggregate limit is used, either 
the general aggregate limit shall apply separately to this 
Project/location or the general aggregate limit shall be twice the 
required occurrence limit.  

15.2.2 Commercial Automobile Liability, Any Auto. Two million dollars 
($2,000,000) per occurrence. 



 

Agreement for Construction Management Services Page 13 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3772577v1 

15.2.3 Workers' Compensation. Statutory limits required by the State of 
California. For all of the CM’s employees who are subject to this 
Agreement and to the extent required by the applicable state or 
federal law, CM shall keep in full force and effect, a Workers' 
Compensation policy. CM shall provide an endorsement that the 
insurer waives the right of subrogation against the District and its 
respective elected officials, officers, employees, agents, 
representatives, consultants, trustees, and volunteers. 

15.2.4 Employer's Liability. One million dollars ($1,000,000) per 
accident for bodily injury or disease. For all of the CM’s employees 
who are subject to this Agreement, CM shall keep in full force and 
effect, an Employers’ Liability policy. That policy shall provide 
employers’ liability coverage with minimum liability coverage of 
Two million dollars ($2,000,000) per occurrence. CM shall provide 
an endorsement that the insurer waives the right of subrogation 
against the District and its respective elected officials, officers, 
employees, agents, representatives, consultants, trustees, and 
volunteers.  

15.2.5 Professional Liability. This insurance shall cover the CM and its 
sub-consultant(s), if any, for two million dollars ($2,000,000) 
aggregate limit subject to no claim deductible, coverage to 
continue through completion of construction plus two years 
thereafter. The policy must contain terms or endorsements 
extending coverage that requires the insurer to defend and 
indemnify for acts which happen before the effective date of the 
policy provided the claim is first made during the policy period. 

15.3 The District reserves the right to modify the limits and coverages described 
herein, with appropriate credits or charges to be negotiated for such changes.  

15.4 Deductibles and Self-Insured Retention: Any deductibles or self-insured 
retention exceeding Twenty-Five Thousand Dollars ($25,000) must be declared 
to and approved by the District. At the option of the District, either:  

15.4.1 The District can accept the higher deductible; 

15.4.2 CM’s insurer shall reduce or eliminate such deductibles or self-
insured retention as respects the District, its officers, officials, 
employees and volunteers; or  

15.4.3 CM shall procure a bond guaranteeing payment of losses and 
related investigations, claim administration and defense expenses.  

15.5 Other Insurance Provisions: The general liability and automobile liability 
policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions:  



 

Agreement for Construction Management Services Page 14 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3772577v1 

15.5.1 All policies except for the worker’s compensation, employer’s 
liability and professional liability insurance policy shall be written 
on an occurrence form. 

15.5.2 The District, its representatives, consultants, trustees, officers, 
officials, employees, agents, and volunteers (“Additional Insureds”) 
are to be covered as additional insureds as respects liability arising 
out of activities performed by or on behalf of the CM; Instruments 
of Service and completed operations of the CM; premises owned, 
occupied or used by the CM; or automobiles owned, leased, hired 
or borrowed by the CM. The coverage shall contain no special 
limitations on the scope of protection afforded to the Additional 
Insureds. All endorsements shall waive any right to subrogation 
against any of the Additional Insureds.  

15.5.3 Any failure to comply with reporting or other provisions of the 
policies including breaches of warranties shall not affect coverage 
provided to the Additional Insureds.  

15.5.4 CM shall pay all insurance premiums, including any charges for 
required waivers of subrogation or the endorsement of additional 
insureds. If CM fails to maintain insurance, District may take out 
comparable insurance, and deduct and retain amount of premium 
from any sums due CM under the Agreement. 

15.5.5 The CM’s insurance shall apply separately to each insured against 
whom claim is made or suit is brought, except with respect to the 
limits of the insurer’s liability.  

15.5.6 Each insurance policy required by this clause shall be endorsed to 
state that coverage shall not be canceled, not renewed, or material 
change in coverage except after thirty (30) days prior written 
notice by certified mail, return receipt requested, has been given 
to the District.  

15.5.7 CM’s insurance coverage shall be primary and non-contributory 
insurance as respects the Additional Insureds with respect to any 
claims related to, arising out of, or connected with the Project. Any 
insurance or self-insurance maintained by the Additional Insureds 
shall be in excess of the CM’s insurance and shall not contribute 
with it.  

15.5.8 Construction Manager shall provide an endorsement that the 
insurer waives the right of subrogation against the District and its 
respective elected officials, officers, employees, agents, 
representatives, consultants, trustees, and volunteers. 

15.5.9 CM shall require all subconsultants to maintain the level of 
insurance CM deems appropriate with respect to the consultant’s 
scope of the Work unless otherwise indicated in the Agreement. 



 

Agreement for Construction Management Services Page 15 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3772577v1 

CM shall cause the subconsultants to furnish proof thereof to 
District within ten (10) days of District’s request. Should CM not 
require subconsultants to provide the same level of insurance as 
is required of CM, as provided in this Agreement, CM is not 
relieved of its indemnity obligations to District or fulfilling its 
insurance requirements as provided in this Agreement. 

15.5.10 If CM normally carries insurance in an amount greater than the 
minimum amounts required herein, that greater amount shall 
become the minimum required amount of insurance for purposes 
of the Agreement. Therefore, CM hereby acknowledges and 
agrees that all insurance carried by it shall be deemed liability 
coverage for all actions it performs in connection with the 
Agreement. 

15.6 Acceptability of Insurers: Insurance is to be placed with insurers admitted in 
California with a current A.M. Best's rating of no less than A:VII. CM shall inform 
the District in writing if any of its insurer(s) have an A.M. Best’s rating less than 
A:VII. At the option of the District, the District may either: 

15.6.1 Accept the lower rating; or 

15.6.2 Require CM to procure insurance from another insurer. 

15.7 Verification of Coverage: Prior to commencing with its provision of Services 
under this Agreement, but no later than three (3) calendar after the Notice of 
Award, CM shall furnish the District with:  

15.7.1 Certificates of insurance showing maintenance of the required 
insurance coverage;  

15.7.2 Original endorsements affecting coverage. The endorsements are 
to be signed by a person authorized by that insurer to bind 
coverage on its behalf. All endorsements are to be received and 
approved by the District before work commences.  

15.8 Copy of Insurance Policy(ies): Upon the District’s request, CM will furnish 
District with a copy of all insurance policies related to its provision of Services 
under this Agreement. 

ARTICLE 16. Nondiscrimination 

CM agrees to comply with the provisions of the California Fair Employment and 
Housing Act as set forth in part 2.8 of division 3 of the California Government Code, 
commencing at section 12900; the Federal Civil Rights Act of 1964, as set forth in Public 
Law 88-352, and all amendments thereto; Executive Order 11246; and all administrative 
rules and regulations found to be applicable to Consultant and all of its subcontractors. 
In addition, Consultant agrees to require like compliance by all of its subcontractor(s).  

 



 

Agreement for Construction Management Services Page 16 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3772577v1 

ARTICLE 17. Covenant Against Contingent Fees 

CM warrants that it has not employed or retained any company or person, other than 
a bona fide employee working solely for the CM, to solicit or secure this Agreement, 
and that it has not paid or agreed to pay any company or person, other than a bona 
fide employee working solely for the CM, any fee, commission, percentage, brokerage 
fee, gift, or any other consideration contingent on or resulting from the award or 
making of this Agreement. For breach or violation of this warranty, the District shall 
have the right to annul this Agreement without liability, or in its discretion, to deduct 
from the contract price or consideration or otherwise recover the full amount of such 
fee, commission, percentage fee, gift, or contingency. 

ARTICLE 18. Entire Agreement/Modification 

This Agreement, including the Exhibits hereto, supersedes all previous contracts and 
constitutes the entire understanding of the Parties hereto. CM shall be entitled to no 
benefit other than those specified herein. No changes, amendments or alterations shall 
be effective unless in writing and signed by both Parties. CM specifically acknowledges 
that in entering into this Agreement, CM relies solely upon the provisions contained in 
this Agreement and no others. 

ARTICLE 19. Non-Assignment of Agreement 

This Agreement is intended to secure the CM’s specialized services. CM may not assign, 
transfer, delegate or sublet any interest therein without the District’s prior written 
consent. Any assignment, transfer, delegation or sublease without the District’s prior 
written consent shall be considered null and void.  

ARTICLE 20. Law, Venue 

20.1 This Agreement has been executed and delivered in the State of California and 
the validity, enforceability and interpretation of any of the clauses of this 
Agreement shall be determined and governed by the laws of the State of 
California.  

20.2 To the fullest extent permitted by California law, Sacramento County shall be 
the venue for any action or proceeding that may be brought or arise out of, in 
connection with or by reason of this Agreement. 

ARTICLE 21. Alternative Dispute Resolution 

21.1 All claims, disputes or controversies arising out of, or in relation to the 
interpretation, application or enforcement of this Agreement may be decided 
through mediation as the first method of resolution. Notice of the demand for 
mediation of a dispute shall be filed in writing with the other party to the 
Agreement. The demand for mediation shall be made within a reasonable time 
after written notice of the dispute has been provided to the other party, but in 
no case longer than ninety (90) days after initial written notice.  

21.2 If a claim, or any portion thereof, remains in dispute upon satisfaction of all 
applicable dispute resolution requirements, the Consultant shall comply with 



 

Agreement for Construction Management Services Page 17 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3772577v1 

all claims presentation requirements as provided in Chapter 1 (commencing 
with section 900) and Chapter 2 (commencing with section 910) of Part 3 of 
Division 3.6 of Title 1 of Government Code as a condition precedent to the 
Consultant’s right to bring a civil action against the District. For purposes of 
those provisions, the running of the time within which a claim must be 
presented to the District shall be tolled from the time the Consultant submits 
its written claim until the time the claim is denied, including any time utilized 
by any applicable meet and confer process.  

21.3 Notwithstanding any disputes, claims or other disagreements between the CM 
and the District, CM shall continue to provide and perform Services hereunder 
pending a subsequent resolution of such disputes.  

ARTICLE 22. Tolling of Claims 

CM agrees to toll all statutes of limitations for District’s assertion of claims against CM 
that arise out of, pertain to, or relate to Contractors’ or subcontractors’ claims against 
District involving CM’s work, until the Contractors’ or subcontractors’ claims are finally 
resolved. 

ARTICLE 23. Severability 

If any term, covenant, condition or provision of this Agreement is held by a court of 
competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void or unenforceable, the remainder of the 
provisions hereof shall remain in full force and effect and shall in no way be affected, 
impaired or invalidated thereby. 

ARTICLE 24. Employment Status 

24.1 CM shall, during the entire term of Agreement, be construed to be an 
independent contractor and nothing in this Agreement is intended nor shall it 
be construed to create an employer-employee relationship, a joint venture 
relationship, or to allow District to exercise discretion or control over the 
professional manner in which CM performs the Services which are the subject 
matter of this Agreement; provided always, however, that the Services to be 
provided by CM shall be provided in a manner consistent with all applicable 
standards and regulations governing such Services.  

24.2 CM understands and agrees that CM’s personnel are not and will not be 
eligible for: membership in, or to receive any benefits from, any District group 
plan for hospital, surgical or medical insurance; membership in any District 
retirement program; paid vacation, paid sick leave or other leave, with or 
without pay; or any other benefits which accrue to a District employee. 

24.3 Should District, in its discretion, or a relevant taxing authority such as the 
Internal Revenue Service or the State Employment Development Department, 
or both, determine that CM or any employee of CM is an employee of District 
for purposes of collection of any employment taxes, the amounts payable 
under this Agreement shall be reduced by amounts equal to both the 
employee and employer portions of the tax due (and offsetting any credits for 



 

Agreement for Construction Management Services Page 18 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3772577v1 

amounts already paid by CM which can be applied against this liability). District 
shall then forward those amounts to the relevant taxing authority. 

24.4 Should a relevant taxing authority determine a liability for past services 
performed by CM for District, upon notification of such fact by District, CM 
shall promptly remit the amount due or arrange with District to have the 
amount due withheld from future payments to CM under this Agreement 
(again, offsetting any amounts already paid by CM which can be applied as a 
credit against that liability). 

24.5 A determination of employment status pursuant to the preceding two 
paragraphs shall be solely for the purposes of the particular tax in question, 
and for all other purposes of this Agreement, CM shall not be considered an 
employee of District. Notwithstanding the foregoing, should any court, 
arbitrator, or administrative authority determine CM is an employee for any 
other purpose, then CM agrees to a reduction in District’s liability resulting 
from this Agreement pursuant to principles similar to those stated in the 
foregoing paragraphs so that the total expenses of District under this 
Agreement shall not be greater than they would have been had the court, 
arbitrator, or administrative authority determined CM was not an employee. 

24.6 Nothing in this Agreement shall operate to confer rights or benefits on persons 
or entities not a party to this Agreement. 

ARTICLE 25. Warranty of CM 

25.1 CM warrants that CM is properly licensed and/or certified under the laws and 
regulations of the State of California to provide the Services that it has herein 
agreed to perform. CM further warrants that all of the work CM performs under 
this Agreement shall comply with all applicable laws, rules, regulations and 
codes of the United States and the State of California. CM also warrants that it 
shall comply with all applicable ordinances, regulations, and resolutions of 
Sacramento County. 

25.2 CM certifies that it is aware of the provisions of the California Labor Code of 
the State of California, requiring every employer to be insured against liability 
for workers compensation or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with 
the provisions of that code, and it certifies that, if applicable, it will comply with 
those provisions before commencing the performance of the work of this 
Agreement. 

25.3 To the extent that the work performed under this contract is subject to labor 
compliance and enforcement by the DIR, CM specifically acknowledges and 
understands that it shall perform the Services while complying with all 
applicable provisions of Division 2, Part 7, Chapter 1 of the Labor Code and 
Title 8 of the California Code of Regulations, including all applicable prevailing 
wage requirements. 



 

Agreement for Construction Management Services Page 19 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3772577v1 

 

ARTICLE 26. Cost Disclosure - Documents and Written Reports 

CM shall be responsible for compliance with California Government Code section 7550, 
if the total cost of the Agreement is over five thousand dollars ($5,000). 

ARTICLE 27. Communications / Notice 

Notices and communications between the Parties to this Agreement may be sent to 
the following addresses by registered or certified mail with postage prepaid, return 
receipt requested, by overnight delivery service, or by personal delivery: 

District: 
 
Sacramento City Unified School District  
5735 47th Avenue 
Sacramento, CA 95824 
ATTN: Tina Alvarez Bevens, Contracts  

CM: 
 
Premier Management Group, Inc. 
133 Riverside Avenue 
Roseville, CA  95678 
ATTN: Wayne Sjolund 

 
If notice is given by registered or certified mail with postage prepaid, return receipt 
requested, it shall be considered delivered on the day the notice is signed for. If notice 
if given by overnight delivery service, it shall be considered delivered on the date stated 
in the proof of delivery.  

CM and District, by notice given hereunder, may designate different addresses to which 
subsequent notices, certificates or other communications will be sent. 

ARTICLE 28. [RESERVED]  

ARTICLE 29. District’s Right to Audit 

29.1 District retains the right to review and audit, and the reasonable right of access 
to CM’s and any Consultant’s premises to review and audit the CM’s 
compliance with the provisions of this Agreement (“District’s Right”). The 
District’s Right includes the right to inspect, photocopy, and to retain copies, 
outside of CM’s premises, of any and all Project-related records and other 
information with appropriate safeguards, if such retention is deemed necessary 
by the District in its sole discretion. The District shall keep this information 
confidential, as allowed by applicable law. 

29.2 The District’s Right includes the right to examine any and all books, records, 
documents and any other evidence of procedures and practices that the 
District determines is necessary to discover and verify whether CM is in 
compliance with all requirements of this Agreement. 

29.3 If there is a claim for additional compensation or for Extra Services, the 
District’s Right includes the right to examine books, records, documents, and 
any and all other evidence and accounting procedures and practices that the 
District determines is necessary to discover and verify all direct and indirect 



 

Agreement for Construction Management Services Page 20 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3772577v1 

costs, of whatever nature, which are claimed to have been incurred, or 
anticipated to be incurred. 

29.4 CM shall maintain complete and accurate records in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting practices in the industry. CM shall make available to the 
District for review and audit all Project-related accounting records and 
documents and any other financial data. Upon District’s request, CM shall 
submit exact duplicates of originals of all requested records to the District. 

29.5 CM shall include audit provisions in any and all of its subcontracts, and shall 
ensure that these sections are binding upon all Consultants. 

29.6 CM shall comply with these provisions within fifteen (15) days of the District’s 
written request to review and audit any or all of CM’s Project-related records 
and information. 

 
ARTICLE 30. Other Provisions 

30.1 CM shall be responsible for the cost of construction change orders caused 
directly by CM’s willful misconduct or negligent acts, errors or omissions. 
Without limiting CM’s liability for indirect or consequential cost impacts, the 
direct costs for which CM shall be liable shall equal its proportionate share of 
the difference between the cost of the change order and the reasonable cost 
of the work had such work been a part of the originally prepared Construction 
Documents. These amounts shall be paid by CM to District or the District may 
withhold those costs from amounts due or to become due to CM. 

30.2 Neither the District’s review, approval of, nor payment for, any of the Services 
required under this Agreement shall be construed to operate as a waiver of 
any rights under this Agreement, and CM shall remain liable to the District in 
accordance with this Agreement for all damages to the District caused by CM’s 
failure to perform any of the Services furnished under this Agreement to the 
standard of care of the CM for its Services, which shall be, at a minimum, the 
standard of care of construction managers performing similar work for 
California public school districts at or around the same time and in or around 
the same geographic area of the District.  

30.3 CM shall share, credit, or reimburse District fifty percent (50%) of the amount 
of any tax deduction and/or credit CM receives for District Projects under the 
Commercial Buildings Energy-Efficiency Tax Deduction, 26 U.S. Code § 179D 
(“Section 179D”).  CM shall provide District with all necessary documentation 
to enable District to verify the amounts of the Section 179D tax deduction.  CM 
shall notify District in writing of the Section 179D tax deduction within 30 days 
of when CM receives IRS notice of the Section 179D tax deduction or receives 
the Section 179D tax refund, whichever occurs first. 

30.4 Each party warrants that it has had the opportunity to consult counsel and 
understands the terms of this Agreement and the consequences of executing 
it. In addition, each party acknowledges that the drafting of this Agreement 



was the product of negotiation, that no party is the author of this Agreement, 

and that this Agreement shall not be construed against any party as the drafter 

of the Agreement. 

30.5 The individual executing this Agreement on behalf of CM warrants and 

represents that she/he is authorized to execute this Agreement and bind the 

CM to all terms hereof. 

30.6 This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of which 

shall be deemed an original. A facsimile or electronic signature shall be 

deemed to be the equivalent of the actual original signature. All counterparts 

so executed shall constitute one Agreement binding all the Parties hereto. 

ARTICLE 31. Exhibits. 

Exhibits "A" through "E" attached hereto are hereby incorporated by this reference and 

made a part of this Agreement. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement on the date(s) indicated 

below. 

SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT PREMIER MANAGEMENT GROUP, INC. 

By: 

Janea Marking 

Chief Business Officer 

Date: 

Agreement for Construction Management Services 

Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK OMS 3772577vl 

By: 

Date: 

Page 21 



DWK DMS 3772577v1 

EXHIBIT "A" 
 

RESPONSIBILITIES AND SERVICES OF CONSTRUCTION MANGER 
 

Page 

1. BASIC SERVICES .................................................................................................................................................................... 1 
2. GENERAL PROJECT SERVICES ......................................................................................................................................... 4 
3. PRECONSTRUCTION PHASE ............................................................................................................................................ 5 
4. PRE-BID PHASE ..................................................................................................................................................................... 7 
5. BIDDING PHASE ................................................................................................................................................................... 7 
6. CONSTRUCTION PHASE ................................................................................................................................................... 8 
7. PROJECT COMPLETION .................................................................................................................................................. 11 
8. FINAL DOCUMENTS......................................................................................................................................................... 12 



 

EXHIBITS Page A-1 
Agreement for Construction Management Services 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3772577v1 

EXHIBIT “A” 

RESPONSIBILITIES AND SERVICES OF CONSTRUCTION MANAGER 

Construction Manager (“CM”) shall provide professional services necessary for completing the following: 

1. BASIC SERVICES 

1.1. Provide work which shall comply with professional standards and applicable requirements 
of federal, state, and local law. 

1.2. Monitor and advise the District as to all material developments in the Project. Maintain 
reporting systems for scope, sequencing, scheduling, budgets and communication for the 
Project using existing District software. 

1.3. Be the focal point of all communication to and from construction Contractor(s). 

1.4. Implement methods to budget and track all expenditures on the Project. CM shall generate 
monthly reports to the District reflecting this information. 

1.5. Prepare methods to track and report on schedule status for the Project. CM shall develop 
master schedules and milestone schedules for the Project, and shall report on same each 
month to the District. 

1.6. CM shall work cooperatively with District to anticipate and maintain a schedule of 
upcoming Board information and action items and shall prepare reports, background 
materials, and preliminary materials in District-specified format.  

1.7. CM shall work cooperatively with the Design Team and the District to: 

1.7.1. Define and schedule the Project.  

1.7.2. Provide Services that will result in the development of an overall Project strategy 
with regard to phases, construction schedules, timing, budget, prequalification, 
contactor and consultant procurement, construction materials, building systems, 
and equipment. 

1.8. Organize an initial planning workshop to create baseline parameters for the Project(s), to 
define overall building requirements, Project(s) strategy, conceptual budget and schedule. 
Pursuant to understandings reached at these meetings, CM will develop an implementation 
plan that identifies the various phases of the Project(s), coordination among phases, and 
budget and time constraints for each phase of the Project. The plan will include a detailed 
strategy, Project Budget and Project schedule as well as identification of critical events and 
milestone activities. 

1.9. Perform constructability reviews, determine construction feasibility, availability of materials 
and labor, time requirements for installation and construction, and factors related to cost, 
including costs of alternative designs, of materials, preliminary budgets, and possible 
economies. 



 

EXHIBITS Page A-2 
Agreement for Construction Management Services 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3772577v1 

1.10. Interface with the Contractor and all subcontractors during construction to ensure that the 
District is provided with an acceptable Project and the best value for taxpayer dollars. 

1.11. Advise the District as to the regulatory agencies that have jurisdiction over any portion or 
all of the Project, and as to coordination with and implementation of the requirements of 
the regulatory agencies, including without limitation DSA. 

1.12. Contract for or employ, at CM’s expense, sub-consultant(s) to the extent deemed necessary 
for CM’s services. Nothing in the foregoing shall create any contractual relationship 
between the District and any sub-consultant(s) employed by the CM under terms of this 
Agreement. 

1.13. Cooperate with the District, Board, and other professionals employed by the District for the 
design, coordination or management of other work related to the Project, including District 
staff and consultants, project manager(s), citizens’ oversight committee, other District 
committees, and the community to facilitate the timely completion of the Project within 
Board-approved budgets and to District design standards.  

1.14. Chair, conduct and take minutes of periodic meetings between District and its design 
professional(s), the Site Committee meetings, and construction meetings during the course 
of the Project. CM shall invite the District and/or its representative and the Project Inspector 
to participate in these meetings. CM shall keep meeting minutes to document comments 
generated in these meetings. 

1.15. Develop for District approval a Project time schedule at the start of Project development 
that does the following: 

1.15.1. Provides sufficient time for prequalification, and if necessary the resolution of 
any appeals, bidding, and, if necessary, rebidding, or negotiating if applicable, 
the Project;  

1.15.2. Coordinates and integrates the design professional(s)’ design efforts with 
bidding schedules;  

1.15.3. Includes realistic activity sequences and durations, allocation of labor and 
materials and delivery of products requiring long lead-time procurement; and 

1.15.4. Takes into account the District’s occupancy requirements (showing portions of 
the Project having occupancy priority and ongoing operational occupancy 
requirements).  

1.16. Be responsible for the professional quality and technical accuracy of all cost estimates, 
constructability reviews, studies, reports, projections, opinions of the probable cost of 
construction, and other services furnished by CM under this Agreement as well as 
coordination with all Master Plans, studies, reports and other information provided by 
District to CM. CM shall, without additional compensation, correct or revise any errors or 
omissions in materials it generates. 

1.17. Maintain a log of all meetings, site visits or discussions held in conjunction with the work 
of the Project, with documentation of major discussion points, observations, decisions, 



 

EXHIBITS Page A-3 
Agreement for Construction Management Services 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3772577v1 

questions or comments. These shall be furnished to the District and/or its representative 
for inclusion in the overall Project documentation. 

1.18. Coordinate transmittal of documents to regulatory agencies for review and advise the District 
of potential problems in completion of such reviews. 

1.19. Prepare a bidders list for each bid package for approval by the District. 

1.20. Assistance with administration of the prequalification process;  

1.21. Assistance in development of documents necessary or appropriate for bidding the 
Construction Contract for the Project;  

1.22. Development of bidders’ interest in a Project, including but not limited to telephonic and 
correspondence campaigns and preparing and placing notices and advertisements to solicit 
bids for the Project(s);  

1.23. Assistance in conducting job walks and bidders’ conferences and the maintenance and 
preparation of minutes of job walks or bidder’s conferences;  

1.24. Assistance in responding to bidders’ inquiries and the development of bid addenda as 
necessary or appropriate;  

1.25. Review of bid proposals for responsiveness to bid requirements, evaluation of bidder 
responsibility, and analysis of completed questionnaires; 

1.26. Interviewing possible bidders, references, bonding agents and financial institutions;  

1.27. Preparing recommendations for the District for pre-qualification of prospective bidders; 

1.28. Tabulations and evaluation of bid results along with a recommendation for award of the 
Construction Contract for a Project;  

1.29. Assisting with resolution of any appeals;  

1.30. For Lease Leaseback projects, coordinate Request for Qualifications/Proposals (“RFP”) process 
and assist in negotiation of agreements, including, Site Lease and Facilities Lease with 
guaranteed maximum price; and 

1.31. Preparation of agenda items for Board approval. 

1.32. Provide documentation, pictures, and other information and assistance to the District for the 
District’s use on a website for public access to show Project status. 

1.33. Provide direction and planning to ensure Project adherence to applicable environmental 
requirements, such as those emanating from the Environmental Protection Agency (“EPA”), 
Cal/EPA, the California Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA”), and State of California laws, 
regulations and rules. CM shall comply with, and ensure that all Consultants, all Contractors 
and their subcontractors and design professionals and their subconsultants comply with, any 
storm water pollution prevention plans, other storm water management program and other 
environmental impact mitigation requirements that are approved by the District and 
applicable to the Project, at no additional cost to the District. 



 

EXHIBITS Page A-4 
Agreement for Construction Management Services 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3772577v1 

1.34. Cooperate and implement District’s reporting to and interface with the Labor Commissioner’s 
Office, including but not limited to: 

1.34.1. Registering public works project with the Department of Industrial Relations (DIR) 
within thirty (30) days of the award, but in no event later than the first day in which 
a contractor has workers employed upon the public work; 

1.34.2. Requiring proof of public works contractor registration before accepting a bid or 
awarding a contract; and 

1.34.3. Reporting any suspected public works violations to the Labor Commissioner. 

1.35. CM shall maintain accurate Project cost accounting records maintained with generally 
accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”) on authorized work performed under unit costs, 
actual costs for labor and material, or other basis for maintaining required accounting records. 
CM shall provide accounting records to the District on a monthly basis, or as reasonably 
requested by District. CM shall afford the District access to these records and preserve these 
records for a period of three (3) years after final payment, at no cost to the District. 

1.36. Assist Architect with the preparation of an estimate of costs for all addenda and coordinate 
with Architect to submit the estimate to the District for approval. Assist and coordinate with 
Architect as required to adjust the Construction Cost Budget and other Project costs as 
indicated in this Agreement and as required in the Agreement for Architectural Services. 

1.37. Provide and maintain a management presence on the Project site. 

1.38. CM is NOT responsible for: 

1.38.1. Ground contamination or hazardous material analysis. 

1.38.2. Any asbestos testing, design or abatement; however, it shall coordinate and 
integrate its work with any such information provided by District. 

1.38.3. Compliance with the California Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA”), except that 
CM agrees to coordinate its work with that of any CEQA consultants retained by 
the District, and the work of Contractor and the Design Team to provide current 
information for use in CEQA compliance documents and to identify and carry out 
mitigation measures. 

1.38.4. Historical significance report. 

1.38.5. Soils investigation. 

1.38.6. Geotechnical hazard report. 

1.38.7. Topographic survey, including utility locating services. 

2. GENERAL PROJECT SERVICES 

2.1 General: Monitor and advise the District and Program Manager as to all material 
developments on the Project. CM shall implement with District approval reporting methods 
developed by Program Manager for schedules, cost and budget status. The CM shall be 



 

EXHIBITS Page A-5 
Agreement for Construction Management Services 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3772577v1 

the focal point of all communication to and from construction Contractor and shall be 
copied on all communications between the District and its Design Team. 

2.2 Scheduling: Track and report on schedule status for Project. The CM shall develop Project 
master schedules and milestone schedules, and review and approve Contractor project 
schedules and milestone schedules for the project per specifications, and shall report on 
same each month to the District and Program Manager. 

2.3 Cost Controls: Implement methods to track construction expenditures on the Project using 
methods developed by Program Manager. The CM shall generate monthly reports to the 
District reflecting this information. 

3. PRECONSTRUCTION PHASE 

3.1 To the extent requested by District or Program Manager, assist with providing overall 
coordination of the Project; serve as the focal point of communication, transmitting 
information to the District and Design Team on general aspects of the Project, including 
planning, scheduling, cost management, progress reporting, design review, dispute 
resolution, and documentation. Communications from the construction Contractor to the 
District and Design Team shall be through the CM. The CM shall receive simultaneous 
copies of all written communications from the District or the Design Team to the 
construction Contractor. 

3.2 To the extent requested by District or Program Manager, assist with the detailed definition 
of project scope, budget, and schedule, as needed. Review and reconcile cost estimates 
from the assigned architect and coordinate peer review estimates when requested by the 
District. Advise the District regarding owner-supplied equipment and other potential cost-
saving measures. 

3.3 To the extent requested by District or Program Manager, assist the District in the solicitation 
and retention of design and engineering consultants, and coordinate design consultants’ 
activities and delivery schedules, as needed. Provide value engineering and life cycle cost 
analysis.  

3.4 Provide design-phase services in conjunction with the architecture firms awarded the 
Project by the District. Work with the Architect to conform and refine designs to correlate 
designs to budget and Facilities Master Plan, if applicable. Review design documents for 
constructability, scheduling, consistency, and coordination during schematic and design 
development phases of work. Perform constructability reviews at appropriate stages of 
design. Assist with verification of site conditions. Expedite design reviews, including 
modifications. Keep accurate documentation of all discussions with users regarding scope 
and resolution. 

3.5 Prepare and maintain a Construction Management schedule for the Project. Prepare a 
procurement plan and move in occupancy planning, where required.  

3.6 To the extent requested by District or Program Manager, assist with monitoring and 
reporting to the District on status of design and state approval in relation to the schedule 
for the Project. Attend meetings to coordinate design efforts for the Project. Assist in 
identifying and obtaining all necessary approvals. 



 

EXHIBITS Page A-6 
Agreement for Construction Management Services 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3772577v1 

3.7 To the extent requested by District or Program Manager, assist with soliciting proposals, 
evaluate, and recommend other professional consultants needed to complete the Project.  

3.8 Implement District-approved implementation procedures, forms and reporting 
requirements for the Project that involve all members of the Project team, including the 
District, Design Team, and construction Contractor. 

3.9 Work with the Design Team and District to develop the final sizes, choice of materials, 
services and utilities and other detailed design and performance criteria of the Project.  

3.10 To the extent requested by District or Program Manager, provide value engineering at the 
Schematic Design and/or 100% Design Development Phase. This evaluation will consist of 
a review of the proposed materials, equipment, systems and other items depicted in the 
design documents and shall be coordinated with the District’s design guidelines and design 
professional(s). The CM will prepare a value engineering report documenting the results of 
the evaluation and make recommendations to the District with respect to alternatives, 
deletions, or amendments of such proposed items that pertain to the anticipated 
construction costs, useful life, maintenance and operational costs and efficiencies. The CM 
shall provide to the District value engineering recommendations and cost/benefit analysis 
of those recommendations. 

3.11 Perform or subcontract for constructability reviews of the Project at the Design 
Development Phase and at 90% of the Construction Documents Phase. The CM shall review 
the design documents for clarity, consistency, constructability and coordination. The results of 
the review shall be provided in writing and as notations on the documents to the District. The 
CM shall also make recommendations to the District with respect to constructability, 
construction cost, sequence of construction, and construction duration.  

3.12 Develop master bid/award schedule(s) including construction milestones for the Project 
through the completion of construction, as directed by the District, in coordination with 
design professional(s) and advise and consult with the District. CM shall review and approve 
construction Contractor‘s schedules, but shall not dictate any construction Contractor‘s 
means and/or methods of performance. 

3.13 Establish schedules for any Consultant, and for any hazardous materials or other testing, 
and review costs, estimates, and invoices of each. 

3.14 Implement a management control system to support such functions as planning, 
organizing, scheduling, budgeting, reporting progress, and identifying and documenting 
problems and solutions for the Project. Prepare monthly progress reports for the District 
regarding the schedule for the Project. 

3.15 To the extent requested by District or Program Manager, organize an initial planning 
workshop to create baseline parameters for the Project, to define overall building 
requirements, Project strategy, conceptual budget and schedule.  Pursuant to 
understandings reached at these meetings, Construction Manager will develop an 
implementation plan that identifies the various phases of the Project, coordination 
among phases, and budget and time constraints for each phase of the Project.  The plan 
will include a detailed strategy, master budget and master schedule as well as 
identification of critical events and milestone activities. 



 

EXHIBITS Page A-7 
Agreement for Construction Management Services 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3772577v1 

 
3.16 To the extent requested by District or Program Manager, provide updated cost estimates 

for the Project at the Schematic Design, Design Development, and Construction Documents 
Phases as directed by District; coordinate with design professional(s) and reconcile cost 
estimates with design professional(s)’ estimates. 

3.17 Advise District regarding “green building” technology and lifecycle costing, when 
applicable. 

3.18 Fully coordinate all changes requested by any utility company needed to complete the 
Project. 

3.19 Review and tailor the District’s front end documents for the Project. Recommend the 
number of days required for the construction phase (and any sub-phases, such as 
hazardous material abatement) and recommend the amount of the liquidated damages.  

4. PRE-BID PHASE 

4.1 Develop master schedules and construction schedules for the Project. Develop budget(s) 
for the Project based on construction cost estimates. 

4.2 In consultation with the District and according to District-approved policies, procedures, 
and standards, implement procedures, forms, and reporting requirements for the Project. 
Establish, accordingly, a communications procedure for the Project that allows for decision 
making at appropriate levels of responsibility and accountability. 

4.3 Work with the Program Manager and Design Team to modify or add to standard, special, 
or general conditions for contract documents that might be needed for unique Project or 
contract conditions, for the District’s approval, and/or assist in the development of 
documents necessary for the bidding phase. 

4.4 To the extent requested by District or Program Manager, make recommendations for 
development and implementation of procedures to comply with applicable bidding or RFP 
requirements for the Project as applicable and for expediting completion of the bidding 
process for the Project. The scope of the foregoing includes without limitation, 
recommendations of CM with respect to: (a) pre-qualification of potential contractors; (b) 
combination of two or more of the Projects for design, bidding and/or construction 
purposes; and (c) alternative construction delivery approaches for the Project, including 
consideration of a single general contractor and/or Lease Leaseback approach to 
construction for each Project. 

5. BIDDING PHASE 

5.1 To the extent requested by District or Program Manager, assist with pre-qualification 
process for the selection of prime and/or sub-contractors based on the detailed definition 
of Project scope, budget, schedule, and programming support. Develop a list of pre-
qualified prime and sub-contractors, as required. 

5.2 Develop bidders’ interest in the Project. Coordinate all bid phase activities with District 
departments. Conduct pre-bid conferences to familiarize bidders with the bidding 



 

EXHIBITS Page A-8 
Agreement for Construction Management Services 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3772577v1 

documents, and any special systems, materials or methods and with Project procedures. 
Conduct job walks and bidders’ conferences, maintain and prepare minutes of job walks or 
bidder’s conferences. Field questions from bidders, referring questions to Design Team and 
District as required. Coordinate with Design Team to respond to bidder questions by 
addenda.  

5.3 Prepare public solicitation notices for District approval. Review, coordinate, and estimate 
cost of bid phase addenda.  

5.4 Review bid proposals for responsiveness to bid requirements, evaluate bidder 
responsibility, and conduct reference checks. Prepare bid analyses and advise the District 
on compliance of bidders with District requirements and bid requirements. Report and 
recommend to the District after review and evaluation. Make recommendations to the 
District for prequalification of bidders and award of contracts or rejection of bids. 

5.5 Conduct post-bid conferences as required. Assist and advise regarding bid protests.  

5.6 If appropriate, coordinate contracting with Contractor awarded the contract, including 
evaluating bonds and insurance, and negotiate final terms of construction contractor’s 
contract(s), if applicable. 

5.7 Conduct pre-award conferences with successful bidders. 

5.8 Schedule and conduct preconstruction meetings. Maintain, prepare, and distribute 
minutes. 

5.9 Assist with the preparation of agenda items for Board approval. Coordinate submittals 
required by governing agencies. 

6. CONSTRUCTION PHASE 

6.1 Administer the construction Contract.  

6.2 Develop detailed construction schedules or review Contractor’s submitted schedules, as 
needed. Administer and coordinate the work of Contractor on a daily basis. Enforce 
performance, scheduling, and notice requirements. Review Contractor’s schedule 
submittals and make recommendations to the District.  

6.3 Monitor schedule and cost information for Contractor. Document the progress and costs 
of the Project. Report and advise proactively on potential schedule and budget variances 
and impacts. Recommend potential solutions to schedule and cost problems. Work 
cooperatively with the District, Architect, and Contractor to ensure that Project is delivered 
on time and within budget. Review construction progress and prepare reports.  

6.4 Verify permits, approvals, bonds, insurances, and schedules of values. Coordinate with DSA 
Project Inspector, and ensure compliance with all DSA reporting and closeout 
requirements. Submit necessary reports to state and local authorities.  

6.5 Monitor the construction Contractor to verify that tools, equipment, and labor are furnished 
and work performed and completed within the time required or indicated by the plans and 
specifications, under the direction and to the satisfaction of the District. The CM expressly 



 

EXHIBITS Page A-9 
Agreement for Construction Management Services 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3772577v1 

agrees to verify that the specifications are met, observed, performed, and followed in 
accordance with the professional standards of care for construction management.  

6.6 Coordinate work of the construction Contractor and effectively manage the Project to 
achieve the District’s objectives in relation to cost, time and quality.  

6.7 Provide continuous on-site construction management personnel, as needed. Conduct 
construction meetings for the Project to discuss and resolve such matters as progress, 
quality and scheduling. Said meetings shall be weekly unless Project conditions do not 
require that frequency. Prepare and promptly distribute minutes. When required by field 
or other conditions, construction progress, or the quality of workmanship, conduct special 
construction meetings; record, prepare, and distribute minutes of these meetings to the 
District, the affected construction Contractor, and Design Team.  

6.8 Establish and implement team communication procedures.  

6.9 Ensure that construction Contractor provides construction schedules as required by the 
construction Contracts, including activity sequences and durations, submittal schedule, or 
procurement schedule for products that require long lead time. The CM shall review 
construction Contractor’s construction schedules for conformity with the requirements of 
the construction Contract and conformity with the overall schedule for the Project. Where 
construction Contractor’s construction schedules do not so conform, the CM will take 
appropriate measures to secure compliance, subject to District approval. 

6.10 Ensure construction Contractor‘s compliance with the requirements of the respective 
construction Contract for updating, revising, and other obligations relative to their 
respective construction schedules.  

6.11 Cost Control. CM shall develop and monitor an effective system of construction cost control 
for the Project. CM shall identify variances between actual and budgeted or estimated costs 
and advise District and design professional(s) whenever a Project cost exceeds budgets or 
estimates. CM shall manage the construction bids and contracts in accordance with the 
Construction Budget.  

6.12 Continually monitor whether construction contract requirements are being fulfilled and 
recommend courses of action to the District when Contractor fails to fulfill contractual 
requirements.  

6.13 The CM may authorize minor variations in the work from the requirements of the contract 
documents that do not involve an adjustment in the contract price or the contract time or 
design and which are consistent with the overall intent of the contract documents. The CM 
shall provide to the design professional(s) and the District copies of these authorizations. 

6.14 Evaluate and process payment applications and verify progress.  

6.15 Verify that safety programs are developed and submitted by the construction Contractor 
as required by the Contract. Neither CM, Project Manager nor District shall be responsible 
for or have any liability for Contractor’s failure to provide, comply with, or enforce said 
safety programs. 



 

EXHIBITS Page A-10 
Agreement for Construction Management Services 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3772577v1 

6.16 Implement quality control program, including As-Built Drawings accuracy. Coordinate and 
evaluate Contractor’s recovery schedules.  

6.17 Record the progress of the Project by a log. 

6.18 Monitor ongoing Project costs to verify that projected costs do not exceed approved 
budget and provide the District timely notice of any potential increase in costs in excess of 
approved budgets provided to CM.  

6.19 Negotiate Contractor’s proposals and review change orders prepared by Design Team, with 
Design Team’s input as needed, for approval by the District. 

6.20 Evaluate and process change order requests. Make recommendations to the District. 
Determine cost and schedule effects of change orders. Prepare change order reports and 
maintain a change order log for the Project and implement procedures to expedite 
processing of change orders. 

6.21 Assist the District in coordinating the services of special consultants and testing 
laboratories on the Project. 

6.22 In conjunction with the Design Team, monitor work of the construction Contractor to 
determine that the work is being performed in accordance with the requirements of the 
respective construction documents for the Project, including but not limited to the plans, 
specifications, addenda, and all other contract documents, as well as all applicable laws, 
regulations and directives of agencies with jurisdiction over any of the Project. As 
appropriate, with assistance of Design Team, make recommendations to the District and 
Program Manager regarding special inspection or testing of work that is not in accordance 
with the provisions of the contract documents.  

6.23 To guard District against defects in the work of the construction Contractor, the CM shall 
implement a quality control program to monitor the quality and workmanship of 
construction for conformity with:  

6.23.1 Accepted industry standards;  

6.23.2 Applicable laws, rules, or ordinances; and  

6.23.3 The design documents and contract documents. 

6.24 Where the work of a construction Contractor does not conform as set forth above, the CM 
shall, with the input of Design Team: 

6.24.1 Notify the District of any non-conforming work observed by the CM; 

6.24.2 Reject the non-conforming work; and  

6.24.3 Take any and all action(s) necessary to compel the construction Contractor to 
correct the work.  

6.25 Evaluate, track, and maintain logs of requests for information (“RFI”) from construction 
Contractor and responses, shop drawings, samples, and other submittals, based, in part, on 



 

EXHIBITS Page A-11 
Agreement for Construction Management Services 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3772577v1 

information obtained from the design professional(s). Advise District and Program 
Manager as to status and criticality of RFIs.  

6.26 Implement procedures, in collaboration with the District, Program Manager and Design 
Team, for expediting the processing and approval of shop drawings, product data, samples, 
and other submittals for each contract. Receive and transmit all submittals from the 
construction Contractor to the Design Team for review and approval. Maintain submittal 
and shop drawing logs. 

6.27 Record the progress of work at the Project. When present, prepare daily reports for the 
Project containing a record of weather, construction Contractor(s) present and their 
number of workers, work accomplished, problems encountered, and other relevant data. 

6.28 Prepare and distribute monthly project status reports for the Project including updates on 
project activities, progress of work, outstanding issues, potential problems, schedule, and 
status of RFIs, change orders, and submittals. 

6.29 Coordinate, assist, and support Architect during construction administration phase as 
required. 

6.30 CM shall maintain records of principal building layout lines, elevations of the bottom of 
footings, floor levels, and key site elevations as provided by the construction Contractor. At 
the completion of the Project, deliver all such records to District. Construction Contractor 
and design professional(s) share responsibility to prepare Record Drawings and As-Built 
Drawings. 

6.31 Coordinate the move into the Projects. 

6.32 Work with District team to develop lists of incomplete or unsatisfactory work (“punch lists”).  

6.33 Fully document and prepare deductive change orders for extra services of consultants that 
are the responsibility of a Contractor or another consultant. Present such a change order 
for signature by the Contractor or consultant.  

6.34 Determine final completion and payment. Determine completion dates, final payments, and 
release of retention. Coordinate procurement and installation of Furniture, Fixtures, and 
Equipment (“FF&E”). 

7. PROJECT COMPLETION 

7.1 The CM shall observe the construction Contractor’s check-outs of utilities, operational 
systems and equipment, and start-up and testing. The CM shall maintain records of start-
up and testing as provided by the construction Contractor and shall ensure the District of 
compliance with applicable provisions of the Contract, that all work has been performed 
and accepted, and that all systems are complete and operative. 

7.2 At the punch list phase of the Project or designated portions thereof, CM, in consultation 
with the Architect, shall ensure the preparation of a list of incomplete or unsatisfactory 
work or work which does not conform to the requirements of the contract documents 
(“punch list work”) and a schedule for the completion of the punch list work. CM shall 
provide this list to the construction Contractor. CM shall coordinate construction 



 

EXHIBITS Page A-12 
Agreement for Construction Management Services 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3772577v1 

Contractor’s performance and completion of punch list work. CM shall review, with the 
Architect and District, the completed punch list work. CM shall ensure that, with input of 
the Architect, the completed punch list work complies with applicable provisions of the 
construction Contract. 

7.3 CM shall determine, with the Architect and District, when the Project or designated portions 
thereof are complete. 

7.4 CM shall conduct, with the Architect and District, final inspections of the Project or 
designated portions thereof. CM shall notify the District of final completion. 

7.5 CM shall consult with the Architect and District and shall determine when the Project and 
the construction Contractor’s work are finally completed. CM shall assist with the issuance 
of a Certificate of Final Completion, and shall provide to the District a written 
recommendation regarding payment to the Contractor. 

7.6 CM shall coordinate close-out procedures, including personnel training. Advise District staff 
on systems operations, training and close-out of Project.  

7.7 CM shall coordinate and expedite Contractor close-out requirements, including 
guarantees/warranties, certificates, keys, manuals, As-Built Drawings, Record Drawings, 
specifications, daily logs, and verified reports. Ensure that all other project participants 
submit necessary close-out documentation. 

7.8 CM shall coordinate operational safety reviews with District post occupancy and manage 
corrective work as necessary. 

7.9 CM shall ensure that all building commissioning requirements have been fulfilled in a timely 
manner through District commissioning agents. 

7.10 CM shall obtain occupancy permits (where required), coordinate final testing, 
documentation, and regulatory inspections. Prepare occupancy plan report. 

7.11 CM shall prepare final accounting reports.  

8. FINAL DOCUMENTS 

The Construction Manager shall review and monitor all As-Built Drawings, maintenance and 
operations manuals, and other closeout documents to be sure that all required documents meeting 
contract requirements are provided, and shall secure and transmit to the District and Program 
Manager those documents and all required guarantees, keys, manuals, record drawings, and daily 
logs.  The Construction Manager shall also forward all documents and plans to the District upon 
completion of the project and ensure all such plans and documents are well organized for any 
appropriate audit or review of the Project. 

9. WARRANTY 

The Construction Manager shall assist Program Manager as necessary to implement a Warranty 
Inspection and Warranty Work procedure for the Project that Contractor must follow.  The 
procedure shall include a twelve (12) month call back period and a final warranty inspection eleven 



 

EXHIBITS Page A-13 
Agreement for Construction Management Services 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3772577v1 

(11) months after Project completion to inspect the Project and identify any outstanding warranty 
work.  

10. PROJECT CLOSEOUT 

To the extent requested by District or Program Manager, the Construction Manager shall assist 
District, Architect, and Program Manager as necessary to ensure all information and documentation 
necessary for Project closeout with the DSA is complete and the Project is timely closed out with 
DSA.  This includes but is not limited to reports from independent consultants, inspectors, testing 
laboratories, and corresponding or required DSA forms. 

 

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK] 
 

 



 

EXHIBITS Page B-1 
Agreement for Program Management Services 
Sacramento City Unified School District  
DWK DMS 3772577v1 

EXHIBIT “B” 

CRITERIA AND BILLING FOR EXTRA SERVICES 

The following Extra Services to this Agreement shall be performed by CM if needed and requested by 
District: 

1. Providing services required because of significant documented changes in the Project initiated by 
the District, including but not limited to size, quality, complexity, or the District’s schedule. 

2. Providing consultation concerning replacement of work damaged by fire or other cause during 
construction and furnishing services required in connection with replacement of such work. 

3. Providing services made necessary by the default of Contractor, or by major defects or deficiencies 
in the work of the Contractor, or by failure of performance of the District’s consultants. 

4. Seeking variances or changes to agency guidelines on behalf of the District when so directed by 
the District. 

5. Preparing to serve or serving as a witness in connection with any public hearing, dispute resolution 
proceeding or legal proceeding, other than that necessitated by the negligent acts, errors or 
omissions of CM or where the CM is a party thereto, except for a Contractor’s hearing necessitated 
by a bid protest or by a Contractor’s request to substitute a subcontractor, or by handling of any 
stop payment notices. 

6. Performing technical inspection and testing. 

7. Providing other services not otherwise included in this Agreement and not customarily furnished in 
accordance with the generally accepted scope of construction management practice. 

Format and Content of Invoices 

CM acknowledges that the District requires CM’s invoices to include detailed explanations of the Services 
performed. For example, a six hour charge for the entire day is unacceptable and will not be payable. A 
more detailed explanation describing specific tasks is required.  



 

EXHIBITS Page B-2 
Agreement for Program Management Services 
Sacramento City Unified School District  
DWK DMS 3772577v1 

Hourly Rates for Extra Services 

1. The following rates, which include overhead, administrative cost and profit, shall be utilized in 
arriving at the fee for Extra Services and shall not be changed for the term of the Agreement. CM 
shall bill in quarter-hour increments for all Extra Services.  

Job Title Hourly Rate 

Project Director $175 

Project Manager $165 

Construction Manager $145 

Project Engineer $115 

 

2. The mark-up on any approved item of Extra Services performed by sub-consultant(s) or 
subcontractor(s) shall not exceed five percent (5%). 

 

 



EXHIBITS Page C-1 
Agreement for Program Management Services 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3772577v1 

EXHIBIT “C” 

SCHEDULE OF WORK 

[To be completed/inserted] 



Milestone & Fee Schedule 

Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun July Aug Sept

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12

Construction Magement Services Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun July Aug Sept Total Rate Total

Project Director TBD 40   40   40   40   40   40   40   40   40  40  40  40  480   175$  84,000$    

Project Manager TBD 10   10   20   20   20   30   30   40   40  40  40  20  320   165$  52,800$    

Construction Manager TBD 40   40   40   40   80   80   80   80   80  80  80  40  760   145$  110,200$    

Project Engineer TBD - 115$  -$    

Total Hours Per Month 90   90   100   100   140   150   150   160   160  160  160  100  1,560   247,000$    

7,000$    7,000$    7,000$    7,000$    7,000$    7,000$    7,000$    7,000$    7,000$    7,000$    7,000$    7,000$    84,000$    84,000$    

1,650$    1,650$    3,300$    3,300$    3,300$    4,950$    4,950$    6,600$    6,600$    6,600$    6,600$    3,300$    52,800$    52,800$    

5,800$     5,800$     5,800$     5,800$     11,600$   11,600$   11,600$   11,600$   11,600$   11,600$   11,600$    5,800$     110,200$   110,200$    

-$         -$         -$         -$         -$         -$         -$         -$         -$         -$         -$          -$         -$            -$    

14,450$   14,450$   16,100$   16,100$   21,900$   23,550$   23,550$   25,200$   25,200$   25,200$   25,200$    16,100$   247,000$   247,000$    

Note: Schedule is based on preliminary discssions and subject to modification.  Hours may need to be adjsuted if work goes beyond this timeline.  

Design Phase: Design Development

Luther Burbank High School Fields Project
2023 2024

Programming, Survey, Site Visits

Design Phase: Documents & Schematics 

Closeout Phase

Project Turnover for Start of School 

2023 2024

Design Phase: Scheduling, Estimates, and Budgets 

Design Phase: Construction Documents 

Submission to DSA (6-8 Weeks, Typ.)

DSA Approved Drawings Received 

Contractor RFP/GMP, Subcontractors, Procurement

Construction Phase 

EXHIBIT C



 

EXHIBITS Page D-2  
Agreement for Program Management Services 
Sacramento City Unified School District  
DWK DMS 3772577v1 

EXHIBIT “D” 

FEE SCHEDULE 

Compensation 

1. The CM’s fee set forth in this Agreement shall be full compensation for all of CM’s Services incurred 
in its performance, including, without limitation, all costs for personnel, travel within two hundred 
(200) miles of the Project location (travel reimbursements must be approved by District prior to 
travel), offices, per diem expenses, office supplies, printing, providing, or shipping of deliverables 
in the quantities set forth in Exhibit “A.” 

2. The amount of compensation shall be the amount set forth in the Agreement, including all billed 
expenses. No compensation will be paid or due, without advance written approval of the District.  

Method of Payment of Basic Services 

1. CM shall submit monthly invoices for the portion of the overall fee reflecting the services performed 
and costs incurred for each respective month. In no event shall the total payments exceed the CM’s 
fee set forth in Article 7 this Agreement except as authorized under Exhibit “B.” 

2. CM shall submit these invoices in duplicate to the District via the District’s authorized 
representative. 

3. CM shall submit to District on a monthly basis documentation showing proof that payments were 
made to his/her sub-consultants. 

4. Upon receipt and approval of CM’s invoices, the District agrees to make payments on all undisputed 
amounts no later than thirty (30) days from receipt of the invoice. 

5. The District may withhold or deduct from amounts otherwise due CM hereunder if CM fails to timely 
and completely perform material obligations to be performed on its part under this Agreement, 
with the amounts withheld or deducted being released after CM has fully cured such failure of 
performance, less costs, damages or losses sustained by the District resulting therefrom. 

 







 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agreement for Architectural Services 

between 

Sacramento City Unified School District 

and 

California Design West Architects 

 
 

Alice Birney Campus Renewal Project 
 
 

Dated: November 16, 2023 



 

Agreement for Architectural Services       Page i 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3771283v1 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

Article 1  Definitions ................................................................................................................................................. 1 

Article 2  Scope, Responsibilities and Services of Architect ...................................................................... 3 

Article 3  Architect Staff .......................................................................................................................................... 7 

Article 4  Schedule of Services ............................................................................................................................. 8 

Article 5  Construction Cost Budget ................................................................................................................... 9 

Article 6  Fee and Method of Payment .......................................................................................................... 10 

Article 7  Payment for Extra Services or Changes ...................................................................................... 10 

Article 8  Ownership of Data .............................................................................................................................. 11 

Article 9  Termination of Contract ................................................................................................................... 12 

Article 10 Indemnity / Architect Liability ........................................................................................................ 14 

Article 11 Fingerprinting and Conduct on Project Site ............................................................................. 15 

Article 12 Responsibilities of the District ........................................................................................................ 15 

Article 13 Liability of District ............................................................................................................................... 16 

Article 14 Nondiscrimination .............................................................................................................................. 16 

Article 15 Insurance ................................................................................................................................................ 16 

Article 16 Covenant against Contingent Fees .............................................................................................. 17 

Article 17 Entire Agreement/Modification ..................................................................................................... 17 

Article 18 Non-Assignment of Agreement .................................................................................................... 17 

Article 19 Law, Venue ............................................................................................................................................. 17 

Article 20 Alternative Dispute Resolution ...................................................................................................... 18 

Article 21 Tolling of Claims .................................................................................................................................. 18 

Article 22 Attorneys’ Fees ..................................................................................................................................... 18 

Article 23 Severability ............................................................................................................................................ 19 

Article 24 Employment Status ............................................................................................................................ 19 

Article 25 Certificate of Architect ...................................................................................................................... 20 

Article 26 Cost Disclosure - Documents and Written Reports ............................................................... 20 

Article 27 Notice & Communications .............................................................................................................. 21 

Article 28 Disabled Veteran Business Enterprise Participation ............................................................... 21 

Article 29 District’s Right to Audit ..................................................................................................................... 21 

Article 30 Other Provisions .................................................................................................................................. 22 

Article 31 Exhibits ”A” through "H" ................................................................................................................... 23 

  



 

Agreement for Architectural Services       Page ii 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3771283v1 

EXHIBIT “A” – RESPONSIBILITIES AND SERVICES OF ARCHITECT A-1 
EXHIBIT “B” – CRITERIA AND BILLING FOR EXTRA SERVICES B-1 
EXHIBIT “C” – SCHEDULE OF SERVICES C-1 
EXHIBIT “D” – PAYMENT SCHEDULE D-1 
EXHIBIT “E” – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS E-1 
EXHIBIT “F” – ROOFING PROJECT CERTIFICATION  F-1 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Agreement for Architectural Services       Page 1 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3771283v1 

AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 

 This Agreement for Architectural Services is made as of November 16, 2023, between the 
Sacramento City Unified School District, a California public school district (“District”), and 
California Design West Architects (“Architect”) (collectively “Parties”), for the following project 
(“Project”):  

Campus Renewal project located at Alice Birney Elementary School at 6251 13th Street, 
Sacramento CA  95831 

For and in consideration of the mutual covenants herein contained, the Parties hereto 
agree as follows: 

Article 1. Definitions 

1.1. In addition to the definitions above, the following definitions of words or 
phrases shall apply when used in this Agreement, including all Exhibits: 

1.1.1. Agreement:  The Agreement consists exclusively of this 
document and all identified exhibits attached and incorporated 
by reference. 

1.1.2. Architect:  The Architect identified in the first paragraph of this 
Agreement, including all Consultants to the Architect.  The term 
Architect means the Design Professional in General Responsible 
Charge on this Project. 

1.1.3. As-Built Drawings (“As-Builts”):  Any document prepared and 
submitted by District’s Contractor(s) that details on a 
Conforming Set, the actual construction performed during the 
Project, including changes necessitated by Construction Change 
Documents and change orders, and detailed by the District’s 
construction contractor(s) on a Conforming Set.   

1.1.4. Bid Set:  The plans, drawings, and specifications at the end of 
the Construction Documents Phase that the Division of the State 
Architect (“DSA”) has approved and that the District can use to 
go out to bid for construction of the Project. 

1.1.5. Conforming Set:  The plans, drawings, and specifications at the 
end of the Bidding Phase that incorporate all addenda, if any, 
issued during the Bidding Phase.  The Architect shall ensure that 
DSA has approved all revisions to the Bid Set that are 
incorporated onto the Conforming Set and for which DSA 
approval is required. 



 

Agreement for Architectural Services       Page 2 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3771283v1 

1.1.6. Construction Budget:  The total amount of funds indicated by 
the District for the entire Project plus all other costs, including 
design, construction, administration, and financing. 

1.1.7. Construction Change Documents (“CCD”):  The 
documentation of changes to the DSA-approved construction 
documents. 

1.1.8. Construction Cost Budget: The total cost to District of all 
elements of the Project designed or specified by the Architect, 
as adjusted at the end of each design phase in accordance with 
this Agreement.  The Construction Cost Budget does not include 
the compensation of the Architect and the Architect’s 
Consultants, the cost of land, rights-of-way, financing or other 
costs which are the responsibility of the District, including 
construction management. 

1.1.9. Construction Manager:  The District’s representative on the 
Project if the District retains a construction manager, project 
manager, or owner’s representative. 

1.1.10. Contractor:  One or more licensed contractors under contract 
with the District for construction of all or a portion of the Project. 

1.1.11. Consultant(s):  Any and all consultant(s), sub-consultant(s), 
subcontractor(s), or agent(s) to the Architect. 

1.1.12. District:  The Sacramento City Unified School District.  

1.1.13. DSA:  The Division of the State Architect. 

1.1.14. Extra Services:  District-authorized services outside of the 
scope in Exhibit “A” or District-authorized reimbursables not 
included in Architect’s Fee. 

1.1.15. Laboratory of Record: The District-designated laboratory(ies) 
for testing of concrete, soils, materials, and other required 
testing. 

1.1.16. Project:  District’s Alice Birney Elementary School Campus 
Renewal Project at 6251 13th Street, Sacramento CA  95831.  

1.1.17. Record Drawings:  A final set of drawings prepared by the 
Architect that incorporates all changes from all As-Builts, 
sketches, details, and clarifications. 



 

Agreement for Architectural Services       Page 3 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3771283v1 

1.1.18. Service(s):  All labor, materials, supervision, services, tasks, and 
work that the Architect is required to perform and that are 
required by, or reasonably inferred from, the Agreement, and 
that are necessary for the design and completion of the Project.  

1.1.19. Visually Verify: To verify to the fullest extent possible by 
physical inspection and reasonable investigation and without 
any destructive action. 

Article 2. Scope, Responsibilities, and Services of Architect 

2.1. Architect shall render the Services described in Exhibit “A,” commencing 
with receipt of a written Notice to Proceed signed by the District 
representative.  Architect’s Services will be completed in accordance with 
the schedule attached as Exhibit “C.” 

2.2. Architect shall provide Services that shall comply with professional 
architectural standards, including the standard of care applicable to 
architects designing public school facilities and applicable requirements of 
federal, state, and local law, including, but not limited to, the requirements 
of the California Business and Professions Code, the California Education 
Code, and the California Code of Regulations.  All persons providing 
professional services hereunder shall be properly licensed as required by 
California law. 

2.3. The District intends to award the Project to Contractor(s) pursuant to a 
competitive bid process.  District reserves its right to use alternative delivery 
methods and the Architect’s scope of work may be adjusted accordingly. 

2.4. Architect acknowledges that all California public school districts are 
obligated to develop and implement the following storm water 
requirements for the discharge of storm water to surface waters from its 
construction and land disturbance activities where the project disturbs one 
(1) or more acres of land and is not part of a larger common plan of 
development or sale, the project disturbs one acre or more of land, or the 
project disturbs less than one (1) acre of land but is part of a larger common 
plan of development or sale, or where the District engages in maintenance 
(e.g., fueling, cleaning, repairing) or transportation activities. 

2.4.1. Architect shall provide the design for the Project, without limitation: 

2.4.1.1. A municipal Separate Storm Sewer System (“MS4”).  An MS4 
is a system of conveyances used to collect and/or convey 
storm water, including, without limitation, catch basins, 



 

Agreement for Architectural Services       Page 4 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3771283v1 

curbs, gutters, ditches, man-made channels, and storm 
drains. 

2.4.1.2. A Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan (“SWPPP”) that 
contains specific best management practices (“BMPs”) and 
establishes numeric effluent limitations. 

2.4.2. Architect shall conform its design work to the District’s storm water 
requirements indicated above, that are approved by the District and 
applicable to the Project, at no additional cost to the District.  In 
addition, as required Architect shall develop a grading and drainage 
plan and a site plan from architectural information showing a final 
development of the site.  This drawing will also include a horizontal 
and vertical control plan and a utility infrastructure plan.  The 
Services described in this subparagraph shall be provided by a 
professional civil engineer who contracts with or is an employee of 
the Architect.   

2.5. Architect shall contract for or employ at Architect’s expense, Consultant(s) 
to the extent deemed necessary for completion of the Project including, 
but not limited to: architects; mechanical, electrical, structural and civil 
engineers; landscapers; and interior designers, licensed as such by the State 
of California as part of the Basic Services under this Agreement.  The names 
of Consultant(s) shall be submitted to the District for approval prior to 
commencement of Services, as indicated below.  The District reserves the 
right to reject Architect’s use of any particular Consultant.  Nothing in the 
foregoing procedure shall create any contractual relationship between the 
District and any Consultant employed by the Architect under terms of the 
Agreement.  Architect shall require each of the Consultants retained by it 
to execute agreements with standard of care and indemnity provisions 
commensurate with this Agreement, but Architect shall remain solely 
responsible and liable to District for all matters covered by this Agreement. 

2.6. Architect shall coordinate with District personnel or its designated 
representatives as may be requested and desirable, including with other 
professionals employed by the District for the design, coordination or 
management of other work related to the Project.  This shall include, 
without limitation, coordination with State labor compliance, if any.  If the 
Architect employs Consultant(s), the Architect shall ensure that its 
contract(s) with its Consultant(s) include language notifying the 
Consultant(s) of State labor compliance, if any. 

2.7. Architect shall identify the regulatory agencies that have jurisdiction over 
essential building and design elements and coordinate with and implement 
the requirements of the regulatory agencies, including, without limitation, 



 

Agreement for Architectural Services       Page 5 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3771283v1 

the California Department of Education, the Office of Public School 
Construction, the Department of General Services, DSA, including DSA 
Fire/Life Safety, DSA Access Compliance Section, DSA Structural Safety 
Section, the State Fire Marshal and any regulatory office or agency that has 
authority for review and supervision of school district construction projects. 

2.7.1. If the Project is subject to DSA jurisdiction, then Architect, and its 
Consultants, if any, shall comply with all the DSA requirements, 
including without limitation, all the requirements included and/or 
referenced in the following forms, bulletins (“BU”), interpretations 
of regulations (“IR”), policies (“PL”), or procedures (“PR”): 

2.7.1.1. DSA IR A-6, Construction Change Document Submittal 
and Approval Process. 

2.7.1.2. DSA IR A-18, Use of Construction Documents Prepared by 
Other Professionals. 

2.7.1.3. DSA IR A-24, Construction Phase Duties of the School 
District, Contractor and Design Professional. 

2.7.1.4. DSA PR 07-01: Pre-Check Approval Process.  

2.7.1.5. DSA PR 07-02:  Over-The-Counter Review of Projects 
Using Pre-Check Approved Design.   

2.7.1.6. DSA PR 18-04.BB18: Electronic Plan Review for Design 
Professionals of Record Using Bluebeam 2018. 

2.7.1.7. DSA PR 18-09.BB18: Electronic Plan Review for Over-the-
Counter (“OTC”) Projects Using Bluebeam 2018. 

2.7.1.8. Form DSA PR 13-01, Construction Oversight Process. 

2.7.1.8.1. Each of Architect’s duties as provided in the 
DIR Construction Oversight Process shall be 
performed timely so as not to result in any 
delay to the Project. 

2.7.1.9. Form DSA PR 13-02, Project Certification Process. 

2.7.2. Notwithstanding the DSA forms, BUs, IRs, PLs, or PRs referenced 
anywhere in this Agreement, each of which is current as of the 
Effective Date, all Projects subject to DSA’s jurisdiction shall be 
submitted for review, back check, and approval, under the electronic 
plan review process (“EPR process”), rather than paper submission, 



 

Agreement for Architectural Services       Page 6 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3771283v1 

for all projects submitted to DSA.  Architect, and its Consultants, if 
any, shall comply with the EPR process and related DSA procedures, 
including, without limitation, DSA PR 18-04.BB18 and DSA PR 18-
09.BB18, and any subsequent or replacement procedures relating 
to the EPR process promulgated by DSA. Any reference herein to a 
particular DIR form, BU, IR, PL, or PR, shall mean and include the 
then-current DIR form, BU, IR, PL, or PR, respectively, and, to the 
extent that the EPR process has superceded such form or paper 
submission process, the EPR process then in effect shall control. 

2.8. Architect shall provide Services as required to obtain any local, state and/or 
federal agencies’ approval for on-site and off-site work related to the 
Project including review by regulatory agencies having jurisdiction over the 
Project. 

2.9. Architect shall direct and monitor the work of the District’s DSA project 
inspector(s) (“Project Inspector(s)”) and the Laboratory of Record.  Architect 
shall provide code required supervision of special inspectors not provided 
by the Laboratory of Record. 

2.10. Architect shall give efficient supervision to Services, using its best skill and 
attention.  Architect shall carefully study and compare all contract 
documents, drawings, specifications, and other instructions (“Contract 
Documents”) and shall at once report to District, Construction Manager, 
and Contractor, any error, inconsistency, or omission that Architect or its 
employees may discover, in writing, with a copy to District's Project 
Inspector(s).  Architect shall have responsibility for discovery of errors, 
inconsistencies, or omissions. 

2.11. Architect recognizes that the District may obtain the services of a 
Construction Manager and that Architect may have to assume certain 
coordination and management responsibilities, including tracking Requests 
for Information (“RFI”), providing RFI responses, and leading all 
coordination meetings between the District, Project Inspectors, and 
Contractors on the Project.  The District reserves the right to retain the 
services of a Construction Manager at any time.  The Construction Manager, 
if any, shall be authorized to give Architect Services authorizations and 
issue written approvals and notices to proceed on behalf of District.  The 
District reserves the right to designate a different Construction Manager at 
any time.  Any task, including, but not limited to, reviews or approvals that 
the District may perform pursuant to this Agreement may be performed by 
the Construction Manager, unless that task indicates it shall be performed 
by the Governing Board of the District.  In addition, the District may have a 
constructability review of Architect’s design documents.  Architect shall 
conform any design documents to the constructability review as part of the 



 

Agreement for Architectural Services       Page 7 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3771283v1 

Services under this Agreement and shall not be entitled to any 
compensation as Extra Services for this activity. 

2.12. Architect shall provide computer-generated pictures downloaded to 
computer files, updated as requested by the District, that the District may 
use on its website. 

2.13. As part of the basic Services pursuant to this Agreement, Architect is not 
responsible for: 

2.13.1. Ground contamination or hazardous material analysis.  

2.13.2. Any asbestos and/or lead testing, design or abatement; however, 
it shall coordinate and integrate its work with any such 
information provided by District. 

2.13.3. Compliance with the California Environmental Quality Act 
(“CEQA”), except that Architect agrees to coordinate its work with 
that of any CEQA consultants retained by the District, to provide 
current elevations and schematic drawings for use in CEQA 
compliance documents, and to incorporate any mitigation 
measures adopted by the District into the Project design at no 
additional cost to the District.   

2.13.4. Historical significance report.  

2.13.5. Soils investigation. 

2.13.6. Geotechnical hazard report, except as indicated in Exhibit “A.” 

Article 3. Architect Staff 

3.1. Architect has been selected to perform the Services herein because of the 
skills and expertise of key individuals. 

3.2. Architect agrees that the following key people in Architect’s firm shall be 
associated with the Project in the following capacities:  

Principal In Charge: Mitchell A. McAllister 

Project Director: Shane Trump 

Project Architect(s): Shane Trump 

Project Manager(s): Anne Perkins 



 

Agreement for Architectural Services       Page 8 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3771283v1 

Major Consultants: 

Electrical: MNeils Engineering, Inc. 

Mechanical: Weston and Associates 

Structural: Point 2 Structural Engineering, Inc. 

Civil:  Warren Consulting Engineers 

Low Voltage/:  KMM Services 
   Security 
 

3.3. Architect shall not change any of the key personnel listed above without 
prior written approval by the District, unless said personnel cease to be 
employed by Architect.  In either case, the District shall be allowed to 
interview and approve replacement personnel.  

3.4. If any designated lead or key person fails to perform to the satisfaction of 
the District, then upon written notice Architect shall have five (5) calendar 
days to remove that person from the Project and replace that person with 
one acceptable to the District.  All lead or key personnel for any Consultant 
must also be designated by the Consultant and are subject to all conditions 
stated in this paragraph. 

3.5. Architect represents that Architect has no existing interest and will not 
acquire any interest, direct or indirect, which could conflict in any manner 
or degree with the performance of Services required under this Agreement 
and that no person having any such interest shall be employed by Architect. 

3.6. Architect shall comply with Education Code section 17302(a) and agrees 
that any plans and/or specifications included in the Services shall be 
prepared under the supervision of licensed personnel, and that licensed 
personnel shall be in “responsible charge” of persons who observe the 
construction. 

Article 4. Schedule of Services 

Architect shall commence Services under this Agreement upon receipt of a written 
Notice to Proceed and shall prosecute the Services diligently as described in 
Exhibit “A,” so as to proceed with and complete the Services in compliance with 
the schedule in Exhibit “C.”  Time is of the essence and failure of Architect to 
perform Services on time as specified in this Agreement is a material breach of this 
Agreement.  It shall not be a material breach if a delay is beyond the Architect’s or 
its Consultant(s)’ reasonable control. 



 

Agreement for Architectural Services       Page 9 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3771283v1 

Article 5. Construction Cost Budget 

5.1. Architect hereby accepts the District’s established Construction Cost 
Budget and Project scope.  In accordance with Exhibit “A,” the Architect 
shall have responsibility to further develop, review, and reconcile the 
Construction Cost Budget for the District at the beginning of the Project 
and at the completion of each design phase.  The District and Construction 
Manager shall also have responsibility to develop, review, and reconcile the 
Construction Cost Budget with the Architect. 

5.2. Architect shall complete all Services as described in Exhibit “A,” including 
all plans, designs, drawings, specifications and other Contract Documents, 
so that the cost to construct the work designed by the Architect will not 
exceed the Construction Cost Budget, as adjusted subsequently with the 
District’s written approval.  Architect shall maintain cost controls 
throughout the Project to deliver the Project within the Construction Cost 
Budget.   

5.3. The District may, in its sole discretion, do one, or a combination, of the 
following if any of the events in Article 5.4 occur: 

5.3.1. Give Architect written approval on an agreed adjustment to the 
Construction Cost Budget. 

5.3.2. Authorize Architect to re-negotiate, when appropriate, and/or re-
bid the Project within three (3) months’ time of receipt of bids 
(exclusive of District and other agencies’ review time) at no 
additional cost to the District. 

5.3.3. Terminate this Agreement if the Project is abandoned by the 
District, without further obligation by either party. 

5.3.4. Within three (3) months’ time of receipt of bids, instruct Architect 
to revise the drawings and specifications (in scope and quality as 
approved by the District) to bring the Project within the 
Construction Cost Budget for re-bidding at no additional cost to the 
District.   

5.4. If any of the following events occur, the District may exercise any one, or 
any combination, of the actions set forth in Article 5.3 above: 

5.4.1. The lowest responsive base bid received is in excess of five percent 
(5%) of the Construction Cost Budget; or  

5.4.2. If the combined total of base bid and all additive alternates come in 
ten percent (10%) or more under the Construction Cost Budget; or  



 

Agreement for Architectural Services       Page 10 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3771283v1 

5.4.3. If the Construction Cost Budget increases in phases subsequent to 
the Schematic Design Phase due to reasonably foreseeable changes 
in the condition of the construction market in the county in which 
the District is located, in so far as these have not been caused by 
Acts of God, earthquakes, strikes, war, or energy shortages due to 
uncontrollable events in the world economy. 

Article 6. Fee and Method of Payment 

6.1. The District shall pay Architect for all Services contracted for under this 
Agreement an amount equal to the following (“Fee”): 

An amount not to exceed Four Hundred Five Thousand Dollars 
($405,000) based on the rates set forth in Exhibit “D.”  

6.2. The District shall pay Architect the Fee pursuant to the provisions of Exhibit 
“D.” 

6.3. Architect shall bill for performance of Services under this Agreement in 
accordance with Exhibit “D.”  

6.4. No increase in Fee will be due from CCDs and/or change orders generated 
during the construction period to the extent caused by Architect’s error or 
omission.   

6.5. The Architect’s Fee set forth in this Agreement shall be full compensation 
for all of Architect’s Services incurred in the performance hereof as 
indicated in Exhibit “D.” 

6.6. Regardless of the structure of Architect’s Fee, the Architect’s Fee may be 
adjusted downward if the Scope of Services of this Agreement is reduced 
by the District in accordance with this Agreement. 

6.7. Neither the District’s review, approval of, nor payment for, any of the 
Services required under this Agreement shall be construed to operate as a 
waiver of any rights under this Agreement, and Architect shall remain liable 
to the District in accordance with this Agreement for direct damages to the 
District caused by Architect’s failure to perform any of the Services 
furnished under this Agreement to the standard of care under California 
law for architects performing similar work for California school districts in 
or around the same geographic area as the District. 

Article 7. Payment for Extra Services or Changes 

Any charges for Extra Services shall be paid by the District as described in Exhibit 
“B” only upon certification that the claimed Extra Service was authorized as 



 

Agreement for Architectural Services       Page 11 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3771283v1 

indicated herein and that the Extra Services have been satisfactorily completed.  If 
any service is done by Architect without prior written authorization by the 
Construction Manager or the District’s authorized representative, the District will 
not be obligated to pay for such service.  The foregoing provision notwithstanding, 
Architect will be paid by the District as described in Exhibit “B” for Extra Services 
that the Construction Manager or the District’s authorized representative verbally 
requests, provided that Architect confirms such request in writing pursuant to the 
notice requirements of this Agreement, and proceeds with such Extra Services not 
earlier than two (2) business days after the District receives confirmation of the 
request from the Architect. 

Article 8. Ownership of Data 

8.1. Pursuant to Education Code section 17316, this Agreement creates a non-
exclusive and perpetual license for the District to use, at its discretion, all 
plans including, but not limited to, record drawings, specifications, 
estimates and other documents that Architect or its Consultants prepare or 
cause to be prepared pursuant to this Agreement.  

8.2. Architect retains all rights to all copyrights over designs and other 
intellectual property embodied in the plans, record drawings, specifications, 
estimates, and other documents that Architect or its Consultants prepare 
or cause to be prepared pursuant to this Agreement.  

8.3. Architect shall perform the Services and prepare all documents under this 
Agreement with the assistance of Computer Aided Design Drafting 
Technology (“CADD”) (e.g., AutoCAD).  Architect shall deliver to District all 
drawings in DWG format.  As to any drawings that Architect provides in a 
CADD file format, the District acknowledges that anomalies and errors may 
be introduced into data when it is transferred or used in a computer 
environment, and that the District should rely on hard copies of all 
documents. 

8.4. In order to document exactly what CADD information was given to the 
District, Architect and District shall each date and sign a “hard” copy of 
reproducible documents that depict the information at the time Architect 
produces the CADD information.  The District agrees to release Architect 
from all liability, damages, and/or claims that arise due to any changes 
made to this information by anyone other than Architect or its Consultant(s) 
subsequent to it being given to the District. 

8.5. Following the termination of this Agreement, for any reason whatsoever, 
Architect shall promptly deliver to the District upon written request and at 
no cost to the District the following items (hereinafter “Instruments of 



 

Agreement for Architectural Services       Page 12 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3771283v1 

Service”), which the District shall have the right to utilize in any way 
permitted by statute: 

8.5.1. One (1) set of the Contract Documents, including the bidding 
requirements, specifications, and all existing cost estimates for the 
Project, in hard copy, reproducible format. 

8.5.2. One (1) set of fixed image CADD files in DXF format of the drawings 
that are part of the Contract Documents. 

8.5.3. One (1) set of non-fixed image CADD drawing files in DXF or DWG 
or both formats of the site plan, floor plans (architectural, plumbing, 
structural, mechanical and electrical), roof plan, sections and 
exterior elevations of the Project. 

8.5.4. All finished or unfinished documents, studies, reports, calculations, 
drawings, maps, models, photographs, technology data and reports 
prepared by the Architect under this Agreement. 

8.5.5. The obligation of Section 8.5 of this Agreement shall survive the 
termination of this Agreement for any reason whatsoever.  

8.6. In the event the District changes or uses any fully or partially completed 
documents without Architect’s knowledge or participation or both, the 
District agrees to release Architect of responsibility for such changes, and 
shall hold Architect harmless from and against any and all claims on 
account of any damages or losses to property or persons, or economic 
losses, arising out of that change or use, unless Architect is found to be 
liable in a forum of competent jurisdiction.  In the event that the District 
uses any fully or partially completed documents without the Architect’s full 
involvement, the District shall remove all title blocks and other information 
that might identify Architect and its Consultants.  

Article 9. Termination of Contract  

9.1. District’s Request for Assurances:  If District at any time reasonably believes 
that Architect is or may be in default under this Agreement, District may in 
its sole discretion notify Architect of this fact and request written assurances 
from Architect of performance of Services and a written plan from Architect 
to remedy any potential default under the terms this Agreement that the 
District may advise Architect of in writing.  Architect shall, within ten (10) 
days of District’s request, deliver a written cure plan that meets the 
requirements of the District’s request for assurances. Architect’s failure to 
provide such written assurances of performance and the required written 



 

Agreement for Architectural Services       Page 13 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3771283v1 

plan, within ten (10) days of request, will constitute a material breach of this 
Agreement sufficient to justify termination for cause. 

9.2. District’s Termination of Architect for Cause:  If Architect fails to perform 
Architect’s duties to the satisfaction of the District, or if Architect fails to 
fulfill in a timely and professional manner Architect’s material obligations 
under this Agreement, or if Architect shall violate any of the material terms 
or provisions of this Agreement, the District shall have the right to 
terminate this Agreement, in whole or in part, effective immediately upon 
the District giving written notice thereof to the Architect.  In the event of a 
termination pursuant to this subdivision, Architect may invoice the District 
for all Services performed until the notice of termination, but the District 
shall have the right to withhold payment and deduct any amounts equal to 
the District’s costs because of Architect’s actions, errors, or omissions. 

9.3. District’s Termination of Architect for Convenience:  District shall have the 
right in its sole discretion to terminate the Agreement for its own 
convenience.  In the event of a termination for convenience, Architect may 
invoice District and District shall pay all undisputed invoice(s) for Services 
performed until the District’s notice of termination for convenience. 

9.4. Architect’s Termination of Agreement for Cause:  Architect has the right to 
terminate this Agreement if the District does not fulfill its material 
obligations under this Agreement and fails to cure such material default 
within sixty (60) days of receipt of written notice of said defaults, or if the 
default cannot be cured within sixty (60) days, commence to cure such 
default, diligently pursue such cure, and complete the cure within a 
reasonable time following written notice and demand from Architect.  Such 
termination shall be effective thirty (30) days after receipt of written notice 
from Architect to the District.  Architect may invoice the District and the 
District shall pay all undisputed invoice(s) for Services performed until 
Architect’s notice of termination. 

9.5. Effect on Pre-Termination Services:  Except as indicated in this Article, 
termination shall have no effect upon any of the rights and obligations of 
the Parties arising out of any transaction occurring prior to the effective 
date of such termination. 

9.6. Ceasing Services upon Termination:  If, at any time in the progress of the 
Design of the Project, the Governing Board of the District determines that 
the Project should be terminated, Architect, upon written notice from the 
District of such termination, shall immediately cease Services on the Project.  
The District shall pay Architect only the fee associated with the Services 
provided since the last invoice that has been paid and up to the notice of 
termination. 



 

Agreement for Architectural Services       Page 14 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3771283v1 

9.7. Project Suspension:  If the District suspends the Project for more than one 
hundred twenty (120) consecutive days, Architect shall be compensated for 
Services performed prior to notice of that suspension. When the Project is 
resumed, the schedule shall be adjusted and Architect’s compensation shall 
be equitably adjusted to provide for expenses incurred in the resumption 
of the Architect’s Services.  Architect shall make every effort to maintain the 
same Project personnel after suspension.  If the District suspends the 
Project for more than two (2) years, Architect may terminate this Agreement 
by giving written notice.  

Article 10. Indemnity/Architect Liability  

10.1. To the furthest extent permitted by California law, Architect shall indemnify 
and hold free and harmless the District, its Governing Board, agents, 
representatives, officers, consultants, employees, trustees, and volunteers 
(“the Indemnified Parties”) from any and all claims, demands, causes of 
action, costs, expenses, liability, loss, damage or injury of any kind, in law 
or equity (“Claim”) that arise out of, pertain to, or relate to the negligence, 
recklessness, or willful misconduct of the Architect, its officers, employees, 
subcontractors, consultants, or agents, including without limitation the 
payment of all consequential damages. Architect shall also, to the furthest 
extent permitted by California law, defend the Indemnified Parties at 
Architect’s own expense, including attorneys’ fees and costs, from any and 
all Claim(s) and allegations relating thereto with counsel approved by 
District where such approval is not to be unreasonably withheld.  Whereas 
the cost to defend the Indemnified Parties charged to the Architect shall 
not exceed the proportionate percentage of Architect’s fault as determined 
by a court of competent jurisdiction, any amounts paid in excess of such 
established fault will be reimbursed by the District. Notwithstanding the 
previous sentence, in the event one or more defendants is unable to pay its 
share of defense costs due to bankruptcy or dissolution of the business, the 
design professional shall meet and confer with other parties regarding 
unpaid defense costs.  

10.2. Architect shall pay and satisfy any judgment, award, or decree that may be 
rendered against the Indemnified Parties in any Claim.  Architect’s 
obligation pursuant to Article 10.1 includes reimbursing the District for the 
cost of any settlement paid by the Indemnified Parties and for any and all 
fees and costs, including but not limited to legal fees and costs, expert 
witness fees, and consultant fees, incurred by the Indemnified Parties in the 
defense of any Claim(s), or to enforce the indemnity herein.  Architect’s 
obligation to defend or to indemnify shall not be restricted to insurance 
proceeds. District shall also have the right to accept or reject any legal 
representation that Architect proposes to defend the Indemnified Parties. 



 

Agreement for Architectural Services       Page 15 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3771283v1 

10.3. Architect shall be responsible for the cost of reviewing CCDs and/or change 
orders caused by Architect’s willful misconduct, recklessness, or negligent 
acts, errors or omissions.  Without limiting Architect’s liability for indirect 
cost impacts, the direct costs for change orders for which Architect shall be 
liable shall equal the difference between the cost of the change order and 
the reasonable cost of the work had that work been a part of the originally 
prepared Contract Documents. 

10.4. District may withhold any and all costs that arise out of, pertain to, or relate 
to the negligence, recklessness, or willful misconduct of the Architect from 
amounts owing to Architect.  

Article 11. Fingerprinting  

11.1. Pursuant to Education Code section 45125.2, the District has determined 
on the basis of scope of Services in this Agreement, that Architect, its 
Consultants and their employees will have only limited contact with pupils. 
Architect shall promptly notify the District in writing of any facts or 
circumstances which might reasonably lead the District to determine that 
contact will be more than limited as defined by Education Code section 
45125.1(d).  

11.2. For all workers on District property, the Architect shall comply with all 
applicable federal, state and local laws regarding COVID-19.  Further, 
except to the extent the Order provides otherwise, the Architect and 
Architect’s personnel shall continue to comply with all other applicable 
terms in the CDPH’s State Public Health Officer Orders.  

Article 12. Responsibilities of the District  

12.1. The District shall examine the documents submitted by the Architect and 
shall render decisions so as to avoid unreasonable delay in the process of 
the Architect’s Services. 

12.2. The District shall verbally or in writing advise Architect if the District 
becomes aware of any fault or defect in the Project, including any errors, 
omissions or inconsistencies in the Architect’s documents.  Failure to 
provide such notice shall not relieve Architect of its responsibility therefore, 
if any. 

12.3. Unless the District and Architect agree that a hazardous materials 
consultant shall be a Consultant of the Architect, the District shall furnish 
the services of a hazardous material consultant or other consultants when 
such services are requested in writing by Architect and deemed necessary 
by the District or are requested by the District. These services shall include: 



 

Agreement for Architectural Services       Page 16 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3771283v1 

asbestos and lead paint survey; abatement documentation; and 
specifications related to said matters, which are to be incorporated into bid 
documents prepared by Architect. If the hazardous materials consultant is 
furnished by the District and is not a Consultant of the Architect, the 
specifications shall include a note to the effect that the hazardous materials 
consultant’s specifications are included in the Architect’s bid documents for 
the District’s convenience and have not been prepared or reviewed by the 
Architect. The note shall also direct questions about the hazardous 
materials consultant’s specifications related to asbestos and lead paint 
survey and/or abatement documentation to the preparer of the hazardous 
materials consultant’s specifications.    

Article 13. Liability of District  

13.1. Other than as provided in this Agreement, District’s financial obligations 
under this Agreement shall be limited to the payment of the compensation 
provided in this Agreement.  Notwithstanding any other provision of this 
Agreement, in no event shall District be liable, regardless of whether any 
claim is based on contract or tort, for any special, consequential, indirect or 
incidental damages, including, but not limited to, lost profits or revenue, 
arising out of or in connection with this Agreement or the Services 
performed in connection with this Agreement. 

13.2. District shall not be responsible for any damage to persons or property as 
a result of the use, misuse or failure of any equipment used by Architect, or 
by its employees, even though such equipment be furnished or loaned to 
Architect by District.  

Article 14. Nondiscrimination  

Architect agrees to comply with the provisions of the California Fair Employment 
and Housing Act as set forth in part 2.8 of division 3 of the California Government 
Code, commencing at section 12900; the Federal Civil Rights Act of 1964, as set 
forth in Public Law 88-352, and all amendments thereto; Executive Order 11246; 
and all administrative rules and regulations found to be applicable to Architect and 
all of its subcontractors. In addition, Consultant agrees to require like compliance 
by all of its subcontractor(s). 

Article 15. Insurance  

15.1. Architect shall comply with the insurance requirements for this Agreement, 
set forth in Exhibit “E.”  



 

Agreement for Architectural Services       Page 17 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3771283v1 

15.2. Architect shall provide certificates of insurance and endorsements to 
District prior to commencement of the work of this Agreement as required 
in Exhibit “E.” 

Article 16. Covenant against Contingent Fees  

Architect warrants that it has not employed or retained any company or person, 
other than a bona fide employee working solely for the Architect, to solicit or 
secure this Agreement, and that it has not paid or agreed to pay any company or 
person, other than a bona fide employee working solely for the Architect, any fee, 
commission, percentage, brokerage fee, gift, or any other consideration contingent 
on or resulting from the award or making of this Agreement.  For breach or 
violation of this warranty, the District shall have the right to annul this Agreement 
without liability, or in its discretion, to deduct from the contract price or 
consideration or to recover the full amount of such fee, commission, percentage 
fee, gift, or contingency. 

Article 17. Entire Agreement/Modification  

This Agreement, including the Exhibits attached hereto, supersedes all previous 
contracts and constitutes the entire understanding of the Parties hereto.  Architect 
shall be entitled to no other benefits than those specified herein.  No changes, 
amendments or alterations shall be effective unless in writing and signed by both 
Parties.  Architect specifically acknowledges that in entering this Agreement, 
Architect relies solely upon the provisions contained in this Agreement and no 
others. 

Article 18. Non-Assignment of Agreement 

In as much as this Agreement is intended to secure the specialized Services of the 
Architect, Architect may not assign, transfer, delegate or sublet any interest therein 
without the prior written consent of District and any such assignment, transfer, 
delegation or sublease without the District’s prior written consent shall be 
considered null and void.  Likewise, District may not assign, transfer, delegate or 
sublet any interest therein without the prior written consent of Architect and any 
such assignment, transfer, delegation or sublease without Architect’s prior written 
consent shall be considered null and void. If an assignment is approved, this 
Agreement shall be binding on the successors and assign of the parties.  

Article 19. Law, Venue 

19.1. This Agreement has been executed and delivered in the State of California 
and the validity, enforceability and interpretation of any of the clauses of 
this Agreement shall be determined and governed by the laws of the State 
of California. 



 

Agreement for Architectural Services       Page 18 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3771283v1 

19.2. To the fullest extent permitted by California law, the county in which the 
District administration office is located shall be the venue for any action or 
proceeding that may be brought or arise out of, in connection with or by 
reason of this Agreement. 

Article 20. Alternative Dispute Resolution 

20.1. All claims, disputes or controversies arising out of, or in relation to the 
interpretation, application or enforcement of this Agreement may be 
decided through mediation as the first method of resolution.  Notice of the 
demand for mediation of a dispute shall be filed in writing with the other 
party to the Agreement.  The demand for mediation shall be made within 
a reasonable time after written notice of the dispute has been provided to 
the other party, but in no case longer than ninety (90) days after initial 
written notice.  

20.2. If a claim, or any portion thereof, remains in dispute upon satisfaction of all 
applicable dispute resolution requirements, the Architect shall comply with 
all claims presentation requirements as provided in Chapter 1 (commencing 
with section 900) and Chapter 2 (commencing with section 910) of Part 3 
of Division 3.6 of Title 1 of Government Code as a condition precedent to 
the Architect’s right to bring a civil action against the District.  For purposes 
of those provisions, the running of the time within which a claim must be 
presented to the District shall be tolled from the time the Architect submits 
its written claim until the time the claim is denied, including any time 
utilized by any applicable meet and confer process. 

20.3. Pending resolution of the dispute, Architect agrees it will neither rescind 
the Agreement nor stop the performance of the Services.   

Article 21. Tolling of Claims 

Architect agrees to toll all statutes of limitations for District’s assertion of claims 
against Architect that arise out of, pertain to, or relate to Contractors’ or 
subcontractors’ claims against District involving Architect’s work, until the 
Contractors’ or subcontractors’ claims are finally resolved. 

Article 22. Attorneys’ Fees 

In the event either party shall bring any action or legal proceeding for damages for 
any alleged breach of any provision of or performance under this Agreement, to 
terminate this Agreement, or to enforce, protect or establish any term or covenant 
of this Agreement or right or remedy of either party, the prevailing party shall be 
entitled to recover, as a part of the action or proceeding, reasonable attorneys' fees 
and court costs, including consultants’ fees, attorneys' fees and costs for appeal, as 



 

Agreement for Architectural Services       Page 19 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3771283v1 

may be fixed by the court.  The term “prevailing party” shall mean the party who 
received substantially the relief requested, whether by settlement, dismissal, 
summary judgment, judgment, or otherwise.   

Article 23. Severability 

If any term, covenant, condition or provision of this Agreement is held by a court 
of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void or unenforceable, the remainder of the 
provisions hereof shall remain in full force and effect and shall in no way be 
affected, impaired or invalidated thereby. 

Article 24. Employment Status 

24.1. Architect shall, during the entire term of Agreement, be an independent 
contractor and nothing in this Agreement is intended nor shall it be 
construed to create an employer-employee relationship, a joint venture 
relationship, or to allow the District to exercise discretion or control over 
the professional manner in which Architect performs the Services that are 
the subject matter of this Agreement; provided always, however, that the 
Services to be provided by Architect shall be provided in a manner 
consistent with all applicable standards and regulations governing such 
Services. 

24.2. Architect understands and agrees that Architect’s personnel are not and 
will not be eligible for membership in or any benefits from any District 
group plan for hospital, surgical or medical insurance or for membership in 
any District retirement program or for paid vacation, paid sick leave or other 
leave, with or without pay or for other benefits which accrue to a District 
employee.  

24.3. Should the District, in its discretion, or a relevant taxing authority such as 
the Internal Revenue Service or the State Employment Development 
Department, or both, determine that Architect, or any employee or 
Consultant of Architect, is an employee of the District for purposes of 
collection of any employment taxes, the amounts payable under this 
Agreement shall be reduced by amounts equal to both the employee and 
employer portions of the tax due (and offsetting any credits for amounts 
already paid by Architect which can be applied against this liability).  The 
District shall then forward those amounts to the relevant taxing authority.  

24.4. Should a relevant taxing authority determine a liability for past services 
performed by Architect for the District, upon notification of such fact by the 
District, Architect shall promptly remit such amount due or arrange with the 
District to have the amount due withheld from future payments to Architect 



 

Agreement for Architectural Services       Page 20 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3771283v1 

under this Agreement (again, offsetting any amounts already paid by 
Architect which can be applied as a credit against such liability). 

24.5. A determination of employment status pursuant to the preceding two (2) 
paragraphs shall be solely for the purposes of the particular tax in question, 
and for all other purposes of this Agreement, Architect shall not be 
considered an employee of the District.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, 
should any court, arbitrator, or administrative authority determine that 
Architect is an employee for any other purpose, then Architect agrees to a 
reduction in District’s liability resulting from this Agreement pursuant to 
principles similar to those stated in the foregoing paragraphs so that the 
total expenses of District under this Agreement shall not be greater than 
they would have been had the court, arbitrator, or administrative authority 
determined that Architect or its employees of Consultants was not an 
employee.  

24.6. Nothing in this Agreement shall operate to confer rights or benefits on 
persons or entities not a party to this Agreement. 

Article 25. Certificate of Architect 

25.1. Architect certifies that the Architect is properly certified or licensed under 
the laws and regulations of the State of California to provide the 
professional services that it has herein agreed to perform. 

25.2. Architect certifies that it is aware of the provisions of the California Labor 
Code that require every employer to be insured against liability for workers 
compensation or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the 
provisions of that code, and it certifies that it will comply with those 
provisions before commencing the performance of the Services of this 
Agreement. 

25.3. Architect certifies that it is aware of the provisions of California Labor Code 
and California Code of Regulations that require the payment of prevailing 
wage rates and the performance of other requirements on certain “public 
works” and “maintenance” projects (“Prevailing Wage Laws”).  Architect 
agrees to fully comply with and to require its Consultant(s) to fully comply 
with all requirements of the Prevailing Wage Laws, if applicable to Architect 
and its Consultants’ professional services to be provided under this 
Agreement. 

Article 26. Cost Disclosure - Documents and Written Reports 

Architect shall be responsible for compliance with California Government Code 
section 7550, if the total cost of the Contract is over five thousand dollars ($5,000). 



 

Agreement for Architectural Services       Page 21 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3771283v1 

Article 27. Notice & Communications 

Notices and communications between the Parties to this Agreement may be sent 
to the following addresses: 

District: 
 
Sacramento City Unified School District  
5735 47th Avenue 
Sacramento, CA 95824 
ATTN: Tina Alvarez Bevens 
EMAIL: tina-alvarez-bevens@scusd.edu 

With a Copy to: 
Dannis Woliver Kelley 
200 California Street #400  
San Francisco, CA 94111 
ATTN:  Deidree Sakai, Esq. 

Architect: 
 
CA Design West Architects 
2100 19th Street 
Sacramento CA  95818 
ATTN:  Mitch McAllister 
EMAIL:  aperkins@ca-dw.com 

  
Any notice personally given shall be effective upon receipt.  Any notice sent by 
electronic mail shall be effective the day after transmission.  Any notice sent by 
overnight delivery service shall be effective the day after delivery.  Any notice given 
by mail shall be effective five (5) days after deposit in the United States mail. 

Article 28. RESERVED  

Article 29. District’s Right to Audit 

29.1. District retains the right to review and audit, and the reasonable right of 
access to Architect’s and any Consultant’s premises to review and audit the 
Architect’s compliance with the provisions of this Agreement (“District’s 
Right”). The District’s Right includes the right to inspect, photocopy, and to 
retain copies, outside of Architect’s premises, of any and all Project-related 
records and other information with appropriate safeguards, if such 
retention is deemed necessary by the District in its sole discretion. The 
District shall keep this information confidential, as allowed by applicable 
law. 

29.2. The District’s Right includes the right to examine any and all books, records, 
documents and any other evidence of procedures and practices that the 
District determines is necessary to discover and verify whether Architect is 
in compliance with all requirements of this Agreement. 

29.3. If there is a claim for additional compensation or for Extra Services, the 
District’s Right includes the right to examine books, records, documents, 



 

Agreement for Architectural Services       Page 22 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3771283v1 

and any and all other evidence and accounting procedures and practices 
that the District determines is necessary to discover and verify all direct and 
indirect costs, of whatever nature, which are claimed to have been incurred, 
or anticipated to be incurred. 

29.4. Architect shall maintain complete and accurate records in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting practices in the industry. Architect shall 
make available to the District for review and audit all Project-related 
accounting records and documents and any other financial data. Upon 
District’s request, Architect shall submit exact duplicates of originals of all 
requested records to the District. 

29.5. Architect shall include audit provisions in any and all of its subcontracts, 
and shall ensure that these sections are binding upon all Consultants. 

29.6. Architect shall comply with these provisions within fifteen (15) days of the 
District’s written request to review and audit any or all of Architect’s Project-
related records and information. 

Article 30. Other Provisions 

30.1. Each party warrants that it has had the opportunity to consult counsel and 
understands the terms of this Agreement and the consequences of 
executing it. In addition, each party acknowledges that the drafting of this 
Agreement was the product of negotiation, that no party is the author of 
this Agreement, and that this Agreement shall not be construed against any 
party as the drafter of the Agreement. 

30.2. The individual executing this Agreement on behalf of Architect warrants 
and represents that she/he is authorized to execute this Agreement and 
bind the CM to all terms hereof. 

30.3. This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of 
which shall be deemed an original. A facsimile or electronic signature shall 
be deemed to be the equivalent of the actual original signature. All 
counterparts so executed shall constitute one Agreement binding all the 
Parties hereto.  

30.4. Architect shall share, credit, or reimburse District fifty percent (50%) of the 
amount of any tax deduction and/or credit Architect receives for District 
Projects under the Commercial Buildings Energy-Efficiency Tax Deduction, 
26 U.S. Code § 179D (“Section 179D”).  Architect shall provide District with 
all necessary documentation to enable District to verify the amounts of the 
Section 179D tax deduction.  Architect shall notify District in writing of the 
Section 179D tax deduction within 30 days of when Architect receives IRS 



 

Agreement for Architectural Services       Page 23 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3771283v1 

notice of the Section 179D tax deduction or receives the Section 179D tax 
refund, whichever occurs first. 

Article 31. Exhibits “A” through “F” attached hereto are hereby incorporated by this 
reference and made a part of this Agreement. 

 
[SIGNATURES ON FOLLOWING PAGE] 

  



 

Agreement for Architectural Services       Page 24 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3771283v1 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement on the date(s) 
indicated below. 

SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL 
DISTRICT 

Date:    , 20__ 

By: Janea Marking  

Title: Chief Business Officer 

 

CALIFORNIA DESIGN WEST ARCHITECTS 

 
Date:    , 20__ 

By: Mitch McAllister 

Title: President 

 

November 3                23



 

 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 

RESPONSIBILITIES AND SERVICES OF ARCHITECT 
 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

A. SCOPE OF PROJECT ....................................................................................................................................... 1 
B. BASIC SERVICES .............................................................................................................................................. 1 
C. PRE-DESIGN AND START-UP SERVICES ............................................................................................. 4 
D. SCHEMATIC DESIGN PHASE ..................................................................................................................... 7 
E. DESIGN DEVELOPMENT PHASE ........................................................................................................... 12 
F. CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS PHASE ............................................................................................ 16 
G. BIDDING PHASE .......................................................................................................................................... 23 
H. CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT ADMINISTRATION PHASE ....................................................... 24 
I. CLOSE OUT PHASE ..................................................................................................................................... 28 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

EXHIBIT A Page A - 1 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
SCOPE AND BASIC SERVICES 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 

RESPONSIBILITIES AND SERVICES OF ARCHITECT 
 
Architect shall provide all professional services necessary for completing the following: 
 
SCOPE OF PROJECT 

Project Name:  Alice Birney ES Campus Renewal 

Construction Cost Budget:  $4,500,000  

BASIC SERVICES  

Architect agrees to provide the Services described below:   
 

1. Architect shall be responsible for the professional quality and technical accuracy of all 
studies, reports, projections, master plans, designs, drawings, specifications and other 
services furnished by Architect under the Agreement as well as coordination with all 
master plans, studies, reports and other information provided by District.  Architect shall, 
without additional compensation, correct or revise any errors or omissions in its studies, 
reports, projections, master plans, design, drawings, specifications and other Services.   

 
2. Architect will use all due care and diligence to confirm that its plans and specifications 

and all other information provided by or on behalf of the District to potential bidders 
discloses and publishes any potentially relevant information that could, in any way, have 
an impact on a Contractor's cost of performance.  Architect shall advise the District of 
the most effective methods of identifying and securing such information as part of each 
stage of design.  Architect shall track for District's benefit all such suggested and 
disclosed information. 

 
3. The District shall provide all information available to it to the extent the information 

relates to Architect’s scope of work.  This information shall include, if available,  
 

a. As-builts;  
 

b. Physical characteristics;  
 

c. Legal limitations and utility locations for the Project site(s);  
 

d. Written legal description(s) of the Project site(s);  
 

e. Grades and lines of streets, alleys, pavements, and adjoining property and structures;  
 
  



 

EXHIBIT A Page A - 2 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
SCOPE AND BASIC SERVICES 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

f. Adjacent drainage;  
 

g. Rights-of-way, restrictions, easements, encroachments, zoning, deed restrictions, and 
boundaries and contours of the Project site(s);  

 
h. Locations, dimensions and necessary data with respect to existing buildings, other 

improvements and trees;  
 
i. Information concerning available utility services and lines, mechanical and other 

services, both public and private, above and below grade, including inverts and depths;   
 

j. Surveys, reports, as-built drawings, record drawings; and 
 

k. Subsoil data, chemical data, and other data logs of borings. 
 

Architect shall Visually Verify this information and all existing Project utilities, including 
capacity, and document the location of existing utility lines, telephone, water, sewage, 
storm drains and other lines on or around the Project to the extent determinable by the 
documents provided by the District.   
 
If Architect determines that the information or documentation the District provides is 
insufficient for purposes of design, or if Architect requires:  a topographical survey; a 
geotechnical report; structural, mechanical, and/or chemical tests; tests for air and/or 
water pollution; test borings; test pits; determinations of soil bearing values; percolation 
tests; ground corrosion tests; resistivity tests; tests for hazardous materials; tests for 
anticipating subsoil conditions; and/or other information that the District has not 
provided, then, at the soonest possible time after Architect has become aware that this 
additional information is needed, the Architect shall request that the District acquire that 
information.  If the Parties mutually agree in writing, this additional information and service 
shall be procured through the Architect, who may invoice the District for those services as 
Extra Services.  

 
4. Technology Backbone.  Architect shall be responsible for the coordination of the design 

and the layout of the technology backbone system with the District’s technology 
consultant, and lay out any included technology backbone system.  The coordination effort 
shall include location and routing of raceways, conduits and outlets and the required 
spaces to accommodate electrical, data and communication wiring.  Architect and 
Consultant(s) shall prepare and be responsible for documents prepared by the Architect 
based on the information provided by the District’s technology consultant as appropriate 
to the level of design completion. 

 
5. Mandatory Assistance.  If a third party dispute or litigation, or both, arises out of, or 

relates in any way to the Services provided under this Agreement, upon the District's 
request, the Architect, its agents, officers, and employees agree to assist in resolving the 



 

EXHIBIT A Page A - 3 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
SCOPE AND BASIC SERVICES 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

dispute or litigation. Architect's assistance includes, but is not limited to, providing 
professional consultations, attending mediations, arbitrations, depositions, trials or any 
event related to the dispute resolution and/or litigation (“Mandatory Assistance”). 

 
 

[REMAINDER OF PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK] 

 



 

EXHIBIT A Page A - 4 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
PRE-DESIGN AND START-UP SERVICES 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

C. PRE-DESIGN AND START-UP SERVICES  
 

1. Project Initiation 
 

Upon final execution of the Agreement with the District, Architect shall: 
 
a. Within the first week following execution of the Agreement, review the proposed 

Schedule of Services set forth in Exhibit “C” to the Agreement and prepare a detailed 
scope of work list and work plan for documentation to the District’s satisfaction.  This 
scope of work list and work plan will identify specific tasks including, but not limited 
to: interviews, data collection, analysis, report preparation, planning, architectural 
programming, concepts and schematic design preparation and estimating that are 
part of the work of the Project.  Architect shall also identify milestone activities or dates, 
specific task responsibilities, required completion times necessary for review and 
approval by the District and by all regulatory agencies and additional definition of 
deliverables. 

 
b. Review the developed work plan with the District and its representatives to familiarize 

them with the proposed tasks and schedule and develop necessary modifications. 
 

2. Development of Architectural Program 
 

Architect shall prepare for the District’s review of an architectural program as follows:  
 

a. Perform pre-design investigations to establish appropriate guidelines around which 
and within which the Project is to be designed.  Identify design issues relating to 
functional needs, directives and constraints imposed by regulatory codes.  Review all 
data pertinent to the Project including survey, site maps, geotechnical reports and 
recommendations, soil testing results reports, and pertinent historical data, and other 
relevant information provided by District. 

 
b. Review DSA codes pertaining to the proposed Project design.   

 
c. Identify design issues relating to functional needs, directives and constraints imposed 

by applicable regulatory codes.   
 

d. Based on survey and topography data provided by the District, input into computer 
and develop existing conditions base for the Schematic Design Phase. 

 
e. Administer Project as required to coordinate work with the District and among 

Consultants. 
 



 

EXHIBIT A Page A - 5 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
PRE-DESIGN AND START-UP SERVICES 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

f. Develop District standards for facilities and construction, including but not limited to 
designation of any material, product, thing or service by specific brand or trade name 
pursuant to Public Contract Code section 3400, subdivision (c). 

 
3. Construction Cost Budget 

 
a. Architect shall have responsibility to further develop, review, and reconcile the 

Construction Cost Budget within the parameters of the Construction Budget 
established by the District for the Project.  The estimates forming the basis of the 
Construction Cost Budget are to be based on the developed functional architectural 
program as approved by the District. The following conditions apply to the 
Construction Cost Budget prepared by the Architect: 

 
(i) All costs are to be based on current bid prices, with escalation rate and duration 

clearly identified as a separate line item; rate of cost escalation and projected 
bid and construction dates are to be approved by the District and its 
representatives. 
 

(ii) Format shall be in a building systems format (e.g., foundations, substructure, 
structural system, exterior wall enclosure, window systems, etc.) for new 
buildings, and summarized by the Construction Specification Institute (“CSI”) 
categories for buildings being modernized. 
 

(iii) Contingencies for design, bidding, and construction are to be included as 
individual line items, with the percentage and base of calculation clearly 
identified. 
 

(iv) Architect shall include all information and estimates from the District and/or 
the Construction Manager that are intended to be part of the Construction Cost 
Budget. 
 

(v) One week prior to submittal of documents, Architect shall submit its proposed 
Construction Cost Budget to the District and the Construction Manager for 
review and approval.  At that time, Architect shall coordinate with the District 
and the Construction Manager to further develop, review, and reconcile the 
Construction Cost Budget. 
 

(vi) Mechanical, electrical, civil, landscape and estimating consultant(s) shall 
participate in the progress meeting as appropriate and shall provide input and 
feedback into the development of the Construction Cost Budget. 

 
b. The Construction Cost Budget for the Project must at no point exceed the District’s 

Construction Budget for the Project.  The accuracy of the Construction Cost Budget 
shall be the responsibility of the Architect. 



 

EXHIBIT A Page A - 6 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
PRE-DESIGN AND START-UP SERVICES 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

4. Presentation 
 
If requested, Architect, along with any involved consultant(s), shall present and review with 
the District and, if directed, with the District’s Governing Board, the summary and detail of 
work involved in this Phase, including two-dimensional renderings of any proposed facility 
suitable for public presentation. 
 

5. Deliverables and Numbers of Copies  
 

Within thirty (30) days of the end of this Phase, Architect shall provide to the District an 
electronic copy of the following items produced in this Phase: 

 
a. Architectural Program (include comparison between developed program and “model” 

program, include narrative explaining any substantial deviations); 
 

b. Site Plan; 
 

c. Revised Construction Cost Budget; 
 

d. Final Schedule of Services;  
 

e. Meeting Reports/Minutes from the Kick-off and other meetings; and 
 

f. Renderings, if requested by District.  
 

6. Meetings 
 

During this Phase, Architect shall attend, take part in, and, when indicated, conduct 
meetings, site visits, and workshops minimally on a bi-weekly basis. 

 
 

[REMAINDER OF PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK]



 

EXHIBIT A Page A - 7 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
SCHEMATIC DESIGN PHASE 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

D. SCHEMATIC DESIGN PHASE 
 

Upon District’s acceptance of Architect’s work in the previous Phase and assuming District has 
not delayed or terminated the Agreement, Architect shall prepare for the District’s review a 
Schematic Design Study, containing the following items as applicable to the Project scope, as 
follows: 

 
1. Prepare and review with District staff a scope of work list and work plan identifying specific 

tasks including, but not limited to: interviews, data collection, analysis, report preparation, 
planning, architectural programming, concepts and schematic design preparation and 
estimating that are part of the work of the Project.  Also identified will be milestone 
activities or dates, specific task responsibilities of the Architect, required completion times 
necessary for the review and approval by the District and by pertinent regulatory agencies 
and additional definition of deliverables. 

 
2. Review the developed work plan with the District and its representatives to familiarize 

them with the proposed tasks and schedule and develop necessary modifications. 
 

3. Architectural 
 

a. Scaled floor plans showing overall dimensions, identifying the various major areas and 
their relationship.  Include circulation and room-by-room tabulation of all net usable 
floor areas and a summary of gross floor area.  Also, provide typical layouts of major 
equipment or operational layout. 

 
b. Preliminary building exterior elevations and sections in sufficient detail to demonstrate 

design concept indicating location and size of fenestration. 
 

c. As applicable, identify proposed roof system, deck, insulation system, and drainage 
technique. 

 
d. Identify minimum finish requirements, including ceiling, floors, walls, doors, windows, 

and types of hardware. 
 

e. Identify code requirements, include occupancy classification(s) and type of 
construction. 

 
4. Structural 

 
a. Layout structural systems with dimensions and floor elevations.  Identify structural 

systems (including pre-cast, structural steel with composite deck, structural steel bar 
joists) with preliminary sizing identified.       

 



 

EXHIBIT A Page A - 8 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
SCHEMATIC DESIGN PHASE 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

b. Identify foundation systems (including fill requirements, piles, caissons, spread 
footings) with preliminary sizing identified. 

 
5. Mechanical 

 
a. Calculate block heating, ventilation, and cooling loads including skin versus internal 

loading. 
 

b. Select a minimum of two (2) HVAC systems that appear compatible with loading 
conditions for subsequent life cycle costing. 

 
c. Show selected system on drawings as follows: 

 
(i) Single line drawing(s) of all mechanical equipment spaces, ductwork and pipe 

chases. 
 
(ii) Location and preliminary sizing of all major equipment and duct work in allocated 

spaces. 
 
(iii) Schematic piping. 
 
(iv) Temperature control zoning. 

 
d. Provide design criteria to include the intent base of design for the Project. 

 
e. Evaluate and confirm the load requirements of all equipment and systems, the impact 

of those on existing facilities, and the requirements to increase these loads to 
accommodate the increase. 

 
6. Electrical 

 
a. Calculate overall approximate electrical loads. 

 
b. Identify proposed electrical system for service, power, lighting, low voltage and 

communication loads, including proposed or planned additional buildings or other 
facilities on the Project site. 

 
c. Show system(s) selected on drawings as follows: 

 
(i) Single line drawing(s) showing major distribution system. 
 
(ii) Location and preliminary sizing of all major electrical systems and components 

including: 
 



 

EXHIBIT A Page A - 9 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
SCHEMATIC DESIGN PHASE 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

(A) Load centers. 

(B) Main panels. 

(C) Switch gear. 
 

d. Provide design criteria to include the intent base of design for the Project.  
 

e. Evaluate and confirm the load requirements of all equipment and systems, the impact 
of those on existing facilities, and the requirements to increase these loads to 
accommodate the increase. 

 
7. Civil 

 
a. Develop on and off site utility systems such as sewer, water, storm drain, firewater lines 

and fire hydrants. 
 

b. Identify surface improvements including roadways, walkways, parking (with assumed 
wheel weights), preliminary finish grades and drainage. 

 
c. Coordinate finish floor elevations with architectural site plan. 

 
8. Specifications 

 
Prepare outline specifications of proposed architectural, structural, mechanical and 
electrical materials, systems and equipment and their criteria and quality standards.  
Architect is to use District’s standardized equipment/material list for new construction and 
modernization in development of the Project design and specifications.   Architect shall 
review and comment on District’s construction bid contracts and contract documents (the 
“Division 0” and “Division 1” documents) as part of its Services under the Agreement. 

 
9.  Construction Cost Budget 

 
Revise the Construction Cost Budget for the Project.  Along with the conditions identified 
in the preceding Phase, the following conditions apply to the revised Construction Cost 
Budget: 

 
a. Schematic Estimates: This estimate consists of unit cost applied to the major items and 

quantities of work.  The unit cost shall reflect the complete direct current cost of work.  
Complete cost includes labor, material, waste allowance, sales tax and subcontractor's 
mark-up.   

 
(i) General conditions shall be applied separately.  This estimate shall be prepared by 

specification section and summarized by the CSI categories.   



 

EXHIBIT A Page A - 10 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
SCHEMATIC DESIGN PHASE 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 
b. The estimate shall separate the Project's building cost from site and utilities cost.  

Architect shall submit to the District the cost estimating format for prior review and 
approval. 

 
c. Escalation: all estimates shall be priced out at current market conditions.  The estimates 

shall incorporate all adjustments as appropriate, relating to mid-point construction, 
contingency, and cost index (i.e. Lee Saylor Index). 

 
d. The Construction Cost Budget for the Project must at no point exceed the District’s 

Construction Budget.  The accuracy of the Construction Cost Budget shall be the 
responsibility of the Architect. 

 
e. Architect shall submit its proposed Construction Cost Budget to the District and the 

Construction Manager for review and approval.  At that time, Architect shall coordinate 
with the District and Construction Manager to further develop, review, and reconcile 
the Construction Cost Budget.   

 
f. At the end of this Phase, the Construction Cost Budget may include design 

contingencies of no more than ten percent (10%) in the cost estimates. 
 

10. Deliverables and Numbers of Copies 
 

Within thirty (30) days of the end of this Phase, Architect shall provide to the District a hard 
copy of the following items produced in this phase, together with one (1) copy of each 
item in electronic format: 

 
a. Breakdown of Construction Cost Budget as prepared for this Phase; 
 
b. Meeting reports/minutes; 
 
c. Schematic Design Package with alternatives; 
 
d. Statement indicating changes made to the Architectural Program and Schedule; 

and 
 
e. Copy of the DSA file, including all correspondence and meeting notes to date, or 

notification in writing that Architect has not met or corresponded with DSA. 
 

11. Presentation 
 

a. Architect shall present and review with the District the detailed Schematic Design. 
 



 

EXHIBIT A Page A - 11 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
SCHEMATIC DESIGN PHASE 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

b. The Schematic Design shall be revised within the accepted program parameters until 
a final concept within the accepted Construction Cost Budget has been accepted and 
approved by the District at no additional cost to the District. 

 
12. Meetings 

 
During this Phase, Architect shall attend, take part in, and, when indicated, conduct 
meetings, site visits, and workshops minimally on a bi-weekly basis. 

 
 
 
[REMAINDER OF PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK]



 

EXHIBIT A Page A - 12 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
DESIGN DEVELOPMENT PHASE 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 
E. DESIGN DEVELOPMENT PHASE  

 
Upon District’s acceptance of Architect’s work in the previous Phase and assuming District has 
not delayed or terminated the Agreement, Architect shall prepare from the accepted 
deliverables from the Schematic Design Phase, the Design Development Phase documents 
consisting of the following for each proposed system within Architect’s scope of services:  

 
1. Architectural 

 
a. Scaled, dimensioned floor plans with final room locations including all openings. 

 
b. 1/8” scale building sections showing dimensional relationships, materials and 

component relationships. 
 
c. Exterior elevations of all proposed new buildings, existing buildings to be renovated 

and all architectural elements of the Project. 
 

d. Identification of all fixed equipment to be installed in Project. 
 
e. Interior finishes identified and located within the rooms of all buildings. 

 
f. Site plan completely drawn with beginning notes and dimensions including grading 

and paving. 
 

g. Preliminary development of details and large scale blow-ups. 
 

h. Legend showing all symbols used on drawings. 
 

i. Floor plans identifying all fixed and major movable equipment and furniture. 
 

j. Further refinement of Outline Specifications for architectural, structural, mechanical, 
electrical, civil and landscape manuals, systems and equipment. 

 
k. Typical reflected ceiling development including ceiling grid and heights for each 

ceiling to be used, showing: 
 

(i) Light fixtures. 
 
(ii) Ceiling registers or diffusers. 
 
(iii) Access Panels. 

 
  



 

EXHIBIT A Page A - 13 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
DESIGN DEVELOPMENT PHASE 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

2. Structural 
 

a. Structural drawings with all major members located and sized. 
 

b. Establish final building and floor elevations. 
 

c. Preliminary specifications. 
 
d. Preliminary calculations for the structural systems including lateral force resistive 

systems, foundations, and all structural system components. 
 

e. Identify foundation requirement (including fill requirement, piles) with associated soil 
pressure, water table and seismic center. 

 
3. Mechanical 

 
a. Heating and cooling load calculations as required and major duct or pipe runs sized 

to interface with structural. 
 

b. Major mechanical equipment should be scheduled indicating size and capacity. 
 

c. Ductwork and piping should be substantially located and sized. 
 
d. Plumbing plans for the Project shall indicate numbers and locations of fixtures and be 

in conformance with the code-mandated fixture count requirements of the Project. 
 

e. Devices in ceiling should be located. 
 

f. Legend showing all symbols used on drawings. 
 

g. More developed Outline Specifications indicating quality level and manufacture. 
 

h. Control Systems identified. 
 

i. Further evaluation and confirmation of the load requirements of all equipment and 
systems, the impact of those on existing facilities, and the requirements to increase 
these loads to accommodate the increase. 

 
4. Electrical 

 
a. All lighting fixtures should be located and scheduled showing all types and quantities 

of fixtures to be used, including proposed lighting levels for each usable space. 
 

b. All major electrical equipment should be scheduled indicating size and capacity. 



 

EXHIBIT A Page A - 14 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
DESIGN DEVELOPMENT PHASE 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

c. Complete electrical distribution including a one-line diagram indicating final location 
of switchboards, communications, controls (high and low voltage), motor control 
centers, panels, transformers and emergency generators, if required.  Low-voltage 
system includes fire alarm system, security system, clock and public address system, 
bell system, voice-data system, and telecom/technology system. 

 
d. Legend showing all symbols used on drawings. 

 
e. More developed and detailed Outline Specifications indicating quality level and 

manufacture. 
 

f. Further evaluation and confirmation of the load requirements of all equipment and 
systems, the impact of those on existing facilities, and the requirements to increase 
these loads to accommodate the increase. 

 
5. Civil 

 
a. Further refinement of Schematic Design Phase development of on and off site utility 

systems for sewer, electrical, water, storm drain and fire water.  Includes, without 
limitation, pipe sizes, materials, invert elevation location and installation details. 

 
b. Further refinement of Schematic Design Phase roadways, walkways, parking and storm 

drainage improvements.  Includes details and large scale drawings of curb and gutter, 
manhole, thrust blocks, paved parking and roadway sections. 

 
6. Bid Documents 

 
Architect shall review and comment on District’s construction bid contracts and contract 
documents (the “Division 0” documents and “Division 1” documents) as part of its Services 
under the Agreement. 

 
7. Construction Cost Budget 

 
a. Revise the Construction Cost Budget for the Project.  Along with the conditions 

identified in the Agreement and the preceding Phases, the following conditions apply 
to the revised Construction Cost Budget: 

 
(i) Design Development Estimate: This further revised estimate shall be prepared by 

specification section, summarized by CSI category and divided by trade and work 
item.  The estimate shall include individual item unit costs of materials, labor and 
equipment.  Sales tax, Contractor's mark-ups, and general conditions shall be listed 
separately.   

 



 

EXHIBIT A Page A - 15 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
DESIGN DEVELOPMENT PHASE 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

(ii) The Construction Cost Budget for the Project must at no point exceed the District’s 
Construction Budget.  The accuracy of the Construction Cost Budget shall be the 
responsibility of the Architect. 

 
(iii) At this stage of the design, the Construction Cost Budget may include design 

contingencies of no more than ten percent (10%) in the cost estimates. 
 

b. Architect shall submit its proposed Construction Cost Budget to the District and the 
Construction Manager for review and approval.  At that time, the Architect shall 
coordinate with the District and the Construction Manager to further develop, review, 
and reconcile the Construction Cost Budget.   

 
8. Deliverables and Numbers of Copies 

 
Architect shall provide to the District a hard copy of the following items produced in this 
phase, together with one (1) copy of each item in electronic format: 

 
a. Design Development drawing set from all professional disciplines necessary to deliver 

the Project; 
 

b. Specifications; 
 

c. Revised Construction Cost Budget; and 
 

d. Copy of the DSA file, including all correspondence and meeting notes to date, or 
notification in writing that Architect has not met or corresponded with DSA.  

 
The Design Development deliverables shall be revised within the accepted program 
parameters until a final concept within the accepted Construction Cost Budget has been 
accepted and approved by the District at no additional cost to the District. 

 
9. Meetings 

 
During this Phase, Architect shall attend, take part in, and, when indicated, conduct 
meetings, site visits, and workshops minimally on a bi-weekly basis. 
 
 
 

[REMAINDER OF PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK] 



 

EXHIBIT A Page A - 16 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS PHASE 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

F. CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS PHASE 
 

Upon District’s acceptance of Architect’s work in the previous Phase and assuming District 
has not delayed or terminated the Agreement, Architect shall prepare from the accepted 
deliverables from the Design Development Phase the Construction Documents consisting 
of the following for each proposed system within Architect’s scope of work.  All Projects 
subject to DSA’s jurisdiction shall be submitted for review, back check, and approval, under 
the electronic plan review process (“EPR process”), rather than paper submission. 

 
1. Construction Documents (“CD”) 50% Stage: 

 
a. General 

 
Verify lead times and availability of all Project equipment, materials, and supplies and 
ensure that all of these will be available to the Contractor in a timely fashion so as not 
to delay the Project. 

 
b. Architectural 

 
(i) Site plan developed to show building location, all topographical elements and 

existing/proposed contour lines. 
 
(ii) Elevations (exterior and interior), sections and floor plans corrected to reflect 

design development review comments. 
 
(iii) Architectural details and large blow-ups started. 
 
(iv) Well-developed finish, door, and hardware schedules. 
 
(v) Site utility plans started. 
 
(vi) Fixed equipment details and identification started. 
 
(vii) Reflected ceiling plans coordinated with floor plans and mechanical and electrical 

systems. 
 

c. Structural 
 

(i) Structural floor plans and sections with detailing well advanced. 
 
(ii) Structural footing and foundation plans, floor and roof framing plans with detailing 

well advanced. 
 
(iii) Completed cover sheet with general notes, symbols and legends. 



 

EXHIBIT A Page A - 17 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS PHASE 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 
d. Mechanical 

 
(i) Mechanical calculations virtually completed with all piping and ductwork sized. 
 
(ii) Large scale mechanical details started. 
 
 
(iii) Mechanical schedule for equipment substantially developed. 
 
(iv) Complete design of Energy Management System (“EMS”). 

 
e. Electrical 

 
(i) Lighting, power, signal and communication plans showing all switching and 

controls.  Fixture schedule and lighting details development started. 
 
(ii) Distribution information on all power consuming equipment; lighting and device 

branch wiring development well started. 
 
(iii) All electrical equipment schedules started. 
 
(iv) Special system components approximately located on plans. 
 
(v) Complete design of low-voltage system.  Low-voltage system includes fire alarm 

system, security system, clock and public address system, voice-data system, and 
telecom/technology system. 

 
f. Civil 

 
All site plans, site utilities, parking, walkway, and roadway systems updated to reflect 
update revisions from Design Development Phase Documents. 

 
g. Construction Cost Budget 

 
(i) Revise the Construction Cost Budget for the Project.  Along with the conditions 

identified in the preceding phases, Architect shall update and refine the Design 
Development Phase revisions to the Construction Cost Budget.  Architect shall 
provide a Construction Cost Budget sorted by Project Bid Packages, if more than 
one. 

 
(ii) The Construction Cost Budget for the Project must at no point exceed the District’s 

Construction Budget.  The accuracy of the Construction Cost Budget shall be the 
responsibility of the Architect. 



 

EXHIBIT A Page A - 18 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS PHASE 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 
(iii) Architect shall submit its proposed Construction Cost Budget to the District and 

the Construction Manager for review and approval.  At that time, the Architect shall 
coordinate with the District and the Construction Manager to further develop, 
review, and reconcile the Construction Cost Budget.   

 
(iv) At this stage of the design, the Construction Cost Budget may include design 

contingencies of no more than five percent (5%) in the cost estimates. 
 

h. Specifications 

More than fifty percent (50%) complete development and preparation of technical 
specifications describing materials, systems and equipment, workmanship, quality and 
performance criteria required for the construction of the Project. 

 
(i) No part of the specifications shall call for a designated material, product, thing, or 

service by specific brand or trade name unless: 
 

(A) The specification is followed by the words “or equal” so that bidders may 
furnish any equal material, product, thing, or service, as required by Public 
Contract Code section 3400, or 

 
(B) The designation is allowable by a specific allowable exemption or exception 

pursuant to Public Contract Code section 3400. 
 

(ii) Specifications shall not contain restrictions that will limit competitive bids other 
than those required for maintenance convenience by the District and only with 
District’s prior approval. 

    
(iii) Specifications shall be in CSI format. 

 
i. Deliverables and Numbers of Copies 

 
Within thirty (30) days of the end of this Phase, Architect shall provide to the District a 
hard copy of the following items produced in this Phase, together with one (1) copy of 
each item in electronic format: 

 
(i) working drawings; 
 
(ii) Specifications; 
 
(iii) statement of requirements for testing and inspection of service for compliance with 

Contract Documents and applicable codes; and 
 



 

EXHIBIT A Page A - 19 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS PHASE 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

(iv) statement indicating any authorized changes made to the design from the last 
Phase and the cost impact of each change on the previously approved 
Construction Cost Budget.  If no design changes occur but shifts of costs occur 
between disciplines, identify for District review.   

 
2. Construction Documents – 100% / Completion Stage: 

 
a. Architectural 

 
(i) Completed site plan. 
 
(ii) Completed floor plans, elevations, and sections. 
 
(iii) Architectural details and large blow-ups completed. 
 
(iv) Finish, door, and hardware schedules completed, including all details. 
 
(v) Site utility plans completed. 
 
(vi) Fixed equipment details and identification completed. 
 
(vii) Reflected ceiling plans completed. 
 

b. Structural 
 

(i) Structural floor plans and sections with detailing completed. 
 
(ii) Structural calculations completed. 

 
c. Mechanical 

 
(i) Large scale mechanical details complete. 
 
(ii) Mechanical schedules for equipment completed. 
 
(iii) Completed electrical schematic for environmental cooling and exhaust equipment. 
 
(iv) Complete energy conservation calculations and report. 

 
d. Electrical 

 
(i) Lighting and power plan showing all switching and controls.  Fixture schedule and 

lighting details completed. 
 



 

EXHIBIT A Page A - 20 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS PHASE 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

(ii) Distribution information on all power consuming equipment, including lighting, 
power, signal and communication device(s) branch wiring completed. 

 
(iii) All electrical equipment schedules completed. 
 
(iv) Special system components plans completed. 
 
(v) Electrical load calculations completed.  

 
e. Civil 

 
All site plans, site utilities, parking and roadway systems completed. 

 
f. Construction Cost Budget 

 
(i) Revise the Construction Cost Budget for the Project.  Along with the conditions 

identified in the preceding phases, Architect shall update and refine the fifty 
percent (50%) Construction Documents Phase revisions to the Construction Cost 
Budget.   

 
(ii) The Construction Cost Budget for the Project must at no point exceed the District’s 

Construction Budget.  The accuracy of the Construction Cost Budget shall be the 
responsibility of the Architect. 

 
(iii) Architect shall submit its proposed Construction Cost Budget to the District and 

the Construction Manager for review and approval.  At that time, Architect shall 
coordinate with the District and the Construction Manager to further develop, 
review, and reconcile the Construction Cost Budget.   

 
(iv) At this stage of the design, the Construction Cost Budget shall not include any 

design contingencies in excess of the cost estimates. 
 

g. Specifications 
 

(i) Complete development and preparation of technical specifications describing 
materials, systems and equipment, workmanship, quality and performance criteria 
required for the construction of the Project.   

 
(ii) No part of the specifications shall call for a designated material, product, thing, or 

service by specific brand or trade name unless: 
 

(A) The specification is followed by the words “or equal” so that bidders may 
furnish any equal material, product, thing, or service, as required by Public 
Contract Code section 3400, or 



 

EXHIBIT A Page A - 21 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS PHASE 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 
(B) The designation is allowable by specific allowable exemptions or exceptions 

pursuant to Public Contract Code section 3400. 
 

(iii) Specifications shall not contain restrictions that will limit competitive bids other 
than those required for maintenance convenience by the District and only with 
District’s prior approval. 

 
(iv) At one hundred percent (100%) review, District shall review the Specifications and 

shall direct Architect to make corrections at no cost to the District. 
 
(v) Coordination of the Specifications with specifications developed by other 

disciplines. 
 
(vi) Specifications shall be in CSI format. 

 
h. Constructability Review 

 
The District and/or its designee, at its sole discretion, shall have the right to conduct a 
constructability review of the Construction Documents.  A report shall be given to the 
Architect who shall make necessary changes along with providing written comments 
for each item listed in the report.  Conducting a constructability review does not excuse 
the Architect’s obligation to provide Services that shall comply with professional 
architectural standards, including the standard of care applicable to architects 
designing public school facilities and applicable requirements of federal, state, and 
local law. 

 
i. Deliverables and Numbers of Copies 

 
Within thirty (30) days of the end of this Phase, Architect shall provide to the District a 
hard copy of the following items produced in this Phase, together with one (1) copy of 
each item in electronic format: 

 
(i) Working drawings; 
 
(ii) Specifications; 
 
(iii) Engineering calculations; 
 
(iv) Construction Cost Budgets; 
 
(v) Statement of requirements for testing and inspection of service for compliance 

with Construction Documents and applicable codes; 
 



 

EXHIBIT A Page A - 22 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS PHASE 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

(vi) Copy of DSA file including all correspondence, meeting, minutes or reports, back-
check comments, checklists to date; and 

 
(vii) Statement indicating any authorized changes made to the design from the last 

Phase and the cost impact of each change on the previously approved 
Construction Cost Budget.  If no design changes occur but shifts of costs occur 
between disciplines, identify for District review.   

 
3. Construction Documents Final Back-Check Stage: 

 
a. The Construction Documents final back-check stage shall be for the purpose of the 

Architect incorporating all regulatory agencies' comments into the drawings, 
specifications, and estimate.  All changes made by the Architect during this stage shall 
be at no additional cost to the District. 

 
b. The final contract documents delivered to the District upon completion of the 

Architect’s work shall be the Bid Set and shall consist of the following: 
 

(i) Drawings: Original tracings of all drawings on Architect’s tracing paper with each 
Architect/Consultant’s State license stamp. 

 
(ii) Specifications: Original word-processed technical specifications on reproducible 

masters in CSI format.  
 

c. Architect shall update and refine the Consultants’ completed Contract Documents.  

d. Conclusion of Construction Document Phase requires final stamp-out by DSA. 
 

4. Meetings 
 

During this Phase, Architect shall attend, take part in, and, when indicated, conduct 
meetings, site visits, and workshops minimally on a bi-weekly basis. 
 
 
 



 

EXHIBIT A Page A - 23 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
BIDDING PHASE  
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

G. BIDDING PHASE 
 

Upon District’s acceptance of Architect’s work in the previous Phase and assuming District has 
not delayed or terminated the Agreement, Architect shall perform Bidding Phase services for 
District as follows:  

 
1. Contact potential bidders and encourage their participation in the Project. 

 
2. Coordinate the development of the bidding procedures and the construction Contract 

Documents with the District. 
 

3. The development of the bidding procedures and the construction Contract Documents 
shall be the joint responsibility of the District and Architect.  Nevertheless, Architect will 
use all due care and diligence to confirm that its plans and specifications and all other 
information provided by or on behalf of the District to potential bidders discloses and 
publishes any potentially relevant information that could, in any way, have an impact on a 
Contractor's cost of performance. 

 
4. While the Project is being advertised for bids, all questions concerning intent shall be 

referred to the District for screening and subsequent processing through Architect. 
 

5. In the event that items requiring interpretation of the drawings or specifications are 
discovered during the bidding period, those items shall be analyzed by the Architect for 
decision by the District as to the proper procedure required.  Corrective action will be in 
the form of an addendum prepared by the Architect and issued by the District.   

 
6. Attend bid opening. 

 
7. Coordinate with Consultants. 

 
8. Respond to District and potential bidder questions and clarifications. 

 
9. Deliverables and Number of Copies 

 
Within thirty (30) days of the end of this Phase, Architect shall provide to the District a hard 
copy of the following items produced in this Phase, together with one (1) copy of each 
item in electronic format: 

 
a. Meeting report/minutes from the kick-off meeting;  

 
b. Meeting report/minutes from the pre-bid site walk; and 

 
c. Upon completion of the Bidding Phase, Architect shall produce a Conforming Set of 

plans and specifications incorporating all addenda issued thus far.  Architect shall 
supply District with two (2) complete, reproducible sets of plans and specifications 
marked as a Conforming Set.  



 

EXHIBIT A Page A - 24 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
CONSTRUCTION ADMINISTRATION PHASE 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

H. CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT ADMINISTRATION PHASE 
 

Upon District’s acceptance of Architect’s work in the previous Phase and assuming District has 
not delayed or terminated the Agreement, Architect shall perform Construction Contract 
Administration Phase services for the District as follows:  

 
1. Architect’s responsibility to provide basic services for the Construction Phase under the 

Agreement commences with the award of the contract for construction and terminates 
upon satisfactory performance and completion of all tasks in this phase and 
commencement of the Closeout Phase or upon the District’s terminating the Agreement, 
whichever is earlier. 

 
2. Construction Oversight and Project Certification Process  

a. Architect shall ensure that the Project Inspector is approved by the DSA for the Project 
by submitting the applicable Inspector’s Qualification Record (form DSA 5 or more 
current version) to and by obtaining approval from the DSA prior to commencement 
of construction and prior to requesting issuance of project inspections cards (form DSA 
152 or more current version). 

b. Architect shall request issuance of the proper number of project inspection cards 
(forms DSA 152 or more current version) by electronically submitting form DSA 102-
IC (or more current version) to the DSA after the construction contract has been 
awarded.  Architect shall provide project inspection cards to the Project Inspector prior 
to commencement of construction. 

c. Prior to commencement of construction, Architect shall provide (1) a copy of the DSA 
approved construction documents and (2) the DSA approved Statement of Structural 
Tests and Special Inspections (form DSA 103 or more current version) prepared by 
Architect to the Project Inspector and Laboratory of Record. 

d. Architect shall prepare and submit a Contract Information form (form DSA 102 or more 
current version) for all construction contracts. 

e. Architect shall maintain such personal contact with the Project as is necessary to assure 
themselves of compliance, in every material respect, with the DSA-approved 
construction documents.  Personal contact shall include visits to the Project site by the 
Architect or engineer or their qualified representative to observe construction.   

f. Architect shall notify DSA as to the disposition of materials noted on laboratory testing, 
and/or special inspection, reports as not conforming to the DSA-approved 
construction documents. 

g. Architect shall respond to DSA field trip notes as necessary. 



 

EXHIBIT A Page A - 25 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
CONSTRUCTION ADMINISTRATION PHASE 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

h. Architect shall submit an interim Verified Report (form DSA 6-AE or more current 
version) to the DSA electronically and a copy to the Project Inspector for each of the 
applicable nine (9) sections of form DSA 152 prior to the Project Inspector signing off 
that section of the project inspection card. 

i. Architect shall submit a Statement of Final Actual Project Cost (form DSA 168 or more 
current version) to the DSA. 

j. Architect shall submit Verified Reports (form DSA 6-AE or more current form) to the 
DSA and to the Project Inspector if any of the following events occur:  (1) when 
construction is sufficiently complete in accordance with the DSA-approved 
construction documents so that the District can occupy or utilize the Project; (2) work 
on the Project is suspended for a period of more than one month; (3) the services of 
the Architect are terminated for any reason prior to completion of the Project; or (4) 
DSA requests a Verified Report.    

 
3. Change Orders 

 
a. Architect shall review all of Contractor’s change order requests to determine if those 

requests are valid and appropriate.  Architect shall provide a recommendation to 
District as to whether the change should be approved, partially approved, returned to 
the Contractor for clarification, or rejected.  

 
b. Architect shall furnish all necessary Construction Change Documents and additional 

drawings for supplementing, clarifying, and/or correcting purposes and for change 
orders.  The District shall request these Construction Change Documents and drawings 
from the Architect, which shall be provided at no additional cost unless designated as 
Extra Services by the District.  The original tracing(s) and/or drawings and contract 
wording for change orders shall be submitted to the District for duplication and 
distribution. 

 
4. Submittals 

 
a. Architect shall review and approve or take other appropriate action upon Contractor's 

submittals such as: shop drawings, Project data, samples and Construction Change 
Documents, but only for the purpose of checking for conformance with information 
given and the design concept expressed in the Contract Documents.   

 
b. Architect shall review Contractor’s schedule of submittals and advise the District on 

whether that schedule is complete.  Architect shall provide the District with proposed 
revisions to this schedule and advise the District on whether the District should 
approve this schedule. 

 



 

EXHIBIT A Page A - 26 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
CONSTRUCTION ADMINISTRATION PHASE 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

c. Architect’s action upon Contractor’s submittals shall be taken as expeditiously as 
possible so as to cause no unreasonable delay in the construction of the Project or in 
the work of Contractor(s), while allowing sufficient time in the Architect’s professional 
judgment to permit adequate review.  In no case shall the review period associated 
with a single, particular submittal exceed twenty-one (21) calendar days from its receipt 
by the Architect.  Architect’s response to each submittal shall be a substantive and 
acceptable response.  This twenty-one (21)-day time period shall not include time 
when a submittal is within the District’s control or if the submittal is being reviewed by 
DSA.  In no way does this provision reduce Architect’s liability if it fails to prepare 
acceptable documents. 

 
5. RFIs.  During the course of construction as part of the basic services, Architect must 

respond to all Requests for Information (“RFI”) as expeditiously as possible so as not to 
impact and delay the construction progress.  In no case shall the review period associated 
with an RFI exceed seven (7) calendar days from receipt by the Architect.  Architect’s 
response to each RFI shall be a substantive and acceptable response.  This seven-day time 
period shall not include time when a submittal is within the District’s control or if the 
submittal is being reviewed by DSA.  In no way does this provision reduce the Architect’s 
liability if it fails to prepare acceptable documents.  Architect must verify that RFIs are 
passed through the Project Inspector, if any. 

 
6. Notices of Deficient Work.  On the basis of on-site observations, Architect shall keep the 

District informed of the progress and the quality of the work, and shall endeavor to guard 
the District against defects and deficiencies in the work.  Architect shall timely notify the 
District in writing of any defects or deficiencies in the work by any of the District’s 
Contractors that Architect may observe.  However, Architect shall not be a guarantor of 
the Contractor's performance.  

 
7. As-Built Drawings.  Architect shall review and evaluate for District the Contractor(s)’ 

documentation of the actual construction performed during the Project that the 
Contractor(s) should prepare and submit as As-Builts.  As-Builts are documents that show 
the actual construction performed during the Project, including changes necessitated by 
Construction Change Documents and change orders, and detailed by the District’s 
construction Contractor(s) on a Conforming Set. 

 
8. Record Drawings.  Architect shall incorporate all information on all As-Builts, sketches, 

details, and clarifications, and prepare one (1) set of final Record Drawings for the District.  
The Record Drawings shall incorporate onto one (1) set of drawings, all changes from all 
As-Builts, sketches, details, and clarifications, including, without limitation, all requests for 
information, Construction Change Documents and change orders based upon the 
construction Contractor’s representations of actual construction.  Architect shall deliver 
the Record Drawings to the District at completion of the construction in a format 
acceptable to the District, and it shall be a condition precedent to the District’s approval 



 

EXHIBIT A Page A - 27 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
CONSTRUCTION ADMINISTRATION PHASE 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

of Architect’s final payment.  Architect may insert the following notice on the Record 
Drawings: 

 
These drawings [or corrected specifications] have been prepared based 
on information submitted, in part, by others.  Architect has provided a 
review consistent with its legal standard of care. 
 

9. O&M Manuals and Warranties.  Architect shall review equipment, operation and 
maintenance manuals, and a complete set of warranty documents for all equipment and 
installed systems, to ensure that they meet the requirements of the plans and 
specifications.  

 
10. Start-up.  Architect shall also provide, at the District’s request, architectural/engineering 

advice to the District on start-up, break-in, and debugging of facility systems and 
equipment, and on apparent deficiencies or defects in construction following the 
acceptance of the Contractor's work. 

 
11. Payment Statements.  Recommendations of Payment by Architect constitute Architect’s 

representation to the District that work has progressed to the point indicated to the best 
of Architect’s knowledge, information, and belief, and that the quality of the work is in 
general conformance with the Contract Documents.  

 
12. Deliverables and Number of Copies 

 
Within thirty (30) days of the end of this Phase, Architect shall provide to the District a hard 
copy of the following items produced in this Phase, together with one (1) copy of each 
item in electronic format: 

 
a. Meeting report/minutes from the kick-off meeting;  

 
b. Observation reports; and 

 
c. Weekly meeting reports.  

 
13. Meetings 

 
During this Phase, Architect shall attend, take part in, and, when indicated, conduct 
meetings, site visits, and workshops minimally on a bi-weekly basis. 

 
[REMAINDER OF PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK]



 

EXHIBIT A Page A - 28 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
CLOSE-OUT PHASE 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

I. CLOSE OUT PHASE 
 

1. As the Construction Administration Phase progresses, Architect shall perform the following 
Close Out Phase services for the District as required in a timely manner: 

 
a. Architect shall review the Project and observe the construction as required to 

determine when the Contractor has completed the construction of the Project and 
shall prepare punch lists of items that remain in need of correction or completion. 

 
b. Architect shall collect from the Contractor, review, and forward to the District all written 

warranties, operation manuals, and spare parts with Architect’s recommendation as to 
the adequacy of these items. 

 
c. Architect shall prepare or collect, as applicable, and provide to DSA, all reports required 

by DSA related to the design and construction of the Project. 
 

d. Architect shall respond to the DSA “90-day” letter. 
 

e. Architect shall obtain all required DSA approval of all Construction Change Documents 
and addenda to the Contractor’s contract. 

 
f. Architect shall prepare a set of As-Built Drawings for the Project, as required by the 

District. 
 

g. Architect shall review and prepare a package of all warranty and O&M documentation. 
 

h. Architect shall organize electronic files, plans and prepare a Project binder. 
 

i. Architect shall have primary responsibility to coordinate all Services required to close-
out the design and construction of the Project with the District and among Consultants. 

 
2. When the design and construction of the Project is complete, the District shall prepare and 

record with the County Recorder a Notice of Completion for the Project. 
 

3. Deliverables and Number of Copies 
 

a. Punch list; and 
 

b. Upon completion of the Project, all related Project documents, including As-Builts and 
Record Drawings.  These are the sole property of the District. 

 
4. Meetings 

 
During this phase, Architect shall attend, take part in, and, when indicated, conduct 
meetings, site visits, and workshops minimally on a bi-weekly basis. 



 

EXHIBIT B Page B - 1 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

EXHIBIT “B” 

CRITERIA AND BILLING FOR EXTRA SERVICES 

The following Extra Services to the Agreement shall be performed by Architect if needed and if 
authorized or requested by the District: 

A. Providing services as directed by the District that are not part of the Basic Services of this 
Agreement, or otherwise included within Exhibit “A.”    

B. Providing deliverables or other items in excess of the number indicated in Exhibit “A.”  
Before preparing, providing, sending, or invoicing for extra deliverables, Architect shall 
inform the District that expected deliverables may be in excess of the number indicated 
in Exhibit “A,” so that the District can procure the additional deliverables itself or direct 
Architect to procure the deliverables at the District’s expense or on the District’s account 
at a specific vendor. 

C. Making revisions in drawings, specifications, or other documents when such revisions are 
required by the enactment or revisions of codes, laws, or regulations subsequent to the 
preparation of the Conforming Set.  

D. Providing consultation concerning replacement of work damaged by fire or other cause 
during construction and furnishing services required in connection with replacement of 
that work. 

E. Providing services made necessary by the default of Contractor(s). 

F. In the absence of a final Certificate of Payment or Notice of Completion, providing 
services more than ninety (90) days after the date of completion of work by Contractor(s) 
and after Architect has completed all of its obligations and tasks under the Agreement. 

G. Providing services as an expert and/or witness for the District in any mediation, 
arbitration, and/or trial in which the Architect is (1) not a party, and (2) did not in any way 
cause the dispute that is being adjudicated. 

H. The following rates, which include overhead, administrative cost, and profit, shall be 
utilized in arriving at the fee for Extra Services and shall not be changed for the term of 
the Agreement. 

Job Title Hourly Rate 
Principal Architect: $200 
Project Architect: $180 
Program Manager: $130 



 

EXHIBIT B Page B - 2 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

I. The mark-up on any approved reimbursable item of Extra Services shall not exceed five 
percent (5%).  

1. The following items are approved for mark-up: 

a. Sub-consultant Invoices. 

2. Any approved item of Extra Services not identified in the above list may not be 
marked-up. 

J. Format and Content of Invoices (Extra Services Only) 

Architect acknowledges that the District requires Architect’s invoices to include detailed 
explanations of the Services performed.  For example, a six hour charge for “RFIs and CORs” 
is unacceptable and will not be payable.  A more detailed explanation, with specificity, is 
required.  This includes a separate entry for each RFI, PCO, CCD and change order.  For 
example, the following descriptions, in addition to complying with all other terms of this 
Agreement, would be payable.  The times indicated below are just placeholders: 

Review RFI 23; review plans and specifications for response to 
same; prepare responses to same and forward to contractor, 
district, construction manager, and project inspector.   

0.8 hours 

Review COR 8; review scope of same and plans and specifications 
for appropriateness of same; prepare draft change order and 
language for same. 

0.7 hours 

Review COR 11; review scope of same and plans and 
specifications for appropriateness of same; prepare rejection of 
COR 11 for review by district, CM, IOR. 

1.2 hours 

 

END OF EXHIBIT 



 

EXHIBIT C Page C - 1 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

EXHIBIT “C” 

SCHEDULE OF SERVICES 

A. Promptly after the execution of this Agreement, Architect shall prepare and submit for 
approval to the District a Schedule of Services showing the order in which Architect 
proposes to carry out Architect's Services (“Schedule of Services”).  The Schedule of Services 
shall apply to the completion of all Services listed hereunder within the times established by 
this Agreement.  The Schedule of Services shall be in the form of a progress chart clearly 
delineating all important increments and review dates.  Architect shall update the Schedule 
of Services on a monthly basis and deliver two (2) hard copies and one (1) electronic copy to 
the District along with the monthly billing. 

B. Architect shall complete Services required under the Development of Architectural Program 
section within _7_ calendar days after written authorization from the District to proceed. 

C. Architect shall complete Services required under the Schematic Design Phase within _21__ 
calendar days after written authorization from District to proceed. 

D. Architect shall complete Services required under the Design Development Phase within 
_42__ calendar days after receipt of a written authorization from District to proceed. 

E. Architect shall complete Services required under Construction Documents Phase within 
_60__ calendar days after written authorization from District to proceed, and as more 
specifically indicated below.  Excluded from this duration is the time associated with DSA 
review the Construction Documents back-check stage. 

1. 50% Submittal Package _28__ calendar days 
2. 100% Submittal Package _32__ calendar days 
3. Final Contract Documents after Final Back-Check Stage _7__ calendar days 

F. The durations stated above include the review periods of _7__ calendar days required by the 
District.  

G. All times to complete tasks set forth in this Exhibit are of the essence, as indicated in the 
Agreement.  If delays in the Schedule of Services are incurred as a result of the District’s 
inability to comply with requested meeting schedules, Architect shall maintain the right to 
request an adjustment in the Schedule of Services if deemed necessary to meet the 
deadlines set forth in this Exhibit.  If approved, those extensions shall be authorized in 
writing by the District. 

 

END OF EXHIBIT 



 

EXHIBIT D Page D - 1 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES   
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

EXHIBIT “D” 

PAYMENT SCHEDULE 

A. Compensation 

1. The payment of consideration to Architect as provided herein shall be full 
compensation for all of Architect’s Services incurred in the performance hereof, 
including, without limitation, all costs for personnel, travel, offices, per diem 
expenses, printing and shipping of deliverables in the quantities set forth in Exhibit 
“A,” or any other direct or indirect expenses incident to providing the Services.  
Except as expressly set forth in the Agreement and Exhibit “B,” there shall be no 
payment for extra costs or expenses. 

2. The total compensation to Architect shall be as stated in Article 6 of the Agreement. 

3. District shall pay Architect as follows for all Services contracted for under this 
Agreement: 

PERCENTAGE OF TOTAL FEE PER PHASE 
      Phase Phase Amount 
Pre-Design/Architectural Program Development Phase 2.5% 
Schematic Design Phase 10% 
Design Development Phase 17.5% 
Construction Documents Phase-Submittal to DSA 30% 
Approval by DSA 5% 
Bidding Phase 2% 
Construction Contract Administration Phase 23% 
Close Out Phase 10% 
 Generate Punch List 2%  
 Sign Off On Punch List 2%  
 Receive and Review All M & O Documents 2%  
 Filing All DSA Required Close Out Documents 2%  
 Receiving DSA Close Out, including DSA  
         approval of the final set of Record Drawings 2% 

 

TOTAL BASE COMPENSATION 100% 

B. Method of Payment 

1. Invoices shall be on a form approved by the District and are to be submitted to the 
District via the District’s authorized representative. 

2. Architect shall submit to District on a monthly basis documentation showing proof 
that payments were made to its Consultant(s). 



 

EXHIBIT D Page D - 2 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES   
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

3. Architect shall submit to the District for approval a copy of the Architect’s monthly 
pay request format. 

4. Upon receipt and approval of Architect’s invoices, the District agrees to make 
payments of undisputed amounts within thirty (30) days of receipt of the invoice as 
follows: 

a. Pre- Design/Architectural Program Development Phase: 

Monthly payments for the percentage of all Services complete up to ninety-
five percent (95%) of the fee for the Phase; one hundred percent (100%) 
payment upon acceptance and approval of the Pre-Design/Architectural 
Program.

b. For Schematic Design Phase: 

Monthly payments for the percentage of all Services complete up to ninety-
five percent (95%) of the fee for the Phase; one hundred percent (100%) 
payment upon acceptance and approval of the Schematic Design Phase by 
the District. 

c. For Design Development Phase:  

Monthly payments for the percentage of all Services complete up to ninety-
five percent (95%) of the fee for the Phase; one hundred percent (100%) 
payment upon acceptance and approval of the Design Development Phase 
by the District. 

d. For Construction Documents Phase: 

Monthly payments for percentage of all Services complete up to ninety-five 
percent (95%) of the fee for the Phase; one hundred percent (100%) 
payment upon acceptance and approval of the Construction Documents 
Phase by the District.  

e. For Bidding Phase: 

Monthly payments for the percentage of all Services complete up to ninety-
five percent (95%) of the fee for the Phase; one hundred percent (100%) 
payment upon the District’s award of the bid. 

f. For Construction Contract Administration Phase: 

Monthly payments for the percentage of all Services complete up to ninety-
five percent (95%) of the fee for the Phase; one hundred percent (100%) 
payment upon the District’s notice of completion. 



 

EXHIBIT D Page D - 3 

AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 

SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

g. For Close Out: 

Lump sum payment no sooner than thirty-five (35) days and no later than 
forty-five (45) days after completion of all items in this Phase. 

 
END OF EXHIBIT 



 

EXHIBIT E Page E - 1 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

EXHIBIT “E” 

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 
 

A. Architect shall procure, prior to commencement of the Services of this Agreement and 
maintain for the duration of the Agreement, insurance against claims for injuries to persons 
or damages to property which may arise from or in connection with the performance of the 
Services hereunder by the Architect, his agents, representatives, employees and 
Consultant(s).  Architect’s liabilities, including but not limited to Architect’s indemnity or 
defense obligations, under this Agreement shall not be deemed limited in any way to the 
insurance coverage required herein. Maintenance of specified insurance coverage is a 
material element of this Agreement and Architect’s failure to maintain or renew coverage or 
to provide evidence of renewal during the term of this Agreement, as required or when 
requested, may be treated by the District as a material breach of contract. 

B. Minimum Scope and Limits of Insurance:  Coverage shall be at least as broad as the 
following scopes and limits. Umbrella or Excess Liability policies are acceptable where the 
need for higher liability limits is noted and shall provide liability coverages that at least 
follow form over the underlying insurance requirements where necessary for Commercial 
General Liability, Commercial Automobile Liability, Employers’ Liability, and other liability 
coverage (except Professional Liability) designated under this Section B – Insurance 
Requirements.” Minimum Scope of Insurance: 

1. Commercial General Liability.  Two million dollars ($2,000,000) per occurrence for 
bodily injury, personal injury and property damage.  If Commercial General Liability 
or other form with a general aggregate limit is used, either the general aggregate 
limit shall apply separately to each project/location or the general aggregate limit 
shall be twice the required occurrence limit.  

2. Commercial Automobile Liability. Two million dollars ($2,000,000) per accident for 
bodily injury and property damage. 

 
3. Workers' Compensation Liability.  For all of the Architect’s employees who are 

subject to this Agreement and to the extent required by the applicable state or 
federal law, Architect shall keep in full force and effect, a Workers' Compensation 
policy.   

 
4. Employers’ Liability.  For all of the Architect’s employees who are subject to this 

Agreement, Architect shall keep in full force and effect, an Employers’ Liability policy 
with minimum liability coverage of two million dollars ($2,000,000) per occurrence.   

 
5. Professional Liability.  This insurance shall cover the prime design professional and 

his/her consultant(s) on a Claims Made basis for two Million Dollars ($2,000,000) 
aggregate limit subject to no more than two hundred thousand dollars ($200,000) 
per claim deductible, coverage to continue through completion of construction plus 
two (2) years thereafter. 

C. District reserves the right to modify the limits and coverages described herein, with 
appropriate credits or changes to be negotiated for such changes.  



 

EXHIBIT E Page E - 2 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

D. Deductibles and Self-Insured Retention:  Architect shall inform the District in writing if any 
deductibles or self-insured retention exceeds two hundred thousand dollars ($200,000).  At 
the option of the District, either:  

1. The District can accept the higher deductible; 

2. Architect’s insurer shall reduce or eliminate such deductibles or self-insured retention 
as respects the District, its officers, officials, employees and volunteers; or  

E. Other Insurance Provisions:  The general liability and automobile liability policies are to 
contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions:  

1. The District, its representatives, consultants, trustees, officers, officials, employees, 
agents, and volunteers (“Additional Insureds”) are to be covered as additional 
insureds as respects liability arising out of activities performed by or on behalf of the 
Architect; Instruments of Service and completed operations of the Architect; premises 
owned, occupied or used by the Architect; or automobiles owned, leased, hired or 
borrowed by the Architect.  The coverage shall contain no special limitations on the 
scope of protection afforded to the Additional Insureds.  

 
2. For any claims related to the projects, Architect’s insurance coverage shall be primary 

insurance as respects the Additional Insureds.  Any insurance or self-insurance 
maintained by the Additional Insureds shall be in excess of Architect’s insurance and 
shall not contribute with it.  

 
3. Architect shall provide an endorsement that the insurer waives the right of 

subrogation against District and its respective elected officials, officers, employees, 
agents, representatives, consultants, trustees, and volunteers. 

 
4. Architect’s insurance shall apply separately to each insured against whom claim is 

made or suit is brought, except with respect to the limits of the insurer's liability.  

5. Any failure to comply with reporting or other provisions of the policies including 
breaches of warranties shall not affect coverage provided to the Additional Insureds.  

 
6. Each insurance policy required by this clause shall be endorsed to state that coverage 

shall not be suspended, voided, canceled, reduced in coverage or in limits except 
after thirty (30) days prior written notice by certified mail, return receipt requested, 
has been given to the District.  

 
7. Architect shall pay all insurance premiums, including any charges for required waivers 

of subrogation or the endorsement of additional insureds. If Architect fails to 
maintain insurance, District may take out comparable insurance, and deduct and 
retain amount of premium from any sums due Architect under the Agreement. 



 

EXHIBIT E Page E - 3 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

8. Architect shall require all subconsultants to maintain the level of insurance Architect 
deems appropriate with respect to the consultant’s scope of the Work unless 
otherwise indicated in the Agreement. Architect shall cause the subconsultants to 
furnish proof thereof to District within ten (10) days of District’s request. Should 
Architect not require subconsultants to provide the same level of insurance as is 
required of Architect, as provided in this Agreement, Architect is not relieved of its 
indemnity obligations to District or fulfilling its insurance requirements as provided in 
this Agreement. 

F. Acceptability of Insurers:  Insurance is to be placed with insurers admitted in California 
with a current A.M. Best's rating of no less than A: VII.  Architect shall inform the District in 
writing if any of its insurer(s) have an A.M. Best’s rating less than A: VII.  At the option of the 
District, the District may either:  

1. Accept the lower rating; or 

2. Require Architect to procure insurance from another insurer. 

G. Verification of Coverage:  Prior to commencing with its provision of Services under this 
Agreement, Architect shall furnish District with:  

1. Certificates of insurance showing maintenance of the required insurance coverages; 
and 

 
2. Original endorsements affecting general liability and automobile liability coverage.  

The endorsements are to be signed by a person authorized by that insurer to bind 
coverages on its behalf.  All endorsements are to be received and approved by the 
District before Services commence.  

H. Copy of Insurance Policy(ies): Upon the District’s request, Architect will furnish District with 
a copy of all insurance policies related to its provision of Services under this Agreement. 

 
 

 
 

END OF EXHIBIT 
 
 



 

EXHIBIT F Page F - 4 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

EXHIBIT “F” 
 

ROOFING PROJECT CERTIFICATION  
 

This form shall be executed by all architects, engineers, or roofing consultants who provide 
professional services related to the repair or replacement of a roof of a public school where the 
project is for repair of more than 25% of the roof or that has a total cost more than $21,000 (“roofing 
project”) and submitted to the District prior to the time professional services are engaged.  Not 
applicable to a school district with an average daily attendance less than 2,500. 
  
Certification of: □ Architect □ Engineer 
 □ Roofing Consultant □ Other      

   
I,     ,         , certify that I have  
       [Name]      [Name of Firm] 
not offered, given, or agreed to give, received, accepted, or agreed to accept, any gift, contribution, 
or any financial incentive whatsoever to or from any person in connection with the roofing project 
contract.  As used in this certification, “person” means any natural person, business, partnership, 
corporation, union, committee, club, or other organization, entity, or group of individuals.  
 
Furthermore, I,     ,                ,  
           [Name]      [Name of Firm]   
certify that I do not have, and throughout the duration of the contract, I will not have, any financial 
relationship in connection with the performance of this contract with any architect, engineer, roofing 
consultant, materials manufacturer, distributor, or vendor that is not disclosed below.  
 
I,     ,             , have the 
      [Name]       [Name of Firm] 

following financial relationships with an architect, engineer, roofing consultant, materials 
manufacturer, distributor, or vendor, or other person in connection with the following roofing project 
contract (provide Name and Address of Building, and Contract Date and Number):  
 
              
 
              
 
              
 
              
 
              
 
              
 

Mitchell A. McAllister         California Design West Architects, Inc.   
            

x

Mitchell A. McAllister         California Design West Architects, Inc.   
            

Mitchell A. McAllister         California Design West Architects, Inc.   
            

N/A



 

EXHIBIT F Page F - 5 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

By my signature below, I hereby certify that, to the best of my knowledge, the contents of this 
disclosure are true, or are believed to be true.  I further certify on behalf of the Firm that I am aware 
of section 3000 et seq. of the California Public Contract Code, and the sections referenced therein 
regarding the penalties for providing false information or failing to disclose a financial relationship 
in this disclosure.  I further certify that I am authorized to make this certification on behalf of the 
Firm. 
 
Date:              
 
Proper Name of Firm:           
 
Signature:             
 
Print Name:             
 
Title:              
 
 
 

END OF EXHIBIT 

California Design West Architects, Inc.                

Mitchell A. McAllister            

November 3, 2023

President / Principal Architect



 

  
EXHIBIT G Page G - 1 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

EXHIBIT “G” 
 

IRAN CONTRACTING ACT CERTIFICATION  
(Public Contract Code Sections 2202-2208) 

PROJECT/CONTRACT NO.:  Alice Birney ES Campus Renewal  / 0004-468 between the Sacramento 
City Unified School District (“District”) and California Design West Architects (“Consultant”) 
(“Contract” or “Project”). 

Prior to bidding on or submitting a proposal for a contract for goods or services of $1,000,000 or 
more, the bidder/proposer must submit this certification pursuant to Public Contract Code section 
2204.   

The proposer must complete ONLY ONE of the following two options.  To complete OPTION 1, 
check the corresponding box and complete the certification below. To complete OPTION 2, check 
the corresponding box, complete the certification below, and attach documentation demonstrating 
the exemption approval.   

 OPTION 1. Proposer is not on the current list of persons engaged in investment activities 
in Iran created by the California Department of General Services (“DGS”) pursuant to Public 
Contract Code section 2203(b), and we are not a financial institution extending twenty million 
dollars ($20,000,000) or more in credit to another person, for 45 days or more, if that other 
person will use the credit to provide goods or services in the energy sector in Iran and is 
identified on the current list of persons engaged in investment activities in Iran created by 
DGS.  

 OPTION 2. Proposer has received a written exemption from the certification requirement 
pursuant to Public Contract Code sections 2203(c) and (d). A copy of the written 
documentation demonstrating the exemption approval is included with our proposal.   

CERTIFICATION: 

I, the official named below, CERTIFY UNDER PENALTY OF PERJURY, that I am duly authorized to 
legally bind the bidder/proposer to the OPTION selected above. This certification is made under the 
laws of the State of California. 

Vendor Name/Financial Institution (Printed) Federal ID Number (or n/a) 

By (Authorized Signature) 

Printed Name and Title of Person Signing Date Executed 

END OF DOCUMENT 

X

Mitchell A. McAllister                                                    November 3, 2023

California Design West Architects, Inc.                        68-0387864



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agreement for Architectural Services 

between 

Sacramento City Unified School District 

and 

HMC Architects 

 
 

Matsuyama Campus Renewal Project 
 
 

Dated: November 16, 2023 



 

Agreement for Architectural Services       Page i 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3771283v1 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

Article 1  Definitions ................................................................................................................................................. 1 

Article 2  Scope, Responsibilities and Services of Architect ...................................................................... 3 

Article 3  Architect Staff .......................................................................................................................................... 7 

Article 4  Schedule of Services ............................................................................................................................. 8 

Article 5  Construction Cost Budget ................................................................................................................... 9 

Article 6  Fee and Method of Payment .......................................................................................................... 10 

Article 7  Payment for Extra Services or Changes ...................................................................................... 11 

Article 8  Ownership of Data .............................................................................................................................. 11 

Article 9  Termination of Contract ................................................................................................................... 12 

Article 10 Indemnity / Architect Liability ........................................................................................................ 14 

Article 11 Fingerprinting and Conduct on Project Site ............................................................................. 15 

Article 12 Responsibilities of the District ........................................................................................................ 15 

Article 13 Liability of District ............................................................................................................................... 16 

Article 14 Nondiscrimination .............................................................................................................................. 16 

Article 15 Insurance ................................................................................................................................................ 17 

Article 16 Covenant against Contingent Fees .............................................................................................. 17 

Article 17 Entire Agreement/Modification ..................................................................................................... 17 

Article 18 Non-Assignment of Agreement .................................................................................................... 17 

Article 19 Law, Venue ............................................................................................................................................. 17 

Article 20 Alternative Dispute Resolution ...................................................................................................... 18 

Article 21 Tolling of Claims .................................................................................................................................. 18 

Article 22 Attorneys’ Fees ..................................................................................................................................... 19 

Article 23 Severability ............................................................................................................................................ 19 

Article 24 Employment Status ............................................................................................................................ 19 

Article 25 Certificate of Architect ...................................................................................................................... 20 

Article 26 Cost Disclosure - Documents and Written Reports ............................................................... 21 

Article 27 Notice & Communications .............................................................................................................. 21 

Article 28 Disabled Veteran Business Enterprise Participation ............................................................... 21 

Article 29 District’s Right to Audit ..................................................................................................................... 21 

Article 30 Other Provisions .................................................................................................................................. 22 

Article 31 Exhibits ”A” through "H" ................................................................................................................... 23 

  



 

Agreement for Architectural Services       Page ii 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3771283v1 

EXHIBIT “A” – RESPONSIBILITIES AND SERVICES OF ARCHITECT A-1 
EXHIBIT “B” – CRITERIA AND BILLING FOR EXTRA SERVICES B-1 
EXHIBIT “C” – SCHEDULE OF SERVICES C-1 
EXHIBIT “D” – PAYMENT SCHEDULE D-1 
EXHIBIT “E” – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS E-1 
EXHIBIT “F” – ROOFING PROJECT CERTIFICATION  F-1 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Agreement for Architectural Services       Page 1 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3771283v1 

AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 

 This Agreement for Architectural Services is made as of November 16, 2023, between the 
Sacramento City Unified School District, a California public school district (“District”), and HMC 
Architects (“Architect”) (collectively “Parties”), for the following project (“Project”):  

Campus Renewal project located at Matsuyama Elementary School at 7680 Windbridge Drive, 
Sacramento CA  95831 

For and in consideration of the mutual covenants herein contained, the Parties hereto 
agree as follows: 

Article 1. Definitions 

1.1. In addition to the definitions above, the following definitions of words or 
phrases shall apply when used in this Agreement, including all Exhibits: 

1.1.1. Agreement:  The Agreement consists exclusively of this 
document and all identified exhibits attached and incorporated 
by reference. 

1.1.2. Architect:  The Architect identified in the first paragraph of this 
Agreement, including all Consultants to the Architect.  The term 
Architect means the Design Professional in General Responsible 
Charge on this Project. 

1.1.3. As-Built Drawings (“As-Builts”):  Any document prepared and 
submitted by District’s Contractor(s) that details on a 
Conforming Set, the actual construction performed during the 
Project, including changes necessitated by Construction Change 
Documents and change orders, and detailed by the District’s 
construction contractor(s) on a Conforming Set.   

1.1.4. Bid Set:  The plans, drawings, and specifications at the end of 
the Construction Documents Phase that the Division of the State 
Architect (“DSA”) has approved and that the District can use to 
go out to bid for construction of the Project. 

1.1.5. Conforming Set:  The plans, drawings, and specifications at the 
end of the Bidding Phase that incorporate all addenda, if any, 
issued during the Bidding Phase.  The Architect shall ensure that 
DSA has approved all revisions to the Bid Set that are 
incorporated onto the Conforming Set and for which DSA 
approval is required. 



 

Agreement for Architectural Services       Page 2 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3771283v1 

1.1.6. Construction Budget:  The total amount of funds indicated by 
the District for the entire Project plus all other costs, including 
design, construction, administration, and financing. 

1.1.7. Construction Change Documents (“CCD”):  The 
documentation of changes to the DSA-approved construction 
documents. 

1.1.8. Construction Cost Budget: The total cost to District of all 
elements of the Project designed or specified by the Architect, 
as adjusted at the end of each design phase in accordance with 
this Agreement.  The Construction Cost Budget does not include 
the compensation of the Architect and the Architect’s 
Consultants, the cost of land, rights-of-way, financing or other 
costs which are the responsibility of the District, including 
construction management. 

1.1.9. Construction Manager:  The District’s representative on the 
Project if the District retains a construction manager, project 
manager, or owner’s representative. 

1.1.10. Contractor:  One or more licensed contractors under contract 
with the District for construction of all or a portion of the Project. 

1.1.11. Consultant(s):  Any and all consultant(s), sub-consultant(s), 
subcontractor(s), or agent(s) to the Architect. 

1.1.12. District:  The Sacramento City Unified School District.  

1.1.13. DSA:  The Division of the State Architect. 

1.1.14. Extra Services:  District-authorized services outside of the 
scope in Exhibit “A” or District-authorized reimbursables not 
included in Architect’s Fee. 

1.1.15. Laboratory of Record: The District-designated laboratory(ies) 
for testing of concrete, soils, materials, and other required 
testing. 

1.1.16. Project:  District’s Matsuyama Elementary School Campus 
Renewal Project at 7680 Windbridge Drive, Sacramento CA  
95831.  

1.1.17. Record Drawings:  A final set of drawings prepared by the 
Architect that incorporates all changes from all As-Builts, 
sketches, details, and clarifications. 



 

Agreement for Architectural Services       Page 3 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3771283v1 

1.1.18. Service(s):  All labor, materials, supervision, services, tasks, and 
work that the Architect is required to perform and that are 
required by, or reasonably inferred from, the Agreement, and 
that are necessary for the design and completion of the Project.  

1.1.19. Visually Verify: To verify to the fullest extent possible by 
physical inspection and reasonable investigation and without 
any destructive action. 

Article 2. Scope, Responsibilities, and Services of Architect 

2.1. Architect shall render the Services described in Exhibit “A,” commencing 
with receipt of a written Notice to Proceed signed by the District 
representative.  Architect’s Services will be completed in accordance with 
the schedule attached as Exhibit “C.” 

2.2. Architect shall provide Services that shall comply with professional 
architectural standards, including the standard of care applicable to 
architects designing public school facilities and applicable requirements of 
federal, state, and local law, including, but not limited to, the requirements 
of the California Business and Professions Code, the California Education 
Code, and the California Code of Regulations.  All persons providing 
professional services hereunder shall be properly licensed as required by 
California law. 

2.3. The District intends to award the Project to Contractor(s) pursuant to a 
competitive bid process.  District reserves its right to use alternative delivery 
methods and the Architect’s scope of work may be adjusted accordingly. 

2.4. Architect acknowledges that all California public school districts are 
obligated to develop and implement the following storm water 
requirements for the discharge of storm water to surface waters from its 
construction and land disturbance activities where the project disturbs one 
(1) or more acres of land and is not part of a larger common plan of 
development or sale, the project disturbs one acre or more of land, or the 
project disturbs less than one (1) acre of land but is part of a larger common 
plan of development or sale, or where the District engages in maintenance 
(e.g., fueling, cleaning, repairing) or transportation activities. 

2.4.1. Architect shall provide the design for the Project, without limitation: 

2.4.1.1. A municipal Separate Storm Sewer System (“MS4”).  An MS4 
is a system of conveyances used to collect and/or convey 
storm water, including, without limitation, catch basins, 



 

Agreement for Architectural Services       Page 4 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3771283v1 

curbs, gutters, ditches, man-made channels, and storm 
drains. 

2.4.1.2. A Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan (“SWPPP”) that 
contains specific best management practices (“BMPs”) and 
establishes numeric effluent limitations. 

2.4.2. Architect shall conform its design work to the District’s storm water 
requirements indicated above, that are approved by the District and 
applicable to the Project, at no additional cost to the District.  In 
addition, as required Architect shall develop a grading and drainage 
plan and a site plan from architectural information showing a final 
development of the site.  This drawing will also include a horizontal 
and vertical control plan and a utility infrastructure plan.  The 
Services described in this subparagraph shall be provided by a 
professional civil engineer who contracts with or is an employee of 
the Architect.   

2.5. Architect shall contract for or employ at Architect’s expense, Consultant(s) 
to the extent deemed necessary for completion of the Project including, 
but not limited to: architects; mechanical, electrical, structural and civil 
engineers; landscapers; and interior designers, licensed as such by the State 
of California as part of the Basic Services under this Agreement.  The names 
of Consultant(s) shall be submitted to the District for approval prior to 
commencement of Services, as indicated below.  The District reserves the 
right to reject Architect’s use of any particular Consultant.  Nothing in the 
foregoing procedure shall create any contractual relationship between the 
District and any Consultant employed by the Architect under terms of the 
Agreement.  Architect shall require each of the Consultants retained by it 
to execute agreements with standard of care and indemnity provisions 
commensurate with this Agreement, but Architect shall remain solely 
responsible and liable to District for all matters covered by this Agreement. 

2.6. Architect shall coordinate with District personnel or its designated 
representatives as may be requested and desirable, including with other 
professionals employed by the District for the design, coordination or 
management of other work related to the Project.  This shall include, 
without limitation, coordination with State labor compliance, if any.  If the 
Architect employs Consultant(s), the Architect shall ensure that its 
contract(s) with its Consultant(s) include language notifying the 
Consultant(s) of State labor compliance, if any. 

2.7. Architect shall identify the regulatory agencies that have jurisdiction over 
essential building and design elements and coordinate with and implement 
the requirements of the regulatory agencies, including, without limitation, 



 

Agreement for Architectural Services       Page 5 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3771283v1 

the California Department of Education, the Office of Public School 
Construction, the Department of General Services, DSA, including DSA 
Fire/Life Safety, DSA Access Compliance Section, DSA Structural Safety 
Section, the State Fire Marshal and any regulatory office or agency that has 
authority for review and supervision of school district construction projects. 

2.7.1. If the Project is subject to DSA jurisdiction, then Architect, and its 
Consultants, if any, shall comply with all the DSA requirements, 
including without limitation, all the requirements included and/or 
referenced in the following forms, bulletins (“BU”), interpretations 
of regulations (“IR”), policies (“PL”), or procedures (“PR”): 

2.7.1.1. DSA IR A-6, Construction Change Document Submittal 
and Approval Process. 

2.7.1.2. DSA IR A-18, Use of Construction Documents Prepared by 
Other Professionals. 

2.7.1.3. DSA IR A-24, Construction Phase Duties of the School 
District, Contractor and Design Professional. 

2.7.1.4. DSA PR 07-01: Pre-Check Approval Process.  

2.7.1.5. DSA PR 07-02:  Over-The-Counter Review of Projects 
Using Pre-Check Approved Design.   

2.7.1.6. DSA PR 18-04.BB18: Electronic Plan Review for Design 
Professionals of Record Using Bluebeam 2018. 

2.7.1.7. DSA PR 18-09.BB18: Electronic Plan Review for Over-the-
Counter (“OTC”) Projects Using Bluebeam 2018. 

2.7.1.8. Form DSA PR 13-01, Construction Oversight Process. 

2.7.1.8.1. Each of Architect’s duties as provided in the 
DIR Construction Oversight Process shall be 
performed timely so as not to result in any 
delay to the Project. 

2.7.1.9. Form DSA PR 13-02, Project Certification Process. 

2.7.2. Notwithstanding the DSA forms, BUs, IRs, PLs, or PRs referenced 
anywhere in this Agreement, each of which is current as of the 
Effective Date, all Projects subject to DSA’s jurisdiction shall be 
submitted for review, back check, and approval, under the electronic 
plan review process (“EPR process”), rather than paper submission, 



 

Agreement for Architectural Services       Page 6 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3771283v1 

for all projects submitted to DSA.  Architect, and its Consultants, if 
any, shall comply with the EPR process and related DSA procedures, 
including, without limitation, DSA PR 18-04.BB18 and DSA PR 18-
09.BB18, and any subsequent or replacement procedures relating 
to the EPR process promulgated by DSA. Any reference herein to a 
particular DIR form, BU, IR, PL, or PR, shall mean and include the 
then-current DIR form, BU, IR, PL, or PR, respectively, and, to the 
extent that the EPR process has superceded such form or paper 
submission process, the EPR process then in effect shall control. 

2.8. Architect shall provide Services as required to obtain any local, state and/or 
federal agencies’ approval for on-site and off-site work related to the 
Project including review by regulatory agencies having jurisdiction over the 
Project. 

2.9. Architect shall direct and monitor the work of the District’s DSA project 
inspector(s) (“Project Inspector(s)”) and the Laboratory of Record.  Architect 
shall provide code required supervision of special inspectors not provided 
by the Laboratory of Record. 

2.10. Architect shall give efficient supervision to Services, using its best skill and 
attention.  Architect shall carefully study and compare all contract 
documents, drawings, specifications, and other instructions (“Contract 
Documents”) and shall at once report to District, Construction Manager, 
and Contractor, any error, inconsistency, or omission that Architect or its 
employees may discover, in writing, with a copy to District's Project 
Inspector(s).  Architect shall have responsibility for discovery of errors, 
inconsistencies, or omissions. 

2.11. Architect recognizes that the District may obtain the services of a 
Construction Manager and that Architect may have to assume certain 
coordination and management responsibilities, including tracking Requests 
for Information (“RFI”), providing RFI responses, and leading all 
coordination meetings between the District, Project Inspectors, and 
Contractors on the Project.  The District reserves the right to retain the 
services of a Construction Manager at any time.  The Construction Manager, 
if any, shall be authorized to give Architect Services authorizations and 
issue written approvals and notices to proceed on behalf of District.  The 
District reserves the right to designate a different Construction Manager at 
any time.  Any task, including, but not limited to, reviews or approvals that 
the District may perform pursuant to this Agreement may be performed by 
the Construction Manager, unless that task indicates it shall be performed 
by the Governing Board of the District.  In addition, the District may have a 
constructability review of Architect’s design documents.  Architect shall 
conform any design documents to the constructability review as part of the 



 

Agreement for Architectural Services       Page 7 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3771283v1 

Services under this Agreement and shall not be entitled to any 
compensation as Extra Services for this activity. 

2.12. Architect shall provide computer-generated pictures downloaded to 
computer files, updated as requested by the District, that the District may 
use on its website. 

2.13. As part of the basic Services pursuant to this Agreement, Architect is not 
responsible for: 

2.13.1. Ground contamination or hazardous material analysis.  

2.13.2. Any asbestos and/or lead testing, design or abatement; however, 
it shall coordinate and integrate its work with any such 
information provided by District. 

2.13.3. Compliance with the California Environmental Quality Act 
(“CEQA”), except that Architect agrees to coordinate its work with 
that of any CEQA consultants retained by the District, to provide 
current elevations and schematic drawings for use in CEQA 
compliance documents, and to incorporate any mitigation 
measures adopted by the District into the Project design at no 
additional cost to the District.   

2.13.4. Historical significance report.  

2.13.5. Soils investigation. 

2.13.6. Geotechnical hazard report, except as indicated in Exhibit “A.” 

Article 3. Architect Staff 

3.1. Architect has been selected to perform the Services herein because of the 
skills and expertise of key individuals. 

3.2. Architect agrees that the following key people in Architect’s firm shall be 
associated with the Project in the following capacities:  

Principal In Charge: Vipul Safi 

Project Director: Brian Meyers 

Project Architect(s): Jeffrey Grau 

Project Manager(s): Vipul Safi 



 

Agreement for Architectural Services       Page 8 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3771283v1 

Major Consultants: 

Electrical: LP Consulting Engineers, Inc. 

Mechanical: LP Consulting Engineers, Inc. 

Civil:  Warren Consulting Engineers 

Food:  AMD Food Services 
 
 

3.3. Architect shall not change any of the key personnel listed above without 
prior written approval by the District, unless said personnel cease to be 
employed by Architect.  In either case, the District shall be allowed to 
interview and approve replacement personnel.  

3.4. If any designated lead or key person fails to perform to the satisfaction of 
the District, then upon written notice Architect shall have five (5) calendar 
days to remove that person from the Project and replace that person with 
one acceptable to the District.  All lead or key personnel for any Consultant 
must also be designated by the Consultant and are subject to all conditions 
stated in this paragraph. 

3.5. Architect represents that Architect has no existing interest and will not 
acquire any interest, direct or indirect, which could conflict in any manner 
or degree with the performance of Services required under this Agreement 
and that no person having any such interest shall be employed by Architect. 

3.6. Architect shall comply with Education Code section 17302(a) and agrees 
that any plans and/or specifications included in the Services shall be 
prepared under the supervision of licensed personnel, and that licensed 
personnel shall be in “responsible charge” of persons who observe the 
construction. 

Article 4. Schedule of Services 

Architect shall commence Services under this Agreement upon receipt of a written 
Notice to Proceed and shall prosecute the Services diligently as described in 
Exhibit “A,” so as to proceed with and complete the Services in compliance with 
the schedule in Exhibit “C.”  Time is of the essence and failure of Architect to 
perform Services on time as specified in this Agreement is a material breach of this 
Agreement.  It shall not be a material breach if a delay is beyond the Architect’s or 
its Consultant(s)’ reasonable control. 



 

Agreement for Architectural Services       Page 9 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3771283v1 

Article 5. Construction Cost Budget 

5.1. Architect hereby accepts the District’s established Construction Cost 
Budget and Project scope.  In accordance with Exhibit “A,” the Architect 
shall have responsibility to further develop, review, and reconcile the 
Construction Cost Budget for the District at the beginning of the Project 
and at the completion of each design phase.  The District and Construction 
Manager shall also have responsibility to develop, review, and reconcile the 
Construction Cost Budget with the Architect. 

5.2. Architect shall complete all Services as described in Exhibit “A,” including 
all plans, designs, drawings, specifications and other Contract Documents, 
so that the cost to construct the work designed by the Architect will not 
exceed the Construction Cost Budget, as adjusted subsequently with the 
District’s written approval.  Architect shall maintain cost controls 
throughout the Project to deliver the Project within the Construction Cost 
Budget.   

5.3. The District may, in its sole discretion, do one, or a combination, of the 
following if any of the events in Article 5.4 occur: 

5.3.1. Give Architect written approval on an agreed adjustment to the 
Construction Cost Budget. 

5.3.2. Authorize Architect to re-negotiate, when appropriate, and/or re-
bid the Project within three (3) months’ time of receipt of bids 
(exclusive of District and other agencies’ review time) at no 
additional cost to the District. 

5.3.3. Terminate this Agreement if the Project is abandoned by the 
District, without further obligation by either party. 

5.3.4. Within three (3) months’ time of receipt of bids, instruct Architect 
to revise the drawings and specifications (in scope and quality as 
approved by the District) to bring the Project within the 
Construction Cost Budget for re-bidding at no additional cost to the 
District.   

5.4. If any of the following events occur, the District may exercise any one, or 
any combination, of the actions set forth in Article 5.3 above: 

5.4.1. The lowest responsive base bid received is in excess of five percent 
(5%) of the Construction Cost Budget; or  

5.4.2. If the combined total of base bid and all additive alternates come in 
ten percent (10%) or more under the Construction Cost Budget; or  



 

Agreement for Architectural Services       Page 10 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3771283v1 

5.4.3. If the Construction Cost Budget increases in phases subsequent to 
the Schematic Design Phase due to reasonably foreseeable changes 
in the condition of the construction market in the county in which 
the District is located, in so far as these have not been caused by 
Acts of God, earthquakes, strikes, war, or energy shortages due to 
uncontrollable events in the world economy. 

Article 6. Fee and Method of Payment 

6.1. The District shall pay Architect for all Services contracted for under this 
Agreement an amount equal to the following (“Fee”): 

An amount not to exceed Five Hundred Forty Thousand Dollars 
($540,000) based on the rates set forth in Exhibit “D.”  

Reimbursable Expenses are in addition to compensation for Basic and 
Additional Services and will be billed at a multiple of 1.10% the expenses 
incurred. These charges include, but are not limited to, expenses incurred 
which are directly related to the Project, such as reproductions, plans and 
plots for owner, agency or contractor’s use, standard form documents, 
postage, handling and delivery of Instruments of Service, and mileage. 
Reimbursable expenses are not expected to exceed Five Thousand Dollars 
($5,000). All reimbursable expenses must be pre-approved by District. 

6.2. The District shall pay Architect the Fee pursuant to the provisions of Exhibit 
“D.” 

6.3. Architect shall bill for performance of Services under this Agreement in 
accordance with Exhibit “D.”  

6.4. No increase in Fee will be due from CCDs and/or change orders generated 
during the construction period to the extent caused by Architect’s error or 
omission.   

6.5. The Architect’s Fee set forth in this Agreement shall be full compensation 
for all of Architect’s Services incurred in the performance hereof as 
indicated in Exhibit “D.” 

6.6. Regardless of the structure of Architect’s Fee, the Architect’s Fee may be 
adjusted downward if the Scope of Services of this Agreement is reduced 
by the District in accordance with this Agreement. 

6.7. Neither the District’s review, approval of, nor payment for, any of the 
Services required under this Agreement shall be construed to operate as a 
waiver of any rights under this Agreement, and Architect shall remain liable 
to the District in accordance with this Agreement for direct damages to the 



 

Agreement for Architectural Services       Page 11 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3771283v1 

District caused by Architect’s failure to perform any of the Services 
furnished under this Agreement to the standard of care under California 
law for architects performing similar work for California school districts in 
or around the same geographic area as the District. 

Article 7. Payment for Extra Services or Changes 

Any charges for Extra Services shall be paid by the District as described in Exhibit 
“B” only upon certification that the claimed Extra Service was authorized as 
indicated herein and that the Extra Services have been satisfactorily completed.  If 
any service is done by Architect without prior written authorization by the 
Construction Manager or the District’s authorized representative, the District will 
not be obligated to pay for such service.  The foregoing provision notwithstanding, 
Architect will be paid by the District as described in Exhibit “B” for Extra Services 
that the Construction Manager or the District’s authorized representative verbally 
requests, provided that Architect confirms such request in writing pursuant to the 
notice requirements of this Agreement, and proceeds with such Extra Services not 
earlier than two (2) business days after the District receives confirmation of the 
request from the Architect. 

Article 8. Ownership of Data 

8.1. Pursuant to Education Code section 17316, this Agreement creates a non-
exclusive and perpetual license for the District to use, at its discretion, all 
plans including, but not limited to, record drawings, specifications, 
estimates and other documents that Architect or its Consultants prepare or 
cause to be prepared pursuant to this Agreement.  

8.2. Architect retains all rights to all copyrights over designs and other 
intellectual property embodied in the plans, record drawings, specifications, 
estimates, and other documents that Architect or its Consultants prepare 
or cause to be prepared pursuant to this Agreement.  

8.3. Architect shall perform the Services and prepare all documents under this 
Agreement with the assistance of Computer Aided Design Drafting 
Technology (“CADD”) (e.g., AutoCAD).  Architect shall deliver to District all 
drawings in DWG format.  As to any drawings that Architect provides in a 
CADD file format, the District acknowledges that anomalies and errors may 
be introduced into data when it is transferred or used in a computer 
environment, and that the District should rely on hard copies of all 
documents. 

8.4. In order to document exactly what CADD information was given to the 
District, Architect and District shall each date and sign a “hard” copy of 
reproducible documents that depict the information at the time Architect 



 

Agreement for Architectural Services       Page 12 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3771283v1 

produces the CADD information.  The District agrees to release Architect 
from all liability, damages, and/or claims that arise due to any changes 
made to this information by anyone other than Architect or its Consultant(s) 
subsequent to it being given to the District. 

8.5. Following the termination of this Agreement, for any reason whatsoever, 
Architect shall promptly deliver to the District upon written request and at 
no cost to the District the following items (hereinafter “Instruments of 
Service”), which the District shall have the right to utilize in any way 
permitted by statute: 

8.5.1. One (1) set of the Contract Documents, including the bidding 
requirements, specifications, and all existing cost estimates for the 
Project, in hard copy, reproducible format. 

8.5.2. One (1) set of fixed image CADD files in DXF format of the drawings 
that are part of the Contract Documents. 

8.5.3. One (1) set of non-fixed image CADD drawing files in DXF or DWG 
or both formats of the site plan, floor plans (architectural, plumbing, 
structural, mechanical and electrical), roof plan, sections and 
exterior elevations of the Project. 

8.5.4. All finished or unfinished documents, studies, reports, calculations, 
drawings, maps, models, photographs, technology data and reports 
prepared by the Architect under this Agreement. 

8.5.5. The obligation of Section 8.5 of this Agreement shall survive the 
termination of this Agreement for any reason whatsoever.  

8.6. In the event the District changes or uses any fully or partially completed 
documents without Architect’s knowledge or participation or both, the 
District agrees to release Architect of responsibility for such changes, and 
shall hold Architect harmless from and against any and all claims on 
account of any damages or losses to property or persons, or economic 
losses, arising out of that change or use, unless Architect is found to be 
liable in a forum of competent jurisdiction.  In the event that the District 
uses any fully or partially completed documents without the Architect’s full 
involvement, the District shall remove all title blocks and other information 
that might identify Architect and its Consultants.  

Article 9. Termination of Contract  

9.1. District’s Request for Assurances:  If District at any time reasonably believes 
that Architect is or may be in default under this Agreement, District may in 



 

Agreement for Architectural Services       Page 13 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3771283v1 

its sole discretion notify Architect of this fact and request written assurances 
from Architect of performance of Services and a written plan from Architect 
to remedy any potential default under the terms this Agreement that the 
District may advise Architect of in writing.  Architect shall, within ten (10) 
days of District’s request, deliver a written cure plan that meets the 
requirements of the District’s request for assurances. Architect’s failure to 
provide such written assurances of performance and the required written 
plan, within ten (10) days of request, will constitute a material breach of this 
Agreement sufficient to justify termination for cause. 

9.2. District’s Termination of Architect for Cause:  If Architect fails to perform 
Architect’s duties to the satisfaction of the District, or if Architect fails to 
fulfill in a timely and professional manner Architect’s material obligations 
under this Agreement, or if Architect shall violate any of the material terms 
or provisions of this Agreement, the District shall have the right to 
terminate this Agreement, in whole or in part, effective immediately upon 
the District giving written notice thereof to the Architect.  In the event of a 
termination pursuant to this subdivision, Architect may invoice the District 
for all Services performed until the notice of termination, but the District 
shall have the right to withhold payment and deduct any amounts equal to 
the District’s costs because of Architect’s actions, errors, or omissions. 

9.3. District’s Termination of Architect for Convenience:  District shall have the 
right in its sole discretion to terminate the Agreement for its own 
convenience.  In the event of a termination for convenience, Architect may 
invoice District and District shall pay all undisputed invoice(s) for Services 
performed until the District’s notice of termination for convenience. 

9.4. Architect’s Termination of Agreement for Cause:  Architect has the right to 
terminate this Agreement if the District does not fulfill its material 
obligations under this Agreement and fails to cure such material default 
within sixty (60) days of receipt of written notice of said defaults, or if the 
default cannot be cured within sixty (60) days, commence to cure such 
default, diligently pursue such cure, and complete the cure within a 
reasonable time following written notice and demand from Architect.  Such 
termination shall be effective thirty (30) days after receipt of written notice 
from Architect to the District.  Architect may invoice the District and the 
District shall pay all undisputed invoice(s) for Services performed until 
Architect’s notice of termination. 

9.5. Effect on Pre-Termination Services:  Except as indicated in this Article, 
termination shall have no effect upon any of the rights and obligations of 
the Parties arising out of any transaction occurring prior to the effective 
date of such termination. 



 

Agreement for Architectural Services       Page 14 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3771283v1 

9.6. Ceasing Services upon Termination:  If, at any time in the progress of the 
Design of the Project, the Governing Board of the District determines that 
the Project should be terminated, Architect, upon written notice from the 
District of such termination, shall immediately cease Services on the Project.  
The District shall pay Architect only the fee associated with the Services 
provided since the last invoice that has been paid and up to the notice of 
termination. 

9.7. Project Suspension:  If the District suspends the Project for more than one 
hundred twenty (120) consecutive days, Architect shall be compensated for 
Services performed prior to notice of that suspension. When the Project is 
resumed, the schedule shall be adjusted and Architect’s compensation shall 
be equitably adjusted to provide for expenses incurred in the resumption 
of the Architect’s Services.  Architect shall make every effort to maintain the 
same Project personnel after suspension.  If the District suspends the 
Project for more than two (2) years, Architect may terminate this Agreement 
by giving written notice.  

Article 10. Indemnity/Architect Liability  

10.1. To the furthest extent permitted by California law, Architect shall indemnify 
and hold free and harmless the District, its Governing Board, agents, 
representatives, officers, consultants, employees, trustees, and volunteers 
(“the Indemnified Parties”) from any and all claims, demands, causes of 
action, costs, expenses, liability, loss, damage or injury of any kind, in law 
or equity (“Claim”) that arise out of, pertain to, or relate to the negligence, 
recklessness, or willful misconduct of the Architect, its officers, employees, 
subcontractors, consultants, or agents, including without limitation the 
payment of all consequential damages. Architect shall also, to the furthest 
extent permitted by California law, defend the Indemnified Parties at 
Architect’s own expense, including attorneys’ fees and costs, from any and 
all Claim(s) and allegations relating thereto with counsel approved by 
District where such approval is not to be unreasonably withheld.  Whereas 
the cost to defend the Indemnified Parties charged to the Architect shall 
not exceed the proportionate percentage of Architect’s fault as determined 
by a court of competent jurisdiction, any amounts paid in excess of such 
established fault will be reimbursed by the District. Notwithstanding the 
previous sentence, in the event one or more defendants is unable to pay its 
share of defense costs due to bankruptcy or dissolution of the business, the 
design professional shall meet and confer with other parties regarding 
unpaid defense costs.  

10.2. Architect shall pay and satisfy any judgment, award, or decree that may be 
rendered against the Indemnified Parties in any Claim.  Architect’s 
obligation pursuant to Article 10.1 includes reimbursing the District for the 



 

Agreement for Architectural Services       Page 15 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3771283v1 

cost of any settlement paid by the Indemnified Parties and for any and all 
fees and costs, including but not limited to legal fees and costs, expert 
witness fees, and consultant fees, incurred by the Indemnified Parties in the 
defense of any Claim(s), or to enforce the indemnity herein.  Architect’s 
obligation to defend or to indemnify shall not be restricted to insurance 
proceeds. District shall also have the right to accept or reject any legal 
representation that Architect proposes to defend the Indemnified Parties. 

10.3. Architect shall be responsible for the cost of reviewing CCDs and/or change 
orders caused by Architect’s willful misconduct, recklessness, or negligent 
acts, errors or omissions.  Without limiting Architect’s liability for indirect 
cost impacts, the direct costs for change orders for which Architect shall be 
liable shall equal the difference between the cost of the change order and 
the reasonable cost of the work had that work been a part of the originally 
prepared Contract Documents. 

10.4. District may withhold any and all costs that arise out of, pertain to, or relate 
to the negligence, recklessness, or willful misconduct of the Architect from 
amounts owing to Architect.  

Article 11. Fingerprinting  

11.1. Pursuant to Education Code section 45125.2, the District has determined 
on the basis of scope of Services in this Agreement, that Architect, its 
Consultants and their employees will have only limited contact with pupils. 
Architect shall promptly notify the District in writing of any facts or 
circumstances which might reasonably lead the District to determine that 
contact will be more than limited as defined by Education Code section 
45125.1(d).  

11.2. For all workers on District property, the Architect shall comply with all 
applicable federal, state and local laws regarding COVID-19.  Further, 
except to the extent the Order provides otherwise, the Architect and 
Architect’s personnel shall continue to comply with all other applicable 
terms in the CDPH’s State Public Health Officer Orders.  

Article 12. Responsibilities of the District  

12.1. The District shall examine the documents submitted by the Architect and 
shall render decisions so as to avoid unreasonable delay in the process of 
the Architect’s Services. 

12.2. The District shall verbally or in writing advise Architect if the District 
becomes aware of any fault or defect in the Project, including any errors, 
omissions or inconsistencies in the Architect’s documents.  Failure to 



 

Agreement for Architectural Services       Page 16 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3771283v1 

provide such notice shall not relieve Architect of its responsibility therefore, 
if any. 

12.3. Unless the District and Architect agree that a hazardous materials 
consultant shall be a Consultant of the Architect, the District shall furnish 
the services of a hazardous material consultant or other consultants when 
such services are requested in writing by Architect and deemed necessary 
by the District or are requested by the District. These services shall include: 
asbestos and lead paint survey; abatement documentation; and 
specifications related to said matters, which are to be incorporated into bid 
documents prepared by Architect. If the hazardous materials consultant is 
furnished by the District and is not a Consultant of the Architect, the 
specifications shall include a note to the effect that the hazardous materials 
consultant’s specifications are included in the Architect’s bid documents for 
the District’s convenience and have not been prepared or reviewed by the 
Architect. The note shall also direct questions about the hazardous 
materials consultant’s specifications related to asbestos and lead paint 
survey and/or abatement documentation to the preparer of the hazardous 
materials consultant’s specifications.    

Article 13. Liability of District  

13.1. Other than as provided in this Agreement, District’s financial obligations 
under this Agreement shall be limited to the payment of the compensation 
provided in this Agreement.  Notwithstanding any other provision of this 
Agreement, in no event shall District be liable, regardless of whether any 
claim is based on contract or tort, for any special, consequential, indirect or 
incidental damages, including, but not limited to, lost profits or revenue, 
arising out of or in connection with this Agreement or the Services 
performed in connection with this Agreement. 

13.2. District shall not be responsible for any damage to persons or property as 
a result of the use, misuse or failure of any equipment used by Architect, or 
by its employees, even though such equipment be furnished or loaned to 
Architect by District.  

Article 14. Nondiscrimination  

Architect agrees to comply with the provisions of the California Fair Employment 
and Housing Act as set forth in part 2.8 of division 3 of the California Government 
Code, commencing at section 12900; the Federal Civil Rights Act of 1964, as set 
forth in Public Law 88-352, and all amendments thereto; Executive Order 11246; 
and all administrative rules and regulations found to be applicable to Architect and 
all of its subcontractors. In addition, Consultant agrees to require like compliance 
by all of its subcontractor(s). 



 

Agreement for Architectural Services       Page 17 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3771283v1 

Article 15. Insurance  

15.1. Architect shall comply with the insurance requirements for this Agreement, 
set forth in Exhibit “E.”  

15.2. Architect shall provide certificates of insurance and endorsements to 
District prior to commencement of the work of this Agreement as required 
in Exhibit “E.” 

Article 16. Covenant against Contingent Fees  

Architect warrants that it has not employed or retained any company or person, 
other than a bona fide employee working solely for the Architect, to solicit or 
secure this Agreement, and that it has not paid or agreed to pay any company or 
person, other than a bona fide employee working solely for the Architect, any fee, 
commission, percentage, brokerage fee, gift, or any other consideration contingent 
on or resulting from the award or making of this Agreement.  For breach or 
violation of this warranty, the District shall have the right to annul this Agreement 
without liability, or in its discretion, to deduct from the contract price or 
consideration or to recover the full amount of such fee, commission, percentage 
fee, gift, or contingency. 

Article 17. Entire Agreement/Modification  

This Agreement, including the Exhibits attached hereto, supersedes all previous 
contracts and constitutes the entire understanding of the Parties hereto.  Architect 
shall be entitled to no other benefits than those specified herein.  No changes, 
amendments or alterations shall be effective unless in writing and signed by both 
Parties.  Architect specifically acknowledges that in entering this Agreement, 
Architect relies solely upon the provisions contained in this Agreement and no 
others. 

Article 18. Non-Assignment of Agreement 

In as much as this Agreement is intended to secure the specialized Services of the 
Architect, Architect may not assign, transfer, delegate or sublet any interest therein 
without the prior written consent of District and any such assignment, transfer, 
delegation or sublease without the District’s prior written consent shall be 
considered null and void.  Likewise, District may not assign, transfer, delegate or 
sublet any interest therein without the prior written consent of Architect and any 
such assignment, transfer, delegation or sublease without Architect’s prior written 
consent shall be considered null and void. If an assignment is approved, this 
Agreement shall be binding on the successors and assign of the parties.  

Article 19. Law, Venue 



 

Agreement for Architectural Services       Page 18 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3771283v1 

19.1. This Agreement has been executed and delivered in the State of California 
and the validity, enforceability and interpretation of any of the clauses of 
this Agreement shall be determined and governed by the laws of the State 
of California. 

19.2. To the fullest extent permitted by California law, the county in which the 
District administration office is located shall be the venue for any action or 
proceeding that may be brought or arise out of, in connection with or by 
reason of this Agreement. 

Article 20. Alternative Dispute Resolution 

20.1. All claims, disputes or controversies arising out of, or in relation to the 
interpretation, application or enforcement of this Agreement may be 
decided through mediation as the first method of resolution.  Notice of the 
demand for mediation of a dispute shall be filed in writing with the other 
party to the Agreement.  The demand for mediation shall be made within 
a reasonable time after written notice of the dispute has been provided to 
the other party, but in no case longer than ninety (90) days after initial 
written notice.  

20.2. If a claim, or any portion thereof, remains in dispute upon satisfaction of all 
applicable dispute resolution requirements, the Architect shall comply with 
all claims presentation requirements as provided in Chapter 1 (commencing 
with section 900) and Chapter 2 (commencing with section 910) of Part 3 
of Division 3.6 of Title 1 of Government Code as a condition precedent to 
the Architect’s right to bring a civil action against the District.  For purposes 
of those provisions, the running of the time within which a claim must be 
presented to the District shall be tolled from the time the Architect submits 
its written claim until the time the claim is denied, including any time 
utilized by any applicable meet and confer process. 

20.3. Pending resolution of the dispute, Architect agrees it will neither rescind 
the Agreement nor stop the performance of the Services.   

Article 21. Tolling of Claims 

Architect agrees to toll all statutes of limitations for District’s assertion of claims 
against Architect that arise out of, pertain to, or relate to Contractors’ or 



 

Agreement for Architectural Services       Page 19 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3771283v1 

subcontractors’ claims against District involving Architect’s work, until the 
Contractors’ or subcontractors’ claims are finally resolved. 

Article 22. Attorneys’ Fees 

In the event either party shall bring any action or legal proceeding for damages for 
any alleged breach of any provision of or performance under this Agreement, to 
terminate this Agreement, or to enforce, protect or establish any term or covenant 
of this Agreement or right or remedy of either party, the prevailing party shall be 
entitled to recover, as a part of the action or proceeding, reasonable attorneys' fees 
and court costs, including consultants’ fees, attorneys' fees and costs for appeal, as 
may be fixed by the court.  The term “prevailing party” shall mean the party who 
received substantially the relief requested, whether by settlement, dismissal, 
summary judgment, judgment, or otherwise.   

Article 23. Severability 

If any term, covenant, condition or provision of this Agreement is held by a court 
of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void or unenforceable, the remainder of the 
provisions hereof shall remain in full force and effect and shall in no way be 
affected, impaired or invalidated thereby. 

Article 24. Employment Status 

24.1. Architect shall, during the entire term of Agreement, be an independent 
contractor and nothing in this Agreement is intended nor shall it be 
construed to create an employer-employee relationship, a joint venture 
relationship, or to allow the District to exercise discretion or control over 
the professional manner in which Architect performs the Services that are 
the subject matter of this Agreement; provided always, however, that the 
Services to be provided by Architect shall be provided in a manner 
consistent with all applicable standards and regulations governing such 
Services. 

24.2. Architect understands and agrees that Architect’s personnel are not and 
will not be eligible for membership in or any benefits from any District 
group plan for hospital, surgical or medical insurance or for membership in 
any District retirement program or for paid vacation, paid sick leave or other 
leave, with or without pay or for other benefits which accrue to a District 
employee.  

24.3. Should the District, in its discretion, or a relevant taxing authority such as 
the Internal Revenue Service or the State Employment Development 
Department, or both, determine that Architect, or any employee or 
Consultant of Architect, is an employee of the District for purposes of 



 

Agreement for Architectural Services       Page 20 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3771283v1 

collection of any employment taxes, the amounts payable under this 
Agreement shall be reduced by amounts equal to both the employee and 
employer portions of the tax due (and offsetting any credits for amounts 
already paid by Architect which can be applied against this liability).  The 
District shall then forward those amounts to the relevant taxing authority.  

24.4. Should a relevant taxing authority determine a liability for past services 
performed by Architect for the District, upon notification of such fact by the 
District, Architect shall promptly remit such amount due or arrange with the 
District to have the amount due withheld from future payments to Architect 
under this Agreement (again, offsetting any amounts already paid by 
Architect which can be applied as a credit against such liability). 

24.5. A determination of employment status pursuant to the preceding two (2) 
paragraphs shall be solely for the purposes of the particular tax in question, 
and for all other purposes of this Agreement, Architect shall not be 
considered an employee of the District.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, 
should any court, arbitrator, or administrative authority determine that 
Architect is an employee for any other purpose, then Architect agrees to a 
reduction in District’s liability resulting from this Agreement pursuant to 
principles similar to those stated in the foregoing paragraphs so that the 
total expenses of District under this Agreement shall not be greater than 
they would have been had the court, arbitrator, or administrative authority 
determined that Architect or its employees of Consultants was not an 
employee.  

24.6. Nothing in this Agreement shall operate to confer rights or benefits on 
persons or entities not a party to this Agreement. 

Article 25. Certificate of Architect 

25.1. Architect certifies that the Architect is properly certified or licensed under 
the laws and regulations of the State of California to provide the 
professional services that it has herein agreed to perform. 

25.2. Architect certifies that it is aware of the provisions of the California Labor 
Code that require every employer to be insured against liability for workers 
compensation or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the 
provisions of that code, and it certifies that it will comply with those 
provisions before commencing the performance of the Services of this 
Agreement. 

25.3. Architect certifies that it is aware of the provisions of California Labor Code 
and California Code of Regulations that require the payment of prevailing 
wage rates and the performance of other requirements on certain “public 



 

Agreement for Architectural Services       Page 21 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3771283v1 

works” and “maintenance” projects (“Prevailing Wage Laws”).  Architect 
agrees to fully comply with and to require its Consultant(s) to fully comply 
with all requirements of the Prevailing Wage Laws, if applicable to Architect 
and its Consultants’ professional services to be provided under this 
Agreement. 

Article 26. Cost Disclosure - Documents and Written Reports 

Architect shall be responsible for compliance with California Government Code 
section 7550, if the total cost of the Contract is over five thousand dollars ($5,000). 

Article 27. Notice & Communications 

Notices and communications between the Parties to this Agreement may be sent 
to the following addresses: 

District: 
 
Sacramento City Unified School District  
5735 47th Avenue 
Sacramento, CA 95824 
ATTN: Tina Alvarez Bevens 
EMAIL: tina-alvarez-bevens@scusd.edu 

With a Copy to: 
Dannis Woliver Kelley 
200 California Street #400  
San Francisco, CA 94111 
ATTN:  Deidree Sakai, Esq. 

Architect: 
 
HMC Architects 
2101 Capitol Avenue, Ste 100 
Sacramento CA  95816 
ATTN:  Vipul Safi 
EMAIL:  
Vipul.safi@hmcarchitects.com 

  
Any notice personally given shall be effective upon receipt.  Any notice sent by 
electronic mail shall be effective the day after transmission.  Any notice sent by 
overnight delivery service shall be effective the day after delivery.  Any notice given 
by mail shall be effective five (5) days after deposit in the United States mail. 

Article 28. RESERVED  

Article 29. District’s Right to Audit 

29.1. District retains the right to review and audit, and the reasonable right of 
access to Architect’s and any Consultant’s premises to review and audit the 
Architect’s compliance with the provisions of this Agreement (“District’s 
Right”). The District’s Right includes the right to inspect, photocopy, and to 
retain copies, outside of Architect’s premises, of any and all Project-related 
records and other information with appropriate safeguards, if such 



 

Agreement for Architectural Services       Page 22 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3771283v1 

retention is deemed necessary by the District in its sole discretion. The 
District shall keep this information confidential, as allowed by applicable 
law. 

29.2. The District’s Right includes the right to examine any and all books, records, 
documents and any other evidence of procedures and practices that the 
District determines is necessary to discover and verify whether Architect is 
in compliance with all requirements of this Agreement. 

29.3. If there is a claim for additional compensation or for Extra Services, the 
District’s Right includes the right to examine books, records, documents, 
and any and all other evidence and accounting procedures and practices 
that the District determines is necessary to discover and verify all direct and 
indirect costs, of whatever nature, which are claimed to have been incurred, 
or anticipated to be incurred. 

29.4. Architect shall maintain complete and accurate records in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting practices in the industry. Architect shall 
make available to the District for review and audit all Project-related 
accounting records and documents and any other financial data. Upon 
District’s request, Architect shall submit exact duplicates of originals of all 
requested records to the District. 

29.5. Architect shall include audit provisions in any and all of its subcontracts, 
and shall ensure that these sections are binding upon all Consultants. 

29.6. Architect shall comply with these provisions within fifteen (15) days of the 
District’s written request to review and audit any or all of Architect’s Project-
related records and information. 

Article 30. Other Provisions 

30.1. Each party warrants that it has had the opportunity to consult counsel and 
understands the terms of this Agreement and the consequences of 
executing it. In addition, each party acknowledges that the drafting of this 
Agreement was the product of negotiation, that no party is the author of 
this Agreement, and that this Agreement shall not be construed against any 
party as the drafter of the Agreement. 

30.2. The individual executing this Agreement on behalf of Architect warrants 
and represents that she/he is authorized to execute this Agreement and 
bind the CM to all terms hereof. 

30.3. This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of 
which shall be deemed an original. A facsimile or electronic signature shall 
be deemed to be the equivalent of the actual original signature. All 



 

Agreement for Architectural Services       Page 23 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3771283v1 

counterparts so executed shall constitute one Agreement binding all the 
Parties hereto.  

30.4. Architect shall share, credit, or reimburse District fifty percent (50%) of the 
amount of any tax deduction and/or credit Architect receives for District 
Projects under the Commercial Buildings Energy-Efficiency Tax Deduction, 
26 U.S. Code § 179D (“Section 179D”).  Architect shall provide District with 
all necessary documentation to enable District to verify the amounts of the 
Section 179D tax deduction.  Architect shall notify District in writing of the 
Section 179D tax deduction within 30 days of when Architect receives IRS 
notice of the Section 179D tax deduction or receives the Section 179D tax 
refund, whichever occurs first. 

Article 31. Exhibits “A” through “F” attached hereto are hereby incorporated by this 
reference and made a part of this Agreement. 

 
[SIGNATURES ON FOLLOWING PAGE] 

  



 

Agreement for Architectural Services       Page 24 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3771283v1 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement on the date(s) 
indicated below. 

SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL 
DISTRICT 

Date:    , 20__ 

By: Janea Marking  

Title: Chief Business Officer 

 

HMC ARCHITECTS 

 
Date:    , 20__ 

By: Vipul Safi 

Title: Principal-in-Charge 

 



 

 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 

RESPONSIBILITIES AND SERVICES OF ARCHITECT 
 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

A. SCOPE OF PROJECT ....................................................................................................................................... 1 
B. BASIC SERVICES .............................................................................................................................................. 1 
C. PRE-DESIGN AND START-UP SERVICES ............................................................................................. 4 
D. SCHEMATIC DESIGN PHASE ..................................................................................................................... 7 
E. DESIGN DEVELOPMENT PHASE ........................................................................................................... 12 
F. CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS PHASE ............................................................................................ 16 
G. BIDDING PHASE .......................................................................................................................................... 23 
H. CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT ADMINISTRATION PHASE ....................................................... 24 
I. CLOSE OUT PHASE ..................................................................................................................................... 28 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

EXHIBIT A Page A - 1 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
SCOPE AND BASIC SERVICES 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 

RESPONSIBILITIES AND SERVICES OF ARCHITECT 
 
Architect shall provide all professional services necessary for completing the following: 
 
SCOPE OF PROJECT 

Project Name:  Matsuyama ES Campus Renewal 

Construction Cost Budget:  $6,000,000  

BASIC SERVICES  

Architect agrees to provide the Services described below:   
 

1. Architect shall be responsible for the professional quality and technical accuracy of all 
studies, reports, projections, master plans, designs, drawings, specifications and other 
services furnished by Architect under the Agreement as well as coordination with all 
master plans, studies, reports and other information provided by District.  Architect shall, 
without additional compensation, correct or revise any errors or omissions in its studies, 
reports, projections, master plans, design, drawings, specifications and other Services.   

 
2. Architect will use all due care and diligence to confirm that its plans and specifications 

and all other information provided by or on behalf of the District to potential bidders 
discloses and publishes any potentially relevant information that could, in any way, have 
an impact on a Contractor's cost of performance.  Architect shall advise the District of 
the most effective methods of identifying and securing such information as part of each 
stage of design.  Architect shall track for District's benefit all such suggested and 
disclosed information. 

 
3. The District shall provide all information available to it to the extent the information 

relates to Architect’s scope of work.  This information shall include, if available,  
 

a. As-builts;  
 

b. Physical characteristics;  
 

c. Legal limitations and utility locations for the Project site(s);  
 

d. Written legal description(s) of the Project site(s);  
 

e. Grades and lines of streets, alleys, pavements, and adjoining property and structures;  
 
  



 

EXHIBIT A Page A - 2 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
SCOPE AND BASIC SERVICES 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

f. Adjacent drainage;  
 

g. Rights-of-way, restrictions, easements, encroachments, zoning, deed restrictions, and 
boundaries and contours of the Project site(s);  

 
h. Locations, dimensions and necessary data with respect to existing buildings, other 

improvements and trees;  
 
i. Information concerning available utility services and lines, mechanical and other 

services, both public and private, above and below grade, including inverts and depths;   
 

j. Surveys, reports, as-built drawings, record drawings; and 
 

k. Subsoil data, chemical data, and other data logs of borings. 
 

Architect shall Visually Verify this information and all existing Project utilities, including 
capacity, and document the location of existing utility lines, telephone, water, sewage, 
storm drains and other lines on or around the Project to the extent determinable by the 
documents provided by the District.   
 
If Architect determines that the information or documentation the District provides is 
insufficient for purposes of design, or if Architect requires:  a topographical survey; a 
geotechnical report; structural, mechanical, and/or chemical tests; tests for air and/or 
water pollution; test borings; test pits; determinations of soil bearing values; percolation 
tests; ground corrosion tests; resistivity tests; tests for hazardous materials; tests for 
anticipating subsoil conditions; and/or other information that the District has not 
provided, then, at the soonest possible time after Architect has become aware that this 
additional information is needed, the Architect shall request that the District acquire that 
information.  If the Parties mutually agree in writing, this additional information and service 
shall be procured through the Architect, who may invoice the District for those services as 
Extra Services.  

 
4. Technology Backbone.  Architect shall be responsible for the coordination of the design 

and the layout of the technology backbone system with the District’s technology 
consultant, and lay out any included technology backbone system.  The coordination effort 
shall include location and routing of raceways, conduits and outlets and the required 
spaces to accommodate electrical, data and communication wiring.  Architect and 
Consultant(s) shall prepare and be responsible for documents prepared by the Architect 
based on the information provided by the District’s technology consultant as appropriate 
to the level of design completion. 

 
5. Mandatory Assistance.  If a third party dispute or litigation, or both, arises out of, or 

relates in any way to the Services provided under this Agreement, upon the District's 
request, the Architect, its agents, officers, and employees agree to assist in resolving the 



 

EXHIBIT A Page A - 3 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
SCOPE AND BASIC SERVICES 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

dispute or litigation. Architect's assistance includes, but is not limited to, providing 
professional consultations, attending mediations, arbitrations, depositions, trials or any 
event related to the dispute resolution and/or litigation (“Mandatory Assistance”). 

 
 

[REMAINDER OF PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK] 

 



 

EXHIBIT A Page A - 4 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
PRE-DESIGN AND START-UP SERVICES 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

C. PRE-DESIGN AND START-UP SERVICES  
 

1. Project Initiation 
 

Upon final execution of the Agreement with the District, Architect shall: 
 
a. Within the first week following execution of the Agreement, review the proposed 

Schedule of Services set forth in Exhibit “C” to the Agreement and prepare a detailed 
scope of work list and work plan for documentation to the District’s satisfaction.  This 
scope of work list and work plan will identify specific tasks including, but not limited 
to: interviews, data collection, analysis, report preparation, planning, architectural 
programming, concepts and schematic design preparation and estimating that are 
part of the work of the Project.  Architect shall also identify milestone activities or dates, 
specific task responsibilities, required completion times necessary for review and 
approval by the District and by all regulatory agencies and additional definition of 
deliverables. 

 
b. Review the developed work plan with the District and its representatives to familiarize 

them with the proposed tasks and schedule and develop necessary modifications. 
 

2. Development of Architectural Program 
 

Architect shall prepare for the District’s review of an architectural program as follows:  
 

a. Perform pre-design investigations to establish appropriate guidelines around which 
and within which the Project is to be designed.  Identify design issues relating to 
functional needs, directives and constraints imposed by regulatory codes.  Review all 
data pertinent to the Project including survey, site maps, geotechnical reports and 
recommendations, soil testing results reports, and pertinent historical data, and other 
relevant information provided by District. 

 
b. Review DSA codes pertaining to the proposed Project design.   

 
c. Identify design issues relating to functional needs, directives and constraints imposed 

by applicable regulatory codes.   
 

d. Based on survey and topography data provided by the District, input into computer 
and develop existing conditions base for the Schematic Design Phase. 

 
e. Administer Project as required to coordinate work with the District and among 

Consultants. 
 



 

EXHIBIT A Page A - 5 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
PRE-DESIGN AND START-UP SERVICES 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

f. Develop District standards for facilities and construction, including but not limited to 
designation of any material, product, thing or service by specific brand or trade name 
pursuant to Public Contract Code section 3400, subdivision (c). 

 
3. Construction Cost Budget 

 
a. Architect shall have responsibility to further develop, review, and reconcile the 

Construction Cost Budget within the parameters of the Construction Budget 
established by the District for the Project.  The estimates forming the basis of the 
Construction Cost Budget are to be based on the developed functional architectural 
program as approved by the District. The following conditions apply to the 
Construction Cost Budget prepared by the Architect: 

 
(i) All costs are to be based on current bid prices, with escalation rate and duration 

clearly identified as a separate line item; rate of cost escalation and projected 
bid and construction dates are to be approved by the District and its 
representatives. 
 

(ii) Format shall be in a building systems format (e.g., foundations, substructure, 
structural system, exterior wall enclosure, window systems, etc.) for new 
buildings, and summarized by the Construction Specification Institute (“CSI”) 
categories for buildings being modernized. 
 

(iii) Contingencies for design, bidding, and construction are to be included as 
individual line items, with the percentage and base of calculation clearly 
identified. 
 

(iv) Architect shall include all information and estimates from the District and/or 
the Construction Manager that are intended to be part of the Construction Cost 
Budget. 
 

(v) One week prior to submittal of documents, Architect shall submit its proposed 
Construction Cost Budget to the District and the Construction Manager for 
review and approval.  At that time, Architect shall coordinate with the District 
and the Construction Manager to further develop, review, and reconcile the 
Construction Cost Budget. 
 

(vi) Mechanical, electrical, civil, landscape and estimating consultant(s) shall 
participate in the progress meeting as appropriate and shall provide input and 
feedback into the development of the Construction Cost Budget. 

 
b. The Construction Cost Budget for the Project must at no point exceed the District’s 

Construction Budget for the Project.  The accuracy of the Construction Cost Budget 
shall be the responsibility of the Architect. 



 

EXHIBIT A Page A - 6 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
PRE-DESIGN AND START-UP SERVICES 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

4. Presentation 
 
If requested, Architect, along with any involved consultant(s), shall present and review with 
the District and, if directed, with the District’s Governing Board, the summary and detail of 
work involved in this Phase, including two-dimensional renderings of any proposed facility 
suitable for public presentation. 
 

5. Deliverables and Numbers of Copies  
 

Within thirty (30) days of the end of this Phase, Architect shall provide to the District an 
electronic copy of the following items produced in this Phase: 

 
a. Architectural Program (include comparison between developed program and “model” 

program, include narrative explaining any substantial deviations); 
 

b. Site Plan; 
 

c. Revised Construction Cost Budget; 
 

d. Final Schedule of Services;  
 

e. Meeting Reports/Minutes from the Kick-off and other meetings; and 
 

f. Renderings, if requested by District.  
 

6. Meetings 
 

During this Phase, Architect shall attend, take part in, and, when indicated, conduct 
meetings, site visits, and workshops minimally on a bi-weekly basis. 

 
 

[REMAINDER OF PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK]



 

EXHIBIT A Page A - 7 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
SCHEMATIC DESIGN PHASE 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

D. SCHEMATIC DESIGN PHASE 
 

Upon District’s acceptance of Architect’s work in the previous Phase and assuming District has 
not delayed or terminated the Agreement, Architect shall prepare for the District’s review a 
Schematic Design Study, containing the following items as applicable to the Project scope, as 
follows: 

 
1. Prepare and review with District staff a scope of work list and work plan identifying specific 

tasks including, but not limited to: interviews, data collection, analysis, report preparation, 
planning, architectural programming, concepts and schematic design preparation and 
estimating that are part of the work of the Project.  Also identified will be milestone 
activities or dates, specific task responsibilities of the Architect, required completion times 
necessary for the review and approval by the District and by pertinent regulatory agencies 
and additional definition of deliverables. 

 
2. Review the developed work plan with the District and its representatives to familiarize 

them with the proposed tasks and schedule and develop necessary modifications. 
 

3. Architectural 
 

a. Scaled floor plans showing overall dimensions, identifying the various major areas and 
their relationship.  Include circulation and room-by-room tabulation of all net usable 
floor areas and a summary of gross floor area.  Also, provide typical layouts of major 
equipment or operational layout. 

 
b. Preliminary building exterior elevations and sections in sufficient detail to demonstrate 

design concept indicating location and size of fenestration. 
 

c. As applicable, identify proposed roof system, deck, insulation system, and drainage 
technique. 

 
d. Identify minimum finish requirements, including ceiling, floors, walls, doors, windows, 

and types of hardware. 
 

e. Identify code requirements, include occupancy classification(s) and type of 
construction. 

 
4. Structural 

 
a. Layout structural systems with dimensions and floor elevations.  Identify structural 

systems (including pre-cast, structural steel with composite deck, structural steel bar 
joists) with preliminary sizing identified.       

 



 

EXHIBIT A Page A - 8 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
SCHEMATIC DESIGN PHASE 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

b. Identify foundation systems (including fill requirements, piles, caissons, spread 
footings) with preliminary sizing identified. 

 
5. Mechanical 

 
a. Calculate block heating, ventilation, and cooling loads including skin versus internal 

loading. 
 

b. Select a minimum of two (2) HVAC systems that appear compatible with loading 
conditions for subsequent life cycle costing. 

 
c. Show selected system on drawings as follows: 

 
(i) Single line drawing(s) of all mechanical equipment spaces, ductwork and pipe 

chases. 
 
(ii) Location and preliminary sizing of all major equipment and duct work in allocated 

spaces. 
 
(iii) Schematic piping. 
 
(iv) Temperature control zoning. 

 
d. Provide design criteria to include the intent base of design for the Project. 

 
e. Evaluate and confirm the load requirements of all equipment and systems, the impact 

of those on existing facilities, and the requirements to increase these loads to 
accommodate the increase. 

 
6. Electrical 

 
a. Calculate overall approximate electrical loads. 

 
b. Identify proposed electrical system for service, power, lighting, low voltage and 

communication loads, including proposed or planned additional buildings or other 
facilities on the Project site. 

 
c. Show system(s) selected on drawings as follows: 

 
(i) Single line drawing(s) showing major distribution system. 
 
(ii) Location and preliminary sizing of all major electrical systems and components 

including: 
 



 

EXHIBIT A Page A - 9 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
SCHEMATIC DESIGN PHASE 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

(A) Load centers. 

(B) Main panels. 

(C) Switch gear. 
 

d. Provide design criteria to include the intent base of design for the Project.  
 

e. Evaluate and confirm the load requirements of all equipment and systems, the impact 
of those on existing facilities, and the requirements to increase these loads to 
accommodate the increase. 

 
7. Civil 

 
a. Develop on and off site utility systems such as sewer, water, storm drain, firewater lines 

and fire hydrants. 
 

b. Identify surface improvements including roadways, walkways, parking (with assumed 
wheel weights), preliminary finish grades and drainage. 

 
c. Coordinate finish floor elevations with architectural site plan. 

 
8. Specifications 

 
Prepare outline specifications of proposed architectural, structural, mechanical and 
electrical materials, systems and equipment and their criteria and quality standards.  
Architect is to use District’s standardized equipment/material list for new construction and 
modernization in development of the Project design and specifications.   Architect shall 
review and comment on District’s construction bid contracts and contract documents (the 
“Division 0” and “Division 1” documents) as part of its Services under the Agreement. 

 
9.  Construction Cost Budget 

 
Revise the Construction Cost Budget for the Project.  Along with the conditions identified 
in the preceding Phase, the following conditions apply to the revised Construction Cost 
Budget: 

 
a. Schematic Estimates: This estimate consists of unit cost applied to the major items and 

quantities of work.  The unit cost shall reflect the complete direct current cost of work.  
Complete cost includes labor, material, waste allowance, sales tax and subcontractor's 
mark-up.   

 
(i) General conditions shall be applied separately.  This estimate shall be prepared by 

specification section and summarized by the CSI categories.   



 

EXHIBIT A Page A - 10 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
SCHEMATIC DESIGN PHASE 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 
b. The estimate shall separate the Project's building cost from site and utilities cost.  

Architect shall submit to the District the cost estimating format for prior review and 
approval. 

 
c. Escalation: all estimates shall be priced out at current market conditions.  The estimates 

shall incorporate all adjustments as appropriate, relating to mid-point construction, 
contingency, and cost index (i.e. Lee Saylor Index). 

 
d. The Construction Cost Budget for the Project must at no point exceed the District’s 

Construction Budget.  The accuracy of the Construction Cost Budget shall be the 
responsibility of the Architect. 

 
e. Architect shall submit its proposed Construction Cost Budget to the District and the 

Construction Manager for review and approval.  At that time, Architect shall coordinate 
with the District and Construction Manager to further develop, review, and reconcile 
the Construction Cost Budget.   

 
f. At the end of this Phase, the Construction Cost Budget may include design 

contingencies of no more than ten percent (10%) in the cost estimates. 
 

10. Deliverables and Numbers of Copies 
 

Within thirty (30) days of the end of this Phase, Architect shall provide to the District a hard 
copy of the following items produced in this phase, together with one (1) copy of each 
item in electronic format: 

 
a. Breakdown of Construction Cost Budget as prepared for this Phase; 
 
b. Meeting reports/minutes; 
 
c. Schematic Design Package with alternatives; 
 
d. Statement indicating changes made to the Architectural Program and Schedule; 

and 
 
e. Copy of the DSA file, including all correspondence and meeting notes to date, or 

notification in writing that Architect has not met or corresponded with DSA. 
 

11. Presentation 
 

a. Architect shall present and review with the District the detailed Schematic Design. 
 



 

EXHIBIT A Page A - 11 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
SCHEMATIC DESIGN PHASE 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

b. The Schematic Design shall be revised within the accepted program parameters until 
a final concept within the accepted Construction Cost Budget has been accepted and 
approved by the District at no additional cost to the District. 

 
12. Meetings 

 
During this Phase, Architect shall attend, take part in, and, when indicated, conduct 
meetings, site visits, and workshops minimally on a bi-weekly basis. 

 
 
 
[REMAINDER OF PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK]



 

EXHIBIT A Page A - 12 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
DESIGN DEVELOPMENT PHASE 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 
E. DESIGN DEVELOPMENT PHASE  

 
Upon District’s acceptance of Architect’s work in the previous Phase and assuming District has 
not delayed or terminated the Agreement, Architect shall prepare from the accepted 
deliverables from the Schematic Design Phase, the Design Development Phase documents 
consisting of the following for each proposed system within Architect’s scope of services:  

 
1. Architectural 

 
a. Scaled, dimensioned floor plans with final room locations including all openings. 

 
b. 1/8” scale building sections showing dimensional relationships, materials and 

component relationships. 
 
c. Exterior elevations of all proposed new buildings, existing buildings to be renovated 

and all architectural elements of the Project. 
 

d. Identification of all fixed equipment to be installed in Project. 
 
e. Interior finishes identified and located within the rooms of all buildings. 

 
f. Site plan completely drawn with beginning notes and dimensions including grading 

and paving. 
 

g. Preliminary development of details and large scale blow-ups. 
 

h. Legend showing all symbols used on drawings. 
 

i. Floor plans identifying all fixed and major movable equipment and furniture. 
 

j. Further refinement of Outline Specifications for architectural, structural, mechanical, 
electrical, civil and landscape manuals, systems and equipment. 

 
k. Typical reflected ceiling development including ceiling grid and heights for each 

ceiling to be used, showing: 
 

(i) Light fixtures. 
 
(ii) Ceiling registers or diffusers. 
 
(iii) Access Panels. 

 
  



 

EXHIBIT A Page A - 13 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
DESIGN DEVELOPMENT PHASE 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

2. Structural 
 

a. Structural drawings with all major members located and sized. 
 

b. Establish final building and floor elevations. 
 

c. Preliminary specifications. 
 
d. Preliminary calculations for the structural systems including lateral force resistive 

systems, foundations, and all structural system components. 
 

e. Identify foundation requirement (including fill requirement, piles) with associated soil 
pressure, water table and seismic center. 

 
3. Mechanical 

 
a. Heating and cooling load calculations as required and major duct or pipe runs sized 

to interface with structural. 
 

b. Major mechanical equipment should be scheduled indicating size and capacity. 
 

c. Ductwork and piping should be substantially located and sized. 
 
d. Plumbing plans for the Project shall indicate numbers and locations of fixtures and be 

in conformance with the code-mandated fixture count requirements of the Project. 
 

e. Devices in ceiling should be located. 
 

f. Legend showing all symbols used on drawings. 
 

g. More developed Outline Specifications indicating quality level and manufacture. 
 

h. Control Systems identified. 
 

i. Further evaluation and confirmation of the load requirements of all equipment and 
systems, the impact of those on existing facilities, and the requirements to increase 
these loads to accommodate the increase. 

 
4. Electrical 

 
a. All lighting fixtures should be located and scheduled showing all types and quantities 

of fixtures to be used, including proposed lighting levels for each usable space. 
 

b. All major electrical equipment should be scheduled indicating size and capacity. 



 

EXHIBIT A Page A - 14 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
DESIGN DEVELOPMENT PHASE 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

c. Complete electrical distribution including a one-line diagram indicating final location 
of switchboards, communications, controls (high and low voltage), motor control 
centers, panels, transformers and emergency generators, if required.  Low-voltage 
system includes fire alarm system, security system, clock and public address system, 
bell system, voice-data system, and telecom/technology system. 

 
d. Legend showing all symbols used on drawings. 

 
e. More developed and detailed Outline Specifications indicating quality level and 

manufacture. 
 

f. Further evaluation and confirmation of the load requirements of all equipment and 
systems, the impact of those on existing facilities, and the requirements to increase 
these loads to accommodate the increase. 

 
5. Civil 

 
a. Further refinement of Schematic Design Phase development of on and off site utility 

systems for sewer, electrical, water, storm drain and fire water.  Includes, without 
limitation, pipe sizes, materials, invert elevation location and installation details. 

 
b. Further refinement of Schematic Design Phase roadways, walkways, parking and storm 

drainage improvements.  Includes details and large scale drawings of curb and gutter, 
manhole, thrust blocks, paved parking and roadway sections. 

 
6. Bid Documents 

 
Architect shall review and comment on District’s construction bid contracts and contract 
documents (the “Division 0” documents and “Division 1” documents) as part of its Services 
under the Agreement. 

 
7. Construction Cost Budget 

 
a. Revise the Construction Cost Budget for the Project.  Along with the conditions 

identified in the Agreement and the preceding Phases, the following conditions apply 
to the revised Construction Cost Budget: 

 
(i) Design Development Estimate: This further revised estimate shall be prepared by 

specification section, summarized by CSI category and divided by trade and work 
item.  The estimate shall include individual item unit costs of materials, labor and 
equipment.  Sales tax, Contractor's mark-ups, and general conditions shall be listed 
separately.   

 



 

EXHIBIT A Page A - 15 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
DESIGN DEVELOPMENT PHASE 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

(ii) The Construction Cost Budget for the Project must at no point exceed the District’s 
Construction Budget.  The accuracy of the Construction Cost Budget shall be the 
responsibility of the Architect. 

 
(iii) At this stage of the design, the Construction Cost Budget may include design 

contingencies of no more than ten percent (10%) in the cost estimates. 
 

b. Architect shall submit its proposed Construction Cost Budget to the District and the 
Construction Manager for review and approval.  At that time, the Architect shall 
coordinate with the District and the Construction Manager to further develop, review, 
and reconcile the Construction Cost Budget.   

 
8. Deliverables and Numbers of Copies 

 
Architect shall provide to the District a hard copy of the following items produced in this 
phase, together with one (1) copy of each item in electronic format: 

 
a. Design Development drawing set from all professional disciplines necessary to deliver 

the Project; 
 

b. Specifications; 
 

c. Revised Construction Cost Budget; and 
 

d. Copy of the DSA file, including all correspondence and meeting notes to date, or 
notification in writing that Architect has not met or corresponded with DSA.  

 
The Design Development deliverables shall be revised within the accepted program 
parameters until a final concept within the accepted Construction Cost Budget has been 
accepted and approved by the District at no additional cost to the District. 

 
9. Meetings 

 
During this Phase, Architect shall attend, take part in, and, when indicated, conduct 
meetings, site visits, and workshops minimally on a bi-weekly basis. 
 
 
 

[REMAINDER OF PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK] 



 

EXHIBIT A Page A - 16 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS PHASE 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

F. CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS PHASE 
 

Upon District’s acceptance of Architect’s work in the previous Phase and assuming District 
has not delayed or terminated the Agreement, Architect shall prepare from the accepted 
deliverables from the Design Development Phase the Construction Documents consisting 
of the following for each proposed system within Architect’s scope of work.  All Projects 
subject to DSA’s jurisdiction shall be submitted for review, back check, and approval, under 
the electronic plan review process (“EPR process”), rather than paper submission. 

 
1. Construction Documents (“CD”) 50% Stage: 

 
a. General 

 
Verify lead times and availability of all Project equipment, materials, and supplies and 
ensure that all of these will be available to the Contractor in a timely fashion so as not 
to delay the Project. 

 
b. Architectural 

 
(i) Site plan developed to show building location, all topographical elements and 

existing/proposed contour lines. 
 
(ii) Elevations (exterior and interior), sections and floor plans corrected to reflect 

design development review comments. 
 
(iii) Architectural details and large blow-ups started. 
 
(iv) Well-developed finish, door, and hardware schedules. 
 
(v) Site utility plans started. 
 
(vi) Fixed equipment details and identification started. 
 
(vii) Reflected ceiling plans coordinated with floor plans and mechanical and electrical 

systems. 
 

c. Structural 
 

(i) Structural floor plans and sections with detailing well advanced. 
 
(ii) Structural footing and foundation plans, floor and roof framing plans with detailing 

well advanced. 
 
(iii) Completed cover sheet with general notes, symbols and legends. 



 

EXHIBIT A Page A - 17 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS PHASE 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 
d. Mechanical 

 
(i) Mechanical calculations virtually completed with all piping and ductwork sized. 
 
(ii) Large scale mechanical details started. 
 
 
(iii) Mechanical schedule for equipment substantially developed. 
 
(iv) Complete design of Energy Management System (“EMS”). 

 
e. Electrical 

 
(i) Lighting, power, signal and communication plans showing all switching and 

controls.  Fixture schedule and lighting details development started. 
 
(ii) Distribution information on all power consuming equipment; lighting and device 

branch wiring development well started. 
 
(iii) All electrical equipment schedules started. 
 
(iv) Special system components approximately located on plans. 
 
(v) Complete design of low-voltage system.  Low-voltage system includes fire alarm 

system, security system, clock and public address system, voice-data system, and 
telecom/technology system. 

 
f. Civil 

 
All site plans, site utilities, parking, walkway, and roadway systems updated to reflect 
update revisions from Design Development Phase Documents. 

 
g. Construction Cost Budget 

 
(i) Revise the Construction Cost Budget for the Project.  Along with the conditions 

identified in the preceding phases, Architect shall update and refine the Design 
Development Phase revisions to the Construction Cost Budget.  Architect shall 
provide a Construction Cost Budget sorted by Project Bid Packages, if more than 
one. 

 
(ii) The Construction Cost Budget for the Project must at no point exceed the District’s 

Construction Budget.  The accuracy of the Construction Cost Budget shall be the 
responsibility of the Architect. 



 

EXHIBIT A Page A - 18 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS PHASE 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 
(iii) Architect shall submit its proposed Construction Cost Budget to the District and 

the Construction Manager for review and approval.  At that time, the Architect shall 
coordinate with the District and the Construction Manager to further develop, 
review, and reconcile the Construction Cost Budget.   

 
(iv) At this stage of the design, the Construction Cost Budget may include design 

contingencies of no more than five percent (5%) in the cost estimates. 
 

h. Specifications 

More than fifty percent (50%) complete development and preparation of technical 
specifications describing materials, systems and equipment, workmanship, quality and 
performance criteria required for the construction of the Project. 

 
(i) No part of the specifications shall call for a designated material, product, thing, or 

service by specific brand or trade name unless: 
 

(A) The specification is followed by the words “or equal” so that bidders may 
furnish any equal material, product, thing, or service, as required by Public 
Contract Code section 3400, or 

 
(B) The designation is allowable by a specific allowable exemption or exception 

pursuant to Public Contract Code section 3400. 
 

(ii) Specifications shall not contain restrictions that will limit competitive bids other 
than those required for maintenance convenience by the District and only with 
District’s prior approval. 

    
(iii) Specifications shall be in CSI format. 

 
i. Deliverables and Numbers of Copies 

 
Within thirty (30) days of the end of this Phase, Architect shall provide to the District a 
hard copy of the following items produced in this Phase, together with one (1) copy of 
each item in electronic format: 

 
(i) working drawings; 
 
(ii) Specifications; 
 
(iii) statement of requirements for testing and inspection of service for compliance with 

Contract Documents and applicable codes; and 
 



 

EXHIBIT A Page A - 19 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS PHASE 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

(iv) statement indicating any authorized changes made to the design from the last 
Phase and the cost impact of each change on the previously approved 
Construction Cost Budget.  If no design changes occur but shifts of costs occur 
between disciplines, identify for District review.   

 
2. Construction Documents – 100% / Completion Stage: 

 
a. Architectural 

 
(i) Completed site plan. 
 
(ii) Completed floor plans, elevations, and sections. 
 
(iii) Architectural details and large blow-ups completed. 
 
(iv) Finish, door, and hardware schedules completed, including all details. 
 
(v) Site utility plans completed. 
 
(vi) Fixed equipment details and identification completed. 
 
(vii) Reflected ceiling plans completed. 
 

b. Structural 
 

(i) Structural floor plans and sections with detailing completed. 
 
(ii) Structural calculations completed. 

 
c. Mechanical 

 
(i) Large scale mechanical details complete. 
 
(ii) Mechanical schedules for equipment completed. 
 
(iii) Completed electrical schematic for environmental cooling and exhaust equipment. 
 
(iv) Complete energy conservation calculations and report. 

 
d. Electrical 

 
(i) Lighting and power plan showing all switching and controls.  Fixture schedule and 

lighting details completed. 
 



 

EXHIBIT A Page A - 20 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS PHASE 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

(ii) Distribution information on all power consuming equipment, including lighting, 
power, signal and communication device(s) branch wiring completed. 

 
(iii) All electrical equipment schedules completed. 
 
(iv) Special system components plans completed. 
 
(v) Electrical load calculations completed.  

 
e. Civil 

 
All site plans, site utilities, parking and roadway systems completed. 

 
f. Construction Cost Budget 

 
(i) Revise the Construction Cost Budget for the Project.  Along with the conditions 

identified in the preceding phases, Architect shall update and refine the fifty 
percent (50%) Construction Documents Phase revisions to the Construction Cost 
Budget.   

 
(ii) The Construction Cost Budget for the Project must at no point exceed the District’s 

Construction Budget.  The accuracy of the Construction Cost Budget shall be the 
responsibility of the Architect. 

 
(iii) Architect shall submit its proposed Construction Cost Budget to the District and 

the Construction Manager for review and approval.  At that time, Architect shall 
coordinate with the District and the Construction Manager to further develop, 
review, and reconcile the Construction Cost Budget.   

 
(iv) At this stage of the design, the Construction Cost Budget shall not include any 

design contingencies in excess of the cost estimates. 
 

g. Specifications 
 

(i) Complete development and preparation of technical specifications describing 
materials, systems and equipment, workmanship, quality and performance criteria 
required for the construction of the Project.   

 
(ii) No part of the specifications shall call for a designated material, product, thing, or 

service by specific brand or trade name unless: 
 

(A) The specification is followed by the words “or equal” so that bidders may 
furnish any equal material, product, thing, or service, as required by Public 
Contract Code section 3400, or 



 

EXHIBIT A Page A - 21 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS PHASE 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 
(B) The designation is allowable by specific allowable exemptions or exceptions 

pursuant to Public Contract Code section 3400. 
 

(iii) Specifications shall not contain restrictions that will limit competitive bids other 
than those required for maintenance convenience by the District and only with 
District’s prior approval. 

 
(iv) At one hundred percent (100%) review, District shall review the Specifications and 

shall direct Architect to make corrections at no cost to the District. 
 
(v) Coordination of the Specifications with specifications developed by other 

disciplines. 
 
(vi) Specifications shall be in CSI format. 

 
h. Constructability Review 

 
The District and/or its designee, at its sole discretion, shall have the right to conduct a 
constructability review of the Construction Documents.  A report shall be given to the 
Architect who shall make necessary changes along with providing written comments 
for each item listed in the report.  Conducting a constructability review does not excuse 
the Architect’s obligation to provide Services that shall comply with professional 
architectural standards, including the standard of care applicable to architects 
designing public school facilities and applicable requirements of federal, state, and 
local law. 

 
i. Deliverables and Numbers of Copies 

 
Within thirty (30) days of the end of this Phase, Architect shall provide to the District a 
hard copy of the following items produced in this Phase, together with one (1) copy of 
each item in electronic format: 

 
(i) Working drawings; 
 
(ii) Specifications; 
 
(iii) Engineering calculations; 
 
(iv) Construction Cost Budgets; 
 
(v) Statement of requirements for testing and inspection of service for compliance 

with Construction Documents and applicable codes; 
 



 

EXHIBIT A Page A - 22 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS PHASE 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

(vi) Copy of DSA file including all correspondence, meeting, minutes or reports, back-
check comments, checklists to date; and 

 
(vii) Statement indicating any authorized changes made to the design from the last 

Phase and the cost impact of each change on the previously approved 
Construction Cost Budget.  If no design changes occur but shifts of costs occur 
between disciplines, identify for District review.   

 
3. Construction Documents Final Back-Check Stage: 

 
a. The Construction Documents final back-check stage shall be for the purpose of the 

Architect incorporating all regulatory agencies' comments into the drawings, 
specifications, and estimate.  All changes made by the Architect during this stage shall 
be at no additional cost to the District. 

 
b. The final contract documents delivered to the District upon completion of the 

Architect’s work shall be the Bid Set and shall consist of the following: 
 

(i) Drawings: Original tracings of all drawings on Architect’s tracing paper with each 
Architect/Consultant’s State license stamp. 

 
(ii) Specifications: Original word-processed technical specifications on reproducible 

masters in CSI format.  
 

c. Architect shall update and refine the Consultants’ completed Contract Documents.  

d. Conclusion of Construction Document Phase requires final stamp-out by DSA. 
 

4. Meetings 
 

During this Phase, Architect shall attend, take part in, and, when indicated, conduct 
meetings, site visits, and workshops minimally on a bi-weekly basis. 
 
 
 



 

EXHIBIT A Page A - 23 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
BIDDING PHASE  
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

G. BIDDING PHASE 
 

Upon District’s acceptance of Architect’s work in the previous Phase and assuming District has 
not delayed or terminated the Agreement, Architect shall perform Bidding Phase services for 
District as follows:  

 
1. Contact potential bidders and encourage their participation in the Project. 

 
2. Coordinate the development of the bidding procedures and the construction Contract 

Documents with the District. 
 

3. The development of the bidding procedures and the construction Contract Documents 
shall be the joint responsibility of the District and Architect.  Nevertheless, Architect will 
use all due care and diligence to confirm that its plans and specifications and all other 
information provided by or on behalf of the District to potential bidders discloses and 
publishes any potentially relevant information that could, in any way, have an impact on a 
Contractor's cost of performance. 

 
4. While the Project is being advertised for bids, all questions concerning intent shall be 

referred to the District for screening and subsequent processing through Architect. 
 

5. In the event that items requiring interpretation of the drawings or specifications are 
discovered during the bidding period, those items shall be analyzed by the Architect for 
decision by the District as to the proper procedure required.  Corrective action will be in 
the form of an addendum prepared by the Architect and issued by the District.   

 
6. Attend bid opening. 

 
7. Coordinate with Consultants. 

 
8. Respond to District and potential bidder questions and clarifications. 

 
9. Deliverables and Number of Copies 

 
Within thirty (30) days of the end of this Phase, Architect shall provide to the District a hard 
copy of the following items produced in this Phase, together with one (1) copy of each 
item in electronic format: 

 
a. Meeting report/minutes from the kick-off meeting;  

 
b. Meeting report/minutes from the pre-bid site walk; and 

 
c. Upon completion of the Bidding Phase, Architect shall produce a Conforming Set of 

plans and specifications incorporating all addenda issued thus far.  Architect shall 
supply District with two (2) complete, reproducible sets of plans and specifications 
marked as a Conforming Set.  



 

EXHIBIT A Page A - 24 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
CONSTRUCTION ADMINISTRATION PHASE 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

H. CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT ADMINISTRATION PHASE 
 

Upon District’s acceptance of Architect’s work in the previous Phase and assuming District has 
not delayed or terminated the Agreement, Architect shall perform Construction Contract 
Administration Phase services for the District as follows:  

 
1. Architect’s responsibility to provide basic services for the Construction Phase under the 

Agreement commences with the award of the contract for construction and terminates 
upon satisfactory performance and completion of all tasks in this phase and 
commencement of the Closeout Phase or upon the District’s terminating the Agreement, 
whichever is earlier. 

 
2. Construction Oversight and Project Certification Process  

a. Architect shall ensure that the Project Inspector is approved by the DSA for the Project 
by submitting the applicable Inspector’s Qualification Record (form DSA 5 or more 
current version) to and by obtaining approval from the DSA prior to commencement 
of construction and prior to requesting issuance of project inspections cards (form DSA 
152 or more current version). 

b. Architect shall request issuance of the proper number of project inspection cards 
(forms DSA 152 or more current version) by electronically submitting form DSA 102-
IC (or more current version) to the DSA after the construction contract has been 
awarded.  Architect shall provide project inspection cards to the Project Inspector prior 
to commencement of construction. 

c. Prior to commencement of construction, Architect shall provide (1) a copy of the DSA 
approved construction documents and (2) the DSA approved Statement of Structural 
Tests and Special Inspections (form DSA 103 or more current version) prepared by 
Architect to the Project Inspector and Laboratory of Record. 

d. Architect shall prepare and submit a Contract Information form (form DSA 102 or more 
current version) for all construction contracts. 

e. Architect shall maintain such personal contact with the Project as is necessary to assure 
themselves of compliance, in every material respect, with the DSA-approved 
construction documents.  Personal contact shall include visits to the Project site by the 
Architect or engineer or their qualified representative to observe construction.   

f. Architect shall notify DSA as to the disposition of materials noted on laboratory testing, 
and/or special inspection, reports as not conforming to the DSA-approved 
construction documents. 

g. Architect shall respond to DSA field trip notes as necessary. 



 

EXHIBIT A Page A - 25 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
CONSTRUCTION ADMINISTRATION PHASE 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

h. Architect shall submit an interim Verified Report (form DSA 6-AE or more current 
version) to the DSA electronically and a copy to the Project Inspector for each of the 
applicable nine (9) sections of form DSA 152 prior to the Project Inspector signing off 
that section of the project inspection card. 

i. Architect shall submit a Statement of Final Actual Project Cost (form DSA 168 or more 
current version) to the DSA. 

j. Architect shall submit Verified Reports (form DSA 6-AE or more current form) to the 
DSA and to the Project Inspector if any of the following events occur:  (1) when 
construction is sufficiently complete in accordance with the DSA-approved 
construction documents so that the District can occupy or utilize the Project; (2) work 
on the Project is suspended for a period of more than one month; (3) the services of 
the Architect are terminated for any reason prior to completion of the Project; or (4) 
DSA requests a Verified Report.    

 
3. Change Orders 

 
a. Architect shall review all of Contractor’s change order requests to determine if those 

requests are valid and appropriate.  Architect shall provide a recommendation to 
District as to whether the change should be approved, partially approved, returned to 
the Contractor for clarification, or rejected.  

 
b. Architect shall furnish all necessary Construction Change Documents and additional 

drawings for supplementing, clarifying, and/or correcting purposes and for change 
orders.  The District shall request these Construction Change Documents and drawings 
from the Architect, which shall be provided at no additional cost unless designated as 
Extra Services by the District.  The original tracing(s) and/or drawings and contract 
wording for change orders shall be submitted to the District for duplication and 
distribution. 

 
4. Submittals 

 
a. Architect shall review and approve or take other appropriate action upon Contractor's 

submittals such as: shop drawings, Project data, samples and Construction Change 
Documents, but only for the purpose of checking for conformance with information 
given and the design concept expressed in the Contract Documents.   

 
b. Architect shall review Contractor’s schedule of submittals and advise the District on 

whether that schedule is complete.  Architect shall provide the District with proposed 
revisions to this schedule and advise the District on whether the District should 
approve this schedule. 

 



 

EXHIBIT A Page A - 26 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
CONSTRUCTION ADMINISTRATION PHASE 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

c. Architect’s action upon Contractor’s submittals shall be taken as expeditiously as 
possible so as to cause no unreasonable delay in the construction of the Project or in 
the work of Contractor(s), while allowing sufficient time in the Architect’s professional 
judgment to permit adequate review.  In no case shall the review period associated 
with a single, particular submittal exceed twenty-one (21) calendar days from its receipt 
by the Architect.  Architect’s response to each submittal shall be a substantive and 
acceptable response.  This twenty-one (21)-day time period shall not include time 
when a submittal is within the District’s control or if the submittal is being reviewed by 
DSA.  In no way does this provision reduce Architect’s liability if it fails to prepare 
acceptable documents. 

 
5. RFIs.  During the course of construction as part of the basic services, Architect must 

respond to all Requests for Information (“RFI”) as expeditiously as possible so as not to 
impact and delay the construction progress.  In no case shall the review period associated 
with an RFI exceed seven (7) calendar days from receipt by the Architect.  Architect’s 
response to each RFI shall be a substantive and acceptable response.  This seven-day time 
period shall not include time when a submittal is within the District’s control or if the 
submittal is being reviewed by DSA.  In no way does this provision reduce the Architect’s 
liability if it fails to prepare acceptable documents.  Architect must verify that RFIs are 
passed through the Project Inspector, if any. 

 
6. Notices of Deficient Work.  On the basis of on-site observations, Architect shall keep the 

District informed of the progress and the quality of the work, and shall endeavor to guard 
the District against defects and deficiencies in the work.  Architect shall timely notify the 
District in writing of any defects or deficiencies in the work by any of the District’s 
Contractors that Architect may observe.  However, Architect shall not be a guarantor of 
the Contractor's performance.  

 
7. As-Built Drawings.  Architect shall review and evaluate for District the Contractor(s)’ 

documentation of the actual construction performed during the Project that the 
Contractor(s) should prepare and submit as As-Builts.  As-Builts are documents that show 
the actual construction performed during the Project, including changes necessitated by 
Construction Change Documents and change orders, and detailed by the District’s 
construction Contractor(s) on a Conforming Set. 

 
8. Record Drawings.  Architect shall incorporate all information on all As-Builts, sketches, 

details, and clarifications, and prepare one (1) set of final Record Drawings for the District.  
The Record Drawings shall incorporate onto one (1) set of drawings, all changes from all 
As-Builts, sketches, details, and clarifications, including, without limitation, all requests for 
information, Construction Change Documents and change orders based upon the 
construction Contractor’s representations of actual construction.  Architect shall deliver 
the Record Drawings to the District at completion of the construction in a format 
acceptable to the District, and it shall be a condition precedent to the District’s approval 



 

EXHIBIT A Page A - 27 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
CONSTRUCTION ADMINISTRATION PHASE 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

of Architect’s final payment.  Architect may insert the following notice on the Record 
Drawings: 

 
These drawings [or corrected specifications] have been prepared based 
on information submitted, in part, by others.  Architect has provided a 
review consistent with its legal standard of care. 
 

9. O&M Manuals and Warranties.  Architect shall review equipment, operation and 
maintenance manuals, and a complete set of warranty documents for all equipment and 
installed systems, to ensure that they meet the requirements of the plans and 
specifications.  

 
10. Start-up.  Architect shall also provide, at the District’s request, architectural/engineering 

advice to the District on start-up, break-in, and debugging of facility systems and 
equipment, and on apparent deficiencies or defects in construction following the 
acceptance of the Contractor's work. 

 
11. Payment Statements.  Recommendations of Payment by Architect constitute Architect’s 

representation to the District that work has progressed to the point indicated to the best 
of Architect’s knowledge, information, and belief, and that the quality of the work is in 
general conformance with the Contract Documents.  

 
12. Deliverables and Number of Copies 

 
Within thirty (30) days of the end of this Phase, Architect shall provide to the District a hard 
copy of the following items produced in this Phase, together with one (1) copy of each 
item in electronic format: 

 
a. Meeting report/minutes from the kick-off meeting;  

 
b. Observation reports; and 

 
c. Weekly meeting reports.  

 
13. Meetings 

 
During this Phase, Architect shall attend, take part in, and, when indicated, conduct 
meetings, site visits, and workshops minimally on a bi-weekly basis. 

 
[REMAINDER OF PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK]



 

EXHIBIT A Page A - 28 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
CLOSE-OUT PHASE 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

I. CLOSE OUT PHASE 
 

1. As the Construction Administration Phase progresses, Architect shall perform the following 
Close Out Phase services for the District as required in a timely manner: 

 
a. Architect shall review the Project and observe the construction as required to 

determine when the Contractor has completed the construction of the Project and 
shall prepare punch lists of items that remain in need of correction or completion. 

 
b. Architect shall collect from the Contractor, review, and forward to the District all written 

warranties, operation manuals, and spare parts with Architect’s recommendation as to 
the adequacy of these items. 

 
c. Architect shall prepare or collect, as applicable, and provide to DSA, all reports required 

by DSA related to the design and construction of the Project. 
 

d. Architect shall respond to the DSA “90-day” letter. 
 

e. Architect shall obtain all required DSA approval of all Construction Change Documents 
and addenda to the Contractor’s contract. 

 
f. Architect shall prepare a set of As-Built Drawings for the Project, as required by the 

District. 
 

g. Architect shall review and prepare a package of all warranty and O&M documentation. 
 

h. Architect shall organize electronic files, plans and prepare a Project binder. 
 

i. Architect shall have primary responsibility to coordinate all Services required to close-
out the design and construction of the Project with the District and among Consultants. 

 
2. When the design and construction of the Project is complete, the District shall prepare and 

record with the County Recorder a Notice of Completion for the Project. 
 

3. Deliverables and Number of Copies 
 

a. Punch list; and 
 

b. Upon completion of the Project, all related Project documents, including As-Builts and 
Record Drawings.  These are the sole property of the District. 

 
4. Meetings 

 
During this phase, Architect shall attend, take part in, and, when indicated, conduct 
meetings, site visits, and workshops minimally on a bi-weekly basis. 



 

EXHIBIT B Page B - 1 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

EXHIBIT “B” 

CRITERIA AND BILLING FOR EXTRA SERVICES 

The following Extra Services to the Agreement shall be performed by Architect if needed and if 
authorized or requested by the District: 

A. Providing services as directed by the District that are not part of the Basic Services of this 
Agreement, or otherwise included within Exhibit “A.”    

B. Providing deliverables or other items in excess of the number indicated in Exhibit “A.”  
Before preparing, providing, sending, or invoicing for extra deliverables, Architect shall 
inform the District that expected deliverables may be in excess of the number indicated 
in Exhibit “A,” so that the District can procure the additional deliverables itself or direct 
Architect to procure the deliverables at the District’s expense or on the District’s account 
at a specific vendor. 

C. Making revisions in drawings, specifications, or other documents when such revisions are 
required by the enactment or revisions of codes, laws, or regulations subsequent to the 
preparation of the Conforming Set.  

D. Providing consultation concerning replacement of work damaged by fire or other cause 
during construction and furnishing services required in connection with replacement of 
that work. 

E. Providing services made necessary by the default of Contractor(s). 

F. In the absence of a final Certificate of Payment or Notice of Completion, providing 
services more than ninety (90) days after the date of completion of work by Contractor(s) 
and after Architect has completed all of its obligations and tasks under the Agreement. 

G. Providing services as an expert and/or witness for the District in any mediation, 
arbitration, and/or trial in which the Architect is (1) not a party, and (2) did not in any way 
cause the dispute that is being adjudicated. 

H. The following rates, which include overhead, administrative cost, and profit, shall be 
utilized in arriving at the fee for Extra Services and shall not be changed for the term of 
the Agreement. 

Job Title Hourly Rate 
Principal In Charge: $330 
Sr. Project Manager: $245 
Project Manager: $230 
Project Designer: $230 
Designer: $125 
Job Captain/Technical Leader: $190 



 

EXHIBIT B Page B - 2 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

Project Coordinator: $160 
Contract Administrator: $230 

I. The mark-up on any approved reimbursable item of Extra Services shall not exceed five 
percent (5%).  

1. The following items are approved for mark-up: 

a. Sub-consultant Invoices. 

2. Any approved item of Extra Services not identified in the above list may not be 
marked-up. 

J. Format and Content of Invoices (Extra Services Only) 

Architect acknowledges that the District requires Architect’s invoices to include detailed 
explanations of the Services performed.  For example, a six hour charge for “RFIs and CORs” 
is unacceptable and will not be payable.  A more detailed explanation, with specificity, is 
required.  This includes a separate entry for each RFI, PCO, CCD and change order.  For 
example, the following descriptions, in addition to complying with all other terms of this 
Agreement, would be payable.  The times indicated below are just placeholders: 

Review RFI 23; review plans and specifications for response to 
same; prepare responses to same and forward to contractor, 
district, construction manager, and project inspector.   

0.8 hours 

Review COR 8; review scope of same and plans and specifications 
for appropriateness of same; prepare draft change order and 
language for same. 

0.7 hours 

Review COR 11; review scope of same and plans and 
specifications for appropriateness of same; prepare rejection of 
COR 11 for review by district, CM, IOR. 

1.2 hours 

 

END OF EXHIBIT 



 

EXHIBIT C Page C - 1 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

EXHIBIT “C” 

SCHEDULE OF SERVICES 

A. Promptly after the execution of this Agreement, Architect shall prepare and submit for 
approval to the District a Schedule of Services showing the order in which Architect 
proposes to carry out Architect's Services (“Schedule of Services”).  The Schedule of Services 
shall apply to the completion of all Services listed hereunder within the times established by 
this Agreement.  The Schedule of Services shall be in the form of a progress chart clearly 
delineating all important increments and review dates.  Architect shall update the Schedule 
of Services on a monthly basis and deliver two (2) hard copies and one (1) electronic copy to 
the District along with the monthly billing. 

B. Architect shall complete Services required after written authorization from District to 
proceed, and as more specifically indicated below.  Excluded from this duration is the time 
associated with DSA review the Construction Documents back-check stage. 

1. 100% DD set for District Review Dec 12, 2023 
2. 50% CD set for District Review Jan 10, 2024 
3. 100% CD set for District Review Jan 19, 2024 
4. DSA Submittal Jan 26, 2024 
5. Bidding (Non-DSA approved set) Feb 2024 
6. Addenda for Bidding (Sharing DSA comments) March 2024 
7. Bids Due March 2024 
8. Construction Summer of 2024 

C. The durations stated above include the review periods of _7__ calendar days required by the 
District.  

D. All times to complete tasks set forth in this Exhibit are of the essence, as indicated in the 
Agreement.  If delays in the Schedule of Services are incurred as a result of the District’s 
inability to comply with requested meeting schedules, Architect shall maintain the right to 
request an adjustment in the Schedule of Services if deemed necessary to meet the 
deadlines set forth in this Exhibit.  If approved, those extensions shall be authorized in 
writing by the District. 

 

END OF EXHIBIT 



 

EXHIBIT D Page D - 1 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES   
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

EXHIBIT “D” 

PAYMENT SCHEDULE 

A. Compensation 

1. The payment of consideration to Architect as provided herein shall be full 
compensation for all of Architect’s Services incurred in the performance hereof, 
including, without limitation, all costs for personnel, travel, offices, per diem 
expenses, printing and shipping of deliverables in the quantities set forth in Exhibit 
“A,” or any other direct or indirect expenses incident to providing the Services.  
Except as expressly set forth in the Agreement and Exhibit “B,” there shall be no 
payment for extra costs or expenses. 

2. The total compensation to Architect shall be as stated in Article 6 of the Agreement. 

3. District shall pay Architect as follows for all Services contracted for under this 
Agreement: 

PERCENTAGE OF TOTAL FEE PER PHASE 
      Phase Phase Amount 
Pre-Design/Architectural Program Development Phase 2.5% 
Schematic Design Phase 10% 
Design Development Phase 17.5% 
Construction Documents Phase-Submittal to DSA 30% 
Approval by DSA 5% 
Bidding Phase 2% 
Construction Contract Administration Phase 23% 
Close Out Phase 10% 
 Generate Punch List 2%  
 Sign Off On Punch List 2%  
 Receive and Review All M & O Documents 2%  
 Filing All DSA Required Close Out Documents 2%  
 Receiving DSA Close Out, including DSA  
         approval of the final set of Record Drawings 2% 

 

TOTAL BASE COMPENSATION 100% 

B. Method of Payment 

1. Invoices shall be on a form approved by the District and are to be submitted to the 
District via the District’s authorized representative. 

2. Architect shall submit to District on a monthly basis documentation showing proof 
that payments were made to its Consultant(s). 



 

EXHIBIT D Page D - 2 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES   
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

3. Architect shall submit to the District for approval a copy of the Architect’s monthly 
pay request format. 

4. Upon receipt and approval of Architect’s invoices, the District agrees to make 
payments of undisputed amounts within thirty (30) days of receipt of the invoice as 
follows: 

a. Pre- Design/Architectural Program Development Phase: 

Monthly payments for the percentage of all Services complete up to ninety-
five percent (95%) of the fee for the Phase; one hundred percent (100%) 
payment upon acceptance and approval of the Pre-Design/Architectural 
Program.

b. For Schematic Design Phase: 

Monthly payments for the percentage of all Services complete up to ninety-
five percent (95%) of the fee for the Phase; one hundred percent (100%) 
payment upon acceptance and approval of the Schematic Design Phase by 
the District. 

c. For Design Development Phase:  

Monthly payments for the percentage of all Services complete up to ninety-
five percent (95%) of the fee for the Phase; one hundred percent (100%) 
payment upon acceptance and approval of the Design Development Phase 
by the District. 

d. For Construction Documents Phase: 

Monthly payments for percentage of all Services complete up to ninety-five 
percent (95%) of the fee for the Phase; one hundred percent (100%) 
payment upon acceptance and approval of the Construction Documents 
Phase by the District.  

e. For Bidding Phase: 

Monthly payments for the percentage of all Services complete up to ninety-
five percent (95%) of the fee for the Phase; one hundred percent (100%) 
payment upon the District’s award of the bid. 

f. For Construction Contract Administration Phase: 

Monthly payments for the percentage of all Services complete up to ninety-
five percent (95%) of the fee for the Phase; one hundred percent (100%) 
payment upon the District’s notice of completion. 



 

EXHIBIT D Page D - 3 

AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 

SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

g. For Close Out: 

Lump sum payment no sooner than thirty-five (35) days and no later than 
forty-five (45) days after completion of all items in this Phase. 

 
END OF EXHIBIT 



 

EXHIBIT E Page E - 1 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

EXHIBIT “E” 

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 
 

A. Architect shall procure, prior to commencement of the Services of this Agreement and 
maintain for the duration of the Agreement, insurance against claims for injuries to persons 
or damages to property which may arise from or in connection with the performance of the 
Services hereunder by the Architect, his agents, representatives, employees and 
Consultant(s).  Architect’s liabilities, including but not limited to Architect’s indemnity or 
defense obligations, under this Agreement shall not be deemed limited in any way to the 
insurance coverage required herein. Maintenance of specified insurance coverage is a 
material element of this Agreement and Architect’s failure to maintain or renew coverage or 
to provide evidence of renewal during the term of this Agreement, as required or when 
requested, may be treated by the District as a material breach of contract. 

B. Minimum Scope and Limits of Insurance:  Coverage shall be at least as broad as the 
following scopes and limits. Umbrella or Excess Liability policies are acceptable where the 
need for higher liability limits is noted and shall provide liability coverages that at least 
follow form over the underlying insurance requirements where necessary for Commercial 
General Liability, Commercial Automobile Liability, Employers’ Liability, and other liability 
coverage (except Professional Liability) designated under this Section B – Insurance 
Requirements.” Minimum Scope of Insurance: 

1. Commercial General Liability.  Two million dollars ($2,000,000) per occurrence for 
bodily injury, personal injury and property damage.  If Commercial General Liability 
or other form with a general aggregate limit is used, either the general aggregate 
limit shall apply separately to each project/location or the general aggregate limit 
shall be twice the required occurrence limit.  

2. Commercial Automobile Liability. Two million dollars ($2,000,000) per accident for 
bodily injury and property damage. 

 
3. Workers' Compensation Liability.  For all of the Architect’s employees who are 

subject to this Agreement and to the extent required by the applicable state or 
federal law, Architect shall keep in full force and effect, a Workers' Compensation 
policy.   

 
4. Employers’ Liability.  For all of the Architect’s employees who are subject to this 

Agreement, Architect shall keep in full force and effect, an Employers’ Liability policy 
with minimum liability coverage of two million dollars ($2,000,000) per occurrence.   

 
5. Professional Liability.  This insurance shall cover the prime design professional and 

his/her consultant(s) on a Claims Made basis for two Million Dollars ($2,000,000) 
aggregate limit subject to no more than two hundred thousand dollars ($200,000) 
per claim deductible, coverage to continue through completion of construction plus 
two (2) years thereafter. 

C. District reserves the right to modify the limits and coverages described herein, with 
appropriate credits or changes to be negotiated for such changes.  



 

EXHIBIT E Page E - 2 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

D. Deductibles and Self-Insured Retention:  Architect shall inform the District in writing if any 
deductibles or self-insured retention exceeds two hundred thousand dollars ($200,000).  At 
the option of the District, either:  

1. The District can accept the higher deductible; 

2. Architect’s insurer shall reduce or eliminate such deductibles or self-insured retention 
as respects the District, its officers, officials, employees and volunteers; or  

E. Other Insurance Provisions:  The general liability and automobile liability policies are to 
contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions:  

1. The District, its representatives, consultants, trustees, officers, officials, employees, 
agents, and volunteers (“Additional Insureds”) are to be covered as additional 
insureds as respects liability arising out of activities performed by or on behalf of the 
Architect; Instruments of Service and completed operations of the Architect; premises 
owned, occupied or used by the Architect; or automobiles owned, leased, hired or 
borrowed by the Architect.  The coverage shall contain no special limitations on the 
scope of protection afforded to the Additional Insureds.  

 
2. For any claims related to the projects, Architect’s insurance coverage shall be primary 

insurance as respects the Additional Insureds.  Any insurance or self-insurance 
maintained by the Additional Insureds shall be in excess of Architect’s insurance and 
shall not contribute with it.  

 
3. Architect shall provide an endorsement that the insurer waives the right of 

subrogation against District and its respective elected officials, officers, employees, 
agents, representatives, consultants, trustees, and volunteers. 

 
4. Architect’s insurance shall apply separately to each insured against whom claim is 

made or suit is brought, except with respect to the limits of the insurer's liability.  

5. Any failure to comply with reporting or other provisions of the policies including 
breaches of warranties shall not affect coverage provided to the Additional Insureds.  

 
6. Each insurance policy required by this clause shall be endorsed to state that coverage 

shall not be suspended, voided, canceled, reduced in coverage or in limits except 
after thirty (30) days prior written notice by certified mail, return receipt requested, 
has been given to the District.  

 
7. Architect shall pay all insurance premiums, including any charges for required waivers 

of subrogation or the endorsement of additional insureds. If Architect fails to 
maintain insurance, District may take out comparable insurance, and deduct and 
retain amount of premium from any sums due Architect under the Agreement. 



 

EXHIBIT E Page E - 3 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

8. Architect shall require all subconsultants to maintain the level of insurance Architect 
deems appropriate with respect to the consultant’s scope of the Work unless 
otherwise indicated in the Agreement. Architect shall cause the subconsultants to 
furnish proof thereof to District within ten (10) days of District’s request. Should 
Architect not require subconsultants to provide the same level of insurance as is 
required of Architect, as provided in this Agreement, Architect is not relieved of its 
indemnity obligations to District or fulfilling its insurance requirements as provided in 
this Agreement. 

F. Acceptability of Insurers:  Insurance is to be placed with insurers admitted in California 
with a current A.M. Best's rating of no less than A: VII.  Architect shall inform the District in 
writing if any of its insurer(s) have an A.M. Best’s rating less than A: VII.  At the option of the 
District, the District may either:  

1. Accept the lower rating; or 

2. Require Architect to procure insurance from another insurer. 

G. Verification of Coverage:  Prior to commencing with its provision of Services under this 
Agreement, Architect shall furnish District with:  

1. Certificates of insurance showing maintenance of the required insurance coverages; 
and 

 
2. Original endorsements affecting general liability and automobile liability coverage.  

The endorsements are to be signed by a person authorized by that insurer to bind 
coverages on its behalf.  All endorsements are to be received and approved by the 
District before Services commence.  

H. Copy of Insurance Policy(ies): Upon the District’s request, Architect will furnish District with 
a copy of all insurance policies related to its provision of Services under this Agreement. 

 
 

 
 

END OF EXHIBIT 
 
 



 

EXHIBIT F Page F - 4 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

EXHIBIT “F” 
 

ROOFING PROJECT CERTIFICATION  
 

This form shall be executed by all architects, engineers, or roofing consultants who provide 
professional services related to the repair or replacement of a roof of a public school where the 
project is for repair of more than 25% of the roof or that has a total cost more than $21,000 (“roofing 
project”) and submitted to the District prior to the time professional services are engaged.  Not 
applicable to a school district with an average daily attendance less than 2,500. 
  
Certification of: □ Architect □ Engineer 
 □ Roofing Consultant □ Other      

   
I,     ,         , certify that I have  
       [Name]      [Name of Firm] 
not offered, given, or agreed to give, received, accepted, or agreed to accept, any gift, contribution, 
or any financial incentive whatsoever to or from any person in connection with the roofing project 
contract.  As used in this certification, “person” means any natural person, business, partnership, 
corporation, union, committee, club, or other organization, entity, or group of individuals.  
 
Furthermore, I,     ,                ,  
           [Name]      [Name of Firm]   
certify that I do not have, and throughout the duration of the contract, I will not have, any financial 
relationship in connection with the performance of this contract with any architect, engineer, roofing 
consultant, materials manufacturer, distributor, or vendor that is not disclosed below.  
 
I,     ,             , have the 
      [Name]       [Name of Firm] 

following financial relationships with an architect, engineer, roofing consultant, materials 
manufacturer, distributor, or vendor, or other person in connection with the following roofing project 
contract (provide Name and Address of Building, and Contract Date and Number):  
 
              
 
              
 
              
 
              
 
              
 
              
 



 

EXHIBIT F Page F - 5 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

By my signature below, I hereby certify that, to the best of my knowledge, the contents of this 
disclosure are true, or are believed to be true.  I further certify on behalf of the Firm that I am aware 
of section 3000 et seq. of the California Public Contract Code, and the sections referenced therein 
regarding the penalties for providing false information or failing to disclose a financial relationship 
in this disclosure.  I further certify that I am authorized to make this certification on behalf of the 
Firm. 
 
Date:              
 
Proper Name of Firm:           
 
Signature:             
 
Print Name:             
 
Title:              
 
 
 

END OF EXHIBIT 



 

  
EXHIBIT G Page G - 1 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

EXHIBIT “G” 
 

IRAN CONTRACTING ACT CERTIFICATION  
(Public Contract Code Sections 2202-2208) 

PROJECT/CONTRACT NO.:  Matsuyama ES Campus Renewal  / 0242-468 between the Sacramento 
City Unified School District (“District”) and HMC Architects (“Consultant”) (“Contract” or “Project”). 

Prior to bidding on or submitting a proposal for a contract for goods or services of $1,000,000 or 
more, the bidder/proposer must submit this certification pursuant to Public Contract Code section 
2204.   

The proposer must complete ONLY ONE of the following two options.  To complete OPTION 1, 
check the corresponding box and complete the certification below. To complete OPTION 2, check 
the corresponding box, complete the certification below, and attach documentation demonstrating 
the exemption approval.   

 OPTION 1. Proposer is not on the current list of persons engaged in investment activities 
in Iran created by the California Department of General Services (“DGS”) pursuant to Public 
Contract Code section 2203(b), and we are not a financial institution extending twenty million 
dollars ($20,000,000) or more in credit to another person, for 45 days or more, if that other 
person will use the credit to provide goods or services in the energy sector in Iran and is 
identified on the current list of persons engaged in investment activities in Iran created by 
DGS.  

 OPTION 2. Proposer has received a written exemption from the certification requirement 
pursuant to Public Contract Code sections 2203(c) and (d). A copy of the written 
documentation demonstrating the exemption approval is included with our proposal.   

CERTIFICATION: 

I, the official named below, CERTIFY UNDER PENALTY OF PERJURY, that I am duly authorized to 
legally bind the bidder/proposer to the OPTION selected above. This certification is made under the 
laws of the State of California. 

Vendor Name/Financial Institution (Printed) Federal ID Number (or n/a) 

By (Authorized Signature) 

Printed Name and Title of Person Signing Date Executed 

END OF DOCUMENT 



 

EXHIBIT H Page H - 1 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 



DocuSign Envelope ID: FDBBCFB8-CF22-46BB-9B3D-668526F9CEB5



DocuSign Envelope ID: FDBBCFB8-CF22-46BB-9B3D-668526F9CEB5



DocuSign Envelope ID: FDBBCFB8-CF22-46BB-9B3D-668526F9CEB5



DocuSign Envelope ID: FDBBCFB8-CF22-46BB-9B3D-668526F9CEB5



DocuSign Envelope ID: FDBBCFB8-CF22-46BB-9B3D-668526F9CEB5



DocuSign Envelope ID: FDBBCFB8-CF22-46BB-9B3D-668526F9CEB5

10/16/2023



DocuSign Envelope ID: FDBBCFB8-CF22-46BB-9B3D-668526F9CEB5



DocuSign Envelope ID: FDBBCFB8-CF22-46BB-9B3D-668526F9CEB5



ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?

INSR ADDL SUBR
LTR INSD WVD

PRODUCER CONTACT
NAME:

FAXPHONE
(A/C, No):(A/C, No, Ext):

E-MAIL
ADDRESS:

INSURER A :

INSURED INSURER B :

INSURER C :

INSURER D :

INSURER E :

INSURER F :

POLICY NUMBER POLICY EFF POLICY EXPTYPE OF INSURANCE LIMITS(MM/DD/YYYY) (MM/DD/YYYY)

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES  (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

EACH OCCURRENCE $
DAMAGE TO RENTEDCLAIMS-MADE OCCUR $PREMISES (Ea occurrence)

MED EXP (Any one person) $

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY $

GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE $
PRO-POLICY LOC PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGGJECT 

OTHER: $
COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT

$(Ea accident)
ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person) $
OWNED SCHEDULED

BODILY INJURY (Per accident) $AUTOS ONLY AUTOS
HIRED NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE

$AUTOS ONLY AUTOS ONLY (Per accident)

$

OCCUR EACH OCCURRENCE
CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE $

DED RETENTION $
PER OTH-
STATUTE ER

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE $
If yes, describe under

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMITDESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

Y / N
N / A

(Mandatory in NH)

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE    EXPIRATION    DATE    THEREOF,    NOTICE   WILL   BE   DELIVERED   IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

THIS  IS  TO  CERTIFY  THAT  THE  POLICIES  OF  INSURANCE  LISTED  BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED.    NOTWITHSTANDING  ANY  REQUIREMENT,  TERM  OR  CONDITION  OF  ANY  CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE  MAY  BE  ISSUED  OR  MAY  PERTAIN,  THE  INSURANCE  AFFORDED  BY  THE  POLICIES  DESCRIBED  HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

THIS  CERTIFICATE  IS  ISSUED  AS  A  MATTER  OF  INFORMATION  ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE  DOES  NOT  AFFIRMATIVELY  OR  NEGATIVELY  AMEND,  EXTEND  OR  ALTER  THE  COVERAGE  AFFORDED  BY THE POLICIES
BELOW.    THIS  CERTIFICATE  OF  INSURANCE  DOES  NOT  CONSTITUTE  A  CONTRACT  BETWEEN  THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT:    If  the  certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If  SUBROGATION  IS  WAIVED,  subject  to  the  terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement.  A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION.  All rights reserved.ACORD 25 (2016/03)

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

$

$

$

$

$

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

9/1/2023

(916) 380-5300 (916) 380-5206

18058

Nu Art Education, Inc. DBA Northern California School of the 
Arts
803 Vallejo Way
Sacramento, CA 95818

A 1,000,000

X PHPK2026189-003 9/1/2023 9/1/2024 100,000
Professional Liablit 2,500

1,000,000
3,000,000
3,000,000

ABUSE CONDUCT 300,000

RE: Expanded Learning Program, School Outreach program in classrooms for Theater Arts/SEL Integrated classes - Theater Productions
Additional Insured per the attached endorsement(s):Sacramento City Unified School District its officers, agents and employees

Sacramento City Unified School District
5735 47th Ave
Sacramento, CA 95824

NUARTED-01 JTHEIS

Bender Insurance Solutions
516 Gibson Drive
Suite 240
Roseville, CA 95678

Philadelphia Indemnity Insurance Company

X
X

X

X

DocuSign Envelope ID: FDBBCFB8-CF22-46BB-9B3D-668526F9CEB5



COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY
CG 20 26 04 13

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY.  PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.        

CG 20 26 04 13 © Insurance Services Office, Inc., 2012 Page 1 of 1

ADDITIONAL INSURED – DESIGNATED 
PERSON OR ORGANIZATION

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

SCHEDULE

Name Of Additional Insured Person(s) Or Organization(s):
Sacramento City Unified School District, its officers, agents and employees 
5735 47th Ave
Sacramento CA 95824-4528
Information required to complete this Schedule, if not shown above, will be shown in the Declarations.

A. Section II – Who Is An Insured is amended to
include as an additional insured the person(s) or
organization(s) shown in the Schedule, but only
with respect to liability for "bodily injury", "property
damage" or "personal and advertising injury"
caused, in whole or in part, by your acts or
omissions or the acts or omissions of those acting
on your behalf:
1. In the performance of your ongoing operations;

or
2. In connection with your premises owned by or

rented to you.
However:
1. The insurance afforded to such additional

insured only applies to the extent permitted by
law; and

2. If coverage provided to the additional insured is
required by a contract or agreement, the
insurance afforded to such additional insured
will not be broader than that which you are
required by the contract or agreement to
provide for such additional insured.

B. With respect to the insurance afforded to these
additional insureds, the following is added to
Section III – Limits Of Insurance:
If coverage provided to the additional insured is
required by a contract or agreement, the most we
will pay on behalf of the additional insured is the
amount of insurance:
1. Required by the contract or agreement; or
2. Available under the applicable Limits of

Insurance shown in the Declarations;
whichever is less.
This endorsement shall not increase the
applicable Limits of Insurance shown in the
Declarations.

POLICY NUMBER: PHPK2026189-004

DocuSign Envelope ID: FDBBCFB8-CF22-46BB-9B3D-668526F9CEB5



ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?

INSR ADDL SUBR
LTR INSD WVD

PRODUCER CONTACT
NAME:

FAXPHONE
(A/C, No):(A/C, No, Ext):

E-MAIL
ADDRESS:

INSURER A :

INSURED INSURER B :

INSURER C :

INSURER D :

INSURER E :

INSURER F :

POLICY NUMBER POLICY EFF POLICY EXPTYPE OF INSURANCE LIMITS(MM/DD/YYYY) (MM/DD/YYYY)

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES  (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

EACH OCCURRENCE $
DAMAGE TO RENTEDCLAIMS-MADE OCCUR $PREMISES (Ea occurrence)

MED EXP (Any one person) $

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY $

GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE $
PRO-POLICY LOC PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGGJECT 

OTHER: $
COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT

$(Ea accident)
ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person) $
OWNED SCHEDULED

BODILY INJURY (Per accident) $AUTOS ONLY AUTOS
HIRED NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE

$AUTOS ONLY AUTOS ONLY (Per accident)

$

OCCUR EACH OCCURRENCE
CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE $

DED RETENTION $
PER OTH-
STATUTE ER

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE $
If yes, describe under

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMITDESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

Y / N
N / A

(Mandatory in NH)

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE    EXPIRATION    DATE    THEREOF,    NOTICE   WILL   BE   DELIVERED   IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

THIS  IS  TO  CERTIFY  THAT  THE  POLICIES  OF  INSURANCE  LISTED  BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED.    NOTWITHSTANDING  ANY  REQUIREMENT,  TERM  OR  CONDITION  OF  ANY  CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE  MAY  BE  ISSUED  OR  MAY  PERTAIN,  THE  INSURANCE  AFFORDED  BY  THE  POLICIES  DESCRIBED  HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

THIS  CERTIFICATE  IS  ISSUED  AS  A  MATTER  OF  INFORMATION  ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE  DOES  NOT  AFFIRMATIVELY  OR  NEGATIVELY  AMEND,  EXTEND  OR  ALTER  THE  COVERAGE  AFFORDED  BY THE POLICIES
BELOW.    THIS  CERTIFICATE  OF  INSURANCE  DOES  NOT  CONSTITUTE  A  CONTRACT  BETWEEN  THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT:    If  the  certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If  SUBROGATION  IS  WAIVED,  subject  to  the  terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement.  A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION.  All rights reserved.ACORD 25 (2016/03)

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

$

$

$

$

$

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

9/1/2023

(916) 380-5300 (916) 380-5206

18058

Nu Art Education, Inc.
803 Vallejo Way
Sacramento, CA 95818

A 1,000,000

X PHPK2026189-003 9/1/2023 9/1/2024 100,000
Professional Liablit 2,500

1,000,000
3,000,000
3,000,000

ABUSE CONDUCT 300,000

RE: Elder Creek Elementary / 7934 Lemon Hill Ave Sacramento, CA 95824 
Additional Insured per attached endorsement(s): Sacramento City Unified School District as required by written contract.

Sacramento City Unified School District
5735 47th Ave.
Sacramento, CA 95824

NUARTED-01 JTHEIS

Bender Insurance Solutions
516 Gibson Drive
Suite 240
Roseville, CA 95678

Philadelphia Indemnity Insurance Company

X
X

X

X

DocuSign Envelope ID: FDBBCFB8-CF22-46BB-9B3D-668526F9CEB5



PI-FW-009 (06/11)

Page 1 of 1

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY

Blanket Additional Insured Endorsement

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

SECTION II – WHO IS AN INSURED is amended to include the following as an additional insured, but
only with respect to liability arising out of your operations, and in accordance with a required Certificate
of Insurance:

1. Managers, Owners or Lessors of the Premises Leased, Rented, or Loaned to You, but only with
respect to that part of the premises leased, rented or loaned to you subject to the following additional
exclusions:

This insurance does not apply to:

a. Any “occurrence” which takes place after you cease to be a tenant in that premises;

b. Structural alterations, new construction or demolition operations performed by or on behalf of the
manager, owner or lessor of the premises;

c. Any design defect or structural maintenance of the premises or loss caused by a premises defect.

2. Lessor of Leased Equipment, but only with respect to liability for “bodily injury”, “property damage”
or “personal and advertising injury” caused, in whole or in part, by your maintenance, operation or use
of equipment leased to you by such person(s) or organization(s) subject to the following additional
exclusions:

This insurance does not apply to:

Any “occurrence” which takes place after the equipment lease expires.

3. Sponsors, but only with respect to their liability as a sponsor to you.

4. Co-Promoters, but only with respect to their liability as a co – promoter to you

5. Subcontractors

6. Grantor of Franchise, but only with respect to their liability as grantor of franchise to you.

With respect to any additional insured covered under this policy, this insurance does not apply to the sole
negligence of such additional insured.

DocuSign Envelope ID: FDBBCFB8-CF22-46BB-9B3D-668526F9CEB5



SUPPLEMENTAL AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES

Between

SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
Youth Development Support Services

And

Kodely

The Sacramento City Unified School District (“District” or “SCUSD”) and Kodely (“Contractor”)
collectively hereinafter referred to as “the Parties” hereby enter into this Agreement for program services
(“Agreement”) dated October 2, 2023 (“Effective Date”) with respect to the following recitals:

RECITALS

WHEREAS, the District desires the Contractor to support bridging the gap between tech literacy, design
thinking and real-world skills through the power of play and curiosity for students during the Sacramento
City Unified School District’s Expanded Learning Programs at Abraham Lincoln, Elder Creek, James
Marshal, Leonardo Da Vinci, Leataata Floyde, Mark Twain, Will C Wood, OW Erlewine, and Woodbine;
and

WHEREAS, the ultimate goals of the Agreement are (1) meet with at least 20 students per session for 32
weeks at the nine school sites mentioned above; (2) students will engage in either Prototyping in Play,
Arcade 101, or Little Entrepreneurs for TK/Kinder students; (3) Coding with Empathy, BTS Game
Design Level 1 for 1st and 2nd graders; (4) Behind the Scenes of Game Design Level 2 for 3rd - 5th
graders; (5) or From Idea to Mobile App, Designing Your Own Tech Startup for 6th graders; (6) sessions
will be 60 minutes in length, two sessions per week at each school site for 32 weeks; and type of program
will be based on school site need and grade level; and

WHEREAS, the Contractor is specially trained, experienced and competent to provide the services;

NOW THEREFORE, THE PARTIES AGREE AS FOLLOWS:

All services will be provided in-person subject to federal, state, and local health and safety
regulations pertaining to COVID-19. The Contractor and all of its employees who will be working
with students in person must abide by all local, California, and federal applicable law, including
FERPA, 20 U.S.C. 1232g, and Ed. Code section 49060 et seq., which limits personally identifiable
student records without parental consent with limited exceptions. All employees who will be
working with students must undergo a criminal background investigation by SCUSD.

MOU SCUSD-2023-24 Youth Development Support Services & Supplemental Provider Page 1 of 7



A. Roles and Responsibilities.

i. Kodely Program shall adhere to the scope of work outlined in this agreement. Kodely
Program will provide staff, and coordinate across specified program sites. Kodely Program will work
with the SCUSD Youth Development Support Services staff in program implementation. Prior to any off
site activities, Kodely will request approval from Youth Development area specialist and complete all
needed school district documentation. Kodely Program will provide site management and supervision
with a ratio of 20 to 1 students/adults and maintain at least 20 students in each class at each site.

ii. District shall provide contract management, administrative oversight, coordination of
activities and logistics for the program and additional components. District shall provide and coordinate
space and location of all trainings, events, and programs. District shall coordinate the convening of all
contractors to facilitate program planning and modifications. District shall coordinate the evaluation
process and facilitate the evaluation team.

B. Payment. For providing the obligations pursuant to this Agreement, Kodely Program shall invoice
the District in three installments (November, February and May) not to exceed the total amount of
$115,776. The final installment shall not be invoiced until completion of all obligations pursuant to this
Agreement and completion of Final Impact Report.

C. Independent Contractor. While engaged in providing the services provided in this Agreement and
otherwise performing as set forth in this Agreement, Kodely Program and each of Kodely Program
employees, is an independent contractor, and not an officer, employee, agent, partner, or joint venturer of
the District.

D. Insurance Requirements. Prior to commencement of services and during the life of this
Agreement, Vendor shall maintain commercial general liability insurance with coverage at least as broad
as Insurance Services Office (ISO) form CG 00 01, in an amount not less than two million dollars
($2,000,000) per occurrence for bodily injury, personal injury, and property damage, including without
limitation, blanket contractual liability. If a general aggregate limit applies, either the general aggregate
limit shall apply separately to this project/location or the general aggregate limit shall be twice the
required occurrence limit. Vendor’s general liability policies shall be primary and shall not seek
contribution from the District’s coverage and be endorsed with a form at least as broad as ISO form CG
20 10 or CG 20 26 to provide that District and its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers shall be
additional insureds under such policies.
● Sexual Abuse and Molestation Insurance

a. Sexual Abuse and Molestation Insurance is required with limits not less than one
million dollars ($1,000,000) per occurrence. This insurance shall cover potential
claims of sexual abuse or molestation.

b. The Sexual Abuse and Molestation coverage must either be included under a General
Liability policy or obtained in a separate policy. Any policy inception date, continuity
date, or retroactive date must be before the effective date of this agreement, and
Contractor agrees to maintain continuous coverage through a period no less than
three years after completion of the services required by this agreement.

MOU SCUSD-2023-24 Youth Development Support Services & Supplemental Provider Page 2 of 7



Please note: The copy of the insurance must be submitted with the signed contract.

E. Fingerprinting Requirements. As required by SCUSD, all individuals that come into contact with
SCUSD students must undergo a criminal background investigation by SCUSD. Kodely agrees that any
employee it provides to the District shall be subject to the fingerprinting and TB requirements set forth in
the California Education Code. The agency will be notified upon clearance. Upon receipt of a subsequent
arrest notification from DOJ, SCUSD shall within 48 hours notify Kodely of such a subsequent arrest
notification. If an employee is disqualified from working for District pursuant to the requirements of the
California Education Code, Kodely agrees to provide a replacement employee within 15 days of
receiving notification that the previous employee has been disqualified. Failure to adhere to the terms of
this provision is grounds for termination of the Agreement.

Kodely further agrees and certifies that any employee providing services directly to any student(s) of
SCUSD whether qualifying as a Mandated Reporter as defined by California Penal Code §11165.7(a), or
not, shall be provided annual training on child abuse and mandated reporting of child abuse or neglect
utilizing an evidence-based training method which includes training on how to recognize conduct of
adults which may trigger reasonable suspicion of abuse of children, i.e., “red-flag” or “grooming”
behaviors.

F. Confidential Records and Data. Each Party shall not disclose confidential records received from
the other Party, including student records pursuant to FERPA, 20 U.S.C. § 1232g, et seq., and California
Education Code Section 49060, et seq. Kodely shall maintain the confidentiality of student or pupil
records and shall not disclose such records to any third parties without the express written approval of the
District. In the event a Party receives a request for disclosure of such confidential records, whether under
the California Public Records Act, a duly-issued subpoena, or otherwise, said Party shall tender the
request to the other Party who shall be responsible for addressing said request, including the defense of its
claim of confidentiality. The Party asserting its claim of confidentiality shall hold harmless and defend
the Party receiving such a request from any liability, claim, loss, cost, attorney’s fees and damages, as
adjudged by a court of competent jurisdiction, arising out of a refusal to disclose such confidential
records.

G. Period of Agreement. The term of this Agreement shall be from October 2, 2023 through June 14,
2024. The District may terminate this Contract with cause upon written notice of intention to terminate
for cause. A Termination for Cause shall include: (a) material violation of this Contract by the
Contractor; (b) any act by the Contractor exposing the District to liability to others for personal injury or
property damage; or (c) the Contractor is adjudged a bankrupt; Contractor makes a general assignment
for the benefit of creditors, or a receiver is appointed on account of the Contractor's insolvency.

Ten (10) calendar days after service of such notice, the condition or violation shall cease, or satisfactory
arrangements for the correction thereof be made, or this Contract shall cease and terminate. In the event of
such termination, the District may secure the required services from another contractor. If the cost to the
District exceeds the cost of providing the service pursuant to this Contract, the excess cost shall be charged
to and collected from the Contractor. The foregoing provisions are in addition to and not a limitation of
any other rights or remedies available to the District. Written notice by the District shall be deemed given
when received by the other party or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner.

H. Indemnity.

i. Kodely Program shall indemnify and hold harmless the District, including the officers,
employees, agents, and volunteers of the District, from and against all claims, damages, losses, expenses,

MOU SCUSD-2023-24 Youth Development Support Services & Supplemental Provider Page 3 of 7



including reasonable attorney fees and costs, arising out of the performance of the terms of this
Agreement, caused in whole or in part by any negligent act or omission or willful misconduct of Kodely
Program, any subcontractor, anyone directly or indirectly employed by Kodely Program or anyone for
whose acts any of them may be liable, except to the extent caused by the negligent act or omission or
willful misconduct of the District.

ii. Sacramento City Unified School District shall indemnify and hold harmless Kodely
Program, including the officers, employees, agents, and volunteers of Kodely Program from and against
all claims, damages, losses, expenses, including reasonable attorney fees and costs, arising out of the
performance of the terms of this Agreement, caused in whole or in part by any negligent act or omission
or willful misconduct of the District, any subcontractor, anyone directly or indirectly employed the
District or anyone for whose acts any of them may be liable, except to the extent caused by the negligent
act or omission or willful misconduct of Kodely Program.

I. Severability. If any provisions of this Agreement are held to be contrary to law by final legislative
act or a court of competent jurisdiction inclusive of appeals, if any, such provisions will not be deemed
valid and subsisting, except to the extent permitted by law, but all other provisions will continue in full
force and effect.

J. Applicable Law/Venue. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with
the laws of the State of California. If any action is instituted to enforce or interpret this Agreement,
venue shall only be in the appropriate state or federal court having venue over matters arising in
Sacramento County, California, provided that nothing in this Agreement shall constitute a waiver of
immunity to suit by the District.

K. Assignment. This Agreement is made by and between Kodely Program and the District and any
attempted assignment by them, their successors or assigns shall be void unless approved in writing by all
Parties.

L. Entire Agreement. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between
Kodely Program and District with respect to the subject matter hereof and supersedes all previous
negotiations, proposals, commitments, writing advertisements publications and understandings of any
nature whatsoever with respect to the same subject matter unless expressly included in this Agreement.
Kodely Program hereby waives the presumption that any ambiguities in a contract are read against the
drafter of same. The Parties further agree and represent that each of them are the drafters of every part of
this Agreement.

M. Amendments. The terms of this Agreement shall not be amended in any manner except by
written agreement signed by the parties.

N. Execution In Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts such that the
signatures of the Parties may appear on separate signature pages. Facsimile or photocopy signatures shall
be deemed original signatures for all purposes.

O. Authority. Each party represents that they have the authority to enter into this Agreement and that
the undersigned are authorized to execute this Agreement.

P. Approval/Ratification by Board of Education. This Agreement shall be subject to
approval/ratification by the District's Governing Board of Education and/or designee.

MOU SCUSD-2023-24 Youth Development Support Services & Supplemental Provider Page 4 of 7



Q. Nondiscrimination. It is the policy of the District that in connection with all services performed
under this contract, there will be no discrimination against any prospective or active employee engaged in
the work because of race, color, ancestry, national origin, handicap, religious creed, sex, gender identity,
sexual orientation, age or marital status. Contractor agrees to comply with applicable federal and
California laws including, but not limited to, the California Fair Employment and Housing Act.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have caused this Agreement to be executed in duplicate.

DISTRICT:

By: _________________________________________ ___________________
DateJanea Marking, Chief Business Officer

CONTRACTOR:

By: _________________________________________ ___________________
Kodely Date

Print Name: ________________________________

Title: _____________________________________

Address: __________________________________

Phone Number: _____________________________

Email: _____________________________________

MOU SCUSD-2023-24 Youth Development Support Services & Supplemental Provider Page 5 of 7

Sri Narayanan
9/21/23

Sri Narayanan
Sri Narayanan

Sri Narayanan
Managing Partner

Sri Narayanan
1259 Lakeside Drive, Sunnyvale, CA 94085

Sri Narayanan
6097514002

Sri Narayanan
sri@kodely.io



MOU- SCUSD Youth Development Support Services & Kodely
Scope of Work 2023-24 School Year
Attachment A

Description of
Service

Kodely
Deliverable(s)/Activities

Timeframe

Program Planning:
In collaboration with
SCUSD and other
partners, Kodely
will plan,
implement, modify
and evaluate Kodely
programming
outlined in the MOU
including:

● Participate in 3 mandatory YDSS Supplemental Provider Meetings
● The Kodely staff will follow all the guidelines of SCUSD’s

volunteer protocol. SCUSD YDSS will provide a copy of the
volunteer protocol to the agency.

● The supplemental provider staff will always work in the presence
of main provider staff at the site.

● Integrate the goals of the SCUSD Strategic Plan as follows:
1. College, career and life ready graduates
2. Safe, emotionally healthy and engaged students
3. Family and community empowerment
4. Operational excellence

● Promote the SCUSD vision that every student is a responsible,
productive citizen in a diverse and competitive world.

Meeting dates:

November 2023
February 2024
May 2024

Program
Management &
Facilitation:
Kodely will provide
staff, coordination
and programming
across designated
sites, and will also:

● Communicate regularly with SCUSD lead staff regarding project
progress

● Coordinate with site Expanded Learning Program Manager
regarding program delivery, field trips and/or additional student
activities

● Facilitate parent involvement in events/activities for parents of
program participants

● Facilitate communication between parents of participants and the
school regarding announcements and information that pertains to
the program participants

● Participate in other SCUSD YDSS events
● Other deliverables as agreed upon by Kodely and the District

On-going

Program
Evaluation:
Kodely will conduct
ongoing program
assessment and
evaluation, and will
aslo:

● Maintain and provide to the SCUSD lead staff timely enrollment
rosters and attendance records. Invoices for payment will only be
processed once all documentation is submitted to designated
YDSS staff.

● Report to SCUSD lead staff regarding progress on overall
outcomes

● Provide mid-year update at the end of the semester
(January/February 2024)

● Provide final impact report on the impact and overall outcomes of
the program on or before June 14, 2024, which should include
results of pre/post tests showing student progress

Ongoing

MOU SCUSD-2023-24 Youth Development Support Services & Supplemental Provider Page 6 of 7



Description of
Service

SCUSD Deliverable(s)/Activities Timeframe

Program Planning
Program;
Management;
Program Evaluation
YDSS will:

● SCUSD YDSS will pay Kodely Program the total amount of
$115,776.

● Train Kodely Program staff on SCUSD protocols, mission,
vision, and structure. YDSS will provide resources for Mandated
Reporter Training.

● Provide information about Kodely’s program scope and
deliverables to site administration

● Provide classroom space for the program at each designated site.
● Assist in recruiting participants for the program through school

advertising and outreach
● Collect and share data per mutual agreement to be included in

evaluation reports, to the extent permitted by law and regulation

MOU SCUSD-2023-24 Youth Development Support Services & Supplemental Provider Page 7 of 7



9/25/2023

ICA Insurance Agency Inc
2055 Anglo Drive Suite 200

Colorado Springs CO 80918

Violet Kasa
(719)528-5400 (719)528-1564

violet@icainsurance.com

Kodely LLC
1259 Lakeside Dr
Apt 2210
Sunnyvale CA 94085

Markel Insurance Company 38970

CL2392531101

A

X

X

X

X Abuse Per Occur $1,000,000

X CCG22259-01 9/22/2023 9/22/2024

2,000,000

100,000

10,000

2,000,000

4,000,000

4,000,000

ABUSE AND MOLESTATION AGG 2,000,000

A Accidental CCH22260-1 9/22/2023 9/22/2024 Limit per Occurrence $250,000

Sacramento City Unified School District is included as Additional Insured with regard to General
Liability, Abuse, Molestation, or Expoitation, as per written contract.

Sacramento City Unified School District
5735 Forty-seventh Ave
Sacramento, CA  95824

Violet Kasa/KASA

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

© 1988-2014 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.
ACORD 25 (2014/01)

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

CANCELLATION

DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

LOCJECT
PRO-

POLICY

GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

OCCURCLAIMS-MADE

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

PREMISES (Ea occurrence) $
DAMAGE TO RENTED
EACH OCCURRENCE $

MED EXP (Any one person) $

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY $

GENERAL AGGREGATE $

PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG $

$RETENTIONDED

CLAIMS-MADE

OCCUR

$

AGGREGATE $

EACH OCCURRENCE $UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES  (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)

INSR
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE POLICY NUMBER

POLICY EFF
(MM/DD/YYYY)

POLICY EXP
(MM/DD/YYYY) LIMITS

PER
STATUTE

OTH-
ER

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT

$

$

$

ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE

If yes, describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

(Mandatory in NH)
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?

WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY Y / N

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

ANY AUTO
ALL OWNED SCHEDULED

HIRED AUTOS
NON-OWNED

AUTOS AUTOS

AUTOS

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT

BODILY INJURY (Per person)

BODILY INJURY (Per accident)
PROPERTY DAMAGE $

$

$

$

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED.  NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSD
ADDL

WVD
SUBR

N / A

$

$

(Ea accident)

(Per accident)

OTHER:

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW.  THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.
IMPORTANT:  If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsed.  If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to
the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement.  A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the
certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

INSURED

PHONE
(A/C, No, Ext):

PRODUCER

ADDRESS:
E-MAIL

FAX
(A/C, No):

CONTACT
NAME:

NAIC #

INSURER A :

INSURER B :

INSURER C :

INSURER D :

INSURER E :

INSURER F :

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

INS025  (201401)



Agreement for Transfer of Funds SCUSD and Sac High 2023-24 

AGREEMENT FOR Transfer of Funds 

Between 

SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

Youth Development Support Services Department 

And 

St. HOPE Sacramento Charter High 

The Sacramento City Unified School District (“District” or “SCUSD”) and St. HOPE 

Sacramento Charter High (“Sac High”) collectively hereinafter referred to as “the Parties” and 

individually hereinafter referred to as “the Party” hereby enter into this Agreement for transfer of 

funds (“Agreement”) effective on August 1, 2023 (“Effective Date”) with respect to the 

following recitals:   

RECITALS 

Sacramento City Unified School District is the fiscal agent for Sac High’s 21st Century After 

School Safety and Enrichment for Teens (ASSETs) Grant. The intent of the ASSETs program is 

to provide high school students opportunities to expand learning, promote academic 

achievement and provide constructive alternatives in the hours after the instructional day. 

The three required elements are (1) academic assistance (2) enrichment and (3) family 
engagement/literacy activities.  The academic and enrichment elements must provide 
additional support for pupils and be in alignment, but not a repeat of, the regular day 

academic program.  The family engagement/literacy activities are for the adult family 
members of the pupils participating in the ASSETs program. 

The total grant amount is $254,500.  According to the ASSETs grant, Sac High Expanded 

Learning Program (“program”) needs to serve 139 students for 180 days (Total Accumulative 

Attendance = 25,020) for a minimum of 15 hours per week and provide academic enrichment 

activities during expanded learning/after school/zero period hours. St. Hope Charter High can 

run programming during intersessions and summer breaks in order to meet the accumulative 

attendance goal.  If Sac High is running for 175 days, then they need to serve 143 students each 

day. 

NOW THEREFORE, THE PARTIES AGREE AS FOLLOWS:  

During the 2023-2024 school year, Sac High will hire its own staff to provide academic and 

enrichment activities during expanded learning/after school hours. 

Both Parties have agreed that District will transfer 85% of the grant amount ($216,325) to Sac 

High in four properly (including invoice ID, mailing address, Purchase Order number, etc.) 

submitted invoices at the end of each quarter. 

The District will continue acting as the fiscal agent, submit all the required reports to California 

Department of Education, and continue working with Sac High to provide assistance with 

program monitoring, quality assurance and evaluation.  



Agreement for Transfer of Funds SCUSD and Sac High 2023-24 

In order to off-set a portion of the administrative cost and some supplemental direct services, 

SCUSD Youth Development Support Services shall keep 15% of the grant amount ($38,175). 

AGREEMENT 

Assurances to Meet Requirements of After School Safety and Enrichment for Teens 

(ASSETs) Program 

Program Operations – Both Parties Agree 

The Sac High Program will serve pupils in grades 9-12, inclusive. 

The program will operate on site (Sac High). 

The program will maintain a student-to-staff member ratio of no more than 20:1. Program 

Coordinator should not be included in the ratio.  Volunteers cannot be included in the ratio. 

The program will operate for a minimum of 15 hours per week. 

The program will provide academic assistance, enrichment, family literacy services, 

physical activity, and daily nutritious snack. 

The program will include an academic assistance element designed to provide tutoring, 

and/or homework assistance in one or more of the content subject areas such as language 

arts, mathematics and science. 

The program will have an educational enrichment that may include, but is not limited to:  

Fine arts, recreation, physical fitness, and prevention activities. Such activities might 

involve the visual and performing arts, music, physical activity, health promotion, general 

recreation, career awareness and work preparation activities, community service learning, 

and other youth development activities based on students’ needs and interests. 

The program has the option of operating either after school only or after school and during 

any combination of before school, weekends, summer intersession, and vacation. 

Every student attending a school operating a program is eligible to participate in the 

program, subject to program capacity. 

The program is not required to charge family fees or conduct individual eligibility 

determination based on need or income. 

The program will provide all notices, reports, statements, and records to parents or guardians 

in English and the student’s primary language when 15 percent of the students enrolled at 

the school site speak a single primary language other than English as determined by 

language census data from the preceding year. 

The program is planned through a collaborative process that can include a variety of 

stakeholders such as parents, youth, and representatives of participating public school 

sites, governmental agencies (e.g., city and county parks and recreation departments), 

local law enforcement, community organizations, and the private sector. 

First priority for enrollment of pupils shall be given to students experiencing homelessness 

and pupils identified by the program as being in foster care. 

Both parties assume the responsibility of providing staff development and training.  St. 

Hope is responsible for mandatory staff trainings such as Mandate Reporter Training, 

Child Abuse Prevention training and other trainings that are mandated by Sac High 

Charter. 



Agreement for Transfer of Funds SCUSD and Sac High 2023-24 

Both parties assume fiscal accountability. 

The program will establish minimum qualifications for each staff position that at a 

minimum, ensure that all staff members who directly supervise pupils meet the minimum 

qualifications for an instructional aide, pursuant to the policies of Sacramento Charter 

High. 

All program staff and volunteers will be subject to the health screening and fingerprint 

clearance requirements in current law and Sacramento Charter High’s policy for school 

personnel and volunteers at the school. 

All funds expended will supplement, but not supplant, existing funding for after school 

program. 

If 15 percent or more of the pupils enrolled in Sacramento Charter High speak a single 

primary language other than English, as determined from the census data submitted to 

CDE in the preceding year, all notices, reports, statements or records sent to the 

parent/guardian of any such pupil by the school be written in the primary language. 

The program funds will be used only for allowable costs during the grant award period. 

Program Elements 

The program will include an educational and literacy element designed to provide tutoring 

and/or homework assistance in one or more of the following subject areas: language arts, 

mathematics, history and social science, science, and computer training. 

The program will have an educational enrichment element that may include, but is not 

limited to, fine arts, career technical education, recreation, physical fitness, and prevention 

activities. Such activities might involve the arts, music, physical activity, health 

promotion, general recreation, technology, career awareness, and activities to support 

positive youth development. 

The program will provide a safe physical and emotional environment and opportunities for 

relationship building and will promote active student engagement. 

The program will collaborate and integrate with the regular school day program and other 

expanded learning opportunities. 

The program will provide a snack or supper that conforms to the nutrition standards in the 

California Education Code, Part 27, Chapter 9, Article 2.5, commencing with Section 

49430. 

The program will provide opportunities for physical activity. 

Both parties agree that SCUSD will be responsible for submitting periodic reporting and 

accountability requirements throughout the term of the grant (1) attendance and fiscal reporting; 

(2) program evaluation; (3) the federal annual performance report (APR); (4) the CDE

Categorical Program Monitoring (CPM) process; (5) annual audits; and (6) use of the After

School Support and Information System (ASSIST) reporting.

Both parties agree that Sac High will evaluate the program annually and measure the 

effectiveness of ASSETs programming.  

Sac High will provide general ledgers and attendance reports twice a year. The contractor must 

submit the first general ledger and attendance report on or before January 20, 2024 covering July 



 

Agreement for Transfer of Funds SCUSD and Sac High 2023-24 

1 through December 31, 2023 period. The second general ledger must be submitted on or before 

July 20, 2024 covering January 1 through June 30 period.  

 

 

All required documentation will be requested and submitted through SCUSD Document 

Tracking Vault. 

Both parties agree to meet all the statutory requirements, including program operations and fiscal 

operations. 

 Both parties agree that Sac High will submit annual budget with a narrative to support 

expenditures, monthly or quarterly invoices, general ledger or financial activity report upon 

request.” The attached subcontractor form must be submitted semi-annually. 

Both parties agree that Sac High must provide access to its program and fiscal records for audits, 

and any state or federal site visits.  

Both parties agree that Sac High will submit the fiscal data, including attendance data, 

expenditure data, evaluation data, and any additional requested data to the grantee in a timely 

manner. 

 Both parties understand and agree that Non-submission of the fiscal data in a timely manner 

may result in a grantee becoming a grantee-not-in-good-standing with fiscal implications. The 

fiscal implications include withholding of grant payments or termination of the grant from the 

CDE EXLD. 

Both parties understand and agree that if it is found that the funds are not spent in accordance 

with state or federal directives, grantees are responsible for returning incorrectly spent funds.  

  

Both parties agree that Sac High will take student attendance in their student information system, 

Infinite Campus, and will provide attendance to SCUSD semiannually – during the second week 

of January 2024 and July 2024. Sac High will also provide expenditure reports to SCUSD 

semiannually. 

 

Both parties agree that Sac High will keep all the required paperwork such as enrollment forms, 

attendance data and program plan on file for five years for auditing purposes. 

 

Both parties agree that no more than 5% of $216,325 will be spent on in-direct/administrative 

services. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Agreement for Transfer of Funds SCUSD and Sac High 2023-24 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have caused this Agreement to be executed in duplicate. 

DISTRICT:  

By: ___________________ 

Date 

_________________________________________ 

Janea Marking 

Chief Business Officer 
Sacramento City Unified School District 

AGENCY NAME:  ST. HOPE SACRAMENTO CHARTER HIGH 

By: _________________________________________ ___________________ 

Authorized Signature Date 

Print Name: ________________________________ 

Title: _____________________________________  

Phone: ____________________________________

Email: _____________________________________ 

Lisa Marie Ruda

Superintendent

(916) 649-7950

lruda@sthopepublicschools.org

9/19/2023



 

 

 
 
 
 

AMENDMENT NO. 1 TO AGREEMENT FOR  
ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 

 
This Amendment to the Agreement for Architectural Services ("Amendment") is entered into between the 
Sacramento City Unified School District ("District") and Lionakis Architects ("Architect ") (collectively the 
"Parties"): 

 
Section I. Amendment to Agreement for Independent Consultant Agreement for Architectural Services 
originally entered to on May 18, 2023. 

 
1. Approval of this Amendment: This Amendment shall be subject to the approval of the 

District's Board of Education ("Board"). Upon approval by the Board, the effective date of this 
Amendment shall be November 16, 2023; 

 
2. Fee and Method of Payment: The District shall continue to pay Architect for the current services 

and will now pay for the added services from and after November 16, 2023, on a fee basis up to a maximum 
of $421,020.00, as reflected below, unless this Amendment is further extended or modified. 

 
Description of Scope Change: basis for change order 

 
Additional services requested by the District to expand the baseball/softball fields to include new 

irrigation, regrade and new turf; new DSA PC shade structure over baseball batting cage; new 
tennis hitting wall; security cameras and fire alarm to modular restroom building for the 
CKMcClatchy High School Baseball/Softball Field Improvements project  

 
Description of funding changes to contract: 

 
Original contract amount. ................................................................................................ $399,000.00 
Previous change orders through change order #- ..................................................................... $0.00 
Contract amount prior to this change order ..................................................................... $399,000.00 
Amount of this change order.......... ............................................................................... ... $22,020.00 

 
 

NEW CONTRACT AMOUNT......... ........................................................................... ......$421,020.00 
  

 
FACILITIES SUPPORT SERVICES 

 

Janea Marking, Chief Business and Operations Officer 
Chris Ralston, Director III 



 

 
 
 
 

Section IL All Other Provisions Reaffirmed. 
All other provisions of the Agreement for Architect Services shall remain in full force and effect and are 

hereby reaffirmed. If there is any conflict between this Amendment No. 1 and any provision of the Agreement for 
Architect Services, the provisions of this Amendment No. 1 shall control. 

 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have caused this Amendment No. 1 to the Agreement for 

Architect Services to be executed by their respective officers who are duly authorized, as of the Effective 
Date. 

 
ACCEPTED AND AGREED on the date indicated below: 

 
 

DATE: November 16, 2023 
 
 

Sacramento City Unified School 
District 

 Lionakis Architects 

 
 
 
 
 

  

Janea Marking 
CBO 

 Laura Knauss 
 

 
 
 
 
 

11/7/2023



 

 

 
 
 
 

AMENDMENT NO. 1 TO AGREEMENT FOR  
ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 

 
This Amendment to the Agreement for Architectural Services ("Amendment") is entered into between the 
Sacramento City Unified School District ("District") and Lionakis Architects ("Architect ") (collectively the 
"Parties"): 

 
Section I. Amendment to Agreement for Independent Consultant Agreement for Architectural Services 
originally entered to on May 18, 2023. 

 
1. Approval of this Amendment: This Amendment shall be subject to the approval of the 

District's Board of Education ("Board"). Upon approval by the Board, the effective date of this 
Amendment shall be November 16, 2023; 

 
2. Fee and Method of Payment: The District shall continue to pay Architect for the current services 

and will now pay for the added services from and after November 16, 2023, on a fee basis up to a maximum 
of $432,940.00, as reflected below, unless this Amendment is further extended or modified. 

 
Description of Scope Change: basis for change order 

 
Additional services requested by the District to expand the baseball/softball fields to include new 

irrigation, regrade and new turf; new DSA PC shade structure over baseball batting cage; new 
tennis hitting wall; security cameras and fire alarm to modular restroom building for the Luther 
Burbank High School Baseball/Softball Field Improvements project  

 
Description of funding changes to contract: 

 
Original contract amount. ................................................................................................ $409,500.00 
Previous change orders through change order #- ..................................................................... $0.00 
Contract amount prior to this change order ..................................................................... $409,500.00 
Amount of this change order.......... ............................................................................... ... $23,440.00 

 
 

NEW CONTRACT AMOUNT......... ........................................................................... ......$432,940.00 
  

 
FACILITIES SUPPORT SERVICES 

 

Janea Marking, Chief Business and Operations Officer 
Chris Ralston, Director III 



 

 
 
 
 

Section IL All Other Provisions Reaffirmed. 
All other provisions of the Agreement for Architect Services shall remain in full force and effect and are 

hereby reaffirmed. If there is any conflict between this Amendment No. 1 and any provision of the Agreement for 
Architect Services, the provisions of this Amendment No. 1 shall control. 

 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have caused this Amendment No. 1 to the Agreement for 

Architect Services to be executed by their respective officers who are duly authorized, as of the Effective 
Date. 

 
ACCEPTED AND AGREED on the date indicated below: 

 
 

DATE: November 16, 2023 
 
 

Sacramento City Unified School 
District 

 Lionakis Architects 

 
 
 
 
 

  

Janea Marking 
CBO 

 Laura Knauss 
 

 
 
 
 
 

11/7/2023



Change Order 01

Date: October 19, 2023

Project Name:  CB Wire Technology Network Infrastructure 
Project No: 0040-461-2
DSA File No: NA
DSA Application No: NA

The following parties agree to the terms of this Change Order: 

Owner: Sacramento City USD     Contractor: C.H. Reynolds Electric, Inc. 
5735 47th Ave. 1281 Wayne Avenue 
Sacramento, CA 95824 San Jose, CA  95131

Architect: NA Construction Manager: Kitchell CEM 
2450 Venture Oaks Way, Suite 500
Sacramento, CA 95833

Reference Cost Days 
Ext.

CO#01 

$0 21

Signatures
Contractor: C.H. Reynolds Electric, Inc. 

Janea Marking, CBO Date  Date

District: Sacramento City USD

Amount of this Change Order:

The undersigned Contractor approves the foregoing as to the changes, if any,to the Contract Price specified for each item, and 
as to the extension of time allowed, if any, for completion of the entire work as stated therein, and agrees to furnish all labor, 
materials and services and perform all work necessary to complete any additional work specified for the consideration stated 
therein.  Submission of sums which have no basis in fact or which Contractor knows are false are at the sole risk of Contractor 
and may be a violation of the False Claims Act set forth under Government Code section 12650 et seq. 

This change order is subject to approval by the governing board of this District and must be signed by the District.  Until such 
time as this change order is approved by the District’s governing board and executed by a duly authorized District 
representative, this change order is not effective and not binding.

It is expressly understood that the compensation and time, if any, granted herein represent a full accord and satisfaction for 
any and all time and cost impacts of the items herein, and Contractor waives any and all further compensation or time 
extension based on the items herein.  The value of the extra work or changes expressly includes any and all of the Contractor’s 
costs and expenses, and its subcontractors, both direct and indirect, resulting from additional time required on the project or 
resulting from delay to the project including without limitation, cumulative impacts.  Any costs, expenses, damages or time 
extensions not included are deemed waived.

Additional contract days for completion of work due to shipping delays of IP 
Modules for the TSU Speakers.                                                                                         

Description 

Original Contract Amount with Allowances:
Contract time will be adjusted as follows:

10/27/2023
Previous Completion Date:

Amount of Previously Approved AED(s)/PCO(s):

 $                     784,686.00 

Type Number of Days

11/17/2023

21

Current Completion Date: Revised Contract Amount 
After this change order:  $                     784,686.00 

Calendar Days Extension 
(zero unless otherwise indicated)

$0 

 N/A 

SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED
SCHOOL DISTRICT

CHANGE ORDER FORM
 DOCUMENT 00 63 63-1

2023-10-24

Document Ref: ZCZWP-SEJHX-2KTSA-B8XBC Page 1 of 1

DocuSign Envelope ID: 9D4DA1B1-3C8D-4FCB-9B68-B9F33F69326D

10/26/2023

Jesse M. Castillo Assistant Superintend



Signature Certificate
Reference number: ZCZWP-SEJHX-2KTSA-B8XBC

Document completed by all parties on:
24 Oct 2023 16:49:54 UTC

Page 1 of 1

Signer Timestamp Signature

John Sherry
Email: johns@chreynolds.com

Recipient Verification:

Sent: 24 Oct 2023 16:47:23 UTC
Viewed: 24 Oct 2023 16:49:30 UTC
Signed: 24 Oct 2023 16:49:54 UTC

✔Email verified 24 Oct 2023 16:49:30 UTC
IP address: 76.14.183.228
Location: Lincoln, United States

Signed with PandaDoc

PandaDoc is a document workflow and certified eSignature
solution trusted by 40,000+ companies worldwide.

DocuSign Envelope ID: 9D4DA1B1-3C8D-4FCB-9B68-B9F33F69326D



Change Order 001

Date: October 23, 2023

Project Name: Clayton B. Wire Hazmat Remediation 

Project No: 0262-461-CBW-HAZ

DSA File No: N/A

DSA Application No:  N/A

The following parties agree to the terms of this Change Order: 

Owner: Sacramento City USD     Contractor: JM Environmental, Inc. 

5735 47th Ave. P.O. Box 2189

Sacramento, CA 95824 Granite Bay, CA  95746

Architect: None Construction Manager: Kitchell CEM 

2450 Venture Oaks Way, Suite 500

Sacramento, CA  95833

Reference Cost Days Ext.

N/A
$0.00

34

N/A ($5,722.93) 0

Signatures

Contractor: JM Environmental, Inc. 

Jesse Castillo Date  Tonja Moore, Vice President Date
Assistant Superintendent of Business Services

District: Sacramento City USD

No Cost Time Extension from Project Date of Completion of 3/17/2023 to Notice 

of Completion Filing Date of 4/20/23

Project Close-out of Unused Owner Allowance

Description 

Original Contract Amount with Allowances:
Contract time will be adjusted as follows:

3/17/2023

Amount of this Change Order:

The undersigned Contractor approves the foregoing as to the changes, if any,to the Contract Price specified for each item, and as to the extension 

of time allowed, if any, for completion of the entire work as stated therein, and agrees to furnish all labor, materials and services and perform all 

work necessary to complete any additional work specified for the consideration stated therein.  Submission of sums which have no basis in fact or 

which Contractor knows are false are at the sole risk of Contractor and may be a violation of the False Claims Act set forth under Government 

Code section 12650 et seq. 

This change order is subject to approval by the governing board of this District and must be signed by the District.  Until such time as this change 

order is approved by the District’s governing board and executed by a duly authorized District representative, this change order is not effective 

and not binding.

It is expressly understood that the compensation and time, if any, granted herein represent a full accord and satisfaction for any and all time and 

cost impacts of the items herein, and Contractor waives any and all further compensation or time extension based on the items herein.  The value 

of the extra work or changes expressly includes any and all of the Contractor’s costs and expenses, and its subcontractors, both direct and 

indirect, resulting from additional time required on the project or resulting from delay to the project including without limitation, cumulative 

impacts.  Any costs, expenses, damages or time extensions not included are deemed waived.

$299,000.00 

4/20/2023

34

Current Completion Date: Revised Contract Amount 

After this change order:
$293,277.07 

Calendar Days Extension 

(zero unless otherwise indicated)

 $                                           (5,722.93)

Previous Completion Date:

Amount of Previously Approved AED(s)/PCO(s): $0.00

SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED

SCHOOL DISTRICT

CHANGE ORDER FORM

 DOCUMENT 00 63 63-1

10/24/23

DocuSign Envelope ID: B840726A-4DCB-494E-A05E-F24198F231A0

10/27/2023



ONLY



Keit M. Tan - Area General Manager 

10/5/23

bill.weinberg
Text Box
Bill Weinberg

bill.weinberg
Stamp

bill.weinberg
Text Box
10/26/23



Sac City USD – McClatchy HS HVAC Replacement August 17, 2023 
 

 Equipment Proposal  Page 1 of 4  

 

    Change Proposal 
  

PROPRIETARY AND CONFIDENTIAL PROPERTY OF Trane U.S. Inc. 

DISTRIBUTION TO OTHER THAN THE NAMED RECIPIENT IS PROHIBITED 

Prepared For: Sacramento City Unified School District 
 
Job Name: 
Sac City USD – McClatchy HS HVAC Replacement 
 
Delivery Terms: 
Freight Allowed and Prepaid - F.O.B. Factory 

Date: September 27, 2023 
 
Proposal Number: X2-94764-3421-2 
 
Payment Terms: Net 30 Days 

___________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

 

Scope Changes excluding sales tax: 

 

Remove pump package from (2) ACSA160 air cooled chillers………………………………………….( $ 80,310.00 ) 

 

Add architectural louvers for (2) ACSA160 air cooled chillers………………………………………….. $ 8,754.00 

 

Add powered convenience outlets for (2) ACSA160 air cooled chillers…………….……………… $ 2,214.00 

 

Add under/over voltage protection for (2) ACSA160 air cooled chillers…………………………… $ 2,416.00 
 
 
Total Price (excluding sales tax)………………………………………………..……………………..…(  $ 66,926.00 ) 
 
 
 
Sincerely, 
 
Keit Tan / Todd Brooks 
Trane US Inc. 
4145 Delmar Avenue 
Rocklin, CA 95677 
 



 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 

Agenda Item# 13.1b 
 

 
Meeting Date:  November 16, 2023 
 
 
Subject:  Approve Personnel Transactions 
 

 Information Item Only 
 Approval on Consent Agenda 
 Conference (for discussion only) 
 Conference/First Reading (Action Anticipated: ______________)  
 Conference/Action 
 Action 
 Public Hearing 

 
Division:  Human Resources Services 
 
 
Recommendation:  Approve Personnel Transactions 
 
 
Background/Rationale:  N/A 
 
 
Financial Considerations:  N/A 
 
 
LCAP Goal(s):  Safe, Clean and Healthy Schools 
 
 
Documents Attached:   
1. Certificated Personnel Transactions Dated November 16, 2023 
2. Classified Personnel Transactions Dated November 16, 2023 
 
Estimated Time of Presentation:  N/A 

Submitted by:   Cancy McArn, Chief Human Resources Officer 
Approved by:  Lisa Allen, Interim Superintendent  

 
 Page 1 of 1 



Page 1 of 2

O=Zero Yr Probationary; A=Permanent; B=First Yr Probationary; C=Second Yr Probationary; E=Temp Contract; I=Long Term Temp; J=Short Term Temp; Q=Limited Term Assignment-Evaluated; R=Limited Term Assignment-Not Evaluated

Attachment 1:  CERTIFICATED 11/16/2023

NameLast NameFirst JobPerm JobClass PrimeSite BegDate EndDate Comment
-------------------------- -------------------- ---------- ------------------------------ ------------------------------ ---------- ---------- -----------------------------------
EMPLOY/ REEMPLOY
BECKETT TONYA B Teacher, High School ROSEMONT HIGH SCHOOL 10/3/2023 6/30/2024 EMPLOY PROB 10/3/23                                                                                                   
FATTA FEDOTOV IGOR B Teacher, Middle School FERN BACON MIDDLE SCHOOL 8/31/2023 6/30/2024 AMND EMPLOY PROB 8/31/23                                                                                             
HENSLEY KATHERINE A Assistant Principal, High Sch ROSEMONT HIGH SCHOOL 10/2/2023 6/30/2024 REEMPLOY 10/2/23                                                                                              
HILL FANTOYA A Clinician Psych/ Soc Wrkr SPECIAL EDUCATION DEPARTMENT 11/1/2023 6/30/2024 EMPLOY PROB 11/1/23                                                                                                 
KEMPEN MATTHEW B Principal, Elementary School THEODORE JUDAH ELEMENTARY 11/13/2023 6/30/2024 EMPLOY PROB 11/13/23                                                                                                    
KHAN JULIEN B Teacher, Spec Ed WEST CAMPUS 10/2/2023 6/30/2024 EMPLOY PROB 10/2/23                                                                                                   
MAYERS EDUARDO B Teacher, Elementary MATSUYAMA ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 10/30/2023 6/30/2024 EMPLOY PROB 10/30/23                                                                                                    
RAMOS LINDA B Clinician Psych/ Soc Wrkr EARLY LEARNING & CARE PROGRAMS 8/16/2023 6/30/2024 EMPLOY PROB 8/16/23                                                                                                  
VUE DAO Teacher, High School JOHN F. KENNEDY HIGH SCHOOL 10/3/2023 6/30/2024 EMPLOY PROB 10/3/23                                                                                                  

LEAVES 
ARMANINO ANN A Teacher, Elementary PARKWAY ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 9/1/2023 10/20/2023 LOA (PD) 9/1-10/20/23                                                                                                  
BASA ERNESTO 0 Teacher, Spec Ed ROSEMONT HIGH SCHOOL 12/1/2023 6/30/2024 LOA (UNPD) 12/1/23                                                                                                      
BROWN ANNE A Teacher, Elementary CROCKER/RIVERSIDE ELEMENTARY 10/16/2023 1/13/2024 LOA (PD) FMLA/CFRA 10/16-1/13/24                                                                                     
DEEM ARIELLE B Teacher, Traveling Music ROSA PARKS MIDDLE SCHOOL 9/12/2023 12/12/2023 LOA (PD) 9/12-12/12/23                                                                                              
HACKER LARAE C School Psychologist SPECIAL EDUCATION DEPARTMENT 10/24/2023 12/1/2023 LOA (PD) FMLA/CFRA 10/24/23-12/1/23                                                                                 
LAGPACAN ROSANNE A Teacher, Elementary TAHOE ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 11/18/2023 1/27/2024 LOA (PD)  11/18/23-1/27/24                                                                                        
ROOME JOSHUA A Teacher, High School ROSEMONT HIGH SCHOOL 8/31/2023 11/2/2023 LOA (PD) FMLA/CFRA 8/31-11/2/23                                                                                      
ROSENHEIM LAURA A Teacher, Elementary THEODORE JUDAH ELEMENTARY 8/20/2023 6/30/2024 AMEND LOA RTN (PD) 8/20/23                                                                                           
RYAN ERIN A School Social Worker STUDENT SUPPORT&HEALTH SRVCS 10/29/2023 12/20/2023 LOA EXT (PD) 10/29/23-12/20/23                                                                                        
RYAN ERIN A School Social Worker STUDENT SUPPORT&HEALTH SRVCS 12/21/2023 6/30/2024 LOA RTN 12/21/23                                                                                                        
SANCHEZ LEANA A Teacher, K-8 ALICE BIRNEY WALDORF - K-8 8/28/2023 1/2/2024 LOA (PD)  11/18/23-1/27/24                                                                                        
YEE THU C School Nurse HEALTH SERVICES 9/15/2023 12/15/2023 INTERMITTENT FMLA/CFRA  9/15/23-12/15/23                                                               
YEE THU C School Nurse HEALTH SERVICES 12/16/2023 6/30/2024 LOA RTN 12/16/23                                                                                                        

RE-ASSIGN/STATUS CHANGE
GUMS KENDALL C Teacher, Resource, Special Ed. SAM BRANNAN MIDDLE SCHOOL 8/23/2023 6/30/2024 STCHG 8/23/23                                                                                                 
MARTIN MICHELLE B Teacher, Resource, Special Ed. FATHER K.B. KENNY - K-8 10/18/2023 6/30/2024 STCHG 10/18/23                                                                                                
MEDINA MELISSA C Teacher, Spec Ed C. K. McCLATCHY HIGH SCHOOL 7/19/2023 6/30/2024 STCHG 7/19/23                                                                                                 
SANTIAGO NICHOLAS C Teacher, High School ROSEMONT HIGH SCHOOL 6/15/2023 6/30/2023 STCHG 6/15/23                                                                                                 
VAN NATTEN DAVID B Dir III, Student Svcs/Alt Ed STUDENT SUPPORT AND FAMILY SER 10/11/2023 6/30/2024 REASSIGN/STCHG 10/11/23                                                                                              

SEPARATE / RESIGN / RETIRE
SANDERS STEPHAN B Assistant Principal, Elem Sch PACIFIC ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 7/1/2023 10/27/2023 SEP/RESIGN 10/27/23                                                                                                     
SANDERS STEPHAN B Site Instruction Coordinator PACIFIC ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 7/1/2023 10/27/2023 SEP/RESIGN 10/27/23                                                                                                     

TRANSFER
CALVIN CARRISSAH A Teacher, K-8 ALICE BIRNEY WALDORF - K-8 7/1/2023 6/30/2024 TR 7/1/23                                                                                                   
HICKS JERRY A Teacher, Elementary CAPITAL CITY SCHOOL 10/16/2023 6/30/2024 TR 10/16/23                                                                                                    
WALTERS ROBERT A Teacher, K-8 LEONARDO da VINCI ELEMENTARY 7/1/2023 6/30/2024 TR 7/1/23                                                                                                   
ZELAYA FIDEL A Teacher, High School ROSEMONT HIGH SCHOOL 10/2/2023 6/30/2024 TR 10/2/23                                                                                                      

Sacramento City Unified School District Personnel Transactions
November 16, 2023



Page 2 of 2

O=Zero Yr Probationary; A=Permanent; B=First Yr Probationary; C=Second Yr Probationary; E=Temp Contract; I=Long Term Temp; J=Short Term Temp; Q=Limited Term Assignment-Evaluated; R=Limited Term Assignment-Not Evaluated

NameLast NameFirst JobPerm JobClass PrimeSite BegDate EndDate Comment
-------------------------- -------------------- ---------- ------------------------------ ------------------------------ ---------- ---------- -----------------------------------



Page 1 of 2

O=Zero Yr Probationary; A=Permanent; B=First Yr Probationary; C=Second Yr Probationary; E=Temp Contract; I=Long Term Temp; J=Short Term Temp; Q=Limited Term Assignment-Evaluated; R=Limited Term Assignment-Not Evaluated

Attachment 2:  CLASSIFIED 11/16/2023

NameLast NameFirst JobPerm JobClass PrimeSite BegDate EndDate Comment
-------------------------- -------------------- ---------- ------------------------------ ------------------------------ ---------- ---------- -----------------------------------
EMPLOY/ REEMPLOY

SAETERN AMBER B Inst Aid, Spec Ed ALICE BIRNEY WALDORF - K-8 10/23/2023 6/30/2024 EMPLOY PROB 10/23/23                                                                                                  
ANDERSON FREDERICKA B Campus Monitor JOHN F. KENNEDY HIGH SCHOOL 10/9/2023 6/30/2024 EMPLOY PROB 10/9/23                                                                                                     
CHA RICHARD B Campus Monitor C. K. McCLATCHY HIGH SCHOOL 9/20/2023 6/30/2024 EMPLOY PROB 9/20/23                                                                                                   
CONNOR SARA B Inst Aid, Spec Ed HIRAM W. JOHNSON HIGH SCHOOL 10/23/2023 6/30/2024 EMPLOY PROB 10/23/23                                                                                                   
FLURY MIKHAEL B Campus Monitor FERN BACON MIDDLE SCHOOL 10/6/2023 6/30/2024 EMPLOY PROB 10/6/23                                                                                                    
KARREN ANGELA B Noon Duty WILLIAM LAND ELEMENTARY 10/20/2023 6/30/2024 EMPLOY PROB 10/20/23                                                                                                    
KEMP BRIDGET B Library Media Tech Asst DAVID LUBIN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 10/23/2023 6/30/2024 EMPLOY PROB 10/23/23                                                                                                    
LY NICHOLAS B Inst Aid, Spec Ed ROSEMONT HIGH SCHOOL 9/22/2023 6/30/2024 EMPLOY PROB 9/22/23                                                                                                   
OTTER-BRAVO CERGIO B Custodian HIRAM W. JOHNSON HIGH SCHOOL 9/5/2023 6/30/2024 EMPLOY PROB 9/5/23                                                                                                      
RIOS-ANDRADE ANA B Instructional Aide JOHN H. STILL - K-8 10/3/2023 6/30/2024 EMPLOY PROB 10/3/23                                                                                                    
SAUCEDA ARACELI B Instructional Aide OAK RIDGE ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 8/31/2023 6/30/2024 EMPLOY PROB 8/31/23                                                                                                     
VELASQUEZ GUADALUPE B Library Media Tech Asst JOHN H. STILL - K-8 11/1/2023 11/3/2023 EMPLOY PROB 11/1/23  
WHITEFLEET KIRSTIN B Inst Aid, Spec Ed ROSA PARKS MIDDLE SCHOOL 10/23/2023 6/30/2024 EMPLOY PROB 10/23/23                                                                                                   
YOEUNG DALINN B Inst Aid, Spec Ed MARK TWAIN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 10/18/2023 6/30/2024 EMPLOY PROB 10/18/23                                                                                                    
ZAMBRANO ANDREA B Instructional Aide NEW JOSEPH BONNHEIM 10/23/2023 6/30/2024 EMPLOY PROB 10/23/23                                                                                                    
ZAMUDIO-GARCIA ROSA B Food Prod Asst, Cent Kit NUTRITION SERVICES DEPARTMENT 11/13/2023 6/30/2024 EMPLOY PROB 11/13/23                                                                                            

LEAVE
ABRAMYAN EMILIA A Inst Aid, Spec Ed O. W. ERLEWINE ELEMENTARY 9/11/2023 6/30/2024 LOA (UNPD) PC 9/11-10/3/23                                                                                              
AMAYA LAURA A Teacher Assistant, Bilingual FATHER K.B. KENNY - K-8 11/1/2023 11/1/2023 LOA RTN 11/1/23                                                                                              
BATEMAN JAMIE A Coordinator I, Mental Health STUDENT SUPPORT&HEALTH SRVCS 10/28/2023 6/30/2024 LOA RTN 10/28/23                                                                                     
DOBBINS TYRESE B Custodian PACIFIC ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 10/20/2023 6/30/2024 LOA (PD) ADMIN 10/20/23                                                                                                 
ESPITIA CELIA A Food Service Assistant NUTRITION SERVICES DEPARTMENT 9/12/2023 10/30/2023 LOA (PD) 9/12/23-10/30/23                                                                                             
ESPITIA CELIA A Food Service Assistant NUTRITION SERVICES DEPARTMENT 11/1/2023 11/30/2023 LOA RTN 11/1/23                                                                                                         
HELTON-ADAMS SANDRA A Inst Aid, Spec Ed PARKWAY ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 10/1/2023 12/31/2023 LOA EXT (PD) 10/1-12/31/23                                                                                             
JOHNSON LANETTA A Clerk II CALEB GREENWOOD ELEMENTARY 10/22/2023 1/14/2024 LOA (PD) 10/22/23-1/14/24                                                                                        
LEWIS LUCY A Child Welfare & Attnd Liaison ENROLLMENT CENTER 8/22/2023 9/30/2023 LOA EXT (PD) 8/28/23-10/29/23                                                                                         
LEWIS LUCY A Child Welfare & Attnd Liaison ENROLLMENT CENTER 10/30/2023 6/30/2024 LOA RTN 10/30/23                                                                                                     
PERREIRA DIANE A Interp for the Deaf SPECIAL EDUCATION DEPARTMENT 9/12/2023 12/4/2023 LOA (PD) 9/12/23-12/4/23                                                                                               
PERREIRA DIANE A Interp for the Deaf SPECIAL EDUCATION DEPARTMENT 12/5/2023 6/30/2024 LOA RTN 12/5/23                                                                                                         
RAMIREZ MARIA A Custodian BG CHACON ACADEMY 10/9/2023 12/31/2023 LOA (PD) 10/9-12/31/23                                                                                               
RAMIREZ MARIA A Custodian BG CHACON ACADEMY 10/1/2023 10/8/2023 LOA RTN (PD) 10/1/23                                                                                  
RHYM JAMILAH A Office Assistant, HR Services HUMAN RESOURCE SERVICES 11/4/2023 6/30/2024 LOA RTN (PD)11/4/23                                                                                            
SMITH JENCI A School Office Manager I CALEB GREENWOOD ELEMENTARY 10/14/2023 4/9/2024 LOA EXT (PD) 10/14-4/9/24                                                                                            
SMITH JR JOSEPH A Bus Attendant TRANSPORTATION SERVICES 10/30/2023 11/27/2023 LOA (UNPAID) 10/30-11/27/23                                                                                           
SPILLER EDIE A Clerk II SEQUOIA ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 11/25/2023 2/3/2024 LOA (PD) 11/25-2/3/24                                                                                              

RE-ASSIGN/STATUS CHANGE
BLACKSHIRE CHRISTY A Clerk II WEST CAMPUS 11/2/2023 6/30/2024 REA 11/2/23                                                                                                      
FARIAS JESUS A School Plant Ops Mngr I CAL. MONTESSORI PROJECT CAPITO 10/17/2023 6/30/2024 REA/STCHG 10/17/23                                                                                                  
GLUCKMAN ELIZABETH B Inst Aid, Spec Ed ROSEMONT HIGH SCHOOL 10/13/2023 6/30/2024 STCHG 10/13/23                                                                                             
KELLY ABBRYANNA A Inst Aid, Spec Ed UMOJA INTERNATIONAL ACADEMY 7/1/2023 11/30/2023 STCHG 7/1/23                                                                                               
LYMAS GAIL A Van Driver TRANSPORTATION SERVICES 10/20/2023 6/30/2024 STCHG 10/20/23                                                                                          
MAHONEY KRISTA A Child Dev Spec I EARLY LEARNING & CARE PROGRAMS 10/30/2023 6/30/2024 REA/STCHG 10/30/23                                                                                                  
MCCREADY MEYVI B Office Tchncn III UMOJA INTERNATIONAL ACADEMY 10/30/2023 6/30/2024 REA/STCHG 10/30/23                                                                                                  
PAULY ZACHARY A School Plant Ops Mngr I LEATAATA FLOYD ELEMENTARY 10/20/2023 6/30/2024 REA/STCHG 10/20/23                                                                                            
RINCON SILVIA A Instructional Aide MARK TWAIN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 10/16/2023 6/30/2024 STCHG 10/16/23                                                                                                       
SAELEE NAI B Budget Analyst BUDGET SERVICES 10/23/2023 4/30/2024 REA/STCHG 10/23/23                                                                                                    
SANTIAGO MARILOU B Instructional Aide CAMELLIA BASIC ELEMENTARY 10/16/2023 6/30/2024 REA/STCHG 10/16/23                                                                                      
SETHI VEENA B Teacher, Spec Ed SPECIAL EDUCATION DEPARTMENT 11/6/2023 6/30/2024 REA/STCHG 11/3/23                                                                                          
THOMAS KRYSTAL B Asst Sup, Spec Ed I & L SPECIAL EDUCATION DEPARTMENT 10/9/2023 6/30/2024 REA/STCHG 10/9/23                                                                                               
TOVAR SOCORRO B Campus Monitor WEST CAMPUS 10/19/2023 6/30/2024 REA 10/19/23                                                                                                       
TUZONN HOUSTON LETHI A Inst Aid, Spec Ed UMOJA INTERNATIONAL ACADEMY 7/1/2023 6/30/2024 STCHG 7/1/23                                                                                                   
VEGA MIKE B Spec II District Facilities Op BUILDINGS & GROUNDS/OPERATIONS 10/2/2023 6/30/2024 REA/STCHG 10/2/23                                                                                            

Sacramento City Unified School District Personnel Transactions
November 16, 2023



Page 2 of 2

O=Zero Yr Probationary; A=Permanent; B=First Yr Probationary; C=Second Yr Probationary; E=Temp Contract; I=Long Term Temp; J=Short Term Temp; Q=Limited Term Assignment-Evaluated; R=Limited Term Assignment-Not Evaluated

NameLast NameFirst JobPerm JobClass PrimeSite BegDate EndDate Comment
-------------------------- -------------------- ---------- ------------------------------ ------------------------------ ---------- ---------- -----------------------------------
WAYNE MARILEANNA B Registrar ENGINEERING AND SCIENCES HS 10/23/2023 6/30/2024 REA 10/23/23                                                                                                        
WHITFIELD KYRA A Inst Aid, Spec Ed ROSEMONT HIGH SCHOOL 8/31/2023 8/31/2023 STCHG 8/31/23                                                                                                  

SEPARATE / RESIGN / RETIRE
AMAYA LAURA A Teacher Assistant, Bilingual FATHER K.B. KENNY - K-8 11/2/2023 11/2/2023 SEP/RETIRE 11/2/23                                                                                              
BROWN AKEENA A Campus Monitor JOHN F. KENNEDY HIGH SCHOOL 7/1/2023 10/19/2023 SEP/RESIGN 10/19/23                                                                                                     
CHOYCE KRYSTAL B Custodian MIWOK MIDDLE SCHOOL 8/31/2023 10/18/2023 SEP/TERM 10/18/23                                                                                                     
HALEEM JOANNE A Instructional Aide MARTIN L. KING JR ELEMENTARY 10/26/2022 6/16/2023 SEP/RESIGN 6/16/23                                                                                                      
MILLER MICHAEL A Inst Aid, Spec Ed HIRAM W. JOHNSON HIGH SCHOOL 10/1/2023 10/23/2023 SEP/RESIGN 10/23/23                                                                                                     
PAULY ZACHARY B Facilities Maint Laborer I FACILITIES MAINTENANCE 9/18/2023 10/19/2023 SEP/TERM 10/19/23                                                                                              
PICKENS II DAVID A Noon Duty ALICE BIRNEY WALDORF - K-8 7/1/2023 9/29/2023 SEP/RESIGN 9/29/23                                                                                                    
SAKLER ADELE A Inst Aid, Spec Ed HIRAM W. JOHNSON HIGH SCHOOL 7/1/2023 11/30/2023 SEP/RESIGN 11/30/23                                                                                                     
UNZUETA MARIA A Teacher Assistant, Bilingual HIRAM W. JOHNSON HIGH SCHOOL 7/1/2023 8/31/2023 SEP/RETIRE 8/31/23                                                                                                      
URIBE SYLVIA A Inst Aid, Spec Ed SUTTERVILLE ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 7/1/2023 12/22/2023 SEP/RETIRE 12/22/23                                                                                                     
VELASQUEZ GUADALUPE B Library Media Tech Asst JOHN H. STILL - K-8 11/1/2023 11/3/2023 SEP/RESIGN 11/3/23                                                                                
WIMBERLY MARKELL A Inst Aid, Spec Ed LUTHER BURBANK HIGH SCHOOL 7/1/2023 11/10/2023 SEP/RESIGN 11/10/23                                                                                                     

TRANSFER
DE DONATO GREGG A School Plant Ops Mngr III ROSEMONT HIGH SCHOOL 10/9/2023 6/30/2024 TR 10/9/23                                                                                                              
HERNANDEZ-MCCARLEY THELMA A Inst Aid, Spec Ed LUTHER BURBANK HIGH SCHOOL 11/6/2023 6/30/2024 TR 11/6/23                                                                                                       
ORTIZ ANTHONY A School Plant Ops Mngr I CAPITAL CITY SCHOOL 10/24/2023 6/30/2024 TR 10/24/23                                                                                                     
PEREZ JOYCE A Pupil Personnel Records Tech ACCELERATED ACADEMY 11/6/2023 6/30/2024 TR 11/6/23                                                                                                      



Page 1 of 1 
  

SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD OF EDUCATION 

 
Agenda Item# _13.1c__ 

 
 
Meeting Date:  November 16, 2023 
 
 
Subject:  Approve Purchase Order Board Report for the Period of September 15, 
2023 through October 14, 2023 
 
 

 Information Item Only 
 Approval on Consent Agenda 
 Conference (for discussion only) 
 Conference/First Reading (Action Anticipated: ______________)  
 Conference/Action 
 Action 
 Public Hearing 

 
Division:  Business Services 
 
 
Recommendation:  Approve attached list of purchase orders.  
 
 
Background/Rationale:  N/A 
 
 
Financial Considerations:  Reflects standard business information. 
 
 
LCAP Goal(s):  Family and Community Empowerment; Operational Excellence 
 
 
Documents Attached:   

• PO Board Report Period of September 15, 2023 through October 14, 2023 
 
 
  Estimated Time:  N/A 
  Submitted by:  Janea Marking, Chief Business and Operations Officer 
  Approved by:   Lisa Allen, Interim Superintendent 



Board Report with FundReqPay11c

Includes Purchase Orders dated 09/15/2023 - 10/14/2023 ***

PO

Number Vendor Name Description

Account

AmountLocation Fund

B24-00756 INTERNATIONAL PAPER 

RECYCLING

CARDBOARD PICKUP FOR 

CENTRAL KITCHEN

13NUTRITION SERVICES 

DEPARTMENT

5,000.00 

B24-00757 UNIVERSAL LIMOUSINE CO HJHS ATHLETIC 

TRANSPORTATION

01HIRAM W. JOHNSON HIGH 

SCHOOL

7,000.00 

B24-00758 CHARTER AMERICA BUS CO 

THANDI ENTERPRISES INC

HJHS  ATHLETIC 

TRANSPORTATION

01HIRAM W. JOHNSON HIGH 

SCHOOL

6,000.00 

B24-00759 READ ACADEMY OF 

SACRAMENTO

SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT - 

TUITION S.F.

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

22,900.00 

B24-00760 READ ACADEMY OF 

SACRAMENTO

SETTLEMENT MOU - TUITION 

FOR 

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

22,900.00 

B24-00761 FEDERAL PROPORTIONATE 

SHARE 2023-24

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

1,530.35 

B24-00762 FEDERAL PROPORTIONATE 

SHARE 2023-24

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

1,530.35 

B24-00763 FEDERAL PROPORTIONATE 

SHARE 2023-24

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

1,530.35 

B24-00764 THE HOME DEPOT PRO SUPPLIES-BUILDING & 

CONST. TRADES @ RHS

01CAREER & TECHNICAL 

PREPARATION

5,000.00 

B24-00765 US COLD STORAGE OF 

CALIFORNIA

BACK-UP FREEZER 

STORAGE FOR 2023-24 SY

13NUTRITION SERVICES 

DEPARTMENT

10,000.00 

B24-00766 SCHOOL NURSE SUPPLY 

INC

NURSE SUPPLIES  FOR 

2023-24SY

01HIRAM W. JOHNSON HIGH 

SCHOOL

2,500.00 

B24-00767 CALIFORNIA SCHOOL 

NURSES ORGAN IZATION

CSNO MEMBERSHIP FOR 

SCHOOL NURSES 2023-24SY

01HEALTH SERVICES 8,000.00 

B24-00768 SIGNATURE GRAPHICS 0265-461 OAK RIDGE NEW 

SCHOOL - BLUEPRINTING 

SVC

21FACILITIES SUPPORT 

SERVICES

500.00 

B24-00769 PITSCO EDUCATION SUPPLIES FOR ROBOTICS 

2023-24SY

01ALBERT EINSTEIN MIDDLE 

SCHOOL

400.00 

B24-00770 RL SCHREIBER INC SPICES FOR CK 

PRODUCTION SY23-24

13NUTRITION SERVICES 

DEPARTMENT

8,800.00 

B24-00771 ECOLAB INC SUPPLIES FOR CULINARY 

ARTS PRGM@ JFK- J. 

BURDICK

01CAREER & TECHNICAL 

PREPARATION

1,000.00 

B24-00772 SETTLEMENT OAH Case No. 01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

3,500.00 

B24-00773  SETTLEMENT OAH Case No. 01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

20,000.00 

B24-00774 EASTSIDE ENTREES INC ES 

FOODS INC

MEAL KITS FOR SUPPERS SY 

23-24

13NUTRITION SERVICES 

DEPARTMENT

60,000.00 

B24-00775 REV ROBOTICS LLC ROBOTICS SUPPLIES 

2023-24SY

01ALBERT EINSTEIN MIDDLE 

SCHOOL

2,000.00 

B24-00776 IRON MOUNTAIN RECORDS 

MANAGMT

SHREDDING SERVICES FOR 

ENROLLMENT CNT 

2023-24SY

01ENROLLMENT CENTER 600.00 

B24-00777 BIMBO BAKERIES USA INC FRESH BUNS FOR FY2023-24 

-CK

13NUTRITION SERVICES 

DEPARTMENT

10,000.00 

B24-00778 ACCURATE EDGES SHARPENING CENTRAL 

KITCHEN KNIVES/EQPMNT 

KNIVES

13NUTRITION SERVICES 

DEPARTMENT

2,000.00 

*** See the last page for criteria limiting the report detail.

The preceding Purchase Orders have been issued in accordance with the District's Purchasing Policy and 

authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Purchase Orders be approved 

and that payment be authorized upon delivery and acceptance of the items ordered.

097 - Sacramento City Unified School District Generated for Victoria Mena (VICTORIA-MENA2), Nov  6 2023 

10:15AM

Page 1 of 29



Board Report with FundReqPay11c

Includes Purchase Orders dated 09/15/2023 - 10/14/2023 ***

PO

Number Vendor Name Description

Account

AmountLocation Fund

B24-00779 AMERICAN LEAK 

DETECTION

PLUMBING SHOP-LEAK 

DETECTION SERVICE 

2023-24SY

01FACILITIES MAINTENANCE 10,000.00 

B24-00780 ANDYMARK INC SUPPLIES FOR ROBOTICS 

2023-24SY

01ALBERT EINSTEIN MIDDLE 

SCHOOL

700.00 

B24-00781 BASE10ASSETS, LLC ROBOTICS SUPPLIES 

2023-24SY

01ALBERT EINSTEIN MIDDLE 

SCHOOL

1,000.00 

B24-00782 VALLEY TOOL REPAIR SUPPLIES BUILDING & 

CONSTRUCTION TRADES@ 

BURBANK

01CAREER & TECHNICAL 

PREPARATION

500.00 

B24-00783 NAYLOR LLC  BOXWOOD 

TECHNOLOGY  INC

* BLANKET* 23-24 ACSA 

ADMINISTRATION HIRING 

ACCT

01HUMAN RESOURCE 

SERVICES

8,000.00 

B24-00784 SACRAMENTO REGIONAL 

TRANSIT FA RE 

PREPAYMENT UNIT

REGIONAL TRANSIT 

PASSES/STICKERS CARDS 

FY23-24

12EARLY LEARNING & CARE 

PROGRAMS

15,000.00 

B24-00785 COMPLETE BUILDING & 

OFFICE CLE ANING

460 CHAVEZ/KEMBLE NEW 

CONSTRUCTION - CLEANING 

SVC

21FACILITIES SUPPORT 

SERVICES

20,000.00 

B24-00786 YUST, ESQ. SETTLEMENT CASE 01ADMIN-LEGAL COUNSEL 50,000.00 

B24-00787 ZAYO GROUP LLC ZAYO - DARK FIBER LEASE 

RENEWEAL

01TECHNOLOGY SERVICES 5,000.00 

B24-00788 IRON MOUNTAIN RECORDS 

MANAGMT

SHREDDING SERVICES 

2023-24SY

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

3,222.72 

B24-00789 SETTLEMENT AMENDMENT 

TO FINAL SETTLEMENT

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

22,000.00 

B24-00790 GILMAN CHEESE CORP SHELF-STABLE CHEESE FOR  

2022-23 SY

13NUTRITION SERVICES 

DEPARTMENT

60,000.00 

B24-00791 PITNEY BOWES INC POSTAGE METER 01JOHN D SLOAT BASIC 

ELEMENTARY

275.00 

B24-00792  SETTLEMENT AMENDMENT 

TO FINAL SETTLEMENT

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

9,780.00 

B24-00793 PLASTIC CONNECTIONS, 

INC

PACKAGING/FILM FOR 

CENTRAL KITCHEN SY 23-24

13NUTRITION SERVICES 

DEPARTMENT

15,004.16 

B24-00794 RUDERMAN AND KNOX LLP 2023-2024 SPED LEGAL 

FEES

01ADMIN-LEGAL COUNSEL 100,000.00 

B24-00795 EAN SERVICES LLC ATHLETIC TRANSPORTATION 

FOR 2023-24 SY

01C. K. McCLATCHY HIGH 

SCHOOL

1,000.00 

B24-00796 CDW GOVERNMENT INK 

CARTRIDGES/COMPUTER 

EQUIPMENT NEEDS FOR CK

13NUTRITION SERVICES 

DEPARTMENT

3,000.00 

B24-00797 FEDERAL 

PROPORTIONMENT - 

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

1,530.35 

B24-00798 RALEY'S BEL AIR NOB HILL 

FOODS

FOOD FOR PARENT 

ENGAGEMENT/EVENTS 

2023-24SY

01PARENT ENGAGEMENT 2,000.00 

B24-00799 NILES BIOLOGICAL BIOLOGY LAB & 

INSTRUCTIONAL SUPPLIES 

2023-24SY

01C. K. McCLATCHY HIGH 

SCHOOL

2,000.00 

*** See the last page for criteria limiting the report detail.

The preceding Purchase Orders have been issued in accordance with the District's Purchasing Policy and 

authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Purchase Orders be approved 

and that payment be authorized upon delivery and acceptance of the items ordered.

097 - Sacramento City Unified School District Generated for Victoria Mena (VICTORIA-MENA2), Nov  6 2023 

10:15AM

Page 2 of 29



Board Report with FundReqPay11c

Includes Purchase Orders dated 09/15/2023 - 10/14/2023 ***

PO

Number Vendor Name Description

Account

AmountLocation Fund

B24-00800 SACRAMENTO 

METROPOLITAN OFFICI ALS 

ASSOCIATION

FLAG FOOTBALL SPORTS 

OFFICIALS SRV 2023-24SY

01EQUITY, ACCESS & 

EXCELLENCE

12,000.00 

B24-00801 D & P ENTERPRISES INC 

dba CRES CO-RESCO

CULINARY ARTS SUPPIES @ 

JFK

01CAREER & TECHNICAL 

PREPARATION

2,618.00 

B24-00802 HARRIS INDUSTRIAL GASES MANUFACTURING/WEDLING 

MONTHLY TANK/GAS FEES

11CHARLES A. JONES CAREER 

& ED

5,437.50 

B24-00803 RALEY'S BEL AIR NOB HILL 

FOODS

SUPPLIES-CULINARY PAX 

LAB- B. AULT @ ROSA PARKS

01CAREER & TECHNICAL 

PREPARATION

300.00 

B24-00804 RALEY'S BEL AIR NOB HILL 

FOODS

SUPPLIES-CULINARY PAX 

LAB-A. McKINNON @Miwok 

MS

01CAREER & TECHNICAL 

PREPARATION

300.00 

B24-00805 RALEY'S BEL AIR NOB HILL 

FOODS

SUPPLIES-CULINARY PAX 

LAB, K. STOWELL@ EINSTEIN

01CAREER & TECHNICAL 

PREPARATION

300.00 

B24-00806 RALEY'S BEL AIR NOB HILL 

FOODS

SUPPLIES-CULINARY PAX 

LAB-M.  MARSANGO @ 

EINSTEIN

01CAREER & TECHNICAL 

PREPARATION

300.00 

B24-00807 EAN SERVICES, LLC VEHICLE RENTAL - ATHLETIC 

& STUDENT ACTIVITIES

01LUTHER BURBANK HIGH 

SCHOOL

300.00 

B24-00808 FEDERAL PROPORTIONATE 

SHARE 

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

1,530.35 

B24-00809 BRINKS ARMORED CAR 

SERVICE

BRINKS ARMORED CAR 

SERVICES FY 2023-24

01ACCOUNTING SERVICES 

DEPARTMENT

20,000.00 

B24-00810 RALEY'S BEL AIR NOB HILL 

FOODS

SUPPLIES-CULINARY PAX 

LAB-K. ESELEKHOMHEN @ 

MIWOK

01CAREER & TECHNICAL 

PREPARATION

300.00 

B24-00811 RALEY'S BEL AIR NOB HILL 

FOODS

SUPPLIES-CULINARY PAX 

LAB-G. BOSTOCK @ 

CALIFORNA

01CAREER & TECHNICAL 

PREPARATION

300.00 

B24-00812 ALL WEST COACHLINES INC FIELD TRIP 

TRANSPORTATION

01HIRAM W. JOHNSON HIGH 

SCHOOL

5,000.00 

B24-00813 MICHAEL'S 

TRANSPORTATION

FIELD TRIP 

TRANSPORTATION

01HIRAM W. JOHNSON HIGH 

SCHOOL

5,000.00 

B24-00814 THE HOME DEPOT PRO WOODSHOP SUPPLIES 

BLANKET NOT TO EXCEED 

$1000

01CALIFORNIA MIDDLE 

SCHOOL

1,000.00 

B24-00815 INTERNATIONAL FIRE EQUIP 

CO.

FACILITIES FIRE 

EXTINGUISHER SRVCS

01FACILITIES MAINTENANCE 130,000.00 

B24-00816 WESTONE LABORATORIES 

SUPPLY DE PT

AUDIOLOGY SUPPLIES 

(velasco)

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

1,500.00 

CHB24-00254 UBEO WEST LLC dba UBEO 

BUSINES S SERVICES

CANON COPIER 2032/2024 

SY

01SUCCESS ACADEMY 2,600.00 

CHB24-00255 UBEO WEST LLC dba UBEO 

BUSINES S SERVICES

CANON COPIERS 2023/24 01ELDER CREEK ELEMENTARY 

SCHOOL

3,000.00 

CHB24-00256 UBEO WEST LLC dba UBEO 

BUSINES S SERVICES

CANON COPIER 2022-2023 09BG CHACON ACADEMY 2,500.00 

CHB24-00257 UBEO WEST LLC dba UBEO 

BUSINES S SERVICES

CANON COPIER SY 2023/24 01CESAR CHAVEZ 

INTERMEDIATE

5,700.00 

CHB24-00258 UBEO WEST LLC dba UBEO 

BUSINES S SERVICES

CANON COPIER 2023-2024 09NEW JOSEPH BONNHEIM 3,000.00 

*** See the last page for criteria limiting the report detail.

The preceding Purchase Orders have been issued in accordance with the District's Purchasing Policy and 

authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Purchase Orders be approved 

and that payment be authorized upon delivery and acceptance of the items ordered.

097 - Sacramento City Unified School District Generated for Victoria Mena (VICTORIA-MENA2), Nov  6 2023 

10:15AM

Page 3 of 29



Board Report with FundReqPay11c

Includes Purchase Orders dated 09/15/2023 - 10/14/2023 ***

PO

Number Vendor Name Description

Account

AmountLocation Fund

CHB24-00259 UBEO WEST LLC dba UBEO 

BUSINES S SERVICES

CANON COPIER RENTAL 

2023/24

01FERN BACON MIDDLE 

SCHOOL

6,000.00 

CHB24-00260 UBEO WEST LLC dba UBEO 

BUSINES S SERVICES

FY23-24 CANON COPIERS 

RENTAL AGRMTS/OFFICE

01JOHN F. KENNEDY HIGH 

SCHOOL

8,000.00 

CHB24-00261 UBEO WEST LLC dba UBEO 

BUSINES S SERVICES

2023/24 CANON COPIER 01JOHN CABRILLO 

ELEMENTARY

2,500.00 

CHB24-00262 UBEO WEST LLC dba UBEO 

BUSINES S SERVICES

CANON COPIER 01MIWOK MIDDLE SCHOOL 9,000.00 

CHB24-00263 UBEO WEST LLC dba UBEO 

BUSINES S SERVICES

UBEO CANON COPIER SY 

23-24

01ACADEMIC OFFICE 5,000.00 

CHB24-00264 UBEO WEST LLC dba UBEO 

BUSINES S SERVICES

SERNA COPIER USAGE 

2023-24 S.Y.

01CONSOLIDATED PROGRAMS 1,200.00 

CHB24-00265 ODP BUSINESS SOLUTIONS 

LLC

OFFICE DEPOT BLANKET 

2023-24 STUDENT MATERIAL

01PACIFIC ELEMENTARY 

SCHOOL

6,000.00 

CHB24-00266 UBEO WEST LLC dba UBEO 

BUSINES S SERVICES

MCCLASKEY-COPIER 

FRONT,LOWER OFFICES

11A.WARREN McCLASKEY 

ADULT

5,500.00 

CHB24-00267 UBEO WEST LLC dba UBEO 

BUSINES S SERVICES

CANON COPIER SY 23/24 01ISADOR COHEN 

ELEMENTARY SCHOOL

3,600.00 

CHB24-00268 UBEO WEST LLC dba UBEO 

BUSINES S SERVICES

SCHOOL WIDE CANON 

COPIER BLANKET 2023/24

01CALIFORNIA MIDDLE 

SCHOOL

3,800.00 

CHB24-00269 UBEO WEST LLC dba UBEO 

BUSINES S SERVICES

CANON COPIERS SY 2023-24 01JOHN H. STILL - K-8 9,500.00 

CHB24-00270 ODP BUSINESS SOLUTIONS 

LLC

OFFICE DEPOT 23-24 LCFF 

SPED

01AMERICAN LEGION HIGH 

SCHOOL

200.00 

CHB24-00271 UBEO WEST LLC dba UBEO 

BUSINES S SERVICES

RAY MORGAN CANON 

COPIER 2023/24

01AMERICAN LEGION HIGH 

SCHOOL

1,000.00 

CHB24-00272 UBEO WEST LLC dba UBEO 

BUSINES S SERVICES

CANON COPIERS 2023-24 

RENTAL

01EARL WARREN 

ELEMENTARY SCHOOL

3,000.00 

CHB24-00273 UBEO WEST LLC dba UBEO 

BUSINES S SERVICES

CANON COPIER 2023/2024 

SY

01JOHN D SLOAT BASIC 

ELEMENTARY

3,300.00 

CHB24-00274 UBEO WEST LLC dba UBEO 

BUSINES S SERVICES

COPIER RENTAL SY 2023/24 01PONY EXPRESS 

ELEMENTARY SCHOOL

3,600.00 

CHB24-00275 UBEO WEST LLC dba UBEO 

BUSINES S SERVICES

CANON COPIER RENTAL SY 

2023/24

01ALBERT EINSTEIN MIDDLE 

SCHOOL

8,500.00 

CHB24-00276 OFFICE DEPOT OFFICE DEPOT 2023-24 

SCHOOL SUPPLIES

01SUSAN B. ANTHONY 

ELEMENTARY

2,500.00 

CHB24-00277 ODP BUSINESS SOLUTIONS 

LLC

LSJ SUPPLEMENTARY 

CLASSROOM SUPPLIES

01LUTHER BURBANK HIGH 

SCHOOL

3,000.00 

CHB24-00278 ODP BUSINESS SOLUTIONS 

LLC

23/24 SY OFFICE DEPOT 

SUPP. - PARENT 

ENGAGEMENT

01PARENT ENGAGEMENT 5,000.00 

CHB24-00279 ODP BUSINESS SOLUTIONS 

LLC

23-24 SY OFFICE DEPOT 

SUPPLIES - PTHV

01PARENT ENGAGEMENT 50,000.00 

CHB24-00280 ODP BUSINESS SOLUTIONS 

LLC

SCHOOL SUPPLIES LCFF 01JOHN H. STILL - K-8 20,000.00 

CHB24-00281 SCUSD - PAPER USAGE PAPER USAGE PAYROLL 01EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION 900.00 

CHB24-00282 SCUSD - PAPER USAGE SERNA PAPER USAGE 

BUDGET 2023-24

01ACCOUNTING SERVICES 

DEPARTMENT

600.00 

CHB24-00283 ODP BUSINESS SOLUTIONS 

LLC

Chargeback for office supplies 01ACCELERATED ACADEMY 2,500.00 

*** See the last page for criteria limiting the report detail.

The preceding Purchase Orders have been issued in accordance with the District's Purchasing Policy and 

authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Purchase Orders be approved 

and that payment be authorized upon delivery and acceptance of the items ordered.

097 - Sacramento City Unified School District Generated for Victoria Mena (VICTORIA-MENA2), Nov  6 2023 

10:15AM

Page 4 of 29



Board Report with FundReqPay11c

Includes Purchase Orders dated 09/15/2023 - 10/14/2023 ***

PO

Number Vendor Name Description

Account

AmountLocation Fund

CHB24-00284 ODP BUSINESS SOLUTIONS 

LLC

CHRGBCK 23/24 OFFICE 

DEPOT, GF

01CALEB GREENWOOD 

ELEMENTARY

2,000.00 

CHB24-00285 ODP BUSINESS SOLUTIONS 

LLC

OFFICE DEPOT 

INSTUCTIONAL SUPPLIES

01JAMES W MARSHALL 

ELEMENTARY

6,000.00 

CHB24-00286 ODP BUSINESS SOLUTIONS 

LLC

CHRGBCK 23/24 OFFICE 

DEPOT, LCFF

01CALEB GREENWOOD 

ELEMENTARY

5,000.00 

CHB24-00287 UBEO WEST LLC dba UBEO 

BUSINES S SERVICES

CHRGBCK CANON 

RENTAL-COPIER FOR 23/24 

SCHOOL YEAR

01CALEB GREENWOOD 

ELEMENTARY

5,433.00 

CHB24-00288 UBEO WEST LLC dba UBEO 

BUSINES S SERVICES

CANON COPIER 2023/24 

SCHOOL YEAR

01JOHN BIDWELL 

ELEMENTARY

6,800.00 

CHB24-00289 UBEO WEST LLC dba UBEO 

BUSINES S SERVICES

CANON COPIER CONTRACT 

2023/24

01PACIFIC ELEMENTARY 

SCHOOL

8,000.00 

CHB24-00290 UBEO WEST LLC dba UBEO 

BUSINES S SERVICES

CANON COPIER RENTAL FY 

2023/24

01TAHOE ELEMENTARY 

SCHOOL

3,600.00 

CHB24-00291 UBEO WEST LLC dba UBEO 

BUSINES S SERVICES

PACIFIC COPIER RENTAL 

2023-2024

01STUDENT 

SUPPORT&HEALTH SRVCS

1,500.00 

CHB24-00292 UBEO WEST LLC dba UBEO 

BUSINES S SERVICES

JOHNSON COPIER RENTAL 

2023-2024

01STUDENT 

SUPPORT&HEALTH SRVCS

1,500.00 

CHB24-00293 UBEO WEST LLC dba UBEO 

BUSINES S SERVICES

WARREN COPIER RENTAL 

2023-2024

01STUDENT 

SUPPORT&HEALTH SRVCS

1,500.00 

CHB24-00294 UBEO WEST LLC dba UBEO 

BUSINES S SERVICES

CONNECT CNTR COPIER 

RENTAL 2023-2024

01STUDENT 

SUPPORT&HEALTH SRVCS

1,500.00 

CHB24-00295 UBEO WEST LLC dba UBEO 

BUSINES S SERVICES

HARTE COPIER RENTAL 

2023-2024

01STUDENT 

SUPPORT&HEALTH SRVCS

1,500.00 

CHB24-00296 UBEO WEST LLC dba UBEO 

BUSINES S SERVICES

BIDWELL COPIER RENTAL 

2023-2024  ID # 178698

01STUDENT 

SUPPORT&HEALTH SRVCS

1,500.00 

CHB24-00297 UBEO WEST LLC dba UBEO 

BUSINES S SERVICES

W.C.WOOD COPIER RENTAL 

2023-2024

01STUDENT 

SUPPORT&HEALTH SRVCS

1,500.00 

CHB24-00298 UBEO WEST LLC dba UBEO 

BUSINES S SERVICES

OAK RIDGE COPIER RENTAL 

2023-2024

01STUDENT 

SUPPORT&HEALTH SRVCS

1,000.00 

CHB24-00299 UBEO WEST LLC dba UBEO 

BUSINES S SERVICES

STILL COPIER RENTAL 

2023-2024

01STUDENT 

SUPPORT&HEALTH SRVCS

1,500.00 

CHB24-00300 UBEO WEST LLC dba UBEO 

BUSINES S SERVICES

CANON COPIER  FOR 

2023/24 SCHOOL YEAR

01SUSAN B. ANTHONY 

ELEMENTARY

4,000.00 

CHB24-00301 UBEO WEST LLC dba UBEO 

BUSINES S SERVICES

CANON COPIER 2023/24 SY 01LEATAATA FLOYD 

ELEMENTARY

1,500.00 

CHB24-00302 UBEO WEST LLC dba UBEO 

BUSINES S SERVICES

SERNA: COPIER USAGE 01EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION 1,200.00 

CHB24-00303 UBEO WEST LLC dba UBEO 

BUSINES S SERVICES

SERNA COPIER USAGE 01ACCOUNTING SERVICES 

DEPARTMENT

1,200.00 

CHB24-00304 UBEO WEST LLC dba UBEO 

BUSINES S SERVICES

EQUIPMENT MAINT 

AGREEMENT-COPIER

01CENTRAL PRINTING 

SERVICES

10,000.00 

CHB24-00305 UBEO WEST LLC dba UBEO 

BUSINES S SERVICES

COPY MACHINES - C. A. 

JONES SY 2023/24

11CHARLES A. JONES CAREER 

& ED

22,000.00 

CHB24-00306 UBEO WEST LLC dba UBEO 

BUSINES S SERVICES

ROSA PARKS COPIER 

RENTAL 2023-2024

01STUDENT 

SUPPORT&HEALTH SRVCS

1,550.00 

CHB24-00307 UBEO WEST LLC dba UBEO 

BUSINES S SERVICES

SSHS SERNA COPIER 

RENTAL- 2023-2024

01STUDENT 

SUPPORT&HEALTH SRVCS

1,000.00 

*** See the last page for criteria limiting the report detail.

The preceding Purchase Orders have been issued in accordance with the District's Purchasing Policy and 

authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Purchase Orders be approved 

and that payment be authorized upon delivery and acceptance of the items ordered.

097 - Sacramento City Unified School District Generated for Victoria Mena (VICTORIA-MENA2), Nov  6 2023 

10:15AM

Page 5 of 29



Board Report with FundReqPay11c

Includes Purchase Orders dated 09/15/2023 - 10/14/2023 ***

PO

Number Vendor Name Description

Account

AmountLocation Fund

CHB24-00308 ODP BUSINESS SOLUTIONS 

LLC

CLASSROOM SUPPLIES 

2023-2024

01SUY:U ELEMENTARY 3,000.00 

CS24-00173 DWIGHT TAYLOR SR SEL AND STUDENT FAMILY 

SUPPORT

01ALBERT EINSTEIN MIDDLE 

SCHOOL

9,962.00 

CS24-00174 ATKINSON, ANDELSON, 

LOYA, RUUD  & ROMO 

PROFESSIONAL CORP

Speaker Fees and Training 01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

24,999.00 

CS24-00175 COMPUCLAIM INC MEDI-CAL BILLING 01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

72,500.00 

CS24-00176 THE RACE AND GENDER 

EQUITY PRO JECT

SUMMER 2023 - 

SUPPLEMENTAL PROVIDER

01YOUTH DEVELOPMENT 30,000.00 

CS24-00178 SACRAMENTO COUNTY 

SHERIFF CIVI L DIVISION

LAW ENFORCEMENT 

SERVICES-LARGE EVENTS

01SAFE SCHOOLS OFFICE 15,000.00 

CS24-00179 KMM SERVICES INC 0037-465 C.WENZEL 

SECURITY CONSULTING 

FINAL BILL

21FACILITIES SUPPORT 

SERVICES

968.75 

CS24-00180 NORCAL SCHOOL OF THE 

ARTS

NORCAL SCHOOL OF ARTS 01PONY EXPRESS 

ELEMENTARY SCHOOL

10,000.00 

CS24-00181 NEW TECH NETWORK INC New Tech Network Support 09NEW TECH 17,160.00 

CS24-00182 AIMIE BORD IEE for Speech Lang; OAH 

CASE NO. 

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

3,000.00 

CS24-00183 AIMIE BORD IEE for Speech Language; 

OAH CASE NO. 

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

3,000.00 

CS24-00184 916 INK Service Agreementy 916 ink 01BRET HARTE ELEMENTARY 

SCHOOL

5,000.00 

CS24-00185 KAREN GIERLACH WEST SEMINAR TRAINING 

FOR TEACHERS

01ALICE BIRNEY WALDORF - 

K-8

500.00 

CS24-00186 LAUREN HICKMAN WEST SEMINAR TRAINING 

FOR TEACHERS

01ALICE BIRNEY WALDORF - 

K-8

1,000.00 

CS24-00187 HOUGHTON MIFFLIN 

HARCOURT PUBL ISHING 

CO

SRI 1 YEAR CONTRACT 

9/1/2023 - 6/30/2024

01EARL WARREN 

ELEMENTARY SCHOOL

2,065.00 

CS24-00188 JDQH LA FAMILY LLC dba 

KONA-IC E OF CENTRAL 

SACRAMENTO

KONA ICE COMMUNITY 

EVENT 2023

01ENROLLMENT CENTER 4,748.00 

CS24-00189 CHANDO'S TACOS CHANDOS TACOS 

COMMUNITY EVENT 2023

01ENROLLMENT CENTER 3,894.70 

CS24-00190 DREWSKI'S HOT ROD 

KITCHEN

DREWSKI'S CONTRA CT FOR 

2023 COMMUNITY FAIR 

EVENT

01ENROLLMENT CENTER 5,856.19 

CS24-00192 BE GLAD LLC FLW: COGNITIVE COACHING 

ONSITE

01MULTILINGUAL EDUCATION 

DEPT.

6,200.00 

CS24-00193 ARMIJO LEGAL SOLUTIONS TITLE IX 

INVESTIGATION-SY22-23

01ADMIN-LEGAL COUNSEL 25,080.06 

CS24-00194 GWENDOLYN GILES dba 

DOG PARTY PUBLISHING

MUSICAL PERFOMANCE FOR 

COMMUNITY EVENT

01COMMUNICATIONS OFFICE 500.00 

CS24-00195 LPC CONSULTING 

ASSOCIATES INC

EVALUATION OF YDSS 01YOUTH DEVELOPMENT 42,500.00 

CS24-00196 THE HAWK INSTITUTE HAWK SUMMER BRIDGE 

2023

01HEALTH PROFESSIONS 

HIGH SCHOOL

55,000.00 

*** See the last page for criteria limiting the report detail.

The preceding Purchase Orders have been issued in accordance with the District's Purchasing Policy and 

authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Purchase Orders be approved 

and that payment be authorized upon delivery and acceptance of the items ordered.

097 - Sacramento City Unified School District Generated for Victoria Mena (VICTORIA-MENA2), Nov  6 2023 

10:15AM

Page 6 of 29



Board Report with FundReqPay11c

Includes Purchase Orders dated 09/15/2023 - 10/14/2023 ***

PO

Number Vendor Name Description

Account

AmountLocation Fund

CS24-00198 VAN DERMYDEN MAKUS 

LAW CORP

INVESTIGATIVE SERVICES 01ADMIN-LEGAL COUNSEL 30,000.00 

CS24-00199 KMM SERVICES INC 476 SERNA CONFERENCE 

AV - CONSTRUCTION MGMT

21FACILITIES SUPPORT 

SERVICES

11,890.00 

CS24-00200 KOGNITO SOLUTIONS LLC VIRTUAL NURSING 

PROGRAM CLASSES- 3 of 3

11CHARLES A. JONES CAREER 

& ED

17,600.00 

CS24-00201 STREET SOCCER USA INC SUMMER 2023 - 

SUPPLEMENTAL PROVIDER

01YOUTH DEVELOPMENT 24,400.00 

CS24-00202 LAST CHANCE 

PRODUCTION

ATTENDANCE AWARENESS 

COMMERCIAL 2023

01ENROLLMENT CENTER 850.00 

CS24-00203 IRIS TAYLOR CONSULTING CONSULTANT FOR 

ACADEMIC OFFICE

01ACADEMIC OFFICE 26,940.04 

CS24-00204 MINDFUL SCHOOLS MINDFUL SCHOOLS 

SERVICE PROPOSAL

01STUDENT 

SUPPORT&HEALTH SRVCS

3,315.00 

CS24-00205 DWIGHT TAYLOR SR PROFESSIONAL GROWTH 

TRAINING FOR  STAFF 23/24

01SUCCESS ACADEMY 25,960.00 

CS24-00207 ENTEK CONSULTING 

GROUP, INC

0242-468 MATSUYAMA 

CAMPUS HAZARDOUS 

MATERIALS

21FACILITIES SUPPORT 

SERVICES

37,800.00 

CS24-00208 NICOLE ROGERS THE CENTRAL KITCHEN 

MARKETING AGREEMENT

13NUTRITION SERVICES 

DEPARTMENT

71,400.00 

CS24-00209 MACLEOD WATTS INC GASB 75 ACTUARIAL 

VALUATION SVCS

01RISK MANAGEMENT 25,400.00 

CS24-00210 UNIVERSITY OF 

SACRAMENTO CALIF

SAC STATE: RETENTION 

STUDY: FOCUS GROUP

01HUMAN RESOURCE 

SERVICES

35,291.00 

CS24-00211 AMBER FITZGERALD CONSULT SERV FOR A.C. 

AND PRESCH

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

36,450.00 

CS24-00212 DIGITAL DEPLOYMENT INC WEB HOSTING SERVICE, 

7/1/23 - 6/30/24

01TECHNOLOGY SERVICES 96,000.00 

CS24-00213 DIVOT ASSETS, INC TITLE I FIXED ASSET 

VALUATION

01BUSINESS SERVICES 42,955.16 

CS24-00214 CALIFORNIA FIRE FIGHTER 

JOINT APPRENTICESHIP 

COMMITTEE

CA FIRE FIGHTERS  

2021-2022 APPRENTICESHIP 

PROGRAM

11CHARLES A. JONES CAREER 

& ED

718,190.74 

CS24-00215 BRIDGES OF THE MIND 

PSYCHOLOGI CAL 

SERVICES

INDEPENDENT 

EDUCATIONAL EVALUATIONS

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

20,000.00 

CS24-00216 ALZA STRATEGIES LLC Alza Consulting Contract-Hilary 

McLean

01BOARD OF EDUCATION 33,750.00 

CS24-00217 WICONDRA STOVALL dba 

ARA'S EDU CATION 

CONSULTING LLC

Just Like A Mom Program 09THE MET 85,000.00 

CS24-00218 NORTHERN CALIFORNIA 

CHILDRENS THERAPY 

CENTER

IEE Occupational Therapy 

Assessmen for TY

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

1,500.00 

CS24-00219 RENAISSANCE LEARNING 

INC

Renaissance Subscription 

Renewal

01ACADEMIC OFFICE 4,375.00 

CS24-00220 IMPROVE YOUR 

TOMORROW

IMPROVE YOUR TOMORROW 01COUNSELING SERVICES 150,000.00 

*** See the last page for criteria limiting the report detail.

The preceding Purchase Orders have been issued in accordance with the District's Purchasing Policy and 

authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Purchase Orders be approved 

and that payment be authorized upon delivery and acceptance of the items ordered.

097 - Sacramento City Unified School District Generated for Victoria Mena (VICTORIA-MENA2), Nov  6 2023 

10:15AM

Page 7 of 29



Board Report with FundReqPay11c

Includes Purchase Orders dated 09/15/2023 - 10/14/2023 ***

PO

Number Vendor Name Description

Account

AmountLocation Fund

CS24-00221 LINDAMOOD-BELL 

LEARNING PRO.

sensory-cognitive OAH 01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

30,800.00 

CS24-00222 KOMBAT SOCCER INC POLO SHIRTS 01YOUTH DEVELOPMENT 3,168.83 

CS24-00223 LISA PIPPIN, LEP INDEPENDENT EVALUATION 01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

5,550.00 

CS24-00224 PROFESSIONAL TUTORS OF 

AMERICA

Tutoring MOU TG 01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

5,580.00 

CS24-00225 FRANKLIN COVEY CLIENT 

SALES

FRANKLIN COVEY - LEADER 

IN ME AGREEMENT

09NEW JOSEPH BONNHEIM 10,700.00 

CS24-00226 PEARSON CLINICAL 

ASSESSMENT OR DERING 

DEPARTMENT

PEARSON TRAINING-Quote 

10000101444820

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

14,000.00 

CS24-00227 CALIFORNIA LEARNING 

CENTERS

AGENCY TUTORING PER 

SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT 

.

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

5,500.00 

CS24-00228 JABBERGYM LLC Speech & Language MOU TG 01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

4,284.00 

CS24-00229 BRIDGES OF THE MIND 

PSYCHOLOGI CAL 

SERVICES

INDEPENDENT 

EDUCATIONAL EVALUATIONS 

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

6,000.00 

CS24-00230 SPRING PSYCHOLOGY IEE Psycho Educational for 01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

6,000.00 

CS24-00231 TTC4SUCCESS INDEPENDENT ED EVAL OAH 01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

8,000.00 

CS24-00232 NATIONAL CINEMEDIA LLC MOVIE THEATER AD - 

ATTENDANCE AWARENESS 

MONTH

01ENROLLMENT CENTER 12,036.43 

CS24-00233 VISION 2000 EDUCATIONAL 

FOUNDA TION

23-24 ESSA/ESEA 

TUTORING-NPS

01CONSOLIDATED PROGRAMS 194,000.00 

CS24-00234 IGNITE 2 UNITE LLC BREAKING DOWN THE 

WALLS

01JOHN H. STILL - K-8 4,000.00 

CS24-00235 FORXA INC DANCE ACADEMY 01JOHN H. STILL - K-8 2,000.00 

CS24-00236 EXCEL INTERPRETING LLC INTERPRETING/ 

CAMBODIAN/KHMER

01SUTTERVILLE ELEMENTARY 

SCHOOL

130.00 

CS24-00237 3 FORTY INC SOUND SYSTEM & STAGE 

FOR COMMUNITY EVENT 

2023

01ENROLLMENT CENTER 1,870.00 

CS24-00238 VOYAGER SOPRIS 

LEARNING INC

VOYAGER SOPRIS 

(ACADIENCE) LEARNING

01SUTTERVILLE ELEMENTARY 

SCHOOL

3,339.00 

CS24-00239 FRANKLIN COVEY CLIENT 

SALES

LEADER IN ME' PROGRAM 

MEMBERSHIP

01WILLIAM LAND ELEMENTARY 3,750.00 

CS24-00240 KITCHELL CEM INC 477 PACIFIC ES NEW 

SCHOOL - CONSTRUCTION 

MGMT SVC

21FACILITIES SUPPORT 

SERVICES

2,105,614.00 

CS24-00241 PAWAR TRANSPORTATION 

LLC

SPED STUDENT 

TRANSPORTATION 

HOME-TO-SCHOOL

01TRANSPORTATION 

SERVICES

1,700,000.00 

CS24-00242 HMC ARCHITECTS 0272-416 PARKWAY SHADE 

STRUCTURE - ARCHITECT 

SVC

21FACILITIES SUPPORT 

SERVICES

40,000.00 

*** See the last page for criteria limiting the report detail.

The preceding Purchase Orders have been issued in accordance with the District's Purchasing Policy and 

authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Purchase Orders be approved 

and that payment be authorized upon delivery and acceptance of the items ordered.

097 - Sacramento City Unified School District Generated for Victoria Mena (VICTORIA-MENA2), Nov  6 2023 

10:15AM

Page 8 of 29



Board Report with FundReqPay11c

Includes Purchase Orders dated 09/15/2023 - 10/14/2023 ***

PO

Number Vendor Name Description

Account

AmountLocation Fund

CS24-00243 CENTER FOR FATHERS & 

FAMILIES

SUMMER MATTERS  

JUNE20-JULY 21

09NEW JOSEPH BONNHEIM 94,216.00 

CS24-00244 KAMRON LEWIS dba 

CONSCIOUS MIN DZ

ENTERTAINER FOR 

COMMUNITY FAIR 23

01ENROLLMENT CENTER 250.00 

CS24-00245 KMM SERVICES INC 0560-403 MET SAC DOOR 

SECURITY - CONSULTING 

SVC

21FACILITIES SUPPORT 

SERVICES

3,915.00 

CS24-00246 KMM SERVICES INC 0521-403 WEST CAMPUS 

SECURITY - CONSULTING 

SVC

21FACILITIES SUPPORT 

SERVICES

4,455.00 

CS24-00247 TERRACON CONSULTANTS 

INC

0146-465 I.COHEN SECURITY 

SPECIAL INSPECTIONS

21FACILITIES SUPPORT 

SERVICES

7,875.00 

CS24-00248 B & B LOCATING INC 0525-470 JFK SB/BASEBALL - 

LOCATE/MARK UTILITIES

21FACILITIES SUPPORT 

SERVICES

10,700.00 

CS24-00249 B & B LOCATING INC 0521-470 WCHS 

SB/BASEBALL - 

LOCATE/MARK UTILITIES

21FACILITIES SUPPORT 

SERVICES

21,400.00 

CS24-00250 EATON INTERPRETING 

SERVICES IN C

ASL TRANSLATOR FOR BACK 

TO SCHOOL NIGHT

01WILLIAM LAND ELEMENTARY 345.00 

CS24-00251 FRANKLIN COVEY CLIENT 

SALES

LEADER IN ME PROGRAM 

COACHING SUBSCRIPTION

01WILLIAM LAND ELEMENTARY 3,330.00 

CS24-00252 POINT BREAK POINT BREAK WORKSHOP - 

9th GRADE ACADEMY

01LUTHER BURBANK HIGH 

SCHOOL

4,250.00 

CS24-00253 COLLABORATIVE FOR 

ACADEMIC SOC IAL AND 

EMOTIONAL LEARNING

CASEL CDI 23/24 Agreement 01ACADEMIC OFFICE 10,000.00 

CS24-00254 CALIFORNIA SCHOOLS 

DENTAL COAL ITION

DENTAL CONTRIBUTIONS 68RISK MANAGEMENT 6,553,204.00 

CS24-00255 VISION 2000 EDUCATIONAL 

FOUNDA TION

23-24 ESSA/ESEA 3% 

TUTORING ADMIN FEES

01CONSOLIDATED PROGRAMS 6,000.00 

CS24-00256 MEDIATION OFFICE OF 

KIMBERLY S CHULIST LLC

ADR Services 01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

80,000.00 

CS24-00257 MOVE INTERNATIONAL MOVE Speaker Fees and Staff 

Training

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

10,000.00 

CS24-00264 COLLEGE ENTRANCE 

EXAMINATION B OARD

PSAT & SAT CONTRACT 01STRATEGY & CONTINOUS 

IMPRVMNT

208,689.90 

CS24-00265 NACHT & LEWIS 

ARCHITECTS INC

478 FERN BACON MOD/NEW 

SCHOOL - ARCHITECTURAL 

SVC

21FACILITIES SUPPORT 

SERVICES

3,780,000.00 

CS24-00267 LIONAKIS 477 PACIFIC ES NEW 

SCHOOL - ARCHITECTURAL 

SVC

21FACILITIES SUPPORT 

SERVICES

3,760,000.00 

CS24-00269 UNITED COLLEGE ACTION 

NETWORK INC

23-24 U-CAN CONTRACT 01COUNSELING SERVICES 160,000.00 

CS24-00272 TUTOR ME LA LLC FOSTER YOUTH TUTORING 

2022-2023 FY

01FOSTER YOUTH SERVICES 

PROGRAM

200,000.00 

CS24-00274 ACTION SUPPORTIVE CARE 

SERVICE

23-24 504 ACTION 

CONTRACT

01HEALTH SERVICES 350,000.00 

CS24-00275 ACTION SUPPORTIVE CARE 

SERVICE

23-24 COVID ACTION 

CONTRACT

01HEALTH SERVICES 550,000.00 

*** See the last page for criteria limiting the report detail.

The preceding Purchase Orders have been issued in accordance with the District's Purchasing Policy and 

authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Purchase Orders be approved 

and that payment be authorized upon delivery and acceptance of the items ordered.

097 - Sacramento City Unified School District Generated for Victoria Mena (VICTORIA-MENA2), Nov  6 2023 

10:15AM

Page 9 of 29



Board Report with FundReqPay11c

Includes Purchase Orders dated 09/15/2023 - 10/14/2023 ***

PO

Number Vendor Name Description

Account

AmountLocation Fund

CS24-00276 MAXIM HEALTHCARE 

STAFFING SERV ICES INC

23-24 COVID MAXIM 

CONTRACT

01HEALTH SERVICES 300,000.00 

CS24-00279 KITCHELL CEM INC 0510-433 CKM HVAC - 

CONSTRUCTION 

MANAGEMENT

21FACILITIES SUPPORT 

SERVICES

185,680.00 

CS24-00280 KITCHELL CEM INC 0510-470 CKM 

SOFT/BASEBALL - 

CONSTRUCTION MGMT

21FACILITIES SUPPORT 

SERVICES

218,670.00 

CS24-00283 SPEECH PATHOLOGY 

GROUP INC

SPECIAL ED TEACHERS 01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

2,163,840.00 

N24-00002 NORTHERN CALIFORNIA 

REHAB INC

NPA SERVICES (OT) 01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

816,480.00 

N24-00007 PLACER LEARNING 

CENTER

NPS EDUCATIONAL 

SERVICES

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

56,500.00 

N24-00008 MOUNTAIN VALLEY CHILD & 

FAMILY  SERVICES

SETTLEMENT RESIDENTIAL 

PLACEMENT 

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

364,000.00 

N24-00009 NORTHERN CALIFORNIA 

CHILDRENS THERAPY 

CENTER

NPA SERVICES (OT) 01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

9,000.00 

N24-00010 ALDAR ACADEMY CORP NPS EDUCATION SERVICES 

(ED/SLD)

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

1,288,000.00 

N24-00011 SIERRA FOOTHILLS 

ACADEMY

NPS EDUCATIONAL 

SERVICES 

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

180,800.00 

N24-00012 NORTHERN CALIFORNIA 

PREPARATOR Y SCHOOL

NPS EDUCATIONAL 

SERVICES 

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

420,000.00 

N24-00013 CHARTWELL SCHOOL NPS EDUCATIONAL 

SERVICES 

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

62,160.00 

N24-00014 MAXIM HEALTHCARE 

STAFFING SERV ICES INC

NPA SERVICES (1:1 

BEHAVIOR TECHNICIAN)

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

9,509,760.00 

N24-00015 OPPORTUNITY ACRES NPS EDUCATIONAL 

SERVICES

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

117,600.00 

N24-00016 DISCOVERY RANCH SETTLEMENT RESIDENTIAL 

PLACEMENT - .

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

246,400.00 

P24-00751 OPCONNECT INC EV CHARGER 

REPLACEMENT - CENTRAL 

KITCHEN

01FACILITIES MAINTENANCE 14,427.00 

P24-00753 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES 10 GALLON CAN LINERS - 

LISA STEVENS

12EARLY LEARNING & CARE 

PROGRAMS

120.30 

P24-00754 THE HOME DEPOT PRO CUSTODIAL SUPPLIES 01JOHN BIDWELL 

ELEMENTARY

651.04 

P24-00755 CHEFS TOYS LLC ELECTRIC CAN 

OPENER-CHACON "TREAT 

AS CONFIRMING"

13NUTRITION SERVICES 

DEPARTMENT

864.56 

P24-00756 ALL WEST COACHLINES INC CHARTER BUS FOR FT TO 

USS HORNET - AFJROTC

01C. K. McCLATCHY HIGH 

SCHOOL

3,319.82 

P24-00757 CDW GOVERNMENT PROJECTOR FOR 

CLASSROOM

01TAHOE ELEMENTARY 

SCHOOL

592.69 

P24-00758 CDW GOVERNMENT INK FOR PRINTERS 01MATSUYAMA ELEMENTARY 

SCHOOL

1,234.00 

*** See the last page for criteria limiting the report detail.

The preceding Purchase Orders have been issued in accordance with the District's Purchasing Policy and 

authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Purchase Orders be approved 

and that payment be authorized upon delivery and acceptance of the items ordered.

097 - Sacramento City Unified School District Generated for Victoria Mena (VICTORIA-MENA2), Nov  6 2023 

10:15AM

Page 10 of 29



Board Report with FundReqPay11c

Includes Purchase Orders dated 09/15/2023 - 10/14/2023 ***

PO

Number Vendor Name Description

Account

AmountLocation Fund

P24-00759 BISHOPS PUMPKIN FARM 

INC

BISHOPS FARM/PUMPKIN 

FARM FIELD TRIP - KINDER

09NEW JOSEPH BONNHEIM 260.00 

P24-00760 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES AAC ORDER - MULTIPLE 01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

3,191.60 

P24-00761 ODP BUSINESS SOLUTIONS 

LLC

CLASSROOM SUPPLIES 01C. K. McCLATCHY HIGH 

SCHOOL

896.20 

P24-00762 ODP BUSINESS SOLUTIONS 

LLC

Room 14 SDC TEACHER 

SUPPLIES

01JOHN D SLOAT BASIC 

ELEMENTARY

67.77 

P24-00763 COOLE SCHOOL STUDENT 

PLANNERS/AGENDAS FOR 

STUDENT USE SY 23-24

01WILL C. WOOD MIDDLE 

SCHOOL

450.85 

P24-00764 CURTIS ROBERTS 

INSPECTIONS

LEAD WATER TESTING - Am. 

Legion #121

12EARLY LEARNING & CARE 

PROGRAMS

765.00 

P24-00765 CURTIS ROBERTS 

INSPECTIONS

LEAD WATER TESTING - Am. 

Legion #123

12EARLY LEARNING & CARE 

PROGRAMS

955.00 

P24-00766 LAKESHORE LEARNING 

MATERIALS

Angelle Carson, Preschool 

Enrollment Ctr, Room 13

12EARLY LEARNING & CARE 

PROGRAMS

8,916.80 

P24-00767 ENABLING DEVICES AAC/AT MATERIAL - 

MeRa@Ethel Phillips

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

676.67 

P24-00768 TROXELL 

COMMUNICATIONS INC

QUOTE #286649  INSTALL 

TVS IN ROOM /WALL MOUNTS

01HOLLYWOOD PARK 

ELEMENTARY

10,363.64 

P24-00769 HOUGHTON MIFFLIN 

HARCOURT PUBL ISHING 

CO

INSTRUCTIONAL 

MATERIALS-CLASSROOM 

CURRICULUM

01SAM BRANNAN MIDDLE 

SCHOOL

1,703.04 

P24-00770 CDW GOVERNMENT SPED TEACHER USE 

PRINTERS

01CALIFORNIA MIDDLE 

SCHOOL

628.13 

P24-00771 ROLAN NOGHLI dba 

PARKLANE CLEA NERS

TREAT-AS-CONFIRMING: 

AFJROTC 

CLEANING/ALTERATIONS

01C. K. McCLATCHY HIGH 

SCHOOL

2,484.92 

P24-00772 ANIXTER INC 0807-465 MULTI SITES 

SECURITY IMPROVE-ACCESS 

CARDS

21FACILITIES SUPPORT 

SERVICES

7,356.94 

P24-00773 LAMON CONSTRUCTION CO 

INC

0410-409-1 AEINSTEIN ROOF 

REPLACE 2 CONCRETE 

PANEL

21FACILITIES SUPPORT 

SERVICES

4,500.00 

P24-00774 WEST COAST ARBORISTS 

INC

TREE SERVICES @ O. W. 

ERLEWINE NATURE TRAIL

01FACILITIES MAINTENANCE 19,000.00 

P24-00775 KC ENTERPRISES LTD dba 

DIGITAL  ARTS

0825-476 SERNA 

CONFERENCE AV - 

TRICASTER SYSTEM

21FACILITIES SUPPORT 

SERVICES

41,659.00 

P24-00776 BCI BURKE CO LLC SLIDE REPLACEMENT @ 

JOHN STILL ELEM

01FACILITIES MAINTENANCE 8,431.93 

P24-00777 HERC RENTALS INC CKM TEMP LIGHTING 

RENTAL / SPORTS FIELD

01FACILITIES MAINTENANCE 31,287.38 

P24-00778 IXL LEARNING INC IXL LEARNING 01ROSEMONT HIGH SCHOOL 6,750.00 

P24-00779 NATIONAL PROFESSIONAL 

RESOURCE  NPR

ELL in Preschool Brochure - 

Doris Reese

12EARLY LEARNING & CARE 

PROGRAMS

2,966.63 

P24-00780 NO TEARS LEARNING INC 

dba LEAR NING WITHOUT 

TEARS

PRE K STUDENT WORK 

BOOKS 23-24 SCHOOL YEAR

01WASHINGTON ELEMENTARY 

SCHOOL

217.44 

*** See the last page for criteria limiting the report detail.

The preceding Purchase Orders have been issued in accordance with the District's Purchasing Policy and 

authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Purchase Orders be approved 

and that payment be authorized upon delivery and acceptance of the items ordered.

097 - Sacramento City Unified School District Generated for Victoria Mena (VICTORIA-MENA2), Nov  6 2023 

10:15AM

Page 11 of 29



Board Report with FundReqPay11c

Includes Purchase Orders dated 09/15/2023 - 10/14/2023 ***

PO

Number Vendor Name Description

Account

AmountLocation Fund

P24-00781 CURRICULUM ASSOCIATES 

LLC

QUICK-WORD HANDBOOK 

FOR EVERYDAY WRITERS 

2ND GR

01CROCKER/RIVERSIDE 

ELEMENTARY

202.04 

P24-00782 BISHOPS PUMPKIN FARM 

INC

BISHOPS FARM/PUMPKIN 

FARM FIELD TRIP - TK

09NEW JOSEPH BONNHEIM 229.00 

P24-00783 ACADEMIC AFFAIRS YOUR 

GRADUATI ON SUPPLY

ACADEMIC AFFAIRS 09GEO WASHINGTON CARVER 833.56 

P24-00784 ALLIANCE REDWOODS 

CONF GROUNDS

ALLIANCE REDWOODS 

SCIENCE CAMP 22/23

01BG CHACON ACADEMY 2,948.50 

P24-00785 DOMINIC ALLAMANO MENTORED URBAN AG PGM 

PRUNING/CARES

01CAREER & TECHNICAL 

PREPARATION

1,392.50 

P24-00786 CITY OF SACRAMENTO 

REVENUE DIV ISION

FALSE FIRE ALARM 

CHARGES

01AMERICAN LEGION HIGH 

SCHOOL

431.00 

P24-00787 YVONNE MARTINEZ REIMB FOR PARKING 

PERMITS - TREAT AS 

CONFIRMING

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

1,188.00 

P24-00788 ALL WEST COACHLINES INC FIELD TRIP ALL WEST 

COACH USA

09NEW JOSEPH BONNHEIM 1,300.02 

P24-00789 DORIS REESE Reim for Doris Reese, 

Coordinator.

12EARLY LEARNING & CARE 

PROGRAMS

1,460.39 

P24-00790 PACIFIC OFFICE 

AUTOMATION

INK & MASTER ROLL 01GENEVIEVE DIDION 

ELEMENTARY

653.26 

P24-00791 ODP BUSINESS SOLUTIONS 

LLC

CHAIR PURCHASE 01LEONARDO da VINCI 

ELEMENTARY

108.22 

P24-00792 HUBERT COMPANY LLC SERVING CONTAINERS AND 

UTENSILS - ALL SITES

12EARLY LEARNING & CARE 

PROGRAMS

2,158.83 

P24-00793 ACCREDITING COMMISSION 

FOR SCH OOLS, WASC

WASC_ACCREDITATION 

FEES

11CHARLES A. JONES CAREER 

& ED

1,190.00 

P24-00794 AMERICAN PRINTING 

HOUSE FOR TH E BLIND INC

VI MATERIAL - FORNELL 01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

2,606.18 

P24-00795 FRONT ROW EDUCATIONAL 

SERVICES  ATTN MICHELE 

OAKES

SERNA- RUMI NOZUE 12EARLY LEARNING & CARE 

PROGRAMS

232.00 

P24-00796 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES SUPPLIES/MATERIALS 

(HOMELESS SERVICES)

01STUDENT 

SUPPORT&HEALTH SRVCS

1,740.96 

P24-00797 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES SUPPLIES/MATERIALS 

(HOMELESS SERVICES)

01STUDENT 

SUPPORT&HEALTH SRVCS

2,767.60 

P24-00798 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES SUPPLIES/MATERIALS 

(HOMELESS SERVICES)

01STUDENT 

SUPPORT&HEALTH SRVCS

1,703.61 

P24-00799 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES WHEEL WEIGHTS & TST 

STRIPS-INST MAT 

ENGINEERING

01ENGINEERING AND 

SCIENCES HS

39.87 

P24-00801 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES VI MATERIAL - FORNELL 01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

86.10 

P24-00802 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES AAC/AT ORDER - MULTIPLE 01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

221.70 

P24-00803 AAA GARMENTS & 

LETTERING INC

HMS ACADEMY- UNIFORMS 

2023-24SY

01HIRAM W. JOHNSON HIGH 

SCHOOL

2,228.78 

P24-00804 AAA GARMENTS & 

LETTERING INC

HMS SCRUBS 2023-24SY 01HIRAM W. JOHNSON HIGH 

SCHOOL

1,404.63 

*** See the last page for criteria limiting the report detail.

The preceding Purchase Orders have been issued in accordance with the District's Purchasing Policy and 

authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Purchase Orders be approved 

and that payment be authorized upon delivery and acceptance of the items ordered.

097 - Sacramento City Unified School District Generated for Victoria Mena (VICTORIA-MENA2), Nov  6 2023 

10:15AM

Page 12 of 29



Board Report with FundReqPay11c

Includes Purchase Orders dated 09/15/2023 - 10/14/2023 ***

PO

Number Vendor Name Description

Account

AmountLocation Fund

P24-00805 PEARSON CLINICAL 

ASSESSMENT OR DERING 

DEPARTMENT

PROTOCOL - OT MATSUURA 01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

3,868.89 

P24-00806 PEARSON CLINICAL 

ASSESSMENT OR DERING 

DEPARTMENT

PROTOCOL - PSYCH 

HERNANDEZ

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

3,393.90 

P24-00807 GOOD LITE CO VI MATERIAL - FORNELL 01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

589.18 

P24-00808 HAUGEN MFG INC dba 

OLYMPIC KIL NS

REPLACEMENT PARTS FOR 

CLASSROOM KILN 2023-24SY

01ROSEMONT HIGH SCHOOL 2,040.83 

P24-00809 UNITED VOLLEYBALL 

SUPPLY LLC

VOLLEYBALL SPORT EQUIP 

2023-24SY

01ROSA PARKS MIDDLE 

SCHOOL

604.20 

P24-00810 SCHOOL NURSE SUPPLY 

INC

SUPPLIES FOR NURSES 

OFFICE 2023-24SY

01WILL C. WOOD MIDDLE 

SCHOOL

75.75 

P24-00811 GRANICK SPORT INC dba S 

& R SP ORT

SWIM UNIFORMS 2023-24SY 01WEST CAMPUS 2,483.38 

P24-00812 CAPITOL BUILDERS 

HARDWARE INC

METAL FRAMES FOR 

WINDOWS 2023-24SY

01MIWOK MIDDLE SCHOOL 264.26 

P24-00813 PAYLESS SWIM LLC SWIM CAPS 2023-24SY 01WEST CAMPUS 706.88 

P24-00814 BSN SPORTS LLC GIRLS BASKETBALL 

UNIFORMS 2023-24SY

01WEST CAMPUS 1,855.98 

P24-00815 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES MATERIAL - CBI 01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

820.79 

P24-00816 EPIC SPORTS INC SUPPLIES FOR FOOTBALL 

FOR ELEMENTARY 

2023-24SY

01EQUITY, ACCESS & 

EXCELLENCE

2,131.30 

P24-00817 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES LAPTOP STAND CHRIS AND 

JENNIFER

01ACCOUNTING SERVICES 

DEPARTMENT

66.54 

P24-00818 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES SUPPLEMENTAL 

EXTRACURRICULAR 

MATERIALS-YEARBOOK

01SAM BRANNAN MIDDLE 

SCHOOL

1,822.20 

P24-00819 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES SUPPLIES FOR CLASSROOM 

& RADIO BATTERIES

01ROSEMONT HIGH SCHOOL 196.03 

P24-00820 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES FIGUEROA INSTRUCTIONAL 

SUPPLIES

01HIRAM W. JOHNSON HIGH 

SCHOOL

114.62 

P24-00821 SCHOOL NURSE SUPPLY 

INC

INVOICES FROM 2023 01HIRAM W. JOHNSON HIGH 

SCHOOL

1,198.71 

P24-00822 JET MULCH INC CONFIRMING UNPAID JET 

MULCH @ EARL WARREN

01FACILITIES MAINTENANCE 5,216.22 

P24-00823 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES ATTN: KRISTEN ENCINAS, 

MLK JR CHILDRENS CTR, RM 

14

12EARLY LEARNING & CARE 

PROGRAMS

262.94 

P24-00824 ODP BUSINESS SOLUTIONS 

LLC

ODP 01CONSOLIDATED PROGRAMS 94.05 

P24-00825 SDI INNOVATIONS INC dba 

SCHOOL  DATEBOOKS

SCHOOL DATEBOOKS/ 

PLANNERS

01WEST CAMPUS 184.09 

P24-00826 MINGA SOLUTIONS INC MINGA PROGRAM FOR 

STUDENT ENGAGEMENT

01ENGINEERING AND 

SCIENCES HS

2,000.00 

P24-00827 ILLUMINATE EDUCATION 

INC

ILLUMINATE 23-24 

SOFTWARE LICENSE

01STRATEGY & CONTINOUS 

IMPRVMNT

288,589.83 

*** See the last page for criteria limiting the report detail.

The preceding Purchase Orders have been issued in accordance with the District's Purchasing Policy and 

authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Purchase Orders be approved 

and that payment be authorized upon delivery and acceptance of the items ordered.

097 - Sacramento City Unified School District Generated for Victoria Mena (VICTORIA-MENA2), Nov  6 2023 

10:15AM

Page 13 of 29



Board Report with FundReqPay11c

Includes Purchase Orders dated 09/15/2023 - 10/14/2023 ***

PO

Number Vendor Name Description

Account

AmountLocation Fund

P24-00828 PROMOTIONS PLUS PE UNIFORMS 2023-24SY 01MIWOK MIDDLE SCHOOL 13,123.83 

P24-00829 PRECISION 

COMMUNICATIONS INC

0825-476 SERNA 

CONFERENCE AV - CABLE 

PULL

21FACILITIES SUPPORT 

SERVICES

2,050.00 

P24-00830 ERICA MATTER REIMBURSEMENT - 

CLASSROOM SUP ERICA 

MATTER

09NEW JOSEPH BONNHEIM 486.21 

P24-00831 UNIVERSAL LIMOUSINE CO CHICO FILED TRIP 01HEALTH PROFESSIONS 

HIGH SCHOOL

2,365.00 

P24-00832 PACIFIC OFFICE 

AUTOMATION

PURCHASING CONTRACT 

FOR RISO- Rental

01ISADOR COHEN 

ELEMENTARY SCHOOL

457.94 

P24-00833 TEACHER SYNERGY LLC 

dba TEACHE RS PAY 

TEACHERS

Teacher Synergy Licenses 09NEW TECH 1,800.00 

P24-00834 TROXELL 

COMMUNICATIONS INC

HEADPHONES FOR ESL 

STUDENTS

09NEW JOSEPH BONNHEIM 976.14 

P24-00835 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES TRAFFIC CONES 01LUTHER BURBANK HIGH 

SCHOOL

112.00 

P24-00836 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES CLASSROOM MATERIALS 01C. K. McCLATCHY HIGH 

SCHOOL

298.55 

P24-00837 HEGGERTY PHONEMIC 

AWARENESS

PURCHASE TEACHER 

MANUALS

01HOLLYWOOD PARK 

ELEMENTARY

192.24 

P24-00838 LAKESHORE LEARNING 

MATERIALS

CLASSROOM 

RECOURCES/INTERVENTION

01PONY EXPRESS 

ELEMENTARY SCHOOL

362.51 

P24-00839 PACIFIC OFFICE 

AUTOMATION

RISO MAINT - SERIAL 

#44104592 23/24 S.Y

09BOWLING GREEN 

ELEMENTARY

108.75 

P24-00840 APPLE INC AT-VI MATERIAL - MULTIPLE 01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

12,628.59 

P24-00841 CDW GOVERNMENT HP MONITOR 01STUDENT 

SUPPORT&HEALTH SRVCS

221.88 

P24-00842 CDW GOVERNMENT HP LAPTOP FOR CINDY TAO 01ACCOUNTING SERVICES 

DEPARTMENT

1,100.88 

P24-00843 EAST BAY RESTAURANT 

SUPPLY INC

MILK COOLERS FOR BACKUP 

SCHOOL SITES

13NUTRITION SERVICES 

DEPARTMENT

16,214.63 

P24-00844 SCUSD - US BANK CAL 

CARD

LIVESTREAMING RENEWAL, 

7/30/23 - 7/30/24

01TECHNOLOGY SERVICES 15,080.00 

P24-00845 SCHOOL SPECIALTY ART ROOM SUPPLIES 

2023-24SY

01WASHINGTON ELEMENTARY 

SCHOOL

291.72 

P24-00846 NASCO ART ROOM SUPPLIES 

2023-24SY

01WASHINGTON ELEMENTARY 

SCHOOL

50.13 

P24-00847 LAKESHORE LEARNING 

MATERIALS

ART ROOM MATERIALS FOR 

SDC CLASSES 2023-24SY

01WASHINGTON ELEMENTARY 

SCHOOL

157.65 

P24-00848 SACRAMENTO COUNTY 

OFFICE OF ED UCATION

DEPOSIT FOR SLY PARK: 6TH 

GRD SCIENCE PARK

01A. M. WINN - K-8 2,800.00 

P24-00849 CURRICULUM ASSOCIATES 

LLC

i-Ready 23-24 01CURRICULUM & PROF 

DEVELOP

487,062.40 

P24-00850 DELTAMATH SOLUTIONS 

INC

DELTAMATH INTEGRAL 

LICENSE FOR MATH SY 23-24

01C. K. McCLATCHY HIGH 

SCHOOL

2,030.00 

P24-00851 TEMPLI INC FOOD TRUCK SANDWICH 

WRAPS

13NUTRITION SERVICES 

DEPARTMENT

1,164.71 

*** See the last page for criteria limiting the report detail.

The preceding Purchase Orders have been issued in accordance with the District's Purchasing Policy and 

authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Purchase Orders be approved 

and that payment be authorized upon delivery and acceptance of the items ordered.

097 - Sacramento City Unified School District Generated for Victoria Mena (VICTORIA-MENA2), Nov  6 2023 

10:15AM

Page 14 of 29



Board Report with FundReqPay11c

Includes Purchase Orders dated 09/15/2023 - 10/14/2023 ***

PO

Number Vendor Name Description

Account

AmountLocation Fund

P24-00852 SCUSD - US BANK CAL 

CARD

FIELD TRIP 5TH GRADE 

MOSAC ARRIVE @ 8:15am

09NEW JOSEPH BONNHEIM 845.00 

P24-00853 BOOKS EN MORE BOOKS FOR ENGLISH DEPT 01ENGINEERING AND 

SCIENCES HS

1,033.21 

P24-00854 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES KINDER LEFTY SCISSORS 01WASHINGTON ELEMENTARY 

SCHOOL

21.72 

P24-00855 ESTR PUBLICATIONS TRANSITION CLASS 

MATERIAL - BOBBIE

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

1,925.00 

P24-00856 PACIFIC OFFICE 

AUTOMATION

RISO AND MASTER ROLLS 09BOWLING GREEN 

ELEMENTARY

2,559.92 

P24-00857 ALL WEST COACHLINES INC FIELD TRIP ALL WEST 

COACH USA 09/26/2023

09NEW JOSEPH BONNHEIM 1,300.02 

P24-00858 SCUSD - US BANK CAL 

CARD

# 3598 FIRST ROBOTICS 

COMPETITION @SES

01CAREER & TECHNICAL 

PREPARATION

6,000.00 

P24-00859 PPT HOLDING I LLC dba 

PARK PLA  CE 

TECHNOLOGIES LLC

DATA CENTER 

INFRASTRUCTURE 

SUPPORT RENEWAL

01TECHNOLOGY SERVICES 14,204.52 

P24-00860 NATHAN McGILL TREAT AS CONFIRMING 01ETHEL I. BAKER 

ELEMENTARY

2,815.92 

P24-00861 ZAJIC APPLIANCE SERVICE 

INC

DRYER- XX GE(R) FOR 

BOWLING GREEN

13NUTRITION SERVICES 

DEPARTMENT

833.17 

P24-00862 APPLE INC STAFF LAPTOP Q. 

2212238058

01YOUTH DEVELOPMENT 1,541.91 

P24-00863 BE GLAD LLC BE GLAD- ONLINE LICENSE 

FOR 2 DAYS TRAINING

01MULTILINGUAL EDUCATION 

DEPT.

26,600.00 

P24-00864 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES SPEAKERS AND 

MICROPHONES

09BG CHACON ACADEMY 2,832.97 

P24-00865 GARAGE CHAMPS SPORTS UNIFORM FOR 

RECOGNITION 2023-24SY

01JOHN H. STILL - K-8 3,282.08 

P24-00866 PRECISION 

COMMUNICATIONS INC

DATA DROPS FOR NEW 

CLASSROOMS

01C. K. McCLATCHY HIGH 

SCHOOL

3,402.04 

P24-00867 TEACHER SYNERGY LLC 

dba TEACHE RS PAY 

TEACHERS

CLASSROOM 

INSTRUCTIONAL MATERIALS

01HUBERT H BANCROFT 

ELEMENTARY

2,400.00 

P24-00868 KOMBAT INK KOMBATINK (BOYS SOCCER 

UNIFORMS) 2023-24SY

01JOHN F. KENNEDY HIGH 

SCHOOL

866.00 

P24-00869 RUSSELL SIGLER INC CONFIRMING HVAC COIL 

2023-24SY

01FACILITIES MAINTENANCE 2,307.47 

P24-00870 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES SUPPLIES- COMPUTER 

SCIENCE-J. HUANG @ NEW 

TECH

01CAREER & TECHNICAL 

PREPARATION

102.89 

P24-00871 BLICK ART MATERIALS LLC INSTRUCTIONAL MATERIALS 

ART 2023-24SY

01ALBERT EINSTEIN MIDDLE 

SCHOOL

246.60 

P24-00872 THE HOME DEPOT PRO PE AND ATHLETIC SUPPLIES 

2023-24SY

01LUTHER BURBANK HIGH 

SCHOOL

630.53 

P24-00873 PACIFIC OFFICE 

AUTOMATION

RISO INK FOR 2023/24 SY 01ROSA PARKS MIDDLE 

SCHOOL

491.14 

P24-00874 ODP BUSINESS SOLUTIONS 

LLC

COPY PAPER FOR 2023/24 

SY

01ROSA PARKS MIDDLE 

SCHOOL

1,826.13 

*** See the last page for criteria limiting the report detail.

The preceding Purchase Orders have been issued in accordance with the District's Purchasing Policy and 

authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Purchase Orders be approved 

and that payment be authorized upon delivery and acceptance of the items ordered.

097 - Sacramento City Unified School District Generated for Victoria Mena (VICTORIA-MENA2), Nov  6 2023 

10:15AM

Page 15 of 29



Board Report with FundReqPay11c

Includes Purchase Orders dated 09/15/2023 - 10/14/2023 ***

PO

Number Vendor Name Description

Account

AmountLocation Fund

P24-00875 ECORISE YOUTH 

INNOVATIONS dba ECORISE

ecoRise 2023-24 Subscription 01CURRICULUM & PROF 

DEVELOP

5,000.00 

P24-00876 REFUGEE PROG 11CHARLES A. JONES CAREER 

& ED

1,700.00 

P24-00877 CHARTER AMERICA BUS CO 

THANDI ENTERPRISES INC

COLLEGE TOUR - 

STANFORD/ SAN FRANCISCO

01WEST CAMPUS 1,884.96 

P24-00878 BOOKS EN MORE CLASSROOM NOVEL SET 01HUBERT H BANCROFT 

ELEMENTARY

245.50 

P24-00879 HANNIBALS RESTAURANT 

AND CATER ING

HJ FAMILY ED CENTER 

STAFF RETREAT

12EARLY LEARNING & CARE 

PROGRAMS

2,500.00 

P24-00880 VOICE DREAM LLC TECH FOR CURRICULUM 

ACCESS

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

35,100.00 

P24-00881 DREAMBOX LEARNING INC DREAMBOX SOFTWARE 01JOHN H. STILL - K-8 23,150.00 

P24-00882 UNIVERSAL LIMOUSINE CO KINDER-KEEMA FARM BUS 09BG CHACON ACADEMY 2,025.00 

P24-00883 REFUGEE PROG 11CHARLES A. JONES CAREER 

& ED

981.67 

P24-00884 REFUGEE PROGRAM 11CHARLES A. JONES CAREER 

& ED

1,560.00 

P24-00885 REFUGEE PROGRAM 11CHARLES A. JONES CAREER 

& ED

1,479.99 

P24-00886 PACIFIC OFFICE 

AUTOMATION

RISO SUPPLIES 2023-2024 01CAMELLIA BASIC 

ELEMENTARY

1,082.54 

P24-00887 REFUGEE PROGRAM 11CHARLES A. JONES CAREER 

& ED

1,512.50 

P24-00888 REFUGEE PROGRAM 11CHARLES A. JONES CAREER 

& ED

974.74 

P24-00889 REFUGEE PROGRAM 11CHARLES A. JONES CAREER 

& ED

1,535.00 

P24-00890  REFUGEE PROGRAM 11CHARLES A. JONES CAREER 

& ED

985.00 

P24-00891 CHEFS TOYS LLC SUPPLIES-CULINARY 

ARTS-J. BURDICK@JFK

01CAREER & TECHNICAL 

PREPARATION

829.49 

P24-00892 GLOBAL INDUSTRY 

EQUIPMENT

CART (SHELF) .- COMPUTER 

SCIENCE-J. 

HUANG@NEWTECH

01CAREER & TECHNICAL 

PREPARATION

1,024.52 

P24-00893 AAA GARMENTS & 

LETTERING INC

UNIFORMS FOR NS 

WAREHOUSE WORKERS

13NUTRITION SERVICES 

DEPARTMENT

3,625.98 

P24-00894 GARBANZO LEARNING SPANISH 

SOFTWARE (RENEW AND 

NEW USERS)

01LUTHER BURBANK HIGH 

SCHOOL

894.00 

P24-00895 SCUSD - US BANK CAL 

CARD

CAMPUS PATROL BICYCLE 01LUTHER BURBANK HIGH 

SCHOOL

781.03 

P24-00896 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES PSYCHOLOGIST MATERIAL - 

FOLEY

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

51.56 

P24-00897 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES AUTISM MATERIAL - LINARES 01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

26.87 

P24-00898 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES HR MATERIALS 01HUMAN RESOURCE 

SERVICES

167.20 

P24-00899 DISCOUNT SCHOOL 

SUPPLY

Attn: Mr.Will, PRESCHOOL, 

Room P,

12EARLY LEARNING & CARE 

PROGRAMS

307.68 

*** See the last page for criteria limiting the report detail.

The preceding Purchase Orders have been issued in accordance with the District's Purchasing Policy and 

authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Purchase Orders be approved 

and that payment be authorized upon delivery and acceptance of the items ordered.

097 - Sacramento City Unified School District Generated for Victoria Mena (VICTORIA-MENA2), Nov  6 2023 

10:15AM

Page 16 of 29



Board Report with FundReqPay11c

Includes Purchase Orders dated 09/15/2023 - 10/14/2023 ***

PO

Number Vendor Name Description

Account

AmountLocation Fund

P24-00901 HANNIBAL'S RESTAURANT 

AND CATE

CATERING FOR HBCU 

COLLEGE FAIR 9/13/23

01COUNSELING SERVICES 829.95 

P24-00902 A1 TRADING CO T-SHIRTS FOR THE MET 

2023-24SY

01THE MET 1,408.10 

P24-00903 GOPHER SPORT BALL RACK, NETS & BALLS 

PE INSTRUCTION 2023-24SY

01ENGINEERING AND 

SCIENCES HS

373.20 

P24-00904 FLINN SCIENTIFIC INC 

33411

SCALE & TEST TUBES-SCI 

INST MATERIALS 2023-24SY

01ENGINEERING AND 

SCIENCES HS

1,266.07 

P24-00905 SCUSD - US BANK CAL 

CARD

SLP/AUDIOLOGY CONT. 

PROF DEV PROVIDER 

LICENSE

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

200.00 

P24-00906 CALIFORNIA DEPT OF 

GENERAL SER VICES

455-1 SHADE STRUCTURES 

2A - CAROLINE WENZEL DGS

01FACILITIES SUPPORT 

SERVICES

5,955.31 

P24-00907 CALIFORNIA DEPT OF 

GENERAL SER VICES

455-2 SHADE STRUCTURES 

2B - EARL WARREN DGS

01FACILITIES SUPPORT 

SERVICES

6,533.57 

P24-00908 CALIFORNIA DEPT OF 

GENERAL SER VICES

454-1 SHADE STRUCTURES 

1A - J. BONNHEIM DGS

01FACILITIES SUPPORT 

SERVICES

6,720.90 

P24-00909 CALIFORNIA DEPT OF 

GENERAL SER VICES

454-2 SHADE STRUCTURES 

1B - ALICE BIRNEY DGS

01FACILITIES SUPPORT 

SERVICES

933.44 

P24-00910 CALIFORNIA DEPT OF 

GENERAL SER VICES

455-1 SHADE STRUCTURES 

2A - HOLLYWOOD PARK DGS

01FACILITIES SUPPORT 

SERVICES

6,019.81 

P24-00911 CALIFORNIA DEPT OF 

GENERAL SER VICES

455-1 SHADE STRUCTURES 

2A - JOHN STILL DGS

01FACILITIES SUPPORT 

SERVICES

5,641.56 

P24-00912 CALIFORNIA DEPT OF 

GENERAL SER VICES

455-1 SHADE STRUCTURES 

2A - LEONARDO DA VINCI

01FACILITIES SUPPORT 

SERVICES

6,562.78 

P24-00913 CALIFORNIA DEPT OF 

GENERAL SER VICES

455-2 SHADE STRUCTURES 

2B - ELDER CREEK DGS

01FACILITIES SUPPORT 

SERVICES

4,960.53 

P24-00914 CALIFORNIA DEPT OF 

GENERAL SER VICES

455-2 SHADE STRUCTURES 

2B - MARK TWAIN DGS

01FACILITIES SUPPORT 

SERVICES

5,136.07 

P24-00915 CALIFORNIA DEPT OF 

GENERAL SER VICES

455-2 SHADE STRUCTURES 

2B - ROSA PARKS DGS

01FACILITIES SUPPORT 

SERVICES

5,488.65 

P24-00916 CALIFORNIA DEPT OF 

GENERAL SER VICES

454-1 SHADE STRUCTURES 

1A - SEQUOIA DGS

01FACILITIES SUPPORT 

SERVICES

7,741.24 

P24-00917 CALIFORNIA DEPT OF 

GENERAL SER VICES

454-1 SHADE STRUCTURES 

1A - TAHOE DGS

01FACILITIES SUPPORT 

SERVICES

2,839.91 

P24-00918 CALIFORNIA DEPT OF 

GENERAL SER VICES

454-2 SHADE STRUCTURES 

1B - JOHN BIDWELL DGS

01FACILITIES SUPPORT 

SERVICES

3,598.39 

P24-00919 CALIFORNIA DEPT OF 

GENERAL SER VICES

454-2 SHADE STRUCTURES 

1B - JOHN SLOAT DGS

01FACILITIES SUPPORT 

SERVICES

2,930.11 

P24-00920 SACRAMENTO COUNTY 

PLANNING AND  ENV 

REVIEW

0262-461 NICHOLAS NEW 

SCHOOL - APPLICATION FEE

21FACILITIES SUPPORT 

SERVICES

1,400.00 

P24-00921 NATIONAL AQUATICS 

SERVICES

SQ-5564 REPAIRS FOR POOL 

VACUUM S/N W61623WB4K

01BUILDINGS & 

GROUNDS/OPERATIONS

667.30 

P24-00922 NATIONAL AQUATICS 

SERVICES

SQ-5562 REPAIRS FOR POOL 

VACUUM S/N P15989WB01

01BUILDINGS & 

GROUNDS/OPERATIONS

2,173.14 

P24-00923 NATIONAL AQUATICS 

SERVICES

SQ-5563 REPAIRS FOR POOL 

VACUUM S/N P12217WB01

01BUILDINGS & 

GROUNDS/OPERATIONS

667.29 

P24-00924 UNITED RENTALS N.A. INC TEMP LIGHT RENTAL FOR 

JFK SPORTS FIELD

01FACILITIES MAINTENANCE 1,166.87 

*** See the last page for criteria limiting the report detail.

The preceding Purchase Orders have been issued in accordance with the District's Purchasing Policy and 

authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Purchase Orders be approved 

and that payment be authorized upon delivery and acceptance of the items ordered.

097 - Sacramento City Unified School District Generated for Victoria Mena (VICTORIA-MENA2), Nov  6 2023 

10:15AM

Page 17 of 29



Board Report with FundReqPay11c

Includes Purchase Orders dated 09/15/2023 - 10/14/2023 ***

PO

Number Vendor Name Description

Account

AmountLocation Fund

P24-00925 LINCOLN AQUATICS PARTS FOR JFK POOL - 

CHEMTROLER

01FACILITIES MAINTENANCE 6,127.83 

P24-00926 REFUGEE PROGRAM 11CHARLES A. JONES CAREER 

& ED

1,600.00 

P24-00927 REFUGEE PROGRAM 11CHARLES A. JONES CAREER 

& ED

1,000.00 

P24-00928 REFUGEE PROGRAM 11CHARLES A. JONES CAREER 

& ED

1,000.00 

P24-00929 REFUGEE PROGRAM 11CHARLES A. JONES CAREER 

& ED

1,725.00 

P24-00930 REFUGEE PROGRAM 11CHARLES A. JONES CAREER 

& ED

1,714.67 

P24-00931 REFUGEE PROGRAM 11CHARLES A. JONES CAREER 

& ED

1,750.00 

P24-00932 REFUGEE PROGRAM 11CHARLES A. JONES CAREER 

& ED

1,725.00 

P24-00933 MICHAEL ORVEDAHL TREAT AS CONFIRMING 01ETHEL I. BAKER 

ELEMENTARY

778.45 

P24-00934 REFUGEE PROGRAM 11CHARLES A. JONES CAREER 

& ED

1,725.00 

P24-00935 HID GLOBAL CORP FP MACHINE SUPPLIES 01HUMAN RESOURCE 

SERVICES

3,707.50 

P24-00936 MARK KEEMA dba KEEMAS 

PUMPKIN FARM

KINDER-KEEMA PUMPKIN 

FARMS

09BG CHACON ACADEMY 576.00 

P24-00937 POSITIVE PROMOTIONS INC POSITIVE PROMOTIONS 

2023-24SY

09GEO WASHINGTON CARVER 235.73 

P24-00938 HIGH PROJECT GROUP, INC  

DBA K IDS JUM TECH

AFTERSCHOOL-KIDS JUMP 

TECH/INTERACTIVE

09NEW JOSEPH BONNHEIM 10,438.91 

P24-00939 FUN AND FUNCTION OT FOR MoKh @ Odyssey 01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

100.12 

P24-00940 SCHOLASTIC INC 

SCHOLASTIC MAGA ZINES

CLASSROOM READING 01HUBERT H BANCROFT 

ELEMENTARY

2,558.82 

P24-00941 MARBLESOFT LLC 

KEYGUARD ASSIST IVE 

TECHNOLOGY

AAC/AT MATERIALS KaBa@LP 

Campus (TOUCH CHAT)

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

108.47 

P24-00942 PENGUIN RANDOM HOUSE ETHNIC STUDIES 

SUPPLEMENTAL WORKBOOK

01WEST CAMPUS 1,789.78 

P24-00943 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES LEVEL SYSTEM 

REINFORCERS

01JOHN MORSE THERAPEUTIC 299.43 

P24-00944 SCUSD - US BANK CAL 

CARD

ADMISSION FEES TO THE 

AEROSPACE MUSEUM

01ENGINEERING AND 

SCIENCES HS

1,170.00 

P24-00945 MODEL 1 COMMERCIAL 

VEHICLES

WHEELCHAIR ACCESSIBLE 

VANS FOR SPED

01TRANSPORTATION 

SERVICES

493,898.69 

P24-00946 SCHOOL SPECIALTY CLASSROOM 

RESOURCES/INTERVENTION 

2023-24SY

01PONY EXPRESS 

ELEMENTARY SCHOOL

134.38 

P24-00947 BLICK ART MATERIALS LLC ART ORDER 2023-24SY 01CESAR CHAVEZ 

INTERMEDIATE

353.40 

P24-00948 NSAV SOLUTIONS BULB FOR CULINARY 

PROJECTOR 2023-24SY

01AMERICAN LEGION HIGH 

SCHOOL

151.90 

*** See the last page for criteria limiting the report detail.

The preceding Purchase Orders have been issued in accordance with the District's Purchasing Policy and 

authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Purchase Orders be approved 

and that payment be authorized upon delivery and acceptance of the items ordered.

097 - Sacramento City Unified School District Generated for Victoria Mena (VICTORIA-MENA2), Nov  6 2023 

10:15AM

Page 18 of 29



Board Report with FundReqPay11c

Includes Purchase Orders dated 09/15/2023 - 10/14/2023 ***

PO

Number Vendor Name Description

Account

AmountLocation Fund

P24-00949 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES ATTN: CASSANDRA TILLMAN - 

AMAZON GAMES

12EARLY LEARNING & CARE 

PROGRAMS

342.28 

P24-00951 LAKESHORE LEARNING 

MATERIALS

ATTN: KRISTEN ENCINAS, 

MLK JR CHILDRENS CTR, RM 

14

12EARLY LEARNING & CARE 

PROGRAMS

6,582.91 

P24-00952 BOOKS EN MORE LIBRARY BOOKS 01LUTHER BURBANK HIGH 

SCHOOL

359.99 

P24-00953 CDW GOVERNMENT ELC Printers & Monitors, for 

Central Staff

12EARLY LEARNING & CARE 

PROGRAMS

11,464.08 

P24-00954 B&H FOTO & ELECTRONICS 

CORP B& H PHOTO-VIDEO

CAMERA SHOCKMOUNT- 

MULTI-MEDIA PATHWAY

01CAREER & TECHNICAL 

PREPARATION

377.58 

P24-00955 MICHAEL ORVEDAHL TREAT AS CONFIRMING 01ETHEL I. BAKER 

ELEMENTARY

957.74 

P24-00956 CHARTER AMERICA HBCU FAIR CHARTER BUSES 

9/13/23

01COUNSELING SERVICES 5,845.00 

P24-00957 CURRICULUM ASSOCIATES 

LLC

IREADY MATH LICENSE 

RENEWAL

01FERN BACON MIDDLE 

SCHOOL

891.00 

P24-00958 CALIFORNIA AMERICAN 

WATER

0262-461 NICHOLAS NEW 

SCHOOL WATER SERVICE

21FACILITIES SUPPORT 

SERVICES

5,000.00 

P24-00959 TROXELL 

COMMUNICATIONS INC

Serna AV Equipment 21TECHNOLOGY SERVICES 5,008.50 

P24-00960 TROXELL 

COMMUNICATIONS INC

Serna AV Equipment 21TECHNOLOGY SERVICES 1,700.00 

P24-00961 SCUSD - US BANK CAL 

CARD

FIRST LEGO LEAGUE 

REGISTRATION AND 

SUPPLIES

01WILL C. WOOD MIDDLE 

SCHOOL

765.38 

P24-00962 ODP BUSINESS SOLUTIONS 

LLC

PURCHASE NEW TABLES TO 

REPLACE BROKEN ONE

01HOLLYWOOD PARK 

ELEMENTARY

557.85 

P24-00963 ODP BUSINESS SOLUTIONS 

LLC

CLASSROOM TISSUE BOXES 01WEST CAMPUS 246.78 

P24-00964 LEGO EDUCATION LEGO ED SPIKE PRIME SETS- 

J HUANG @ NEW TECH

01CAREER & TECHNICAL 

PREPARATION

869.89 

P24-00965 TOBII DYNAVOX LLC AT/AAC MATERIALS A.G. @ 

GOLDEN EMPIRE

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

21,734.80 

P24-00966 HORIZON DISTRIBUTORS 

INC

PESTICIDE FOR LABOR 

SHOP

01FACILITIES MAINTENANCE 8,808.75 

P24-00973 OLYMPIC LAND 

CONSTRUCTION

CONFIRMING - IRRIGATION 

REPAIRS - VARIOUS SITES

01FACILITIES MAINTENANCE 132,190.86 

P24-00974 SCHOOL NURSE SUPPLY 

INC

SDC CLASSROOMS AND 

NURSE OFFICE 2023-24SY

01WASHINGTON ELEMENTARY 

SCHOOL

336.04 

P24-00975 NSAV SOLUTIONS LIGHT BULB FOR OVER 

HEAD PROJECTORS 

2023-24SY

01SUCCESS ACADEMY 179.98 

P24-00976 ULINE CULINARY ULINE PURCHASE 

2023-24SY

01AMERICAN LEGION HIGH 

SCHOOL

804.75 

P24-00977 CHARTER AMERICA BUS CO 

THANDI ENTERPRISES INC

TRANSPORTATION FOR 

TREETOP TEAM FIELD TRIP

01LUTHER BURBANK HIGH 

SCHOOL

1,692.90 

P24-00978 ODP BUSINESS SOLUTIONS 

LLC

SUPPLEMENTAL 

INSTRUCTIONAL SUPPLIES

01SAM BRANNAN MIDDLE 

SCHOOL

1,041.13 

P24-00979 CDW GOVERNMENT ADMIN DESKTOP 01ROSEMONT HIGH SCHOOL 1,040.51 

*** See the last page for criteria limiting the report detail.

The preceding Purchase Orders have been issued in accordance with the District's Purchasing Policy and 

authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Purchase Orders be approved 

and that payment be authorized upon delivery and acceptance of the items ordered.

097 - Sacramento City Unified School District Generated for Victoria Mena (VICTORIA-MENA2), Nov  6 2023 

10:15AM

Page 19 of 29



Board Report with FundReqPay11c

Includes Purchase Orders dated 09/15/2023 - 10/14/2023 ***

PO

Number Vendor Name Description

Account

AmountLocation Fund

P24-00980 NATIONAL AQUATICS 

SERVICES

GATHER INFO/INSPECTION 

OF HS POOLS

01FACILITIES MAINTENANCE 3,954.00 

P24-00981 COUNTY OF SACRAMENTO 

ENVIRONME NTAL MGMT 

DEPT

460 CCHAVEZ/EKEMBLE 

NEW SCHOOL - PLAN 

REVIEW FEES

21FACILITIES SUPPORT 

SERVICES

2,344.00 

P24-00982 CALIFORNIA DEPT OF 

GENERAL SER VICES

454-2 SHADE STRUCTURES 

1B - LEATAATA FLOYD DGS

01FACILITIES SUPPORT 

SERVICES

3,434.67 

P24-00983 PG&E 0825-417 SERNA 

GENERATOR PG&E 

ENGINEERING ADVANCE

21FACILITIES SUPPORT 

SERVICES

2,500.00 

P24-00984 BOOKS EN MORE ELL TEACHER SUPPORT 

BOOKS

01C. K. McCLATCHY HIGH 

SCHOOL

1,084.78 

P24-00985 BOOKS EN MORE SERNA CENTER : CHRISTINA 

ROSELI

12EARLY LEARNING & CARE 

PROGRAMS

750.04 

P24-00986 BOOKS EN MORE LIBRARY BOOKS 01LUTHER BURBANK HIGH 

SCHOOL

168.19 

P24-00987 DISCOUNT SCHOOL 

SUPPLY

First 5 Classroom order - C. 

Setzer

12EARLY LEARNING & CARE 

PROGRAMS

609.00 

P24-00988 DISCOUNT SCHOOL 

SUPPLY

TABLE FOR WOODBINE 

ROOM 23 - J. HERNANDEZ

12EARLY LEARNING & CARE 

PROGRAMS

318.63 

P24-00989 DISCOUNT SCHOOL 

SUPPLY

CAJ SKILLS PRESCHOOL 

ROOM 2B - T. PEREZ

12EARLY LEARNING & CARE 

PROGRAMS

423.00 

P24-00990 DISCOUNT SCHOOL 

SUPPLY

Deliver to Woodbine ATTN: Jill 

Hernandez

12EARLY LEARNING & CARE 

PROGRAMS

222.21 

P24-00991 THE HOME DEPOT PRO ELC PRESCHOOL 

CUSTODIAL SUPPLIES

12JAMES W MARSHALL 

ELEMENTARY

249.14 

P24-00992 FOLLETT SCHOOL 

SOLUTIONS

EBOOKS FOR LIBRARY 01LUTHER BURBANK HIGH 

SCHOOL

497.21 

P24-00993 BULK BOOKSTORE CLASS SET OF ELA BOOKS 01C. K. McCLATCHY HIGH 

SCHOOL

495.49 

P24-00994 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES PE EQUIPMENT 01C. K. McCLATCHY HIGH 

SCHOOL

499.55 

P24-00995 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES MIDDLE SCHOOL SCIENCE 

SUPPLIES - 

ROCKET/FILAMENT

01JOHN MORSE THERAPEUTIC 109.84 

P24-00996 DAVID VIERRA dba VIERRA 

FARMS

1ST GRADE DAVE'S PUMPKIN 

PATCH FIELD TRIP

01SUY:U ELEMENTARY 384.00 

P24-00997 BLICK ART MATERIALS LLC ART SUPPLIES 01HIRAM W. JOHNSON HIGH 

SCHOOL

171.93 

P24-00998 BSN SPORTS LLC BASE BALL UNIFORMS 01LUTHER BURBANK HIGH 

SCHOOL

3,621.24 

P24-00999 WARDS NATURAL SCIENCE 

ESTABLIS HMENT INC

REPRODUCTIVE TRAINING 

SET - BIOLOGY

01C. K. McCLATCHY HIGH 

SCHOOL

1,326.41 

P24-01000 CAPITAL BOOKS 5TH GRADE CLASSROOM 

BOOKS

01WASHINGTON ELEMENTARY 

SCHOOL

55.44 

P24-01001 FOG WILLOW FARMS FOG WILLOW FARMS 

FIELDTRIP - 2023

12EARLY LEARNING & CARE 

PROGRAMS

568.00 

P24-01002 TROXELL 

COMMUNICATIONS INC

HEADPHONE WITH MIC FOR 

ELD STUDENTS

01C. K. McCLATCHY HIGH 

SCHOOL

1,797.64 

*** See the last page for criteria limiting the report detail.

The preceding Purchase Orders have been issued in accordance with the District's Purchasing Policy and 

authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Purchase Orders be approved 

and that payment be authorized upon delivery and acceptance of the items ordered.

097 - Sacramento City Unified School District Generated for Victoria Mena (VICTORIA-MENA2), Nov  6 2023 

10:15AM

Page 20 of 29



Board Report with FundReqPay11c

Includes Purchase Orders dated 09/15/2023 - 10/14/2023 ***

PO

Number Vendor Name Description

Account

AmountLocation Fund

P24-01003 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES EYE WASH FAUCET 01HIRAM W. JOHNSON HIGH 

SCHOOL

381.36 

P24-01005 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES ELL SUPPORT MATERIALS 01C. K. McCLATCHY HIGH 

SCHOOL

74.44 

P24-01006 PACIFIC OFFICE 

AUTOMATION

RISO SUPPLIES 01CROCKER/RIVERSIDE 

ELEMENTARY

781.17 

P24-01007 PACIFIC OFFICE 

AUTOMATION

MASTERS AND INK FOR RISO 

EZ221

01ABRAHAM LINCOLN 

ELEMENTARY

310.37 

P24-01008 PACIFIC OFFICE 

AUTOMATION

RISO INK 01ALICE BIRNEY WALDORF - 

K-8

97.74 

P24-01009 FOLLETT SCHOOL 

SOLUTIONS

LIBRARY BOOKS & EBOOKS 01LUTHER BURBANK HIGH 

SCHOOL

1,428.80 

P24-01010 RENAISSANCE LEARNING 

INC

ELA IN 

CLASSROOMS-ACCELERATE

D READER

01HUBERT H BANCROFT 

ELEMENTARY

2,097.50 

P24-01011 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES Serving platters and spoons 

for all sites.

12EARLY LEARNING & CARE 

PROGRAMS

2,077.38 

P24-01012 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES AT-PT MATERIAL - MORALES 

(BULK)

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

915.81 

P24-01013 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES AT-PT MATERIAL - RoMo @ 

JOHN SLOAT

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

90.25 

P24-01014 WILLIAM MACGILL & CO BANDAGES FOR NURSE 

2023-24 SY

12EARLY LEARNING & CARE 

PROGRAMS

428.04 

P24-01015 BLICK ART MATERIALS LLC ART SUPPLIES ASB-MILLS 

2023-24 SY

09GEO WASHINGTON CARVER 153.60 

P24-01016 GOPHER SPORT PE DEPARTMENT 

EQUIPMENT 2023-24SY

01WILL C. WOOD MIDDLE 

SCHOOL

2,042.16 

P24-01017 CLIKX,INC SOFTWARE LICENSE 01CENTRAL PRINTING 

SERVICES

170.00 

P24-01018 SCUSD - US BANK CAL 

CARD

FLDTRIP B ST THEATER 

(PAPI,ME,AND CEASAR 

CHAVEZ)

01SUY:U ELEMENTARY 660.00 

P24-01019 SCUSD - US BANK CAL 

CARD

FLDTRIP B ST THEATER 6TH 

GRADE

01SUY:U ELEMENTARY 814.00 

P24-01020 SCUSD - US BANK CAL 

CARD

Panther Pipeline Class 

Material

09THE MET 1,049.25 

P24-01021 BASES LOADED SPORTING 

GOODS

BASEBALL EQUIPMENT 

2023-24SY

01WEST CAMPUS 934.60 

P24-01022 BLICK ART MATERIALS LLC DRYING RACKS FOR ART 

CLASSROOM 2023-24SY

01C. K. McCLATCHY HIGH 

SCHOOL

6,287.40 

P24-01023 AAA GARMENTS & 

LETTERING INC

PE CLOTHES FOR 2023-24SY 01WILL C. WOOD MIDDLE 

SCHOOL

6,542.40 

P24-01024 BLICK ART MATERIALS LLC ART SUPPLIES FOR 

CLASSROOM 2023-24SY

01SUCCESS ACADEMY 199.45 

P24-01025 TEACHER SYNERGY LLC 

dba TEACHE RS PAY 

TEACHERS

TPT DIGITAL SCHOOL 

RESOURCE ACCESS

01JOHN H. STILL - K-8 7,575.00 

P24-01026 CHARTER AMERICA BUS CO 

THANDI ENTERPRISES INC

COLLEGE TOUR SAC 

STATE/SCC 

TRANSPORTATION

01WEST CAMPUS 1,600.00 

*** See the last page for criteria limiting the report detail.

The preceding Purchase Orders have been issued in accordance with the District's Purchasing Policy and 

authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Purchase Orders be approved 

and that payment be authorized upon delivery and acceptance of the items ordered.

097 - Sacramento City Unified School District Generated for Victoria Mena (VICTORIA-MENA2), Nov  6 2023 

10:15AM

Page 21 of 29



Board Report with FundReqPay11c

Includes Purchase Orders dated 09/15/2023 - 10/14/2023 ***

PO

Number Vendor Name Description

Account

AmountLocation Fund

P24-01027 ALL WEST COACHLINES INC TRANSPORTATION FOR 

ALCATRAZ FIELD TRIP

01LUTHER BURBANK HIGH 

SCHOOL

2,180.39 

P24-01028 RENT RITE RENT TABLES/ CHAIRS- 

COLLEGE FAIR, 9/23/23

01CAREER & TECHNICAL 

PREPARATION

774.00 

P24-01029 UNIVERSAL LIMOUSINE CO 2023 ATHLETIC 

TRANSPORTATION INVOICE

01HIRAM W. JOHNSON HIGH 

SCHOOL

1,200.00 

P24-01030 SCOE FINANCIAL SERVICES SLY PARK 01MATSUYAMA ELEMENTARY 

SCHOOL

15,900.00 

P24-01031 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES FLAGS FOR 23/24 SY 01ROSA PARKS MIDDLE 

SCHOOL

72.84 

P24-01032 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES FIRE RETARDANT SPRAY 

FOR CLASSROOM FABRICS

01A. M. WINN - K-8 125.20 

P24-01033 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES BOOK SET FOR ROOM 14 Mr. 

Castro

01EARL WARREN 

ELEMENTARY SCHOOL

195.48 

P24-01034 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES CLOCKS FOR TIMEKEEPING 

PROJECT FOR ATTENDANCE

01A. M. WINN - K-8 17.38 

P24-01035 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES ED MATERIAL - EmDa @ 

FKBK

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

80.26 

P24-01036 VIRCO INC 4TH GRADE CLASSROOM 

TABLE

01WASHINGTON ELEMENTARY 

SCHOOL

372.34 

P24-01037 QUADIENT INC MAINTENANCE 

AGRMT-ENVELOPE PRTR

01CENTRAL PRINTING 

SERVICES

2,942.52 

P24-01038 SAFETY CENTER INC FORKLIFT TRAINING 01FACILITIES MAINTENANCE 7,350.00 

P24-01039 UNITED RENTALS N.A. INC RENTAL OF LIGHT TOWERS 

FOR WEST CAMPUS

01FACILITIES MAINTENANCE 34,008.80 

P24-01040 BI-JAMAR INC dba QUALITY 

SOUND

0032-465 CALEB 

GREENWOOD - SECURITY 

UPGRADES

21FACILITIES MAINTENANCE 16,557.14 

P24-01041 CALIFORNIA DEPT OF 

GENERAL SER VICES

0272-416 PARKWAY SHADE 

STRUCTURE - DGS FEES

21FACILITIES SUPPORT 

SERVICES

7,825.00 

P24-01042 AFFORDABLE TRENCHLESS 

& PIPE L INING

CONFIRMING-SEWER LINE 

REPAIR E. KEMBLE 

2023-24SY

01FACILITIES MAINTENANCE 4,201.34 

P24-01043 JENSEN MANUFACTURING JENSEN STEAM 

ENGINE-SCIENCE 2023-24SY

01AMERICAN LEGION HIGH 

SCHOOL

497.57 

P24-01044 STONEWARE INC LENOVO 

SOFTWARE

SOFTWARE FOR 

CLASSROOM MANAGEMENT

01LUTHER BURBANK HIGH 

SCHOOL

245.00 

P24-01045 TEACHERS FIRST LLC 23-24 TODDLE 360 IB 

PROFILES

01UMOJA INTERNATIONAL 

ACADEMY

9,187.00 

P24-01046 CDW GOVERNMENT TECHNOLOGY FOR NEW 

PRESCHOOL CLASSES 

FY23-24

12EARLY LEARNING & CARE 

PROGRAMS

6,208.43 

P24-01047 RIFTON EQUIPMENT AT-PT MATERIAL - MORALES 

(BULK)

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

9,179.94 

P24-01048 NIMCO INC TUPE Red Ribbon Week Items 

23-24

01FOSTER YOUTH SERVICES 

PROGRAM

16,568.06 

P24-01049 NEARPOD INC Nearpod 23 - 24 01CURRICULUM & PROF 

DEVELOP

265,751.60 

P24-01050 TEXTHELP INC Read & Write 23-24 01ACADEMIC OFFICE 143,993.40 

*** See the last page for criteria limiting the report detail.

The preceding Purchase Orders have been issued in accordance with the District's Purchasing Policy and 

authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Purchase Orders be approved 

and that payment be authorized upon delivery and acceptance of the items ordered.

097 - Sacramento City Unified School District Generated for Victoria Mena (VICTORIA-MENA2), Nov  6 2023 

10:15AM

Page 22 of 29



Board Report with FundReqPay11c

Includes Purchase Orders dated 09/15/2023 - 10/14/2023 ***

PO

Number Vendor Name Description

Account

AmountLocation Fund

P24-01051 N2Y LLC N2Y - UNIQUE CURRICULUM 01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

146,493.60 

P24-01052 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES AMAZON ORDER FOR 

CUBICLE WALLS HOOKS

01RISK MANAGEMENT 45.36 

P24-01053 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES TELEPHONE HEADSETS FOR 

BUYERS

01PURCHASING SERVICES 360.64 

P24-01054 MICHAEL'S 

TRANSPORTATION

BUS FOR AEROSPACE 

FIELDTIRP

01COUNSELING SERVICES 1,241.00 

P24-01055 COLLEGE BOARD COLLEGE BOARD 

MEMBERSHIP 2023-24

01GIFTED AND TALENTED 

EDUCATION

400.00 

P24-01056 TROXELL 

COMMUNICATIONS INC

ALL SDC CLASSROOM - 

PROJECTOR

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

159,862.50 

P24-01057 CHARTER AMERICA BUS CO 

THANDI ENTERPRISES INC

UC DAVIS FIELD TRIP- 

10/26/23 WEST CAMPUS

01CAREER & TECHNICAL 

PREPARATION

1,584.00 

P24-01058 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES Battery and Surge protectors 13DISTRIBUTION SERVICES 570.37 

P24-01059 VERITIV OPERATING CO PACKAGING FOR CENTRAL 

KITCHEN TO PAY 

628-33203506

13NUTRITION SERVICES 

DEPARTMENT

10,857.60 

P24-01060 ZOHO CORPORATION MANAGE-ENGINE 

SUBSCRIPTION/SCUSD.EDU 

DOMAIN

01TECHNOLOGY SERVICES 6,811.20 

P24-01061 3 FORTY INC COMMUNITY EVENT 

HARVEST FESTIVAL 11/04/23

01COMMUNICATIONS OFFICE 1,870.00 

P24-01062 SCOE SLY PARK Sly Park Reservation 01TAHOE ELEMENTARY 

SCHOOL

1,500.00 

P24-01063 ANATOMICAL WORLD dba 

ANATOMY W AREHOUSE

PRESERVED MAMMAL 

ORGANS-HEALTH 

PATHWAY-S.BRYNES

01CAREER & TECHNICAL 

PREPARATION

848.03 

P24-01064 SACRAMENTO COUNTY 

OFFICE OF ED UCATION

SLY PARK DEPOSIT 1/22-1/26 01PONY EXPRESS 

ELEMENTARY SCHOOL

3,000.00 

P24-01065 SUN RIVER CLEANERS LAW ACADEMY DRY 

CLEANING

01HIRAM W. JOHNSON HIGH 

SCHOOL

3,245.25 

P24-01066 SAMANO, JENNI ACRYLIC SCUSD APPLE 

LOGO

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

163.13 

P24-01067 NICOLE QUINN Summer at City Hall Parking 

Riembursement

01YOUTH DEVELOPMENT 200.85 

P24-01068 SCOE FINANCIAL SERVICES FIELD TRIP SLY PARK 6TH 

GR

01ROSA PARKS MIDDLE 

SCHOOL

1,550.00 

P24-01069 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES AT/AAC ORDER - AnTi@ 

Prairie West

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

32.61 

P24-01070 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES MAPS FOR CLASSROOM - 

FOREMAN

01MIWOK MIDDLE SCHOOL 59.24 

P24-01071 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES WHITEBOARDS FOR 

CLASSROOMS - 

SIERRA/CORTEZ

01MIWOK MIDDLE SCHOOL 621.98 

P24-01072 THE HOME DEPOT PRO CUSTODIAL SUPPLIES 01ALBERT EINSTEIN MIDDLE 

SCHOOL

504.38 

P24-01073 ACCREDITING COMMISSION 

FOR SCH OOLS, WASC

23-24 WASC Membership 

Fees

01AREA ASSITANT 

SUPERINTENDENTS

13,090.00 

*** See the last page for criteria limiting the report detail.

The preceding Purchase Orders have been issued in accordance with the District's Purchasing Policy and 

authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Purchase Orders be approved 

and that payment be authorized upon delivery and acceptance of the items ordered.

097 - Sacramento City Unified School District Generated for Victoria Mena (VICTORIA-MENA2), Nov  6 2023 

10:15AM

Page 23 of 29



Board Report with FundReqPay11c

Includes Purchase Orders dated 09/15/2023 - 10/14/2023 ***

PO

Number Vendor Name Description

Account

AmountLocation Fund

P24-01074 FRANKLIN COVEY CLIENT 

SALES

LIM STUDENT CURRICULUM 

GUIDES

01WILLIAM LAND ELEMENTARY 1,692.15 

P24-01075 PRO-ED INC SPEECH PROTOCOLS 01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

470.25 

P24-01076 COMMUNITY PRODUCTS 

LLC

AT-PT MATERIAL - RoMo @ 

JOHN SLOAT

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

5,293.00 

P24-01077 JIGSAW LEARNING INC DBA 

TEACHT OWN

MATERIAL & TRAINING: PILOT 

STUDENT EQUITY 

PROPOSAL

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

109,968.38 

P24-01078 TOOLS4EVER UMRA MAINTENANCE 

RENEWAL - TOOLS4EVER

01TECHNOLOGY SERVICES 13,789.60 

P24-01079 COMMERCIAL PUMP 

SERVICE INC

CONFIRMING PUMP SERVICE 

CALL-CAROLINE WENZEL

01FACILITIES MAINTENANCE 1,099.98 

P24-01080 ALL-IOWA SCORE TABLES 

dbaVARSI TY GROUP

SCHOOL LOGOS TBLE COV 

SCHOOL PROMO/MTGS 

2023-24SY

01HOLLYWOOD PARK 

ELEMENTARY

2,350.00 

P24-01081 SHERMAN GARNETT TRAINING MATERIALS 

2023-24SY

01ENROLLMENT CENTER 1,949.90 

P24-01082 GOPHER SPORT INSTRUCTIONAL MATERIALS 

- PE CLASSROOM 2023-24SY

01SAM BRANNAN MIDDLE 

SCHOOL

1,459.66 

P24-01083 EVERBRITE SCOREBOARD PARTS 

2023-24SY

01ALBERT EINSTEIN MIDDLE 

SCHOOL

128.23 

P24-01084 FLINN SCIENTIFIC INC 

33411

MAGNETIC ATOM MODEL - 

ASHAT 2023-24SY

01MIWOK MIDDLE SCHOOL 96.79 

P24-01085 APPLE INC AT- AAC MATERIAL - 

MULTIPLE

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

50,269.75 

P24-01086 JM ENVIRONMENTAL INC CONFIRMING - CKM 

ASBESTOS ABATEMENT

01FACILITIES MAINTENANCE 24,329.13 

P24-01088 NATUREBRIDGE GGNRA NATUREBRIDGE 2022-23 01NICHOLAS ELEMENTARY 

SCHOOL

3,126.75 

P24-01089 ELLEN LEE CARLSON REIMBURSEMENT FOR 

VOLUNTEER APPRECIATION

01WILLIAM LAND ELEMENTARY 444.79 

P24-01090 MARY STRUHS REIMBURSE 

CARPET/TILE/FURNITURE 

CLEANING

01HIRAM W. JOHNSON HIGH 

SCHOOL

535.00 

P24-01091 SCOE FINANCIAL SERVICES 2024 TEACHER OF THE YEAR 

RECOGNITION BANQUET

01HUMAN RESOURCE 

SERVICES

676.00 

P24-01092 HANNIBAL'S RESTAURANT 

AND CATE RING

HR PRINCIPAL LUNCHEON 

8.14.23

01HUMAN RESOURCE 

SERVICES

5,300.76 

P24-01093 SIERRA NEVADA JOURNEYS SIERRA NEVADA JOURNEYS 01LEATAATA FLOYD 

ELEMENTARY

326.00 

P24-01094 LUX BUS AMERICA CO 5TH GRADE CSUS CHARTER 

BUS

09BG CHACON ACADEMY 1,126.25 

P24-01095 EDUCATIONAL MGMT 

SOLUTIONS LLC

EMPLOYEE CLASSIFICATION 

STUDIES (EMS)

01HUMAN RESOURCE 

SERVICES

15,999.00 

P24-01096 ODP BUSINESS SOLUTIONS 

LLC

OFFICE SUPPLIES - CBO 01BUSINESS SERVICES 565.46 

P24-01097 HANNIBAL'S RESTAURANT 

AND CATE RING

FOOD FOR TRAINING 

(MANDATORY)  EVENT

01ENROLLMENT CENTER 544.10 

P24-01098 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES OFFICE SUPPLIES - CBO 01BUSINESS SERVICES 29.76 

*** See the last page for criteria limiting the report detail.

The preceding Purchase Orders have been issued in accordance with the District's Purchasing Policy and 

authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Purchase Orders be approved 

and that payment be authorized upon delivery and acceptance of the items ordered.

097 - Sacramento City Unified School District Generated for Victoria Mena (VICTORIA-MENA2), Nov  6 2023 

10:15AM

Page 24 of 29



Board Report with FundReqPay11c

Includes Purchase Orders dated 09/15/2023 - 10/14/2023 ***

PO

Number Vendor Name Description

Account

AmountLocation Fund

P24-01099 HEIECK SUPPLY SALVAJOR COMMERCIAL 

DISPOSAL-FATHER KEITH

13NUTRITION SERVICES 

DEPARTMENT

1,967.16 

P24-01100 EMMANUEL VALADEZ REIMB E. VALADEZ-PUR. S/P2 

SOFTWARE-MAD PRGM

01CAREER & TECHNICAL 

PREPARATION

399.00 

P24-01101 UNIVERSITY OF OREGON PBISApps FY 24 01ACADEMIC OFFICE 2,910.00 

P24-01102 CDW GOVERNMENT HP LASERJET 

PRINTER-MONO-COPIER 

SCANNER

13NUTRITION SERVICES 

DEPARTMENT

21,877.25 

P24-01103 CDW GOVERNMENT COLOR PRINTER FOR 

OFFICE USE

01WASHINGTON ELEMENTARY 

SCHOOL

399.32 

P24-01104 CDW GOVERNMENT REPLACEMENT DESKTOP 01COMMUNICATIONS OFFICE 1,134.92 

P24-01105 CDW GOVERNMENT 27" HP MONITORS 01RISK MANAGEMENT 1,004.61 

P24-01107 ORIENTAL TRADING CO, 

ACCT 2520  80

RAMIREZ-WINTER SHOW (2) 09BG CHACON ACADEMY 82.75 

P24-01108 GREAT LAKES SPORTS RECESS & PE EQUIPMENT 

2023-24 SY

01ETHEL I. BAKER 

ELEMENTARY

416.62 

P24-01109 POCKET NURSE MEDICAL SUPPLIES FOR 

STEPHANE BYRNES

01CAREER & TECHNICAL 

PREPARATION

546.09 

P24-01110 BSN SPORTS LLC JV BASKETBALL UNIFORMS 

2023-24 SY

01ROSEMONT HIGH SCHOOL 1,648.39 

P24-01111 TOYOTA MATERIAL 

HANDLING NORTH ERN 

CALIFORNIA

FORKLIFTS FOR CAJ MFG 

PROGRAM

11CHARLES A. JONES CAREER 

& ED

73,927.16 

P24-01112 APPLE INC AT/AAC AnTi@Prairie West 01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

329.16 

P24-01113 READ NATURALLY INC READ NATURALLY 

SEQUENCED SERIES

01HIRAM W. JOHNSON HIGH 

SCHOOL

12,288.25 

P24-01115 TROXELL 

COMMUNICATIONS INC

INSTALLATION OF 

SMARTBOARD

01PACIFIC ELEMENTARY 

SCHOOL

775.00 

P24-01116 TROXELL 

COMMUNICATIONS INC

New Projector & Screen - 

Quote #293796

01EARL WARREN 

ELEMENTARY SCHOOL

8,228.65 

P24-01117 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES KEY BOX FOR SCHOOL KEYS 

SAFETY

01HOLLYWOOD PARK 

ELEMENTARY

132.16 

P24-01118 GBC GENERAL BINDING 

CORP

SERVICE FOR LAMINATOR; 

PURCHASE COMPLETE

01MARTIN L. KING JR 

ELEMENTARY

623.14 

P24-01119 SCHOOL SPECIALTY CLASSROOM CARPET 01HUBERT H BANCROFT 

ELEMENTARY

278.08 

P24-01120 UNIVERSAL LIMOUSINE CO UC SANTA CRUZ OVERNIGHT 

7A-10P

01ROSA PARKS MIDDLE 

SCHOOL

2,925.00 

P24-01121 TROXELL 

COMMUNICATIONS INC

ALL SDC CLASSROOM - FLAT 

PANELS

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

890,740.00 

P24-01122 ACCO BRANDS USA LLC LAMINATOR SERVICE 

CONTRACT

01CALIFORNIA MIDDLE 

SCHOOL

266.44 

P24-01123 RJ COMMERCIAL FLOORING 

CO

FLOORING - SAM BRANNAN 

MS RM 32

01FACILITIES MAINTENANCE 25,664.77 

P24-01124 RJ COMMERCIAL FLOORING 

CO

FLOORING - SAM BRANNAN 

MS RM 30

01FACILITIES MAINTENANCE 25,664.77 

P24-01125 RJ COMMERCIAL FLOORING 

CO

FLOORING - SAM BRANNAN 

MS RM 31

01FACILITIES MAINTENANCE 28,631.97 

*** See the last page for criteria limiting the report detail.

The preceding Purchase Orders have been issued in accordance with the District's Purchasing Policy and 

authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Purchase Orders be approved 

and that payment be authorized upon delivery and acceptance of the items ordered.

097 - Sacramento City Unified School District Generated for Victoria Mena (VICTORIA-MENA2), Nov  6 2023 

10:15AM

Page 25 of 29



Board Report with FundReqPay11c

Includes Purchase Orders dated 09/15/2023 - 10/14/2023 ***

PO

Number Vendor Name Description

Account

AmountLocation Fund

P24-01126 WIREMAN FENCE 

PRODUCTS

KENNEDY ELECTRICAL 

FENCE ENCLOSURE

01FACILITIES MAINTENANCE 4,969.18 

P24-01127 THE HOME DEPOT PRO SEWER DRUM MACHINE FOR 

PLUMBING SHOP

01FACILITIES MAINTENANCE 4,271.70 

P24-01128 SIERRA NATIONAL ASPHALT PACIFIC ELEMENTARY 

ASPHALT REPAIR

01FACILITIES MAINTENANCE 6,100.00 

P24-01129 SIERRA NATIONAL ASPHALT JOHN BIDWELL 

ELEMENTARY ASPHALT 

REPAIR

01FACILITIES MAINTENANCE 4,000.00 

P24-01130 STEWART SIGNS MARQUEE - ROSEMONT 

HIGH SCHOOL

01FACILITIES MAINTENANCE 28,146.00 

P24-01131 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES Carpet (Student Mat) For 

Room 3 Mrs. Corona

01EARL WARREN 

ELEMENTARY SCHOOL

327.33 

P24-01132 EMICS INC dba INFORMED 

K12

INFORMED K-12 RENEWAL 

JULY 2023-JUNE 2024

01HUMAN RESOURCE 

SERVICES

164,058.00 

P24-01133 ODP BUSINESS SOLUTIONS 

LLC

ORGANIZER DRAWERS FOR 

CARE ROOM

01A. M. WINN - K-8 70.99 

P24-01134 CDW GOVERNMENT MATERIALS/SUPPLIES 01SAM BRANNAN MIDDLE 

SCHOOL

243.47 

P24-01135 RAYMOND GEDDES & 

COMPANY INC

STUDENT ACHIEVEMENT/ 

ATTEND 2023-24SY

01HOLLYWOOD PARK 

ELEMENTARY

303.85 

P24-01136 SCHOOL SPECIALTY PE SUPPLIES 2023-2SY 01ISADOR COHEN 

ELEMENTARY SCHOOL

1,082.12 

P24-01137 GREAT MINDS PBC 3RD GRADE EUREKA MATH 

APLICAR 2023-24 SY

09BG CHACON ACADEMY 319.20 

P24-01138 WIPEBOOK CORP WIPEBOOK FLIPCHART 

2023-24 SY

01MIWOK MIDDLE SCHOOL 163.11 

P24-01139 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES STORAGE CABINET FOR SSC 09BG CHACON ACADEMY 478.11 

P24-01140 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES CISNEROS-WINTER SHOW 09BG CHACON ACADEMY 528.06 

P24-01141 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES VAZQUEZ-WINTER SHOW 09BG CHACON ACADEMY 434.32 

P24-01142 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES AHMADZAI-WINTER SHOW 09BG CHACON ACADEMY 434.30 

P24-01143 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES DENISON-WINTER SHOW 09BG CHACON ACADEMY 409.76 

P24-01144 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES RAMIREZ-WINTER SHOW 09BG CHACON ACADEMY 422.42 

P24-01145 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES O'BRIEN WINTER SHOW 09BG CHACON ACADEMY 419.26 

P24-01146 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES AYALA WINTER SHOW 09BG CHACON ACADEMY 462.99 

P24-01147 NATUREBRIDGE GGNRA NATUREBRIDGE 2023-24 01NICHOLAS ELEMENTARY 

SCHOOL

8,130.00 

P24-01148 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES AGUILAR & PEREZ WINTER 

SHOW

09BG CHACON ACADEMY 1,008.72 

P24-01149 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES BOOKS FOR THE MLD - 

TRAINING SPECIALISTS

01MULTILINGUAL EDUCATION 

DEPT.

386.64 

P24-01150 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES SUPPLIES/MATERIALS 

(HOMELESS SERVICES) 

2023-24SY

01STUDENT 

SUPPORT&HEALTH SRVCS

2,910.00 

P24-01151 SCREENAGERS 

STARHOUSE MEDIA LL C

SCREENAGERS/DOCUMENT

ARY AND CURRICULUM

01CALIFORNIA MIDDLE 

SCHOOL

1,250.00 

P24-01152 AMS.NET INC CISCO PHONES FOR 

CLERKS

01HEALTH SERVICES 977.74 

Total 43,370,150.98 Total Number of  POs 607 

*** See the last page for criteria limiting the report detail.

The preceding Purchase Orders have been issued in accordance with the District's Purchasing Policy and 

authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Purchase Orders be approved 

and that payment be authorized upon delivery and acceptance of the items ordered.

097 - Sacramento City Unified School District Generated for Victoria Mena (VICTORIA-MENA2), Nov  6 2023 

10:15AM

Page 26 of 29



Board Report with FundReqPay11c

Includes Purchase Orders dated 09/15/2023 - 10/14/2023 ***

Fund Recap

Fund Description PO Count Amount

01 General Fund 475 25,026,984.16 

09 Charter School 36 246,712.22 

11 Adult Education 23 866,813.97 

12 Child Development 25 65,888.71 

13 Cafeteria 19 303,179.59 

21 Building Fund 28 10,307,368.33 

68 Dental/Vision 1 6,553,204.00 

Total 43,370,150.98 

*** See the last page for criteria limiting the report detail.

The preceding Purchase Orders have been issued in accordance with the District's Purchasing Policy and 

authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Purchase Orders be approved 

and that payment be authorized upon delivery and acceptance of the items ordered.

097 - Sacramento City Unified School District Generated for Victoria Mena (VICTORIA-MENA2), Nov  6 2023 

10:15AM

Page 27 of 29



Board Report with FundReqPay11c

Includes Purchase Orders dated 09/15/2023 - 10/14/2023 ***

PO Changes 

Description  Change Amount

Fund/

ObjectNew PO Amount

B24-00027 2,500.00 01-4320 General Fund/Non-Instructional Materials/Su 2,500.00-

B24-00028 1,598.92 01-4320 General Fund/Non-Instructional Materials/Su 3,401.08-

B24-00031 .00 01-4320 General Fund/Non-Instructional Materials/Su 2,500.00-

B24-00057 8,500.00 01-4320 General Fund/Non-Instructional Materials/Su 2,500.00 

B24-00058 7,500.00 01-4320 General Fund/Non-Instructional Materials/Su 2,500.00-

B24-00061 23,000.00 01-4320 General Fund/Non-Instructional Materials/Su 2,000.00-

B24-00092 13,500.00 01-5810 General Fund/Tickets/Fees/Regis.for Parents 4,500.00 

B24-00103 210,000.00 13-4710 Cafeteria/Food 60,000.00 

B24-00150 30,000.00 67-5800 Self Insurance/Other Contractual Expenses 20,000.00 

B24-00186 220,000.00 13-4326 Cafeteria/Nutrition Ed/Paper Supplies 20,000.00 

13-4710 Cafeteria/Food 180,000.00 

200,000.00 Total PO B24-00186 

B24-00327 700,000.00 01-5930 General Fund/Telephones/Cell Phones 630,000.00 

B24-00329 30,000.00 01-4320 General Fund/Non-Instructional Materials/Su 10,000.00 

B24-00386 200,000.00 13-4710 Cafeteria/Food 101,296.00 

B24-00407 105,000.00 13-4710 Cafeteria/Food 60,000.00 

B24-00428 25,000.00 13-4710 Cafeteria/Food 10,000.00 

B24-00430 65,000.00 13-4710 Cafeteria/Food 39,000.00 

B24-00453 6,950.00 01-5690 General Fund/Other Contracts, Rents, Leases 2,000.00 

B24-00605 2,500.00 01-4310 General Fund/Instructional Materials/Suppli 500.00 

B24-00623 10,000.00 01-5800 General Fund/Other Contractual Expenses 5,000.00 

B24-00633 8,300.00 01-5800 General Fund/Other Contractual Expenses 300.00 

B24-00642 6,700.00 12-5800 Child Development/Other Contractual Expenses 1,500.00 

B24-00653 75,000.00 13-4326 Cafeteria/Nutrition Ed/Paper Supplies 12,000.00 

B24-00657 15,000.00 01-5832 General Fund/Transportation-Field Trips 5,000.00 

B24-00666 42,000.00 13-4710 Cafeteria/Food 15,000.00 

B24-00677 100,000.00 13-4710 Cafeteria/Food 19,035.00 

B24-00727 8,000.00 01-4310 General Fund/Instructional Materials/Suppli 5,000.00 

CHB24-00074 8,000.00 01-4310 General Fund/Instructional Materials/Suppli 3,000.00 

CHB24-00105 2,000.00 01-4310 General Fund/Instructional Materials/Suppli 1,000.00 

CHB24-00167 15,000.00 01-4310 General Fund/Instructional Materials/Suppli 10,000.00-

CHB24-00199 7,000.00 01-4310 General Fund/Instructional Materials/Suppli 2,500.00 

CS23-00325 22,000.00 01-5100 General Fund/Subagreements for Services abo 9,000.00-

01-5800 General Fund/Other Contractual Expenses 3,000.00-

12,000.00-Total PO CS23-00325 

CS23-00481 77,720.00 21-6200 Building Fund/Buildings (Improvements) 5,600.00 

*** See the last page for criteria limiting the report detail.

The preceding Purchase Orders have been issued in accordance with the District's Purchasing Policy and 

authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Purchase Orders be approved 

and that payment be authorized upon delivery and acceptance of the items ordered.

097 - Sacramento City Unified School District Generated for Victoria Mena (VICTORIA-MENA2), Nov  6 2023 

10:15AM

Page 28 of 29



Board Report with FundReqPay11c

Includes Purchase Orders dated 09/15/2023 - 10/14/2023 ***

PO Changes (continued) 

Description  Change Amount

Fund/

ObjectNew PO Amount

CS23-00653 39,000.00 01-5100 General Fund/Subagreements for Services abo 12,600.00 

01-5800 General Fund/Other Contractual Expenses 22,500.00 

35,100.00 Total PO CS23-00653 

P22-03941 203,358.24 21-6170 Building Fund/Land Improvement 24,543.70 

P23-04110 2,057.64 01-4310 General Fund/Instructional Materials/Suppli 374.86-

P24-00240 4,809.00 01-5690 General Fund/Other Contracts, Rents, Leases 309.00 

P24-00391 1,206.76 09-5832 Charter School/Transportation-Field Trips 250.00-

P24-00699 1,268.51 01-4310 General Fund/Instructional Materials/Suppli .02 

P24-00731 4,230.36 01-5800 General Fund/Other Contractual Expenses 444.19 

Total PO Changes 1,239,601.97 

Information is further limited to: (Minimum Amount = (999,999.99))

The preceding Purchase Orders have been issued in accordance with the District's Purchasing Policy and 

authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Purchase Orders be approved 

and that payment be authorized upon delivery and acceptance of the items ordered.

097 - Sacramento City Unified School District Generated for Victoria Mena (VICTORIA-MENA2), Nov  6 2023 

10:15AM

Page 29 of 29



Page 1 of 1 

SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD OF EDUCATION 

 
Agenda Item# 13.1d 

 
Meeting Date:  November 16, 2023 
  
Subject:  Approve Minutes for the September 21, 2023 Regular Board of 

Education Meeting 
 

 Information Item Only 
 Approval on Consent Agenda 
 Conference (for discussion only) 
 Conference/First Reading (Action Anticipated: ______________)  
 Conference/Action 
 Action 
 Public Hearing 

 
Division:  Superintendent’s Office 
 
Recommendation:  Approve Minutes for the September 21, 2023, Regular Board of 
Education Meeting. 
 
Background/Rationale:  None 
 
Financial Considerations:  None 
 
LCAP Goal(s):  Family and Community Empowerment 
 
Documents Attached: 
1. Minutes of the September 21, 2023, Regular Board of Education Meeting 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Estimated Time of Presentation: N/A 
Submitted by:  Lisa Allen, Interim Superintendent 
Approved by:  Lisa Allen, Interim Superintendent 



Board Agenda, September 21, 2023 
 

1 

   

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
MEETING AND WORKSHOP  

 
Board of Education Members    
Chinua Rhodes, President (Trustee Area 5) 
Lavinia Grace Phillips, Vice President (Trustee Area 7) 
Jasjit Singh, Second Vice President (Trustee Area 2) 
Tara Jeane (Trustee Area 1) 
Christina Pritchett (Trustee Area 3) 
Jamee Villa (Trustee Area 4) 
Taylor Kayatta (Trustee Area 6) 
Liliana Miller Segura, Student Member 
 

Thursday, September 21, 2023 
4:30 p.m. Closed Session  

6:30 p.m. Open Session 
 

Serna Center 
Community Conference Rooms 

5735 47th Avenue 
Sacramento, CA  95824 

 

MINUTES 
 

2023/24-7 
 

        
 1.0 OPEN SESSION / CALL TO ORDER / ROLL CALL 

 
The meeting was called to order at 4:32 p.m. 
 
Members Present: 
Member Kayatta 
Member Rhodes 
Member Pritchett 
Member Jeane 
Member Villa 
 
Members Absent: 
Member Phillips 
Member Singh 

 
 

 2.0 ANNOUNCEMENT AND PUBLIC COMMENT REGARDING ITEMS TO BE 
DISCUSSED IN CLOSED SESSION 
 

Public Comment: 
Sumie Arnold 

 
 

 3.0  CLOSED SESSION 
 
 While the Brown Act creates broad public access rights to the meetings of the Board of Education, it also  

recognizes the legitimate need to conduct some of its meetings outside of the public eye.  Closed session 
meetings are specifically defined and limited in scope.  They primarily involve personnel issues, pending 
litigation, labor negotiations, and real property matters.  

 



Board Agenda, September 21, 2023 
 

2 

 3.1 Government Code 54956.9 - Conference with Legal Counsel: 
a) Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to subdivision (d)(2) of Government 

Code section 54956.9 (Two Potential Cases) 
b) Existing litigation pursuant to subdivision (d)(1) of Government Code section 

54956.9 (OAH Case No. 2023080243) 
 

3.2 Government Code 54957.6 (a) and (b) Negotiations/Collective Bargaining SCTA 
SEIU, TCS, Teamsters, UPE, Non-Represented/Confidential Management  
(Cancy McArn) 

 
3.3 Government Code 54957 – Public Employee 

Discipline/Dismissal/Release/Complaint 
 
             3.4      Government Code 54957- Public Employee Appointment 
                         a) Approve – Assistant Superintendent Special Education 
                         b) Approve – Theodore Judah, Principal 

 
 4.0 CALL BACK TO ORDER/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 
4.1 The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Interim Superintendent Allen 
 
4.2       Ceremonial Oath of Office Given to Newly Elected Student Board Member Liliana  
            Miller Segura by Board Member Pritchett 
 
4.3       Broadcast Statement by Student Board Member Liliana Miller Segura 
 
4.4       Stellar Teacher introduced by Board Member Jasjit Singh 

 
 5.0 ANNOUNCEMENT OF ACTION TAKEN IN CLOSED SESSION 

 
There were 3 announcements taken from closed session: 
-The Board approved a settlement agreement related to special education services by a vote of 7-
0. 
-By a vote of 7-0, the Board approved the appointment of Krystal Thomas as Assistant 
Superintendent, Special Education. 
-By a vote of 7-0, the Board approved the appointment of Matthew Kempen as Principal of 
Theodore Judah.  

 
 6.0 AGENDA ADOPTION 

 
The Board voted unanimously to adopt the agenda with a vote of 7-0.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

7.0 PUBLIC COMMENT                                                                                                
Members of the public may address the Board on non-agenda items that are within the subject matter 
jurisdiction of the Board.  Public comment may be (1) emailed to publiccomment@scusd.edu; (2) 
submitted in writing through the district’s website at https://www.scusd.edu/submit-public-comment; or 
(3) provided in-person at the meeting.  The submission deadline for written public comments shall be no 
later than noon on the day of the meeting.  If you intend to address the Board in-person, please fill out a 
yellow card available at the entrance.  Speakers may be called in the order that requests are received, or 
grouped by subject area.  We ask that comments are limited to two (2) minutes with no more than 15 
minutes per single topic so that as many people as possible may be heard.  By law, the Board is allowed 
to take action only on items on the agenda.  The Board may, at its discretion, refer a matter to district 
staff or calendar the issue for future discussion.   



Board Agenda, September 21, 2023 
 

3 

Sara Bailey 
Margee Burch 
Marley Minamide 
Heather Bennett 
Scholastica Schatz 
Alma Garcia  
Elvia Vasquez 
Valerie Williams-Crawford 
Amy de la Salle 
Ingrid Hutchins 
Mo Kashmiri 

 
 

 8.0 COMMUNICATIONS 
 

 

 8.1 Employee Organization Reports:   

 SCTA-Nikki Milevsky thanked the Board for the changes 
that have been taking place. Ms. Milevsky discussed the 
SCUSD budget, concerns regarding the start of the year, 
and community schools.  

 SEIU-Thanked the Board for bargaining with the district 
team, but know that they’re still bargaining, so an 
agreement hasn’t been made yet. The SEIU representative 
asked, how can we serve our students, if we don’t have the 
staff that’s needed? They shared that without classified 
staff, we cannot teach our students. The representative 
thanked the Board for continuing to move forward to grow 
and make changes within the district. 

 TCS-No update 
 Teamsters-No update 
 UPE-No update 

 

 

   8.2  District Advisory Committees: 

 Student Advisory Council-No update 

 Community Advisory Committee-No update 

 District English Learner Advisory Committee-No update 

 Local Control Accountability Plan/Parent Advisory Committee- 

    No update 

 Black/African American Advisory Board-B/AAAB Secretary, 
Nakeisha Thomas, shared that B/AAAB is tasked with advising the 
district on relevant policies and resources related directly to the 
impact of Black students. B/AAAB is also tasked with ensuring the 
district implements and shows progress on the 13 recommendations 
that they provided. B/AAAB held their first meeting on September 

 



Board Agenda, September 21, 2023 
 

4 

13th for this year. B/AAAB will be holding their Family and Parent 
Engagement meeting as well as their District’s Accountability 
meeting. Ms. Thomas shared that B/AAAB just moved forward with 
approving their budget for the year. Malachi Smith shared that he 
has a grandson that goes to Pony Express and just wants to make 
sure that he has the best pathway for his educational needs.  

  
9.0 SPECIAL PRESENTATION 

 
             9.1 Approve Community Schools Resolution No. 3344 

                        (Board Member Tara  Jeane and Jacqueline Garner) 
 

 Member Jeane shared that she is introducing her first 
resolution as a Board Member. This topic has been very dear 
to Member Jeane’s educational advocacy for the last 5 years 
at the state and national level. Community Schools revolves 
around the school and community working together for 
student success. Community Schools are a model for how our 
education can work. They have the potential to transform our 
system. Community Schools focus on the needs of the whole 
child, removing barriers to learning, addressing the larger 
issues facing the student and the school, aligning partners to 
provide solutions, and creating a home away from home for 
our students and community. Community Schools in not a 
new concept, but it has been newly energized with the 
development of this specific model that California has 
committed over $4 billion dollars to. The model uses 
strategies that are researched based and are proven 
successful. The eighteen schools to begin the Community 
Schools model are Abraham Lincoln Elementary, Cesar 
Chavez Intermediate Elementary, Earl Warren Elementary, 
Edward Kemble Elementary, Ethel I. Baker Elementary, 
Ethel Phillips Elementary, Fern Bacon Middle, Hiram 
Johnson High School, John Bidwell Elementary, John Sloat 
Elementary, John Still TK-8, Luther Burbank High School, 
Oak Ridge Elementary, Pacific Elementary, Parkway 
Elementary, Rosa Parks K-8, Will C. Wood Middle, and 
Woodbine Elementary. These 18 schools have funding from 
the government to help us do this. They have already started 
engaging in the pillars that make Community Schools work, 
but it’s about bringing it all together and showing our 
collective commitment to it. Member Jeane wanted to read 
the second “Be It Further Resolved” in the resolution to 
show how much everyone at the school sites and within 
community are needed. SCUSD defines a community school 
as a school that achieves success by implementing the above 
pillars through the following mechanisms; 
 
● One Community Schools Training Specialist, and;   

 



Board Agenda, September 21, 2023 
 

5 

● a Community Schools Implementation Team (CSIT) 
that includes school community stakeholders that 
represent the diversity and cultural composition of 
the community the school serves, and; 

● an annual asset and needs assessment of and by  
           both school and community, and; 
● a strategic plan that results in the creation of  

various problem solving teams dedicated to 
continuous improvement, and; 

● the engagement of partners who bring assets and 
expertise to help implement the building blocks of 
community schools, and; 

 
                      The next “Be It Further Resolved,” mentions that the district 

needs to have its own committee to be able to support all of 
the school site committees. The last, “Be It Further 
Resolved,” recognizes that we need resources to make this 
happen.  

 
                      Public Comment: 
                      No public comment 
 
                      Board Comment: 

Member Pritchett asked that in terms of the last, “Be It   
Resolved,” Member Pritchett wondered if we should add the 

                      City of Rancho Cordova since Abraham Lincoln is one of   
the schools listed. 
Member Kayatta thanked Member Jeane for bringing 
this resolution forward. Member Kayatta shared that there  
was a public comment earlier where an individual shared 
that we need to know what a Community School is and how 
they function, what they are, and how they can be involved. 
Member Kayatta has trouble understanding what Community 
Schools are because when you read it, you understand, and 
when you take a step back and think about it, it all seems 
natural and what a school should be doing anyway, so how 
is it different than a regular school. Member Kayatta 
appreciates that Member Jeane has put it in this resolution 
that we can commit to and look back on, and remind 
ourselves of the work that we’re doing. Also, to call for 
community partnership, and know that this does require 
different funding, and an extra above the Board commitment. 
 Member Jeane shared that as we’re making amendments, 
she wanted to bring up that in the first “Where As,” it says, 
“they” which is a hanging pronoun, and she would like to 
change it to either “students” or “SCUSD youth”.                        
Member Villa shared that she appreciates Member Jeane’s 
insight and thanked Member Jeane for taking the time to 
bring this resolution forward. 

 



Board Agenda, September 21, 2023 
 

6 

                      Member Jeane made a motion to move with a second from  
                      Member Pritchett. The Board voted 7-0 with a student  
                      preferential yes vote. 
 

            9.2      Approve Resolution No. 3345: National Suicide   
                      Prevention and Recovery Month ( Jacqueline Garner) 
 

Jacqueline Garner presented the resolution for National 
Suicide Prevention and stated that September is also 
National Recovery Month. Ms. Garner shared that with this 
resolution we recognize that the week of September 10th-16th, 
2023, is National Suicide Prevention Week.  

 
Public Comment: 
None 

 
Board Comment: 
Student Member Segura shared that she really appreciates 
the resolution from a student perspective. Member Segura 
says that they are weakened by the lack of mental  

 health resources in our district, and thanked staff for 
bringing this resolution forth.  

 
 Member Villa made a motion to move with a second from 
 Member Jeane. The Board voted 7-0 with a student  
 preferential yes vote. 

 

 

             9.3     Approve Resolution No. 3346: Recognition of National  
                      Hispanic Heritage Month (Board Member Lavinia Phillips) 
 

Member Phillips presented the resolution and shared history 
regarding the use of the word Hispanic. Member Phillips 
wanted to go over some points prior to reading the 
resolution regarding the use of the word Hispanic in the 
document. Member Phillips has found that the word 
Hispanic, which is used in this particular document, is tied to 
U.S. consensus data, and comes across as not being 
completely inclusive. Member Phillips wanted to share the 
erasure of people in regard to the word Hispanic. Member 
Phillips recognizes that it is not the best identifier to use, but 
is currently what is used in the American census. Within this 
resolution, there is a recognition that we are using the word 
Latino and Latinx when we are referring to our staff, family, 
and community members, but when language is tied to 
consensus data, we will use the word Hispanic. Member 
Phillips shared a brief history on the census, and after, 
Member Phillips read the articles in the resolution aloud.  

 
Public Comment: 

                    None 

 



Board Agenda, September 21, 2023 
 

7 

 
Board Comment: 

 Member Singh thanked Member Phillips for providing the 
history prior to sharing the resolution. Member Singh shared 
that when we talk about the immigrant community, we talk 
about the struggles, and use words like, resilience, 
overcoming, working hard, but in reality, everyone that 
comes to this country deserves to have an equal right and 
equal opportunity at making a life for themselves. Member 
Singh thinks that recognizing that our district is over 40% 
students who are of Latinx, Hispanic, Latino Heritage, that 
we continue our dedication to these students and wants to 
recognize the amount of parents and families that show up 
on the first and third of the month into this space, and speak 
their mother tongue to advocate. Member Singh shared that 
on behalf of the Board, they are dedicated to the 
community’s success, and he wishes the Latino, Latinx, 
Hispanic community the best this month.  

 
Member Phillips made a motion to move with a second from  
Board Member Singh. The Board voted 6-0 with Member  
Pritchett absent and a student preferential yes vote. 

 
  

10.0 PUBLIC HEARING 
 

             10.1  Resolution No. 3342: Resolution to Convey Easement  
                     Entitlements to the County of Sacramento at  
                     Ethel I. Baker (Nathaniel Browning) 
 

Nathaniel Browning shared that in coordination with  
Public Education Code Article 15, we are required to  
allow the public the opportunity to comment anytime the  
district intends to grant easement or dedicate real property  
to another public entity. In this case, Mr. Browning is  
talking about sidewalk easement entitlements to the County  
of Sacramento at Ethel I. Baker located at 5717 Laurine  
Way. The easement is in order to improve the walkability  
and safe routes to schools within that neighborhood. 

 
Public Comment: 
No public comment 

 
Board Comment: 
No Board comment 

 

 

  
 
 
 



Board Agenda, September 21, 2023 
 

8 

11.0 BOARD WORKSHOP/STRATEGIC INITIATIVE 
 

             11.1  Superintendent Search Firms Presentations and Selection  
                         (Board President Chinua Rhodes) 
 

Board President Rhodes shared that there are three search 
firms presenting in regard to the Superintendent Search. 
The three firms include Alma, Leadership & Associates, and 
McPherson and Jacobson. The firms shared their proposals, 
proposed search timelines, and processes with the Board 
and community.  

 
Public Comment: 
Terrence Gladney 

 
Board Comment: 

                    Member Singh thanked Terrence Gladney for speaking on  
                    this process that is so important. Member Singh requested to  
                    hear from each firm to gather their understanding of some of  
                    the issues or concerns that our district has faced. Member  
                    Singh wanted to clarify how can you differentiate from a  
                    pitch and reality of what we’ll get from an individual  
                    applying to be the district’s Superintendent.  

Member Kayatta wanted to clarify for people in the  
community that the Board had received seven proposals and  
they narrowed it down to these 3 search firms which were the  
Board’s top choices. Member Kayatta is looking for a search  
firm that is competent enough to get the job done, but  
understands that this community and this Board is making  
the selection. This is a partnership, but also a tool to get us  
where we need to be. Member Kayatta asked Leadership & 
Associates, “How many candidates typically make it through 
their process, and how do they do the whittling down?” For 
McPherson and Jacobson, “What are your thoughts and 
experiences on working with labor unions to make sure a 
selection is something that they can work with for our 
superintendent?” For Alma, they are the highest price with 
double and triple the two firms, so Member Kayatta asked, 
“What are we getting for that extra money?” 

                   Member Pritchett stated that she does not want to take action  
                    tonight. Member Pritchett appreciates all the questions that  
                   have already been asked. Member Pritchett would like 

additional information on the three firms’ 5-year placement, 
and what the percentage and success rates have been. 
Member Pritchett requested some recommendations and 
phone numbers that the Board members can call themselves 
to reach out to over the next two weeks, and to know exactly 
where the firms are pooling from.  
Student Member Segura wanted to know if the firms had  
looked into our district and how they you going to apply  

 



Board Agenda, September 21, 2023 
 

9 

what they’ve learned to their process in finding a  
Superintendent.  

 Member Phillips shared that over the last few years, there  
 has been very limited improvement for our Black and Brown  
 students. Sometimes we have to be revolutionary in the  
 choices that we make, and we shouldn’t just pick the cheapest  
 bid. The Board needs to do their due diligence. The choosing  
 of this Superintendent cannot be simple. Member  
 Phillips does not want to cut corners at all, and the Board is  
 working on putting themselves together. Member Phillips  
 wanted to know if the search firms have had experience with  
 Boards that have clashed.  
 Member Pritchett reiterated that she would like additional  
 information to call and do reference checks for each firm. 

  Student Member Segura asked what Leadership & Associates  
  estimated timeline would to have a Superintendent put in  
  place. 
Member Kayatta hears that the Board needs more time, so he 
would like to withdraw his previous statement. Member 
Kayatta agrees with the Board and believes we should take 
our time and should do this right. 
Member Jeane wants to be honest, and doesn’t really know 
how to have this conversation on the dais in public. Member 
Jeane doesn’t know how to share unformed thoughts, random 
concerns, and doesn’t know how to make this decision right 
now, so she definitely needs more time. Member Jeane 
recognizes that a big part of the Brown Act is that the Board 
does have these big conversations in public, because the 
community and that transparency, and that being part of the 
process is important.  
Member Rhodes shared that three Board members have 
requested more time, and Member Rhodes asked for a show of 
hands on those who would like to request more time prior to 
taking action. All Board members raised their hands. 

 
             11.2 Approve 2022-2023 Year End Financial Report  

                         Unaudited Actuals (Jesse Castillo) 
 
 

Jesse Castillo and Cindy Tao presented the comparison of 
unaudited actuals to 2022-23 estimated actuals, multi-year 
projections with beginning fund balance from unaudited 
actuals, summary and next steps, and requested the Board 
approve the 2022-23 unaudited actuals financial report. 

 
                 Public Comment: 

No public comment 
 

Board Comment: 

 



Board Agenda, September 21, 2023 
 

10 

Member Jeane shared that school finances is very confusing, but 
when we look at unaudited actuals, these are all real dollars. On 
page 9 of the PowerPoint slide, it shows the actual dollars of our 
budget for 2022-23. The downside is that we don’t get to see the 
actual numbers until 2-3 months after the school year has ended. 
Member Jeane is excited to see the health of the district’s 
budget, and the revenue that is coming in, is more than the 
expenditures.  
Member Kayatta thanked Jesse and Cindy for being here, and 
for all their hard work. Member Kayatta thanked staff for 
bringing up SCOE’s letter. Member Kayatta shared that we are 
not required to pay for a fiscal advisory, but SCOE says that 
they will appoint one in their letter. Member Kayatta wanted to 
know if we have to accept them or we are choosing to accept 
them, and SCOE is paying for it. Member Kayatta asked staff to 
clarify how we have budgeted for raises that we are expecting to 
give to our other bargaining units as well as unrepresented 
employees. As Member Jeane said, it’s sometimes hard to filter 
thoughts from the dais, but he finds SCOE’s letter and previous 
letter that they have sent really offensive to the governing Board. 
The Board is playing by their rules and following the ed. code, 
and we have amazing staff who understand our finances, and 
advise the Board how to do their jobs, and the Board does their 
jobs.  

                Member Singh thanked Jesse for the update. Member Singh 
shared that the positive certification does showcase our 
competency and the dedication of this Board and staff. We all 
know that we are dedicated to this District. This is a big deal 
for us to get a positive certification. We have the financial 
know how and ability to give our children a positive education. 

                Member Jeane thanked Member Kayatta for his comment. 
Member Jeane shared that if you look at the page where there 
is a line item that says “committed” of $85 million dollars, and 
that was debated and decided by this Board in partnership 
with our district staff, who is bargaining on our behalf with 
our labor partners. Member Jeane thinks that this implication 
that we are not doing our job, is incredibly frustrating. 
Member Jeane wanted to call out, that the Board is being 
responsible and working together.   
Member Rhodes shared that SCUSD is not in any fiscal 
oversight by SCOE. This is a historic moment in our district, 
because we have been under fiscal oversight from SCOE since 
before a majority of members were on the Board. To have the 
ability and power back, and the power of governing and 
allocating our funds, and directly impacting our students 
without an over watch shows that we’re moving in a new 
direction. We will continue doing great things in our District. 
 



Board Agenda, September 21, 2023 
 

11 

Member Pritchett made a motion to move with a second from 
Member Villa. The Board voted 7-0 with a student preferential 
yes vote.  

 
             11.3     Approve the Submission of Provisional Internship Permit  

                        Applications to the California Commission on Teacher  
                        Credentialing (Tami Mora)  
 

Tami Mora presented on the submission of provisional 
internship permit applications to the California Commission on 
Teacher Credentialing and requested the Board’s approval. 
These permits will enable teachers the opportunity to complete 
the requirements set forth by CCTC and remain in their 
positions, while they continue their work with students.  

 
Public Comment: 
No public comment 

 
                 Board Comment: 
                 No Board comment 
 

Member Pritchett made a motion to move with a second from 
Member Singh. The Board voted 7-0 with a student preferential 
yes vote.  

 

 

            11.4      Carbon Neutral Goals and Guidelines for SCUSD  
                         Buildings (Nathaniel Browning & Chamberlain Segrest) 
 

Chamberlain Segrest presented on carbon neutral goals and 
guidelines for SCUSD buildings by sharing the initial process, 
goals and guidelines, costs of inaction, and next steps.  

 
                  Public Comment: 
                  No public comment 
 

Board Comment: 
Member Jeane wanted to know why a resolution would be the 
next step. What is the process of developing the resolution? 
Staff shared that the resolution was drafted by New Building 
Institute, and Nathaniel and Chamberlain assisted it in tailoring 
it to make it work for SCUSD. 
Member Kayatta thanked Chamberlain for bringing this item 
forward. Member Kayatta shared that we are really lucky to 
have SMUD as a power provided in Sacramento. Member 
Kayatta asked if we can partner with SMUD to make it to the 
2030 goal. Member Kayatta shared that in the context of 
environmental justice, we need to be a beacon in our 
community behind greening our schoolyards.  
Member Villa is glad this resolution is coming to us and we’re 
putting our stamp on this. Member Villa wanted to know if any 

 



Board Agenda, September 21, 2023 
 

12 

other local school districts are doing some of these same things 
in regard to planning. Member Villa loves that we are a pioneer 
in this region, and this is such a big initiative in our district, 
and she would love for others to mirror what we are doing here 
in the future. Chamberlain shared that they are working with 
New Building Institute, and have looked at South Lake Tahoe, 
Portland, Oakland, San Francisco, and San Diego, who are 
working on similar sustainability efforts.  
Member Phillips asked to clarify the acronym “HRV”. 
Chamberlain shared that it was a typo and it stands for heating, 
ventilation, and air conditioning. Member Phillips wanted to 
know how this would impact the new schools that are under 
construction and being built currently. Staff have spoken with 
those working on the construction of these schools, and have 
shared the goals extensively, so they are making sure in their 
energy modeling that’s it is coming out in between 19 and 21 
KBTU. Nathaniel shared that when Mr. Ralston is going out to 
meet the architects working on the school sites, he is bringing 
Chamberlain, so she can share the vision, purpose, and 
direction for those designers on the smaller end and larger 
projects.  
Member Rhodes shared that he would love to be carbon neutral 

                  in his 40s rather than his early 50s, so if staff can help with 
that, that would be great. 

 
 

 

 

12.0 COMMUNICATIONS  

              12.1  Interim Superintendent’s Report (Lisa Allen)-No report  

  12.2  President’s Report (Chinua Rhodes)-President Rhodes shared that 
the Board continues to do their work around governance. The Board met 
last week and will continue to meet, and will be finalizing their listening 
sessions soon. The Board is meeting next Tuesday, and continuing to work 
and ensure that community voices are involved in how we govern, and 
what we will look like going into the next 5-10 years. 

 

  12.3 Student Member Report (Liliana Miller Segura)- Member Segura 
shared that SAC will be presenting at the next meeting, and will aim to do 
check-ins throughout the year, so the Board can see their development 
process around the initiatives that have been brought to mind that SAC 
will be presenting on at the end of the year . Member Segura shared that 
as the Superintendent search is in process, she would like the Board to 
keep in mind student perspective, and bringing in student voice to hear 
what their needs are, and what they are hoping for in a leader filling the 
role.  

 

  12.4  Information Sharing by Board Members 
Member Villa wanted to share a reminder to reiterate that SCUSD is a safe 
district for all of our students, families, and community. Member Villa 
wants our families to hear that, and especially, those in our LGBTQ+ 
community.  

 



Board Agenda, September 21, 2023 
 

13 

Member Phillips shared that today she had the pleasure of going to an Oak 
Park community gathering with community-based organizations, and 
wants to share a couple of things happening in our area. Highlands 
Community Charter in Technical School is having a back to school night 
on Sept. 29th 5-7pm at 2520 33rd Street in Oak Park. Also, there is a Fall 
Family Night at our Community Center on Oct. 6th 5:30-8pm with 120 
available, so please book early. 

Member Kayatta wanted to address some of the public comments that were 
made this evening. As a child, in K-12 education, Member Kayatta was in 
six different school districts. In 6th grade, Member Kayatta was in three 
different school districts. Member Kayatta shared that he doesn’t think he 
has gotten over how traumatic that was with constantly having to meet 
new people, new friends, interact with new adults when you’re a young 
child. The process that we have for ConCaping our kids, and stabilizing 
our schools and teachers in our classrooms every year needs dramatic 
improvement. There are definitely reasons that we have to do it, and we 
know we have a lot of teacher vacancies, so if we have a teacher 
available, it’s better to get them in the classroom rather than having a 
substitute. But with that said, Member Kayatta would really like to see us 
try to do more. If its budget related, and it means that we have to allocate 
more positions to have more flexibility, he is 100% behind that, but he 
know that there are a lot of logistics behind that. Member Kayatta shared 
that we should do it as gently as we can. Member Kayatta does not think 
that we provide the information that they need in a timely manner, and 
families are basically thrown out to the wind. Member Kayatta thinks that 
if we are going to ConCap gives, we should do it to the lowest extent as 
possible. We should have enrollment processes that anticipate this, and 
we need to do a lot better reach out and customer service to our families. 
That will also protect the school sites and the teachers who are currently 
bearing the brunt of it. We need to invest in all our staff which includes 
administrative staff, analysists, and enrollment technicians that can 
provide these services that school sites can’t. Member Kayatta reiterated 
that he would like more information on the enrollment process, and 
apologizing for anyone experiencing difficulty in this process right now.  

 Member Singh wanted to thank staff for working and helping to get a new 
principal for Theodore Judah. Member Singh watched parents, teachers, 
and communities come out to express what they were looking for, and he 
has every hope that the newly selected principal will be able to 
accomplish the goals set out by the community, and lead us in a positive 
direction at Theodore Judah. In terms of Tahoe Elementary, Member 
Singh wanted to address that he was at the back to school night yesterday, 
and he wanted to thank and address the courage that it took for our 
teachers and the principal there to come here tonight to speak to 
ConCaping. Member Singh shared that there are conversations that need 
to be had around the ConCaping process as a Board, and Member Singh 
asked Superintendent Allen for more information on how it works and 
what improvements we can come up with, so we can avoid and do this as 
minimally as needed.  

 Member Pritchett shared that tonight at Rosemont High School there was 
a candle light vigil to mourn the death of a recent Rosemont High School 
graduate, William Diaz Upton. Member Pritchett wanted to uplift the Diaz 
Upton family tonight, and asked that we adjourn the meeting in his 
memory.   

 



Board Agenda, September 21, 2023 
 

14 

 

 13.0 CONSENT AGENDA                                                                                                          
Generally routine items are approved by one motion without discussion.  The Superintendent or a Board 
member may request an item be pulled from the consent agenda and voted upon separately. 

 

13.1  Items Subject or Not Subject to Closed Session: 
 

13.1a Approve Grants, Entitlements and Other Income Agreements, Ratification of Other 
Agreements, Approval of Bid Awards, Approval of Declared Surplus Materials 
and Equipment, Change Notices and Notices of Completion  

  (Jesse Castillo) 
 

                                   13.1b Approve Personnel Transactions (Cancy McArn) 
 

13.1c Approve PO Board Report Period of August 1-31, 2023 (Jesse Castillo) 
 
13.1d Approve Consolidated Application (ConApp) 2023-2024 Spring Report and LCAP 

Addendum (Dr. Kelley Odipo) 
 
13.1e Approve Resolution No. 3343: Estimate Gann Appropriation Limitation for 2023-

24 and Gann Amendment Calculation for 2022-23 (Jesse Castillo) 
 

 13.1f Approve Resolution No. 3342: Resolution to Convey Easement Entitlements to the 
County of Sacramento at Ethel I. Baker (Nathaniel Browning) 

 
13.1g Approve Appointment of Robyn Mutchler to the Parent Advisory Committee 

(Krystal Thomas) 
 
13.1h Approve Resolution No. 3347:  Resolution Regarding Board Stipends (Lisa Allen) 
 
13.1i Approve Minutes for the August 13, 2023 Special Board of Education Meeting 

(Lisa Allen) 
 
13.1j Approve LCAP Revisions (Krystal Thomas) 

 
                                  Public Comment: 
                                  Robyn Mutchler 
 
                                  Board Comment: 

No public comment 
 
Member Pritchett made a motion with a second from Member Villa. The Board voted 7-0 
with a student preferential yes vote. 

 
 14.0 FUTURE BOARD MEETING DATES / LOCATIONS 

 
 October 5, 2023, 4:30 p.m. Closed Session, 6:30 p.m. Open Session, Serna Center,  

5735 47th Avenue, Community Room, Regular Workshop Meeting 
 

 October 19, 2023, 4:30 p.m. Closed Session, 6:30 p.m. Open Session, Serna Center,  
5735 47th Avenue, Community Room, Regular Workshop Meeting 



Board Agenda, September 21, 2023 
 

15 

    
 15.0 ADJOURNMENT  

 
The meeting adjourned at 10:29 p.m. in the memory of the Diaz Upton family.  
 
 
  ____________________________________________ 
 Lisa Allen, Interim Superintendent and Board Secretary 
 
NOTE:  The Sacramento City Unified School District encourages those with disabilities to participate fully in the 
public meeting process.  If you need a disability-related modification or accommodation, including auxiliary aids or 
services, to participate in the public meeting, please contact the Board of Education Office at (916) 643-9314 at least 
48 hours before the scheduled Board of Education meeting so that we may make every reasonable effort to 
accommodate you.  [Government Code § 54953.2; Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, § 202 (42 U.S.C. §12132)]   
Any public records distributed to the Board of Education less than 72 hours in advance of the meeting and relating to 
an open session item will be available on the district’s website at www.scusd.edu 

  

http://www.scusd.edu/


Page 1 of 1 
 

            SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
        BOARD OF EDUCATION 

 
Agenda Item# _13.1e___ 

 
 
Meeting Date:  November 16, 2023 
 
 
Subject: Approve Annual Developer Fees Report for Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2023 
 

 Information Item Only 
 Approval on Consent Agenda 
 Conference (for discussion only) 
 Conference/First Reading (Action Anticipated: ______________)  
 Conference/Action 
 Action 
 Public Hearing 

 
Division:   Business Services 
 
Recommendation: Review and approve the Annual Developer Fees Report for Fiscal Year 
Ending June 30, 2023. 
  
Background/Rationale: Sections 66001 and 66006 of the Government Code require that the 
School District provide to the public information on developer fees received from new 
residential and commercial/industrial development to mitigate the impact of public 
improvement on the school facilities of the School District.  
 
Financial Considerations: Reflects standard business information.  
 
LCAP Goal(s): Family and Community Empowerment; Operational Excellence  
 
Documents Attached:  

• Annual Developer Fees Report for the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2023 
 
 
 
 
Estimated Time:  N/A 
Submitted by:  Janea Marking, Chief Business and Operations Officer 
Approved by:  Lisa Allen, Interim Superintendent    



Page 1 of 4 
 

 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 
 
 
 

 
ANNUAL DEVELOPER FEE REPORT  

FOR FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2023 
 

 
 

I. OVERVIEW/HISTORY: 
 
Sacramento City Unified School District ("School District") currently collects statutory school fees 
or “Developer Fees” pursuant to Education Code Section 17620 et seq. and Government Code 
Section 65995 et seq.  Government Code Sections 66001 and 66006 require the School District 
provide  to  the  public  information  on  Developer  Fees  received  from  new  residential  and 
commercial/industrial development to mitigate the impact of public improvements on the school 
facilities of the School District ("Reportable Fees"). 
 
Per the Government Code, the School District is required to provide the following information on 
Reportable Fees for the prior fiscal year: 

1. Amount of fees collected 
2. Amount of interest earned 
3. Amounts spent on projects to accommodate additional enrollment from new residential 

and commercial/industrial development 
 
Additionally, the School District is required to identify the following: 

1. The proposed purposes to which Reportable Fees may be spent 
2. The Reasonable Relationship between the Reportable Fees and the purpose to which 

they are to be spent 
3. The funding sources and expected funding availability date for school facilities projects 

for which Reportable Fees are required 
 
The following Annual Report for fiscal year ending June 30, 2023, includes the information and 
proposed  findings  the  School  District  intends  to  review  and  adopt  in  accordance  with 
Government Code Sections 66001 and 66006. 
 
   



Page 2 of 4 
 

II. Annual Report for Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2023: 
 
In accordance with Government Code Section 66006(b)(1) and  (2),  the School District hereby 
presents the following  information for fiscal year 2022/2023 (i.e. July 1 through June 30) with 
regard to the annual Reportable Fees: 
 

A. Description of  the Type of Reportable  Fees  in  the Account or Sub‐account(s) of  the 
School District  
 
The Reportable Fees of the School District for fiscal year 2022/2023 consist of Developer 
Fees.  The  School  District  collected  Developer  Fees  from  new  residential  and 
commercial/industrial development in the amounts noted below. 
 

B. Amount of the Reportable Fees 
 
The Developer Fees rates for fiscal year 2022/2023 were as follows: 
 

 $3.36 per square  foot of assessable space  for residential development constructed 
within the School District; and 

 $0.54  per  square  foot  of  covered  and  enclosed  space  for  commercial/industrial 
development; and 

 $0.26  per  square  foot  of  covered  and  enclosed  space  for  retail  self‐storage 
development 

 
The above fees were adopted by the Board on October 15, 2015, by Resolution No. 2857 
based on the "Developer Fee Justification Report” dated September 8, 2015.  
 
The Developer Free rates for the Railyards property area only for fiscal year 2022/2023 
were as follows: 
 

 $4.50 per square  foot of assessable space  for residential development constructed 
within the Railyards; and  

 $0.56  per  square  foot  of  covered  and  enclosed  space  for  commercial/industrial 
development 

 
The above fees were adopted by the Board on November 3, 2016 based on the “Railyards 
Project School Facilities Agreement” dated November 3, 2016. 
   



Page 3 of 4 
 

C. Developer Fees Revenue/Expenditure Actuals for Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2023 
Below summarizes the beginning and ending balances, the amount of Reportable Fees 
collected and interest earned, additional refunds/revenues, and total expenditures during 
fiscal year 2022/2023. 

 

 
 

6/30/2023

Beginning Fund Balance 23,726,621.86$     

REVENUE

Developer Fees Collected 3,428,600.47$       

Railyard Developer Fees Collected ‐$                       

Educational Revenue Augmentation Fund (City and County Redevelopment) 3,598,558.10$       

Interest Earned 806,817.87$          

Fair Market Value Adjustment 106,633.34$          

All Other Local Revenue ‐$                       

All Other Local Revenue (City and County Redevelopment) ‐$                       

2022‐23 Total Revenue 7,940,609.78$       

TOTAL AVAILABLE REVENUE 31,667,231.64$     

EXPENDITURES

Site Purpose Type

District Operations Administrative costs of collecting fees Administrative 83,552.21$            

District Operations Lease Revenue Bonds Debt Service Administrative 4,109,474.00$       

District Operations Lease Revenue Bonds Bank Fees Administrative 3,036.00$              

Leataata Floyd Floyd Farms Construction 516,345.70$          

District Operations Consulting Fees Administrative 20,915.75$            

District Operations Credit Card Fees Administrative 800.31$                 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 4,734,123.97$       

2022‐23 Available Ending Fund Balance 26,933,107.67$     

Sacramento City Unified School District

Developer Fees Revenue/Expenditure Actuals

for Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2023



Page 4 of 4 
 

D. Identification of Each Improvement Funded with Reportable Fees and the Expenditure 
Amount, Including the Total Percentage of the Cost of Each Project of the School District 
that was Funded with Reportable Fees, for fiscal year 2022/2023. 
 

 
 

E. Identification of an Approximate Date by Which the Construction of Project(s) of the 
School District will Commence  if the School District Determines that Sufficient Funds 
have been Collected  to Complete  Financing on an  Incomplete Project of  the  School 
District,  as  Identified  in  Paragraph  (2)  of  Subdivision  (A)  of  Section  66001,  and  the 
Project of the School District Remains Incomplete 

 
At  the  close of  fiscal year 2022/2023,  the School District determined  that  it will have 
sufficient funds to continue or begin construction of the following projects in fiscal year 
2023/2024: 

 None 
 

F. Description  of  each  Interfund  Transfer  or  Loan  Made  from  the  Account  or  Sub‐ 
Account(s),  Including  Project(s)  of  the  School  District  on which  the  Transferred  or 
Loaned Reportable Fees will be Expended, and,  in the Case of an Interfund Loan, the 
Date on Which the Loan will be Repaid, and the Rate of Interest that the Account or 
Sub‐Account(s) will Receive on the Loan 
 
No transfers or loans of Reportable Fees were made in fiscal year 2022/2023. 
 

G. The  Amount  of  Refunds  made  or  Revenues  Allocated  for  Other  Purposes  if  the 
Administrative Costs of Refunding Unexpended Revenues Exceed  the Amount  to be 
Refunded 
 
$141,385.44  in  refunds of Reportable Fees were made pursuant  to Government Code 
Section 66001(e) in fiscal year 2022/2023. 

 

Expenditure by Improvement

Total Amount Paid

From Reportable 

Fees

During Fiscal Year 

2022/2023

Total Amount Paid

From Other Sources

During Fiscal Year 

2022/2023

Total Amount Paid

from All Sources

During Fiscal Year 

2022/2023

Percent of Total Cost

Funded with

Expenditure by 

Improvement 

Reportable Fees

Leataata Floyd ‐ Farms

Construction 469,697.24 0.00 469,697.24 100%

Architect/Engineering 21,476.37 0.00 21,476.37 100%

Blueprint Duplicating 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%

Planning 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%

Construction Testing 22,202.09 0.00 22,202.09 0%

Inspection 2,970.00 0.00 2,970.00 100%

Subtotal 516,345.70 0.00 516,345.70 100%

Grand Total 516,345.70



Page 1 of 1 

SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD OF EDUCATION 

Agenda Item# 13.1f 

Meeting Date:  November 16, 2023 

Subject:  Approve Resolution No. 3368: Naming District Representatives for School 
Facilities Program and Division of State Architect 

Information Item Only 
Approval on Consent Agenda 
Conference (for discussion only) 
Conference/First Reading (Action Anticipated: _____) 
Conference/Action 
Action 
Public Hearing 

Division:  Facility Support Services 

Recommendation:  Approve Resolution No. 3368, which updates the approved list of District 
Representatives at its regularly scheduled Board Meeting on November 16, 2023. 

Background/Rationale:  Due to changes in Sacramento City Unified School District staffing at 
the Superintendent and Chief Business & Operations Officer positions, the District must inform 
certain agencies of these changes and the changes to appointed District Representatives.   

Financial Considerations:  None.  

LCAP Goal(s): Operational Excellence 

Documents Attached:  
1. Resolution No. 3368

Estimated Time of Presentation: NA 

Submitted by:  Janea Marking, Chief Business and Operations Officer 

Nathaniel Browning, Director of Facilities 

Approved by:  Lisa Allen, Interim Superintendent 



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD OF EDUCATION 

RESOLUTION NO. 3368 

Naming District Representatives for School Facilities Program and Division of State 
Architect 

WHEREAS, Education Code established multiple programs to be administered by the 
Office of Public School Construction, under the Department of General Services, as staff to the 
State Allocation Board; 

WHEREAS, the Board of Education and Sacramento City Unified School District will 
be requesting eligibility, funding, and/or certifying information for one or more SAB-
administered program projects pursuant to, but not limited to, Chapter 12.5, Part 10, and Article 
7, Chapter 3, Part 10.5, under Division 1 and Title 1 commencing with Section 17070.10, et. seq. 
of the Education Code; 

WHEREAS, the Board of Education is required to identify the School District 
Representatives that will sign, submit, and certify documents and act as liaison with the Office of 
Public School Construction as staff to the State Allocation Board; 

WHEREAS, the Board of Education for the District, located at 5735 47th Avenue, 
Sacramento, California County of Sacramento, desires to authorize individuals to act as “District 
Representatives” as that term is defined in section 1859.2 of title 2 of the California Code of 
Regulations on behalf of the District, except as to those matter requiring action by the Board; 

WHEREAS, the Board of Education and Sacramento City Unified School District 
understand that the signing and submittal of forms on behalf of the school district commits the 
school district to comply with program requirements; and  

WHEREAS, the Board of Education has identified the following positions, and the 
individuals currently serving in that capacity, as the District Representatives: 

♦ Interim Superintendent – Lisa Allen (replacing Jorge A. Aguilar),
♦ Director, Facilities Management, Maintenance and Operations and Resource

Management – Chris Ralston,
♦ Director, Capital Projects, Facilities & Resource Management – Nathaniel

Browning, and
♦ Chief Business & Operations Officer – Janea Marking, (replacing Rose Ramos).

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED, the Board of Education and 
Sacramento City Unified School District authorizes the District Representative(s) to execute 
documents as necessary to carry out the provisions of this resolution. 

AMENDED



 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Education on November, 16, 2023 by the 
following vote: 
  

AYES:  _______________ 
 NOES:  _______________ 
 ABSTAIN: _______________ 
 ABSENT: _______________ 
 
 
ATTESTED TO : 
 
 
 
__________________________________  ____________________________________ 
Chinua Rhodes     Lisa Allen 
President of the Board of Education   Interim Superintendent 



Page 1 of 2 
 

 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 

Agenda Item# 13.1g 
 

 
Meeting Date:  November 16, 2023 
 
Subject:  Approve the Annual Organization Meeting Date of December 14, 2023 
 

 Information Item Only 
 Approval on Consent Agenda 
 Conference (for discussion only) 
 Conference/First Reading  (Action Anticipated: ______________)  
 Conference/Action 
 Action 
 Public Hearing 

 
Division:   Board of Education/Legal Services  
 
Recommendation:  Approve Annual Organization Meeting for December 14, 2023 
 
Background/Rationale:   Pursuant to Ed. Code 35143, the Board of Education is 
required to set an annual organizational meeting “within a 15-day period that 
commences with the date upon which a governing board member elected at that 
election takes office.  Organizational meetings in years in which no such regular election 
for governing Board members is conducted shall be held during the same 15-day period 
on the calendar.” 
 
That 15-day period for 2023 is December 1-20, 2023.  The day and time of the annual 
meeting is to be selected by the governing Board at its regular meeting held 
immediately prior to the first day of such 15-day period, and the Board of Education 
shall notify the County Superintendent of Schools of the day and time selected.   
 
The designated organizational meeting of the Board of Education is slated for 
Thursday, December 14, 2023, at 6:30 p.m.   
 
Financial Considerations:  Family and community Engagement 
 
LCAP Goal(s):  N/A 
 
Documents Attached:   

1. Notice of Annual Organizational Meeting for Governing Boards 
2. Scheduling of Annual Organizational Meeting Form 
3. Certificate of Election 



Page 2 of 2 
 

4. Education Code Section 35143 and 5017 
 
Estimated Time of Presentation:  N/A 
Submitted by:  Lisa Allen, Interim Superintendent 
Approved by:   Lisa Allen, Interim Superintendent 

 











 

 

 
     SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
Agenda Item# 13.1h 

Meeting Date:  November 16, 2023 
 
Subject:  Approve SETA Head Start Budget Carryover from Program 2022-2023 to 
                2023-2024 
 
☐ Information Item Only 
X Approval on Consent Agenda 
☐ Conference (for discussion only) 
☐ Conference/First Reading (Action Anticipated: ______________)  
☐ Conference/Action 
☐ Action 
☐ Public Hearing 
 
Division:  Early Learning and Care 
 
Recommendation:  Request to carry the remaining Head Start funds from Year 3 
(2022-23) to Year 4 (2023-2024). 
 
Background/Rationale:  Due to the California Department of Education holding 
harmless for the 2022-2023 school year, we were able to use the CSPP funds instead 
of Head Start to help offset the cost of large improvement projects, in which those funds 
would not be carried over.   
 
Financial Considerations:  Request to carry the remaining Head Start funds of 
$786,928 from Year 3 (2022-23) to Year 4 (2023-2024).  We plan to use the remaining 
funds to complete the large flooring project and infrastructure improvements as 
previously approved in the grant. This will be a great opportunity to improve conditions 
and services for children and families.   
 
LCAP Goal(s):   
Goal 1: College Career Readiness 
Goal 2: Foundational Educational Experience with Equitable Opportunities for ALL 
students 
Goal 3: Integrated Supports 
Goal 4: Culture and Climate – Dismantling Systems 
Goal 6: Implementation of MTSS/Data-Based Decision Making 
Goal 8: Basic Services and Districtwide Operations/Supports 
 
Documents Attached:   
2. Request for Program Approach Change and/or Budget Modification 
 



 

 

 
Estimated Time of Presentation: N/A 
Submitted by:   Yvonne Wright, Chief Academic Officer 
  E’leva Hughes Gibson, Assistant Superintendent 
Approved by:   Lisa Allen, Interim Superintendent 

 
 







 

 

 
      SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
Agenda Item# 13.1i 

 
Meeting Date:  November 16, 2023 
 
Subject:  Approve SETA Head Start Budget Modification for 2022-2023 
 
☐ Information Item Only 
X Approval on Consent Agenda 
☐ Conference (for discussion only) 
☐ Conference/First Reading (Action Anticipated: ______________)  
☐ Conference/Action 
☐ Action 
☐ Public Hearing 
 
Division:  Early Learning and Care 
 
Recommendation:  Request to move Head Start funds from Personnel and Fringes to 
Supplies for programming purposes. 
 
Background/Rationale:  Due to staffing shortages and transitions in filling vacant 
positions, there was remaining funding from the 2022-2023 school year 
 
Financial Considerations:  Request to move $ 319,763 from Personnel ($23,217) and 
Fringes ($296,456) to Supplies..   
 
LCAP Goal(s):   
Goal 1: College Career Readiness 
Goal 2: Foundational Educational Experience with Equitable Opportunities for ALL 
students 
Goal 3: Integrated Supports 
Goal 4: Culture and Climate – Dismantling Systems 
Goal 6: Implementation of MTSS/Data-Based Decision Making 
Goal 8: Basic Services and Districtwide Operations/Supports 
 
Documents Attached:   
1.Request for Program Approach Change and/or Budget Modification 
 
Estimated Time of Presentation: N/A 
Submitted by:  Yvonne Wright, Chief Academic Officer 
  E’leva Hughes Gibson, Assistant Superintendent 
Approved by:   Lisa Allen, Interim Superintendent 

 



 

 

Page 1 of 1 










	8 November 16 2023 Agenda
	BOARD OF EDUCATION
	MEETING AND WORKSHOP
	AGENDA

	9.1 Res No 3367 Sikh American Awareness and Appreciation Month
	9.1 Res No 3367 Calif Sikh American Awareness Month-Nov 2023
	Meeting Date:  November 16, 2023

	9.1.1 Res No 3367 Resolution

	10.1 AB 1200 MOU between SCUSD and SEIU
	10.1 Board Cover Sheet AB1200 SEIU
	Meeting Date:  November 16, 2023

	10.1.1 AB 1200 Public Disclosure Template 2023-24 45 Day Revise - SEIU 11-7-2023
	10.1.2 SCUSD - SEIU - Article 6 TA 11.9.23

	11.1 11.16.2023 Agenda Cover Facilities Master Plan Implementation and Construction Update
	Meeting Date:  November 16, 2023

	13.1a Grants Entitlements and Other Income Agreements
	13.1a 11-16-23 FINAL (002)
	Meeting Date:  November 16, 2023

	13.1a.1 A24-00050 Refugee Support Services Year 2
	EXHIBIT 12 -RSS - Standard Conditions (final 8.1.22).pdf
	STANDARD CONDITIONS TO
	2. Evidence of Nonprofit Status
	3. Term
	4. Extension of Term
	5. Payment/Reporting/Fiscal Management
	6. Accounting, Records, Reports, Audit, Inspection
	7. Deobligation of Funds
	8. Suspension or Disallowance of Payments/Suspension of Performance
	9. Termination of DELEGATE AGREEMENT
	10. Procedures for Corrective Action
	11. Property
	12. License for Use
	13. Right to Reuse
	14. Insurance
	15. Facilities
	16. Personnel
	17. Debarment, Suspension, Termination and/or Revocation
	18. Pro-Children Act of 1994
	19. Prior Findings
	20. National Labor Relations Board Certification
	21. Wages
	22. Nepotism
	23. Conflict of Interest
	24. Employment of Former State Employees
	25. Nondiscrimination/Equal Opportunity
	26. Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act
	27. Refugee Act and Regulations
	28. State Statutory Requirements
	29. Grievances
	30. Coordination of Programs and Activities
	31. Confidentiality
	32. Refugee  Cash  Assistance/Entrant  Cash  Assistance,  General  Assistance  and Temporary Assistance to Needy Families
	33. Unauthorized Financial Benefit
	34. Contingent Fee
	35. Kickbacks
	36. Fraud and Program Abuse
	37. Political Activity/Lobbying
	38. Sectarian Activities
	39. Delegation/Subcontract/Assignment/Security for Loan
	40. Independent Status
	41. Indemnification
	42. Delegate Agency Status
	43. Laws
	44. Clean Air and Clean Water
	45. Energy Conservation
	46. Press Releases and Communications
	47. Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986
	48. Drug-Free Workplace Certification
	49. Successors
	50. Entire Agreement/Modifications
	51. Severability of Provisions
	52. Titles
	53. Waiver
	54. Limitation of Actions
	55. California Law
	56. Notices
	EXHIBIT 12
	59. Statutes, Regulations, Policies and Procedures
	60. Counterpart, Facsimile and Electronic Signatures


	13.1a.2 SA24-00161 CSUS HRTP RWF
	13.1a.3 SA24-00480 PMG LBHS SoftBaseball Fields
	SA24-00480 PMG LBHS SoftBaseball Fields sig pages
	SA24-00480 PMG LBHS SoftBaseball Fields
	SA24-00480 PMG LBHS SoftBaseball Fields
	ARTICLE 1. Definitions
	1.1 In addition to the definitions above, the following definitions for words or phrases shall apply when used in this Agreement, including all Exhibits:
	1.1.1 Agreement: The Agreement consists exclusively of this document and all identified exhibits attached and incorporated by reference.
	1.1.2 Architect: The architect(s) that the District designates as being the architect(s) for all or a portion of the Project, including all consultants to the Architect(s).
	1.1.3 As-Built Drawings (“As-Builts”): Any document prepared and submitted by District Contractor that details on a Conforming Set, the actual construction performed during the Project, including changes necessitated by Construction Change Documents a...
	1.1.4 Board: The District’s Governing Board.
	1.1.5 Conforming Set: The plans, drawings, and specifications at the end of the Bidding Phase that incorporate all addenda, if any, issued during the Bidding Phase.
	1.1.6 Construction Budget: The total amount indicated by the District for the Project plus all other costs, including design, construction, administration, financing, and all other costs.
	1.1.7 Construction Change Documents (“CCD”): The documentation of changes to the DSA-approved construction documents.
	1.1.8 Construction Cost Budget: The total cost to District of all elements of a Project designed or specified by the Architect, as adjusted during and at the end of the design phase in accordance with this Agreement and the Agreement for Architectural...
	1.1.9 Construction Manager: The entity listed in the first paragraph of this Agreement.
	1.1.10 Consultant(s): Any and all consultant(s), sub-consultant(s), subcontractor(s), or agent(s) to the CM.
	1.1.11 Contractor: One or more licensed and registered contractors under contract with the District for construction of all or a portion of the Project.
	1.1.12 Design Team: The Architect(s) that the District designates as being the architect(s) for all or a portion of the Project, including all consultants to the Architect(s), plus all engineer(s) or other designer(s), who have a responsibility to the...
	1.1.13 DIR: California Department of Industrial Relations.
	1.1.14 District: The Sacramento City Unified School District.
	1.1.15 District’s Representative: The individual identified herein that is authorized to act on the District’s behalf with respect to the Project. The initial District’s Representative shall be Chris Ralston, Director III of Facilities. District may c...
	1.1.16 DSA: Division of the State Architect in the California Department of General Services.
	1.1.17 Extra Services: District-authorized Services outside of the scope in Exhibit “A” or District-authorized reimbursables not included in CM’s fee.
	1.1.18 Fee: The CM’s Fee is defined in Article 7 and payable as set forth in Exhibit “D.”
	1.1.19 Program Manager: Any program manager hired to perform program management services for the District, including all Consultant(s) to the Program Manager.
	1.1.20 Project Inspector, Inspector of Record, IOR: The agent of the DSA at the project site whose primary responsibility will be to insure that the project is constructed in compliance with current codes; DSA-approved plans and specifications relatin...
	1.1.21 Record Drawings: A final set of drawings prepared by the Architect incorporating all changes from all As-Builts, sketches, details, and clarifications.
	1.1.22 Service(s): All labor, materials, supervision, services, tasks, and work that the CM is required to perform and that are required by, or reasonably inferred from, the Agreement, and that are necessary for the design and completion of the Project.


	ARTICLE 2. Term
	2.1 Term: This Agreement shall become effective upon final execution, and except as otherwise provided herein, will continue in effect until October 1, 2024.

	ARTICLE 3. Scope, Responsibilities and Services of CM
	3.1 Scope: CM shall provide the Services described herein and under Exhibit “A” for the Project.
	3.2 Standard of Care: CM, its officers, agents, employees, subcontractors, Consultants and any persons or entities for whom CM is responsible, shall provide all Services pursuant to this Agreement in accordance with the requirements of this Agreement ...
	3.3 Coordination: In the performance of CM’s services under this Agreement, CM agrees that it will maintain coordination with District-designated representatives as may be requested and desirable. This shall include, without limitation, coordination w...
	3.4 Other Consultants: If the CM employs sub-consultant(s), the CM shall ensure that its contract(s) with its sub-consultant(s) include language incorporating the terms of this Agreement.
	3.5 CM’s as District Representative: CM will act as the District’s agent to render the Services and furnish the work as described in Exhibit “A,” commencing with the receipt of a written Notice to Proceed signed by the District Representative. CM’s se...
	3.6 Review of General Obligation Bond Program Report and District’s Facilities Master Plan: CM will review the District’s Facilities Master Plan for the District and other written materials the District makes available by the District to CM to underst...
	3.7 Review of Measure H: CM will review Measure H and other written materials made available by the District to CM that relate to Measure H to fully understand the extent of funding available to implement the District’s Master Facilities Plan for the ...
	3.8 Expansion of Work based on Additional Funds: Should the Board decide to expand the scope of the Project and/or supplement the Construction Budget based upon availability of additional funds, Construction Manager agrees to perform the additional sc...
	3.9 Conflicts of Interest Prohibited:
	3.9.1 CM understands that District officials and employees are prohibited from involvement in decisions in which they may have a financial interest pursuant to Government Code sections 1090 and 87100 et seq., and certifies that it does not know of any...
	3.9.2 CM shall not be permitted to submit proposals or otherwise seek contracts for the following services to be procured by the District in connection with any project covered by this Agreement: Design Professional, IORs or Test/Inspection. If CM ide...


	ARTICLE 4. CM Staff
	4.1 The District selected CM to perform the Services because of the CM’s skills and expertise of key personnel.
	4.2 CM agrees that the following key personnel in CM’s firm shall be associated with the Project and perform the Services in the following capacities:
	Project Director during construction:  Wayne Sjolund
	Project Manager:     Ryan Perry-Smith
	Construction Manager:    TBD
	Project Engineer     TBD
	4.3 CM shall not change any of the key personnel listed above without the District’s prior written approval, unless said personnel cease to be employed by CM. Regardless of the reason for the change in key personnel, District shall be allowed to inter...
	4.4 If any designated lead or key person fails to perform to the satisfaction of the District, then upon the District’s written notice, the CM will have seven (7) calendar days to remove that person from the Project and shall provide a replacement per...
	4.4.1 All lead or key personnel for any Consultant must also be designated by the Consultant and are subject to all conditions stated in this Agreement.

	4.5 CM represents that the Construction Manager has no existing interest and will not acquire any interest, direct or indirect, that could conflict in any manner or degree with the performance of Services required under this Agreement. CM agrees furth...

	ARTICLE 5. Schedule of Work
	ARTICLE 6. Construction Cost Budget
	6.1 CM shall have responsibility, along with the Architect, to develop, review, and reconcile the Construction Cost Budget per Project with the Architect and the District throughout the design process and construction.
	6.2 The Construction Cost Budget shall be the total cost to District of all Project elements the Design Team designs or specifies.
	6.3 CM shall work cooperatively with the Project Design Team throughout the Project, including but not limited to, the Schematic Design Phase, Design Development Phase, and Construction Documents Phase, as described in Exhibit “A,” so that the Project...
	6.4 Evaluations of the District’s Construction Budget, and CM’s preliminary and detailed cost estimates, represent the CM’s best judgment as a professional familiar with the construction industry.
	6.5 If the Bidding Phase has not commenced within ninety (90) days after DSA approval of the plans and specifications, the Construction Cost Budget may be adjusted at District’s request to reflect changes in the general level of prices in the construc...
	6.6 The District may, in its sole discretion, do one, or a combination, of the following if any of the events in Article 6.7 occur:
	6.6.1 Give CM written approval of an agreed adjustment to the Construction Cost Budget.
	6.6.2 Authorize CM to re-negotiate and/or re-bid the Project, when appropriate, within three (3) months’ time of receipt of bids, at no additional cost to the District (exclusive of District and other agencies’ review time).
	6.6.3 Terminate this Agreement if the Project is abandoned by the District without further obligation by either party.
	6.6.4 Within three (3) months of receipt of bids, instruct Design Team to revise the drawings and specifications (in scope and quality as approved by the District) to bring the Project within the Construction Cost Budget for re-bidding. CM will perfor...

	6.7 If any of the following events occur, the District may exercise any one, or any combination, of the actions set forth in Article 6.6 above:
	6.7.1 The lowest responsive base bid received is five percent (5%) or more in excess of the Construction Cost Budget or
	6.7.2 The combined total of base bid and all additive alternates equal or exceed ten percent (10%) of the Construction Cost Budget; or
	6.7.3 The Construction Cost Budget increases in phases subsequent to the Schematic Design Phase due to reasonably foreseeable changes in the condition of the construction market in the Sacramento Area, in so far as these have not been caused by Acts o...


	ARTICLE 7. Fee and Method of Payment for Basic Services
	District shall pay CM an amount not to exceed Two Hundred Forty-Seven Thousand Dollars ($247,000) for all services contracted for under this Agreement and based on the Fee Schedule set forth in Exhibit “D.”
	7.1 District shall pay CM the Fee pursuant to the provisions herein and the method of payment set forth in Exhibit “D.”
	7.2 CM shall bill its work under this Agreement on a percent of completion basis in accordance with Exhibit “D.”
	7.3 No increase in fee will be due from change orders generated during the construction period to the extent caused by CM’s error(s) or omission(s).
	7.4 The CM’s fee set forth in this Agreement shall be full compensation for all of CM’s Services incurred in the performance hereof as indicated in Exhibit “D,” including, without limitation, all costs for personnel, travel within two hundred (200) mi...

	ARTICLE 8. Payment for Extra Services
	8.1 Any charges for Extra Services shall be paid by the District as described in Exhibit “B” at the rates set forth in Exhibit “D” only upon certification of the District’s prior written authorization of the claimed Extra Services and the Extra Servic...
	8.2 CM shall submit to District a written proposal describing the proposed scope of services and listing the personnel, labor duration, rates, and cost. CM shall proceed with Extra Services only upon receiving the District’s prior written authorizatio...
	8.3 If CM performs any Extra Services without the District’s authorized representative’s prior written authorization, the District will not be obligated to pay for such Extra Services. The foregoing provision notwithstanding, CM will be paid by the Di...

	ARTICLE 9. Ownership of Data
	9.1 All of CM’s work product prepared or generated in connection with this Agreement is the District’s property.
	9.2 Upon the District’s request, the CM shall make available to the District all work product completed or in progress at the time of such a request.
	9.3 After Project completion or, if the District exercises the right to terminate this Agreement pursuant to the Agreement terms, CM shall assemble and deliver to District within five (5) calendar days of the District’s written request, all of CM’s wo...
	9.4 All Project records are District property, whether or not those records are in the CM’s possession. District retains all rights to all copyrights, designs, and other intellectual property embodied in the plans, record drawings, specifications, est...

	ARTICLE 10. Termination of Contract
	10.1 District’s Request for Assurances: If District at any time reasonably believes CM is or may be in default under this Agreement, District may in its sole discretion notify CM of this fact and request written assurances from CM of performance of Se...
	10.2 District’s Termination of CM for Cause: If CM fails to perform CM’s duties to the District’s satisfaction, or if CM fails to fulfill in a timely and professional manner CM’s material obligations under this Agreement, or if CM violates any of the ...
	10.3 District’s Termination of CM for Convenience: District shall have the right in its sole discretion to terminate this Agreement for its own convenience. In the event of a termination for convenience, CM may invoice District and District shall pay ...
	10.4 CM’s Termination of Agreement for Cause: CM has the right to terminate this Agreement if the District does not fulfill its material obligations under this Agreement and fails to cure such material default within sixty (60) days of receipt of writ...
	10.5 Effect on Pre-Termination Services: Except as indicated in this Article, termination shall have no effect upon any of the rights and obligations of the Parties arising out of any transaction occurring prior to the effective date of such termination.
	10.6 Ceasing Services upon Termination: If, at any time in the progress of performing Services under this Agreement, the District determines that CM’s Services should be terminated, the CM, upon the District’s written notice of such termination, shall...
	10.7 Project Suspension: If the Project is suspended by the District for more than one hundred and eighty (180) consecutive days, the CM shall be compensated for services performed prior to notice of such suspension. When the Project is resumed, the s...

	ARTICLE 11. Indemnity
	11.1 To the furthest extent permitted by California law, CM shall indemnify and hold free and harmless the District, its Governing Board, agents, representatives, officers, consultants, employees, trustees, and volunteers (“the Indemnified Parties”) f...
	11.2 CM shall pay and satisfy any judgment, award, or decree that may be rendered against the Indemnified Parties in any Claim. CM’s obligation pursuant to Article 11.1 includes reimbursing the District for the cost of any settlement paid by the Indem...
	11.3 District may withhold from amounts owing to CM any and all costs that arise out of, pertain to, or relate to the negligence, recklessness, or willful misconduct of the CM.

	ARTICLE 12. Conduct on Project Site and Fingerprinting
	12.1 Unacceptable and/or loud language will not be tolerated. “Cat calls” or other derogatory language toward students or public will not be allowed.
	12.2 Drugs, alcohol, and smoking on District property are strictly prohibited. No drugs, alcohol and/or smoking are allowed at any time in any building and/or grounds on District’s property. No students, staff, visitors or contractors are to use drugs...
	12.3 Pursuant to Education Code section 45125.2, the District has determined on the basis of the scope of Services in this Agreement that CM and its subcontractors and employees will have only limited contact with pupils. CM will promptly notify the D...
	12.4 For all workers on District property, CM shall comply with all applicable federal, state and local laws regarding COVID-19, including but not limited to the CDPH’s State Public Health Officer Orders.

	ARTICLE 13. Responsibilities of the District
	13.1 The District shall examine the documents submitted by the CM and shall render decisions so as to avoid unreasonable delay in the process of the CM’s Services.
	13.2 The District shall provide to the CM as complete information as is available to District regarding the District’s Project requirements.
	13.3 The District shall retain design professional(s) whose services, duties and responsibilities will be described in written agreement(s) between the District and design professional(s).
	13.4 Unless the contract documents require that Contractor provide any of the following, the District shall, in a timely manner, and with CM’s assistance, secure, submit and pay for necessary approvals, easements, assessments, permits and charges requ...
	13.5 The District, its representatives, and consultants shall communicate with the Contractor either directly or through the CM.
	13.6 The District shall designate an officer, employee and/or other authorized representatives to act on the District’s behalf with respect to the Project. The District’s Project representative shall be available during working hours and as often as m...

	ARTICLE 14. Liability of District
	14.1 Other than as provided in this Agreement, District’s obligations under this Agreement shall be limited to the payment of the compensation as provided in this Agreement. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, in no event shall Dist...
	14.2 CM shall pay to District any and all costs incurred by District, or for which District may become liable, to the extent caused by negligent delays, acts, or omissions of CM in its performance of its Services.
	14.3 District shall not be responsible for any damage to persons or property as a result of the use, misuse or failure of any equipment used by CM, or by its employees, even though such equipment be furnished or loaned to CM by District.
	14.4 CM hereby waives any and all claim(s) for recovery from the District under this Agreement, which loss or damage is covered by valid and collectible insurance policies. CM agrees to have its required insurance policies endorsed to prevent the inva...

	ARTICLE 15. Insurance
	15.1 CM shall procure, prior to commencement of Services, and will maintain for the duration of the Agreement insurance against claims for injuries to persons or damages to property which may arise from or in connection with the performance of the wor...
	15.2 Minimum Scope and Limits of Insurance: Coverage shall be at least as broad as the following scopes and limits:
	15.2.1 Commercial General Liability. Two million dollars ($2,000,000) per occurrence for bodily injury, personal injury, property damage, death, advertising injury, and medical payments arising from the performance of any portion of the Services. If C...
	15.2.2 Commercial Automobile Liability, Any Auto. Two million dollars ($2,000,000) per occurrence.
	15.2.3 Workers' Compensation. Statutory limits required by the State of California. For all of the CM’s employees who are subject to this Agreement and to the extent required by the applicable state or federal law, CM shall keep in full force and effe...
	15.2.4 Employer's Liability. One million dollars ($1,000,000) per accident for bodily injury or disease. For all of the CM’s employees who are subject to this Agreement, CM shall keep in full force and effect, an Employers’ Liability policy. That poli...
	15.2.5 Professional Liability. This insurance shall cover the CM and its sub-consultant(s), if any, for two million dollars ($2,000,000) aggregate limit subject to no claim deductible, coverage to continue through completion of construction plus two y...

	15.3 The District reserves the right to modify the limits and coverages described herein, with appropriate credits or charges to be negotiated for such changes.
	15.4 Deductibles and Self-Insured Retention: Any deductibles or self-insured retention exceeding Twenty-Five Thousand Dollars ($25,000) must be declared to and approved by the District. At the option of the District, either:
	15.4.1 The District can accept the higher deductible;
	15.4.2 CM’s insurer shall reduce or eliminate such deductibles or self-insured retention as respects the District, its officers, officials, employees and volunteers; or
	15.4.3 CM shall procure a bond guaranteeing payment of losses and related investigations, claim administration and defense expenses.

	15.5 Other Insurance Provisions: The general liability and automobile liability policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions:
	15.5.1 All policies except for the worker’s compensation, employer’s liability and professional liability insurance policy shall be written on an occurrence form.
	15.5.2 The District, its representatives, consultants, trustees, officers, officials, employees, agents, and volunteers (“Additional Insureds”) are to be covered as additional insureds as respects liability arising out of activities performed by or on...
	15.5.3 Any failure to comply with reporting or other provisions of the policies including breaches of warranties shall not affect coverage provided to the Additional Insureds.
	15.5.4 CM shall pay all insurance premiums, including any charges for required waivers of subrogation or the endorsement of additional insureds. If CM fails to maintain insurance, District may take out comparable insurance, and deduct and retain amoun...
	15.5.5 The CM’s insurance shall apply separately to each insured against whom claim is made or suit is brought, except with respect to the limits of the insurer’s liability.
	15.5.6 Each insurance policy required by this clause shall be endorsed to state that coverage shall not be canceled, not renewed, or material change in coverage except after thirty (30) days prior written notice by certified mail, return receipt reque...
	15.5.7 CM’s insurance coverage shall be primary and non-contributory insurance as respects the Additional Insureds with respect to any claims related to, arising out of, or connected with the Project. Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the ...
	15.5.8 Construction Manager shall provide an endorsement that the insurer waives the right of subrogation against the District and its respective elected officials, officers, employees, agents, representatives, consultants, trustees, and volunteers.
	15.5.9 CM shall require all subconsultants to maintain the level of insurance CM deems appropriate with respect to the consultant’s scope of the Work unless otherwise indicated in the Agreement. CM shall cause the subconsultants to furnish proof there...
	15.5.10 If CM normally carries insurance in an amount greater than the minimum amounts required herein, that greater amount shall become the minimum required amount of insurance for purposes of the Agreement. Therefore, CM hereby acknowledges and agre...

	15.6 Acceptability of Insurers: Insurance is to be placed with insurers admitted in California with a current A.M. Best's rating of no less than A:VII. CM shall inform the District in writing if any of its insurer(s) have an A.M. Best’s rating less th...
	15.6.1 Accept the lower rating; or
	15.6.2 Require CM to procure insurance from another insurer.

	15.7 Verification of Coverage: Prior to commencing with its provision of Services under this Agreement, but no later than three (3) calendar after the Notice of Award, CM shall furnish the District with:
	15.7.1 Certificates of insurance showing maintenance of the required insurance coverage;
	15.7.2 Original endorsements affecting coverage. The endorsements are to be signed by a person authorized by that insurer to bind coverage on its behalf. All endorsements are to be received and approved by the District before work commences.

	15.8 Copy of Insurance Policy(ies): Upon the District’s request, CM will furnish District with a copy of all insurance policies related to its provision of Services under this Agreement.

	ARTICLE 16. Nondiscrimination
	ARTICLE 17. Covenant Against Contingent Fees
	ARTICLE 18. Entire Agreement/Modification
	ARTICLE 19. Non-Assignment of Agreement
	ARTICLE 20. Law, Venue
	20.1 This Agreement has been executed and delivered in the State of California and the validity, enforceability and interpretation of any of the clauses of this Agreement shall be determined and governed by the laws of the State of California.
	20.2 To the fullest extent permitted by California law, Sacramento County shall be the venue for any action or proceeding that may be brought or arise out of, in connection with or by reason of this Agreement.

	ARTICLE 21. Alternative Dispute Resolution
	21.1 All claims, disputes or controversies arising out of, or in relation to the interpretation, application or enforcement of this Agreement may be decided through mediation as the first method of resolution. Notice of the demand for mediation of a d...
	21.2 If a claim, or any portion thereof, remains in dispute upon satisfaction of all applicable dispute resolution requirements, the Consultant shall comply with all claims presentation requirements as provided in Chapter 1 (commencing with section 90...
	21.3 Notwithstanding any disputes, claims or other disagreements between the CM and the District, CM shall continue to provide and perform Services hereunder pending a subsequent resolution of such disputes.

	ARTICLE 22. Tolling of Claims
	ARTICLE 23. Severability
	ARTICLE 24. Employment Status
	24.1 CM shall, during the entire term of Agreement, be construed to be an independent contractor and nothing in this Agreement is intended nor shall it be construed to create an employer-employee relationship, a joint venture relationship, or to allow...
	24.2 CM understands and agrees that CM’s personnel are not and will not be eligible for: membership in, or to receive any benefits from, any District group plan for hospital, surgical or medical insurance; membership in any District retirement program...
	24.3 Should District, in its discretion, or a relevant taxing authority such as the Internal Revenue Service or the State Employment Development Department, or both, determine that CM or any employee of CM is an employee of District for purposes of co...
	24.4 Should a relevant taxing authority determine a liability for past services performed by CM for District, upon notification of such fact by District, CM shall promptly remit the amount due or arrange with District to have the amount due withheld f...
	24.5 A determination of employment status pursuant to the preceding two paragraphs shall be solely for the purposes of the particular tax in question, and for all other purposes of this Agreement, CM shall not be considered an employee of District. No...
	24.6 Nothing in this Agreement shall operate to confer rights or benefits on persons or entities not a party to this Agreement.

	ARTICLE 25. Warranty of CM
	25.1 CM warrants that CM is properly licensed and/or certified under the laws and regulations of the State of California to provide the Services that it has herein agreed to perform. CM further warrants that all of the work CM performs under this Agre...
	25.2 CM certifies that it is aware of the provisions of the California Labor Code of the State of California, requiring every employer to be insured against liability for workers compensation or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provi...
	25.3 To the extent that the work performed under this contract is subject to labor compliance and enforcement by the DIR, CM specifically acknowledges and understands that it shall perform the Services while complying with all applicable provisions of...

	ARTICLE 26. Cost Disclosure - Documents and Written Reports
	ARTICLE 27. Communications / Notice
	ARTICLE 28. [RESERVED]
	ARTICLE 29. District’s Right to Audit
	29.1 District retains the right to review and audit, and the reasonable right of access to CM’s and any Consultant’s premises to review and audit the CM’s compliance with the provisions of this Agreement (“District’s Right”). The District’s Right incl...
	29.2 The District’s Right includes the right to examine any and all books, records, documents and any other evidence of procedures and practices that the District determines is necessary to discover and verify whether CM is in compliance with all requ...
	29.3 If there is a claim for additional compensation or for Extra Services, the District’s Right includes the right to examine books, records, documents, and any and all other evidence and accounting procedures and practices that the District determin...
	29.4 CM shall maintain complete and accurate records in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices in the industry. CM shall make available to the District for review and audit all Project-related accounting records and documents and any ...
	29.5 CM shall include audit provisions in any and all of its subcontracts, and shall ensure that these sections are binding upon all Consultants.
	29.6 CM shall comply with these provisions within fifteen (15) days of the District’s written request to review and audit any or all of CM’s Project-related records and information.

	ARTICLE 30. Other Provisions
	30.1 CM shall be responsible for the cost of construction change orders caused directly by CM’s willful misconduct or negligent acts, errors or omissions. Without limiting CM’s liability for indirect or consequential cost impacts, the direct costs for...
	30.2 Neither the District’s review, approval of, nor payment for, any of the Services required under this Agreement shall be construed to operate as a waiver of any rights under this Agreement, and CM shall remain liable to the District in accordance ...
	30.3 CM shall share, credit, or reimburse District fifty percent (50%) of the amount of any tax deduction and/or credit CM receives for District Projects under the Commercial Buildings Energy-Efficiency Tax Deduction, 26 U.S. Code § 179D (“Section 179...
	30.4 Each party warrants that it has had the opportunity to consult counsel and understands the terms of this Agreement and the consequences of executing it. In addition, each party acknowledges that the drafting of this Agreement was the product of n...

	1. BASIC SERVICES
	2. GENERAL PROJECT SERVICES
	3. PRECONSTRUCTION PHASE
	3.15 To the extent requested by District or Program Manager, organize an initial planning workshop to create baseline parameters for the Project, to define overall building requirements, Project strategy, conceptual budget and schedule.  Pursuant to u...

	4. PRE-BID PHASE
	5. BIDDING PHASE
	6. CONSTRUCTION PHASE
	7. PROJECT COMPLETION
	8. FINAL DOCUMENTS
	The Construction Manager shall review and monitor all As-Built Drawings, maintenance and operations manuals, and other closeout documents to be sure that all required documents meeting contract requirements are provided, and shall secure and transmit ...

	9. WARRANTY
	The Construction Manager shall assist Program Manager as necessary to implement a Warranty Inspection and Warranty Work procedure for the Project that Contractor must follow.  The procedure shall include a twelve (12) month call back period and a fina...

	10. PROJECT CLOSEOUT
	To the extent requested by District or Program Manager, the Construction Manager shall assist District, Architect, and Program Manager as necessary to ensure all information and documentation necessary for Project closeout with the DSA is complete and...
	[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]

	EXHIBIT “B”
	SCHEDULE OF WORK
	EXHIBIT “D”
	Method of Payment of Basic Services




	13.1a.4 SA24-00484 CDW ABirney Campus
	EXHIBIT “A” – RESPONSIBILITIES AND SERVICES OF ARCHITECT A-1
	EXHIBIT “B” – CRITERIA AND BILLING FOR EXTRA SERVICES B-1

	This Agreement for Architectural Services is made as of November 16, 2023, between the Sacramento City Unified School District, a California public school district (“District”), and California Design West Architects (“Architect”) (collectively “Parti...
	Campus Renewal project located at Alice Birney Elementary School at 6251 13th Street, Sacramento CA  95831
	Article 1. Definitions
	1.1. In addition to the definitions above, the following definitions of words or phrases shall apply when used in this Agreement, including all Exhibits:
	1.1.1. Agreement:  The Agreement consists exclusively of this document and all identified exhibits attached and incorporated by reference.
	1.1.2. Architect:  The Architect identified in the first paragraph of this Agreement, including all Consultants to the Architect.  The term Architect means the Design Professional in General Responsible Charge on this Project.
	1.1.3. As-Built Drawings (“As-Builts”):  Any document prepared and submitted by District’s Contractor(s) that details on a Conforming Set, the actual construction performed during the Project, including changes necessitated by Construction Change Docu...
	1.1.4. Bid Set:  The plans, drawings, and specifications at the end of the Construction Documents Phase that the Division of the State Architect (“DSA”) has approved and that the District can use to go out to bid for construction of the Project.
	1.1.5. Conforming Set:  The plans, drawings, and specifications at the end of the Bidding Phase that incorporate all addenda, if any, issued during the Bidding Phase.  The Architect shall ensure that DSA has approved all revisions to the Bid Set that ...
	1.1.6. Construction Budget:  The total amount of funds indicated by the District for the entire Project plus all other costs, including design, construction, administration, and financing.
	1.1.7. Construction Change Documents (“CCD”):  The documentation of changes to the DSA-approved construction documents.
	1.1.8. Construction Cost Budget: The total cost to District of all elements of the Project designed or specified by the Architect, as adjusted at the end of each design phase in accordance with this Agreement.  The Construction Cost Budget does not in...
	1.1.9. Construction Manager:  The District’s representative on the Project if the District retains a construction manager, project manager, or owner’s representative.
	1.1.10. Contractor:  One or more licensed contractors under contract with the District for construction of all or a portion of the Project.
	1.1.11. Consultant(s):  Any and all consultant(s), sub-consultant(s), subcontractor(s), or agent(s) to the Architect.
	1.1.12. District:  The Sacramento City Unified School District.
	1.1.13. DSA:  The Division of the State Architect.
	1.1.14. Extra Services:  District-authorized services outside of the scope in Exhibit “A” or District-authorized reimbursables not included in Architect’s Fee.
	1.1.15. Laboratory of Record: The District-designated laboratory(ies) for testing of concrete, soils, materials, and other required testing.
	1.1.16. Project:  District’s Alice Birney Elementary School Campus Renewal Project at 6251 13th Street, Sacramento CA  95831.
	1.1.17. Record Drawings:  A final set of drawings prepared by the Architect that incorporates all changes from all As-Builts, sketches, details, and clarifications.
	1.1.18. Service(s):  All labor, materials, supervision, services, tasks, and work that the Architect is required to perform and that are required by, or reasonably inferred from, the Agreement, and that are necessary for the design and completion of t...
	1.1.19. Visually Verify: To verify to the fullest extent possible by physical inspection and reasonable investigation and without any destructive action.

	Article 2. Scope, Responsibilities, and Services of Architect
	2.1. Architect shall render the Services described in Exhibit “A,” commencing with receipt of a written Notice to Proceed signed by the District representative.  Architect’s Services will be completed in accordance with the schedule attached as Exhibi...
	2.2. Architect shall provide Services that shall comply with professional architectural standards, including the standard of care applicable to architects designing public school facilities and applicable requirements of federal, state, and local law,...
	2.3. The District intends to award the Project to Contractor(s) pursuant to a competitive bid process.  District reserves its right to use alternative delivery methods and the Architect’s scope of work may be adjusted accordingly.
	2.5. Architect shall contract for or employ at Architect’s expense, Consultant(s) to the extent deemed necessary for completion of the Project including, but not limited to: architects; mechanical, electrical, structural and civil engineers; landscape...
	2.6. Architect shall coordinate with District personnel or its designated representatives as may be requested and desirable, including with other professionals employed by the District for the design, coordination or management of other work related t...
	2.9. Architect shall direct and monitor the work of the District’s DSA project inspector(s) (“Project Inspector(s)”) and the Laboratory of Record.  Architect shall provide code required supervision of special inspectors not provided by the Laboratory ...
	2.10. Architect shall give efficient supervision to Services, using its best skill and attention.  Architect shall carefully study and compare all contract documents, drawings, specifications, and other instructions (“Contract Documents”) and shall at...
	2.11. Architect recognizes that the District may obtain the services of a Construction Manager and that Architect may have to assume certain coordination and management responsibilities, including tracking Requests for Information (“RFI”), providing R...

	Article 3. Architect Staff
	3.1. Architect has been selected to perform the Services herein because of the skills and expertise of key individuals.
	3.2. Architect agrees that the following key people in Architect’s firm shall be associated with the Project in the following capacities:
	Principal In Charge: Mitchell A. McAllister
	3.3. Architect shall not change any of the key personnel listed above without prior written approval by the District, unless said personnel cease to be employed by Architect.  In either case, the District shall be allowed to interview and approve repl...
	3.4. If any designated lead or key person fails to perform to the satisfaction of the District, then upon written notice Architect shall have five (5) calendar days to remove that person from the Project and replace that person with one acceptable to ...
	3.5. Architect represents that Architect has no existing interest and will not acquire any interest, direct or indirect, which could conflict in any manner or degree with the performance of Services required under this Agreement and that no person hav...
	3.6. Architect shall comply with Education Code section 17302(a) and agrees that any plans and/or specifications included in the Services shall be prepared under the supervision of licensed personnel, and that licensed personnel shall be in “responsib...

	Article 4. Schedule of Services
	Architect shall commence Services under this Agreement upon receipt of a written Notice to Proceed and shall prosecute the Services diligently as described in Exhibit “A,” so as to proceed with and complete the Services in compliance with the schedule...
	Article 5. Construction Cost Budget
	5.1. Architect hereby accepts the District’s established Construction Cost Budget and Project scope.  In accordance with Exhibit “A,” the Architect shall have responsibility to further develop, review, and reconcile the Construction Cost Budget for th...
	5.2. Architect shall complete all Services as described in Exhibit “A,” including all plans, designs, drawings, specifications and other Contract Documents, so that the cost to construct the work designed by the Architect will not exceed the Construct...
	5.4.1. The lowest responsive base bid received is in excess of five percent (5%) of the Construction Cost Budget; or
	5.4.2. If the combined total of base bid and all additive alternates come in ten percent (10%) or more under the Construction Cost Budget; or
	5.4.3. If the Construction Cost Budget increases in phases subsequent to the Schematic Design Phase due to reasonably foreseeable changes in the condition of the construction market in the county in which the District is located, in so far as these ha...


	Article 6. Fee and Method of Payment
	6.1. The District shall pay Architect for all Services contracted for under this Agreement an amount equal to the following (“Fee”):
	An amount not to exceed Four Hundred Five Thousand Dollars ($405,000) based on the rates set forth in Exhibit “D.”
	6.2. The District shall pay Architect the Fee pursuant to the provisions of Exhibit “D.”
	6.3. Architect shall bill for performance of Services under this Agreement in accordance with Exhibit “D.”
	6.4. No increase in Fee will be due from CCDs and/or change orders generated during the construction period to the extent caused by Architect’s error or omission.
	6.5. The Architect’s Fee set forth in this Agreement shall be full compensation for all of Architect’s Services incurred in the performance hereof as indicated in Exhibit “D.”
	6.6. Regardless of the structure of Architect’s Fee, the Architect’s Fee may be adjusted downward if the Scope of Services of this Agreement is reduced by the District in accordance with this Agreement.
	6.7. Neither the District’s review, approval of, nor payment for, any of the Services required under this Agreement shall be construed to operate as a waiver of any rights under this Agreement, and Architect shall remain liable to the District in acco...

	Article 7. Payment for Extra Services or Changes
	Any charges for Extra Services shall be paid by the District as described in Exhibit “B” only upon certification that the claimed Extra Service was authorized as indicated herein and that the Extra Services have been satisfactorily completed.  If any ...

	Article 8. Ownership of Data
	8.1. Pursuant to Education Code section 17316, this Agreement creates a non-exclusive and perpetual license for the District to use, at its discretion, all plans including, but not limited to, record drawings, specifications, estimates and other docum...
	8.2. Architect retains all rights to all copyrights over designs and other intellectual property embodied in the plans, record drawings, specifications, estimates, and other documents that Architect or its Consultants prepare or cause to be prepared p...
	8.3. Architect shall perform the Services and prepare all documents under this Agreement with the assistance of Computer Aided Design Drafting Technology (“CADD”) (e.g., AutoCAD).  Architect shall deliver to District all drawings in DWG format.  As to...
	8.4. In order to document exactly what CADD information was given to the District, Architect and District shall each date and sign a “hard” copy of reproducible documents that depict the information at the time Architect produces the CADD information....
	8.5. Following the termination of this Agreement, for any reason whatsoever, Architect shall promptly deliver to the District upon written request and at no cost to the District the following items (hereinafter “Instruments of Service”), which the Dis...
	8.5.1. One (1) set of the Contract Documents, including the bidding requirements, specifications, and all existing cost estimates for the Project, in hard copy, reproducible format.
	8.5.2. One (1) set of fixed image CADD files in DXF format of the drawings that are part of the Contract Documents.
	8.5.3. One (1) set of non-fixed image CADD drawing files in DXF or DWG or both formats of the site plan, floor plans (architectural, plumbing, structural, mechanical and electrical), roof plan, sections and exterior elevations of the Project.
	8.5.4. All finished or unfinished documents, studies, reports, calculations, drawings, maps, models, photographs, technology data and reports prepared by the Architect under this Agreement.
	8.5.5. The obligation of Section 8.5 of this Agreement shall survive the termination of this Agreement for any reason whatsoever.

	8.6. In the event the District changes or uses any fully or partially completed documents without Architect’s knowledge or participation or both, the District agrees to release Architect of responsibility for such changes, and shall hold Architect har...

	Article 9. Termination of Contract
	9.1. District’s Request for Assurances:  If District at any time reasonably believes that Architect is or may be in default under this Agreement, District may in its sole discretion notify Architect of this fact and request written assurances from Arc...
	9.2. District’s Termination of Architect for Cause:  If Architect fails to perform Architect’s duties to the satisfaction of the District, or if Architect fails to fulfill in a timely and professional manner Architect’s material obligations under this...
	9.3. District’s Termination of Architect for Convenience:  District shall have the right in its sole discretion to terminate the Agreement for its own convenience.  In the event of a termination for convenience, Architect may invoice District and Dist...
	9.4. Architect’s Termination of Agreement for Cause:  Architect has the right to terminate this Agreement if the District does not fulfill its material obligations under this Agreement and fails to cure such material default within sixty (60) days of ...
	9.5. Effect on Pre-Termination Services:  Except as indicated in this Article, termination shall have no effect upon any of the rights and obligations of the Parties arising out of any transaction occurring prior to the effective date of such terminat...
	9.6. Ceasing Services upon Termination:  If, at any time in the progress of the Design of the Project, the Governing Board of the District determines that the Project should be terminated, Architect, upon written notice from the District of such termi...
	9.7. Project Suspension:  If the District suspends the Project for more than one hundred twenty (120) consecutive days, Architect shall be compensated for Services performed prior to notice of that suspension. When the Project is resumed, the schedule...

	Article 10. Indemnity/Architect Liability
	10.3. Architect shall be responsible for the cost of reviewing CCDs and/or change orders caused by Architect’s willful misconduct, recklessness, or negligent acts, errors or omissions.  Without limiting Architect’s liability for indirect cost impacts,...
	10.4. District may withhold any and all costs that arise out of, pertain to, or relate to the negligence, recklessness, or willful misconduct of the Architect from amounts owing to Architect.

	Article 11. Fingerprinting
	11.1. Pursuant to Education Code section 45125.2, the District has determined on the basis of scope of Services in this Agreement, that Architect, its Consultants and their employees will have only limited contact with pupils. Architect shall promptly...
	11.2. For all workers on District property, the Architect shall comply with all applicable federal, state and local laws regarding COVID-19.  Further, except to the extent the Order provides otherwise, the Architect and Architect’s personnel shall con...

	Article 12. Responsibilities of the District
	12.1. The District shall examine the documents submitted by the Architect and shall render decisions so as to avoid unreasonable delay in the process of the Architect’s Services.
	12.2. The District shall verbally or in writing advise Architect if the District becomes aware of any fault or defect in the Project, including any errors, omissions or inconsistencies in the Architect’s documents.  Failure to provide such notice shal...
	12.3. Unless the District and Architect agree that a hazardous materials consultant shall be a Consultant of the Architect, the District shall furnish the services of a hazardous material consultant or other consultants when such services are requeste...

	Article 13. Liability of District
	13.1. Other than as provided in this Agreement, District’s financial obligations under this Agreement shall be limited to the payment of the compensation provided in this Agreement.  Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, in no event s...
	13.2. District shall not be responsible for any damage to persons or property as a result of the use, misuse or failure of any equipment used by Architect, or by its employees, even though such equipment be furnished or loaned to Architect by District.

	Article 14. Nondiscrimination
	Architect agrees to comply with the provisions of the California Fair Employment and Housing Act as set forth in part 2.8 of division 3 of the California Government Code, commencing at section 12900; the Federal Civil Rights Act of 1964, as set forth ...

	Article 15. Insurance
	15.1. Architect shall comply with the insurance requirements for this Agreement, set forth in Exhibit “E.”
	15.2. Architect shall provide certificates of insurance and endorsements to District prior to commencement of the work of this Agreement as required in Exhibit “E.”

	Article 16. Covenant against Contingent Fees
	Article 17. Entire Agreement/Modification
	Article 18. Non-Assignment of Agreement
	Article 19. Law, Venue
	19.1. This Agreement has been executed and delivered in the State of California and the validity, enforceability and interpretation of any of the clauses of this Agreement shall be determined and governed by the laws of the State of California.
	19.2. To the fullest extent permitted by California law, the county in which the District administration office is located shall be the venue for any action or proceeding that may be brought or arise out of, in connection with or by reason of this Agr...

	Article 20. Alternative Dispute Resolution
	20.1. All claims, disputes or controversies arising out of, or in relation to the interpretation, application or enforcement of this Agreement may be decided through mediation as the first method of resolution.  Notice of the demand for mediation of a...
	20.2. If a claim, or any portion thereof, remains in dispute upon satisfaction of all applicable dispute resolution requirements, the Architect shall comply with all claims presentation requirements as provided in Chapter 1 (commencing with section 90...
	20.3. Pending resolution of the dispute, Architect agrees it will neither rescind the Agreement nor stop the performance of the Services.
	Article 21. Tolling of Claims
	Architect agrees to toll all statutes of limitations for District’s assertion of claims against Architect that arise out of, pertain to, or relate to Contractors’ or subcontractors’ claims against District involving Architect’s work, until the Contrac...
	Article 22. Attorneys’ Fees
	Article 23. Severability
	Article 24. Employment Status
	24.1. Architect shall, during the entire term of Agreement, be an independent contractor and nothing in this Agreement is intended nor shall it be construed to create an employer-employee relationship, a joint venture relationship, or to allow the Dis...
	24.2. Architect understands and agrees that Architect’s personnel are not and will not be eligible for membership in or any benefits from any District group plan for hospital, surgical or medical insurance or for membership in any District retirement ...
	24.3. Should the District, in its discretion, or a relevant taxing authority such as the Internal Revenue Service or the State Employment Development Department, or both, determine that Architect, or any employee or Consultant of Architect, is an empl...
	24.4. Should a relevant taxing authority determine a liability for past services performed by Architect for the District, upon notification of such fact by the District, Architect shall promptly remit such amount due or arrange with the District to ha...
	24.5. A determination of employment status pursuant to the preceding two (2) paragraphs shall be solely for the purposes of the particular tax in question, and for all other purposes of this Agreement, Architect shall not be considered an employee of ...
	24.6. Nothing in this Agreement shall operate to confer rights or benefits on persons or entities not a party to this Agreement.

	Article 25. Certificate of Architect
	25.1. Architect certifies that the Architect is properly certified or licensed under the laws and regulations of the State of California to provide the professional services that it has herein agreed to perform.
	25.2. Architect certifies that it is aware of the provisions of the California Labor Code that require every employer to be insured against liability for workers compensation or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions of that cod...
	25.3. Architect certifies that it is aware of the provisions of California Labor Code and California Code of Regulations that require the payment of prevailing wage rates and the performance of other requirements on certain “public works” and “mainten...

	Article 26. Cost Disclosure - Documents and Written Reports
	Article 27. Notice & Communications
	Article 28. RESERVED
	Article 29. District’s Right to Audit
	29.1. District retains the right to review and audit, and the reasonable right of access to Architect’s and any Consultant’s premises to review and audit the Architect’s compliance with the provisions of this Agreement (“District’s Right”). The Distri...
	29.2. The District’s Right includes the right to examine any and all books, records, documents and any other evidence of procedures and practices that the District determines is necessary to discover and verify whether Architect is in compliance with ...
	29.3. If there is a claim for additional compensation or for Extra Services, the District’s Right includes the right to examine books, records, documents, and any and all other evidence and accounting procedures and practices that the District determi...
	29.4. Architect shall maintain complete and accurate records in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices in the industry. Architect shall make available to the District for review and audit all Project-related accounting records and doc...
	29.5. Architect shall include audit provisions in any and all of its subcontracts, and shall ensure that these sections are binding upon all Consultants.
	29.6. Architect shall comply with these provisions within fifteen (15) days of the District’s written request to review and audit any or all of Architect’s Project-related records and information.
	Article 30. Other Provisions
	30.1. Each party warrants that it has had the opportunity to consult counsel and understands the terms of this Agreement and the consequences of executing it. In addition, each party acknowledges that the drafting of this Agreement was the product of ...
	30.2. The individual executing this Agreement on behalf of Architect warrants and represents that she/he is authorized to execute this Agreement and bind the CM to all terms hereof.
	30.3. This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original. A facsimile or electronic signature shall be deemed to be the equivalent of the actual original signature. All counterparts so executed shall ...
	30.4. Architect shall share, credit, or reimburse District fifty percent (50%) of the amount of any tax deduction and/or credit Architect receives for District Projects under the Commercial Buildings Energy-Efficiency Tax Deduction, 26 U.S. Code § 179...

	Article 31. Exhibits “A” through “F” attached hereto are hereby incorporated by this reference and made a part of this Agreement.
	SCOPE OF PROJECT
	Project Name:  Alice Birney ES Campus Renewal
	Construction Cost Budget:  $4,500,000

	BASIC SERVICES
	3. The District shall provide all information available to it to the extent the information relates to Architect’s scope of work.  This information shall include, if available,
	a. As-builts;
	b. Physical characteristics;
	c. Legal limitations and utility locations for the Project site(s);
	d. Written legal description(s) of the Project site(s);
	e. Grades and lines of streets, alleys, pavements, and adjoining property and structures;
	f. Adjacent drainage;
	g. Rights-of-way, restrictions, easements, encroachments, zoning, deed restrictions, and boundaries and contours of the Project site(s);
	h. Locations, dimensions and necessary data with respect to existing buildings, other improvements and trees;
	i. Information concerning available utility services and lines, mechanical and other services, both public and private, above and below grade, including inverts and depths;
	j. Surveys, reports, as-built drawings, record drawings; and
	k. Subsoil data, chemical data, and other data logs of borings.
	Architect shall Visually Verify this information and all existing Project utilities, including capacity, and document the location of existing utility lines, telephone, water, sewage, storm drains and other lines on or around the Project to the extent...
	If Architect determines that the information or documentation the District provides is insufficient for purposes of design, or if Architect requires:  a topographical survey; a geotechnical report; structural, mechanical, and/or chemical tests; tests ...
	d. Based on survey and topography data provided by the District, input into computer and develop existing conditions base for the Schematic Design Phase.
	e. Administer Project as required to coordinate work with the District and among Consultants.
	f. Develop District standards for facilities and construction, including but not limited to designation of any material, product, thing or service by specific brand or trade name pursuant to Public Contract Code section 3400, subdivision (c).

	6. Meetings
	During this Phase, Architect shall attend, take part in, and, when indicated, conduct meetings, site visits, and workshops minimally on a bi-weekly basis.
	10. Deliverables and Numbers of Copies
	Within thirty (30) days of the end of this Phase, Architect shall provide to the District a hard copy of the following items produced in this phase, together with one (1) copy of each item in electronic format:

	12. Meetings
	During this Phase, Architect shall attend, take part in, and, when indicated, conduct meetings, site visits, and workshops minimally on a bi-weekly basis.
	9. Meetings
	During this Phase, Architect shall attend, take part in, and, when indicated, conduct meetings, site visits, and workshops minimally on a bi-weekly basis.
	[REMAINDER OF PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK]
	Within thirty (30) days of the end of this Phase, Architect shall provide to the District a hard copy of the following items produced in this Phase, together with one (1) copy of each item in electronic format:
	Within thirty (30) days of the end of this Phase, Architect shall provide to the District a hard copy of the following items produced in this Phase, together with one (1) copy of each item in electronic format:

	4. Meetings
	During this Phase, Architect shall attend, take part in, and, when indicated, conduct meetings, site visits, and workshops minimally on a bi-weekly basis.
	1. Contact potential bidders and encourage their participation in the Project.
	2. Coordinate the development of the bidding procedures and the construction Contract Documents with the District.
	6. Attend bid opening.
	7. Coordinate with Consultants.
	8. Respond to District and potential bidder questions and clarifications.
	9. Deliverables and Number of Copies
	Within thirty (30) days of the end of this Phase, Architect shall provide to the District a hard copy of the following items produced in this Phase, together with one (1) copy of each item in electronic format:
	7. As-Built Drawings.  Architect shall review and evaluate for District the Contractor(s)’ documentation of the actual construction performed during the Project that the Contractor(s) should prepare and submit as As-Builts.  As-Builts are documents th...
	8. Record Drawings.  Architect shall incorporate all information on all As-Builts, sketches, details, and clarifications, and prepare one (1) set of final Record Drawings for the District.  The Record Drawings shall incorporate onto one (1) set of dra...
	These drawings [or corrected specifications] have been prepared based on information submitted, in part, by others.  Architect has provided a review consistent with its legal standard of care.

	12. Deliverables and Number of Copies
	Within thirty (30) days of the end of this Phase, Architect shall provide to the District a hard copy of the following items produced in this Phase, together with one (1) copy of each item in electronic format:

	13. Meetings
	During this Phase, Architect shall attend, take part in, and, when indicated, conduct meetings, site visits, and workshops minimally on a bi-weekly basis.
	g. Architect shall review and prepare a package of all warranty and O&M documentation.
	h. Architect shall organize electronic files, plans and prepare a Project binder.
	i. Architect shall have primary responsibility to coordinate all Services required to close-out the design and construction of the Project with the District and among Consultants.

	3. Deliverables and Number of Copies
	a. Punch list; and
	b. Upon completion of the Project, all related Project documents, including As-Builts and Record Drawings.  These are the sole property of the District.

	4. Meetings
	During this phase, Architect shall attend, take part in, and, when indicated, conduct meetings, site visits, and workshops minimally on a bi-weekly basis.

	CRITERIA AND BILLING FOR EXTRA SERVICES
	The following Extra Services to the Agreement shall be performed by Architect if needed and if authorized or requested by the District:
	A. Providing services as directed by the District that are not part of the Basic Services of this Agreement, or otherwise included within Exhibit “A.”
	B. Providing deliverables or other items in excess of the number indicated in Exhibit “A.”  Before preparing, providing, sending, or invoicing for extra deliverables, Architect shall inform the District that expected deliverables may be in excess of t...
	C. Making revisions in drawings, specifications, or other documents when such revisions are required by the enactment or revisions of codes, laws, or regulations subsequent to the preparation of the Conforming Set.
	D. Providing consultation concerning replacement of work damaged by fire or other cause during construction and furnishing services required in connection with replacement of that work.
	E. Providing services made necessary by the default of Contractor(s).
	F. In the absence of a final Certificate of Payment or Notice of Completion, providing services more than ninety (90) days after the date of completion of work by Contractor(s) and after Architect has completed all of its obligations and tasks under t...
	G. Providing services as an expert and/or witness for the District in any mediation, arbitration, and/or trial in which the Architect is (1) not a party, and (2) did not in any way cause the dispute that is being adjudicated.
	H. The following rates, which include overhead, administrative cost, and profit, shall be utilized in arriving at the fee for Extra Services and shall not be changed for the term of the Agreement.
	I. The mark-up on any approved reimbursable item of Extra Services shall not exceed five percent (5%).
	1. The following items are approved for mark-up:
	a. Sub-consultant Invoices.
	2. Any approved item of Extra Services not identified in the above list may not be marked-up.
	J. Format and Content of Invoices (Extra Services Only)
	Architect acknowledges that the District requires Architect’s invoices to include detailed explanations of the Services performed.  For example, a six hour charge for “RFIs and CORs” is unacceptable and will not be payable.  A more detailed explanatio...
	SCHEDULE OF SERVICES
	A. Promptly after the execution of this Agreement, Architect shall prepare and submit for approval to the District a Schedule of Services showing the order in which Architect proposes to carry out Architect's Services (“Schedule of Services”).  The Sc...
	B. Architect shall complete Services required under the Development of Architectural Program section within _7_ calendar days after written authorization from the District to proceed.
	C. Architect shall complete Services required under the Schematic Design Phase within _21__ calendar days after written authorization from District to proceed.
	D. Architect shall complete Services required under the Design Development Phase within _42__ calendar days after receipt of a written authorization from District to proceed.
	E. Architect shall complete Services required under Construction Documents Phase within _60__ calendar days after written authorization from District to proceed, and as more specifically indicated below.  Excluded from this duration is the time associ...
	F. The durations stated above include the review periods of _7__ calendar days required by the District.
	G. All times to complete tasks set forth in this Exhibit are of the essence, as indicated in the Agreement.  If delays in the Schedule of Services are incurred as a result of the District’s inability to comply with requested meeting schedules, Archite...
	PAYMENT SCHEDULE
	A. Compensation
	1. The payment of consideration to Architect as provided herein shall be full compensation for all of Architect’s Services incurred in the performance hereof, including, without limitation, all costs for personnel, travel, offices, per diem expenses, ...
	2. The total compensation to Architect shall be as stated in Article 6 of the Agreement.
	3. District shall pay Architect as follows for all Services contracted for under this Agreement:
	B. Method of Payment
	1. Invoices shall be on a form approved by the District and are to be submitted to the District via the District’s authorized representative.
	2. Architect shall submit to District on a monthly basis documentation showing proof that payments were made to its Consultant(s).
	3. Architect shall submit to the District for approval a copy of the Architect’s monthly pay request format.
	4. Upon receipt and approval of Architect’s invoices, the District agrees to make payments of undisputed amounts within thirty (30) days of receipt of the invoice as follows:
	a. Pre- Design/Architectural Program Development Phase:
	Monthly payments for the percentage of all Services complete up to ninety-five percent (95%) of the fee for the Phase; one hundred percent (100%) payment upon acceptance and approval of the Pre-Design/Architectural Program.
	b. For Schematic Design Phase:
	Monthly payments for the percentage of all Services complete up to ninety-five percent (95%) of the fee for the Phase; one hundred percent (100%) payment upon acceptance and approval of the Schematic Design Phase by the District.
	c. For Design Development Phase:
	d. For Construction Documents Phase:
	e. For Bidding Phase:
	f. For Construction Contract Administration Phase:
	g. For Close Out:
	INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS
	A. Architect shall procure, prior to commencement of the Services of this Agreement and maintain for the duration of the Agreement, insurance against claims for injuries to persons or damages to property which may arise from or in connection with the ...
	B. Minimum Scope and Limits of Insurance:  Coverage shall be at least as broad as the following scopes and limits. Umbrella or Excess Liability policies are acceptable where the need for higher liability limits is noted and shall provide liability cov...
	1. Commercial General Liability.  Two million dollars ($2,000,000) per occurrence for bodily injury, personal injury and property damage.  If Commercial General Liability or other form with a general aggregate limit is used, either the general aggrega...
	2. Commercial Automobile Liability. Two million dollars ($2,000,000) per accident for bodily injury and property damage.
	3. Workers' Compensation Liability.  For all of the Architect’s employees who are subject to this Agreement and to the extent required by the applicable state or federal law, Architect shall keep in full force and effect, a Workers' Compensation polic...
	4. Employers’ Liability.  For all of the Architect’s employees who are subject to this Agreement, Architect shall keep in full force and effect, an Employers’ Liability policy with minimum liability coverage of two million dollars ($2,000,000) per occ...
	5. Professional Liability.  This insurance shall cover the prime design professional and his/her consultant(s) on a Claims Made basis for two Million Dollars ($2,000,000) aggregate limit subject to no more than two hundred thousand dollars ($200,000) ...

	C. District reserves the right to modify the limits and coverages described herein, with appropriate credits or changes to be negotiated for such changes.
	D. Deductibles and Self-Insured Retention:  Architect shall inform the District in writing if any deductibles or self-insured retention exceeds two hundred thousand dollars ($200,000).  At the option of the District, either:
	1. The District can accept the higher deductible;
	2. Architect’s insurer shall reduce or eliminate such deductibles or self-insured retention as respects the District, its officers, officials, employees and volunteers; or
	E. Other Insurance Provisions:  The general liability and automobile liability policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions:
	1. The District, its representatives, consultants, trustees, officers, officials, employees, agents, and volunteers (“Additional Insureds”) are to be covered as additional insureds as respects liability arising out of activities performed by or on beh...
	2. For any claims related to the projects, Architect’s insurance coverage shall be primary insurance as respects the Additional Insureds.  Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the Additional Insureds shall be in excess of Architect’s insuranc...
	3. Architect shall provide an endorsement that the insurer waives the right of subrogation against District and its respective elected officials, officers, employees, agents, representatives, consultants, trustees, and volunteers.
	4. Architect’s insurance shall apply separately to each insured against whom claim is made or suit is brought, except with respect to the limits of the insurer's liability.
	5. Any failure to comply with reporting or other provisions of the policies including breaches of warranties shall not affect coverage provided to the Additional Insureds.
	6. Each insurance policy required by this clause shall be endorsed to state that coverage shall not be suspended, voided, canceled, reduced in coverage or in limits except after thirty (30) days prior written notice by certified mail, return receipt r...
	7. Architect shall pay all insurance premiums, including any charges for required waivers of subrogation or the endorsement of additional insureds. If Architect fails to maintain insurance, District may take out comparable insurance, and deduct and re...
	8. Architect shall require all subconsultants to maintain the level of insurance Architect deems appropriate with respect to the consultant’s scope of the Work unless otherwise indicated in the Agreement. Architect shall cause the subconsultants to fu...

	F. Acceptability of Insurers:  Insurance is to be placed with insurers admitted in California with a current A.M. Best's rating of no less than A: VII.  Architect shall inform the District in writing if any of its insurer(s) have an A.M. Best’s rating...
	1. Accept the lower rating; or
	2. Require Architect to procure insurance from another insurer.
	G. Verification of Coverage:  Prior to commencing with its provision of Services under this Agreement, Architect shall furnish District with:
	1. Certificates of insurance showing maintenance of the required insurance coverages; and
	2. Original endorsements affecting general liability and automobile liability coverage.  The endorsements are to be signed by a person authorized by that insurer to bind coverages on its behalf.  All endorsements are to be received and approved by the...

	H. Copy of Insurance Policy(ies): Upon the District’s request, Architect will furnish District with a copy of all insurance policies related to its provision of Services under this Agreement.
	END OF EXHIBIT

	EXHIBIT “G”

	13.1a.5 SA24-00492 HMC Matsuyama Campus
	EXHIBIT “A” – RESPONSIBILITIES AND SERVICES OF ARCHITECT A-1
	EXHIBIT “B” – CRITERIA AND BILLING FOR EXTRA SERVICES B-1

	This Agreement for Architectural Services is made as of November 16, 2023, between the Sacramento City Unified School District, a California public school district (“District”), and HMC Architects (“Architect”) (collectively “Parties”), for the follo...
	Campus Renewal project located at Matsuyama Elementary School at 7680 Windbridge Drive, Sacramento CA  95831
	Article 1. Definitions
	1.1. In addition to the definitions above, the following definitions of words or phrases shall apply when used in this Agreement, including all Exhibits:
	1.1.1. Agreement:  The Agreement consists exclusively of this document and all identified exhibits attached and incorporated by reference.
	1.1.2. Architect:  The Architect identified in the first paragraph of this Agreement, including all Consultants to the Architect.  The term Architect means the Design Professional in General Responsible Charge on this Project.
	1.1.3. As-Built Drawings (“As-Builts”):  Any document prepared and submitted by District’s Contractor(s) that details on a Conforming Set, the actual construction performed during the Project, including changes necessitated by Construction Change Docu...
	1.1.4. Bid Set:  The plans, drawings, and specifications at the end of the Construction Documents Phase that the Division of the State Architect (“DSA”) has approved and that the District can use to go out to bid for construction of the Project.
	1.1.5. Conforming Set:  The plans, drawings, and specifications at the end of the Bidding Phase that incorporate all addenda, if any, issued during the Bidding Phase.  The Architect shall ensure that DSA has approved all revisions to the Bid Set that ...
	1.1.6. Construction Budget:  The total amount of funds indicated by the District for the entire Project plus all other costs, including design, construction, administration, and financing.
	1.1.7. Construction Change Documents (“CCD”):  The documentation of changes to the DSA-approved construction documents.
	1.1.8. Construction Cost Budget: The total cost to District of all elements of the Project designed or specified by the Architect, as adjusted at the end of each design phase in accordance with this Agreement.  The Construction Cost Budget does not in...
	1.1.9. Construction Manager:  The District’s representative on the Project if the District retains a construction manager, project manager, or owner’s representative.
	1.1.10. Contractor:  One or more licensed contractors under contract with the District for construction of all or a portion of the Project.
	1.1.11. Consultant(s):  Any and all consultant(s), sub-consultant(s), subcontractor(s), or agent(s) to the Architect.
	1.1.12. District:  The Sacramento City Unified School District.
	1.1.13. DSA:  The Division of the State Architect.
	1.1.14. Extra Services:  District-authorized services outside of the scope in Exhibit “A” or District-authorized reimbursables not included in Architect’s Fee.
	1.1.15. Laboratory of Record: The District-designated laboratory(ies) for testing of concrete, soils, materials, and other required testing.
	1.1.16. Project:  District’s Matsuyama Elementary School Campus Renewal Project at 7680 Windbridge Drive, Sacramento CA  95831.
	1.1.17. Record Drawings:  A final set of drawings prepared by the Architect that incorporates all changes from all As-Builts, sketches, details, and clarifications.
	1.1.18. Service(s):  All labor, materials, supervision, services, tasks, and work that the Architect is required to perform and that are required by, or reasonably inferred from, the Agreement, and that are necessary for the design and completion of t...
	1.1.19. Visually Verify: To verify to the fullest extent possible by physical inspection and reasonable investigation and without any destructive action.

	Article 2. Scope, Responsibilities, and Services of Architect
	2.1. Architect shall render the Services described in Exhibit “A,” commencing with receipt of a written Notice to Proceed signed by the District representative.  Architect’s Services will be completed in accordance with the schedule attached as Exhibi...
	2.2. Architect shall provide Services that shall comply with professional architectural standards, including the standard of care applicable to architects designing public school facilities and applicable requirements of federal, state, and local law,...
	2.3. The District intends to award the Project to Contractor(s) pursuant to a competitive bid process.  District reserves its right to use alternative delivery methods and the Architect’s scope of work may be adjusted accordingly.
	2.5. Architect shall contract for or employ at Architect’s expense, Consultant(s) to the extent deemed necessary for completion of the Project including, but not limited to: architects; mechanical, electrical, structural and civil engineers; landscape...
	2.6. Architect shall coordinate with District personnel or its designated representatives as may be requested and desirable, including with other professionals employed by the District for the design, coordination or management of other work related t...
	2.9. Architect shall direct and monitor the work of the District’s DSA project inspector(s) (“Project Inspector(s)”) and the Laboratory of Record.  Architect shall provide code required supervision of special inspectors not provided by the Laboratory ...
	2.10. Architect shall give efficient supervision to Services, using its best skill and attention.  Architect shall carefully study and compare all contract documents, drawings, specifications, and other instructions (“Contract Documents”) and shall at...
	2.11. Architect recognizes that the District may obtain the services of a Construction Manager and that Architect may have to assume certain coordination and management responsibilities, including tracking Requests for Information (“RFI”), providing R...

	Article 3. Architect Staff
	3.1. Architect has been selected to perform the Services herein because of the skills and expertise of key individuals.
	3.2. Architect agrees that the following key people in Architect’s firm shall be associated with the Project in the following capacities:
	Principal In Charge: Vipul Safi
	3.3. Architect shall not change any of the key personnel listed above without prior written approval by the District, unless said personnel cease to be employed by Architect.  In either case, the District shall be allowed to interview and approve repl...
	3.4. If any designated lead or key person fails to perform to the satisfaction of the District, then upon written notice Architect shall have five (5) calendar days to remove that person from the Project and replace that person with one acceptable to ...
	3.5. Architect represents that Architect has no existing interest and will not acquire any interest, direct or indirect, which could conflict in any manner or degree with the performance of Services required under this Agreement and that no person hav...
	3.6. Architect shall comply with Education Code section 17302(a) and agrees that any plans and/or specifications included in the Services shall be prepared under the supervision of licensed personnel, and that licensed personnel shall be in “responsib...

	Article 4. Schedule of Services
	Architect shall commence Services under this Agreement upon receipt of a written Notice to Proceed and shall prosecute the Services diligently as described in Exhibit “A,” so as to proceed with and complete the Services in compliance with the schedule...
	Article 5. Construction Cost Budget
	5.1. Architect hereby accepts the District’s established Construction Cost Budget and Project scope.  In accordance with Exhibit “A,” the Architect shall have responsibility to further develop, review, and reconcile the Construction Cost Budget for th...
	5.2. Architect shall complete all Services as described in Exhibit “A,” including all plans, designs, drawings, specifications and other Contract Documents, so that the cost to construct the work designed by the Architect will not exceed the Construct...
	5.4.1. The lowest responsive base bid received is in excess of five percent (5%) of the Construction Cost Budget; or
	5.4.2. If the combined total of base bid and all additive alternates come in ten percent (10%) or more under the Construction Cost Budget; or
	5.4.3. If the Construction Cost Budget increases in phases subsequent to the Schematic Design Phase due to reasonably foreseeable changes in the condition of the construction market in the county in which the District is located, in so far as these ha...


	Article 6. Fee and Method of Payment
	6.1. The District shall pay Architect for all Services contracted for under this Agreement an amount equal to the following (“Fee”):
	An amount not to exceed Five Hundred Forty Thousand Dollars ($540,000) based on the rates set forth in Exhibit “D.”
	Reimbursable Expenses are in addition to compensation for Basic and Additional Services and will be billed at a multiple of 1.10% the expenses incurred. These charges include, but are not limited to, expenses incurred which are directly related to the...
	6.2. The District shall pay Architect the Fee pursuant to the provisions of Exhibit “D.”
	6.3. Architect shall bill for performance of Services under this Agreement in accordance with Exhibit “D.”
	6.4. No increase in Fee will be due from CCDs and/or change orders generated during the construction period to the extent caused by Architect’s error or omission.
	6.5. The Architect’s Fee set forth in this Agreement shall be full compensation for all of Architect’s Services incurred in the performance hereof as indicated in Exhibit “D.”
	6.6. Regardless of the structure of Architect’s Fee, the Architect’s Fee may be adjusted downward if the Scope of Services of this Agreement is reduced by the District in accordance with this Agreement.
	6.7. Neither the District’s review, approval of, nor payment for, any of the Services required under this Agreement shall be construed to operate as a waiver of any rights under this Agreement, and Architect shall remain liable to the District in acco...

	Article 7. Payment for Extra Services or Changes
	Any charges for Extra Services shall be paid by the District as described in Exhibit “B” only upon certification that the claimed Extra Service was authorized as indicated herein and that the Extra Services have been satisfactorily completed.  If any ...

	Article 8. Ownership of Data
	8.1. Pursuant to Education Code section 17316, this Agreement creates a non-exclusive and perpetual license for the District to use, at its discretion, all plans including, but not limited to, record drawings, specifications, estimates and other docum...
	8.2. Architect retains all rights to all copyrights over designs and other intellectual property embodied in the plans, record drawings, specifications, estimates, and other documents that Architect or its Consultants prepare or cause to be prepared p...
	8.3. Architect shall perform the Services and prepare all documents under this Agreement with the assistance of Computer Aided Design Drafting Technology (“CADD”) (e.g., AutoCAD).  Architect shall deliver to District all drawings in DWG format.  As to...
	8.4. In order to document exactly what CADD information was given to the District, Architect and District shall each date and sign a “hard” copy of reproducible documents that depict the information at the time Architect produces the CADD information....
	8.5. Following the termination of this Agreement, for any reason whatsoever, Architect shall promptly deliver to the District upon written request and at no cost to the District the following items (hereinafter “Instruments of Service”), which the Dis...
	8.5.1. One (1) set of the Contract Documents, including the bidding requirements, specifications, and all existing cost estimates for the Project, in hard copy, reproducible format.
	8.5.2. One (1) set of fixed image CADD files in DXF format of the drawings that are part of the Contract Documents.
	8.5.3. One (1) set of non-fixed image CADD drawing files in DXF or DWG or both formats of the site plan, floor plans (architectural, plumbing, structural, mechanical and electrical), roof plan, sections and exterior elevations of the Project.
	8.5.4. All finished or unfinished documents, studies, reports, calculations, drawings, maps, models, photographs, technology data and reports prepared by the Architect under this Agreement.
	8.5.5. The obligation of Section 8.5 of this Agreement shall survive the termination of this Agreement for any reason whatsoever.

	8.6. In the event the District changes or uses any fully or partially completed documents without Architect’s knowledge or participation or both, the District agrees to release Architect of responsibility for such changes, and shall hold Architect har...

	Article 9. Termination of Contract
	9.1. District’s Request for Assurances:  If District at any time reasonably believes that Architect is or may be in default under this Agreement, District may in its sole discretion notify Architect of this fact and request written assurances from Arc...
	9.2. District’s Termination of Architect for Cause:  If Architect fails to perform Architect’s duties to the satisfaction of the District, or if Architect fails to fulfill in a timely and professional manner Architect’s material obligations under this...
	9.3. District’s Termination of Architect for Convenience:  District shall have the right in its sole discretion to terminate the Agreement for its own convenience.  In the event of a termination for convenience, Architect may invoice District and Dist...
	9.4. Architect’s Termination of Agreement for Cause:  Architect has the right to terminate this Agreement if the District does not fulfill its material obligations under this Agreement and fails to cure such material default within sixty (60) days of ...
	9.5. Effect on Pre-Termination Services:  Except as indicated in this Article, termination shall have no effect upon any of the rights and obligations of the Parties arising out of any transaction occurring prior to the effective date of such terminat...
	9.6. Ceasing Services upon Termination:  If, at any time in the progress of the Design of the Project, the Governing Board of the District determines that the Project should be terminated, Architect, upon written notice from the District of such termi...
	9.7. Project Suspension:  If the District suspends the Project for more than one hundred twenty (120) consecutive days, Architect shall be compensated for Services performed prior to notice of that suspension. When the Project is resumed, the schedule...

	Article 10. Indemnity/Architect Liability
	10.3. Architect shall be responsible for the cost of reviewing CCDs and/or change orders caused by Architect’s willful misconduct, recklessness, or negligent acts, errors or omissions.  Without limiting Architect’s liability for indirect cost impacts,...
	10.4. District may withhold any and all costs that arise out of, pertain to, or relate to the negligence, recklessness, or willful misconduct of the Architect from amounts owing to Architect.

	Article 11. Fingerprinting
	11.1. Pursuant to Education Code section 45125.2, the District has determined on the basis of scope of Services in this Agreement, that Architect, its Consultants and their employees will have only limited contact with pupils. Architect shall promptly...
	11.2. For all workers on District property, the Architect shall comply with all applicable federal, state and local laws regarding COVID-19.  Further, except to the extent the Order provides otherwise, the Architect and Architect’s personnel shall con...

	Article 12. Responsibilities of the District
	12.1. The District shall examine the documents submitted by the Architect and shall render decisions so as to avoid unreasonable delay in the process of the Architect’s Services.
	12.2. The District shall verbally or in writing advise Architect if the District becomes aware of any fault or defect in the Project, including any errors, omissions or inconsistencies in the Architect’s documents.  Failure to provide such notice shal...
	12.3. Unless the District and Architect agree that a hazardous materials consultant shall be a Consultant of the Architect, the District shall furnish the services of a hazardous material consultant or other consultants when such services are requeste...

	Article 13. Liability of District
	13.1. Other than as provided in this Agreement, District’s financial obligations under this Agreement shall be limited to the payment of the compensation provided in this Agreement.  Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, in no event s...
	13.2. District shall not be responsible for any damage to persons or property as a result of the use, misuse or failure of any equipment used by Architect, or by its employees, even though such equipment be furnished or loaned to Architect by District.

	Article 14. Nondiscrimination
	Architect agrees to comply with the provisions of the California Fair Employment and Housing Act as set forth in part 2.8 of division 3 of the California Government Code, commencing at section 12900; the Federal Civil Rights Act of 1964, as set forth ...

	Article 15. Insurance
	15.1. Architect shall comply with the insurance requirements for this Agreement, set forth in Exhibit “E.”
	15.2. Architect shall provide certificates of insurance and endorsements to District prior to commencement of the work of this Agreement as required in Exhibit “E.”

	Article 16. Covenant against Contingent Fees
	Article 17. Entire Agreement/Modification
	Article 18. Non-Assignment of Agreement
	Article 19. Law, Venue
	19.1. This Agreement has been executed and delivered in the State of California and the validity, enforceability and interpretation of any of the clauses of this Agreement shall be determined and governed by the laws of the State of California.
	19.2. To the fullest extent permitted by California law, the county in which the District administration office is located shall be the venue for any action or proceeding that may be brought or arise out of, in connection with or by reason of this Agr...

	Article 20. Alternative Dispute Resolution
	20.1. All claims, disputes or controversies arising out of, or in relation to the interpretation, application or enforcement of this Agreement may be decided through mediation as the first method of resolution.  Notice of the demand for mediation of a...
	20.2. If a claim, or any portion thereof, remains in dispute upon satisfaction of all applicable dispute resolution requirements, the Architect shall comply with all claims presentation requirements as provided in Chapter 1 (commencing with section 90...
	20.3. Pending resolution of the dispute, Architect agrees it will neither rescind the Agreement nor stop the performance of the Services.
	Article 21. Tolling of Claims
	Architect agrees to toll all statutes of limitations for District’s assertion of claims against Architect that arise out of, pertain to, or relate to Contractors’ or subcontractors’ claims against District involving Architect’s work, until the Contrac...
	Article 22. Attorneys’ Fees
	Article 23. Severability
	Article 24. Employment Status
	24.1. Architect shall, during the entire term of Agreement, be an independent contractor and nothing in this Agreement is intended nor shall it be construed to create an employer-employee relationship, a joint venture relationship, or to allow the Dis...
	24.2. Architect understands and agrees that Architect’s personnel are not and will not be eligible for membership in or any benefits from any District group plan for hospital, surgical or medical insurance or for membership in any District retirement ...
	24.3. Should the District, in its discretion, or a relevant taxing authority such as the Internal Revenue Service or the State Employment Development Department, or both, determine that Architect, or any employee or Consultant of Architect, is an empl...
	24.4. Should a relevant taxing authority determine a liability for past services performed by Architect for the District, upon notification of such fact by the District, Architect shall promptly remit such amount due or arrange with the District to ha...
	24.5. A determination of employment status pursuant to the preceding two (2) paragraphs shall be solely for the purposes of the particular tax in question, and for all other purposes of this Agreement, Architect shall not be considered an employee of ...
	24.6. Nothing in this Agreement shall operate to confer rights or benefits on persons or entities not a party to this Agreement.

	Article 25. Certificate of Architect
	25.1. Architect certifies that the Architect is properly certified or licensed under the laws and regulations of the State of California to provide the professional services that it has herein agreed to perform.
	25.2. Architect certifies that it is aware of the provisions of the California Labor Code that require every employer to be insured against liability for workers compensation or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions of that cod...
	25.3. Architect certifies that it is aware of the provisions of California Labor Code and California Code of Regulations that require the payment of prevailing wage rates and the performance of other requirements on certain “public works” and “mainten...

	Article 26. Cost Disclosure - Documents and Written Reports
	Article 27. Notice & Communications
	Article 28. RESERVED
	Article 29. District’s Right to Audit
	29.1. District retains the right to review and audit, and the reasonable right of access to Architect’s and any Consultant’s premises to review and audit the Architect’s compliance with the provisions of this Agreement (“District’s Right”). The Distri...
	29.2. The District’s Right includes the right to examine any and all books, records, documents and any other evidence of procedures and practices that the District determines is necessary to discover and verify whether Architect is in compliance with ...
	29.3. If there is a claim for additional compensation or for Extra Services, the District’s Right includes the right to examine books, records, documents, and any and all other evidence and accounting procedures and practices that the District determi...
	29.4. Architect shall maintain complete and accurate records in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices in the industry. Architect shall make available to the District for review and audit all Project-related accounting records and doc...
	29.5. Architect shall include audit provisions in any and all of its subcontracts, and shall ensure that these sections are binding upon all Consultants.
	29.6. Architect shall comply with these provisions within fifteen (15) days of the District’s written request to review and audit any or all of Architect’s Project-related records and information.
	Article 30. Other Provisions
	30.1. Each party warrants that it has had the opportunity to consult counsel and understands the terms of this Agreement and the consequences of executing it. In addition, each party acknowledges that the drafting of this Agreement was the product of ...
	30.2. The individual executing this Agreement on behalf of Architect warrants and represents that she/he is authorized to execute this Agreement and bind the CM to all terms hereof.
	30.3. This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original. A facsimile or electronic signature shall be deemed to be the equivalent of the actual original signature. All counterparts so executed shall ...
	30.4. Architect shall share, credit, or reimburse District fifty percent (50%) of the amount of any tax deduction and/or credit Architect receives for District Projects under the Commercial Buildings Energy-Efficiency Tax Deduction, 26 U.S. Code § 179...

	Article 31. Exhibits “A” through “F” attached hereto are hereby incorporated by this reference and made a part of this Agreement.
	SCOPE OF PROJECT
	Project Name:  Matsuyama ES Campus Renewal
	Construction Cost Budget:  $6,000,000

	BASIC SERVICES
	3. The District shall provide all information available to it to the extent the information relates to Architect’s scope of work.  This information shall include, if available,
	a. As-builts;
	b. Physical characteristics;
	c. Legal limitations and utility locations for the Project site(s);
	d. Written legal description(s) of the Project site(s);
	e. Grades and lines of streets, alleys, pavements, and adjoining property and structures;
	f. Adjacent drainage;
	g. Rights-of-way, restrictions, easements, encroachments, zoning, deed restrictions, and boundaries and contours of the Project site(s);
	h. Locations, dimensions and necessary data with respect to existing buildings, other improvements and trees;
	i. Information concerning available utility services and lines, mechanical and other services, both public and private, above and below grade, including inverts and depths;
	j. Surveys, reports, as-built drawings, record drawings; and
	k. Subsoil data, chemical data, and other data logs of borings.
	Architect shall Visually Verify this information and all existing Project utilities, including capacity, and document the location of existing utility lines, telephone, water, sewage, storm drains and other lines on or around the Project to the extent...
	If Architect determines that the information or documentation the District provides is insufficient for purposes of design, or if Architect requires:  a topographical survey; a geotechnical report; structural, mechanical, and/or chemical tests; tests ...
	d. Based on survey and topography data provided by the District, input into computer and develop existing conditions base for the Schematic Design Phase.
	e. Administer Project as required to coordinate work with the District and among Consultants.
	f. Develop District standards for facilities and construction, including but not limited to designation of any material, product, thing or service by specific brand or trade name pursuant to Public Contract Code section 3400, subdivision (c).

	6. Meetings
	During this Phase, Architect shall attend, take part in, and, when indicated, conduct meetings, site visits, and workshops minimally on a bi-weekly basis.
	10. Deliverables and Numbers of Copies
	Within thirty (30) days of the end of this Phase, Architect shall provide to the District a hard copy of the following items produced in this phase, together with one (1) copy of each item in electronic format:

	12. Meetings
	During this Phase, Architect shall attend, take part in, and, when indicated, conduct meetings, site visits, and workshops minimally on a bi-weekly basis.
	9. Meetings
	During this Phase, Architect shall attend, take part in, and, when indicated, conduct meetings, site visits, and workshops minimally on a bi-weekly basis.
	[REMAINDER OF PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK]
	Within thirty (30) days of the end of this Phase, Architect shall provide to the District a hard copy of the following items produced in this Phase, together with one (1) copy of each item in electronic format:
	Within thirty (30) days of the end of this Phase, Architect shall provide to the District a hard copy of the following items produced in this Phase, together with one (1) copy of each item in electronic format:

	4. Meetings
	During this Phase, Architect shall attend, take part in, and, when indicated, conduct meetings, site visits, and workshops minimally on a bi-weekly basis.
	1. Contact potential bidders and encourage their participation in the Project.
	2. Coordinate the development of the bidding procedures and the construction Contract Documents with the District.
	6. Attend bid opening.
	7. Coordinate with Consultants.
	8. Respond to District and potential bidder questions and clarifications.
	9. Deliverables and Number of Copies
	Within thirty (30) days of the end of this Phase, Architect shall provide to the District a hard copy of the following items produced in this Phase, together with one (1) copy of each item in electronic format:
	7. As-Built Drawings.  Architect shall review and evaluate for District the Contractor(s)’ documentation of the actual construction performed during the Project that the Contractor(s) should prepare and submit as As-Builts.  As-Builts are documents th...
	8. Record Drawings.  Architect shall incorporate all information on all As-Builts, sketches, details, and clarifications, and prepare one (1) set of final Record Drawings for the District.  The Record Drawings shall incorporate onto one (1) set of dra...
	These drawings [or corrected specifications] have been prepared based on information submitted, in part, by others.  Architect has provided a review consistent with its legal standard of care.

	12. Deliverables and Number of Copies
	Within thirty (30) days of the end of this Phase, Architect shall provide to the District a hard copy of the following items produced in this Phase, together with one (1) copy of each item in electronic format:

	13. Meetings
	During this Phase, Architect shall attend, take part in, and, when indicated, conduct meetings, site visits, and workshops minimally on a bi-weekly basis.
	g. Architect shall review and prepare a package of all warranty and O&M documentation.
	h. Architect shall organize electronic files, plans and prepare a Project binder.
	i. Architect shall have primary responsibility to coordinate all Services required to close-out the design and construction of the Project with the District and among Consultants.

	3. Deliverables and Number of Copies
	a. Punch list; and
	b. Upon completion of the Project, all related Project documents, including As-Builts and Record Drawings.  These are the sole property of the District.

	4. Meetings
	During this phase, Architect shall attend, take part in, and, when indicated, conduct meetings, site visits, and workshops minimally on a bi-weekly basis.

	CRITERIA AND BILLING FOR EXTRA SERVICES
	The following Extra Services to the Agreement shall be performed by Architect if needed and if authorized or requested by the District:
	A. Providing services as directed by the District that are not part of the Basic Services of this Agreement, or otherwise included within Exhibit “A.”
	B. Providing deliverables or other items in excess of the number indicated in Exhibit “A.”  Before preparing, providing, sending, or invoicing for extra deliverables, Architect shall inform the District that expected deliverables may be in excess of t...
	C. Making revisions in drawings, specifications, or other documents when such revisions are required by the enactment or revisions of codes, laws, or regulations subsequent to the preparation of the Conforming Set.
	D. Providing consultation concerning replacement of work damaged by fire or other cause during construction and furnishing services required in connection with replacement of that work.
	E. Providing services made necessary by the default of Contractor(s).
	F. In the absence of a final Certificate of Payment or Notice of Completion, providing services more than ninety (90) days after the date of completion of work by Contractor(s) and after Architect has completed all of its obligations and tasks under t...
	G. Providing services as an expert and/or witness for the District in any mediation, arbitration, and/or trial in which the Architect is (1) not a party, and (2) did not in any way cause the dispute that is being adjudicated.
	H. The following rates, which include overhead, administrative cost, and profit, shall be utilized in arriving at the fee for Extra Services and shall not be changed for the term of the Agreement.
	I. The mark-up on any approved reimbursable item of Extra Services shall not exceed five percent (5%).
	1. The following items are approved for mark-up:
	a. Sub-consultant Invoices.
	2. Any approved item of Extra Services not identified in the above list may not be marked-up.
	J. Format and Content of Invoices (Extra Services Only)
	Architect acknowledges that the District requires Architect’s invoices to include detailed explanations of the Services performed.  For example, a six hour charge for “RFIs and CORs” is unacceptable and will not be payable.  A more detailed explanatio...
	SCHEDULE OF SERVICES
	A. Promptly after the execution of this Agreement, Architect shall prepare and submit for approval to the District a Schedule of Services showing the order in which Architect proposes to carry out Architect's Services (“Schedule of Services”).  The Sc...
	B. Architect shall complete Services required after written authorization from District to proceed, and as more specifically indicated below.  Excluded from this duration is the time associated with DSA review the Construction Documents back-check stage.
	C. The durations stated above include the review periods of _7__ calendar days required by the District.
	D. All times to complete tasks set forth in this Exhibit are of the essence, as indicated in the Agreement.  If delays in the Schedule of Services are incurred as a result of the District’s inability to comply with requested meeting schedules, Archite...
	PAYMENT SCHEDULE
	A. Compensation
	1. The payment of consideration to Architect as provided herein shall be full compensation for all of Architect’s Services incurred in the performance hereof, including, without limitation, all costs for personnel, travel, offices, per diem expenses, ...
	2. The total compensation to Architect shall be as stated in Article 6 of the Agreement.
	3. District shall pay Architect as follows for all Services contracted for under this Agreement:
	B. Method of Payment
	1. Invoices shall be on a form approved by the District and are to be submitted to the District via the District’s authorized representative.
	2. Architect shall submit to District on a monthly basis documentation showing proof that payments were made to its Consultant(s).
	3. Architect shall submit to the District for approval a copy of the Architect’s monthly pay request format.
	4. Upon receipt and approval of Architect’s invoices, the District agrees to make payments of undisputed amounts within thirty (30) days of receipt of the invoice as follows:
	a. Pre- Design/Architectural Program Development Phase:
	Monthly payments for the percentage of all Services complete up to ninety-five percent (95%) of the fee for the Phase; one hundred percent (100%) payment upon acceptance and approval of the Pre-Design/Architectural Program.
	b. For Schematic Design Phase:
	Monthly payments for the percentage of all Services complete up to ninety-five percent (95%) of the fee for the Phase; one hundred percent (100%) payment upon acceptance and approval of the Schematic Design Phase by the District.
	c. For Design Development Phase:
	d. For Construction Documents Phase:
	e. For Bidding Phase:
	f. For Construction Contract Administration Phase:
	g. For Close Out:
	INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS
	A. Architect shall procure, prior to commencement of the Services of this Agreement and maintain for the duration of the Agreement, insurance against claims for injuries to persons or damages to property which may arise from or in connection with the ...
	B. Minimum Scope and Limits of Insurance:  Coverage shall be at least as broad as the following scopes and limits. Umbrella or Excess Liability policies are acceptable where the need for higher liability limits is noted and shall provide liability cov...
	1. Commercial General Liability.  Two million dollars ($2,000,000) per occurrence for bodily injury, personal injury and property damage.  If Commercial General Liability or other form with a general aggregate limit is used, either the general aggrega...
	2. Commercial Automobile Liability. Two million dollars ($2,000,000) per accident for bodily injury and property damage.
	3. Workers' Compensation Liability.  For all of the Architect’s employees who are subject to this Agreement and to the extent required by the applicable state or federal law, Architect shall keep in full force and effect, a Workers' Compensation polic...
	4. Employers’ Liability.  For all of the Architect’s employees who are subject to this Agreement, Architect shall keep in full force and effect, an Employers’ Liability policy with minimum liability coverage of two million dollars ($2,000,000) per occ...
	5. Professional Liability.  This insurance shall cover the prime design professional and his/her consultant(s) on a Claims Made basis for two Million Dollars ($2,000,000) aggregate limit subject to no more than two hundred thousand dollars ($200,000) ...

	C. District reserves the right to modify the limits and coverages described herein, with appropriate credits or changes to be negotiated for such changes.
	D. Deductibles and Self-Insured Retention:  Architect shall inform the District in writing if any deductibles or self-insured retention exceeds two hundred thousand dollars ($200,000).  At the option of the District, either:
	1. The District can accept the higher deductible;
	2. Architect’s insurer shall reduce or eliminate such deductibles or self-insured retention as respects the District, its officers, officials, employees and volunteers; or
	E. Other Insurance Provisions:  The general liability and automobile liability policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions:
	1. The District, its representatives, consultants, trustees, officers, officials, employees, agents, and volunteers (“Additional Insureds”) are to be covered as additional insureds as respects liability arising out of activities performed by or on beh...
	2. For any claims related to the projects, Architect’s insurance coverage shall be primary insurance as respects the Additional Insureds.  Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the Additional Insureds shall be in excess of Architect’s insuranc...
	3. Architect shall provide an endorsement that the insurer waives the right of subrogation against District and its respective elected officials, officers, employees, agents, representatives, consultants, trustees, and volunteers.
	4. Architect’s insurance shall apply separately to each insured against whom claim is made or suit is brought, except with respect to the limits of the insurer's liability.
	5. Any failure to comply with reporting or other provisions of the policies including breaches of warranties shall not affect coverage provided to the Additional Insureds.
	6. Each insurance policy required by this clause shall be endorsed to state that coverage shall not be suspended, voided, canceled, reduced in coverage or in limits except after thirty (30) days prior written notice by certified mail, return receipt r...
	7. Architect shall pay all insurance premiums, including any charges for required waivers of subrogation or the endorsement of additional insureds. If Architect fails to maintain insurance, District may take out comparable insurance, and deduct and re...
	8. Architect shall require all subconsultants to maintain the level of insurance Architect deems appropriate with respect to the consultant’s scope of the Work unless otherwise indicated in the Agreement. Architect shall cause the subconsultants to fu...

	F. Acceptability of Insurers:  Insurance is to be placed with insurers admitted in California with a current A.M. Best's rating of no less than A: VII.  Architect shall inform the District in writing if any of its insurer(s) have an A.M. Best’s rating...
	1. Accept the lower rating; or
	2. Require Architect to procure insurance from another insurer.
	G. Verification of Coverage:  Prior to commencing with its provision of Services under this Agreement, Architect shall furnish District with:
	1. Certificates of insurance showing maintenance of the required insurance coverages; and
	2. Original endorsements affecting general liability and automobile liability coverage.  The endorsements are to be signed by a person authorized by that insurer to bind coverages on its behalf.  All endorsements are to be received and approved by the...

	H. Copy of Insurance Policy(ies): Upon the District’s request, Architect will furnish District with a copy of all insurance policies related to its provision of Services under this Agreement.
	END OF EXHIBIT

	EXHIBIT “G”

	13.1a.6 SA24-00395 NorCal
	SA24-00395 NorCal COI
	SA24-00395 NorCal

	13.1a.7 SA24-00420 Kodely
	SA24-00420 Kodely COI
	SA24-00420 Kodely

	13.1a.8 SA24-00459 St Hope
	13.1a.9 SA23-00545 Lionakis CKM Softball Baseball Amendment No. 1
	13.1a.10 SA23-00543 Lionakis LBHS Softball Baseball Amendment No. 1
	13.1a.11 0040-461-2 CB Technology - CH Reynolds Change Order 1
	13.1a.12 0262-461 CB Wire-HAZMAT JM Env Change Order No. 1
	13.1a.13 0510-433 CKM Chillers-Trane Change Order No. 1
	0510-433 CKM Chillers-Trane Change Order No. 1 backup
	0510-433 CKM Chillers-Trane Change Order No. 1


	13.1b Personnel Transactions
	13.1b 11-16-2023 Cover page Personnel Transactions_
	Meeting Date:  November 16, 2023

	13.1b.1 11-16-2023 Certificated Board Agenda
	Sheet1

	13.1b.2 11-16-2023 Classfied Board Agenda
	Sheet1


	13.1c Business and Financial PO Report Sept 15 through Oct 14th
	13.1c Business and Financial  PO Report Cover_11.16_23
	Meeting Date:  November 16, 2023

	13.1c.1 PO Report 9.15.23-10.14.23_Redacted
	Board Report with Fund
	97
	1
	B24-00756
	B24-00757
	B24-00758
	B24-00759
	B24-00760
	B24-00761
	B24-00762
	B24-00763
	B24-00764
	B24-00765
	B24-00766
	B24-00767
	B24-00768
	B24-00769
	B24-00770
	B24-00771
	B24-00772
	B24-00773
	B24-00774
	B24-00775
	B24-00776
	B24-00777
	B24-00778
	B24-00779
	B24-00780
	B24-00781
	B24-00782
	B24-00783
	B24-00784
	B24-00785
	B24-00786
	B24-00787
	B24-00788
	B24-00789
	B24-00790
	B24-00791
	B24-00792
	B24-00793
	B24-00794
	B24-00795
	B24-00796
	B24-00797
	B24-00798
	B24-00799
	B24-00800
	B24-00801
	B24-00802
	B24-00803
	B24-00804
	B24-00805
	B24-00806
	B24-00807
	B24-00808
	B24-00809
	B24-00810
	B24-00811
	B24-00812
	B24-00813
	B24-00814
	B24-00815
	B24-00816
	CHB24-00254
	CHB24-00255
	CHB24-00256
	CHB24-00257
	CHB24-00258
	CHB24-00259
	CHB24-00260
	CHB24-00261
	CHB24-00262
	CHB24-00263
	CHB24-00264
	CHB24-00265
	CHB24-00266
	CHB24-00267
	CHB24-00268
	CHB24-00269
	CHB24-00270
	CHB24-00271
	CHB24-00272
	CHB24-00273
	CHB24-00274
	CHB24-00275
	CHB24-00276
	CHB24-00277
	CHB24-00278
	CHB24-00279
	CHB24-00280
	CHB24-00281
	CHB24-00282
	CHB24-00283
	CHB24-00284
	CHB24-00285
	CHB24-00286
	CHB24-00287
	CHB24-00288
	CHB24-00289
	CHB24-00290
	CHB24-00291
	CHB24-00292
	CHB24-00293
	CHB24-00294
	CHB24-00295
	CHB24-00296
	CHB24-00297
	CHB24-00298
	CHB24-00299
	CHB24-00300
	CHB24-00301
	CHB24-00302
	CHB24-00303
	CHB24-00304
	CHB24-00305
	CHB24-00306
	CHB24-00307
	CHB24-00308
	CS24-00173
	CS24-00174
	CS24-00175
	CS24-00176
	CS24-00178
	CS24-00179
	CS24-00180
	CS24-00181
	CS24-00182
	CS24-00183
	CS24-00184
	CS24-00185
	CS24-00186
	CS24-00187
	CS24-00188
	CS24-00189
	CS24-00190
	CS24-00192
	CS24-00193
	CS24-00194
	CS24-00195
	CS24-00196
	CS24-00198
	CS24-00199
	CS24-00200
	CS24-00201
	CS24-00202
	CS24-00203
	CS24-00204
	CS24-00205
	CS24-00207
	CS24-00208
	CS24-00209
	CS24-00210
	CS24-00211
	CS24-00212
	CS24-00213
	CS24-00214
	CS24-00215
	CS24-00216
	CS24-00217
	CS24-00218
	CS24-00219
	CS24-00220
	CS24-00221
	CS24-00222
	CS24-00223
	CS24-00224
	CS24-00225
	CS24-00226
	CS24-00227
	CS24-00228
	CS24-00229
	CS24-00230
	CS24-00231
	CS24-00232
	CS24-00233
	CS24-00234
	CS24-00235
	CS24-00236
	CS24-00237
	CS24-00238
	CS24-00239
	CS24-00240
	CS24-00241
	CS24-00242
	CS24-00243
	CS24-00244
	CS24-00245
	CS24-00246
	CS24-00247
	CS24-00248
	CS24-00249
	CS24-00250
	CS24-00251
	CS24-00252
	CS24-00253
	CS24-00254
	CS24-00255
	CS24-00256
	CS24-00257
	CS24-00264
	CS24-00265
	CS24-00267
	CS24-00269
	CS24-00272
	CS24-00274
	CS24-00275
	CS24-00276
	CS24-00279
	CS24-00280
	CS24-00283
	N24-00002
	N24-00007
	N24-00008
	N24-00009
	N24-00010
	N24-00011
	N24-00012
	N24-00013
	N24-00014
	N24-00015
	N24-00016
	P24-00751
	P24-00753
	P24-00754
	P24-00755
	P24-00756
	P24-00757
	P24-00758
	P24-00759
	P24-00760
	P24-00761
	P24-00762
	P24-00763
	P24-00764
	P24-00765
	P24-00766
	P24-00767
	P24-00768
	P24-00769
	P24-00770
	P24-00771
	P24-00772
	P24-00773
	P24-00774
	P24-00775
	P24-00776
	P24-00777
	P24-00778
	P24-00779
	P24-00780
	P24-00781
	P24-00782
	P24-00783
	P24-00784
	P24-00785
	P24-00786
	P24-00787
	P24-00788
	P24-00789
	P24-00790
	P24-00791
	P24-00792
	P24-00793
	P24-00794
	P24-00795
	P24-00796
	P24-00797
	P24-00798
	P24-00799
	P24-00801
	P24-00802
	P24-00803
	P24-00804
	P24-00805
	P24-00806
	P24-00807
	P24-00808
	P24-00809
	P24-00810
	P24-00811
	P24-00812
	P24-00813
	P24-00814
	P24-00815
	P24-00816
	P24-00817
	P24-00818
	P24-00819
	P24-00820
	P24-00821
	P24-00822
	P24-00823
	P24-00824
	P24-00825
	P24-00826
	P24-00827
	P24-00828
	P24-00829
	P24-00830
	P24-00831
	P24-00832
	P24-00833
	P24-00834
	P24-00835
	P24-00836
	P24-00837
	P24-00838
	P24-00839
	P24-00840
	P24-00841
	P24-00842
	P24-00843
	P24-00844
	P24-00845
	P24-00846
	P24-00847
	P24-00848
	P24-00849
	P24-00850
	P24-00851
	P24-00852
	P24-00853
	P24-00854
	P24-00855
	P24-00856
	P24-00857
	P24-00858
	P24-00859
	P24-00860
	P24-00861
	P24-00862
	P24-00863
	P24-00864
	P24-00865
	P24-00866
	P24-00867
	P24-00868
	P24-00869
	P24-00870
	P24-00871
	P24-00872
	P24-00873
	P24-00874
	P24-00875
	P24-00876
	P24-00877
	P24-00878
	P24-00879
	P24-00880
	P24-00881
	P24-00882
	P24-00883
	P24-00884
	P24-00885
	P24-00886
	P24-00887
	P24-00888
	P24-00889
	P24-00890
	P24-00891
	P24-00892
	P24-00893
	P24-00894
	P24-00895
	P24-00896
	P24-00897
	P24-00898
	P24-00899
	P24-00901
	P24-00902
	P24-00903
	P24-00904
	P24-00905
	P24-00906
	P24-00907
	P24-00908
	P24-00909
	P24-00910
	P24-00911
	P24-00912
	P24-00913
	P24-00914
	P24-00915
	P24-00916
	P24-00917
	P24-00918
	P24-00919
	P24-00920
	P24-00921
	P24-00922
	P24-00923
	P24-00924
	P24-00925
	P24-00926
	P24-00927
	P24-00928
	P24-00929
	P24-00930
	P24-00931
	P24-00932
	P24-00933
	P24-00934
	P24-00935
	P24-00936
	P24-00937
	P24-00938
	P24-00939
	P24-00940
	P24-00941
	P24-00942
	P24-00943
	P24-00944
	P24-00945
	P24-00946
	P24-00947
	P24-00948
	P24-00949
	P24-00951
	P24-00952
	P24-00953
	P24-00954
	P24-00955
	P24-00956
	P24-00957
	P24-00958
	P24-00959
	P24-00960
	P24-00961
	P24-00962
	P24-00963
	P24-00964
	P24-00965
	P24-00966
	P24-00973
	P24-00974
	P24-00975
	P24-00976
	P24-00977
	P24-00978
	P24-00979
	P24-00980
	P24-00981
	P24-00982
	P24-00983
	P24-00984
	P24-00985
	P24-00986
	P24-00987
	P24-00988
	P24-00989
	P24-00990
	P24-00991
	P24-00992
	P24-00993
	P24-00994
	P24-00995
	P24-00996
	P24-00997
	P24-00998
	P24-00999
	P24-01000
	P24-01001
	P24-01002
	P24-01003
	P24-01005
	P24-01006
	P24-01007
	P24-01008
	P24-01009
	P24-01010
	P24-01011
	P24-01012
	P24-01013
	P24-01014
	P24-01015
	P24-01016
	P24-01017
	P24-01018
	P24-01019
	P24-01020
	P24-01021
	P24-01022
	P24-01023
	P24-01024
	P24-01025
	P24-01026
	P24-01027
	P24-01028
	P24-01029
	P24-01030
	P24-01031
	P24-01032
	P24-01033
	P24-01034
	P24-01035
	P24-01036
	P24-01037
	P24-01038
	P24-01039
	P24-01040
	P24-01041
	P24-01042
	P24-01043
	P24-01044
	P24-01045
	P24-01046
	P24-01047
	P24-01048
	P24-01049
	P24-01050
	P24-01051
	P24-01052
	P24-01053
	P24-01054
	P24-01055
	P24-01056
	P24-01057
	P24-01058
	P24-01059
	P24-01060
	P24-01061
	P24-01062
	P24-01063
	P24-01064
	P24-01065
	P24-01066
	P24-01067
	P24-01068
	P24-01069
	P24-01070
	P24-01071
	P24-01072
	P24-01073
	P24-01074
	P24-01075
	P24-01076
	P24-01077
	P24-01078
	P24-01079
	P24-01080
	P24-01081
	P24-01082
	P24-01083
	P24-01084
	P24-01085
	P24-01086
	P24-01088
	P24-01089
	P24-01090
	P24-01091
	P24-01092
	P24-01093
	P24-01094
	P24-01095
	P24-01096
	P24-01097
	P24-01098
	P24-01099
	P24-01100
	P24-01101
	P24-01102
	P24-01103
	P24-01104
	P24-01105
	P24-01107
	P24-01108
	P24-01109
	P24-01110
	P24-01111
	P24-01112
	P24-01113
	P24-01115
	P24-01116
	P24-01117
	P24-01118
	P24-01119
	P24-01120
	P24-01121
	P24-01122
	P24-01123
	P24-01124
	P24-01125
	P24-01126
	P24-01127
	P24-01128
	P24-01129
	P24-01130
	P24-01131
	P24-01132
	P24-01133
	P24-01134
	P24-01135
	P24-01136
	P24-01137
	P24-01138
	P24-01139
	P24-01140
	P24-01141
	P24-01142
	P24-01143
	P24-01144
	P24-01145
	P24-01146
	P24-01147
	P24-01148
	P24-01149
	P24-01150
	P24-01151
	P24-01152

	2
	2024

	3
	B24-00027
	B24-00028
	B24-00031
	B24-00057
	B24-00058
	B24-00061
	B24-00092
	B24-00103
	B24-00150
	B24-00186
	B24-00327
	B24-00329
	B24-00386
	B24-00407
	B24-00428
	B24-00430
	B24-00453
	B24-00605
	B24-00623
	B24-00633
	B24-00642
	B24-00653
	B24-00657
	B24-00666
	B24-00677
	B24-00727
	CHB24-00074
	CHB24-00105
	CHB24-00167
	CHB24-00199
	CS23-00325
	CS23-00481
	CS23-00653
	P22-03941
	P23-04110
	P24-00240
	P24-00391
	P24-00699
	P24-00731





	13.1d Approve Sept 21 Minutes
	13.1d September 21 Minutes Cover Sheet
	Meeting Date:  November 16, 2023

	13.1d.1 September 21 2023 MINUTES
	BOARD OF EDUCATION
	MEETING AND WORKSHOP
	MINUTES


	13.1e Annual Developer Fees Report for FY Ending June 30 2023
	13.1e Annual Developer Fees FY ending 06.30.23 cover sheet
	Meeting Date:  November 16, 2023

	13.1e.1 AnnualReport FY2023

	13.1f Approve Res No 3368 Naming District Representatives for School Facilities Program
	13.1f Cover Sheet-Resolution for signature change
	Meeting Date:  November 16, 2023

	13.1f.1 BoardReso_Authorized District Rep for OPSC 2023_v3

	13.1g Approve Annual Organization Meeting
	13.1g Cover Sheet Annual Organizational Meeting (Nov 2023) 4869-0906-0706 2
	Meeting Date:  November 16, 2023

	13.1g.1 Annual Organizational Meeting Backups

	13.1h Approve SETA Head Start Budget Carryover
	13.1h ELC #1 Agenda Cover Sheet Template
	SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
	BOARD OF EDUCATION
	Agenda Item# 13.1h
	Meeting Date:  November 16, 2023

	Subject:  Approve SETA Head Start Budget Carryover from Program 2022-2023 to
	2023-2024
	☐ Information Item Only X Approval on Consent Agenda ☐ Conference (for discussion only)
	☐ Conference/First Reading (Action Anticipated: ______________)
	☐ Conference/Action
	☐ Action
	☐ Public Hearing
	Division:  Early Learning and Care
	Recommendation:  Request to carry the remaining Head Start funds from Year 3 (2022-23) to Year 4 (2023-2024).
	Background/Rationale:  Due to the California Department of Education holding harmless for the 2022-2023 school year, we were able to use the CSPP funds instead of Head Start to help offset the cost of large improvement projects, in which those funds w...
	Financial Considerations:  Request to carry the remaining Head Start funds of $786,928 from Year 3 (2022-23) to Year 4 (2023-2024).  We plan to use the remaining funds to complete the large flooring project and infrastructure improvements as previousl...
	LCAP Goal(s):
	Goal 1: College Career Readiness
	Goal 2: Foundational Educational Experience with Equitable Opportunities for ALL students
	Goal 3: Integrated Supports
	Goal 4: Culture and Climate – Dismantling Systems
	Goal 6: Implementation of MTSS/Data-Based Decision Making
	Goal 8: Basic Services and Districtwide Operations/Supports
	Documents Attached:
	2. Request for Program Approach Change and/or Budget Modification
	Estimated Time of Presentation: N/A
	Submitted by:   Yvonne Wright, Chief Academic Officer
	E’leva Hughes Gibson, Assistant Superintendent
	Approved by:   Lisa Allen, Interim Superintendent

	13.1h.1

	13.1i Approve SETA Head Start Budget Modification
	13.1i ELC #2 Agenda Cover Sheet Template
	SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
	BOARD OF EDUCATION
	Agenda Item# 13.1i
	Meeting Date:  November 16, 2023

	Subject:  Approve SETA Head Start Budget Modification for 2022-2023
	☐ Information Item Only X Approval on Consent Agenda ☐ Conference (for discussion only)
	☐ Conference/First Reading (Action Anticipated: ______________)
	☐ Conference/Action
	☐ Action
	☐ Public Hearing
	Division:  Early Learning and Care
	Recommendation:  Request to move Head Start funds from Personnel and Fringes to Supplies for programming purposes.
	Background/Rationale:  Due to staffing shortages and transitions in filling vacant positions, there was remaining funding from the 2022-2023 school year
	Financial Considerations:  Request to move $ 319,763 from Personnel ($23,217) and Fringes ($296,456) to Supplies..
	LCAP Goal(s):
	Goal 1: College Career Readiness
	Goal 2: Foundational Educational Experience with Equitable Opportunities for ALL students
	Goal 3: Integrated Supports
	Goal 4: Culture and Climate – Dismantling Systems
	Goal 6: Implementation of MTSS/Data-Based Decision Making
	Goal 8: Basic Services and Districtwide Operations/Supports
	Documents Attached:
	1.Request for Program Approach Change and/or Budget Modification
	Estimated Time of Presentation: N/A
	Submitted by:  Yvonne Wright, Chief Academic Officer
	E’leva Hughes Gibson, Assistant Superintendent
	Approved by:   Lisa Allen, Interim Superintendent
	Page 1 of 1

	13.1i.1




